
Extraordinary Planning Committee

Date: 10.00, Friday, 17th January, 2020 and 11.00, Friday, 24th January 2020
Venue: Council Chamber - Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, 

CB11 4ER

Chair: Councillor S Merifield
Members: Councillors G Bagnall, M Caton, P Fairhurst, R Freeman, G LeCount, 

M Lemon (Vice-Chair), J Loughlin, R Pavitt, N Reeve, A Storah and 
M Sutton

Substitutes: Councillors S Barker, A Gerard, N Gregory, R Jones, B Light, 
E Oliver, G Sell, M Tayler and J De Vries

Public Speaking

On 17 January, there will be an opportunity for members of the public, including 
individuals and organisations, to make statements to the Planning Committee 
meeting, subject to having received confirmation that they have been allocated a slot 
to speak. For further information on how to register your intention to speak, please 
see page 3 of the agenda pack.

Following the public speaking on 17 January, the meeting will be adjourned until 
11am on 24 January when the Planning Committee will consider the 
recommendations and the representations before determining whether to authorise 
the release of a decision notice formally approving the application.

Public Document Pack



AGENDA
PART 1

Open to Public and Press

1 Apologies for Absence and Declarations of Interest

To receive any apologies for absence and declarations of interest.

2 UTT/18/0460/FUL - Stansted Airport 3 - 724

To consider whether to authorise the issue of the planning 
permission for UTT/18/0460/FUL – Stansted Airport.

A list of the documents included in this pack, and the relevant page 
numbers, is available here:

 UTT/18/0460/FUL – Stansted Airport report
 Deed of amended planning obligations
 Letter from the applicant
 Documents presented to the Extraordinary Planning 

Committee held on 14 November 2018

5 - 16
17 – 100
101 – 120
121 - 726



MEETINGS AND THE PUBLIC

Members of the public are welcome to attend any of the Council’s Cabinet or 
Committee meetings and listen to the debate.  All agendas, reports and minutes can 
be viewed on the Council’s website www.uttlesford.gov.uk. 

Members of the public and representatives of parish and town councils are permitted 
to speak at this meeting. You will need to register between 8.30am on 10 January 
and midday on 16 January. To register, email 
stanstedairportplanningapplication@uttlesford.gov.uk. Please provide your contact 
details and state whether you support or object to the recommendations or would 
just like the opportunity to comment, and whether you are representing yourself or a 
group. The council will notify people of their allocated slot by 5pm on 16 January.

Like Planning Committee meetings, the sessions will also be recorded and broadcast
live through www.audiominutes.com/udc. Each public speaking session will be 
allocated on a first come, first served basis. Each slot is 4 minutes for members of 
the public, and 5 minutes for town and parish councils, mirroring Planning Committee 
rules

Agendas and minutes are available in alternative formats and/or languages.  For 
more information please call 01799 510510.

Facilities for people with disabilities 
The Council Offices has facilities for wheelchair users, including lifts and toilets.  The 
Council Chamber has an induction loop so that those who have hearing difficulties 
can hear the debate.

If you are deaf or have impaired hearing and would like a signer available at a 
meeting, please contact committee@uttlesford.gov.uk or phone 01799 510548/369 
as soon as possible prior to the meeting.

Fire/emergency evacuation procedure 
If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave 
the building by the nearest designated fire exit.  You will be directed to the nearest 
exit by a designated officer.  It is vital you follow their instructions.

For information about this meeting please contact Democratic Services
Telephone: 01799 510369 or 510548 
Email: Committee@uttlesford.gov.uk

General Enquiries
Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, CB11 4ER

Telephone: 01799 510510
Fax: 01799 510550

Email: uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk
Website: www.uttlesford.gov.uk

http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/
mailto:stanstedairportplanningapplication@uttlesford.gov.uk
http://www.audiominutes.com/udc
mailto:committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
mailto:Committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
mailto:uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk
http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Planning

Title: UTT/18/0460/FUL – Stansted Airport

Date:
17 and 24 January 
2020

Report 
Author:

Roger Harborough, Director of Public Services
rharborough@uttlesford.gov.uk
01799 510457

If members wish to discuss the legal position and the advice received, or if 
they wish to seek further advice from Council officers, they are recommended
to resolve to exclude the press and public from the meeting while this takes
place pursuant to paragraph 5 of Schedule 12A, Local Government Act, 1972:
Consideration of legal advice in public would involve the disclosure of
Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be 
maintained in legal proceedings. 

Recommendation

The Assistant Director – Planning be authorised to issue the decision notice 
approving the planning application subject to the planning conditions as 
resolved by the Planning Committee on 14 November 2018 on signing of the 
amended S106 Agreement appended to this report.

Financial Implications

1. Expenditure from the Strategic Initiative Fund (SIF) is suspended pending the 
outcome of this matter in order to ensure that sufficient resources would be 
available to address the consequences of non-determination of the application 
or refusal.

Background Papers

2. The following papers were referred to by the author in the preparation of this 
report and are available for inspection from the author of the report.

Notes of workshop meetings with Planning Committee members held 2 
– 22 October 2019 and related papers
Note of meeting with the applicant held 22 November 2019
Correspondence from the applicant and annexes

Background

3. On 22 February 2018, Stansted Airport Limited submitted an application for 
planning approval for:

Airfield works comprising two new taxiway links to the existing runway (a 
Rapid Access Taxiway and a Rapid Exit Taxiway), six additional remote 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



aircraft stands (adjacent Yankee taxiway); and three additional aircraft stands 
(extension of the Echo Apron) to enable combined airfield operations of 
274,000 aircraft movements (of which not more than 16,000 movements 
would be Cargo Air Transport Movements (CATM)) and a throughput of 43 
million terminal passengers, in a 12-month calendar period.

4. On 14 November 2018, the Planning Committee resolved to grant the 
application, subject to conditions and subject to completion of an agreement 
imposing legally binding planning obligations (“section 106 agreement”). The 
Report and Supplementary Reports identified the planning obligations 
required. The precise form that the section 106 agreement should take, in 
accordance with the amended recommendation, was resolved to be delegated 
to officers. Subsequently, a proposed S106 Agreement was drawn up between 
the Council, Essex County Council (as relevant highway authority) and 
Stansted Airport Ltd.

5. An Extraordinary Meeting of the Council was called for 25 April 2019 to 
consider the following motion:

To instruct the Chief Executive and fellow officers not to issue a Planning
Decision Notice for planning application UTT/18/0460/FUL until the related
Section 106 Legal Agreement between UDC and Stansted Airport Limited and 
the Planning Conditions have been scrutinised, reviewed and approved by the
Council’s Planning Committee after the local elections.

The motion was defeated by 14 votes to 18 votes.
6. A further Extraordinary Meeting was called to consider the following motion:

To instruct the Chief Executive and fellow officers not to issue the Planning
Decision Notice for planning application UTT/18/0460/FUL until members 
have had an opportunity to review and obtain independent legal corroboration 
that the legal advice provided to officers, including the QC opinion referred to 
by the Leader of the Council on 9th April 2019, confirms that the proposed 
Section 106 Agreement with Stansted Airport Limited fully complies with the 
Resolution approved by the Planning Committee on 14 November 2018 such 
that officers are lawfully empowered to conclude and seal the Agreement 
without further reference to the Planning Committee.

The meeting was originally scheduled for 3 June but was deferred until 28 
June to allow further time for consideration of legal advice. 

7. An informal meeting was held on 30 April with members who had requisitioned 
the Extraordinary Meeting. It was agreed:
 that officers would not complete the section 106 agreement and issue the

planning consent for the time being;
 That the legal advice previously obtained from Christiaan Zwart, barrister,

would be circulated to all members;
That a briefing session would be held for all members, with Christiaan 
Zwart in attendance to answer questions about his advice;

 That, if need be, further advice would be sought at Q.C. level and a further

Page 6



briefing for all councillors would be held. This advice would focus on 
whether the planning obligation requirements made by the Planning 
Committee have been incorporated fully and effectively into the s106 
agreement, and on the origin and consequences of any “gaps” if any 
between the Planning Committee Resolution and the resulting S106 
Agreement.

8. A briefing meeting for all councillors was called for 14 May. Advice obtained 
from the Council’s barrister, Christiaan Zwart, was circulated prior to the 
meeting. He spoke to his advice on 14 May and answered questions.

9. Further advice was then obtained from Stephen Hockman, Q.C. working jointly
with Christiaan Zwart. Their joint advice was sent to members prior to a 
second briefing meeting held on 21 May. They answered questions raised by 
members at that briefing. Issues raised at the briefing meeting by members, 
and by Stop Stansted Expansion separately, led to additional further advice 
from Stephen Hockman, Q.C. and Christiaan Zwart. This also was shared with 
all members of the Council. In all cases information was shared on a legally 
privileged and confidential basis.

10.At the Extraordinary Meeting of Full Council on 28 June officers were 
instructed not to issue a Planning Decision Notice for planning application 
UTT/18/0460/FUL until the Planning Committee had considered:

(i)            the adequacy of the proposed Section 106 Agreement between UDC 
and Stansted Airport Ltd, having regard to the Heads of Terms contained in 
the resolution approved by the Council's Planning Committee on 14th 
November 2018;
 
(ii)        any new material considerations and/or changes in circumstances 
since 14 November 2018 to which weight may now be given in striking the 
planning balance or which would reasonably justify attaching a different weight 
to relevant factors previously considered.

11.Since that meeting further expert legal advice has been obtained from Philip 
Coppel QC at the request of Members, and officers have been supporting 
members of the Planning Committee in preparing to consider the two matters 
set out above through a series of workshop sessions, in part owing to the 
significant change in membership of the committee. These sessions have 
taken members through the content of the draft obligations and issues that 
might be raised as potential new material considerations and regarded as a 
material change in circumstances since 14 November. They have provided 
opportunities for councillors and officers to ensure the obligations and issues 
are fully understood. 

12.This report seeks to set out the issues comprehensively, to enable the 
Committee to comply with the Council resolution and authorise the release of 
the appropriate decision notice on the planning application. 

The Adequacy of the S106 Agreement

Page 7



13.The starting point for assessment of the Agreement’s adequacy is the decision 
of the Planning Committee on 14 November 2018. It resolved to approve the 
planning application for the Stansted Airport proposals subject to the applicant 
entering into planning obligations complying with the Heads of Terms put to 
the Committee at the meeting. That decision to approve the application 
implicitly means an agreement that accorded with the Heads of Terms would 
adequately address the impacts of the proposed development.

14.The obligations fall into the following categories: 
 Sound insulation grant scheme 
 Transport
 Skills education and employment
 Community Trust Fund
 Environment (Ecology and Surface Water Discharge Quality)

Sound Insulation Grant Scheme

15.The draft March 2019 planning obligation sets out in detail the proposed sound 
insulation grant scheme (SIGS) for Stansted. It was covered in the officer’s 
report to the 2018 Planning Committee meeting, and page 123 shows the area 
it would cover and its extended reach. This would exceed the DfT’s Aviation 
2050 consultation proposal that the national noise insulation policy threshold 
should be extended beyond the current 63dB LAeq 16 hour contour to 60dB.

16.  The middle category noise impact zone would already cover the area 
between 63 to 60 dB LAeq 16 hour, and it introduces a further and wider lower 
noise impact zone covering the 57dB LAeq 16 hour. 

17.The extent of the Upper, Middle and Lower noise impact zones would also be 
defined not only on the basis of the LAeq metric but also using other metrics if 
they indicate the need for broadening of the zones’ extent. 

18.For residential properties, the new scheme does not require any owner 
contribution, which enhances the existing scheme. It also distinguishes the 
new scheme from the existing grant schemes for other airports, which typically 
require such a contribution. It is expected that this enhancement will 
encourage a higher take up rate of grant aid than the normal 50% of eligible 
properties. Around 2,000 properties would be eligible, as set out in the 
applicant’s clarification letter.

19.A bespoke approach is proposed for eligible non-residential properties, which 
are individually identified in the proposed obligation.

20.Since June, discussions have been underway with the applicant to determine 
whether there might be any scope to further improve the obligations within the 
regulatory constraints imposed by Parliament. Regulations require that 
obligations must be:

Page 8



 necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;
 directly related to the development; and
 fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.

21.This has resulted in a number of amendments to the sound insulation grant 
scheme., including a commitment to conclude a review of the SIGS zone 
boundaries in conjunction with the council, to respond where necessary to any 
confirmed airspace management change that may be introduced in the future; 
joint promotion of the new scheme with the council; and an openness to all 
available technologies when considering bespoke measures for non-
residential properties.

22.The transport mitigation measures stem directly from the Transport 
Assessment work and the consultation responses from the highways 
authorities (Essex and Hertfordshire County Councils and Highways England) 
as revised prior to the Planning Committee in November 2018. The objections 
were withdrawn on the basis that the amended recommendations included 
ECC’s requirement for a commitment to use reasonable endeavours to ensure 
mode share targets were met. The mode share targets have their basis in the 
transport modelling work that the local highways authority had tested during 
assessment of the submitted application. They ensure that current voluntary 
targets are adhered to, and establish a baseline replacing the lower target that 
had been required in 2008. 

23.This is set out in the Transport Assessment of the Environmental Statement 
and its Addendum. Sensitivity testing was carried out using alternative mode 
share assumptions. The Local Road Fund of £800,000 was quantified from 
estimates for indicative local highway improvement schemes that the local 
highway authority considered could potentially be rendered necessary from 
the TA work, subject to the impact on the network of specific other (non-
airport) developments. 

24.The extended rail users discount scheme allows discounted parking to rail 
season ticket holders and its wording has been perfected to ensure a higher 
rate of discount would be provided.

25.Since June, a number of further amendments have been agreed:
 The Local Roads Network Fund has been increased to £1 million. This is to 

take account of the broadening of the definition of the scope of the Fund 
when compared to the definition used in 2008 obligation, to include 
measures to address off airport parking. This increased scope was 
reflected in the definition of the Fund in the March 2019 draft Agreement 
but without any commensurate uplift in the sum of money to be made 
available. This has now been rectified. 

 The applicant is also prepared to agree to a clarification that, where  
eligible for funding support, highway improvements within a five mile radius 
of the airport means within 5 miles of the boundary of the airport. 

Page 9



 The applicant is also prepared to agree to a new clause including a 
commitment to prioritisation of grants from the Local Bus Network 
Development Fund when the grant application provides for the use of Ultra 
Low Emission Vehicles (ULEVs), and a business case exists.

26.Officers have raised the council’s concerns about local residents being given 
the opportunity to apply for jobs on the airport. The applicant proposes to 
respond by adding a commitment to holding local jobs fairs in Part 3, 2(e) of 
the obligation.

27.On 20 November 2019, the Supreme Court issued its judgement in a case R 
(Wright) v Forest of Dean District Council [2019] UKSC 53. This case is 
relevant to the proposed obligations for Stansted Airport, particularly the 
community trust fund. It also contains an excellent explanation of what 
constitutes a material consideration. The link to the judgement is: 

https://www.supremecourt.uk/cases/docs/uksc-2018-0007-judgment.pdf

28.The judgment is in line with advice consistently given to members on the 
Stansted application. It is very clear that community benefits unrelated to the 
development are not material considerations and the judgment stresses that 
planning consent cannot be “bought and sold”. Accordingly, pressure to seek 
additional benefits should not be pursued, particularly in the light of the 
judgment, which has again authoritatively confirmed previously established 
case law. 

29.The applicant is prepared however to insert a clarification into the community 
trust fund terms of reference appended to the Agreement confirming that that 
the reference to Parish Councils as bodies eligible to make applications to the 
Fund includes Town Councils. 

30.The applicant has stressed that, while it is constrained by law from providing 
additional community benefits through the mechanism of a planning obligation 
linked to its development proposals it is prepared to consider enhancement of 
its support for community led initiatives, but this would need to be in a 
business as usual context. No weight should be attached to such potential 
partnership arrangements, and they should not be progressed for the time 
being until after the determination of the current planning proposals has been 
finally resolved. This was made clear by the Supreme Court in the case 
referred to above, and the judgement refers specifically to a planning 
permission already being in place.

31.No specific changes are justified in relation to the obligations to monitor effects 
on biodiversity and water quality. However, a general compliance monitoring 
financial contribution has also been added providing £25,000 up front, and 
ongoing sums of £5,000 a year for ten years. This is emerging standard 
practice in the planning system nationally for all new agreements, confirmed 
by Statutory Instrument creating a new CIL Regulation 122 (2A). The 
Regulations constrain such monitoring contributions to the estimated costs of 
the Council in carry out necessary monitoring activity.

Page 10

https://www.supremecourt.uk/cases/docs/uksc-2018-0007-judgment.pdf


 
New Material Considerations or other changes in circumstances

32.The Planning Officer’s report on the planning application prepared for the 
Extraordinary Meeting of the Planning Committee held on 14 November 2018 
came to an overall conclusion in paras 10.106 to 10.111 starting on page 109 
of that report. It advised:

10.106 The ES has demonstrated that there would be negligible impacts 
arising from the proposals. These have been assessed and tested by 
various consultees and issues arising have been addressed and appropriate 
mitigation measures identified.
10.107 Section 38(6) of the Planning Act 2004 requires that the 
determination be made in accordance with the provisions of the development 
plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The application 
accords with the development plan.
10.108 It is considered that the proposal represents a sustainable form of 
development in line with the NPPF (2018) paragraph 8 and accords with the 
NPPF.
10.109 The application makes best use of the existing runway infrastructure 
in accord with Beyond the Horizon (June 2018) and the Aviation Framework 
(2013).
10.110 No other matters sufficiently outweigh these considerations.
10.111 It is therefore recommended that the application be approved subject 
to s106 Legal Obligation and conditions

33.There are no new material considerations or other change in circumstances 
that now justify a different overall conclusion.

34.The conclusion was based on an understanding of the implications of the 
proposals in terms of total passengers, passenger air transport movements, 
cargo air transport movements, other movements and total movements. These 
key statistics were set out in the report for a series of years as relevant 
baselines and the key milestones in the Do Minimum Scenario and in the 
Development Case: 2016 (existing baseline); 2021 (construction baseline); 
2023 (Do Minimum baseline); 2023 (Transitional Year) and 2028 (Principal 
Assessment Year).

35.The report included the following tables:

2016
(Existing 
baseline)

2021
(Construction 
baseline)

2023
(Do Minimum 
baseline)

Total passengers 
(‘000s)

24,300 32,600 35,000

Passenger ATMs 
(‘000s)

152 199 213

Cargo AMTs (‘000s) 12 13 14
Other (‘000s) 16 19 19
Total Movements 181 231 247

Page 11



(‘000s)

.
2023
Transitional Year

2028
Principal Assessment Year

Do Minimum 
Scenario

Development 
Case

Do 
Minimum 
Scenario

Development 
Case

Total passengers
(‘000s) 35,000 36,400 35,000 43,000

Passenger ATMs 
(‘000s) 213 219 212 253

Cargo ATMs 
(‘000s) 14 14 17 16

Other (‘000s) 19 20 20 5
Total Movements 
(‘000s) 247 253 249 274

36.This made it clear that if the 35 million passengers per annum (35 mppa) limit 
were to be retained this would constrain the total number of aircraft 
movements to 249,000, notwithstanding that the 2008 planning permission 
granted by the Secretaries of State permitted 274,000 movements.

37.When the Secretaries of State made their decision in 2008 to approve 
development to subject to planning conditions limiting the passenger 
throughput and aircraft movements, it was on the basis that 35 mppa would 
necessitate 274,000 movements. To now refuse an increase in passenger 
throughput and effectively cap the number of movements to 249,000 would 
equate to a new noise restriction.

38.  The Airports (Noise-related Operating Restrictions) (England and Wales) 
Regulations 2018 came into force on 23 July 2018. The guidance is relevant 
when major airports in England or Wales are considering the introduction of 
operating restrictions. Where such restrictions are being introduced through 
the mechanism of a decision under the Planning Acts, the competent authority 
is the local planning authority. It must be able to show that in introducing any 
new restrictions, it is doing so within a balanced approach to noise 
management involving the reduction of noise at source, land use planning and 
management, noise abatement operational procedures and operating 
restrictions. There are process requirements that include the need to assess 
each type of measure to address noise, the relative cost effectiveness and 
consultation with all interested parties. Reducing the movement cap by limiting 
passenger numbers would need to be properly justified.

39.The recommendations to national governments set out in the World Health 
Organisation Community Noise Guidelines had been published before the 
meeting on 14 November 2018. There was reference to these guidelines in the 
public speaking sessions and at the commencement of the Planning 
Committee meeting. They are referenced in the Supplementary List of 

Page 12

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2018/785/contents/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2018/785/contents/made


Representations document circulated to the Committee. As noted in the 
document, these guidelines were not government policy. That remains the 
case. The government has said its response to the WHO recommendations 
will be set out in the forthcoming Aviation Strategy.

40.The government has adopted a similar approach in relation to carbon 
emissions and climate change. Whilst it has put its net zero carbon emissions 
target on a statutory footing, it has not yet developed a clear set of policies 
and interventions for achieving that target. There are no policy limits for 
individual airports that constrain the maximum permitted emissions from 
aircraft movements to and from each UK major airport. The Committee on 
Climate Change wrote a letter to the Secretary of State for Transport entitled 
Net Zero and the approach to international aviation and shipping emissions on 
24 September 2019 ) https://www.theccc.org.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2019/09/Letter-from-Lord-Deben-to-Grant-Shapps-IAS.pdf.  
Again the government’s response was that the CCC’s advice will be taken into 
account when it sets out its policy in the Aviation Strategy 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/committee-on-climate-changes-
2019-progress-reports-government-responses .(See Chapter 5 pages 79-82 
and page 90).

41. It is not open to a local planning authority in determining a planning application 
to seek to anticipate what national policy choices the government may, or 
should, take. Nor is it appropriate to assume that the government will seek to 
manage air noise impacts or carbon emissions mainly through land use 
decisions. It has other available mechanisms to control, influence or 
incentivise the behaviour of individuals and corporate bodies. It is notable that 
in deferring policy decisions to the forthcoming Aviation Strategy, it has not 
withdrawn Beyond the Horizon (June 2018), or issued a policy statement 
caveating the weight to be attached to it in the interim.

42.There is recent case law from an Appeal Court judgement which in part dealt 
with the matter of whether the High Court was wrong to have found that a 
Planning Inspector could not reach a view on the likely effectiveness of 
measures to improve air quality in the national air quality plan; and that the 
inspector should have seen the relevance to his decision of the proposed 
measures to bring air quality within limit values (Gladman Developments, 
SSCLG, Swale Borough Council, CPRE Kent  Case No: C1/2017/3476). The 
Appeal Court did not agree with appellant on these points. 

43.This Council faces an analogous issue in considering representations made to 
it. In law, the council needs to focus on the evidence presented to it as to the 
effects of the proposed development. It is not obliged to embark on predictive 
judgements as to the timing and likely effectiveness of government decisions 
on achieving the statutory net zero carbon emissions target. 

44.The council has to form its own judgement on the effects of the specific 
development. It cannot reasonably know at present how measures taken at 

Page 13

https://www.theccc.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/Letter-from-Lord-Deben-to-Grant-Shapps-IAS.pdf
https://www.theccc.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/Letter-from-Lord-Deben-to-Grant-Shapps-IAS.pdf


national level will translate into measures that may be imposed on a particular 
airport. 

45.The sensitivity evidence in the Environmental Statement for the planning 
application does not suggest that there would be national consequences 
resulting from planning permission being issued, one factor leading to the 
Secretary of State’s decision not to call the planning application in for his own 
determination. As a matter of essential principle, the planning system should 
not seek to duplicate other regulatory controls, and should generally assume 
they will operate effectively.

46.Underlying the Environmental Statement’s assessment of noise, carbon 
emissions and air quality effects are assumptions about aircraft fleet mix for air 
transport movements at Stansted in 2028 under the Development Case with 
43 mppa and 274,000 total movements. Attention has been drawn in 
representations to the number of Boeing 737 MAX aircraft in the fleet assumed 
by 2028. As Members will be aware, currently regulatory authorities have 
withdrawn airworthiness certification from the aircraft in the 737 MAX series. 

47. In an official media statement issued on 11 November 2019, Boeing 
acknowledges that the FAA and other regulatory authorities will determine the 
timing of certification and return to commercial service, however it continues to 
target FAA certification of the MAX flight control software updates during Q4 
2019. It says: “based on this schedule, it is possible that the resumption of 
MAX deliveries to airline customers could begin in December, after 
certification, when the FAA issues an Airworthiness Directive rescinding the 
grounding order. In parallel, we are working towards final validation of the 
updated training requirements, which must occur before the MAX returns to 
commercial service, and which we now expect to begin in January”. The first 
of five key milestones on return to service had been completed as at 11 
November. 

48.That statement proved to be optimistic, Airlines are taking a cautious view as 
to when they will receive deliveries and when they will be able to bring their 
ordered aircraft into service but they still expect to be able to do so during 
2020. Ryanair, which is one of Boeing biggest customers for the 737 MAX with 
210 on order, accepts that there is a real risk that it will have none of these 
aircraft in service in summer 2020 and that it expects to fly 157 million 
passengers in the financial year to the end of March 2021, up only 2.6% on its 
target outturn for 2020 but its chief financial officer has said that there is “no 
risk at all” that the airline would fail to meet its target of flying 200 million 
passengers by March 2024. It would be a matter of speculation to assert that 
fleet mix assumptions for 2028 will turn out to be materially incorrect.  

49.The Environmental Assessment supporting the planning application included a 
sensitivity test in which there were 10% fewer aircraft reaching the noise and 
emissions performance standards of the 737 MAX series. This did not show 
any significant deterioration in effects. There are competitor manufacturers 

Page 14



with equivalent aircraft, and the fleet mix assumptions in the Assessment were 
also cautious in so far as they were based on a slower rate of take up than 
was viewed as likely. From the council’s perspective as the local planning 
authority, there is a further safeguard in the noise contour condition. Not only 
would it potentially limit the number of aircraft movements, if the fleet is not 
modernised as anticipated, to stay within the noise cap, but it would also 
address the carbon reduction point, because older noisier aircraft are also less 
fuel efficient.

50. In November 2018, officers’ advice was that little weight could be attached to 
the emerging local plan. It was, and is a material consideration, but little weight 
can be attached to the detailed wording of Policy SP 11 Stansted Airport in the 
plan as submitted for examination. The first set of hearing sessions on the 
development strategy and strategic policies including that dealing with the 
Airport have been concluded, but the council is still awaiting a letter from the 
examining inspectors giving feedback. 

51. It is clear from the hearing sessions and their requests for dialogue between 
parties before the next set of hearing sessions that the Inspectors may 
potentially be looking to recommend major modifications to Policy SP11. 
However, employment growth at the Airport is an integral part of the 
development strategy set out in the submitted plan, and airport development 
on the scale proposed in the planning application is included within the 
preferred scenario for employment growth in the evidence supporting the 
Local Plan There are no compelling grounds to support an argument that 
issuing the planning permission for the development would prejudice the 
outcome of the plan making process. 

Conclusion

52.There are no grounds for deeming the S106 Agreement to be inadequate.  
Further work to review the obligations has been concluded and it has been 
amended where possible within the legal constraints.

53.There are no new material considerations that would justify a different decision 
to that resolved by the Planning Committee on 14 November 2018.

54.The development plan framework position has not changed materially since 
2018.

55.The decision notice should be issued granting planning permission for the 
development as proposed in the application subject to the revised planning 
conditions recommended to the Committee on 14 November 2018, as soon as 
the appended amended planning obligations have been signed by all parties.

Risk Analysis

Page 15



Risk Likelihood Impact Mitigating actions

Planning 
permission is 
challenged in the 
Courts

2 Action at 
least to delay 
an 
unchallenged 
permission 
date would be 
unsurprising

2 Any such 
challenge 
would need to 
be defended 
in the Courts

Advice at QC level 
has been sought

Planning 
permission is 
refused, 
notwithstanding 
the resolution to 
grant in 
November 2018

2 The 
application is 
controversial 
and has 
attracted 
significant 
objection from 
local residents

3 A major 
planning 
inquiry would 
require 
significant 
reallocation of 
resources and 
the use of 
reserves

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.

Page 16



   

1 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

Dated        2020 

 

 

 

 

 

(1) UTTLESFORD DISTRICT COUNCIL 

and 

(2) ESSEX COUNTY COUNCIL 

and 

(3) STANSTED AIRPORT LIMITED 

and 

(4) CITICORP TRUSTEE COMPANY LIMITED 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DEED OF PLANNING OBLIGATIONS 

relating to Land at Stansted Airport, Essex pursuant to 
section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

Planning Permission Ref No: UTT/18/0460/FUL 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Town Legal LLP 

10 Throgmorton Avenue 

London EC2N 2DL

Page 17



   

2 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

 

Page 18



 

3 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

 

Contents 

1. DEFINITIONS .................................................................................................. 5 

2. RECITALS ....................................................................................................... 8 

3. ENABLING POWERS AND OBLIGATIONS ..................................................... 8 

4. OBLIGATIONS UNDERTAKEN BY STAL AND THE CHARGEE ..................... 9 

5. AGREEMENTS AND DECLARATIONS ........................................................... 9 

6. ADVANCE NOTICE OF IMPLEMENTATION AND OF THE PASSENGER 

LEVEL TRIGGER DATE .................................................................................. 9 

7. PROVISION FOR INDEXATION .................................................................... 10 

8. VAT ................................................................................................................ 10 

9. PROVISOS AND INTERPRETATION ............................................................ 10 

10. ENFORCEABILITY AGAINST CHARGEES ................................................... 11 

11. DISPUTE RESOLUTION ............................................................................... 12 

12. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS .................................................................. 13 

13. DELIVERY ..................................................................................................... 14 

SCHEDULE 1 .............................................................................................................. 15 

(The Permission) ........................................................................................................ 15 

SCHEDULE 2 .............................................................................................................. 17 

(Airport Property: Relevant Land Registry Title Numbers [clause 2.3]).............................. 17 

SCHEDULE 3 .............................................................................................................. 19 

(Obligations entered into by STAL with UDC)................................................................. 19 

Part 1: Noise Mitigation .......................................................................................... 19 
Part 2: Transport..................................................................................................... 23 
Part 3: Skills, Education and Employment ................................................................ 28 
Part 4: Community Trust Fund ................................................................................. 30 
Part 5: Ecology provisions ....................................................................................... 31 
Part 6: Surface Water Discharge Quality Monitoring ................................................ 32 

Annexures 

1. Plan 1 (Airport Property) 

2. Airfield Infrastructure Works Plan 

3. Revised SIGS Contour Plan 

4. Junction 8 (M11) Scheme Drawing 

5. Priory Wood Roundabout Drawing 

6. Local Road Monitoring Scheme (Schedule 3 Part 2) 

7. Rail-Users Discount Scheme (Schedule 3 Part 2) 

8. Transport Forum Revised Terms of Reference (Schedule 3 Part 2) 

Page 19



 

4 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

9. Area of Benefit Plan (Schedule 3 Part 4) 

10. Community Benefit Terms of Reference (Schedule 3 Part 4) 

11. Woodland Plan (Schedule 3 Part 5) 

Page 20



 

5 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

AN AGREEMENT made the                                      day of                                                          2020  

BETWEEN 

(1) UTTLESFORD DISTRICT COUNCIL of Council Offices London Road Saffron Walden 
Essex CB11 4ER (“UDC”) of the first part; 

(2) ESSEX COUNTY COUNCIL of County Hall, Market Road, Chelmsford CM1 1QH (the 
“County Council”) of the second part; 

(3) STANSTED AIRPORT LIMITED (Co Reg No: 01990920) whose registered office is at 
Enterprise House, Bassingbourn Road, Stansted Airport, Essex CM24 1QW (“STAL”) 
of the third part; and 

(4) CITICORP TRUSTEE COMPANY LIMITED (Co Reg No: 0235914) whose registered 
office is at Citigroup Centre, Canada Square, Canary Wharf, London E14 5LB (the 
“Chargee”) of the fourth part. 

 

1. DEFINITIONS 

1.1. “39 mppa Date” means the end of the first month following the point at which the 
annual passenger throughput at Stansted Airport exceeds 39 mppa over a period of 
twelve calendar months for the first time; 

1.2. “43 mppa Date” means end of the first month following the point at which the 
annual passenger throughput at Stansted Airport reaches 43 mppa over a period of 
twelve calendar month for the first time; 

1.3. “1972 Act” means the Local Government Act 1972; 

1.4. “1980 Act” means the Highways Act 1980; 

1.5. “1990 Act” means the Town and Country Planning Act 1990; 

1.6. “1999 Act” means the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999; 

1.7. “2000 Act” means the Local Government Act 2000; 

1.8. “2003 Agreement” means the Deed of Planning Obligations dated 14 May 2003 
relating to Stansted Airport and made between (1) UDC, (2) Essex County Council 
and (3) STAL; 

1.9. “2008 Undertaking” means the Deed of Unilateral Undertaking relating to Stansted 
Airport dated 26 September 2008 entered into by (1) STAL in favour of (2) UDC and 
(3) Essex County Council; 

1.10. “2011 Act” means the Localism Act 2011; 

1.11.  “Airfield Infrastructure Works” means the following works at Stansted Airport: 

(a) the formation of two new taxiway links to the runway (Rapid Access 
 Taxiway 22/04 and Rapid Exit Taxiway Mike Romeo (MR));  

(b) six additional remote aircraft stands adjacent to Yankee Taxiway; and  

(c) three additional remote aircraft stands (forming an extension of the Echo 
Apron),  

as shown on the Airfield Infrastructure Works Plan; 

Page 21



 

6 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

1.12. “Airfield Infrastructure Works Plan” means drawing no STAL-STAL-001-PLA-001-001 
comprising Annexure 2 to this Deed; 

1.13. “Airport Property” means the land shown for the purpose of identification only 
edged in blue excluding the land edged in green on Plan 1; 

1.14. “Authorities” means UDC and Essex County Council; 

1.15. “CIL Regulations” means the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 as  
amended or replaced from time to time; 

1.16. “Date of Grant” means the date the Permission is issued by UDC; 

1.17. “Development” means the development authorised by the Permission; 

1.18. “Essex County Council” means Essex County Council of County Hall, Market Road, 
Chelmsford CM1 1QH acting as the local highway authority for Essex; 

1.19. “Existing Planning Agreements” means all of the following deeds and documents: 

(a) the 2003 Agreement; 

(b) the 2008 Undertaking; and 

(c) a second Unilateral Undertaking given by a Deed dated 26 September 
 2008 made by (1) STAL in favour of (2) UDC and (3) Hertfordshire County 
 Council; 

1.20. “Existing Planning Consents” means the following two planning permissions: 

(a) planning permission Ref No UTT/1000/01/OP dated 16 May 2003; and 

(b) planning permission Ref No UTT/0717/06/FUL granted on appeal by the 
 Secretaries of State, dated 8 October 2008; 

1.21. “Implementation” means the implementation of the Permission by the carrying out 
of any material operation (as defined by section 56 of the 1990 Act) pursuant to the 
Permission PROVIDED ALWAYS for the purposes of this Agreement Implementation 
shall exclude: 

(a) all works associated with the operation of Stansted Airport other than 
 works required for the Airfield Infrastructure Works; 

(b) any works carried out pursuant to permitted development rights;  

(c) site survey and site preparation in advance of and preparatory to 
commencement of the Airfield Infrastructure Works; 

(d) ecological and archaeological survey work; 

(e) any other surveys required by the Permission prior to the 
 commencement of the Development; 

(f) remediation; and 

(g) the taking of preparatory measures in advance of the carrying out of the 
 Airfield Infrastructure Works; 

and “Implement” and “Implemented” shall mutatis mutandis be construed 
 accordingly; 

1.22. “Implementation Date” means the date of actual Implementation;  

Page 22



 

7 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

1.23. “Indexed” means adjusted by reference to the relevant index pursuant to the 
provisions of clause 7; 

1.24. “Legal Challenge” means any challenge to the validity or lawfulness of the Planning 
Application or to the Permission in the courts brought by means of proceedings for 
judicial review, declaratory proceedings or otherwise calling into question the 
validity of the Permission; and includes any proceedings by way of appeal to the 
Court of Appeal, the Supreme Court or to any other appellate body; 

1.25. “Legal Charge” means a legal charge dated 14 February 2014 (Charge Ref: 
CH373359) in favour of the Chargee referred to in the Charges Registers of relevant 
titles to the Airport Property; 

1.26. “mppa” means million passengers per annum whose journey by air involves either 
taking off from or landing at Stansted Airport, calculated by reference to the Civil 
Aviation Authority definitions where: 

(a) a terminal passenger is a passenger joining or leaving an aircraft at the 
reporting airport.  A passenger travelling between two reporting airports is 
counted twice, once at each airport.  A passenger who changes from one 
aircraft to another, whether carrying the same flight number (change of 
gauge) or not is treated as a terminal passenger, (known as an “interlining 
passenger” or “transfer passenger”) and is therefore counted twice at the 
airport where they change from one aircraft to another; and 

(b) a transit passenger is a passenger who arrives at and departs from a 
reporting airport on the same aircraft which is transiting.  Each transit 
passenger is counted once only and not both on arrival and on departure. 

1.27.  “Passenger Level Trigger Date” means the end of the first month following the 
point at which the annual passenger throughput at Stansted Airport exceeds 35 
mppa over a period of twelve calendar months for the first time; 

1.28. “Permission” means the planning permission (a draft of which is annexed at 
Schedule 1) granted or to be granted by UDC in respect of the Planning Application;  

1.29. “Plan 1” means plan reference no SK394 comprising Annexure 1 to this Deed;  

1.30. “Planning Application” means the application dated February 2018 made by STAL 
under reference number UTT/18/0460/FUL;  

1.31. “Qualifying Purposes” means purposes that fulfil the following three tests, namely 
that expenditure is: 

(a) necessary to make the Development, works or expenditure acceptable in 
planning terms; and 

(b) directly related to the Development; and 

(c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the Development, 

in each case as approved by the Permission. 

1.32. “Reasonable Endeavours” means it is agreed between STAL and the relevant one of 
the Authorities that the party under such an obligation shall not thereby be required 
to take proceedings (including any appeal) in any court, public inquiry or other 
hearing (unless expressly specified to the contrary) but SUBJECT THERETO such party 
shall be bound to make all reasonable attempts to fulfil the relevant obligation by 

Page 23



 

8 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

the expenditure of such effort and / or sums of money and the engagement of such 
professional or other advisers as in all the circumstances may be reasonable; and 

1.33. “Unchallenged Permission Date” means the date when all steps by way of Legal 
Challenge have been exhausted. 

 

2. RECITALS 

2.1. UDC is the planning authority within the meaning of the 1990 Act for the area in 
which the Airport Property is situated. 

2.2. The County Council is the local highway authority and the local authority for 
statutory education and childcare for the area within which the Airport Property is 
situated. 

2.3. STAL is registered at the Land Registry as proprietor of the Airport Property with 
freehold title under the title numbers set out in Schedule 2 subject to the Legal 
Charge. 

2.4. The Chargee has the benefit of the Legal Charge.  

2.5. STAL submitted the Planning Application to UDC; and at the meeting of its Planning 
Committee held on 14 November 2018 UDC resolved to grant the Permission subject 
to STAL entering into a binding obligation under section 106 of the 1990 Act making 
provision for the matters set forth in this Agreement. 

2.6. UDC considers it expedient in the interests of proper planning of its area and having 
regard to the policies of the Development Plan, regulation 122 of the CIL Regulations 
and all other material considerations that provision should be made for regulating or 
facilitating the Development in the manner herein.  

2.7. UDC and STAL and the County Council have agreed to enter into this Agreement 
pursuant to the operative powers described in clause 3 for the purpose of regulating 
the Development and use of the Airport Property in the terms and upon the details 
specified in this Agreement. 

2.8. It is the intention of the parties that this Agreement shall remain in full force and 
effect until such time as it is replaced by a further agreement pursuant to section 
106 and section 106A of the 1990 Act.  

 

3. ENABLING POWERS AND OBLIGATIONS 

3.1. This Agreement is entered into pursuant to section 106 of the 1990 Act, section 111 
of the 1972 Act, section 278 of the 1990 Act, section 2 of the 2000 Act and section 1 
of the 2011 Act. 

3.2. Such of the covenants contained herein as are capable of being planning obligations 
within the meaning of section 106 of the 1990 Act are declared to be planning 
obligations and as such are enforceable by UDC and except for the obligation at 
paragraph 3 of Schedule 3 in relation to the Local Road Monitoring Scheme which 
may be enforced by the County Council.  

 

Page 24



 

9 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

4. OBLIGATIONS UNDERTAKEN BY STAL AND THE CHARGEE 

4.1. With the intent that subject as provided in this Agreement the Airport Property shall 
be subject to the obligations and restrictions contained in this Agreement for the 
purpose of restricting or regulating the Development and use of the Airport Property 
so that the provisions of this Agreement shall be enforceable against STAL and (but 
only for so long as the Chargee is in possession of the Airport Property) the Chargee 
and their respective successors in title, STAL and the Chargee hereby jointly and 
severally covenant with UDC to observe and comply with the obligations contained 
in Schedule 3. 

4.2. The liability of any person under this Agreement shall cease once it has parted with 
its interest in the Airport Property or any relevant part thereof  (in which event the 
obligations of any person under this Agreement shall cease only in relation to that 
part or those parts of the Airport Property which is or are transferred by that person) 
but not so as to amount to a release from liability for any antecedent breaches of 
this Agreement arising prior to the transfer. 

4.3. Tenants of any part of the Airport Property with the benefit of leases for their own 
occupation or for the occupation of sub-tenants (or any person or mortgagee 
claiming through or under such person, and any derivative interests), licensees, 
concessionaires and other permitted occupiers holding subordinate or temporary 
interests, and statutory undertakers, power and utilities suppliers, owners or 
providers of services to Stansted Airport having occupational estates, easements, 
rights or other interests shall not be bound by any part of this Agreement. 

 

5. AGREEMENTS AND DECLARATIONS 

5.1. The obligations contained in Schedule 3 shall take effect only upon the 
Implementation Date (save where expressly stated to the contrary in Schedule 3) 
and in the event that the Planning Application is refused or the Permission is 
quashed or is for any other reason not Implemented and expires the obligations 
contained in Schedule 3 shall absolutely cease and determine without further 
obligation upon STAL or the Chargee or their successors in title. 

5.2. The obligations contained in Schedule 3 shall absolutely cease and determine 
without further obligation upon STAL or its successors in title if the Permission is 
revoked or modified (in either case without the consent of STAL) or expires without 
being Implemented.  

5.3. Save as specifically provided in Schedule 3 nothing in this Agreement shall prohibit 
or limit the right to develop any part of the Airport Property in accordance with any 
planning permission (other than one relating to the Development). 

 

6. ADVANCE NOTICE OF IMPLEMENTATION AND OF THE PASSENGER LEVEL TRIGGER 
DATE 

6.1. STAL will give UDC and the County Council not less than 28 days prior notice in 
writing of its intention to Implement specifying the intended Implementation Date. 

6.2. Forthwith upon Implementation STAL will give UDC and the County Council notice in 
writing of Implementation. 

Page 25



 

10 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

6.3. STAL will give UDC not less than 28 days prior notice in writing of the anticipated 
occurrence of the Passenger Level Trigger Date  

6.4. Forthwith upon the Passenger Level Trigger Date STAL will give UDC notice in writing 
of such occurrence. 

 

7. PROVISION FOR INDEXATION 

7.1. References in this Agreement to sums of money shall be deemed to mean that sum 
plus a percentage thereof calculated in March in each year (hereinafter called the 
“Review Date”) equivalent to the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index 
from the date of this Agreement to each Review Date until the Developer shall have 
paid the full and final amount of such sums to the organisation entitled to receive 
the same under the terms of this Agreement to be calculated pro rata in the case of 
any balance of such sums remaining unpaid at each Review Date.  

 

8. VAT 

STAL shall not be obliged to make any contribution towards the VAT payable by the 
Authorities in respect of any works to be undertaken by the Authorities insofar as 
and to the extent that the amount of such VAT is (by way of set-off or otherwise) 
recoverable by or reimbursable to the relevant Authority. 

  

9. PROVISOS AND INTERPRETATION 

9.1. Save and except to the extent that they are amended or varied by the terms of this 
Agreement, the Existing Planning Agreements continue in full force and effect. 

9.2. Terms and provisions defined in the Existing Planning Agreements and used in this 
Agreement shall except where the context otherwise requires have the same 
meanings as are set forth in the relevant Existing Planning Agreements. 

9.3. No provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted so as to affect contrary to law 
the rights powers duties and obligations of UDC in the exercise of any of its statutory 
functions or otherwise; and if in any case any provision of this Agreement shall be in 
conflict with or cause STAL or its successors to breach its of their statutory functions 
and/or obligations as Airport Operator (as defined in section 82 of the Airport Act 
1986) of Stansted Airport, the Parties shall use their Reasonable Endeavours in good 
faith to seek to agree any necessary modifications to the terms of this Agreement. 

9.4. If any provision of this Agreement shall be held to be unlawful or unenforceable in 
whole or in part under any enactment or rule of law such provision shall to that 
extent be deemed not to form part of this Agreement and the enforceability of the 
remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected, except where the Permission is 
quashed or otherwise held to be void and of no further or continuing effect. 

9.5. No waiver (whether express or implied) by UDC of any breach or default in 
performing or observing any of the obligations, covenants or terms and conditions of 
this Agreement shall constitute a continuing waiver and no such waiver shall prevent 
UDC from enforcing any of the said obligations, covenants or terms and conditions 
or from acting upon any subsequent breach or default. 

Page 26



 

11 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

9.6. Insofar as any parts of this Agreement may be subject to the rule against 
perpetuities those parts shall remain in force for as long as any of the provisions 
hereof remain to be performed or observed or 125 years whichever shall be the 
shorter. 

9.7. Any provision contained in this Agreement requiring the consent or approval of any 
party hereto shall be deemed to incorporate a proviso that such consent or approval 
shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. 

9.8. Words denoting an obligation on a party to do any act, matter or thing include an 
obligation to procure that it be done and words placing a party under a restriction 
include an obligation not to cause permit or suffer any infringement of the 
restriction. 

9.9. References in this Agreement to statutes, bye-laws, regulations, orders and 
delegated legislation shall include any statute, bye-law, regulation, order, delegated 
legislation, plans, regulations, permissions and directions, amending, re-enacting or 
made pursuant to the same as current and in force from time to time. 

9.10. The headings in this Agreement do not affect its interpretation. 

9.11. Unless the context otherwise requires references to sub-clauses, clauses and 
schedules are to sub-clause clauses and schedules of this Agreement. 

9.12. Words importing the singular meaning where the context so admits include the 
plural meaning and vice versa. 

9.13.  Unless the context otherwise so requires: 

(a) references to UDC, Essex County Council, STAL and the Chargee include their 
respective permitted successors and assigns; 

(b) references to statutory provisions include those statutory provisions as 
 amended or re-enacted; and 

(c) references to any gender include both genders. 

9.14. The Interpretation Act 1978 shall apply to this Agreement. 

9.15. In the event of any conflict between the terms, conditions and provisions of this 
Agreement and any document attached hereto or referred to herein the terms, 
conditions and provisions of this Agreement shall prevail. 

 

10. ENFORCEABILITY AGAINST CHARGEES 

10.1. This Agreement has been entered into by STAL and the Chargee and their respective 
interests in the Airport Property shall be bound by the obligations contained in this 
Agreement PROVIDED THAT no obligations in this Agreement shall be binding on or 
enforceable against the Chargee or any other chargee or mortgagee from time to 
time who shall have the benefit of a charge or mortgage of or on any part or parts of 
the Airport Property or any receiver appointed by such chargee or mortgagee or any 
person deriving title through such chargee, mortgagee or receiver unless and until 
such chargee, mortgagee, receiver or person has entered into possession of the 
Airport Property or part thereof to which such obligation relates. 

 

Page 27



 

12 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

11. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

11.1. Subject to Clause 11.7, if any dispute arises relating to or arising out of the terms of 
this Agreement persists beyond ten (10) Working Days, either STAL or UDC (or if the 
dispute is in respect of the obligation at paragraph 3 of Schedule 3 in relation to the 
Local Road Monitoring Scheme, either STAL or the County Council) may give to the 
other written notice requiring the dispute to be determined under this Clause 11.  
The notice is to propose an appropriate Specialist and specify the nature and 
substance of the dispute and the relief sought in relation to the dispute. 

11.2. For the purposes of this Clause 11 a "Specialist" is a person qualified to act as an 
expert in relation to the dispute having not less than ten (10) years’ professional 
experience in relation to developments in the nature of the Development and 
property in the same locality as the Site. 

11.3. Any dispute over the type of Specialist appropriate to resolve the dispute may be 
referred at the request of any party to the dispute to the President for the time 
being of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators (or other appropriate President of a 
professional institute with expertise in the relevant discipline as agreed between the 
parties in dispute) who will have the power, with the right to take such further 
advice as he may require, to determine the appropriate type of Specialist and to 
arrange his nomination under Clause 11.4. 

11.4. Any dispute over the identity of the Specialist is to be referred at the request of any 
party to the dispute to the President or other most senior available officer of the 
organisation generally recognised as being responsible for the relevant type of 
Specialist who will have the power, with the right to take such further advice as he 
may require, to determine and nominate the appropriate Specialist or to arrange his 
nomination.  If no such organisation exists, or the parties cannot agree the identity 
of the organisation, then the Specialist is to be nominated by the President for the 
time being of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators (or other appropriate President 
of a professional institute with expertise in the relevant discipline as agreed between 
the parties in dispute). 

11.5. The Specialist is to act as an independent expert and: 

(a) each party to the dispute may make written representations within ten 
 (10) Working Days of his appointment and will copy the written 
 representations to the other party; 

(b) each party to the dispute is to have a further ten (10) Working Days to 
 make written comments on the other’s representations and will copy 
 the written comments to the other party; 

(c) the Specialist is to be at liberty to call for such written evidence from the 
 parties to the dispute and to seek such legal or other expert assistance 
 as he or she may reasonably require; 

(d) the Specialist is not to take oral representations from the parties to the 
 dispute without giving those parties the opportunity to be present and 
 to give evidence and to cross-examine each other; 

(e) the Specialist is to have regard to all representations and evidence 
 before him when making his decision, which is to be in writing, and is to 
 give reasons for his decision;  

Page 28



 

13 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

(f) the Specialist is to use all reasonable endeavours to publish his decision 
 within thirty (30) Working Days of his appointment; and 

(g) the decision of the Specialist shall be final and binding on the parties 
 save in the case of manifest error. 

11.6. Responsibility for the costs of referring a dispute to a Specialist under this Clause 11 
including costs connected with the appointment of the Specialist and the Specialist’s 
own costs, but not the legal and other professional costs of any party in relation to a 
dispute, will be decided by the Specialist or failing such decision each party will bear 
its own costs 

11.7. This Clause 11 does not apply to disputes in relation to matters of law or the 
construction or interpretation of this Agreement which will be subject to the 
jurisdiction of the courts of England. 

12. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

Registration and cancellation 

12.1. This Agreement constitutes a local land charge and shall be registered as such 
provided that UDC will upon the happening of any of the eventualities referred to in 
clauses 5.1. and 5.2. above or upon the determination of this Agreement howsoever 
determined procure the removal of any entry made on the local land charges 
register in respect of or related to this Agreement. 

Satisfaction of any of the provisions of this Agreement 

12.2. Where in the opinion of STAL any of the provisions of this Agreement have been 
satisfied, STAL shall be entitled to apply to UDC for a certificate to that effect and 
upon the relevant planning officer being satisfied that the relevant agreement, 
obligation or covenant as the case may be has been satisfied, the relevant officer 
shall as soon as is reasonably practicable issue a certificate to such effect subject to 
its reasonable costs and charges in connection with the preparation of the same 
being discharged by STAL. 

Exclusion of the 1999 Act 

12.3. For the purposes of the 1999 Act it is agreed that nothing in this Agreement shall 
confer on any third party any right to enforce or any benefit of any term of this 
Agreement. 

Notices 

12.4. Any notices required to be served on or any document to be supplied or submitted 
to any of the parties hereto shall be sent or delivered to the address stated in this 
Agreement as the address for the receiving party or such other address as shall from 
time to time be notified by a party to this Agreement as an address at which service 
of notices shall be accepted or (in the case of a limited company) at its registered 
office. 

12.5. Any notices to be served or documents to be supplied or submitted or applications 
for approval under the terms of this Agreement to be made which are addressed to 
UDC shall be addressed to the Assistant Director of Planning of that Council. 

Page 29



 

14 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

Entire Agreement 

12.6. This Agreement, the schedules and the documents annexed hereto or otherwise 
referred to herein contain the whole agreement between the parties relating to the 
subject matter hereof and supersede all prior agreements arrangements and 
understandings between the parties relating to that subject matter but SUBJECT 
ALWAYS to the provisions of clause 9.1 of this Agreement. 

Costs 

12.7. Upon the execution of this Agreement STAL will pay the reasonable legal costs of 
UDC up to a maximum of five thousand pounds (£5,000) and of the County Council 
up to a maximum of three thousand pounds (£3,000) in connection with the 
negotiation and preparation and completion thereof. 

Monitoring 

12.8. Within 30 days after the Unchallenged Permission Date STAL will pay twenty five 
thousand pounds (£25,000) to UDC towards UDC’s monitoring costs in relation to 
the obligations contained in this Agreement.   

12.9. Within 30 days of each anniversary of Unchallenged Permission Date for a period of 
ten years, STAL will pay five thousand (£5,000) to UDC towards UDC’s ongoing 
monitoring costs in relation to the obligations contained in this Agreement up to a 
total of fifty thousand pounds (£50,000).  

Jurisdiction 

12.10.  This Agreement is governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of 
England. 

12.11.  It is hereby agreed that the parties irrevocably submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of 
the courts of England. 

 

13. DELIVERY 

13.1. This Agreement is delivered on the date written at the start and the provisions of 
this Agreement (other than this clause which shall be of immediate effect) shall be of 
no effect until this Agreement has been dated. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as a deed the day 
and year first before written 

Page 30



 

15 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

SCHEDULE 1 

(The Permission) 

Page 31



 

16 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

Page 32



UTTLESFORD DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, Essex CB11 4ER 
Telephone (01799) 510510, Fax (01799) 510550 
Textphone Users 18001 
Email uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk  Website www.uttlesford.gov.uk 
 

 

 

Mr A Andrew 
Stansted Airport Limited 
(STAL) 
Enterprise House 
Bassingbourn Road 
Stansted Airport 
CM24 1QW 
 

  
 

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990 (AS AMENDED) TOWN AND COUNTRY 
PLANNING (DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PROCEDURE) (ENGLAND) ORDER 2015 

 
Application Number: UTT/18/0460/FUL 
Applicant: Stansted Airport Limited (STAL) 
 
Uttlesford District Council Grants Permission for: 
 
Airfield works comprising two new taxiway links to the existing runway (a Rapid Access 
Taxiway and a Rapid Exit Taxiway), six additional remote aircraft stands (adjacent Yankee 
taxiway); and three additional aircraft stands (extension of the Echo Apron) to enable 
combined airfield operations of 274,000 aircraft movements (of which not more than 16,000 
movements would be Cargo Air Transport Movements (CATM)) and a throughput of 43 
million terminal passengers, in a 12-month calendar period 
Stansted Airport      
 
The approved plans/documents are listed below: 
 

Plan Reference/Version Plan Type/Notes Received 
001-002 RE 01 

 
Other 22/02/2018  

001-003 RE 01 
 

Other 22/02/2018  

001-004 RE 01 
 

Other 22/02/2018  

001-005 RE 01 
 

Other 22/02/2018  

 NK017817 - SK309 
 

Location Plan 22/02/2018  
 

 

 
Permission is granted with the following conditions: 
 
 
 1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 3 years from 

the date of this decision. 
  
 REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004. 

 

Page 33

http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/


 
 

Page 2 of 7 

 

 2 Prior to reaching 35mppa and following consultation with the Environment Agency a 
scheme for the provision and implementation of water resource efficiency measures, 
during the operational phases of the development shall be submitted to and agreed, in 
writing, with the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include a clear timetable for 
the implementation of the measures in relation to the operation of the development. The 
scheme shall be implemented and the measures provided and made available for use in 
accordance with such timetables as may be agreed.. 

  
 The scheme shall include the identification of locations for sufficient additional water 

meters to inform and identify specific measures in the strategy. The locations shall reflect 
the passenger, commercial and operational patterns of water use across the airport: 

  
 REASON:  In order to secure a sustainable form of development, as set out in paragraph 

150 of the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy GEN2(e) of the Uttlesford Local 
Plan (adopted 2005). 

 
 3 Prior to the commencement of construction works, a Construction Environmental 

Management Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority.  The construction works shall subsequently be carried out strictly in accordance 
with the approved CEMP, unless otherwise agreed in writing. 

  
 The CEMP must incorporate the findings and recommendations of the Environmental 

Statement and must incorporate the following plans and programmes:. 
  
 (a) External Communications Plan 
  (i) External communications programme 
  (ii) External complaints procedure 
 (b) Pollution Incident Prevention and Control Plan 
  (i) Identification of potential pollution source, pathway and receptors 
 (ii) Control measures to prevent pollution release to water, ground and air (including 

details of the surface/ground water management plan) 
  (iii) Control measures for encountering contaminated land 
  (iv) Monitoring regime 
  (v) Emergency environmental incident response plan 
  (vi) Incident investigation and reporting 
  (vii) Review/change management and stakeholder consultation 
 (c) Site Waste Management Plan 
  (i) Management of excavated materials and other waste arising 
  (ii) Waste minimisation 
  (iii) Material re-use 
 (d) Nuisance Management Plan (Noise, Dust, Air Pollution, Lighting) 
  (i) Roles and responsibilities 
 (ii) Specific risk assessment - identification of sensitive receptors and predicted 

impacts 
  (iii) Standards and codes of practice 
  (iv) Specific control and mitigation measures 
  (v) Monitoring regime for noise 
 (e) Management of Construction Vehicles 
  (i) parking of vehicles of site operatives 
  (ii) routes for construction traffic 
  
 REASON:  To protect amenity of neighbouring properties and in the interests of highway 

safety, in accordance with Uttlesford Local Plan Policies GEN1, GEN2, GEN4, ENV11 
(adopted 2005).  This condition must be pre-commencement to ensure appropriate 

Page 34



 
 

Page 3 of 7 

 

mitigation measures are in place prior to the commencement of works, as set out in the 
Environmental Statement. 

 
 4 Prior to commencement of the development, a detailed surface water drainage scheme for 

the airfield works hereby approved based on the calculated required attenuation volume of 
256m3,must be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The 
scheme must be implemented in accordance with the approved details as part of the  
development, and should include but not be limited to: 

  
 o Detailed engineering drawings of the new or altered components of the drainage 

scheme. 
 o A final drainage plan which details exceedance and conveyance routes, and 

location and sizing of any drainage features. 
 o A written report summarising the scheme as built and highlighting any minor 

changes to the approved strategy. 
  
 REASON: To prevent surface water flooding both on- and off-site, in accordance with the 

National Planning Policy Framework. This condition must be 'pre-commencement' to 
ensure that the development is only carried out in accordance with the above details. 

 
 5 A Biodiversity Management Strategy (BMS) in respect of the translocation site at Monks 

Farm shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority prior to 
the commencement of construction works. 

  
 The content of the BMS shall include the following: 
 o Description and evaluation of features to be managed 
 o Ecological trends and constraints on site that might influence management 
 o Aims and objectives of management 
 o Appropriate management options for achieving aims and objectives 
 o Prescriptions for management actions 
 o Preparation of a work schedule (including an annual work plan capable of being 

rolled forward over a five year period) 
 o Details of the body or organisation responsible for implementation of the Strategy 
 o Ongoing monitoring and remedial measures 
  
 The Strategy shall also set out (where the results from monitoring show that conservation 

aims and objectives of the BMS are not being met) how contingencies and/or remedial 
action will be identified, agreed and implemented so that the development still delivers the 
fully functioning biodiversity objectives of the originally approved scheme.  The approved 
Strategy will be implemented by the developer in accordance with the approved details. 

  
 REASON:  To conserve protected and priority species and allow the Local Planning 

Authority to discharge its duties under the UK Habitats Regulations 2017, the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 as amended, and Policy GEN7 of the Uttlesford Local Plan 
(adopted 2005) and the NPPF. 

 
 6 All ecological mitigation and enhancement measures and/or works shall be carried out in 

accordance with the details contained in the Stansted - Ecology Mitigation Strategy (RPS, 
February 2018) forming part of the ES Appendix 16.2 to the satisfaction of the local 
planning authority. 

  
 REASON:  To conserve and enhance protected and priority species and allow the Local 

Planning Authority to discharge its duties under the UK Habitats Regulations, the Wildlife 
and Countryside Act 1981 as amended and s40 of the NERC Act 2006 (Priority habitats 

Page 35



 
 

Page 4 of 7 

 

and species) and s17 Crime and Disorder Act 1998, and in accordance with Policy GEN7 
of the Uttlesford Local Plan (adopted 2005) and the NPPF. 

 
 7 The area enclosed by the 57dB(a) Leq, 16h (0700-2300) contour shall not exceed 33.9 sq 

km for daytime noise.  
  
 By the end of the first calendar year that annual passenger throughput exceeds 35million, 

or by 31 December 2024, whichever is the sooner, a strategy shall be submitted to, and 
agreed with, the local planning authority, which defines the measures to be taken by STAL 
or any successor or airport operator to reduce the area of the noise contour by the end of 
2028 for daytime noise to 28.7sq km for the area exposed to 57dB(A) Leq 16h (0700-
2300).  Thereafter, from 2029, the area enclosed by the 57dB(A) Leq 16hr (0700-2300) 
contour shall not exceed 28.7sqkm for daytime noise. 

  
 REASON:  In the interests of protecting the amenity of local residents, in accordance with 

Uttlesford Local Plan Policy ENV11, and in accordance with the principle of the aviation 
industry sharing the benefits of improvements to technology with local communities, as set 
out in the Aviation Policy Framework. 

  
 For the purposes of condition 7, the noise contour shall be calculated by the CAA's 

Environmental Research and Consultancy Department (ERCD) Aircraft Noise Contour 
(ANCON) model (current version 2.3). (or as may be updated or amended) and using the 
standardised average mode. 

 
 8 The passenger throughput at Stansted Airport shall not exceed 43 million passengers in 

any 12 calendar month period.  From the date of this permission, the airport operator shall 
report the monthly and moving annual total numbers of passengers in writing to the local 
planning authority no later than 28 days after the end of the calendar month to which the 
data relate. 

  
 REASON:  To ensure the predicted effects of the development are not exceeded, in 

accordance with policies in the Uttlesford Local Plan and the NPPF. 
 
 9 There shall be at Stansted Airport a limit on the number of occasions on which aircraft 

may take-off or land at Stansted Airport of 274,000 Air Transport Movements during any 
12 calendar month period, of which no more than 16,000 shall be CATMs (Cargo Air 
Transport Movements).  From the date of the granting of planning permission, the 
developer shall report the monthly and moving annual total numbers of  Aircraft 
Movements, PATMs (Passenger Air Transport Movements) and CATMs in writing to the 
local planning authority no late than 28 days after the end of the calendar month to which 
the data relate. 

  
 REASON:  To protect the amenity of residents who live near the airport and who are 

affected by, or may be affected by aircraft noise, in accordance with Uttlesford Local Plan 
Policy ENV11 (adopted 2005) and to ensure the predicted effects of the development are 
not exceeded. 

  
 For the purposes of condition 9, the limit shall not apply to aircraft taking off or landing in 

any of the following circumstances: 
  
 a) the aircraft is required to land at the airport because of an emergency, a divert or 

any other circumstance beyond control of the operator and commander of the aircraft; and  
 b) the aircraft is engaged on the Head of State's flight, or on a flight operated 

primarily for the purposes of the transport of government Ministers or visiting Heads of 
State or dignitaries from abroad.  

Page 36



 
 

Page 5 of 7 

 

 
10 Within 6 months from the date of this permission a scheme for the installation of rapid 

electric vehicle charging points at the airport shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the local planning authority.  The scheme shall indicate the numbers, locations and 
programme for installation.  Subsequently, the charging points shall be installed in 
accordance with the approved details and retained thereafter. 

  
 REASON:  To ensure adequate mitigation measures are in place to address the predicted 

increase in air pollution as a result of the development, in accordance with paragraph 181 
of the NPPF. 

 
In determining this application, the Local Planning Authority had regard to the following 
Development Plan Policies: 
 
National Planning Policy Framework 2 
S4 - Stansted Airport Boundary 
AIR1 - Development In The Terminal Support Area 
AIR2 - Cargo Handling/Aircraft Maintenance Area 
AIR3 - Development In The Southern Ancillary Area 
AIR4 - Development In The Northern Ancillary Area 
AIR5 - The Long Term Car Park 
AIR6 - Strategic Landscape Areas 
AIR7 - Public safety Zones 
GEN1 - Access 
GEN3 - Flood Protection 
GEN4 - Good Neighbours 
GEN5 - Light Pollution 
GEN6 - Infrastructure Provision to Support Development 
GEN7 - Nature Conservation 
ENV2 - Development affecting Listed Buildings 
ENV7 - The protection of the natural environment designated sites 
ENV9 - Historic Landscape 
ENV11 - Noise generators 
ENV12 - Groundwater protection 
ENV13 - Exposure to poor air quality 
 
 
 
 
 
Gordon Glenday 
Assistant Director Planning 
 
Notes: 
 
 
 1 * This permission does not incorporate Listed Building Consent unless specifically stated.  
 * The alterations permitted by this consent are restricted to those specified and detailed in 

the application. Any alteration, demolition or re-building not so specified, even if this 
should become necessary during the course of the work, must be subject of a further 
application. It is an offence to carry out unauthorised work to the interior or exterior of a 
Listed Building in any way, which would affect its character. 

 * The proposal has been considered against Development Plan policies shown in the 
schedule of policies. Material planning considerations do not justify a decision contrary to 
the Development Plan. 

Page 37



 
 

Page 6 of 7 

 

 * The Development Plan comprises the saved policies of the Uttlesford Local Plan (2005). 
 *  It is the responsibility of the owner to ensure that any conditions attached to an approval 

are complied with. Failure to do so can result in enforcement action being taken. Where 
conditions require the submission of matters to and approval by the local planning 
authority these must be submitted on form "Application for approval of details reserved by 
condition" available from the Council's web site www.uttlesford.gov.uk and accompanied 
by the correct fee. 

 *  Your attention is drawn to the need to check with the Council's Building Surveying 
Section regarding fire-fighting access and the requirements of Section 13 of the Essex Act 
1987. 

 *  Your attention is drawn to the Equality Act 2010. The Act makes it unlawful for service 
providers (those providing goods, facilities or services to the public), landlords and other 
persons to discriminate against certain groups of people.  

 *  If you intend to pipe, bridge or fill in a watercourse, as part of this development or 
otherwise, you need to contact the County Highways Authority.  

 *  Under the terms of the Water Resources Act 1991 and Environment Agency Byelaws, 
the prior written consent of the agency is required for any proposed works or structures in, 
under, over or within 9 metres of the top of the bank of any main river.   

 *  If either the local planning authority or the Secretary of State refuses permission to 
develop land or grants it subject to conditions, the owner may claim that he can neither put 
the land to a reasonably beneficial use in its existing state nor render the land capable of a 
reasonably beneficial use by the carrying out of any development which has been or 
would be permitted. In these circumstances, the owner may serve a purchase notice on 
the Council in whose area the land is situated. This notice will require the Council to 
purchase his interest in the land in accordance with the provisions of Part VI of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 * Working in close proximity to live overhead lines: 
 The law requires that work may be carried out in close proximity to electricity overhead 

lines (usually recognised by a yellow and black "Danger of Death" label on the pole or 
pylon although this may be missing or have been vandalised) only when there is no 
alternative and only when the risks are acceptable and can be properly controlled. Further 
information can be viewed at http://www.ukpowernetworks.co.uk/internet/en/help-and-
advice/help-sheets/  then click on "Keeping Safe" then "Working safely near power lines" 

 UK Power Networks will also visit sites and provide safety advice with regard to work near 
electricity overhead lines and a statement of clearances to the overhead lines. A call to UK 
Power Networks general enquiries line on 0845 601 4516 will be required to request a 
visit. Lines open Monday to Friday 9.00am to 5.00pm. 

 Appeals to the Secretary of State 
 o If an enforcement notice is served relating to the same or substantially the same 

land and development as in your application and if you want to appeal against your local 
planning authority's decision on your application, then you must do so within: 28 days of 
the date of service of the enforcement notice, or within 6 months [12 weeks in the case of 
a householder appeal] of the date of this notice, whichever period expires earlier. 

  Appeals can be made online at: https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate. 
 If you are unable to access the online appeal form, please contact the Planning 

Inspectorate to obtain a paper copy of the appeal form on tel: 0303 444 5000. 
 o The Secretary of State can allow a longer period for giving notice of an appeal but 

will not normally be prepared to use this power unless there are special circumstances 
which excuse the delay in giving notice of appeal. 

 o The Secretary of State need not consider an appeal if it seems to the Secretary of 
State that the local planning authority could not have granted planning permission for the 
proposed development or could not have granted it without the conditions they imposed, 
having regard to the statutory requirements, to the provisions of any development order 
and to any directions given under a development order.    

 

Page 38



 
 

Page 7 of 7 

 

 2 The local planning authority has worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive 
manner by **** 

 
 3 SUDS Informatives: 
  
 - ECC has a duty to maintain a register and record of assets which have a significant 

impact on the risk of flooding.  In order to capture proposed SUDS which may form part of 
the future register, a copy of the SuDS assets in a GIS layer should be sent to 
suds@essex.gov.uk 

 - Any drainage features prposed for adoption by ECC should be consulted on with the 
relevant Highways Development Management Office 

 - Changes to existing water courses may require separate consent under the Land 
Drainage Act before works take place.  

 - It is the applicant's responsiblity to check that they are complying with common law if the 
drainage scheme proposes to discharge into an off-site ditch/pipe.  The applicant should 
seek consent where appropriate from other downstream riparian landowners. 

 
 4 Ecology Informatives: 
 1. Nesting Birds 
 The applicant is reminded that, under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, as amended 

(section 1), it is an offence to remove, damage or destroy the nest of any wild bird while 
that nest is in use or being built.  Planning consent for a development does not provide a 
defence against prosecution under this act. 

  
 Trees and scrub are likely to contain nesting birds between 1st March and 31st August 

inclusive.  Threes and scrub are present on the application site and are to be assumed to 
contain nesting birds between the above dates, unless a recent survey has been 
undertaken by a competent ecologist to assess the nesting bird activity on site during this 
period and has shown it is absolutely certain that nesting birds are not present. 

 
 5 The applicant's attention is drawn to the requirement of  Policy SP11 in the Regulation 19 

Uttlesford Local Plan, and in particular to the need to safeguard land to allow access to 
the terminal for a rapid transit system that will connect the airport to existing settlements 
and the proposed Garden Communities at Easton Park and West of Braintree (Policies 
SP6 and SP8 in the Regulation Local Plan). This provision will be the subject of further 
discussions between the applicant and the Local Planning Authority. 

 
 6 This Decision Notice must be read in conjunction with an Obligation made under Section 

106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, relating to this site/property. 
 
 
 

Page 39



Page 40



 

17 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

SCHEDULE 2 

(Airport Property: Relevant Land Registry Title Numbers [clause 2.3]) 

 Title No. Address / Description of Land Commentary 

1.  EX438482 Stansted Airport (main title – runways and 
aprons) 

 

2.  EX574504 Car and coach parks and land at Mole Hill 
Green, Stansted Airport: land south of the 
Passenger Terminal including Terminal Road 
North and Terminal Road South, and land at 
the eastern end of the airport west of Haul 
Road 

 

3.  EX574498 

(part of title 
only) 

Land adjoining the World Cargo Centre, 
Pincey Road and land and buildings on the 
north side of Bassingbourn Road 

The World Cargo Centre and 
adjacent premises are not 
subject to the provisions of 
this Deed 

4.  EX574507 Coopers End – land between Bassingbourn 
Roundabout and Coopers End Roundabout, 
south of the existing airport runway 

 

5.  EX574488 Little Bury Lodge Farm, Bury Lodge Lane and 
land, buildings and car parks on the west side 
of Round Coppice Road, Stansted Airport 

 

6.  EX438485 
(part of title 

only) 

Land on the west side of Bury Lodge Lane, 
north of the land incorporated in Title No 
EX574488 (listed at 5 above) 

The title includes land 
covered by the TMAG Lease, 
which is not subject to the 
provisions of this Deed 

7.  EX574491 
(part of title 

only) 

Approach roads and Priory Wood 
Roundabout, east of the M11,  

The title includes land 
covered by the TMAG Lease 
and land leased to Harlow 
College, which is not subject 
to the provisions of this 
Deed 

8.  EX438483 Parcel of land north of the A120 Thremhall 
Avenue, adjacent to the land in Title No 
EX574491 (listed at 7 above) 

 

9.  EX574508 Land at Stansted Airport near Thremhall 
Avenue, on the north side of the A120 road, 
Takeley, and north of the B1256 Takeley 
Street 

 

10.  EX640482 Site 1B, south-east of Thremhall Avenue,  

Page 41



 

18 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

Stansted Airport (Mid-stay car park, south-
west of Pincey Brook) 

11.  EX574500 Land forming part of Stansted Airport south 
of Coopers End Roundabout, including parts 
of Pincey Brook waterway 

 

12.  EX574502 
(part of title 

only) 

The Passenger Terminal, Enterprise House 
and adjoining land and buildings at 
Bassingbourn Road, Stansted Airport 

Enterprise House, the 
adjacent Hotel and the 
Control Tower are not 
subject to the provisions of 
this Deed.  Only the freehold 
of the Passenger Terminal is 
bound. 

13.  EX574523 
(part of title 

only) 

The Fuel Farm located to the east of Bury 
Lodge Lane, not demised under the TMAG 
Lease 

The remainder of the land 
registered under this Title is 
covered by the TMAG Lease 
and not subject to the 
provisions of this Deed 

14.  EX574482 
(part of title 

only) 

Land parcel on the north side of the airfield 
at Stansted Airport 

The title includes land 
covered by the TMAG Lease, 
which is not subject to the 
provisions of this Deed 

15.  EX574485 
(part of title 

only) 

Land between Bury Lodge Lane and Sixth 
Avenue, Stansted Airport (eastern parcels 
only) 

The title includes land 
covered by the TMAG Lease, 
which is not subject to the 
provisions of this Deed 

16.  EX744455 Land adjoining Long Border Road, Stansted 
Airport 

 

17.  EX574495 
(part of title 

only) 

Land on the north-west side of Long Border 
Road – part only 

The title includes land 
subject to long leaseholds 
(the Diamond Hangar and 
Ryanair site) which is not 
subject to the provisions of 
this Deed 

18.  EX948708 Land south of Long Border Road, but 
excluding Taylors End Road 

 

19.  EX574604 Small land parcel adjacent to the M11 (east 
side) adjoining the land registered under Title 
No EX574491 (listed at 7 above) 

 

 

Page 42



 

19 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

SCHEDULE 3 

(Obligations entered into by STAL with UDC) 

Part 1: Noise Mitigation 

Definitions 

▪ “Enhanced Sound Insulation Grant Scheme” means a detailed scheme designed to 
provide for noise insulation to Residential Properties (and specifically identified 
educational and ecclesiastical buildings, healthcare and community facilities referred 
to in para 2.2(c) below) proximate to Stansted Airport which will apply to an 
extended geographic area to the Existing Noise Mitigation Regime, offering higher 
levels of grant on a tiered basis and at a higher rate than at present, as further 
detailed in this Part 1; 

▪ “Enhanced SIGS Commencement Date” means the 1 November following the 
Unchallenged Permission Date or such other date (earlier or later) as shall be agreed 
between UDC and STAL; 

▪ “Existing Noise Mitigation Regime” means the noise insulation grant schemes set up 
and operated in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Existing Planning 
Agreements that relate to the mitigation of the impacts of air noise and ground 
noise caused by Stansted Airport operations; 

▪ “Residential Property” means an individual dwelling registered for Council Tax; 

▪ “Revised SIGS Contour Plan” means the plan so-described comprising Annexure 3 to 
this Agreement, which shall be incorporated in and form part of the Enhanced Sound 
Insulation Grant Scheme. 

************** 

1. Discontinuance of the Existing Noise Mitigation Regime 

With effect from the Enhanced SIGS Commencement Date, and the coming into 
operation of the Enhanced Sound Insulation Grant Scheme, the Existing Noise 
Mitigation Regime shall cease to apply to operations at Stansted Airport and to the 
basis for grants being eligible for claim by affected properties in the vicinity of 
Stansted Airport. 

2. Enhanced Sound Insulation Grant Scheme 

2.1 General Statement 

By way of replacement for the Existing Noise Mitigation Regime applicable to 
Stansted Airport, STAL will with effect from the Enhanced SIGS Commencement Date 
be required to comply with the provisions of this paragraph 2 of this Part 1, to the 
intent that STAL will be subject to the obligation (at STAL’s discretion) to make 
payments of or to be liable for reimbursement of the costs incurred in providing 
sound insulation grant for an extended geographic area (increasing the number of 
eligible properties) to affected eligible properties; enhanced eligibility involving 
increased levels of rate of financial contribution by STAL to affected properties; and 
an area of eligibility based on additional noise metrics all as detailed in this 
paragraph 2. 

 

 

Page 43



 

20 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

2.2 Detailed contents of the enhanced scheme 

The following elements shall be included in the Enhanced Sound Insulation Grant 
Scheme with effect from the Enhanced SIGS Commencement Date: 

(a) Revised geographic area covered 

(i) Eligible claimants entitled to make an application under the 
Enhanced Sound Insulation Grant Scheme will be freehold, and 
where applicable leasehold, owners of properties lying within the 
Revised SIGS Contour Plan (or any replacement Revised SIGS 
Contour Plan approved by UDC), that is to say the area comprising 
the three areas respectively tinted red, tinted yellow and tinted 
green within the noise contours. 

(ii) In the event of an airspace change for Stansted Airport having been 
formally approved by the appropriate regulatory body, STAL shall 
review the Revised SIGS Contour Plan and within six months of the 
date on which the approval of the airspace change is free from legal 
challenge (any challenge to the validity or lawfulness of the approval 
of the airspace change in the courts brought by means of 
proceedings for judicial review, declaratory proceedings or 
otherwise calling into question the validity of the approval of the 
airspace change; and includes any proceedings by way of appeal to 
the Court of Appeal, the Supreme Court or to any other appellate 
body) shall submit to UDC either a replacement Revised SIGS 
Contour Plan or a report explaining why the Revised SIGS Contour 
Plan does not need to be replaced for UDC’s approval (in 
consultation with the Environmental Health Officer of East 
Hertfordshire District Council).   

(iii) In the event that UDC has not approved either a replacement 
Revised SIGS Contour Plan or a report submitted pursuant to 
paragraph (a)(ii) above within six months of receipt the matter shall 
be referred to a Specialist pursuant to clause 11 of this Agreement 
(unless otherwise agreed by the parties). 

(b) Eligibility (noise impact, noise contour and grant – maximum amount) 

This is as set out in Table 1 below, and applies to all Residential Properties 
lying within any of the three areas referred to in paragraph (a) above falling 
within the defined noise contours shown on the Revised SIGS Contour Plan. 

 

Table 1 

Noise Impact Noise Contour* Grant Maximum 

Upper (tinted in red) 69 and 66dB L Aeq,16h 

 

£10,000 Indexed per 
property 

Middle (tinted in 
yellow) 

63 and 60 dB L Aeq,16h 

 

£8,000 Indexed per 
property 

Page 44



 

21 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

Lower (tinted in 
green) 

57 dB Aeq,16h/N65 200 / 
90 dBA SEL 

600m distance/55 dB L 

Aeq,16h ground noise 

 

£5,000 Indexed per 
property 

*The reference year for the contours set out on the Revised SIGS Contour Plan is 2023. 

(c) Non-residential properties affected 

In addition to the residential properties falling within the areas designated 
by the Revised SIGS Contour Plan, the following non-residential properties 
shall be eligible for a bespoke mitigation package of works or other 
measures, including any newly available technology, as may reasonably be 
agreed by STAL following discussion with individual building owners and 
occupiers under the Enhanced Sound Insulation Grant Scheme so long as the 
properties remain in education, healthcare, worship or community use (as 
applicable): 

 
Schools 
Howe Green School 
Spellbrook Primary School 
Little Hallingbury C of E Primary School 
The Leventhorpe School 
Mandeville Primary School 
 
Healthcare 
Falcon House, Little Hallingbury 
Humpfrey Lodge, Thaxted 
 
Worship 
St Giles Church Great Hallingbury  
St Mary the Virgin Church Broxted  
Ebenezer Chapel Molehill Green  
St Mary the Virgin Church Chickney  
Thaxted Baptist Church  
St Mary the Virgin Church Little Hallingbury  
Thaxted Church (St. John the Baptist) Thaxted  
Thaxted URC Church 
 
Community 
Thaxted Anglican Church Hall 
Little Hallingbury Village Hall 
Thaxted Baptist Church Hall 

The respective levels of claim of the owners of each of these properties shall 
be a sum as may reasonably be agreed between the property owner and 
STAL having regard to the specific condition and characteristics of the 
individual property, the practicality of carrying out noise insulation works to 

Page 45



 

22 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

the property and the change in noise impact resulting from the 
Development.   

In the event that agreement is not reached between the property owner and 
STAL as to the sum to be paid in respect of the cost of the noise mitigation 
works to a non-residential property, either the property owner or STAL may 
refer the matter to UDC who shall appoint an expert (“the Expert”) with 
relevant qualifications to determine the matter.  The Expert shall act as an 
expert and save in case of manifest error the Expert’s decision shall be final 
and binding on the property owner and STAL.  UDC’s and the Expert’s costs 
shall be payable by the property owner and STAL in such proportion as the 
Expert shall determine and failing such determination shall be borne by the 
property owner and STAL in equal shares. 

3. General Statement with respect to the operation of the Enhanced Sound Insulation 
Grant Scheme  

3.1 Having regard to the planning purpose that the noise mitigation regime for Stansted 
Airport for those eligible to apply under the terms of the Enhanced Sound Insulation 
Grant Scheme shall be made available for claimants to secure measures to reduce 
the impact of aviation-related noise being in place early, the trigger for 
commencement of the Enhanced Sound Insulation Grant Scheme will occur at a 
point prior to the Passenger Level Trigger Date (35 mppa being exceeded).  STAL 
operates, and will until agreed otherwise with UDC continue to operate, an annual 
applications-based grant scheme with a cut-off date of 31 October in each calendar 
year. 

3.2 The coming into operation of the Enhanced Sound Insulation Grant Scheme shall 
take effect from the Enhanced SIGS Commencement Date.  

3.3 Each Residential Property and non-residential property is entitled to make no more 
than one claim under the Enhanced Sound Insulation Grant Scheme unless 
otherwise agreed by STAL. 

3.4 STAL shall promote the Enhanced Sound Insulation Grant Scheme in accordance with 
a scheme approved by UDC. 

4. Lower noise penalty limits 

STAL shall use its Reasonable Endeavours to seek to secure the agreement of the 
Department for Transport of increased limits in noise penalties payable for breach of 
noise thresholds and off-track flying at Stansted Airport. 

5. Noise penalty payments 

STAL shall pay to the Community Trust Fund the amount of any penalties received by 
STAL for breach of noise thresholds and off-track flying at Stansted Airport, such 
payments to be made annually prior to 31 May each year accompanied by a 
statement setting out details of all penalties received during the preceding 12 
months. 

 

Page 46



 

23 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

Part 2: Transport 

Definitions 

▪  “Airport Bus and Coach Station Upgrade” means a scheme of works to enhance 
capacity and improve existing bus and coach facilities for passengers arriving at and 
departing from Stansted Airport, such scheme to give consideration to increased 
passenger circulation and waiting areas, bus waiting area(s), DDA compliant 
infrastructure, covered waiting areas, electronic signing and to be prepared by STAL 
and approved by UDC in consultation with the County Council in accordance with 
the provisions of this Part 2; 

▪ “Commuted Payment” means the sum payable under paragraph 1.3 of this Part 2 in 
the event that it is determined that STAL will make a financial contribution in lieu of 
carrying out or paying for the Highway Mitigation Scheme, such sum to be ONE 
MILLION, ONE HUNDRED AND SIXTY THOUSAND POUNDS (£1,160,000) Indexed; 

▪ “Fly Parking” means the persistent parking on local public highways by air 
passengers, airport staff, private hire operators or private parking companies of 
vehicles that are being used for access to the airport which results in either a risk to 
highway safety or causes detriment to the character or amenity of the area; 

▪ “Highway Mitigation Scheme” means a detailed mitigation scheme as shown in 
principle in the Junction 8 (M11) Scheme Drawing and the Priory Wood Roundabout 
Drawing (or subsequent versions approved in writing by UDC in consultation with 
Highways England and the County Council) to adapt the Motorway Junction and 
Priory Wood Roundabout and associated areas of existing adopted public highway 
and/or land under the control of STAL agreed between Highways England and STAL 
in consultation with the County Council being a series of alterations and 
improvements to such infrastructure arising from increased traffic and forecast 
traffic at the Motorway Junction and using Priory Wood Roundabout associated with 
growth in passenger numbers at Stansted Airport between  35 and 43 mppa; 

▪ “Highway Mitigation Works” means the works within the existing adopted public 
highway required to implement the Highway Mitigation Scheme in accordance with 
the requirements of Highways England; 

▪ “Junction 8 (M11) Scheme Drawing” means Drawing No Steer Drawing 23003401-
SDG-HGN-100-DR-D-00104 Rev P1 comprising Annexure 4 to this Agreement; 

▪ “Local Bus Network Development Fund” means a sum of ONE MILLION POUNDS 
(£1,000,000) Indexed to be made available and operated by SATF in accordance with 
the provisions of paragraph 4 of this Part 2; 

▪ “Local Road Monitoring Scheme” means a scheme of traffic and Fly Parking 
monitoring on the local road and STAL network to be agreed with STAL and the 
County Council (where monitoring is not otherwise being carried out) which shall 
include the matters set out in Annexure 6 for the purpose of providing information 
to the SATF to inform its decisions on the administration of the Local Roads Network 
Fund and Sustainable Transport Levy and inform decisions made by the relevant 
highway authority on works that are required to their respective road networks to 
mitigate impacts on the public highway; 

▪ “Local Roads Network Fund” means a sum of up to ONE MILLION POUNDS 
(£1,000,000) Indexed, of which: EIGHT HUNDRED THOUSAND POUNDS (£800,000) 
Indexed to be made available to and operated by SATF (a) to cover the reasonable 

Page 47



 

24 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

costs incurred for the feasibility and design and implementation of infrastructure 
improvements for local bus services used by passengers and employees at Stansted 
Airport in accordance with the provisions of paragraph 2 of this Part 2; and (b) and 
to cover the reasonable costs incurred for the feasibility and design and 
implementation of highway improvements within a five mile radius of the boundary 
of Stansted Airport, which include (but are not limited to) safety improvements, 
management/mitigation of combined impacts of future traffic and measures to 
improve accessibility; and TWO HUNDRED THOUSAND POUNDS (£200,000) Indexed 
to be made available and operated by SATF to cover the reasonable costs incurred 
for the feasibility and design and implementation of measures to assist in the 
enforcement of local parking controls and restrictions in order to control 
unauthorised Fly Parking associated with the operation of Stansted Airport; and for 
the avoidance of doubt the Local Roads Network Fund shall be expended within 
Essex only;  

▪ “Kiss and Fly” means the picking up and/or dropping off on the forecourt areas or 
any other area designated for set-down within the airport of passengers, by private 
car or taxi, for the purposes of air travel; 

▪ “Motorway Junction” means the highway infrastructure within the boundaries of 
the existing adopted public highway at and in the immediate vicinity of Junction 8 of 
the M11 motorway; 

▪ “Priory Wood Roundabout Drawing” means Drawing No Steer Drawing 2300340-
SDG-HGN-100-DR-D-00101 Rev P1 comprising Annexure 5 to this Agreement 
showing a signalisation scheme for the roundabout; 

▪ “Road Investment Strategy” means the Road Investment Strategy (RIS1) published 
by the Department for Transport, Highways England and (as highways monitor) the 
Office of Rail and Road (ORR) identifying the programme covering the period 2015 – 
2020 and includes the successor project RIS2 covering the period following 2020 and 
any other equivalent projects designed to deliver long-term improvements in the 
operation of and investment in the Strategic Road Network; 

▪ “Strategic Highways Review” means a review to be carried out jointly between STAL 
and Highways England (in consultation with the County Council) upon reaching the 
Passenger Level Trigger Date (35 mppa), or earlier if they jointly agree, to examine 
the most appropriate mitigation works for the Motorway Junction and for the Priory 
Wood Roundabout.  Such Strategic Highways Review shall consider inter alia (a) 
outturn traffic conditions current at the review, (b) any other relevant traffic 
changes forecast; and (c) the then-current Roads Investment Strategy Programme 
for the wider strategic road network for the county of Essex and for Trunk Roads in 
the vicinity as then relates to the Motorway Junction; 

▪ “Surface Access Strategy” means the strategy (referred in the 2003 Agreement as 
SASAS), including subordinate modal strategies, prepared by and at the cost of STAL 
and overseen by SATF to increase the use of public transport by air passengers and 
staff at Stansted Airport as amended from time to time.; 

▪ “Sustainable Transport Levy” means a levy operated in accordance with the existing 
Public Transport Levy operated pursuant to Part 4 of the Fourth Schedule to the 
2003 Agreement (to be a minimum of £0.25 pence per transaction from passenger 
parking and staff charging at the minimum rate of £10 per annual parking permit) 
increased by the addition of a minimum of £0.10 pence contribution derived from 

Page 48



 

25 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

every transaction resulting from visitor use of the Express Set-Down forecourt area 
on the south side of the Terminal Building (all amounts to be Indexed), subject to 
review in accordance with the provisions of paragraph 5 of this Part 2; 

▪ “SATF” means the existing Stansted Area Transport Forum, the terms of reference 
for which are set out in Annexure 8; 

▪ “Transport Forum Revised Terms of Reference” means the document so-entitled 
comprising Annexure 8 to this Agreement; 

▪ “Travel Plan” means the Travel Plan adopted by STAL with respect to travel to and 
from Stansted Airport by staff of STAL and persons employed at Stansted Airport. 

************** 

1. Strategic Highways Review 

1.1 Commencing within 14 days following the Passenger Level Trigger Date (35 mppa), 
or on such other date agreed with Highways England, STAL shall in consultation with 
Highways England undertake the Strategic Highways Review in order to consider 
outturn traffic conditions and predicted future traffic conditions, taking account of 
the Road Investment Strategy programme for the Strategic Road Network in respect 
of the Motorway Junction. 

1.2  Following completion of the Strategic Highways Review the Highway Mitigation 
Scheme shall be carried out and completed at the cost of STAL (such works to be 
undertaken by Highways England or their agent as then agreed with STAL) so that 
the Highway Mitigation Works are completed and open to traffic no later than the 
end of the first calendar month at the point when passenger numbers at Stansted 
Airport are forecast to reach 39 mppa in any twelve month period. 

1.3  If following completion of the Strategic Highways Review Highways England agrees, 
based on Highways England’s objective of providing an alternative major highways 
scheme for the Motorway Junction in a future Roads Investment Strategy scheme, 
STAL shall instead of funding the Highway Mitigation Works pay the Commuted 
Payment to Highways England or named nominee.  The Commuted Payment will be 
due and payable at the end of the first calendar month at the point when passenger 
numbers at Stansted Airport have reached a level of 39 mppa in any twelve month 
period, unless Highways England and STAL agree otherwise in writing. 

2. Local Roads Network Fund 

2.1 Following the Implementation Date STAL hereby agrees to ring-fence and make 
available the amount of the Local Roads Network Fund, such fund to be 
administered by SATF constituted under the 2003 Agreement and the 2008 
Undertaking (subject to the modified terms of its operation as provided in the 
Transport Forum Revised Terms of Reference referred to in paragraph 8 of this Part 
2).  It shall be a condition precedent to the payment by STAL to the County Council 
of any sums requested by the SATF that the works and / or payment, as the case 
may be, are for Qualifying Purposes. 

2.1.1 Following the approval and inclusion of a scheme by the SATF in the relevant work 
programme, funding shall be made available to the County Council in three stages 
(feasibility, detailed design and implementation (as follows): 

(a) Before beginning any stage of a scheme, the County Council shall submit an 
estimate of costs and a timetable relating to that stage, to the SATF; 

Page 49



 

26 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

(b) If the SATF is content that the submitted costs and timetable are reasonable, 
STAL shall make the funds available to the County Council in advance of the 
funds being required (either in one payment or in staged payments, to 
correspond with the terms for payment with the contractors) for that stage 
of the scheme; and 

(c) Where the County Council has not spent (and/or not incurred a liability to 
pay or reimburse) any funds received on the earliest of the following events 
(unless otherwise agreed by the SATF): 

(i) within six months following the date that the stage was completed 
under the timetable provided by the SATF (or any agreed 
amendments to that timetable) pursuant to paragraph (b) above; 

(ii) within six months following the date that the stage was suspended 
(so long as it has not resumed); or 

(iii) within three months following the date that the stage was aborted, 

the County shall return the funds received by it to STAL to the Local Road Network 
Fund (unless otherwise agreed by STAL). 

2.2 The obligation to fund payments for infrastructure improvements for local bus 
services and for highway improvements under the Local Roads Network Fund shall 
cease from the fifth anniversary of the 43 mppa Date.  STAL shall have no further 
liability on and following that date with respect to payments for infrastructure 
improvements for local bus services and for highway improvements under the Local 
Roads Network Fund but shall continue to fund payments for measures to assist in 
the enforcement of local parking controls and restrictions up to a maximum total 
sum of TWO HUNDRED THOUSAND POUNDS £200,000 Indexed. 

3. Local Road Monitoring 

3.1.1 Within two (2) months of the Implementation Date, STAL shall have agreed an 
implementation plan for the Local Road  Monitoring Scheme on roads within 
Stansted Airport and, subject to the agreement of the County Council, on local roads 
controlled by the County Council as highway authority. 

3.1.2 The Local Road Monitoring Scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the 
implementation plan for the Local Road Monitoring Scheme and such scheme shall 
cease in respect of monitoring of traffic from the fifth anniversary of the 43 mppa 
Date but shall continue in respect of monitoring of air passenger fly-parking until the 
total sum available under the Local Road Network Fund for measures to improve 
accessibility and to assist in the enforcement of local parking controls has been 
expended. 

4. Local Bus Network Development Fund 

4.1  Following the Passenger Level Trigger Date, STAL hereby agrees to ring-fence the 
 Local Bus Network Development Fund such fund to be administered by the SATF 
 constituted under the 2003 Agreement and the 2008 Undertaking subject to the 
 modified terms of its operation.  Grants to fund ultra-low emissions vehicles (ULEV) 
 or electric vehicles will be prioritised where justified by a business case and it shall 
 be a condition precedent to the payment by STAL of any sums requested by the 
 SATF that the works and / or payment as the case may be are for Qualifying 
 Purposes.   

Page 50



 

27 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

4.2  The obligation to fund payments for the Local Bus Network Development Fund shall 
 cease from the fifth anniversary of the 43 mppa Date.  STAL shall have no further 
 liability on and following that date with respect to the Local Bus Network 
 Development Fund. 

5. Sustainable Transport Levy 

Commencing no later than the 1st April following the Unchallenged Permission Date, 
the Sustainable Transport Levy will be collected by STAL and the funds made 
available to the SATF to finance initiatives in accordance with the Surface Access 
Strategy to promote the use by passengers and staff of STAL and others employed at 
Stansted Airport of: 

(a)    modes of transport to and from Stansted Airport other than private motor 
vehicles, taxis and private hire vehicles, and to encourage and promote 
car-sharing by STAL staff and others employed at Stansted Airport in order 
to improve the modal split in operation and to limit the impact of traffic on 
the surrounding highway network; and 

(b)  in addition to the purposes set out in paragraph 5 of Part 4 of Fourth 
Schedule to the 2003 Agreement, sustainable modes of transport, 
including but not limited to the introduction of new technologies for all 
vehicles and walking and cycling schemes (including off-site provisions),    

SUBJECT ALWAYS to the requirement that the Sustainable Transport Levy is applied 
solely to initiatives for Qualifying Purposes. 

6. Rail-Users: discount scheme 

Within 30 days after the Unchallenged Permission Date STAL shall operate a parking 
discount scheme for season ticket holding rail users to and from Stansted Airport 
Station in general accordance with the Rail-Users discount scheme at Annexure 7 to 
this Agreement as may be amended from time to time by agreement between STAL 
and UDC.  

7. Transport Targets 

STAL shall use Reasonable Endeavours to: 

(a) maintain a 50% public transport mode-share for non-transfer air 
 passengers;  

(b) reach and thereafter maintain single occupancy private car use by 
 Stansted Airport staff at 55% by the 39 mppa Date; and 

(c) to reach a passenger mode share by Kiss and Fly of: 

(i) 20% by the 39 mppa Date; and 

(ii) 12% by the 43 mppa Date. 

and in the event that any of the targets in this paragraph 7 are not met, an interim 
review of the Surface Access Strategy measures (in addition to the provisions of 
paragraph 9 below) will be triggered. 

Page 51



 

28 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

8. Transport Forum Revised Terms of Reference: revised working arrangements 

Subject to the like agreement of the Authorities, STAL agrees to participate in the 
SATF following the Unchallenged Permission Date in accordance with the Transport 
Forum Revised Terms of Reference comprising Annexure 8 to this Agreement. 

9. Surface Access Strategy and Travel Plan – timetable revisions 

9.1 Following the Unchallenged Permission Date and prior to 31 December 2020, STAL 
shall provide updated drafts of the Airport Surface Access Strategy and the Travel 
Plan to UDC and the County Council; and STAL shall be under an obligation to 
undertake the review and updating of each of the Airport Surface Access Strategy 
and the Travel Plan at five yearly intervals in the cycle 2020 / 2025 / 2030 and 
thereafter (unless otherwise agreed between STAL and UDC); and to provide interim 
updates at the mid-point within each five yearly time-period. 

10. Airport Bus and Coach Station Improvements 

10.1 Following the Implementation Date and prior to the Passenger Level Trigger Date 
 STAL shall commission a technical study of enhancement to capacity and passenger 
 facility improvements for the forecast Stansted Airport passenger and employee 
 travel growth using the bus and coach station at Stansted Airport, in order to define 
 the Airport Bus and Coach Station Upgrade. 

10.2 Following prior consultation with SATF concerning the Airport Bus and Coach Station 
 Upgrade, STAL shall carry out and bring into operation the works required in order 
 to comply with such scheme before passenger numbers reach 36 mppa. 

 

Part 3: Skills, Education and Employment 

Definitions 

▪ “Combined Local Benefits” means each of the following four elements, namely: 

(a) the Education Centre; 

(b) the Employment Academy; 

(c) the Further Education College; and 

(d) Local Supply Chain Support, 

except where UDC and STAL agree to make variations. 

▪ “Education Centre” means the on-site education centre at Stansted Airport 
(currently known as “Aerozone”) available as an education facility for local children 
aimed at raising standards and attainment, by offering facilities for visiting local 
children through co-ordination with schools local to Stansted Airport; 

▪ “Employment Academy” means the on-site skills and employment centre based at 
Stansted Airport whose aim is to enable more job seekers to strive to apply for and 
obtain employment at Stansted Airport; 

▪ “Further Education College” means the on-site FE college currently run by Harlow 
College (whose aim is to provide development of skills to ensure a supply of locally-
based suitably skilled labour for college-leavers seeking employment after further 
education in the locality of Stansted Airport); and 

Page 52



 

29 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

▪ “Local Supply Chain Support” means initiatives to bring local businesses into contact 
with the owners and operators of and businesses housed within Stansted Airport, 
aimed at increasing the level of business and contracts awarded to SMEs and other 
local businesses proximate to Stansted Airport. 

************** 

1. Generally 

 Stansted Airport Employment Forum (SAEF) 

1.1 STAL agrees to continue to maintain, support and participate in the SAEF as provided 
 in Part 6 of Schedule 2 to the 2008 Undertaking. 

1.2 To review the Stansted Training Employment Strategy no later than 31st December 
2020 and every  four years thereafter and annually to present a report on progress to 
the SAEF for ratification. 

1.3 Not less than once in every five years from the date of this Agreement to undertake 
 an employment survey of on-airport employment and to present the results of such 
 employment survey to UDC, SAEF and SBF. 

2. STAL’s obligations with respect to maintaining Combined Local Benefits 

STAL will (subject to all requisite support from counterparties) continue to maintain 
support, promote and provide the Combined Local Benefits (until agreed otherwise 
with UDC), as follows: 

(a) Education Centre 

To continue to provide the Education Centre and to consult with and have 
regard to views expressed by local schools as the facilities provided for the 
benefit of local children. 

(b) Employment Academy 

To continue to make available the Employment Academy, and to make 
available STAL staff to meet with job-seekers endeavouring to find 
employment at Stansted Airport; to facilitate meetings between on-site 
employers and job-seekers; and to arrange at least two job fairs each 
calendar year, at least one of which to be held within the District of 
Uttlesford. 

(c) Further Education College 

To co-operate with Harlow College to enable the Further Education College 
to continue on-site, to deliver up to Level 2 STEM subjects targeted for 
employment geared to the aviation sector in accordance with the terms of 
any occupational lease from time to time granted by STAL to Harlow College. 

(d) Local Supply Chain Support 

STAL will continue to offer Local Supply Chain Support including the annual 
Meet the Buyers event for local businesses, to facilitate opportunities for 
contact and negotiation between local businesses and operators within 
Stansted Airport including STAL, the costs of which will be borne by STAL. 

 

Page 53



 

30 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

Part 4: Community Trust Fund 

Definitions 

▪ “Area of Benefit” means the geographic area generally within a ten mile radius of 
the Stansted Airport runway shown tinted in blue on the Area of Benefit Plan; 

▪ “Area of Benefit Plan” means the plan so-entitled comprising Annexure 9 to this 
Agreement, which identifies the boundaries of the Parish Councils within the 
Districts of Uttlesford, East Hertfordshire, Harlow, Epping Forest, Chelmsford and 
Braintree that will be eligible to apply for financial contributions from the 
Community Trust Fund as provided for in this Part 4; 

▪ “Beneficial Purposes” means projects demonstrating to the satisfaction of the 
Trustees that they will help to mitigate adverse health and/ or quality of life impacts 
arising from the Development as a result of increased noise levels and a reduction in 
the amenity of local green spaces; 

▪  “Community Trust Fund” means a new fund established by way of replacement of 
the Community Fund (as defined in and provided for in Part 8 of Schedule 2 to the 
2008 Undertaking) to be established in order to support projects that satisfy the 
Beneficial Purposes of the Fund within the Area of Benefit; 

▪ “Community Trust Terms of Reference” means the proposed terms of reference 
with respect to the establishment of a board of Trustees, governance, funding, 
eligibility, trust objectives, arrangements for application for funding, meetings, and 
reporting and monitoring set out in the document entitled “Community Benefit 
Terms of Reference” comprising Annexure 10 to this Agreement; 

▪ “Trustees” means the Trustees serving from time to time as appointed trustees of 
the Community Trust Fund (being a body of nine persons as set out in the 
Community Trust Terms of Reference).  

************** 

1. Establishing a Community Trust Fund 

As soon as is reasonably practicable following the Implementation Date, STAL will 
establish the Community Trust Fund having the objects and upon the terms 
substantially as set out in the Community Trust Terms of Reference.  STAL agrees 
with the co-operation of all other participating Trustees to use Reasonable 
Endeavours to procure the registration of the Trust with the Charity Commissioners 
as a registered charity.   

2. STAL’s contribution  

STAL agrees to pay to the Trust by way of covenant from taxed earnings the sum of 
£150,000 Indexed annually in each Financial Year commencing in the Financial Year 
following the Unchallenged Permission Date for ten years (to a total sum of 
£1,500,000 plus the Indexation applied to the annual payments plus any payments 
due under paragraph 5 of Part 1 of this Schedule 3).  If the 43 mppa Date has not 
been reached by the date of the tenth annual payment,  the level of further funding 
necessary to mitigate the impact of the operation of Stansted Airport on the Area of 
Benefit (if any) up to the 43 mppa Date will be reviewed by agreement between 
STAL and UDC in consultation with the Trustees but in any event STAL shall not be 
required to contribute more than £150,000 Indexed in any Financial Year. 

Page 54



 

31 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

3. Operation of the Community Trust Fund 

The Community Trust Fund shall be operated in or substantially in accordance with 
the Community Trust Terms of Reference as modified from time to time by the 
Trustees in consultation with STAL and UDC SUBJECT ALWAYS to the requirement 
that it be operated solely for Beneficial Purposes and for the Area of Benefit only. 

4. Closure of the Community Fund (2008 Undertaking) 

Except to the extent that the Community Fund has been exhausted prior to the 
Implementation Date, STAL shall use Reasonable Endeavours to secure (by operation 
of the Cy-Près doctrine) agreement for the transfer into the Community Trust Fund 
of any unexpended amounts previously paid into the Community Trust Fund 
established under the terms of the 2008 Undertaking and not dispersed for the 
purposes envisaged by that fund. 

5. Miscellaneous provisions 

Subject to the foregoing provisions of this Part 4, the provisions of Part 13 of 
Schedule 2 of the Fourth Schedule to the 2003 Agreement and of Part 8 of Schedule 
2 to the 2008 Undertaking shall with effect from the establishment of the 
Community Trust Fund be of no further or continuing effect. 

 

Part 5: Ecology provisions 

Definitions  

▪ “Eastend Wood” means the area of woodland designated as a Site of Special 
Scientific Interest lying to the north of Stansted Airport to the north of Molehill 
Green identified on the Woodland Plan;  

▪ “Hatfield Forest” means the 400 approx hectare site designated as a Site of Special 
Scientific Interest and a National Nature Reserve at Takeley, Bishops Stortford 
identified on the Woodland Plan; and 

▪ “Woodland Plan” means the plans comprising Annexure 11 to this Agreement. 

************** 

1. Obligations relating to Air Quality  

1.1 Commencing on the Implementation Date, STAL shall monitor air quality at Hatfield 
Forest and Eastend Wood in accordance with the following provisions:  

(a) continuous monitoring of oxides of nitrogen and fine particulate matter 
(PM10) at three fixed sites (including subject to the agreement of The 
National Trust a site in Hatfield Forest) at locations first agreed with UDC; 

(b) diffusion tube monitoring of nitrogen dioxide levels as follows: 

I. At sites in Hatfield Forest agreed with the National Trust and Natural 
England (subject to the requisite agreement of relevant 
landowners); and 

II. At a site or sites in Eastend Wood agreed following detailed on-site 
assessment with Natural England and other relevant consultees. 

Page 55



 

32 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

(c) provide to UDC annually a written summary of the results of the monitoring 
described in paragraphs 1.1(a) and 1.1(b) of this Part 5; 

(d) to consult with UDC with respect to appropriate measures to compensate 
for any material adverse effects on vegetation within Hatfield Forest and/or 
Eastend Wood that are identified as arising from levels of oxides of nitrogen 
exceeding 30 microgrammes per cubic metre annual mean within Hatfield 
Forest or Eastend Wood, as applicable, and such compensation shall be 
proportionate to the extent that the Development contributes to the 
measured levels; and 

(e) following agreement with UDC with respect to such measures to use 
Reasonable Endeavours to undertake any such measures identified as a 
result of the consultation referred to in paragraph 1.1(d) of this Part 5. 

1.2 STAL shall make the results of its obligations contained in paragraphs 1.1.(a) - 1.1(c) 
of this Part 5 available to UDC within 28 days of the final results becoming available 
to STAL. 

1.3 The existing obligations with respect to the monitoring of air quality at Hatfield 
Forest contained in the 2008 Undertaking shall cease on the Implementation Date. 

 

 

Part 6: Surface Water Discharge Quality Monitoring 

Definitions 

▪ “Previous Monitoring Condition” means condition WAT2 on the Planning 
Permission dated 8 October 2008 relating to Stansted Airport in the following terms: 

 WAT2 The water quality monitoring of the biological interests of local 
 brooks approved by the local planning authority pursuant to condition WAT3 
 of planning permission ref UTT/1000/01/OP shall be continued; and 

▪ “Watercourse Monitoring Scheme” means a detailed scheme prepared by STAL on 
the advice of its ecological consultants by way of replacement for the Previous 
Monitoring Condition, so as to ensure continued surface water discharge quality 
monitoring for local watercourses proximate to Stansted Airport into Great 
Hallingbury Brook and Pincey Brook from discharge points at Stansted Airport. 

************** 

1. Compliance with the Watercourse Monitoring Scheme 

2.1 STAL shall implement the Watercourse Monitoring Scheme, and shall make the 
results of its monitoring available to UDC within 28 days of the final results 
becoming available to STAL. 

 

Page 56



 

33 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

Executed as a Deed by affixing               ) 

the common seal of                                  ) 

UTTLESFORD DISTRICT COUNCIL            ) 

in the presence of:                                    ) 

 

 

Authorised Signatory 

 

 

Authorised Signatory 

 

 

Executed as a Deed by affixing                 ) 

the common seal of                                    ) 

ESSEX COUNTY COUNCIL                           ) 

in the presence of:                                  ) 

 

 

Attesting Officer 

 

 

Executed as a Deed by   ) 

STANSTED AIRPORT LIMITED  ) 

acting by a director   ) 

 

   Director 

In the presence of:  

 

Witness signature 

 

Name of witness (BLOCK CAPITALS):  

 

Address: 

 

Occupation:  

Page 57



 

34 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

 

 

Executed as a Deed by   ) 

CITICORP TRUSTEE COMPANY  ) 

LIMITED acting by a director  ) 

 

   Director 

In the presence of:  

 

Witness signature 

 

Name of witness (BLOCK CAPITALS):  

 

Address: 

 

Occupation:  

 

 

 

Page 58



 

35 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

Annexure 1: Plan 1 (Airport Property) 
 

Page 59



 

36 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

 

 

Page 60



P
age 61



Page 62



 

37 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

Annexure 2: Airfield Infrastructure Works Plan 
 

Page 63



 

38 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

 

Page 64



P
age 65



Page 66



 

39 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

Annexure 3: Revised SIGS Contour Plan 
 

Page 67



 

40 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

 

Page 68



57/N65/SEL57/N65/SEL
COMBINEDCOMBINED

6060

6363

6666

6969

0 2 4 6 8 10km

• GREAT EASTON• GREAT EASTON

• BROXTED• BROXTED

• THAXTED• THAXTED

• TAKELEY• TAKELEY

• HATFIELD BROAD OAK• HATFIELD BROAD OAK

• HATFIELD HEATH• HATFIELD HEATH

• GREAT HALLINGBURY• GREAT HALLINGBURY

ELSENHAM •ELSENHAM •

 STANSTED •
MOUNTFITCHET
 STANSTED •
MOUNTFITCHET

 BISHOP’S •
STORTFORD
 BISHOP’S •
STORTFORD

5151

5454
57/N65/SEL57/N65/SEL

COMBINEDCOMBINED

6060

6363

6666

6969

0 2 4 6 8 10km

• GREAT EASTON• GREAT EASTON

• BROXTED• BROXTED

• THAXTED• THAXTED

• TAKELEY• TAKELEY

• HATFIELD BROAD OAK• HATFIELD BROAD OAK

• HATFIELD HEATH• HATFIELD HEATH

• GREAT HALLINGBURY• GREAT HALLINGBURY

ELSENHAM •ELSENHAM •

 STANSTED •
MOUNTFITCHET
 STANSTED •
MOUNTFITCHET

 BISHOP’S •
STORTFORD
 BISHOP’S •
STORTFORD

PROPOSED SOUND 
INSULATION GRANT SCHEME
RESPONSIBLE AND SUSTAINABLE GROWTH
We are committed to growing the airport sustainably, delivering the full economic and social benefits  
of a globally-connected airport while minimising our impact on local communities and the environment.

We have made a commitment to continue to operate within the noise and aircraft movement limits 
agreed in 2008. We have also offered a new package of measures including a generous new  
Sound Insulation Grant Scheme for local communities.

NEW SCHEME
We recognise that aircraft noise is a key issue for local communities,  
particularly for those residents living closest to the Airport. 

We have undertaken a review of our current scheme and also those offered  
by other UK and international airports. 

Our proposed new scheme would:

 – cover a larger geographic area, meaning more households will be eligible;
 – take account of additional noise metrics;
 – remove the need for the householder to contribute; we would pay up to 100% of the cost; and 
 – be based on a tiered system to provide the highest funding for the noisiest areas to support  
those who are most impacted. 

The grant would pay for noise insulation measures such as double glazing,  
mechanical ventilation and loft insulation.

ELIGIBILITY
The current sound insulation grant scheme provides support to those within the 63  
noise contour (63 dB LAeq,16h). The proposed scheme, which is summarised in the table  
below and the figure opposite would provide support to those exposed to much lower  
noise levels, offering grants to those within the 57 noise contour (57 dB LAeq,16h).

stanstedairport.com

For households subject to the highest levels of noise (69dB LAeq,16h 
noise contour or more), we will also provide assistance with  
the costs of relocating.

NOISE IMPACT NOISE CONTOUR GRANT MAXIMUM

UPPER 69 and 66 dB LAeq,16h £10,000

MIDDLE 63 and 60 dB LAeq,16h £8,000

LOWER 57 dB LAeq,16h/N65 200 / 90 dBA SEL*

600m distance/55 dB LAeq,16h ground noise

£5,000

*90 dB(A) SEL footprint for the noisiest aircraft operating at night (23:00 to 06:00)

35+ PLANNING APPLICATION

P
age 69

http://stanstedairport.com


Page 70



 

41 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

Annexure 4: Junction 8 (M11) Scheme Drawing 
 

Page 71



 

42 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

 

Page 72



9

0

.

1

2

0

W

L

0

1

92.03

9

2

.

2

5

9

2

.

5

2

9

2

.

7

9

9

2

.9

6

9

4

.7

8 9

2

.
6

5

9

2

.
4

6

9
2
.
3
3

9

2

.
3

1

9

2

.

2

8

9

2

.

2

0

9

2

.

1

0

9

2

.

0

2

9

5

.

2

7

92.69

9

2

.

4

7

9

2

.

5

9

9

2

.

4

9

B

R

C

B

R

C

W

M

R

S

R

S

R

S

P

P

P

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

P

8

9

.

6

1

8

9

.
6

1

8

9

.

2

5

8

9

.

2

4

8

8

.

3

7

8

8

.

4

0

8

8

.

5

5

8

8

.

5

5

8

8

.

2

0

8

8

.

1

6

8

8

.

4

9

8

8

.

4

5

P

P

P

P

P

P

T

C

A

I
R

T

E

A

S

T

A

1

2

0

N

O

 
E

N

T

R

Y

S
E

R
V

B
1
2
5
6

W

E
S

T

A

1
2
0

A

1
2
0

W

E
S

T

S
E

R
V

B
1
2
5
6

A

1

2

0

E

A

S

T

A

I
R

T

A
1
2
0

E
A

S
T

A
IR

T

A
1
2
0

E
A

S
T

A
IR

T

A

1
2
0

E
A

S
T

A

I
R

T

9

0

.
4

3

9

0

.

1

2

9

0

.

0

4

9

0

.
4

5

9
0
.
5
5

9

0

.
5

2

9

0

.
3

7

9

0

.
3

4

9

0

.
3

5

9

0

.
2

5

9

0

.
2

5

9

0

.

1

8

8

7

.

1

3

8

7

.

1

7

8

7

.

2

7

8

3

.

4

5

8

3

.

3

2

8

3

.

0

7

8
7
.
9
2

8
7
.
6
6

8
7
.
3
5

8

6

.

7

8

8

6

.

8

0

8

6

.8

2

8

7

.

0

2

8

7

.1

5

8

7

.

0

2

8

6

.

9

8

8

6

.

8

6

8

7

.

2

9

8

G

P

S

9

I

B

I

B

R

S

R

S

R

S

R

S

P

P

P

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

S
T

O
P

B
U

S

3

0

C

L

E

A

R K

E

E

P

W

E

S

T

A

1

2

0

A

1

2

0

W

E

S

T

A

1

2

0

A
I
R

P
O

R
T

A
1
2
0

E
A

S
T

E

X

I
T

F

U

E

L

F

U

E

L

S
E

R
V

I
C

E
S

8

8

.

9

7

8

5

.

9

4

8

6

.

0

6

8

5

.

9

4

8

5

.

9

4

8

5

.

6

6

8

5

.

7

0

8

5

.0

1

8

8

.

0

2

8

7

.

9

9

8

8

.

2

0

8

8

.0

5

8

6

.4

6

8

9

.
0

6

8

9

.
0

6

8

9

.

1

1

8

8

.

9

2

8

8

.

9

1

8

9

.

0

6

8

9

.

0

9

8

9

.

1

8

8

7

.

7

9

8

7

.

7

6

8

7

.

8

4

8

6

.0

1

8

6

.0

1

8

6

.1

2

8

8

.0

3

8

7

.9

2

8

7

.8

9

8

7

.9

7

8

6

.

5

2

8

6

.

6

8

8

6

.

7

0

85.9

4

8

8

.
9

9

8
5
.
0
4

8
4
.
7
8

8
4
.
4
3

8
4
.
0
9

8
3
.
7
3

8
3
.
7
1

8
3
.
8
1

8
4
.
1
0

8
4
.
4
2

8
4
.
7
0

8
4
.
9
8

8
8
.
6
6

8

8

.
8

0

8

8

.
9

5

9

2

.

1

3

2

G

P

S

5

0

8

3

.

3

7

1

G

P

S

5

8

2

.

4

5

5

G

P

S

3

8

6

.

4

1

0

G

P

S

2

8

8

.

6

5

9

G

P

S

1

B

O

L

I

B

I

B

I

B

C

B

X

C

B

X

C

B

X

B

R

C

B

R

C

B

R

C

B

R

C

T

C

W

M

W

M

P

P

P

B

O

L

R

S

R

S

R

S

R

S

R

S

R

S

R

S

R

S

R

S

R

S

R

S

R

S

R

S

R

S

R

S

R

S

R

S

R

S

B

B

P

P

M

K

R

M

K

R

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

F

L

E

R

E

P

E

P

B

S

B

S

L

P

L

P

L

P

M

K

R

R

S

G

P

S

4

8

4

.

8

3

8

G

P

S

6

8

5

.

5

3

3

8

4

.

5

9

S
E

R
V

(W
)

A
1
2
0

W

E
S

T

A
1
2
0

S
E

R
V

(W
)

A

1

2

0

A

1
2
0

A

1
2
0

(W
)

(E
)

T
'K

E
L
E

Y

A
1
2
0

T
'K

E
L
E

Y

3

.

6

0

m

3

.

7

0

m

3

.

6

5

m

3

.

8

3

m

R

S

R

S

T
L

R

S

T

L

L

P

L

P

A
1
2
0

W

E
S

T

A

1

2

0

E

A

S

T

B

1

2

5

6

A

1

2

0

W

E

S

T

A

1

2

0

W

E

S

T

S

E

R

V

A

1
2
0

(
W

)

S

E

R

V

A

1
2
0

B

1
2
5
6

T

'K

E

L
E

Y

S
E

R
V

A

1

2

0

W

E

S

T

E

A

S

T

T

'
L

E

Y

M

1

1

N

O

R

T

H

A

1

2

0

W

E

S

T

M

1

1

N

O

R

T

H

A
1
2
0

W

E
S

T

M

1
1

N
O

R
T

H

M
1
1

N
O

R
T

H

S
E

R
V

T
'
L
E

Y

B

1

2

5

6

B
1
2
5
6

A

1

2

0

B

I
R

C

H

B
I
R

C
H

T

'
L

E

Y

B

I
R

C

H

3.75

3.76

3.75

3.75

3.75

A
IR

T

E
A

S
T

A
1
2
0

A
IR

T

E
A

S
T

A
1
2
0

B
1
2
5
6

A

1
2
0

W

E
S

T

S
E

R
V

A

I
R

T

E
A

S
T

A

1
2
0

B
1
2
5
6

S
E

R
V

W

E
S

T

A

1
2
0

A

1
2
0

W

E
S

T

L

P

L

P

R

S

L

P

R

S

3

.

5

0

m

3

.

5

0

m

3

.

5

0

m

3

.

5

0

m

3

.

8

3

m

T
'L

E
Y

R

S

3.60
3.60

73
.8

7

26
.8

4

3.
44

3.
44

3.
44

A120

WEST

M11

NORTH

M
11

SOUTH

M

1

1

N

O

R

T

H

A

1

2

0

W

E

S

T

S

E

R

V

A

I
R

T

M

1

1

N

O

R

T

H

M

1

1

N

O

R

T

H

S

E

R

V

M

1

1

N

O

R

T

H

A

1

2

0

W

E

S

T

S

E

R

V

M

1

1

S

O

U

T

H

A

1

2

0

E

A

S

T

A

I
R

T

A

1

2

0

E

A

S

T

A

I
R

T

M

1

1

S

O

U

T

H

S

E

R

V

A

1
2
0

E

A

S

T

A

I
R

T A

1
2
0

E

A

S

T

A

I
R

T

M

1
1

S

O

U

T
H

S

E

R

V

B

1
2
5
6

A
1
2
0

E
A

S
T

A
I
R

T

A
1
2
0

E
A

S
T

A
I
R

T

M
1
1

S
O

U
T

H

S
E

R
V

B
1
2
5
6

M

1
1

S

O

U

T
H

A

1
2
0

W

E

S

T

M

1
1

N

O

R

T
H

A
1
2
0

W

E
S

T

S

E

R

V

3.74

A120

W
EST

SER
V

M

1

1

N

O

R

T

H

M
11

SO
UTH

A

1

2

0

W

E

S

T

S

E

R

V

M

1

1

S

O

U

T

H

M11

NORTH

M11

NORTH

A120

EAST

AIR
T

A120

EAST

AIRT

M11

NORTH

Project Title:

DA
TE

:
CA

D 
RE

FE
RE

N
CE

:

Rev.

REV DESCRIPTIONDATE APPCHKDES

Status:

Suitability

Client:

Drawing Title:

Scale:Size:
A1

www.steergroup.com

Drawing No. 

-

M11 JUNCTION 8 IMPROVEMENTS

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT
OF COMBINE ECC SCHEME

AND 35+ PROPOSAL

NTS

23003401-SDG-HGN-100-DR-D-00104

P1

FOR PLANNING

S2

P0 28AUG18 ORIGINAL ISSUE ANI SDX RPJ

P1 03OCT18 SIGNAL EXIT
FROM DEPOT ACCESS ANI SDX RPJ

09
/1

0/
20

18
U

:\
Lo

nd
on

\P
ro

je
ct

s\
23

0\
0\

34
\0

1\
CA

D\
Dr

aw
in

gs
\2

30
03

40
1-

SD
G-

HG
N

-1
00

-D
R-

D-
00

10
4 

- 1
04

N

NOTES:

1. THIS DRAWING IS BASED ON INFORMATION

PROVIDED BY RINGWAY JACOBS.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS IN METRES UNLESS

OTHERWISE STATED.

3. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

DESTINATION MARKINGS

TO BE AMENDED

CARRIAGEWAY WIDENED AT PINCH POINT

AND INTRODUCTION OF CONTINUOUS THIRD

LANE TO CIRCULATORY CARRIAGEWAY

REASSIGNMENT OF NEARSIDE

LANE ON APPROACH AND WITHIN

CIRCULATORY CARRIAGEWAY

EXTENSION OF FLARE

AND LENGTHENING OF

NEARSIDE LANES ON

APPROACH TO STOP LANE

REASSIGNMENT OF LANES TO

PROVIDE ADDITIONAL APPROACH

TO NORTH BOUND ON SLIP

CARRIAGEWAY WIDENED

TO ACCOMMODATE

ADDITIONAL LANE

REASSIGNMENT OF HARD SHOULDER

TO ACCOMMODATE ADDITIONAL LANE

AT SIGNAL JUNCTION

REASSIGNMENT OF NEARSIDE

LANE ON APPROACH AND WITHIN

CIRCULATORY CARRIAGEWAY

EXTENT OF ECC SCHEME

EXTENT OF ECC SCHEME

ON-DEMAND SIGNALISED

EXIT FROM DEPOT

P
age 73

AutoCAD SHX Text
Peek Industrial Park

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
Co Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
Amenity Tip

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
Stand

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
Floodlight

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
Floodlight

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
Lay-by

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
Lay-by

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
Green Services

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
Birchanger

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
ED & Ward Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
Co Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
Und

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
CF

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
Co Const Bdy

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
Gantry

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
Gantry

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
Mast

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
Stand

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
Depot

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
92.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
Football Ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
Greencroft

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
Floodlight

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
Floodlight

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
Station

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
Sewage Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
Tocher House

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
Dunmow Road

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
(Training Centre)

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
Stane Street

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
Filling

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
(disused)

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
ROMAN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
Ambulance

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
El Sub Sta



Page 74



 

43 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

Annexure 5: Priory Wood Roundabout Drawing 
 

Page 75



 

44 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

 

Page 76



2.00

2.00

3.
14

3.
14

3.
14

3.74

3.74

3.73
Project Title:

DA
TE

:
CA

D 
RE

FE
RE

N
CE

:

BASED UPON ORDNANCE SURVEY'S MAPS WITH THE PERMISSION OF THE CONTROLLER OF HMSO, (c) CROWN COPYRIGHT. UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES CROWN COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.

Rev.

Rev. CommentsDate AppChkDes

t +44 (0)20 7910 5000        e sdginfo@sdgworld.net

Status:

Suitability

Client:

Drawing Title:

Scale:

Size:

A3

SDG Ref.

Location Type Role

Number0 12.5m 25m 37.5m 50m

Originator Volume
Drawing Number:

-

-

PROPOSED LAYOUT

23003401 1:500
100 DR D

00101 P1

WORK IN PROGRESS

S0

P1 18/01/18 ORIGINAL ISSUE TRS

XXX

13
/0

2/
20

18
P:

\P
ro

je
ct

s\
23

0\
0\

34
\0

1\
CA

D\
Dr

aw
in

gs
\2

30
03

40
1-

SD
G-

HG
N

-1
00

-D
R-

D-
00

10
1 

- 0
01

01

SDG HGN

N

NOTES:

1. ALL DIMENSIONS IN METRES UNLESS

OTHERWISE STATED.

2. DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

KEY:

PROPOSED WHITE ROAD 

MARKINGS

PROPOSED PRIMARY SIGNAL

PROPOSED SECONDARY 

SIGNAL

SITE LOCATION

P
age 77



Page 78



 

45 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

Annexure 6: Scope of Local Road Monitoring Scheme  
(Schedule 3 Part 2) 

 

The detailed implementation plan for the Local Road Monitoring Scheme will include both 
traffic and Fly Parking monitoring and will specify: 
 

• What data will be collected 

• The collection method 

• The area to be covered by monitoring 

• Start date and frequency of collection (annually) 

• Annual review of monitoring scheme 

• Reporting of monitoring (3 months following data collection) 

• Responsibility for provision of scheme 
 

 

Page 79



 

46 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

Page 80



 

47 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

Annexure 7: Rail-Users Discount Scheme  
(Schedule 3 Part 2) 

 
 
The rail-users discount scheme will commence within 30 days after the Unchallenged 
Permission Date has been reached. 
 
As an extension to the 2003 Agreement, STAL will provide parking within the short-stay car 
parks for rail commuters in possession of a rail season ticket from Stansted Airport at a price 
discounted by no less than 90% from the turn-up parking rate (the turn-up parking rate 
being the price payable to park in the premium short-stay car parks at the airport (currently 
known as the orange and green car parks but which may include any temporary or 
permanent replacement for these car parks) for 365 full days (a full day being any 24 hour 
period)). This rate of discount represents a higher rate of discount than that in operation  
when the current owner acquired its interest in Stansted Airport in 2013 and took over the  
pre-existing rail users discount scheme (which was 85% on a comparable basis). 
 
To qualify for the discounted parking scheme rail passengers must be in ownership of a rail 
season ticket from Stansted Airport station and satisfactory evidence that the user is in 
possession of a rail season ticket will be required.  A daily ticket does not entitle a rail 
passenger to participate in this scheme. 
 
Rail Passengers will be able to apply for the discounted parking scheme for a period starting 
no earlier than the commencement date of their valid rail season ticket and ending at the 
date of the expiry of their valid rail season ticket (up to a 1 year maximum period).   
 
On expiry of the season ticket, an application will be required for renewal. 
 
Access to the airport car park will be monitored and where necessary subject to 
enforcement.  Abuse of scheme rules (e.g. stay duration limitations) could result in 
withdrawal of this offer to the individual, household, and / or vehicle. 
 
STAL will promote the Rail-Users Discount Scheme in consultation with UDC. 

Page 81



 

48 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

Page 82



 

49 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

Annexure 8: Transport Forum Revised Terms of Reference  
(Schedule 3 Part 2) 

 

SATF Steering Group 
 

The SATF Steering Group is the decision making group which is accountable through the 
chair for: 
 

1. Investment decisions, ensuring value for money, relating to:  
o Transport related S106 agreements; 
o Projects funded by the Sustainable Transport Levy; 

2. Delivery of ASAS targets and objectives; and Travel Plan  
3. Setting clear objectives and work programmes for the working groups. 

 

Terms of reference for the SATF Steering Group 

 
4. To take executive responsibility to deliver on the objectives of the Airport 

Surface Access Strategy (ASAS) through the activities of the Working Groups and 
in particular by: 

o By advising STAL on development and production of the ASAS including 
forward planning to meet targets for all forms of transport and 
accommodation of future strategic transport links to and from the 
airport 

o developing annual work plans showing activity for each financial year to 
deliver each objective to be agreed by the SATF Steering Group before 
the start of each financial year; 

o monitoring progress on delivery of those plans at each quarterly 
meeting; 

o establishing, publishing and maintaining investment appraisal criteria for 
transport investment that deliver the agreed ASAS transport objectives, 
mode share targets and value for money; and 

o providing assurance that the activities and spend are consistent with the 
terms of the strategy. 
 

5. To administer the delivery of transport related Section 106 planning obligations 
associated with the planning permission for the airport ensuring that spend is 
consistent with the terms of the agreement.   
 

6. To ensure overall budget control of allocated transport Section 106 funding, 
agree funding allocations in the light of investment appraisals, and monitor the 
effectiveness of measures taken.  
 

7. To monitor the airport’s Travel Plan initiatives and annually to advise STAL on 
measures to improve passenger and employee public transport mode share. 
 

8. To ensure completion and publication of annual reporting of SATF activities, 

including a detailed report on activities, spend and delivery of objectives and 

performance against the S106 targets. 

Page 83



 

50 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

 

9. STAL will provide administrative support for the Steering and Working Groups, 

including: 

(a) Arranging and hosting meetings, circulating agendas and papers 

(b) Providing quarterly data in advance on: 

o Performance against the S106 targets and commitments 

o Any papers on investment decisions or discussions 

o Any data or information identified in working groups strategies to 

support advice and performance monitoring 

(c) In all cases to: 
o Keep a record of decision taking and the evidence on which 

decisions are taken; 
o Report on spend, progress and delivery at each quarterly meeting; 
o Ensure that all spending represents value for money; and 
o For each transport investment ensure it is clear how each of the 

investment appraisal criteria are met.    
 

Working Groups 

 
The three working groups are advisory. They do not take decisions on investment and 
accountability remains with the SATF Steering Group through the chair. 
 
There is a working group for each of: Highways, Bus and Coach and Rail. The three 
working groups have generic terms of reference but each with a different focus. 

 

Terms of reference for the Working Groups 

10. To propose a strategy to the Steering Group to deliver the ASAS objectives and 
targets. 

11. To propose an annual work programme in stages of feasibility, design and 
implementation to the Steering Group setting out the delivery priorities for each 
financial year in order to deliver the ASAS objectives and targets. 

12. To give quarterly progress reports to the Steering Group on the delivery of that 
work programme, including reviewing modal share, customer satisfaction and 
service quality STAL will provide the data to the working groups to support these 
reports. 

13. To propose a set of investment criteria to the Steering Group for investment 
decisions, to include value for money, service quality, customer satisfaction, 
contribution to delivery of objectives and targets, and fit with work programme.  

14. To put investment proposals to the Steering Group for decision. 
 

 

Highways Working Group focus areas: 

15. To advise on and oversee the delivery of Section 106 highway-related planning 
obligations conditioned by the planning permission for the airport and to 
recommend to the Steering Group the allocation of Section 106 funding. 

16. To consider the interface between existing road schemes, any future schemes, 
and the airport road system. 

Page 84



 

51 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

17. To consider the opportunities for improving road-based public transport through 
improving journey times and reliability for bus and coach services, and assisting 
the development of inter-urban public transport initiatives.  

18. To oversee the monitoring of fly-parking associated with the airport and to 
develop multi-agency activities to tackle identified and agreed incidences.  

19. To work in partnership to deliver the Stansted Airport Cycling and Walking 
Strategy document. 

20. To monitor supply and demand for car parking at the airport, both on and off 
site.  

 
 

Bus and Coach Working Group focus areas:  

 
21. To work in partnership with service operators and other agencies to deliver the 

Stansted Airport Bus and Coach Strategy. 
22. To review the Stansted Bus and Coach Strategy and recommend the 

development of new and existing services and associated facilities to meet the 
objectives of the strategy. 

23. To manage and oversee the delivery of the bus and coach-related S106 
obligations and planning conditions and to recommend to the Steering Group 
the use of S106 funding. 

24. To develop constructive liaison with existing and potential bus and coach 
operators, local authorities and TfL. 

25. To review levels of service quality and customer satisfaction of bus and coach 
services serving Stansted Airport and recommend actions to improve such levels 
as necessary. 

 

Rail Working Group focus areas: 

26. To work in partnership to deliver the Stansted Airport ASAS Rail Vision; 
27. To review the quality and customer satisfaction of rail services serving Stansted 

Airport, including monitoring of mode share & franchise commitments; 
28. To provide advice to the Steering Group about any necessary steps in respect of 

coordination with other stakeholders and promotional activity to ensure 
improvements to rail infrastructure or franchises. 

 

List of Members of SATF 

Essex County Council, Uttlesford District Council Herts County Council, East Herts District 
Council, Highways England, TfL, Network Rail, Stansted Consultative Committee ; and 
STAL 
 
Working Group Membership shall be determined by the SATF Steering Group and shall 
comprise of the above organisations (as appropriate) and as necessary, representatives 
of the public transport operators, airlines, and passenger user groups. 

 

Agreement of the Terms of Reference 

Both sets of terms of reference were ratified by the SATF Steering Group on [DATE]. 

Page 85



 

52 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

Page 86



 

53 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

Annexure 9: Area of Benefit Plan  
(Schedule 3 Part 4) 

Page 87



 

54 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

 
 
 
 

Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



 

55 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

Annexure 10: Community Benefit Terms of Reference  
(Schedule 3 Part 4) 

Trustees & Governance  

1. Chair to be appointed from the Trustees by UDC and STAL for two years with 
only one reappointment permitted which cannot run concurrently.  

2. Independently administered, with a percentage of the Fund allocated for 
administration.  

3. The body of trustees shall consist of 9 persons:  

a) Two persons to be nominated by Stansted Airport Limited, only one of 
whom may be an employee of the Company;  

b) One Elected Member or Officer by Uttlesford District Council;  

c) One Elected Member or Officer by Essex County Council; 

d) One Elected Member or Officer for each of the main District Councils 
comprised in the Area of Benefit to be nominated by such Councils 
consisting: 

▪ East Hertfordshire District Council;  

▪ Harlow District; and  

▪ Epping Forest District Council.  

e) One person to be nominated by the Stansted Airline Operators 
Committee; and  

f) One person to be nominated by Stansted Airport Consultative Committee.  

 

Funding  

4. Contribution to the Community Trust Fund of £150,000 every Financial Year to 
31 March 2029. Following this date, the amount of funding to be contributed by 
STAL to the Trust Fund is to be reviewed.  

5. The maximum funding per application is £5,000 with discretion of the Trustees 
to adopt a higher figure for exceptional applications. Each year a maximum of 
one application for a ‘flagship’ or major project may be granted, for which 
funding is capped at £50,000.  

6. The Fund can offer full funding or funding towards a specific element or item.  

7. The Fund will also receive additional contributions from any aircraft noise or 
track keeping fines arising from aircraft arriving or departing from Stansted 
Airport.  

 

Page 91



 

56 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

Eligibility  

8. Applications can be made by an established community or other not for profit 
group, charity Town Council or Parish Council located, or which operates 
predominantly, within the Area of Benefit.  

9. Parish Councils will be eligible to receive up to one grant per year. No more than 
50% of total grants awarded in any year will go to Town Councils and Parish 
Councils.  

10. Applications that offer match funding will be favoured. 

 

Objectives  

11. The Community Trust Fund will support capital projects which help to mitigate 
adverse health and/ or quality of life impacts arising from the Development as a 
result of increased noise levels and a reduction in the amenity of local green 
spaces within the defined ‘Area of Benefit’.  

12. The Community Trust has the discretion to give greater weight to particular 
objectives in line with local and community priorities at the time. Any 
prioritisation will be published for applicants to view, along with the application 
process.  

 

Area of Benefit  

13. 10-mile radius with extensions to reflect areas directly affected by operations at 
Stansted Airport as detailed in Appendix 1. Grants will only be awarded to 
schemes which are located within the Area of Benefit or deliver the vast 
majority of its benefits to the Area of Benefit.  

 

Applications  

14. Successful applicants can re-apply after three years.  

15. Applications can be submitted on-line or in hard copy using the Community 
Trust Fund Application Form. Applications must provide the following 
information as a minimum:  

o Details of the Organisation;  

o Project Details, including itemised descriptions of all/part of the project 
for which the organisation is applying for; and  

o Additional supporting information.  

Meetings  

16. Quarterly ordinary meetings of the Trustees to review applications.  

17. Quorum of a least one third of the number of trustees for the time being or 
three trustees whichever is the greater are present at a meeting.  

18. Every matter shall be determined by a majority of votes by the trustees present 
and voting on the question.  

Page 92



 

57 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

19. A minute of the meeting will be recorded and signed by the Chair.  

 

Reporting and Monitoring  

20. An annual report and accounts shall be produced within 3 months of Financial 
Year end of the Fund including a list of grants awarded, the amount and the 
applicant.  

21. Successful applicants will be required to publicise, in an appropriate way, the 
support provided by the Community Trust Fund.  

22. An appropriate audit system shall be established to ensure that grants are 
appropriately spent and that the benefits are delivered. 

 

 

Page 93



 

58 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

Page 94



 

59 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

Annexure 11: Woodland Plan  
(Schedule 3 Part 5) 

 

Page 95



 

60 

 
4132-2226-7169, v. 1 

 

Page 96



¯

Location Plan: East End Wood Scale 1:10,000 @ A4

Hall Road

P
age 97



Page 98



Crown Copyright License Number AL18020A 

Location Plan: Hatfield Forest SSSI SSSI boundary

Scale 1:20,000 @ A4

¯
Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Enterprise House 
Bassingbourn Road 
Essex 
CM24 1QW 
United Kingdom 

 
stanstedairport.com 

Stansted Airport Ltd 
Registered in England and Wales Company No. 01990920 

8 January 2020 
 
 
Roger Harborough 
Director of Public Services  
Uttlesford District Council 
Council Offices 
London Road 
Saffron Walden  
CB11 4ER 
 
  
Dear Roger, 
 
 
Re: UTT/18/0460/FUL: Airfield works comprising two new taxiway links to the existing runway (a Rapid 
Access Taxiway and a Rapid Exit Taxiway), six additional remote aircraft stands (adjacent Yankee taxiway); 
and three additional aircraft stands (extension of the Echo Apron) to enable combined airfield operations of 
274,000 aircraft movements  (of which not more than 16,000 movements would be Cargo Air Transport 
Movements (CATM))  and a throughput of 43 million terminal passengers, in a 12-month calendar period. 
 
I refer to the meetings held on 15th and 22nd November 2019 with you and Gordon concerning the S106 
agreement as drafted, following the heads of terms that were before the Planning Committee in November 
2018. 
 
The minutes of that meeting reflect the changes to the S106 that were agreed in order to form an amended 
proposed mitigation package.  In addition, it was also agreed that some matters required further clarification 
and I set these out below. 
 
Noise Calibration Certificates 
 
The noise monitors that were utilised for the baseline measurements are owned by our appointed noise 
consultants, Cole Jarman.  Cole Jarman is ISO 9001 accredited and also a member of the Association of 
Noise Consultants and its staff members of the Institute of Acoustics, the industry body for noise professionals.  
Both these bodies require and uphold professional standards and codes of conduct within the noise industry. 
 
I have attached the relevant calibration certificates as an appendix to this letter. 
 
Sound Insulation Grant Scheme (SIGS) Qualifying Properties 
 
Contained within the submitted ES addendum dated 5 July 2018, the relevant section on noise contained 
the following table (ref 3.1.10 of Appendix 3b):  
 

Page 101



2 

 

      
Scheme Residences  Schools Healthcare 

Facilities 

Places 
of 

Worship 

Community 
Facilities 

Existing 1,088 - - - - 
Proposed:      

High 50 - - - - 
Medium 400     

Low 1,600 a 5 2 8 b 3 
      
 

T1 Approximate number of properties eligible for SIGS 
a Estimated for the ‘peak noise year’ based on dwelling counts within the 2024 DC 57dB LAeq,16h and 
2023 DC N65 200 contours. 
b Reducing to 7 if the Ebenezer Chapel in Molehill green is excluded, the building having been sold. 

The above table is based on the rounded numbers provided via the ERCD modelling undertaken as part of 
the ES and it therefore an estimate as to numbers of properties that are included within the identified tiers 
and are rounded to the nearest 50.  Ultimately, the new SIGS will rely on GIS building point data to provide 
a greater degree of accuracy for property qualification assessment. 
 
Stansted College Lease 
 
The current lease granted to the college is specific to the existing building.  Accordingly, it doesn’t allow for 
an extension to the facility. As part of our future plans for the college, recently published in the press, we are 
keen to see expansion and therefore the wording “from time to time” contained in the current S106 
agreement is specifically intended to allow for a new or amended lease to be agreed, as and when necessary. 
 
Surface Water Discharge 
 
The Environment Agency is the responsible body for water quality matters. 
 
S106 Value 
 
I have attached a table to this letter that contains our estimated capital value of the S106 obligations for the 
proposed 2020 draft S106, thus, this table includes the recently agreed increase in Local Road Fund (to 
include fly-parking sum) and the UDC monitoring costs. 
 
Sensitivity Tests Contained within the ES 
 
We remain entirely confident about the robustness of our Environmental Statement and the assumptions that 
are contained within it.  In respect of the fleet mix assumptions used, i.e. the extent of use of next generation 
aircraft, the ES takes a proportionate view of families of aircraft that may operate at Stansted in respect of 
calculating impacts.  This point is covered in the methodology sections of each relevant chapter in the ES. 
 
Further to this, I would refer you back to section 5 of my letter to you dated 13 November 2018 which 
addresses fleet consequences of the forecast aircraft movements.  I would also point to the recent public 
comments made in early November 2019 by Ryanair’s Chief Financial Officer that the airlines’ target of 
flying 200million passengers by 2024 remained on track; fleet renewals of aircraft with greater seating 

Page 102



3 

capacity form part of the company’s business plan.  As the fleet forecasts are based on assumption made 
for fleet mix some eight years in the future, and in light of the above references, it is not reasonable to 
suggest that short term issues will definitely and substantially distort long-term forecasts.  This alone is enough 
to conclude no need for sensitivity tests to be carried out. 

Nevertheless, within the ES, there is already a sensitivity test of the air noise impacts.  This analysed the 
impact of slower fleet replacement and concluded that the impact would be imperceptible.  The air quality 
assessment does not contain sensitivity tests, as  all the modelling undertaken concluded negligible impact 
for human receptors, and no significant effects for ecological receptors.  In consideration of the points above 
concerning fleet mix assumptions, there can be no suggestion that the ES conclusions on change in impact 
are fundamentally flawed.  We firmly believe them to remain relevant and robust. 

I trust the above is self-explanatory, but if you have any further questions please do not hesitate to contact 
me. 

Sincerely, 

Alistair Andrew, MRTPI 
Planning Manager 
London Stansted Airport 

Page 103



 

Cole Jarman Limited   Reg. in England and Wales No. 7102436 Head Office   +44 (0)1932 829007  
An RSK Company  John Cree House, 24b High Street, Addlestone, Surrey, United Kingdom   KT15 1TN 
 

Registered Office   Spring Lodge, 172 Chester Road, Helsby  WA6 0AR Manchester   0161 470 8888 | Fourways House, 57 Hilton Street, Manchester  M1 2EJ 
www.colejarman.com   info@colejarman.com Bristol   0117 287 2633 | The Old School, Stillhouse Lane, Bristol  BS3 4EB 

Memorandum 

  
  
Project: Stansted Airport: 35 mppa + Development 

Subject: Sound Measuring Equipment Calibration Certificates 

Prepared: Vernon Cole   

Date: 11 October 2019   

Reference: 16/0366/M26 Revision: 0 Approved: AE 
  
  
 

Technical Appendix 7.4 Background Noise Measurements, which was submitted as part of the 
Environmental Statement for planning application UTT/18/0460/FUL, contains details and 
results of environmental noise measurements undertaken around Stansted Airport during 2017 
and January 2018.  

Table T1, below, identifies the type and serial number of the equipment used on each of the 
measurement dates and references the calibration certificates that were valid at the time of the 
measurements. 

All referenced calibration certificates are appended to this memo. 

Page 104

https://www.colejarman.com/manchester-office/
http://www.colejarman.com/
https://www.colejarman.com/bristol-office/


Sound Measuring Equipment Calibration Certificates 

Page 2 Stansted Airport: 35 mppa + Development 
 Memorandum 16/0366/M26/0  // 11 October 2019 
 
 

      
      
Item Manufacturer Type Serial No. Measurement Dates Calibration Certificate 

Number 

Real Time Sound 
Level Analyser 

Norsonic 118 31707 30/March/ 2017 

07/April/2017 

08/May/2017 

25/July/2017 

15014 

Microphone GRAS 40AF 102511 15014 

Pre-amplifier Norsonic 1206 30742 15014 

Acoustic 
Calibrator 

Norsonic 1251 31432 15256 

Real Time Sound 
Level Analyser 

Norsonic 140 1405822 28/April/2017 

25/July/2017 

26/July/2017 

15/January/2018 

21189 

Microphone Norsonic 1225 91806 21188 

Pre-amplifier Norsonic 1209 12343 21188 

Acoustic 
Calibrator 

Norsonic 1251 31878 15323 

Real Time Sound 
Level Analyser 

Rion NL52 00253698 

11/April/2017 

TCRT17/1328 

Microphone Rion UC-59 07491 TCRT17/1328 

Pre-amplifier Rion NH-25 43728 TCRT17/1328 

Acoustic 
Calibrator 

Rion NC-74 34257026 TCRT17/1327 

Real Time Sound 
Level Analyser 

Rion NL52 00142653 

15/August/2017 

1604198 

Microphone Rion UC-59 06098 1604198 

Pre-amplifier Rion NH-25 32681 1604198 

Acoustic 
Calibrator 

Rion NC-74 34236428 14979 

      
      

T1 Equipment utilised during environmental noise measurements around Stansted Airport 

 End of Section 

Page 105



Page 106



Registered Office: Robert Lewis Accountants, 4 Capricorn Centre, Cranes Farm Road, Basildon, Essex SS14 3JJ 

Registered No:  4143457 VAT No: GB 770505441 Directors: Trevor J Lewis, Owen R Clingan MIOA 

 

 

 

 

 

              Acoustic Calibration Services Limited 

 

 

 

 

 

   CERTIFICATE OF CALIBRATION 
 

             Model: Norsonic 1251       Serial No: 31432 

 

Organisation:                   Cole Jarman Limited, John Cree House, 24B High Street  

………………………      .Addlestone, Surrey, KT15 1TN 

 

Job Number: 2589                    Customer Order Reference: P17/0023 

 
The acoustic calibrator was fitted with a Norsonic type 1443 coupler for ½” microphones.  The 

acoustic calibrator was run for a period of time until a stable level was measured.  The output 

level was compared to the certified level of the laboratory measurement references.  The 

measurements were repeated 5 times and the average value calculated. 

 

The ambient temperature during calibration was 24.0  1C. 

The barometric pressure was 101.3 to 101.4 kPa. 

The relative humidity was 48 to 58 % 
 

The sound pressure level output from the Acoustic Calibrator was measured in its half inch 

configuration using a B&K 4188 microphone. The mean level output of the acoustic 

calibrator was 114.1dB when corrected to the standard atmospheric pressure of 101.3kPa 

at the reference setting. 

 

The signal output frequency of the acoustic calibrator is 1000Hz. 
 

All ACSL’s calibration instrumentation is fully traceable to National Standards.  The acoustic 

references are calibrated by laboratories which are UKAS accredited for the purpose. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Certificate No:   15256         Signature: 

Date of Issue:    11
th

 July 2017        Print Name:             Trevor Lewis 

Acoustic Calibration Services Limited 
Unit 6H, Diamond Industrial Centre 

Works Road, Letchworth Garden City 
Hertfordshire   SG6 1LW 

Tel: 01462-610085 Mobile: 0771 886 4944 

Email: trevjohnlewis@aol.com  

or 

cal@acousticcalibration.co.uk 

web: www.acousticcalibration.co.uk 

Page 107

mailto:trevjohnlewis@aol.com


Page 108



Page 109



Registered Office: Robert Lewis Accountants, 4 Capricorn Centre, Cranes Farm Road, Basildon, Essex SS14 3JJ 

Registered No:  4143457 VAT No: GB 770505441 Directors: Trevor J Lewis, Owen R Clingan MIOA 
 

 

 

 

 

              Acoustic Calibration Services Limited 

 

 

 
 

 

   CERTIFICATE OF CALIBRATION 
 

   Model: Norsonic 1251                         Serial No: 31878 

 

Organisation:                 Cole Jarman Limited, John Cree House, 24B High Street 

………………………     Addlestone, Surrey, KT15 1TN 

 

Job Number: 2627                  Customer Order Reference: P17/0039 

 
The acoustic calibrator was fitted with a Norsonic type 1443 coupler for ½” microphones.  The 

acoustic calibrator was run for a period of time until a stable level was measured.  The output 

level was compared to the certified level of the laboratory measurement references.  The 

measurements were repeated 5 times and the average value calculated. 

 

The ambient temperature during calibration was 19.3  1C. 
The barometric pressure was 99.2 to 99.3 kPa. 

The relative humidity was 55 to 65% 

 

The sound pressure level output from the Acoustic Calibrator was measured in its half 

inch configuration using a B&K 4188 microphone. The mean level output of the acoustic 

calibrator, corrected to the standard atmospheric pressure of 101.3kPa, was 114.0dB. 
 

The output frequency of the acoustic calibrator is 1000Hz. 
 

All ACSL’s calibration instrumentation is fully traceable to National Standards.  The acoustic 

references are calibrated by laboratories which are UKAS accredited for the purpose. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Certificate No:   15323               Signature: 

Date of Issue:     22
nd

 November 2017             Print Name:               Trevor Lewis 

Acoustic Calibration Services Limited 
Unit 6H  Diamond Industrial Centre 

Works Road  Letchworth Garden City 
Hertfordshire   SG6 1LW 

Tel: 01462-610085  Mobile: 0771 886 4944 

Email: trevjohnlewis@aol.com 

or 

cal@acousticcalibration.co.uk 

web: www.acousticcalibration.co.uk 

Page 110

mailto:trevjohnlewis@aol.com


Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



2020 Draft S106 Value of Benefits 

Topic Area Item Value to 2028 

Community & 
Skills / 
Education 

Provision of a Sound Insulation Grant Scheme 
(SIGS), including Homeowner Relocation 
Assistance £14.2-19.2m 

 
(Range based on 50-
100% take up of SIGS) 
 
(above does not include 
a value for community 
building SIGS – this 
could be in region of 
£200k +). 

Delivering an annual ‘Meet the Buyers’ event 

On-going supporting and expansion of the 
Aerozone, Academy and College (and wider 
Employment Forum).   

Provision of funds to the Community Trust 

Supporting the Stansted Airport Business Forum 
(SABF) 

Reporting via the publication of an annual 
Corporate Social Responsibility Report.  

Transport 

J8 £1.16m 

Local Roads (inc Fly-parking sum)  £1m 

Local Road Monitoring £0.25m 

Transport Levy £12m 

Bus Investment Fund £1m 

Environment 
 
 

Air Quality/SSSI  £0.18m 
 
(does not include any 
ecological works that 
may be required in long 
term) 
 

Water Quality £0.04m 
 

UDC 
Monitoring 

S106 Monitoring Fee £0.075m 

Total £30.1m - £35.1m* 
 

*Value of the S106 is expressed as nominal amounts.  Inflation (indexation) is built into all clauses 
within the S106 draft agreement.  An estimated indexation of the value range above to 2028 would 
be in the region of £33m-38m. 

Page 120



UTT/18/0460/FUL – STANSTED AIRPORT
Birchanger, Elsenham, Stansted, Takeley parishes

(MAJOR)

PROPOSAL: Airfield works comprising two new taxiway links to the 
existing runway (a Rapid Access Taxiway and a Rapid Exit 
Taxiway), six additional remote aircraft stands (adjacent 
Yankee taxiway); and three additional aircraft stands 
(extension of the Echo Apron) to enable combined airfield 
operations of 274,000 aircraft movements (of which not more 
than 16,000 movements would be Cargo Air Transport 
Movements (CATM)) and a throughput of 43 million terminal 
passengers, in a 12-month calendar period

LOCATION: Stansted Airport

APPLICANT: Stansted Airport Limited (STAL)

AGENT: Mr A Andrew, STAL

EXPIRY DATE: 30 November 2018

CASE OFFICER: Karen Denmark

1. NOTATION

1.1 Within Development Limits, Ancient Woodland, Local Wildlife Site, site covers area 
of Policies AIR1-7 in the adopted Uttlesford Local Plan (2005).

2. DESCRIPTION OF SITE

2.1 The application site relates to Stansted Airport, including all land airside and 
landside.  Physical works are only proposed airside adjacent to the runway.

3. PROPOSAL

3.1 The proposal relates to the construction of a rapid access taxiway (RAT), a rapid exit 
taxiway (RET), and a total of 9 additional stands over two locations.  These 
additional facilities would enable the optimal use of the runway, improving efficiency 
in the peak hours.  The stands are required to provide overnight parking for home-
based airlines.  The proposal also seeks to uplift passenger numbers from the 
currently consented 35 million passengers per annum (mppa) to 43mppa.

3.2 The airport currently has planning permission for a total of 274,000 aircraft 
movements.  This is restricted to no more than 243,500 passenger air transport 
movements (PATMs), no more than 20,500 cargo air transport movements 
(CATMs).  There was a further condition limiting the number of “general aviation” 
movements to 10,000 per annum.  This limit applies to aircraft not carrying “for hire 
or reward” passengers or cargo, or non-scheduled air transport services where the 
passenger seating capacity does not exceed ten.

3.3 This application does not propose to increase the number of aircraft movements 
from 274,000.  Originally it sought a unified total of 274,000 which could have 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3

Page 121



consisted of any combination of flights.  The Environmental Statement was carried 
out with a specific assumption of an increase in passenger flights to 253,000 PATMs 
in 2028 at 43mppa, with “other” flights being reduced to 5000 per annum.  Officers 
sought clarification with regards to the description and it was subsequently confirmed 
that no more than 16,000 CATMs were proposed.  This would permit 258,000 ATMs 
for passenger and/or general aviation movements.

4. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT

4.1 The application with an Environmental Statement in line with the Town and Country 
Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017.  This consists of 
Volume 1 which is the Environmental Statement (ES) and two volumes of 
appendices.  There is also a Non-Technical Summary (NTS).

Regulation 4(5) of those Regulations requires the local planning authority to ensure 
that they have, or have access as necessary to, sufficient expertise to examine the 
environmental statement. 

In this regard, the case officer has worked in conjunction with:

officers from: Essex County Council (ECC), Hertfordshire County Council (HCC), 
East Herts District Council (EHDC), Place Services (ECC), Network Rail, Highways 
England (HE), Natural England, and UDC’s Environmental Health Manager 
(Protection), Senior Health Improvement Officer, and the Communities Manager.  

Further expertise has been provided to ECC and HE by Jacobs and AECOM 
respectively.  

Officers have also been advised by consultants from:

WYG (air quality) (WYG), and Bickerdike Allen Partners LLP (BAP).  

Consultation advice has been given by:

Thames Water and Environment Agency (EA).

5. APPLICANT’S CASE

5.1 The application is also accompanied by a Transport Statement, a Planning 
Statement, Design and Access Statement, and a Statement of Community 
Involvement.

6. RELEVANT SITE HISTORY

6.1 (The 2008 Planning Permission, also referred to as Generation (Gen) 1):  
UTT/0717/06/FUL – Extension to the passenger terminal; provision of additional 
aircraft stands and taxiways, aircraft maintenance facilities, offices, cargo handling 
facilities, aviation fuel storage, passenger and staff car parking and other operational 
and industrial support accommodation; alterations to airport roads, terminal forecourt 
and the Stansted rail, coach and bus station; together with associated landscaping 
and infrastructure as permitted development under application UTT/1000/01/OP but 
without complying with condition MPPA1 and varying condition AMT1 to 264,000 
ATMs.  Refused 2006, allowed on appeal 2008.

6.2 (The 2003 Planning Permission):  UTT/1000/01/OP - Extension to the passenger 

Page 6Page 122



terminal; provision of additional aircraft stands and taxiways, aircraft maintenance 
facilities, offices, cargo handling facilities, aviation fuel storage, passenger and staff 
car parking and other operational and industrial support accommodation; alterations 
to airport roads, terminal forecourt and the Stansted rail, coach and bus station; 
together with associated landscaping and infrastructure.  Approved 2003.

6.3 UTT/1150/80/SA – Outline application for expansion of Stansted Airport by provision 
of new passenger terminal complex with capacity of about 15mppa east of existing 
runway, cargo handling and general aviation facilities, hotel accommodation, 
taxiways (including widening of proposed taxiway) to be used as an emergency 
runway), associated facilities (including infrastructure for aircraft maintenance and 
other tenants’ developments) and related road access.  Approved by Secretaries of 
State 5 June 1985.

7. POLICIES

The Development Plan - Uttlesford Local Plan (2005)

7.1 S4 – Stansted Airport Boundary
AIR1 – Terminal Support Area
AIR2 – Cargo Handling/Aircraft Maintenance Area
AIR3 – Southern Ancillary Area
AIR4 – Northern Ancillary Area
AIR5 – Long Term Car Park
AIR6 – Landscaped Areas
AIR7 – Public Safety Zone
GEN1 – Access
GEN3 – Flood Protection
GEN4 – Good Neighbourliness
GEN5 – Light Pollution
GEN6 – Infrastructure Provision to Support Development
GEN7 – Nature Conservation
ENV2 – Development affecting Listed Buildings
ENV4 – Ancient Monuments and Sites of Archaeological Interest
ENV7 – The Protection of the Natural Environment – Designated Sites
ENV9 – Historic Landscapes
ENV11 – Noise Generators
ENV12 – Protection of Water Resources
ENV13 – Exposure to Poor Air Quality

National Policies

7.2 NPPF (2018)
Planning Practice Guidance

7.3 Aviation Policy Framework (March 2013)
Beyond the Horizon: The future of UK aviation – Next steps towards an Aviation 
Strategy (April 2018)
Beyond the Horizon: The future of UK aviation (June 2018)
 
Other Policy

Regulation 19 Uttlesford Local Plan
The Spatial Vision:  Theme 2 – Support Sustainable Business Growth
SP2 –  The Spatial Strategy 2011 - 2033

Page 7Page 123



SP11 – London Stansted Airport
Airports National Policy Statement (June 2018)
Stansted Airport Sustainable Development Plan

8. CONSULTATION

8.1 The application has been advertised and two periods of consultation have been 
carried out, the first ending on 30 April 2018 and the second on 30 August 2018. The 
Council has also engaged proactively with statutory consultees. This report has had 
regard to consultation responses. In addition, the Council will be holding three 
sessions over two days of public speaking as part of a further consultation period.  
These are to be held on 6 and 7 November 2018.

9. APPRAISAL

The issues to consider in the determination of the application are:

A The principle of the development
B Surface Access and Transport
C Air Noise
D Ground Noise
E Surface Access Noise
F Air Quality
G Socio-Economic Impacts
H Carbon Emissions
I Climate Change
J Public Health and Wellbeing
K Water Resources and Flood Risk
L Non-significant Topics
M Cumulative Effects
N Other issues

A The principle of the development 

9.1 The Local Plan sets out limits on the physical extent of the airport. Section 16 of 
the Plan sets out the background to the airport. The airport is within an area 
covered by Local Plan general Policy S4 which relates to the airport as a whole 
and includes the area of the application. S4 makes provision for individual area 
policies called development zones. The zones ensure that all airport direct and 
associated uses can be accommodated within the airport boundary. Industrial 
and commercial development unrelated to the airport will not be permitted on the 
site. The adopted Uttlesford Local Plan splits the airport into 6 separate policy 
sections.  These policies, AIR1 to AIR6 relate to the types of development that 
will be permitted in each area of each of those policies, or not permitted in 
respect of Policy AIR6. 

9.2 In terms of physical development, the proposed rapid access taxiway (RAT) and 
rapid exit taxiway (RET) and aircraft stands fall within the area covered by Policy 
S4 and outside the development zones.  The adopted policy is silent in terms of 
specific development in this area although the extent of its coverage does 
support development directly related to or associated with Stansted Airport.  
Policies AIR1 to AIR6, whilst applying to different areas of the airport, are not 
specifically relevant to the proposals in this application.

Page 8Page 124



9.3 The NPPF (2018, paragraph 213, requires that due weight be given to existing 
local policies according to their degree of consistency with that Framework.  
NPPF paragraph 104 requires planning policies (e) provide for any large scale 
transport facilities that need to be located in the area, and the infrastructure and 
wider development required to support their operation, expansion and 
contribution to the wider economy.  Paragraph 104(f) requires planning policies to 
recognise the importance of maintaining a national network of general aviation 
(GA) airfields, and the Government’s General Aviation Strategy.  The Local Plan, 
paragraph 1.2, makes clear that because Stansted Airport is in Uttlesford, 
national airports policy is particularly significant to the District. Policy S4 provides 
for Stansted Airport but does not itself provide for infrastructure required to 
support its intensified operation, expansion and contribution to the wider 
economy.  Policy S4 and the development zone Policies AIR1-6 have been 
assessed as being in accordance with the NPPF and can be afforded full weight, 
subject to their compliance with the government’s policy in respect of aviation.

9.4 The NPPF (2018) is a material consideration.  It establishes the presumption of 
sustainable development.  The three overarching strands, economic, social and 
environmental objectives, are interdependent and need to be pursued in mutually 
supportive ways (so that opportunities can be taken to secure net gains across 
each of the different objectives).  

9.5 Whilst the NPPF has a balanced view towards sustainable development, the 
Aviation Policy Framework and the governments approach towards aviation 
development in general, recognises that there is the potential for environmental 
impacts which would need to be weighed against the social and economic 
benefits of such proposals.

9.6 As referred to above, the Local Plan, paragraph 1.2 informs the background of 
Policy S4 and makes clear that because Stansted Airport is in Uttlesford, national 
airports policy is particularly significant to the District.  The particularly significant 
national airports policies are the Aviation Policy Framework (2013) and the recent 
“Beyond the Horizon” (June 2018).

9.7 The Aviation Policy Framework (2013) (APF) is a material consideration (see 
paragraph 5.6) and refers to Stansted Airport (see, for example, paragraph 1.41).  
Paragraph 1.60 states the government’s “strategy for a vibrant aviation sector: 
short term” comprising a suite of measures focused on: making best use of 
existing capacity; encouraging new routes and services; better integrating 
airports into the wider transport network.

9.8 The APF recognises the role the aviation industry has in the economy, helping to 
deliver connectivity.  Aviation is recognised for bringing benefits to society and 
individuals, including travel for leisure and visiting family and friends.  One of the 
main objectives of that Framework is to ensure that the UK’s air links continue to 
make it one of the best connected countries in the world so that it can compete 
successfully for economic growth opportunities.  

9.9 Paragraphs 5 to 10 state the benefits of aviation.  Paragraph 10 sets out the 
short to medium term priority of making better use of existing runway capacity at 
all UK airports.  However, this expansion should not happen at any cost and it is 
recognised that this needs to be a balanced approach with the economic benefits 
being weighed against the environmental impacts.  In particular, the APF 
highlights contributing to reducing global emissions, limiting noise and better 
industry/stakeholder collaboration.

Page 9Page 125



9.10 In April 2018, the government published its response to its call for evidence in 
July 2017 on its emerging aviation strategy, and in June 2018, it published a 
document setting out its current position on making best use of existing runways.  
The April 2018 document is entitled “Beyond the horizon: The future of UK 
aviation. Next steps towards an Aviation Strategy”. The June 2018 document is 
entitled “Beyond the horizon: The future of UK aviation. Making best use of 
existing runways” (BTH June 2018). 

9.11 BTH June 2018, paragraph 1.4 referred to Stansted at paragraph 1.4, footnote 2. 
The government “Policy Statement” is at paragraphs 1.25-1.29.  The Policy 
Statement is a material consideration. Paragraph 1.26 states:

“Airports that wish to increase either the passenger or air traffic movement caps 
to allow them to make best use of their existing runways will need to submit 
applications to the relevant planning authority. We expect that applications to 
increase existing planning caps by fewer than 10 million passengers per annum 
(mppa) can be taken forward through local planning authorities under the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990.  As part of any planning application airports will 
need to demonstrate how they will mitigate against local environmental issues, 
taking account of relevant national policies, including any new environmental 
policies emerging from the Aviation Strategy. This policy statement does not 
prejudge the decision of those authorities who will be required to give proper 
consideration to such applications. It instead leaves it up to local, rather than 
national government, to consider each case on its merits.”

9.12 Paragraph 1.27 states that applications to increase caps by 10mppa or more or 
deemed nationally significant, would be considered under the Planning Act 2008. 
The application is to increase the cap by less than 10mppa and is to increase the 
cap by 8mppa (from 35mppa to 43mpp). At the time of writing this report, a third 
party called “Stop Stansted Expansion” (SSE) has made a claim for judicial 
review of a decision by the Secretary of State to not direct that the application be 
deemed to be a nationally significant infrastructure project. 

9.13 Paragraph 1.29 develops the APF (2013) strategy measure of making best use of 
existing capacity into a more recent particular statement of policy on best use in 
bold that:

 “Therefore, the government is supportive of airports beyond Heathrow making 
best use of their existing runways. However, we recognise that the development 
of airports can have negative as well as positive local impacts, including noise 
levels. We therefore consider that any proposals should be judged by the 
relevant planning authority, taking careful account of all relevant considerations, 
particularly economic and environmental impacts and proposed mitigations. This 
policy does not prejudge the decision of those authorities …”

9.14 The BTH (June 2018) Policy Statement is evidence based and was consulted on. 
It can be given full weight. The Policy Statement supports making best use of 
existing capacity having regard to all relevant considerations.

9.15 Current information that the Council has indicates that the emerging Aviation 
Strategy Green Paper will be published for consultation in late autumn.

9.16 The Airports National Policy Statement (2018) (ANPS) has been presented to 
Parliament under the Planning Act 2008 and for the purposes of nationally 

Page 10Page 126



significant infrastructure projects seeking consent under that Act.  It recognises 
the capacity problems at airports in London and the South East.  This is starting 
to result in adverse impacts on the UK economy, and affecting the country’s 
global competitiveness (paragraph 1.2).

9.17 Paragraph 1.12 states that: 

 “The Airports NPS provides the primary basis for decision making on 
development consent applications for a Northwest Runway at Heathrow Airport, 
and will be an important and relevant consideration in respect of applications for 
new runway capacity and other airport infrastructure in London and the South 
East of England.”

9.18 Paragraph 1.41 states, however: 

“The Airports NPS does not have effect in relation to an application for 
development consent for an airport development not comprised in an application 
relating to the Heathrow Northwest Runway, and proposals for new terminal 
capacity located between the Northwest Runway at Heathrow Airport and the 
existing Northern Runway and reconfiguration of terminal facilities between the 
two existing runways at Heathrow Airport.”

9.19 Paragraphs 1.38-1.39 also explain the relationship of the NPS policy with the 
APF (2013). Paragraph 1.38 states: 

“The Airports NPS sets out Government policy on expanding airport capacity in 
the South East of England, in particular by developing a Northwest Runway at 
Heathrow Airport. Any application for a new Northwest Runway development at 
Heathrow will be considered under the Airports NPS. Other Government policy 
on airport capacity has been set out in the Aviation Policy Framework, published 
in 2013. The Airports NPS does not affect Government policy on wider aviation 
issues, for which the 2013 Aviation Policy Framework and any subsequent policy 
statements still apply.” 

9.20 Paragraph 1.39 then states: 

“On 21 July 2017, the Government issued a call for evidence on a new Aviation 
Strategy.22 Having analysed the responses, the Government has confirmed that it 
is supportive of airports beyond Heathrow making best use of their existing 
runways. However, we recognise that the development of airports can have 
positive and negative impacts, including on noise levels. We consider that any 
proposals should be judged on their individual merits by the relevant planning 
authority, taking careful account of all relevant considerations, particularly 
economic and environmental impacts.” 

Footnote 22 identifies: “the new Aviation Strategy as “Beyond the Horizon: The 
Future of Aviation”. 

9.21 Paragraph 1.42 states: 

“As indicated in paragraph 1.39 above, airports wishing to make more intensive 
use of existing runways will still need to submit an application for planning 
permission or development consent to the relevant authority, which should be 
judged on the application’s individual merits. However, in light of the findings of 
the Airports Commission on the need for more intensive use of existing 

Page 11Page 127



infrastructure as described at paragraph 1.6 above, the Government accepts that 
it may well be possible for existing airports to demonstrate sufficient need for their 
proposals, additional to (or different from) the need which is met by the provision 
of a Northwest Runway at Heathrow. As indicated in paragraph 1.39 above, the 
Government’s policy on this issue will continue to be considered in the context of 
developing a new Aviation Strategy.” 

9.22 At a general level, the APF (2013) set out the Aviation Forecasts in paragraphs 
1.50 – 1.56 and paragraph 1.54 concluded that the major South East Airports 
would be likely full by 2030, and possibly either later or sooner.

9.23 More recently and also at a general level, Section 2 of the ANPS (July 2018) sets 
out the overall need for additional airport capacity in the UK in overall terms (see 
paragraphs 2.9 and 2.33). Section 2 is a material planning consideration. Section 
2 highlights the overall economic benefits of both air freight and tourism. 
Paragraphs 2.10-2.18 explain the need for new airport capacity.  It considers that 
aviation demand is likely to increase significantly between now and 2050.  All 
major airports in the South East are expected to be full by the mid-2030s, with 
four out of the five full by the mid-2020s.  Demand is expected to outstrip 
capacity by at least 34% (paragraph 2.12).  The government states that not 
increasing capacity would be damaging to the economy and result in negative 
impacts on passengers (paragraphs 2.16-17).

9.24 The ANPS also refers to the work of the Airports Commission which published its 
final report in July 2015.  In line with paragraph 2 of the APF, Paragraph 2.28 of 
the ANPS states:

“The Commission’s remit also required it to look at how to make best use of 
existing airport infrastructure, before new capacity becomes operational.  The 
Commission noted in its final report that a new runway will not open for at least 
10 years.  It therefore considered it imperative that the UK continues to grow its 
domestic and international connectivity in this period, which it considered would 
require more intensive use of existing airports other than Heathrow and Gatwick.”

9.25 The BTH (June 2018), paragraph 1.4, explains that the 2017 forecasts by the 
Department for Transport, include London airports including Stansted, and 
“reflect the accelerated growth experienced in recent years and that demand was 
9% higher in London in 2016 than the Airports Commission forecast. This has put 
pressure on existing infrastructure…”. The Department “UK Aviation Forecasts” 
(October 2017), paragraph 1.3, states that the “purpose of these forecasts is 
primarily informing longer term strategic policy rather than providing detailed 
forecasts at each individual airport in the short term; the uncertainty reflected by 
future demand growth scenarios at the national level is compounded at the level 
of the individual airport”, and the forecasts are provided for continuity and 
transparency of forecasting methodology. 

9.26 It is reasonable to consider that the requirement for more intensive use of other 
airports, such as Stansted, by making best use of their infrastructure, is a 
government imperative based on evidence and consultation and so can be given 
significant weight here. 

9.27 The Regulation 19 Uttlesford Local Plan is a material consideration.  It carries 
limited weight at the present time due to it being at an early stage in the plan-
making process.  Furthermore, a further period of consultation is due to be 
undertaken between 16 October and 27 November 2018 on an Addendum of 

Page 12Page 128



Focussed Change covering three issues, none specifically related to this 
proposal.  The Spatial Vision identifies the importance of Stansted Airport in the 
London Stansted Cambridge Corridor.  This also states that the environmental 
impact of London Stansted Airport will be effectively managed.  It further sets out 
the need for safe and affordable environmentally sustainable alternatives to the 
use of the car for access to and from the airport.

9.28 Theme 2 of the Regulation 19 Plan is to “Support Sustainable Business Growth”.  
This aims to accommodate development by utilising the permitted capacity of the 
existing runway and provide for the maximum number of connecting journeys by 
air passengers and workers to be made by public transport.  It also aims to 
ensure that appropriate surface infrastructure and service capacity will be 
provided without impacting on capacity to meet the demands of other network 
users (such as commuters) and enabling local residents to access rail, bus and 
coach services to and from the airport.

9.29 Policy SP2 states that “Sustainable growth of London Stansted Airport will be 
supported in principle, subject to conformity with the environmental and transport 
framework set out in Policy SP11 – London Stansted Airport.”

9.30 Policy SP11 is broken up into different sections, not all of which directly relate to 
this application.  The sections relevant to this application are:

“Policy SP 11:  London Stansted Airport

Sustainable growth of London Stansted Airport will be supported in principle and 
is designated as a Strategic Allocation in the Local Plan. The Strategic Allocation 
(see Policies Map) includes land within the existing airport operational area and 
incorporates the North Stansted Employment Area. The wider strategic allocation 
serves the strategic role of London Stansted Airport and associated growth of 
business, industry and education, including aviation engineering, distribution and 
service sectors and the airport college which are important for Uttlesford, the sub-
regional and national economy.

Access to London Stansted Airport

London Stansted Airport’s role as a national, regional and local transport 
interchange will be maintained. The necessary local and strategic transport 
infrastructure and rail, coach, bus, pedestrian and cycle capacity to 
accommodate the passenger and employee trips and other journeys via 
connections at the airport must be maintained and enhanced. An integrated 
approach must be demonstrated within the framework of a surface access 
strategy.

To assist development of new rapid transit options between the airport and new 
and existing communities, land will be safeguarded to allow access at the 
terminal. The council will seek financial contributions from the airport operator for 
the delivery of an appropriate scheme.

Airport Development
 
Proposals for the development of the airport and its operation, together with any 
associated surface access improvements, will be assessed against the Local 
Plan policies as a whole. Proposals for development will only be supported where 
all of the following criteria are met:

Page 13Page 129



1. They are directly related to airport use of development, apart from within 
the North Stansted Employment Area;

2. They contribute to achieving the latest national aviation policies;
3. They are in accordance with the latest permission;
4. Do not result in a significant increase in Air Transport Movements or air 

passenger numbers that would adversely affect the amenities of 
surrounding occupiers, or the local environment or transport networks (in 
terms of, noise, disturbance, air quality and climate change impacts);

5. Achieve further noise reduction or no increase in day or night time noise in 
accordance with the airport’s most recent Airport Noise Action Plan 
(approved by the Secretary of State on a five yearly basis);

6. Include an effective noise control, monitoring and management scheme 
that ensures that current and future operations at the airport are fully in 
accordance with the policies of this Plan and any planning permission that 
has been granted;

7. Include proposals which will over time result in a proportionate diminution 
and betterment of the effects of aircraft operations on the amenity of local 
residents and occupiers and users of sensitive premises in the area, such 
as through measures to be taken to encourage fleet modernisation or 
otherwise;

8. Incorporate sustainable transportation and surface access measures in 
particular which minimise use of the private car, and maximise the 
availability and use of sustainable transport modes and seek to meet modal 
shift targets, all in accordance with the London Stansted Sustainable 
Development Plan;

9. Incorporate suitable road access for vehicles including any necessary 
improvements required as a result of the development and demonstrate 
that the proposals do not adversely affect the adjoining highway network; 
and will not lead to detriment to the amenity of the area and neighbouring 
occupiers;

10. Be consistent with the latest Sustainable Development Plan for the Airport.

London Stansted Airport Strategic Allocation

Development proposals at the London Stansted Airport Strategic Allocation will 
ensure:

15. Appropriate strategic landscaping will be provided both on and off site, 
which shall have regard to the potential for significant visual prominence 
within the wider area of built development and which does not increase risk 
to aviation operations arising from structures, lighting, bird strike or open 
water and having regard to operational and national security 
considerations; and

16. The height and design of buildings will reflect the site's countryside setting, 
its visibility from surrounding countryside; and

17. Provision is made for sustainable drainage and the disposal of surface 
water in order to prevent any harm occurring to neighbouring land.

Strategic Landscape Areas

Development will not be permitted within those areas identified as strategic 
landscape areas on the Policies Map Inset.” *
*  (NB, the numbering does not match that in the Regulation 19 Plan as there has 
been a formatting error in the document)

Page 14Page 130



9.31 Members are reminded that the Regulation 19 Local Plan has not yet been 
submitted for examination and thus not tested for soundness.  With regards to 
Draft Policy SP11 20 people/organisations have made comments on the policy.  
The key issues raised are:

 Whether it is possible in practice to have “sustainable growth” of London 
Stansted Airport. 

 Strengthening of the policy with a requirement for specific ongoing noise 
impact reduction and for Stansted to take responsibility for working with 
communities to reduce the community noise burden.

 Concerns over the best way to word the criteria of the policy for Airport 
Development to be “in accordance with the latest permission”

 Objection to the references to the Stansted Airport Sustainable 
Development Plan and Stansted Airport Noise Action Plan which are 
produced by Stansted Airport and UDC has no control over their contents 
and which could be inconsistent with UDC policy. 

 Objection to allowing off airport parking
 Support for allowing off airport parking but object to aspects of criteria

9.32 As can be seen above, the adopted Uttlesford Local Plan Policy S4 makes no 
provision except in development zones for expansion of existing airport 
infrastructure at Stansted. The reasoned justification refers to the particular 
significance of national airports policy. The material consideration of the APF 
(2013) supports making better use of existing runway capacity and through 
measures to make best use of existing capacity. The most recent particular 
Policy Statement guidance, the BTH (June 2018), supports in paragraphs 1.25-
1.29, making best use of existing runways, taking account of all relevant 
considerations. It is reasonable to attribute significant weight to the national 
policy of supporting best use of existing runways, whereas the APF offers 
general policy support for maximising the capacity of the airport at both local and 
national level, subject to the environmental impacts being managed or mitigated.

9.33 It is on this basis that the applicant is applying for an increase in passenger 
numbers from the permitted 35mppa to 43mppa.  This would be achieved within 
the context of the currently permitted aircraft movements of 274,000.  This limit is 
currently made up of 243,500 passenger aircraft movements (ATM), 20,500 
cargo aircraft movements and 10,000 general aviation movements.  However, it 
is proposed that the current caps become unified and include  a maximum of 
16,000 cargo aircraft movements.

9.34 The basis of the current annual caps is the 2008 Planning Permission (reference 
UTT/0717/06/FUL; appeal reference APP/C1570/A/06/2032278), granted by the 
joint decision of the Secretaries of State for Communities and Local Government 
and for Transport, and is subject to: condition MPPA 1, Passenger Throughout, 
caps that throughout to 35mppa; condition ATM1, Air Transport Movements, 
caps those movements at 264,000 ATMs, and condition ATM2 caps general 
aviation aircraft movements at 10,000; each cap applying in any twelve month 
period. 

9.35 It is reasonable to consider that the 2008 Planning Permission is a realistic fall 
back position.  The forecast demand for throughput show that it is likely that the 
35mppa cap would be reached during 2022-23 (see figure 4.13 of the ES below). 

Page 15Page 131



9.36 Looking forwards, the BTH (June 2018) includes at paragraph 1.4 a summary of 
the Department for Transport “UK Aviation Forecasts” (October 2017), paragraph 
1.3 of those forecasts makes clear that their “purpose … is primarily informing 
longer term strategic policy rather than providing detailed forecasts at each 
individual airport in the short term; the uncertainty reflected by future demand 
growth scenarios at the national level is compounded at the level of the individual 
airport”. 

9.37 Section 2 of the ANPS (July 2018) sets out overall level of need in particular 
between paragraphs 2.10 and 2.18 and addresses the alternatives at paragraphs 
2.21, 2.2 and 2.28. Paragraph 2.22 states that the Airports Commission noted 
that “the need for make best use of existing infrastructure would remain” and 2.28 
states that it is imperative to grow the domestic and international connectivity in 
the 10 years before a new runway at Heathrow was operational and that this 
would require more intensive use of existing airports.  

9.38 The Department for Transport “UK Forecasts” referred to in paragraph 1.4 of BTH 
(June 2018) commence at a baseline 2016 with 24mppa identified at Stansted 
(Table 10) and address forecasts at 10 year increments: 2030, 2040 and 2050 
but without intervening increments. Paragraph 1.4 states that “While the 
department aims to accurately reflect existing planning restrictions on the 
expansion of airports, the forecasts should not be considered a cap on the 
development of individual airports. In some circumstances, more recent airport 
specific data and forecasts might be used, in conjunction with additional relevant 
information, to inform planning decisions”.

9.39 MAG purchased Stansted Airport in 2013 and following that date it has recorded 
specific local information about it and seen rapid intensification: there has been 
an initial slow and recently a more rapid increase in passenger throughput. The 
Environmental Statement, Chapter 4, sets out Aviation Forecasts (February 
2018) in annual increments to 2028, by an independent aviation specialist: ICF 
Aviation Services Group. Passenger numbers increased from 17.8m in 2013 to 
24.3mppa in 2016. To the year ending July 2018, actual throughput was 
measured at 27mppa (7.3% up on the previous year) according to CAA data, 
being a higher percentage than the Department for Transport’s scenario 
forecasts. Data to 2016 is set out in Figure 4.5 in the Environmental Statement 
(see below).

Page 16Page 132



(Reproduced from page 4-7 of Environmental Statement Volume 1)
 
9.40 Aircraft sizes have also increased over the years, with the average passenger 

aircraft size being 184 seats at Stansted in 2016.  This had an average loading of 
87%, around 160 passengers per PATM.  This is an increase from 77% loading 
and 133 passengers per PATM since 2006.  PATMs in 2016 were approximately 
152,000 and CATMs were 14,000.

9.41 Forecasts were calculated assessing relationships between air travel demand 
and Gross Domestic Product (GDP).  The post-Brexit Oxford Economics’ central 
case was used.  Demand was then allocated to the London airports based on a 
historical base of 2016, local catchment, existing network, and price and 
operational considerations.  In terms of capacity, ES paragraph 4.7, bullet 1, 
notes that Heathrow is considered to be at capacity with no new runway being 
operational until 2030.  Paragraph 4.47 notes that Gatwick is expected to reach 
its capacity of 300,000 ATMs (currently at 277,000 in 2016 (ES), and at 286,000 
in June 2017 (Gatwick website)).  Luton is currently capped at 18mppa with 
throughput of approximately 14.5mppa in 2016.  London City airport is capped at 
6.5mppa (throughput of approximately 4.5mppa in 2016).  London Southend is 
assumed to be capped at 2mppa.  Passenger throughput at Southend declined in 
2016 to 875,549 from a previous high of 1.1mppa in 2014.

9.42 Figures 4.11 and 4.12 in the Environmental Statement sets out the passenger 
demand forecasts for the London airports.  Comparison between the two shows a 
level of unmet demand in the London area from 2022, assuming existing 
constraints remain in place.

Page 17Page 133



(Reproduced from page 4-13 of Environmental Statement Volume 1)

(Reproduced from page 4-14 of Environmental Statement Volume 1)

9.43 The expected growth is envisaged to be accommodated by larger planes with the 
potential for average loadings to be 170 passengers per ATM in comparison to 
160 at present.  This would be coupled with long-haul route development.  

9.44 The proposal includes the construction of a new RAT and RET and 9 additional 
aircraft stands.  Paragraphs 4.15-4.19 of the Planning Statement set out the 
reasons for the additional infrastructure.  

9.45 Principally, the RAT and RET provide facilities which would permit the 
optimisation of the runway.  The runway is capable of handling large, wide body 
aircraft but the majority of aircraft are smaller narrow body aircraft.  The layout of 
the runway does not provide for best use of the runway, requiring aircraft to have 
longer than necessary taxiing periods.  The additional RAT and RET would 

Page 18Page 134



enable aircraft to enter and exit the runway at more optimal points.  This would 
have additional benefits such as reduced fuel burn time, reduction in noise and 
pollution associated with that burn time and the taxiing movements.

9.46 The additional stands are required to provide for increased parking, typically 
overnight, in the busy summer periods.  This will enable more airport-based 
aircraft to be operational in the peak morning period.

9.47 Figures 4.13 and 4.14 from the Environmental Statement show the proposed 
forecasts for passenger growth and ATM forecasts.

(Reproduced from page 4-14 of Environmental Statement Volume 1)

 

(Reproduced from page 4-15 of Environmental Statement Volume 1)

Page 19Page 135



9.48 Figures 4.13 and 4.14 differ between 2016 and 2028 from the forecast trajectory 
between 2016 and 2030 of the Department for Transport “UK Aviation Forecasts” 
(October 2017). The ES compares, at paragraphs 4.65-4.70 of Chapter 4, its 
forecast with those for the airport of the Department.  The ES forecasting 
approach reflects paragraph 1.3 of the Department’s Forecasts which states that 
“at the airport level the department’s forecasts may also differ from local airport 
forecasts. The latter may be produced for different purposes and may be 
informed by specific commercial and local information – such information is 
particularly relevant in the short-term. For example, an airport might have 
reached an agreement with an airline to increase frequencies or routes”. As 
anticipated by the Department, the ES forecasts differ, as ES paragraph 4.69 
explains, due to differences in forecasting methodologies including the absence 
of short-term adjustments from the Department forecasts referred to in ES 
paragraph 4.49, such as route development. 

9.49 It is reasonable to consider that the ES and Figures above appropriately show 
the forecast growth of Stansted airport based on the local and commercial 
knowledge of the applicant. 

9.50 The NPPF (2018), paragraph 8 sets out the three mutually dependant objectives 
of sustainable development: economic; social; and environmental. Paragraph 
8(a) states that the economic objective includes identification and provision of 
infrastructure. Paragraph 80, requires that significant weight be placed on the 
need to support economic growth. BTH (June 2018), paragraph 1.29, requires 
that careful account be taken of all relevant considerations, particularly economic 
impacts.  

9.51 In addition to the forecasts addressed in the ES, ANPS (July 2018), Section 2, 
paragraphs 2.1-2.9, set out the overall importance of aviation to the UK economy. 
ES, Chapter 11, Socio-Economic Impacts, addresses the economic benefits from 
the application. In particular, between paragraphs 11.44-11.171. Table 11.14 
summarises the socio-economic impacts and includes: 

 an increased range and frequency of flights; enabling an additional 1.2 
million business passengers to travel through the airport and contribute to 
attractiveness of the area for inward investment; 

 enabling 2.2 million foreign leisure passengers to arrive through the airport 
and 4.6 million UK passengers to make leisure trips abroad. In-bound 
leisure passengers support about 13,00 jobs and would provide a GVA of 
about £336m in 2028; enabling 800 tonnes of cargo to be carried; 
employing 300 people to build the development (£23.4 GVA over 10 
months) and generating an additional 5,400 (and GVA of £357.3m) over the 
Do Minimum scenario. 

9.52 As set out in the BTH (June 2018) the making of best use of the existing runway 
capacity (here, of Stansted Airport) has to take account of relevant environmental 
considerations. This means that, within the NPPF (2018), the economic benefits 
of the proposals must be weighed against the environmental and social 
objectives.  In order to assess the environmental objective, the environmental 
impacts arising from the application are assessed in the accompanying 
Environmental Statement covering the principal environmental issues in respect 
of the proposals.  The remainder of this report will discuss each chapter of the 
ES.

Page 20Page 136



Approach of the Environmental Statement

9.53 As set out above, Regulation 4(5) of the Town and Country Planning 
(Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 requires the local 
planning authority to ensure they have, or have access as necessary to, sufficient 
expertise to examine the environmental statement. The expertise provided has 
been sufficient or the local planning authority to examine the environmental 
statement.  

9.54 The Environmental Statement (ES) assesses the environmental impacts of the 
proposals across a range of topics.  The approach of the ES is to consider the 
baseline of existing environmental conditions.  This is generally set at 2016 with 
slight variations depending on the availability of baseline data.

9.55 The ES considers how the baseline conditions may change over time before the 
proposed development is implemented.  Therefore, where possible, the existing 
baseline data has been extrapolated and modelled to identify the likely ‘projected 
baseline’ conditions in 2021 (the commencement date for construction) and 2023 
(the date at which 35mppa is projected to be reached).

9.56 The projected 35mppa baseline is referred to as the ‘Do Minimum’ scenario 
rather than ‘Do Nothing’ scenario.  This is because certain planned changes to 
the airport will occur prior to the 35mppa cap being reached in 2023, with or 
without the operational development to the existing runway and lifting of the 
existing annual passenger cap.  These planned developments will either be built 
out under the extant parts of the 2003 and 2008 planning permissions or 
implemented by the applicant in accordance with its permitted development rights 
under Class F of Part 8 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (England) Order 2015.  These developments include:

• New Arrivals Terminal (permitted 2017) – works anticipated to commence 
in 2019 with completion in summer 2020

• Echo apron and stands – granted under the 15mppa+ planning permission 
(reference UTT/1000/01/OP).  This last element has commenced and 
anticipated to be completed by late 2018

• Additional car parks – land for additional surface car parking exists on the 
south side of the airfield and there is future potential for multi-level parking 
on existing car parks.  One such example is the multi-level car park 
currently under construction in the Green short stay car park.

9.57 All planned permitted developments are assumed to be in place and operational 
by 2020.  Therefore, there will be no cumulative construction or other ‘in 
combination’ effects.  The year 2023 is envisaged as being the transitional year, 
the point at which the existing 35mppa cap is envisaged to be reached and the 
environmental impacts would then differ between the Do Minimum (35mppa) and 
development case (43mppa) scenarios.  Final assessment is made of impacts in 
2028, the year it is envisaged 43mppa would be reached.  The primary 
comparison to be made is between the ‘Do Minimum’ and the ‘development case’ 
in line with the assessment made by the Generation 1 planning inspector in his 
report of 14 January 2008.  The local planning authority is considering the 
impacts of the proposals over and above the permitted development, ie the 
difference between Do Minimum and the ‘development case’.  This is because 
the Do Minimum scenario already has planning permission and is expected to go 
ahead irrespective of the decision in respect on this application, and in light of the 
ES forecasts, reasonably represents a fall-back position.

Page 21Page 137



9.58 Table 2.3 (page 2-19) of the ES sets out the assumptions for existing baseline, 
construction baseline and the Do Minimum baseline.

2016
(Existing 
baseline)

2021
(Construction 
baseline)

2023
(Do Minimum 
baseline)

Total passengers (‘000s) 24,300 32,600 35,000
Passenger ATMs (‘000s) 152 199 213
Cargo AMTs (‘000s) 12 13 14
Other (‘000s) 16 19 19
Total Movements (‘000s) 181 231 247

9.59 Table 2.4 (page 2-20) sets out the summary key statistics between the Do 
Minimum and Development Case.

2023
Transitional Year

2028
Principal Assessment Year

Do Minimum 
Scenario

Development 
Case

Do Minimum 
Scenario

Development 
Case

Total passengers
(‘000s)

35,000 36,400 35,000 43,000

Passenger ATMs 
(‘000s)

213 219 212 253

Cargo ATMs 
(‘000s)

14 14 17 16

Other (‘000s) 19 20 20 5
Total Movements 
(‘000s)

247 253 249 274

9.60 Table 2.5 (page 2-22) sets out the Impact Magnitude Matrix which sets out how 
impacts are assessed.

Magnitude of effect or impactSensitivity/value 
of receptor High Medium Low Negligible
High Major Major Moderate Minor
Medium Major Moderate Minor Negligible
Low Moderate Minor Negligible Negligible
Negligible Minor Negligible Negligible Negligible

9.61 Table 2.6 sets out the significance criteria which determine the level of magnitude 
of effect or impact.

Page 22Page 138



Level of 
significance

Description

Major Very large or large change in environmental or socio-
economic conditions, which is irreversible and pronounced.  
Effects, both adverse and beneficial, which are likely to be 
important considerations at a national, regional or district 
level because they contribute to achieving national, regional 
or local objectives, or could result in exceedance of statutory 
objectives and/or breaches of legislation.

Major effects are deemed significant in the context of 
EIA.

Moderate Intermediate change in environmental or socio-economic 
conditions leading to measurable effects, both adverse and 
beneficial, which are likely to be important considerations at 
a local or district level.

Moderate effects are deemed significant in the context of 
EIA.

Minor Small change in environmental or socio-economic conditions.  
These effects may be raised as local issues but are unlikely 
to be of importance in the decision making process.

Minor effects are not normally deemed significant in the 
context of EIA.

Negligible No discernible change in environmental or socio-economic 
conditions.  An effect that is likely to have a negligible or 
neutral influence, irrespective of other effects.

Negligible effects are not significant in the context of 
EIA.

Development Programme and Construction Environmental Management

9.62 Physical infrastructure works are required as part of the proposals.  These 
consist of the construction of a Rapid Access Taxiway (RAT) and Rapid Exit 
Taxiway (RET) and nine aircraft stands, six in the middle part of the airfield 
(known as the Yankee Remote Stands) and three to the north of the existing 
Echo Stands.  The total area of land required for the development is around 7 
hectares and this will be made impermeable by the development.  The ES sets 
out the timetable for construction as being a 12 month period starting in 2021 and 
to be completed by mid-2022.  

9.63 Physical infrastructure works result in short-term impacts which would include 
noise and disturbance in respect of vehicular movements and the construction 
works.  Environmental impacts will arise as a result of noise, dust, vibration and 
waste materials.  Due to the nature of the works these will need to be undertaken 
at night when sensitivities are higher.  The environmental impacts will be 
considered in each of the topic chapters.

Page 23Page 139



9.64 The issue of the additional infrastructure has been raised in many of the 
representations.  These claim that the additional infrastructure works result in the 
proposals being contrary to the government’s support for best use of existing 
runways as this infrastructure would increase airport capacity.  

9.65 The 2008 Planning Permission for 35mppa (UTT/0717/06/FUL) included a RAT 
and RET for 25mppa and an additional RAT and RET being required for runway 
operations at 35mppa.  Whilst the 25mppa infrastructure has been constructed, 
the RAT and RET proposed for 35mppa, located at the northern end of the 
runway, have not been carried out.  Therefore, the current application proposals 
do not increase the area of infrastructure required for optimised use of the 
runway, rather they propose to relocate the RAT and RET to enable more 
efficient operations better suited to the way the airport operates today.

B Surface Access and Transport

9.66 Chapter 6 of the ES assesses the environmental impacts of surface access.  This 
chapter needs to be read in conjunction with the accompanying Transport 
Assessment (Volume 3 of the ES) and the updates and additional information 
contained in the Consultation Response and Clarifications document produced in 
July 2018.

9.67 Adopted Uttlesford Local Plan Policy GEN1 sets out the requirements for 
development in terms of access.  Essentially, these are the requirement for the 
main road network to be able to accommodate the traffic flows safely, design 
mustn’t impact on other road users, and the proposals encourage movement by 
means other than the private car.  The policy is generally consistent with the 
NPPF, although there is more emphasis in the NPPF to sustainable transport 
modes whilst acknowledging that there will be differences in opportunities 
between rural and urban areas.  The NPPF is more positively worded in seeking 
to minimise the need to travel and maximise cyclist and pedestrian and public 
transport opportunities.  This policy should therefore be given moderate weight.

9.68 Policy GEN6 requires development proposals to make appropriate provision for 
supporting infrastructure, including transport provision. This policy is generally 
consistent with the NPPF, but the latter recognises the need for viability of 
development to be considered.  In addition, there is a requirement to take into 
account the Community Infrastructure Regulations.  The policy should be given 
moderate weight. 

9.69 The provisions for infrastructure can be made by the applicant or, where 
cumulative impacts result in mitigation being required, by financial contribution.  
All provisions (including financial contributions) are required to meet all the tests 
as set out in the CIL Regulations and paragraph 56 of the NPPF (2018).  These 
tests are:

a) Necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;
b) Directly related to the development; and
c) Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.

9.70 The NPPF (2018) has an overall presumption in favour of sustainable 
development.  Paragraph 8 sets out the parameters for assessing if development 
is sustainable.  Section 9 promotes sustainable transport.  Paragraph 103 
requires that the planning system actively manage patterns of growth in support 

Page 24Page 140



of the objectives identified in paragraph 102 (a)-(e).  Measures include 
opportunities to promote first walking, cycling and then facilitating access to 
public transport, and to ensure the environmental impacts of traffic and transport 
infrastructure are identified, assessed and taken into account, including 
appropriate opportunities for avoiding and mitigating any adverse effects, and for 
net environmental gains (see paragraphs 108 and 110).  In addition to economic 
impacts, BTH (June 2018), paragraph 1.29, requires that careful account is taken 
of all relevant considerations, particularly environmental impacts and proposed 
mitigations.

9.71 Section 5 of the ANPS (July 2018) sets out the assessment of impacts in relation 
to the Northwest Runway at Heathrow.  The assessments will not be the same for 
development proposals at Stansted Airport, but the principles in relation to the 
assessments will be similar and therefore it is appropriate to consider the 
approach set out in that document.

9.72 Paragraph 5.5 of the ANPS states:

“The Government’s objective for surface access is to ensure that access to the 
airport by road, rail and public transport is high quality, efficient and reliable for 
passengers, freight operators and airport workers who use transport on a daily 
basis.  The Government also wishes to see the number of journeys made to 
airports by sustainable modes of transport maximised as much as possible.  This 
should be delivered in a way that minimises congestion and environmental 
impacts, for example on air quality.”

9.73 Alternative means of transport to the private car and minimising environmental 
impacts are fundamental principles of sustainable development.  As set out in the 
Transport Assessment (Volume 3 of the ES), in 2017 around 51.2% of air 
passengers used public transport, and around 27% of staff (paragraph 2.66).  
Table 4.2 (as amended in the Addendum) shows that the public transport mode 
share for air passengers has been consistently around the 49-51% mark since 
2010.  This has been roughly evenly split between rail and coach services with 
fluctuations and variations depending on marketing strategies by the operators.  
Since 2000, the most significant changes have been the reduction in the private 
car/hire car/taxi mode share for air passengers from about 66% to 49% (2017) 
and an increase in the bus/coach mode share from 7% to 21% (also 2017).

9.74 The Surface Access Chapter of the ES assesses the potential impacts of 
operational and construction traffic and access to the airport by road, including 
public transport, and rail.  The baseline is 2016 with survey data setting out the 
current position.  Three scenarios are then considered:

 2021/22 – 12 month construction period
 2028 Do Minimum (35mppa) scenario; and
 2028 Development Case (43mppa) 

9.75 Assessments include trip generation, impacts on highways including impacts on 
pedestrians due to severance, delay, amenity, fear and intimidation and 
accidents and safety.  Impacts on public safety and walking and cycling are also 
undertaken.

9.76 Assumptions have been made as set out on page 6-19 of the ES.  These include 
public transport mode share remaining constant for air passengers, a 10% modal 

Page 25Page 141



shift to public transport by employees and retention of existing passenger and 
employee origins for future years to take account of modelling uncertainty.

9.77 Assessments have been made in respect of the strategic highway network (M11 
and A120), airport roads, and local roads.  As agreed in principle with ECC, 
highway peaks of 07:00 – 08:00 and 17:00 – 18:00 and an airport peak of 16:00 
– 17:00 have been assessed.  The AM peak arrival period for passengers is 
05:00 – 06:00.  In addition, assessments have been undertaken in respect of the 
rail network.  The peak hours on the rail network are 07:00 – 10:00 and 16:00 – 
19:00, and an assessment daily from 00:00 to 23:59.

Surface Access Assumptions and Scene Setting

9.78 Operational phase surface access impacts are assessed in two scenarios – the 
Do Minimum whereby passenger numbers are expected to reach 35mppa in 
2023 (already granted consent) and then remain constant.  The Development 
Case scenario sees passenger numbers continuing to increase from 2023 to 
43mppa in 2028.

9.79 The Transport Assessment which informs Chapter 6 of the ES is based on  
summer operations (March to October), which is normal modelling for airport 
assessments.

9.80 Current runway operations at the airport have a peak of departures in the 06:00 – 
09:00 time slot.  There is a smaller peak between 10:00 – 14:00 and then again 
between 16:00 – 20:00.  Arrivals have peaks and troughs throughout the day 
centred around 07:00, 11:00, 15:00; 17:00 – 18:00 and 22:00.  Figure 4.3 in the 
Transport Assessment shows the 2016 Daily Flight Profiles.

(Reproduced from Environmental Statement Volume 3, page 29)

9.81 Figure 4.4 shows the same data with the passenger arrival and departures 
superimposed.  NB, in Figure 4.4 the information shown in Figure 4.3 is the 
lighter colour red and blue.  Figure 4.4 shows the 2-hour “lead in” time needed for 
departing passengers and the 1-hour “lag” time for arriving passengers.

Page 26Page 142



(Reproduced from Environmental Statement Volume 3, page 30)

9.82 Table 4.5 shows the average daily profile for surface airport arrivals and 
departures in 2016.

(Reproduced from Environmental Statement Volume 3, page 31)

9.83 Table 4.7, page 32, sets out the average typical daily passenger surface arrival 
and departure profile on an hourly basis.  The assumption, based on typical 
average, is that the number of arrivals and departures are the same.  An average 
day will see 66,684 passengers passing through the airport.  Of these, 33,342 
arriving/departing by car, including taxi, 18,004 by train and 15,338 by coach.  

Page 27Page 143



Taking into account “lead” and “lag” times, peak arrivals are 04:00 – 06:00 and 
peak departures are after midnight.

9.84 In terms of employees, baseline data was established via staff travel survey data.  
This established there were 10,963 employees in 2015.  Transport modes were 
64.9% by private car, 5.7% car passenger, 26.9% public transport and 2.5% were 
classified as other.  A small number of staff do cycle to work.

9.85 Historical data shows that car use has fallen from 87.6% in 2002/3 with a steady 
decline to the present rate of 64.9%.  Car passengers have fluctuated between a 
low of 4.1% in 2002/3 to a high of 7.1% in 2011.  Public transport use has 
increased from 7% in 2002/3 to its current level.

9.86 Employees predominantly come from Essex, Hertfordshire and Greater London.  
Around 24.5% live in East Hertfordshire, 18.3% in Uttlesford, 15% in Braintree 
District, and 7.4% in Harlow. 

9.87 Working patterns indicate that around 66% of employees work 5 days a week 
and 25.2% work 3-4 days a week.  Figure 4.6 shows the average day surface 
arrivals and departure profile for employees.  The data from the 2015 survey 
were applied to the employee population data to derive a consistent 2016 
baseline.

(Reproduced from Environmental Statement Volume 3, page 36)

9.88 This demonstrates that the peak employee arrivals at the airport is 08:00 – 09:00, 
peak departures is 17:00 – 18:00, and the peak combined is 12:00 – 13:00 
reflecting shift change over times.

9.89 Miscellaneous activities within the airport boundary have also been included 
within the transport data.  These include, but are not limited to,

 External visitors, eg Enterprise House
 Visitors to Aerozone

Page 28Page 144



 Non-airport related users of hotel facilities, eg conferences, use of 
bars/restaurants/leisure facilities

 Stansted Express season ticket holders who park in the Green short stay 
car park and commute by rail

 Minibus services from off-airport car park operators
 Service and delivery trips
 Cargo

Highways 

9.90 Impacts on highways have been considered in the ES and the accompanying 
Transport Assessment and Transport Assessment Addendum.  These consider 
the impacts of the proposals on the strategic and local road network, including J8 
of the M11.

9.91 The baseline assessment year is 2016 and conditions have been established by 
means of desktop research, site visits and a range of traffic surveys and publicly 
available data.  Traffic counts are a mix of commissioned Automated Traffic 
Counts (ATCs) supplied from ECC and Manual Classified Counts (MCCs 
conducted by Intelligent Data Collection in 2015, HE TRIS data traffic counts 
(2016) Annual Average Daily Traffic Flow (AADT); and ATC and MCC conducted 
by Nation Wide Data Collection (2017) on behalf of the applicant.

9.92 TEMPro (v7.2) has been used to estimate growth rates from the 2016 baseline.  
In addition, 2016 passenger and employee information for Stansted Airport was 
added to account for the growth of airport traffic, not captured using TEMPro 
v7.2.  Cumulative schemes also include the development of Northside which has 
not yet had a planning application submitted.

9.93 Assessments have been made of AADT flows for an extensive external road 
network, including M11 J8.  In addition, peak hour analysis has been undertaken 
with a four hour AM peak of 06:00-10:00 and a PM peak of 15:00-19:00.

9.94 Average car occupancy rates of 1.6 passengers per vehicle have been used.  
The ES Addendum notes that the average rates were based on a 
misinterpretation of survey data and the actual average loading should be 1.8.  
The revised figure has not been used to adjust the figures as it is considered that 
the lower figure of 1.6 gives a more robust worst case scenario.

9.95 Flows on the local and strategic road networks have been assessed for the 
07:00-08:00 AM peak hour and the 17:00-18:00 PM peak hour.  This data is set 
out in Tables 7.9 and 7.10 respectively in the Transport Assessment (pages 91-
92).  It will be noted that the % increase between 2016 to 2028mppa is 
significantly larger than the % in the final column.  This is because the tables 
assess the impacts from baseline to the consented 35mppa.  The final column 
assesses the difference between the consented 35mppa and the proposed 
development of 43mppa.

Page 29Page 145



Table 7.9: Traffic Impact – AM Network Peak (07:00-08:00)

Link

2016 
Existing 
Baseline

2028
(35mppa)

% 
increase 
(2016 to 

2028 
35mppa)

2028
(43mppa)

% 
increase 

(2028 
35mppa 
to 2028 

43mppa)
Parsonage Road 233 281 20.6% 282 0.3%
Stansted services 458 600 31.0% 624 0.4%
Bamber’s Green 47 55 17.0% 55 0.0%
Thremhall Avenue 1273 1749 37.4% 1954 11.7%
Molehill Green 
Road

139 163 17.3% 163 0.0%

Church Road (B) 332 361 8.7% 368 1.9%
Round Coppice 
Road

533 1050 97.0% 1069 1.8%

Hall Road 202 238 17.8% 238 0.0%
A120 (east of 
Stansted Airport)

2916 3610 23.8% 3669 1.6%

A120 (east of M11 
J8)

4171 5228 25.3% 5433 3.9%

Table 7.10: Traffic Impact – PM Network Peak (17:00-18:00)

Link

2016 
Existing 
Baseline

2028
(35mppa)

% 
increase 
(2016 to 

2028 
35mppa)

2028
(43mppa)

% 
increase 

(2028 
35mppa 
to 2028 

43mppa)
Parsonage Road 368 432 17.4% 435 0.7%
Stansted services 604 623 3.1% 687 10.3%
Bamber’s Green 79 93 17.7% 93 0.0%
Thremhall Avenue 1786 2509 40.5% 2958 17.9%
Molehill Green 
Road

180 212 17.8% 212 0.0%

Church Road (B) 479 637 33.0% 647 1.6%
Round Coppice 
Road

686 1172 70.8% 1227 4.7%

Hall Road 291 355 22.0% 355 0.0%
A120 (east of 
Stansted Airport)

3725 4379 17.6% 4497 2.7%

A120 (east of M11 
J8)

5329 5818 9.2% 6266 7.7%

9.96 In terms of the strategic highway network, flows to and from the airport have 
been analysed and the percentage increase in traffic flows for the AM and PM 
peak are shown in Tables 7.11 and 7.13 respectively (pages 93-94).

Page 30Page 146



Table 7.11: Percentage Increase in Junction Link Traffic Flows (07:00-08:00)

% Increase
Road Link 2016 baseline to 

2028 35mppa
2028 35mppa to 
2028 43mppa

M11 Junction 8 Motorway Services 20% 3%
A120 West (Bishop’s Stortford Bypass) 24% 1%
M11 North of J8 18% 1%
A120 East of J8 23% 3%
B1256 Dunmow Road 18% 0%
M11 South of J8 25% 2%
Priory Wood West 51% 3%
Priory Wood East 17% 0%
Round Coppice Road South 50% 2%
Long Border Road 18% 0%
Round Coppice Road North 35% 2%

Table 7.13 Percentage Increase in Junction Link Traffic Flows (17:00-18:00)

% Increase
Road Link 2016 baseline to 

2028 35mppa
2028 35mppa to 
2028 43mppa

M11 Junction 8 Motorway Services 12% 9%
A120 West (Bishop’s Stortford 
Bypass)

20% 2%

M11 North of J8 15% 4%
A120 East of J8 15% 12%
B1256 Dunmow Road 18% 0%
M11 South of J8 11% 11%
Priory Wood West 17% 12%
Priory Wood East 18% 1%
Round Coppice Road South 37% 6%
Long Border Road 18% 0%
Round Coppice Road North 23% 6%

9.97 Employee growth is projected to grow from a 2016 baseline of 11,600 to 13,200 
in 2028 in a Do Minimum scenario (35mppa) and 16,200 in 2028 in the 
Development Case scenario (43mppa).

9.98 The forecast increase in passenger numbers would have impacts on both the 
strategic and local road network.  The responsibility for these falls to Highways 
England and Essex County Council respectively.  There are also potential 
impacts on the local road network in Hertfordshire for which Hertfordshire County 
Council is responsible.

9.99 Sensitivity testing has been carried out in respect of the strategic road network, in 
particular the M11 junction 8 (J8).  This was required to better understand the 
impact of airport growth from 35mppa to 43mppa and whether the proposed 
mitigation was appropriate against a background of proposed growth in the 
Uttlesford Local Plan.

9.100 The testing indicated that performance at the junction is due to deteriorate with or 
without the airport expansion to 43mppa.  The applicant’s proposed J8 mitigation 
measures (for the Interim+ scenario) would improve network performance at 

Page 31Page 147



43mppa compared to the 2033 ‘do minimum’ scenario with 35mppa and with 
ECC’s Interim J8 scheme in place.  However, the modelling confirms that the 
network is currently close to capacity, and will be over capacity in 2033.  The 
sensitivity testing also indicates that minor adjustments to the modelled 
assumptions have significant impacts, particularly to the west of J8 and to the 
B1256.  There is, therefore, a need for the mitigation measures.

9.101 The key locations on the Strategic Road Network (SRN) most likely to experience 
severe adverse impacts as a result of the airport’s proposed expansion are M11 
junction 8 interchange and the A120 Priory Wood roundabout which is the next 
junction a short distance east of the M11. The A120 to the west of the M11 is a 
local highway managed by Essex County Council (ECC), and forms a bypass of 
Bishop’s Stortford.  Birchanger Motorway Service Area is served directly off the 
M11 J8 gyratory.

9.102 ECC are currently preparing to implement a major improvement to a short section 
of the A120 west of M11 J8 to support economic growth.  These improvements 
are likely to be able to accommodate some of the traffic growth arising from the 
airport expansion beyond the current 35mppa limit. However, they are not 
sufficient to cater for 43mppa. Further improvements are therefore necessary to 
address the potentially severe impacts on the SRN at M11 J8 and at the A120 
Priory Wood roundabout. A mitigation scheme was therefore submitted by the 
applicant which, in terms of capacity and safety should be adequate to address 
these impacts.

9.103 The mitigation works relate to additional carriageway widening on key 
approach/exit arms to/from the M11 J8 signalised roundabout and a series of 
amendments to lane allocations and limited physical adjustment designed to 
enhance the capacity of the junction, along with the separate signalisation of the 
westbound entry of Priory Wood Roundabout.  HE has concluded that the 
additional capacity achieved through these amendments provide mitigation that 
more than compensates for the additional traffic anticipated to arise from the 
proposed increase in operations of the airport.  

9.104 In parallel with the ECC scheme and the airport’s additional improvements, calls 
have been made for more extensive improvements to the M11 to be included in a 
future Roads Investment Strategy (RIS). The next RIS covering the period 2020 
to 2025 is currently being prepared on behalf of the Department for Transport 
(DfT). Study work is still progressing to support the development of the next RIS, 
which is not due to be published by DfT until the latter part of 2019, so it is not yet 
known whether a scheme to upgrade the M11 or its junctions could be included. 
However, the possibility of such a scheme being included has had to be 
acknowledged in the context of this application.

9.105 In light of the above, HE are minded therefore to recommend conditions to be 
attached to any planning permission. These relate to delivery of the specific set 
of mitigation improvements to the SRN as proposed by the applicants. In 
proposing these conditions, HE are, however, mindful of the need to adopt a 
flexible approach that will enable the sensible coordination or adaptation of works 
for the benefit both of users of the road network and the airport, and to respond 
to factors that are currently unknown.

9.106 Such an approach is especially relevant to future RIS programmes and 
timetables. As such, while the recommended conditions relate to specific 
improvement plans HE’s aim is principally to achieve the required outcomes 

Page 32Page 148



within an appropriate timetable but to allow either: (i) for the proposals to be 
reviewed and, if appropriate, revised to better achieve the outcomes in the light of 
emerging conditions; or (ii) for the possibility of the proposals to be superseded 
by another more extensive scheme or schemes that would achieve the same 
outcomes. In the event of the latter HE believe a financial contribution by the 
applicant equivalent to the cost of the proposed mitigation scheme would 
therefore be appropriate

9.107 The majority of the impact would be on the strategic road network, the M11 and 
A120.  However, employees are likely to increase impacts on local roads and 
those roads closest to the airport would experience the greatest of those impacts.  

9.108 ECC carried out sensitivity testing on local roads, focussing on Takeley because 
it has the highest concentration of employees close to the airport.  The sensitivity 
testing resulted in higher figures attributed to the growth from 35mppa to 
43mppa.  However, this resulted in an estimated impact of 1.7%, which ECC 
consider is acceptable.

9.109 In addition to the J8 measures as summarised above, mitigation measures would 
be required for the local roads to resolve issues at potential hot spots.  ECC 
recommends a local road fund of £800,000 be set up, which could be secured by 
way of s106 Legal Obligation.    The mechanism for allocating the funding would 
be the Stansted Airport Transport Forum.  The Highways Working Group of the 
SATF takes an overview of network safety and access by road, bicycle and on 
foot, and is chaired by Essex County Council.

9.110 Alongside this, monitoring of the airport road network is recommended to ensure 
that early action is taken if congestion on the airport network itself occurs, as this 
could impact harmfully on the strategic or local road network.  Such monitoring 
already takes place by the applicant because they are responsible for this 
element of the highway network.

9.111 In terms of the Hertfordshire local road network, HCC is satisfied that the 
technical work demonstrates that the proposal should not have a significant 
impact upon the wider Hertfordshire highway network.  However, there are 
concerns about uncertainties given the significant time frame for growth and the 
fact that unforeseen impacts could arise.

9.112 The Local Roads Fund currently has a radius of 5 miles, which includes local 
roads in the Hertfordshire area, and therefore, the mitigation proposed above is 
considered to be appropriate to cover the concerns of HCC.

Bus/Coach Services

9.113 In terms of coach and bus services, these are operated by private companies.  At 
present there are 6 routes operated under franchise arrangements by National 
Express and Airport Bus Express to and from various destinations in London.  In 
addition, there are 6 other routes operated under a regional franchise by National 
Express to Cambridge/Thetford/Norwich, Heathrow/Gatwick/Brighton, 
Luton/Oxford, Ipswich/Colchester/Heathrow, Luton/Coventry/Birmingham, and 
Cambridge/Nottingham/Liverpool.  There is a night shuttle bus serving Golders 
Green, Tottenham Hale, Edmonton Green and Enfield which provides Airport 
Travel Card holders with a free service that arrives at the airport at 03:40 in 
readiness for a 04:00 start.

Page 33Page 149



9.114 Coach demand in respect of arrivals has been between 150,000 and 200,000 
passengers per month and a similar demand for departures.  

9.115 There are 12 local bus services operating via the Airport.  These are to Basildon, 
Southend, Chelmsford, Bishop’s Stortford, Saffron Walden, Colchester and 
Harlow Town.  These provide a total of 204 bus services per week day, 199 on 
Saturday and 118 on Sunday. 

9.116 During the construction period it is envisaged that there may be a small increase 
in the number of workers in the local area using public transport.  However, this is 
assessed as having a negligible impact on the bus and rail network.

9.117 In terms of the operational phase, the predicted growth in bus and coach travel 
demand is set out in Table 6.26 in the ES (page 6-47).

07:00-08:00 17:00-18:00 05:00-06:00 16:00-17:00
Inbound
(air 
depart)

Outbound 
(air arrival)

Inbound
(air 
depart)

Outbound 
(air arrival)

Inbound
(air 
depart)

Outbound 
(air arrival)

Inbound
(air 
depart)

Outbound 
(air 
arrival)

2028 
35mppa

509 285 632 627 1250 32 729 862

2028 
43mppa

749 208 823 811 1446 31 897 1078

Change 240 -77 191 184 198 -1 168 219
% 
change

47.2% -27.0% 30.2% 29.3% 15.8% -3.1% 23.0% 25.4%

9.118 Bus and coach patronage/loading data is not readily available and as such an 
assessment of capacity has not been undertaken.  However, increases in 
demand are unlikely to adversely affect bus and coach services.  Indeed, it is 
likely to act  as a catalyst for improving services with operators increasing 
services to meet demand.  On a quarterly basis, bus and coach operators attend 
commercially confidential meetings with local authority and airport staff as part of 
the work of the Transport Forum’s Bus and Coach Working Group.  At these 
meetings, existing services and potential improvements and enhancements are 
discussed and evaluated.  These can include rebranding, fresh marketing, new 
buses or coaches, timetable enhancements, route extensions and new routes.  
Subject to a proven business case, funding may be available from the £2m pot 
committed by the airport operator under the Generation 1 unilateral undertaking 
signed in 2008, or from the car park levy.

9.119 Increases in demand for services may require improvements to be carried out to 
the bus/coach station at the Airport.  These improvements are likely to include 
extra bays, revised bay allocation management (in terms of managing queue 
interactions) and weatherproofing for passengers.  These can be delivered as 
part of the mitigation measures secured by way of s106 Legal Obligation, and 
overseen by the Bus and Coach Working Group.  

9.120 ECC has suggested new or additional routes to specific locations, and whilst 
these aspirations are welcomed, it will be necessary for there to be a viable 
business case for bus/coach operators to deliver the services.  These can be 
explored further through the SATF’s Bus and Coach Working Group, which ECC 
chairs.  The Working Group is also attended by officers from UDC and Herts CC.

9.121 HCC and EHDC have also identified key routes that they would wish to see 
delivered, in particular a new east-west express coach service linking St Albans, 

Page 34Page 150



Hatfield, Stevenage, Welwyn Garden City, Hertford, Ware and Stansted Airport.  
Again, the aspiration is welcomed.  However, employment data clearly identifies 
that there is no significant demand for bus routes from these locations with very 
low numbers of employees coming from the Hertfordshire area outside of 
Bishop’s Stortford, which is well served by public transport links to the airport.  
This proposal could be explored further through the Bus and Coach Working 
Group.

9.122 A key funding mechanism for SATF is the Transport Levy which is raised from 
car parking transactions at the airport (currently 25p per passenger parking 
transaction and £10 per annum for staff parking).

9.123 It is proposed to extend the Transport Levy to the Kiss and Fly transactions at 
10p per transaction.  The combined income from the levy is predicted to be 
around £12m of funding to 2028, increasing to £20m in 2033 (assuming 
operations remain at 43mppa).  This is in addition to the Bus Fund, a ring fenced 
sum of money.  This was originally £2m as part of the 2008 Unilateral 
Undertaking.  

9.124 A third source of funding for the bus network comes from the sale of airport travel 
cards to staff.  This is predicted to increase to £1.4m per year at peak 
employment.  This is a minimum increase assuming the same levels of staff 
public transport use and no future improvements.  This would generate in at least 
£15.5m worth of revenue generated for bus operators from airport staff alone.

9.125 The Bus and Coach Working Group is proposed to be refreshed and the terms of 
reference updated.  This would enable flexibility in the delivery of sustainable 
transport options given the changes in technology and approaches to delivery of 
services.  Approximately £1m of the original Bus Fund has been spent in 
improving services associated with passenger growth from around 17mppa to 
26mppa.  The applicant is proposing to top up the ring fenced bus fund to £2m.

9.126 The principles of funding and the refresh of the Bus and Coach Working Group 
and terms of reference are accepted by the consultees.  However, negotiations 
are still on-going regarding the appropriate level of funding to be secured by way 
of the s106 Legal Obligation.  

Walking and Cycling

9.127 Given the rural location of the airport there are limited options for accessing the 
airport by walking and cycling, especially by passengers.  In 2015 the percentage 
of employees walking to work was 0.6% and those cycling 0.4%.  

9.128 STAL currently operates a Staff Travel Plan which forms part of the legal 
obligations in respect of the development of the Airport.  This is proposed to 
continue and would form part of the obligations in a new s106 Legal Obligation if 
planning permission was to be granted.

9.129 STAL promotes the use of walking and cycling for employees, a source of 
funding for which is the car park levy.  Stansted Airport’s Cycling and Walking 
Strategy (2016) forms part of the overarching Sustainable Development Plan 
(SDP) for the airport.  It includes the following measures:

 Improve cycle access from the west and north to Bishop’s Stortford, 
Birchanger, Stansted Mountfitchet and Elsenham

Page 35Page 151



 Cycle crossing facilities on J8 of M11 motorway
 Extend the Sawbridgeworth – Bishop’s Stortford link; and
 Storage, shower and secure parking at key locations on site, including 

Northside.

9.130 Given the relatively low walk and cycle mode share, only modest increases in 
these trips between the 2028 Do Minimum and Development Case scenarios are 
considered feasible and any improvements to infrastructure and quality of access 
will occur gradually over time through the implementation of the walking and 
cycling strategy measures.  These measures will be promoted and overseen by 
the Highways Working Group.

9.131 ECC Highways acknowledges that cycling will contribute a small proportion of the 
modal share, but consider there is a potential to increase the number of 
employees accessing the airport by bike, particularly to the south, east and west 
of the airport.  They consider that a Walking and Cycling Strategy should be 
produced as part of the Airport Surface Access Strategy.  This should include 
improving the airport highway network for cyclists and provide funding to support 
the implementation of cycle routes to key villages where there is a concentration 
of employees, such as Takeley.

9.132 Similarly, HCC has identified routes from various locations in Bishop’s Stortford, 
and an ambitious project linking the airport to Bishop’s Stortford, 
Sawbridgeworth, Harlow, Gilston, Ware and Hoddesdon.  These schemes have 
not been demonstrated by HCC as being required in direct connection with the 
airport expansion, particularly given the low percentages of staff cycling to work.  

9.133 Mitigation measures are best delivered in line with the recommendations of ECC 
with a Walking and Cycling Strategy.  The funding and delivery of such measures 
identified as being required would be via SATF, funded by the Transport Levy.

Rail

9.134 Baseline data provided by Abellio Greater Anglia (AGA) in respect of rail services 
indicate that an average daily loading of passengers from Stansted Airport 
towards London Liverpool Street was 10,011.  From London Liverpool Street to 
Stansted Airport average daily loadings were 11,329 passengers per day.  
Assessments have been carried out over 24 hour periods, with emphasis on 
peak periods of 07:00 – 10:00 and 16:00 – 19:00.

9.135 Current rolling stock is in the form of two train types, Class 379 (2011) and 317/5.  
The latter is made up of 8 carriages (2 x 4-car units) whilst the former can consist 
of 4, 8 or 12 carriages.  Class 317/5 has a total capacity of 964 passengers, 
made up of 584 seated and 380 standing.  Class 379 (2011) have capacities of 
345, 690 and 1035 respectively.  Four carriage trains have a seating capacity of 
209 and 136 standing.

Page 36Page 152



9.136 Table 6.8 sets out the baseline train loadings for 2016 on the Stansted Express.

Depart Liverpool Street – 
Stansted Airport

Depart Stansted Airport – 
Liverpool Street

AM 
Peak

PM 
Peak

Daily AM 
Peak

PM 
Peak

Daily

Line loading (seating 
capacity only) 23% 94% 40% 75% 37% 39%
Line loading (total 
capacity incl. 
standing)

14% 57% 24% 45% 22% 23%

9.137 The assessment is carried out on the basis that there will be no physical 
infrastructure constructed during the assessment period, apart from completion of 
the third track between Tottenham Hale and Angel Road (Meridian Water).  
Works to lay the third track are currently underway.  The Anglian Route Study 
(2016) produced by Network Rail indicated that based on current rolling stock 
there is expected to be a capacity gap of approximately 1000 passengers by 
2023 and 2100 by 2043 in the peak hour on the Cambridge and Stansted 
services into Liverpool Street.

9.138 The study concluded that lengthening two of the Cambridge and Stansted 
services from eight carriages to 12 carriages between 08:00 and 08:59 would 
meet the capacity gap by the end of Control Period 6 (CP6: 2019 – 2024).  This 
has resulted in the franchisee investing in a new fleet of Stansted Express trains 
from 2019 which will all be 12 carriages long.

9.139 In respect of CrossCountry services from Stansted Airport to Birmingham New 
Street, these services run at a frequency of 1 per hour.  Loading data was 
supplied by DfT in the form of average loading on each service (not specifically in 
relation to Stansted Airport) and is set out in Table 6.9.

Arrive at Cambridge from 
Stansted Airport

Depart from Cambridge to 
Stansted Airport

AM 
Peak

PM 
Peak

Daily AM 
Peak

PM 
Peak

Daily

Line loading 
(seating capacity 
only)

39% 54% 29% 33% 77% 35%

Line loading (total 
capacity incl. 
standing)

32% 43% 23% 27% 62% 28%

9.140 AGA has also provided train loading data for the off-peak Stansted to Cambridge 
service which runs half-hourly to the Cross Country service.  The data shows that 
these services operate with significant spare seating capacity during the day.  
Under the new franchise, this service will be extended to Norwich once the new 
“bi-mode” trains are delivered.

9.141 The ES set out a growth rate of 1.5% across the rail network, as agreed with 
Network Rail.  An assumption of 26% rail mode share was made in the ES and 
Network Rail requested a stress test of 35% mode share.  Tables 3.1 and 3.2 in 
Annex 6 – Transport Assessment Addendum set out the line loadings for the 
Stansted Airport – London Liverpool Street line using the stress test mode share.

Page 37Page 153



Table 3.1 – Forecast Stansted Express Line Loadings (35% Rail Mode Share) – 
Seating Capacity

Depart Liverpool Street – 
Stansted Airport

Depart Stansted Airport – 
Liverpool Street

AM Peak PM 
Peak

Daily AM Peak PM Peak Daily

2028 (35mppa) 16% 68% 29% 56% 26% 28%
2028 (43mppa) 23% 73% 34% 56% 32% 32%
2028 (43mppa) 
Sensitivity Test

29% 86% 41% 66% 43% 41%

Table 3.2 – Forecast Stansted Express Line Loadings (35% Rail Mode Share) – 
Total Capacity (incl. standing)

Depart Liverpool Street – 
Stansted Airport

Depart Stansted Airport – 
Liverpool Street

AM 
Peak

PM 
Peak

Daily AM 
Peak

PM 
Peak

Daily

2028 (35mppa) 11% 48% 20% 39% 18% 19%
2028 (43mppa) 16% 51% 24% 39% 23% 22%
2028 (43mppa) 
Sensitivity Test

20% 60% 29% 46% 30% 29%

9.142 Paragraph 3.20 of Annex 6 does point out that presenting the information in this 
format does dilute the impact of the airport’s increased passenger throughput on 
train capacity, particularly on the busiest services.  Hourly data presented to 
Network Rail (not included in the application due to sensitivity of the data) show 
that demand may exceed seating availability on four Stansted Express services 
heading northbound during the PM peak, should airport passenger rail mode 
share rise to 35% by 2028 with the growth of the airport to 43mppa.  Whilst this 
would impact on seating availability, there would be sufficient standing capacity 
to accommodate the passenger numbers.

9.143 As an indicator of rail demand to/from the airport, ticket sales information, as set 
out in Table 3.3 in Annex 6, indicates that around 25% of rail journeys from 
London Liverpool Street are to Stansted Airport, and around 42% from Stansted 
Airport to London Liverpool Street.  Around 9% of ticket sales in both directions 
relate to journeys from Tottenham Hale to or from Stansted Airport.  In 2018 only 
1% of journeys were from Stratford.  Other train journeys from other stations 
accounted for 5-6% of ticket sales.

9.144 The increase in demand for Stansted Express services for the proposals when 
compared to the Do Minimum scenario is shown as being 8% in demand in both 
directions.  This would be of minor negative significance.  In terms of impacts on 
the Stansted to Cambridge route, the increase in demand is calculated to be an 
additional 177 inbound daily passengers and 177 outbound daily passengers in 
the Development Case scenario.  This would have a negligible effect on services 
on this line.

9.145 Impacts on interchanging at Tottenham Hale Station have been considered, 
although no detail in respect of platform capacity has been supplied to the 

Page 38Page 154



applicant.  An assessment of the daily demand via the interchange to and from 
the underground station and services to/from Stansted Airport has been made.  
The following table is a summary of Tables 3.5 – 3.7 of Annex 6, which assesses 
the 2016 baseline against the 2028 Do Minimum and Development Case 
sensitivity tests.

AM Peak PM Peak Daily
To 
underground

From 
underground

To 
underground

From 
underground

To 
underground

From 
underground

2016 
baseline

2% 8% 2% 6% 14% 24%

2028 Do 
Minimum

4% 10% 9% 8% 18% 30%

2028 
Development 
Case

4% 16% 11% 9% 22% 37%

9.146 The difference between the 2028 Do Minimum and Development Case sensitivity 
test scenarios results in there being 5 less passengers going to the underground 
and 23 more passengers coming from the underground in the AM peak.  In the 
PM peak the numbers are 11 extra to and 15 extra from the underground.  The 
daily figures are 141 to and 204 from the underground.  This is viewed as being a 
negligible impact on Tottenham Hale Station.

9.147 It is noted that representations have been received in respect of existing capacity 
issues at Tottenham Hale Station, including concerns raised by Network Rail.  
However, existing problems at the station are not a matter for this application to 
resolve.  In respect of future growth, Network Rail confirms that the additional 
information in respect of this issue has been considered and they have no 
objections to the proposals.

9.148 Capacity at Stansted Airport rail station is deemed to be sufficient to meet future 
rail demand.  Platform 1 can accommodate two trains simultaneously in 
formations of up to 12 carriages and platform 2 can accommodate four carriage 
trains, currently used by Cross Country services.

9.149 Network Rail has been consulted on the proposals and they have confirmed that 
they are satisfied with the findings in the ES and the additional information 
submitted.  They accept the conclusions that higher capacity rolling stock on the 
London services can accommodate passenger growth from the airport in the 
timescale assessed.  They do not object to the application, but do note that 
increased rail passengers resulting from increased air passengers would mean 
that longer term rail capacity schemes on the West Anglia Main Line are likely to 
be needed sooner.  These are capacity schemes that would be required with or 
without the expansion of the airport.

Construction Impacts

9.150 Paragraph 6.142 of the ES sets out that approximately 27,700 construction 
vehicles (two-way) are estimated over the 12 month construction period.  The 
average and peak daily construction traffic flows would be around 100 and 200 
respectively.  HGV movements are not expected to exceed a peak of around 20 
two-way movements per hour at any point of the day.

9.151 Construction vehicles would enter and exit the airport via Long Border Road and 
Bassingbourn Roundabout directly from the A120.  The proposed construction 

Page 39Page 155



pound would be located close to the CEMEX concrete plant off Long Border 
Road.  

9.152 Construction work would be undertaken during the day and night with night 
activities being limited to Monday to Friday.  The exception will be the works 
required for the RAT and RET which will require 96 six hour periods on 48 
consecutive Saturday/Sunday nights during the construction period when the 
runway will need to be closed.

9.153 Construction vehicles are estimated to increase traffic flows by around 0.7% and 
this would be of negligible significance.  As such, this is expected to have a 
negligible impact on pedestrian movement, capacity, severance, delay, fear and 
intimation and amenity.  The same negligible impacts are predicted for cyclists 
and public transport.

9.154 The impact of construction traffic has been assessed by ECC Highways who 
have raised no objections in respect of this issue.

C Air Noise

9.155 Chapter 7 of the ES assesses the impacts of air noise.  This chapter needs to be 
read in conjunction with the accompanying noise assessment set out in Appendix 
7 (Volume 2 of the ES) and the updates and additional information contained in 
Annex 3 of the Consultation Response and Clarifications document produced in 
July 2018.

9.156 Air noise is produced by aircraft on departure from the start of the departure roll 
along the runway and, on arrival, it ceases at the point of departure onto a 
taxiway.  All taxiing is defined as ground noise, as is all noise generated by 
aircraft and servicing equipment on stands.

9.157 Adopted Uttlesford Local Plan Policy ENV11 states that noise generating 
development will not be permitted if it would be liable to affect adversely the 
reasonable occupation of existing or proposed noise sensitive development 
nearby, unless the need for the development outweighs the degree of noise 
generated.  This policy is generally consistent with the NPPF but the NPPF is 
more specific with regard to existing businesses recognising the need to balance 
the needs of business and the protection of existing amenities.  The policy 
therefore carries moderate weight.

9.158 Paragraph 170(e) of the NPPF (2018) states that development should contribute 
to and enhance the environment by preventing new and existing development 
from contributing to, being put at unacceptable risk from, or being adversely 
affected by, unacceptable levels of noise pollution.  Paragraph 180(a) states that 
planning decisions should ensure that new development is appropriate for its 
location taking account of likely effects as well as the potential sensitivity of the 
site or wider area to impacts that could arise.  In doing so, they should mitigate 
and reduce to a minimum potential adverse impacts resulting from noise from 
new development – and avoid noise giving rise to significant adverse impacts on 
health and the quality of life.

9.159 In March 2010 DEFRA published the Noise Policy Statement for England 
(NPSE).  This sets out the aims of the Noise Policy as:

Page 40Page 156



“Through the effective management and control of environmental, neighbour and 
neighbourhood noise within the context of Government policy on sustainable 
development: 

 avoid significant adverse impacts on health and quality of life; 

 mitigate and minimise adverse impacts on health and quality of life; and 

 where possible, contribute to the improvement of health and quality of 
life.”

9.160 It emphasises the need to balance the consideration of the economic and social 
benefit of the activity under examination with proper consideration of the adverse 
environmental effects, including the impact of noise on health and quality of life. 
This should avoid noise being treated in isolation in any particular situation, i.e. 
not focussing solely on the noise impact without taking into account other related 
factors.

9.161 Section 5 of the ANPS (July 2018) sets out the assessment of impacts in relation 
to the Northwest Runway at Heathrow.  The assessments will not be the same for 
development proposals at Stansted Airport, but the principles in relation to the 
assessments will be similar and therefore it is appropriate to consider the 
approach set out in the document.

9.162 Paragraph 5.44 identifies that the impact of noise from airport expansion is a key 
concern for communities affected.  High exposure to noise is an annoyance, can 
disturb sleep, and can also affect people’s health.  Paragraph 5.45 notes that it is 
not just the number of aircraft overhead that results in aircraft noise but also 
engine technologies and airframe design, the paths the aircraft take when 
approaching and departing from the airport, and the way in which the aircraft are 
flown.

9.163 There is recognition that over recent decades there have been reductions in 
aviation noise (air and ground) due to technological and operational 
improvements and that this trend is expected to continue.  It notes that new 
generation aircraft coming into service have a noise footprint typically 50% 
smaller on departure than the ones they are replacing, and at least 30% smaller 
on arrival.

9.164 The government recognises that evidence has shown that people’s sensitivity to 
noise has increased in recent years, and there has been growing evidence that 
exposure to high levels of aircraft noise can adversely affect people’s health.

9.165 Paragraph 5.47 states that the government wants to strike a fair balance between 
the negative impacts of noise and the positive impacts of flights, which reflects 
the aims of the NPSE.

9.166 There is no European or national legislation which sets legally binding limits on 
aviation noise emissions. Stansted Airport, as a noise-designated airport, is 
required to produce annual noise exposure maps.  The International Civil 
Aviation Organisation introduced the concept of a ‘Balanced Approach’ to noise 
management (resolution A33/7).  This is given legal effect in the UK through EU 
Regulation 598/2014 – the establishment of rules and procedures with regard to 
the introduction of noise-related operating restrictions at Union airports within a 
Balanced Approach.  This has four pillars:

Page 41Page 157



i) Reduction of noise at source
ii) Land use planning and management
iii) Operational procedures
iv) Operational restrictions

9.167 The Balanced Approach operates by a preference for measures within Pillar i) 
before Pillar ii) and so on.  Operational restrictions include the current night flight 
restrictions and are a last resort when measures within Pillars i) – iii) are deemed 
insufficient mitigation.

9.168 BTH (June 2018), paragraph 1.22 identifies that it is important that communities 
surrounding airports seeking to make best use of their existing runways share in 
the economic benefits of this, and that adverse impacts such as noise are 
mitigated where possible.  Paragraph 1.29 states that careful account be taken of 
such relevant considerations.

9.169 Chapter 3 of the Aviation Policy Framework (2013) relates to noise and other 
local environmental impacts.  Whilst this document predates the NPPF and the 
ANPS it is still the government’s current policy and it also sets out, at paragraph 
3.3, the aspiration to “strike a fair balance between the negative impacts of noise 
(on health, amenity (quality of life) and productivity) and the positive economic 
impacts of flights”.  It expects the benefits of aviation growth to be shared 
between the aviation industry and local communities.  This means that the 
industry must continue to reduce and mitigate noise as airport capacity grows.  
As noise levels fall with technology improvements the aviation industry should be 
expected to share the benefits from these improvements.

9.170 Paragraph 3.12 sets out the policy of the APF to “limit and, where possible, 
reduce the number of people in the UK significantly affected by aircraft noise, as 
part of a policy of sharing benefits of noise reduction with industry.”  The 
government’s recently revised objective for aviation noise as set out in its Air 
Navigation Guidance 2017 (to the CAA) is to “limit and where possible reduce the 
number of people in the UK significantly affected by adverse impacts from aircraft 
noise”.  There is no more detailed definition of the terms used.

9.171 Paragraph 3.21 of the APF identifies that some people consider themselves 
annoyed by aircraft noise even though they live some distance from an airport in 
locations where aircraft are at relatively high altitudes, other people living closer 
to an airport seem to be tolerant of aircraft noise and may choose to live closer to 
the airport to be near to employment or to benefit from the travel opportunities.

9.172 It is clear from the representations received that people living some distance from 
the airport consider themselves to be adversely affected by noise from aircraft.  
This is despite them being a considerable distance outside of the 57dB 16hrLeq 
noise contour, or even the 51dB 16hrLeq.  Annoyance at distance can be 
heightened by increased overflying against a relatively tranquil background.

9.173 Noise in respect of Stansted Airport is controlled and monitored under a variety of 
conditions and legislation, including legislation outside of the scope of the 
planning system.  For example, the Aerodromes (Noise Restrictions) (Rules and 
Procedures) Regulations 2003 requires the airport operator to produce strategic 
noise maps and to adopt a Noise Action Plan (NAP) approved by Defra, to be 
updated every five years.  In respect of night noise, this is controlled by the Night 
flight restrictions at Heathrow, Gatwick and Stansted.  This sets a noise quota 
and flights quota and the current regulations were set in October 2017 and run to 

Page 42Page 158



October 2022.  The operation of the night flight restrictions is separate to this 
planning application and is not affected by it.  DfT consultation on new post-2022 
restrictions is expected to start in the second half of 2019.

9.174 In terms of controlling day time noise levels, a condition on the 2008 Planning 
Permission sets a maximum area of 33.9km2 for the daytime noise contour of 
57dB Laeq,16h.  This is monitored by the strategic noise maps mentioned in 
paragraph 9.173above.  In addition, condition ATM1 limits the number of air 
transport movements (ATMs) to 264,000 per 12 calendar month period, of which 
no more than 243,500 shall be passenger ATMs (PATMs) and no more than 
20,500 shall be Cargo ATMs (CATMs).  There is a further limit of not more than 
10,000 ATMs per 12 calendar month period for aircraft taking off or landing which 
are not carrying passengers or cargo, or non-scheduled air transport services 
where the passenger seating capacity does not exceed 10 (known as General 
Aviation (GA)).

9.175 For the purposes of the ES aircraft noise modelling has been produced by the 
CAA’s Environmental Research and Consultancy Department (ERCD), using 
their Aircraft Noise Contour (ANCON) model (current version 2.3).  The ERCD is 
a specialist body within the CAA with national and international expertise on the 
assessment of aircraft noise.  They produce noise contours for the designated 
London airports, and they generated the noise contours used by the Airports 
Commission.  Their work is robust, authoritative and also impartial.

9.176 Aircraft noise modelling in the UK commonly uses the aggregate daily 16-hour 
noise levels experienced over the busy 92-day summer period between 16 June 
and 15 September, when effects are likely to be the most acutely felt.  However, 
it is increasingly accepted that noise is not experienced in an averaged manner 
and whilst the use of LAeq 16hr remains government policy (reinforced by SoNA 
2014), other metrics such as those that measure actual numbers of overflights 
are being used as supplementary indicators.

9.177 Further comparative modelling has been undertaken for a typical busy summer 
day in recognition of non-uniform responses to aggregation.  The baseline is 
modelled against the 2028 Do Minimum and Development Case scenarios.  This 
modelling does not indicate any materially different effects over the aggregate 
modelling outcomes for either daytime or night-time movements.

9.178 All assessments of potential impacts are made on the basis of assumptions 
made on the likely fleet mix.  These assumptions have been challenged by those 
making representations, including SSE.  The Council’s expert advisors (BAP) 
note that fleet sensitivity tests have been carried out and that changes to the rate 
of the uptake of new variant aircraft of up to 10% will be insignificant.  They 
consider that there is no reason to distrust the tests and that the assumptions 
appear reasonable.

9.179 The NPSE sets out the principles for the effective management of noise.  Using 
NPSE descriptions, Table 7.3 of the ES (page 7-13) sets out the Airborne aircraft 
noise effect levels.

Page 43Page 159



Noise level (dB)Effect 
level * Daytime Night-time

Typical Action

NOEL LAeq, 16h ≤ 51 LAeq, 8h ≤ 45 None required
LOAEL 51 < LAeq, 16h ≤ 

63
45 < LAeq, 8h ≤ 
54

Identify, mitigate and 
reduce to a minimum

SOAEL 63 < LAeq, 16h ≤ 
69

54 < LAeq, 8h ≤ 
63

Avoid

UAEL LAeq, 16h ≥ 63 LAeq, 8h ≥ 63 Prevent
* NOEL – No observed level of effect
* LOAEL – Lowest observed adverse effect level
* SOAEL – Significant observed adverse effect level
* UAEL – Unacceptable adverse effect level

9.180 For the purposes of this planning application, the air noise study area is 
approximately 25km x 30km which contains all dwellings and other noise 
sensitive properties forecast to experience noise at or above LOAEL.

9.181 In terms of perception, the Council’s Environmental Health Manager (Protection) 
advises that it is widely accepted that a 1dB increase in sound pressure level 
would not be perceptible.  A 3dB increase would be just perceptible as an 
apparent change in loudness.  So although a 3dB increase is a doubling of sound 
pressure, this increase is only just perceptible to the human ear.  It should be 
noted that a 5dB increase will be clearly noticeable and a 10dB increase is 
typically considered twice as loud, so 85dB will sound twice as loud as 75dB.

9.182 A range of assessments have been carried out to assess potential noise impacts.  
These include the traditional 57dB LAeq, 16hr noise contours, plus 54dB and 
51dB contours to reflect increased intolerance at lower noise levels.  In addition, 
new assessments of Nx values (number above) have been produced.  These 
identify the number of incidents above a certain noise level, for example the N65 
identifies the number of times 65dB LAmax is exceeded.  However, whilst it is 
known that noise levels will be at least 65dB LAmax these assessments do not 
establish the maximum noise level.  Therefore, those falling within these areas 
could be affected by noise levels of 65.1dB LAmax or in excess of 85dB LAmax 
for example.

9.183 Different sensitivity criteria have been used for different types of receptor and 
these are set out in Table 7.4, reproduced below.  

Page 44Page 160



Value of Δ* denoting significanceReceptor Significance Criteria
Negligible Minor Moderate Major

Day (07:00 – 23:00) 
Change in LAeq, 16h 
≥ΔdB where outdoor LAeq, 
16h >51dB

Dwellings 
and other 
residential 
buildings

Healthcare 
facilities

Night (23:00 – 07:00)
Change in LAeq, 8h ≥ΔdB 
where outdoor LAeq, 8h 
>45dB and SEL > 90dBA

< 3dB ≥ 3dB ≥ 6dB ≥ 9dB

Education 
facilities

Day (07:00 – 23:00)
Change in LAeq, 16h 
≥ΔdB where outdoor LAeq, 
16h >51dB or outdoor 
LAmax >75dB

< 3dB ≥ 3dB ≥ 6dB ≥ 9dB

Places of 
worship

Community 
facilities

Day (07:00 – 23:00)
Change in LAeq, 16h 
≥ΔdB where outdoor LAeq, 
16h >51dB

< 3dB ≥ 3dB ≥ 6dB ≥ 9dB

*Δ (delta) represents the change in noise level

9.184 Within the air noise study area 20 schools, 5 healthcare facilities, 8 places of 
worship and 4 community facilities have been identified (see Table 7.5 in Chapter 
7 of the ES).

9.185 Baseline data for 2016 has been established by way of attended daytime and 
night time noise surveys and unattended noise surveys in various locations 
including towns and villages within the vicinity of the airport and further afield 
such as Thaxted, Great Easton and Stebbing.

9.186 Stansted Airport has one runway which is designated as either Runway 04 (for 
operations in a north easterly direction) or Runway 22 (for operations in a south 
westerly direction).  Based on 20 year average operations the assessments are 
carried out on the basis of 73% of operations on Runway 22 and 27% on Runway 
04.

9.187 Assessments are carried out in respect of 2016 (baseline), 2023 Do Minimum 
and Development Case (36.4mppa) scenarios, 2028 Do Minimum and 
Development Case scenarios, and an additional assessment at 2024 
Development Case (38.1mppa) scenario as this is considered to be the peak 
noise year.

9.188 The 57dB LAeq, 16h noise contours for the scenarios are as follows:

Scenario Size of 57dB LAeq, 16h contour *
2016 Baseline 24.3km2
2023 Do Minimum 30.3km2
2023 Development Case 31.2km2
2024 Development Case 32.0km2
2028 Do Minimum 25.5km2
2028 Development Case 28.7km2
* Permitted noise contour as per 2008 consent is 33.9km2.

Page 45Page 161



9.189 In terms of population affected by noise in accordance with the NPSE 
assessment criteria, Tables 7.14 and 7.15 give details of numbers of people 
affected by the proposals.

Table 7.14: Population within Daytime Observed Adverse Effect Level contours*

dB LAeq, 16hYear
LOAEL: 51 SOAEL: 63 UAEL: 69

2016 Baseline 12,600 200 0
2023 Do Minimum 16,944 384 0
2023 Development 
Case

17,634 384 0

2028 Do Minimum 11,884 284 0
2028 Development 
Case

15,336 334 0

25+ Permission 15,480 484 0
* All changes in numbers of people within LOAEL and SOAEL categories to be 
viewed in the context of noise level changes between cases being 
imperceptible.

Table 7.15 Population within Night Time Observed Adverse Effect Level 
contours*

dB LAeq, 8hYear
LOAEL: 45 SOAEL: 54 UAEL: 63

2016 Baseline 17,800 1050 0
2023 Do Minimum 24,830 2334 <50
2023 Development 
Case

25,430 2834 <50

2028 Do Minimum 22,630 2084 <50
2028 Development 
Case

21,980 2734 0

25+ Permission 15,980 1384 0
* All changes in numbers of people within LOAEL and SOAEL categories to be 
viewed in the context of noise level changes between cases being 
imperceptible.
(The increase in number in the 2028 Development Case for SOAEL: 54 shows 
the disproportionate geographical effect of an increased area of summer night 
contour over Thaxted and as shown in Figure 7.9 and paragraphs 7.234-5 of the 
ES)

9.190 These tables indicate that there will be an increase in population during the 
daytime above the LOAEL when compared to the Do Minimum Scenario, being 
15,336 in the Development Case scenario compared to 11,884 in the Do 
Minimum.  In terms of night time the figures are 22,630 in the DM scenario and 
21,980 in the DC scenario, a reduction.

9.191 Whilst the LOAEL is considered to be the level above which adverse effects on 
health and quality of life can be detected, the ES argues that the noise level 
changes are not perceptible as they would be <1dB (between 0.5 and 0.6dB), 
and as such the increases would have a negligible effect.  

Page 46Page 162



9.192 In respect of night time impacts, the DC scenario is predicted to impact on a 
lower number of people (<3%) and this is argued to be a negligible impact in a 
positive sense.  In terms of SOAEL, the noise level changes are also 
imperceptible and the change in population exposed to SOAEL is a minor effect.  
This is considered to be the case for both daytime and night time, despite the fact 
that the population affected by night time noise would increase by <33%.  

9.193 Further analysis of the SOAEL night time contours indicate that the increase 
arises from the contour affecting a slightly larger area of Thaxted.  The noise 
increases would result from an additional 3 flights between the DM and DC cases 
and noise levels would increase between 0.5 and 0.6dB, which is considered to 
be an imperceptible change.

9.194 It is acknowledged that noise from aircraft overflying isn’t perceived as an 
average but rather a number of specific noisy events.  In order to understand 
these impacts Nx (number above) contours have been produced.  These indicate 
the number of events at which a certain noise level would be reached.  As 
explained earlier, these only recognise the number of events above that noise 
level but do not identify the maximum noise level.  Therefore, properties within 
these contours are likely to be experiencing different noise levels depending on 
their position in relation to the noise source.

9.195 The daytime Nx contour is N65, the number of overflights that exceed 65 dB(A).  
The night time Nx contour is N60, the number of overflights that exceed 60 
dB(A).  These are produced at values of 25, 50, 100 and 200 movements per 
day.  These are equivalent to:

 200:  13 overflights per hour, or one every 5 minutes;
 100:  6 overflights per hour, or one every 10 minutes;
 50:  3 overflights per hour, or one every 20 minutes; and
 25:  1.5 overflights per hour, or one every 40 minutes

9.196 In the DC scenario there would be 72 additional movements during the day (712 
between 07:00 and 23:00) compared to the DM scenario (640 between 07:00 
and 23:00).  The 2016 Baseline gives rise to contour areas for N65 25 and 50 
values which are larger than those for either of the 2028 DC or DM scenarios.  It 
is only at N65 values of 100 and 200 that the 2028 contours extend to greater 
areas than those of the 2016 Baseline Year.  This is because in 2028 the areas 
closest to the runway will be experiencing increased numbers of overflights at 
65dB(A) or above.  

9.197 The night time overflights analysis indicates that there would be little difference 
between the DM and DC scenarios.  In 2016 there were 82 night time 
movements on a peak summer night.  This is expected to increase to 104 and 
107 in 2028 for the DM and DC scenarios.  As previously discussed, night time 
flights are outside the scope of the planning system and are subject to 
government controls.  However, the difference between the DM and DC 
scenarios is negligible.  This is because in 2028 the full effect of the night flight 
restrictions are assumed to bite irrespective of whether planning permission is 
granted for the Development Case.

9.198 In terms of non-residential properties, the principal area of concern is educational 
facilities, an issue raised in the representations received.  Analysis indicates that 
at the majority of schools the internal LAmax is not expected to exceed 60 dB 
LAmax with open windows (allowing for a 12 dB reduction from external free field 

Page 47Page 163



level through an open window), due to the noise benefits associated with new 
generation, quieter aircraft.  Four schools would experience arrival and/or 
departure overflights at a level exceeding 72dB LAmax, namely:

 Howe Green School
 Spellbrook Primary School
 The Leventhorpe School
 Mandeville Primary School

9.199 In practice, the primary cause of noise exceedances above the recommended 
internal level of 60 dB LAmax is departures and arrivals by the B737-800.  These 
occur currently and will do so in the future, irrespective of this application.  The 
application however would permit some additional movements, over and above 
the DM case in 2028.  For the  B737-800 and similar aircraft types, the 
application would allow around one additional movement per hour, over and 
above what is forecast under the DM case in 2028, assuming a worst case 100% 
single mode runway operation.  This is significantly less than forecast in the 
previous 25+ mppa application.  The replacement of this type of aircraft over time 
by the B737Max should alleviate this effect.  However, the B737Max on arrival is 
expected to produce maximum noise levels slightly higher than recommended at 
Spellbrook Primary School (73dB LAmax).

9.200 ECC has raised concerns about the potential for noise breaching the noise 
threshold level of 55dB LAeq30 on any school site.  It hasn’t been clarified as to 
whether this is an internal or external measurement, but the assumption has 
been taken that it is an internal one.  Where this level is breached ECC would 
require a noise consultant to be employed to review the planning application 
against the DfE’s “Building Bulletin 93: Acoustic Design of Schools – 
Performance Standards” to formulate mitigation measures that could be 
incorporated into s106 Legal Obligation.  However, it should be noted that these 
standards are for new education facilities and not for retrofitting.

9.201 The findings of the ES are generally accepted by the Council’s Environmental 
Health Manager and the consultants BAP.  This has included consideration of the 
proposed mitigation scheme which would be a revised and updated version of 
the current Sound Insulation Grant Scheme (SIGS).  It has been confirmed by the 
applicant that all of the potentially affected population within the 55dB Lnight 
contour for the 2028 DC operations would be included as per current World 
Health Organisation night noise guidelines.

9.202 Mitigation measures are already in place to minimise noise impacts and these 
would continue.  These include:

 A daytime noise contour with a maximum area of 33.9km2
 Conditions restricting the number of ATMS per annum, currently controlled 

by types of ATMS
 Director’s Notices relating to the use of Air Start units, Ground Power Units, 

air conditioning units and other ground servicing equipment
 A Noise Action Plan
 Sustainable Development Plan
 Sound Insulation Grant Scheme

9.203 These mitigation measures are proposed to be retained and improved, 
particularly in respect of the SIGS as described in the previous section of this 

Page 48Page 164



report.  The applicant also refers to the Night Noise Surcharges and Noise 
Penalty Limits as mitigation for ground noise.

9.204 The current SIGS is a mitigation measure contained in the current legal 
obligation.  This offers assistance with the cost of moving for those households 
within the 69dB LAeq, 16h contour.  It also offers to pay 50% of the total cost of 
acoustic insulation for dwellings exposed to noise levels in excess of:

 63dB LAeq, 16h;
 57dB LAeq, 8h (night time); and
 90dB(A) SEL departure footprint for the noisiest aircraft (QC/2) operating 

at night (23:30 to 06:00)

9.205 The current scheme covers 1088 properties, of which 648 have taken up the 
option and benefitted from insulation.  The revised and updated scheme, which 
can be secured by way of a s106 Legal Obligation, proposes to remove the 
requirement for the householder to contribute financially to the cost of insulation 
works; will be a three-tiered offer, to target greatest support to those who are 
most impacted with increased grant payments.  The qualification criteria are set 
out in Table 7.24 (page 7-72).

Noise Impact Noise Contour Grant Maximum
Upper 69 and 66 dB LAeq, 16h £10,000
Middle 63 and 60 dB LAeq, 16h £8,000
Lower 57 dB LAeq, 16h/N65 200/ 90 dBA SEL*

600m distance/55 dB LAeq, 16h ground 
noise

£5,000

* 90 dB(A) SEL footprint for the noisiest aircraft operating at night (23:00 to 
06:00)

9.206 This revised mitigation scheme would be available to 50 properties in the upper 
category, 400 in the medium and 1600 in the lower categories.  In addition, 5 
schools, 2 healthcare facilities, 8 places of worship (7 if Ebenezer Chapel is no 
longer to be used as a church) and 3 community facilities would be eligible, 
unlike under the current scheme.

9.207 There may be practical reasons as to why SIGS may not be appropriate 
mitigation for an educational facility.  Therefore, alternative mitigation measures 
may be required, which would require engagement with the relevant bodies to 
identify any appropriate measures.  These could be secured by way of an 
appropriately worded condition or s106 Legal Obligation if planning permission 
were to be granted.

9.208 The applicant operates a noise penalty scheme, the limits of which are set by DfT 
as part of the airport’s designation under the Civil Aviation Act 1982.  Subject to 
consultation with stakeholders and agreement with DfT, the scheme would be 
tightened.  Table 7.22 sets out the existing and proposed departure noise limits.

Page 49Page 165



Noise limit: (dB(A))When Times
Current Proposed

Day 07:00 to 23:00 94 89
Day Shoulder Period 06:00 to 07:00 89 84
Night Shoulder Period 23:00 to 23:30 89 84
Night 23:30 to 06:00 87 84

9.209 The fining structure would remain as current practice, as set out in Table 7.23.

Period Time Noise Limit Fine ≤3 dB 
above limit

Additional fine 
>3 dB, per 
dB(A) or part

Daytime 07:00 to 
23:00

89 dB(A) £1000 £250

Night time 23:00 to 
07:00

84 dB(A) £1000 £1000

9.210 The fines would be paid into the Stansted Airport Community Trust Fund which 
would be given over to community projects.  This is discussed in further detail 
under Chapter 14.  The operation of the scheme and the fund allocation 
mechanism can be secured by s106 Legal Obligation if planning permission is 
granted.

9.211 The principle of the mitigation scheme as currently existing and proposed, is in 
line with the principles of the APF which seeks to ensure that future growth in 
aviation shares the benefits with local communities.  It is also a measure whereby 
noise levels are reduced and financial mitigation is provided to those 
communities where the noise limits are exceeded.

9.212 Overall, it is reasonable to consider that the assessment methodology, approach 
and level of detail contained in the ES is satisfactory.  The ES is comprehensive 
and UDC’s consultants advise that they have no doubts over its integrity.  The ES 
demonstrates that the proposed noise impacts should not be materially different 
between the DM and DC scenarios.  Therefore, it can reasonably be concluded 
there are no grounds to object to the proposed application on noise impact 
grounds, subject to securing appropriate mitigation by means of conditions and/or 
s106 Legal Obligation.

D Ground Noise

9.213 Chapter 8 of the ES assesses the impacts of ground noise.  This chapter needs 
to be read in conjunction with the accompanying ground noise assessment set 
out in Appendix 8.1 (Volume 2 of the ES).

9.214 Paragraphs 9.157 to 159 above set out the policy position with regards to noise.

9.215 This chapter assesses the impacts of the temporary construction period noise as 
well as the permanent operational noise.  The principal sources of ground noise 
are:

 Aircraft taxiing or holding with main engines in operation at any point 
between the parking stand and the point at which the aircraft commences 
its departure roll (start of roll) or exits the runway on arrival.  This includes 

Page 50Page 166



engine start-up and shut down when parked on the stand and all holding 
on the taxiways and aprons;

 Aircraft auxiliary power units (APUs) for supplying cabin air and electrical 
power, and other aircraft services mainly when the main engines are not 
operating;

 Mobile ground power units (GPUs) which supply the required electrical 
power to the aircraft and other equipment such as PCA units that supply 
pre-conditioned air during turnarounds when fixed electrical ground power 
(FEGP) is not available;

 Aircraft engine ground run (EGR) tests; and
 Fixed plant and equipment

9.216 Due to controls in place regarding the use of GPUs, plus due to the nominal 
noise impact arising from fixed plant and equipment which is subject to noise 
attenuation where required, these sources of noise are not considered as part of 
calculations of the overall ground noise impact.

9.217 Ground noise has been assessed in a similar way as air noise in that the LAeq, 
16h metric has been used for daytime noise between 07:00 and 23:00, and the 
LAeq, 8h metric has been used for night time noise between 23:00 and 07:00.  
The same predicted aircraft movements and fleet mix have been used for 
assessing potential impacts in respect of ground noise.  This includes an 
aggregated typical day of operations based on the 92 day summer period 
referred to in the air noise section.

9.218 Forecast ground noise levels have been compared to:

 The background noise levels prevailing at any assessment position in the 
absence of noise due to ground activities at the airport

 Threshold levels that reflect the onset of community annoyance to aircraft 
ground noise, ie 55 dB LAeq, 16h for daytime and 45 dB LAeq, 8h for 
night time

9.219 Key assumptions include all of the permitted 15 stands on Echo Apron E being 
operational in 2023 in both the DM and DC scenarios, and also in 2028 DM 
scenario.  The 2028 DC scenario assumes that the additional 3 stands proposed 
on Echo Apron will also be in use.  Echo Apron is located to the west of the bund 
west of Molehill Green.  The proposed stands at Yankee Apron would be used for 
overnight parking of home-based towed aircraft and would not require the use of 
APUs.  These stands are located towards the centre of the airfield and their use 
should have a negligible effect on overall ground noise levels.

9.220 Noise certification levels relate to airborne aircraft and noise levels for ground 
operations are not measured.  As such the ERCD confirm that it is appropriate to 
predict ground noise levels on the basis of departure noise levels.  The ground 
noise study area is approximately 8km x 8km, much smaller than the air noise 
study area because aircraft engines are at lower power and ground noise is more 
readily attenuated such as by natural screening.

9.221 Noise assessments have been carried out in respect of 9 locations and 
background noise levels have been established with a mix of attended and 
unattended daytime and night time surveys.

Page 51Page 167



9.222 Tables 8.9 and 8.10 set out the calculated noise levels for daytime and night time 
at the monitoring points.  For ease of reference, the case officer has added an 
extra column to the right end of the two tables below to indicate the difference 
between 2016 baseline and the 2028 DC scenario.

Table 8.9: Calculated daytime levels at various points

Daytime, LAeq, 16hReceptor 
location 25+Full 

capacity
2016 
baseline

DM 
2023

DC 
2023

DM 
2028

DC 
2028

Baseline 
v 2028 
DC

P1 – Molehill 
Green

56.7 53.4 55.7 55.8 55.4 56.4 +3

P2 – Gaunts End 56.2 53.6 55.3 55.4 54.9 55.8 +2.2
P3 – Tye Green 56.2 54.2 55.4 55.6 54.8 55.5 +1.3
P4 – Ash Pub 54.8 54.1 55.1 55.3 54.5 52.1 -2
P5 – Bury Lodge 53.5 53.6 54.5 54.7 54.0 48.7 -4.9
P6 – Warmans 
Farm

49.9 48.9 50.0 50.2 49.4 47.9 -1

P7 - Takeley 46.3 44.3 45.4 45.6 44.9 45.6 +1.3
P8 - Elsenham 44.8 42.8 44.0 44.2 43.5 44.1 +1.3
P9 – Brick End 44.8 42.3 43.8 44.0 43.4 44.3 +2

Table 8.10: Calculated night time levels at various points

Night time, LAeq, 8hReceptor 
location 25+Full 

capacity
2016 
baseline

DM 
2023

DC 
2023

DM 
2028

DC 
2028

Baseline 
v 2028 
DC

P1 – Molehill 
Green

51.5 49.9 52.1 52.3 52.3 52.5 +2.6

P2 – Gaunts End 51.0 50.1 51.7 51.9 51.8 51.9 +1.8
P3 – Tye Green 51.1 50.9 51.7 51.9 51.7 51.6 +0.7
P4 – Ash Pub 49.6 50.4 51.1 51.4 51.1 48.2 -2.2
P5 – Bury Lodge 48.3 49.7 50.5 50.7 50.5 44.8 -4.9
P6 – Warmans 
Farm

44.8 45.4 46.1 46.3 46.1 44.0 -1.4

P7 - Takeley 41.1 41.0 41.8 42.0 41.8 41.7 +0.7
P8 - Elsenham 39.6 39.3 40.4 40.6 40.4 40.2 +0.9
P9 – Brick End 39.5 38.8 40.3 40.5 40.4 40.4 +1.6

9.223 The above tables indicate that in 2016 baseline none of the receptors 
experienced daytime noise levels above the threshold of 55dB LAeq 16h, 
although Tye Green and the Ash Public House are approaching this level at 54.2 
and 54.1dB respectively.  In terms of night time noise, receptors P1-P6 
experienced noise levels exceeding the threshold of 45dB LAeq 8h.

9.224 The location which would experience the greatest increase in noise levels is 
Molehill Green with an increase of 3dB for daytime noise and 2.6dB for night time 
noise in the DC scenario compared to the baseline.  However, it should be noted 
that an increase in noise levels would also arise in the DM 2028 scenario and 
that the difference in noise levels at this location would be 1dB in daytime and 
0.2dB in night time.

9.225 In the DC scenario three receptors would exceed the daytime 55dB LAeq, 16h 
threshold, compared to just one receptor in the DM scenario.  In the DM scenario 

Page 52Page 168



Molehill Green (P1) would experience a noise level of 0.4dB above the threshold.  
However, in the DC scenario this noise level would be 1.4dB above the 
threshold.  In addition, Gaunts End (P2) would experience noise levels 0.8dB 
above the threshold and Tye Green (P3) 0.5dB above the threshold compared to 
noise levels of 54.9dB and 54.8dB respectively in the DM scenario.

9.226 Similarly, in the DC scenario four receptors would exceed the night time 45dB 
LAeq, 8h threshold, compared to six receptors in the DM scenario.  Two 
receptors, Bury Lodge and Warmans Farm would experience betterment with 
noise levels falling below the night time threshold.  See table below for a 
breakdown in the information.

Receptor Baseline 2028 
DM 

Exceed 
45dB 
LAeq, 8h

2028 
DC

Exceed 
45dB 
LAeq, 
8h

Difference 
between 
DM & DC

P1 Molehill Green 49.9 52.3 +7.3 52.5 +7.5 +0.2
P2 Gaunts End 50.1 51.8 +6.8 51.9 +6.9 +0.1
P3 Tye Green 50.9 51.7 +6.7 51.6 +6.6 -0.1
P4 Ash Pub 50.4 51.1 +6.1 48.2 +3.2 -2.9
P5 Bury Lodge 49.7 50.5 +5.5 44.8 -0.2 -5.7
P6 Warmans 
Farm

45.4 46.1 +1.1 44.0 -1.0 -2.1

9.227 The applicant contends that the reduction in noise levels during the night time 
period arises because of:

 There being virtually no increase in the number of movements between 
the 2028 DC and the DM scenario operating conditions due to the 
overriding constraints imposed by the Government’s Night Noise 
Regulations

 The significant reduction in GA movements under the DC scenario.  This 
has the benefit of bringing into use a greater proportion of new generation 
lower noise aircraft, replacing small numbers of general aviation and 
corporate movements which are typically by older generation, noisier 
aircraft.

9.228 Similarly, the contention made in respect of the reduction in daytime noise levels 
at the Ash Pub, Bury Lodge and Warmans Farm is directly related to the 
reduction in GA movements which take place on the northside apron.  Receptors 
P4 – P6 are located in closer proximity to the area of the airfield generally 
associated with GA movements and are therefore more affected by these 
movements.  Reductions in GA movements would be beneficial to these 
properties.

9.229 The applicant’s conclusion in respect of operational noise is that there should be 
no adverse effects, with only minor adverse effects arising at Molehill Green due 
to a daytime increase of 1dB between the DM and DC scenario and an 
exceedance of the threshold of only 0.1dB.  

9.230 The Environmental Health Manager has reviewed the ES and concludes that a 
comparison of data sets shows negligible impact in the 2028 DC scenario 
compared to the 25+ permission.  The level change when compared to the DM 
scenario is concluded by him to be equally negligible.  Comparisons with the 

Page 53Page 169



2016 baseline show increases of +3dB in the worse location (Molehill Green) 
during the day and +2.5dB at night.  As this is a marginal increase over time and 
that the resultant level when compared to the DM scenario, there should be little 
impact.

9.231 In terms of night time noise, the noise levels would increase above the 45dB 
LAeq, 8h in 2028.  Comparing ground noise contours with and without the 
development in place, shows they are virtually indistinguishable throughout the 
surrounding community, except where benefits will arise from reduced activity 
associated with the northside apron should permission be granted.  In those 
areas ground noise levels are expected to reduce.  It remains the case that night 
time aircraft movements at Stansted are subject to Government control under the 
Night Noise Regulations and, as a consequence, the airport will reach its cap on 
movements before 2028 whether or not permission is granted for this application.

9.232 Mitigation measures in respect of ground noise are partially covered by those set 
out in the air noise section above.  

9.233 In terms of ground noise, the findings of the ES are not disputed and the 
proposed mitigation measures are considered to be acceptable.  The 
Environmental Health Manager (Protection) has recommended a condition 
requiring a noise envelope contour to not exceed the predicted Do Minimum 
54dB LAeq, 8h contour s set out in the ES.  This would ensure that the overall 
population exposed to the SOAEL at night does not increase over what could 
occur if the application did not proceed.

9.234 Whilst the principle of a night noise contour at 54dB LAeq, 8h could potentially be 
welcomed, in this instance this would not relate to the development applied for.  
The application relates to the increase in passenger numbers and a change to 
the mix of ATMs per annum.  However, it does not relate to any changes to the 
permitted number of flights at night, these being controlled by the Night Noise 
Regulations.  On this basis, such a condition would fail to meet the test of being 
relevant to planning and to the development to be permitted (paragraph 55 of the 
NPPF).

Construction noise

9.235 Construction noise would only occur in the period 2021-2 in respect of the 
engineering works applied for in this application.  Other engineering works 
already have the benefit of planning permission and are envisaged to be carried 
out prior to this timeframe.  In addition, other works may come forward either as a 
result of other applications or as permitted development.  However, the ES 
considers the potential impacts in respect of ground noise for the engineering 
works as applied for.  The main focus of the construction noise assessment is the 
key sensitive night time period.

9.236 Table 8.25 sets out the calculated construction noise levels at the sensitive 
receptors together with the change assessed by the applicant.

Page 54Page 170



Night time noise level, LAeq, 1h (dB)Receptor Location
Baseline Construction Combined Change

P1 – Molehill Green 41.0 43.1 45.2 +0.2
P2 – Gaunts End 31.0 45.7 45.8 +0.8
P3 – Tye Green 48.0 42.3 49.0 +1.0
P4 – Ash Pub 33.0 43.2 43.6 No change*
P5 – Bury Lodge 47.0 42.3 48.3 +1.3
P6 – Warmans Farm 40.0 40.1 43.1 No change*
P7 – Takeley 43.0 35.9 43.8 No change*
P8 – Elsenham 48.0 35.1 48.2 +0.2
P9 – Brick End 35.0 31.5 36.3 No change*
* Baseline level lower than 45dB threshold

9.237 The above table indicates that all locations will experience increases in noise 
levels, ranging from an increase of 0.2dB to 10.6dB at the Ash Public House.  
However, these have been assessed as having a negligible significance as the 
increases would either result in noise levels remaining below the threshold of 
45dB or would give rise to increases of less than 3dB above existing levels.  
These are reasonable conclusions to have reached and these findings are not 
disputed.

E Surface Access Noise

9.238 Chapter 9 of the ES assesses the impacts of surface access noise.  This chapter 
needs to be read in conjunction with the accompanying transport assessment 
(Volume 3 of the ES) and the traffic data set out in Appendix 9.1 (Volume 2 of the 
ES).

9.239 Paragraphs 9.157 to 159 in the Air Noise section above set out the policy position 
with regards to surface access noise.

9.240 This chapter assesses the surface access noise impacts arising from the 
proposed construction and operational phases of the development.  Whilst rail is 
a form of surface access which generates noise, this has been scoped out of the 
assessment.  The basis for this decision is the fact that the proposed capacity 
changes at the airport will not lead to any change to the activity on the railway.  
AGA separately proposes to introduce 12-car Stansted Express trains in 2019 
but without any changes to the number of trains per day.  This alteration to 
existing capacity will occur with or without the development the subject of this 
application.

9.241 The Design Manual for Roads and Bridges (DMRB) sets out the noise 
assessment procedures for undertaking highway works such as building new 
roads.  This provides thresholds at which potential impacts may start to become 
apparent, based on changes in 18-hour daytime noise levels (06:00-24:00) over 
both short and long term scenarios.  For the proposed development, the long 
term changes are appropriate to assess as the forecast growth of the airport 
would lead to gradual increases in traffic flows to 2028.  Specifically, the 
proposed development differs from the type of development that DMRB primarily 
relates to.  The DMRB requires a two-stage process to be undertaken, the short 
term on the opening of the new road and long term operational effects.  In this 
instance there is no new road and therefore no short-term effects.

Page 55Page 171



9.242 Calculations are based on the Department for Transport calculation of Road 
Traffic Noise (CRTN).  The assessment is based on noise levels as defined at 
10m from the edge of the carriageway.  The method adopted is universally 
applied and considered to be acceptable.

9.243 In carrying out the assessment the 2028 DC scenario has been compared with 
the 2028 DM scenario.  A further assessment is made comparing the 2028 DC 
with 2016 baseline.

9.244 Comparisons of the 2028 DC and 2028 DM scenarios show that noise levels 
would increase between 0.1dB and 0.7dB, with the largest increase being at 
Thremhall Avenue.  Comparisons between the 2028 DM and 2016 baseline 
indicate that increases will be larger, ranging from 0.7dB to 3.8dB, the largest 
increase being at Round Coppice Road. 

9.245 The changes in noise levels would be negligible, with the exception of the 3.8dB 
increase at Round Coppice Road in comparison to baseline levels.  The nearest 
receptor to this road is the Novotel Hotel, more than 150m from the road.  The 
ES states that it should be noted that this increase primarily occurs as a result of 
the permitted uplift of the baseline (2016) level of annual passenger throughput 
up to 35mppa under the 2028 DM scenario, coupled with the proposed 
employment allocation at Northside, rather than as a result of the additional uplift 
in annual passengers triggered by the proposed 43mppa development.

9.246 The other building that would be affected by the proposals is the Stansted 
College building which opened in September 2018.  However, the ES states that 
the design of the building includes high performance glazing and mechanical 
ventilation, due to the building’s proximity to the runway.  These features have 
been included on all elevations, not just those facing the runway.  On this basis, it 
is concluded that the increases in Round Coppice Road traffic should not have 
any significant effects on staff and pupils within the College.

9.247 In conclusion, the ES considers that the impacts of surface access noise would 
be negligible.  Cumulative impacts have been taken into consideration and no 
mitigation is identified as being required.  These are reasonable conclusions to 
have reached and these conclusions are not disputed.

F Air Quality

9.248 Chapter 10 of the ES assesses the impacts of air quality resulting from 
development-related traffic.  This chapter needs to be read in conjunction with 
the accompanying appendices 10.1 to 10.5 (Volume 2 of the ES) and the 
Technical Note, Annex 4A of the Consultation Response and Clarifications 
Document, July 2018.  In addition, the information contained in Annex 1 of this 
document (as amended by Revision to Annex 1: Information for Epping Forest 
July 2018) now requires the potential impacts on Epping Forest to be discussed 
under Air Quality and not Biodiversity.

9.249 Adopted Uttlesford Local Plan Policy ENV13 identifies poor air quality zones, 
which are not within the application site.  It also states that development that 
would involve users being exposed on an extended long-term basis to poor air 
quality near ground level will not be permitted.  This policy is generally consistent 
with the NPPF, although the latter document sets out a requirement that any 
development in Air Quality Management Areas and Clean Air Zones is consistent 

Page 56Page 172



with the local air quality action plan.  The policy therefore carried moderate 
weight.

9.250 Uttlesford District Council has designated one AQMA in Saffron Walden.  Given 
the distance between the application site and the AQMA is it considered that the 
proposals should not result in significant impacts to the AQMA.

9.251 Adopted Uttlesford Local Plan Policy ENV7 seeks to protect designated sites, 
such as Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) and National Nature Reserves 
(NNR).  Development will only be permitted where the need for development 
outweighs the particular importance of the nature conservation value of the site 
or reserve.  The policy also seeks to protect other areas of nature conservation 
significance, such as local wildlife sites, ancient woodlands and other wildlife 
habitats.  This policy is only partially consistent with the NPPF with the emphasis 
shifting from the need for development to the benefits needing to clearly outweigh 
the harm.  In addition, there are additional requirements under the Habitats and 
Species Regulations (2010) which relate to European designated sites.  
Therefore, the policy has little weight.

9.252 Paragraph 181 of the NPPF states:

“Planning policies and decisions should sustain and contribute towards 
compliance with relevant limit values or national objectives for pollutants, taking 
into account the presence of Air Quality Management Areas and Clean Air 
Zones, and the cumulative impacts from individual sites in local areas. 
Opportunities to improve air quality or mitigate impacts should be identified, such 
as through traffic and travel management, and green infrastructure provision and 
enhancement. So far as possible these opportunities should be considered at the 
plan-making stage, to ensure a strategic approach and limit the need for issues 
to be reconsidered when determining individual applications. Planning decisions 
should ensure that any new development in Air Quality Management Areas and 
Clean Air Zones is consistent with the local air quality action plan.”

9.253 Paragraph 175 seeks to protect biodiversity, including protected species, SSSIs, 
ancient woodland and ancient or veteran trees, and to conserve or enhance 
biodiversity.

9.254 The APF (2013) sets out the government’s position in respect of air quality in and 
around airports.  It identifies sources of pollution around airports as including 
aircraft engines, airport-related traffic on local roads and surface vehicles at the 
airport.  The most important pollutants are oxides of nitrogen (NOx) and 
particulate matter (PM).

9.255 It recognises that limits in respect of PM are largely met, but challenges remain 
with nitrogen dioxide, while pressures from increasing pollution, transport and 
land use mean that considerable efforts to improve air quality to protect health 
and the environment continue to be needed.

9.256 Paragraph 3.51 of the APF states that studies have shown that NOx emissions 
from aviation-related operations reduce rapidly beyond the immediate area 
around the runway.  Road traffic remains the main problem with regard to NOx in 
the UK.

9.257 Paragraph 1.9 of “Beyond the Horizon” (June 2018) states:

Page 57Page 173



“Most of the concerns raised can be addressed through our existing policies as 
set out in the 2013 Aviation Policy Framework, or through more recent policy 
updates such as the new UK Airspace Policy or National Air Quality Plan. For the 
majority of environmental concerns, the government expects these to be taken 
into account as part of existing local planning application processes. It is right 
that decisions on the elements which impact local individuals such as noise and 
air quality should be considered through the appropriate planning process and 
CAA airspace change process.”

9.258 In the area near to the airport, adjacent East Herts District Council’s adopted 
Local Plan has saved Policy ENV27 which relates to air quality which states:

“(I) The Council will have regard to the potential effects of a development on local 
air quality when determining planning applications.  Consideration will be given to 
the impact caused by both the operational characteristics of the development 
(industrial, commercial and domestic) and the traffic generated by it, and 
development which will significantly increase air pollution will not be permitted.  
Where development proposals are likely to involve emissions into the air, 
submission of appropriate details will be required to enable a full judgement of 
the impact of the development to be made.
(II) Any development within designated Air Quality Management Areas must have 
regard to the strategy for reduction of pollutants in such areas and to guidelines 
for ensuring air quality is thereafter maintained at acceptable levels as set out in 
the national air quality strategy.”

9.259 The East Herts District Plan has been the subject of Examination and the 
Inspector’s Final Report and Schedule of Main Modifications was received on 9 
July 2018.  In respect of Policy EQ4, the Inspector considered that the criteria 
within the policy were not precise or comprehensive enough to be effective.  
Modification MM/24/01 rewrites the policy to make it more comprehensive, taking 
account of legislation and national policy on air quality.  This modification results 
in the policy being sound.

9.260 Modification MM/24/01 states:

“I. The effect of development upon air quality is a material consideration.  All 
applications should take account of the Council’s Air Quality Planning Guidance 
Document, which details when an air quality assessment is required.
II. All development should take account of the Council’s Air Quality Action Plan, 
local Air Quality Strategies, Local Transport Plans, as well as national air quality 
guidance.
III. All developments should include measures to minimise air quality impact at 
the design stage and should incorporate best practice in the design, construction 
and operation of all developments.
IV. Where development (on its own or cumulatively) will have a negative impact 
on local air quality during either construction or operation, mitigation measures 
will be sought that will remove overriding impacts, such as an air quality neutral 
or negative development.  Evidence of mitigation measures will be required 
upfront.
V. Where on-site mitigation is not sufficient, appropriate off-site mitigation 
measures may be required.  Where adequate mitigation cannot be provided, 
development will not normally be permitted.
VI. Developments must not:

 Lead to a breach or worsening of a breach of UK or EU limit values;

Page 58Page 174



 Lead to a breach or worsening of a breach of an Air Quality objective or 
cause the declaration of an Air Quality Management Area or;

 Prejudice the implementation of any Air Quality Action Plan or local air 
quality strategy.”

9.261 Following receipt of the Inspector’s Final Report on the Examination of the East 
Herts District Plan, an Extraordinary Council meeting was arranged for Tuesday 
11 September with the intention that the Council would be asked to determine to 
adopt the Local Plan.  However, the SoS issued a Holding Direction on that date 
which prevented EHDC from adopting the Local Plan.  Subsequently, on 12 
October, the Holding Direction was lifted although, at the time of writing the 
report, the District Plan had not been adopted, although UDC was advised that 
EHDC proposed to hold an Extraordinary meeting of the Council on 23 October 
2018 with a view to adopting the Plan.  Notwithstanding this, given the fact that 
Policy EQ4 has been tested and found to be sound it carries significant weight.  

9.262 East Herts District Council has designated three AQMAs and the one of concern 
in respect of this application is the Bishop’s Stortford AQMA which is centred on 
the Hockerill traffic lights junction close to the town centre.  East Herts has 
published an Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP) 2017/18 – 2019/20.  SP6 of the 
AQAP states that air quality measures will be taken into consideration on all 
planning applications, particularly when these are within or closely adjoining an 
AQMA.  SP9 of the AQAP seeks to ensure that developers have taken sufficient 
steps to minimise any increase in air pollution. 

9.263 The ANPS (2018) sets out where planning considerations in respect of air quality 
are likely to be relevant.  These are:

 within or adjacent to Air Quality Management Areas, roads identified as 
being above limit values, or nature conservation sites (including Natura 
2000 sites and Sites of Special Scientific Interest); 

 where there would be effects sufficient to bring about the need for new Air 
Quality Management Areas or change the size of an existing Air Quality 
Management Area, or bring about changes to exceedances of the limit 
values, or have the potential to have an impact on nature conservation 
sites; and 

 after taking into account mitigation, where there would be a significant air 
quality impact in relation to Environmental Impact Assessment and / or to a 
deterioration in air quality in a zone or agglomeration. 

9.264 The ES assesses the impacts of NO2, PM10 and PM2.5 for human health and 
NOx for the natural environment.  The study area is 15km x 15km centred on the 
airport and focusses on the potential impacts of the development on major roads 
and the main towns around the airport.

9.265 Within the study area 244 representative receptors were selected for assessment 
(49 schools/nurseries, 7 hospitals/care homes and 188 dwellings).  Sensitive 
ecological receptors have also been identified with 6 falling within the study area.

9.266 Paragraph 10.37 of the ES addressed Epping Forest Special Area of 
Conservation (SAC) which is some distance south of the airport.  Following an 
objection from Natural England, further work has been undertaken with regards 
to the potential impacts of increased airport related traffic on air quality within 
Epping Forest SAC.  This issue was originally covered in the Biodiversity section 

Page 59Page 175



of ES Chapter 16 (Non-Significant Topics).  In light of Natural England’s recent 
advice, this is now being treated as an elevated concern within the air quality 
general topic area.

9.267 It is established throughout the ES that the construction period is expected to be 
2021/2 and therefore predicted to take place prior to exceeding the currently 
permitted 35mppa limit.  Construction works would be located away from 
sensitive receptors.  In addition, vehicular movements would not be significant 
and therefore should not give rise to a level of increase of emissions which would 
result in harmful impacts on sensitive receptors.  Therefore, the construction 
phase, with its proposed mitigation by way of a Construction Environmental 
Management Plan should ensure adverse harm would not arise as a result of 
pollutants.

9.268 With regards to the operational phase, the following pollution sources were 
assessed:

 Aircraft main engines in the landing and take-off (LTO) cycle;
 Aircraft auxiliary power units (APUs) while in use on the ground
 Ground support equipment (GSE), namely airside vehicles which handle 

aircraft turn-arounds, load and unload baggage and cargo, and conduct 
inspections and essential maintenance of airfield infrastructure, particularly 
the runway which is in constant use;

 Other airport sources, including car parks, airport heating plant and the fire 
training ground; and

 Road vehicles using the local and strategic highway network around the 
airport.

9.269 The applicant created a model to allow for the prediction of effects at future years 
using industry standard modelling software which was also used to inform the 
recommendations made by the Airports Commission. This model requires 
verifying to the existing monitored levels which is achieved through replicating the 
existing emissions sources in the area and including them in the modelled input, 
then adding them to the background levels which make up all other sources not 
included in the model.  The applicant has included sources from aircraft and 
vehicles on the local highway network in their model and obtained the emissions 
for each of these from appropriate sources.

9.270 The background pollutant concentrations used for the modelling were taken from 
the National Air Emissions Inventory with the road transport and aviation 
emissions subtracted from the background so as not to double count.  The model 
has been verified to local monitoring to ensure that the results from the model are 
accurately representing the actual monitored levels.  This verification showed that 
the modelled concentrations of NO2 were significantly under-predicted within 
Bishop’s Stortford and Stansted Mountfitchet.  However, the Council’s air quality 
consultant confirms that the report provides enough information to consider the 
effect of the scheme with the required elevated background and that the effect of 
the scheme (inclusive of the enhanced verification factor) should be ‘negligible’ 
with increases in pollution levels being ≤0.1µg/m3.

9.271 The applicant was required to carry out sensitivity analysis for multiple years to 
ensure the meteorological data for the baseline year was representative.  
Sensitivity testing was undertaken for 2014, 2015 and 2016 and demonstrated 
that the baseline data was representative.

Page 60Page 176



9.272 It is a generally accepted principle that emissions will reduce in future years as 
technology becomes more efficient and more sustainable transport measures are 
encouraged amongst the general population.  However, the rate at which 
emissions will improve is disputed and the DEFRA predictions which the 
applicant has used for their assessment are potentially over optimistic.  To 
provide a sensitivity analysis, the applicant was requested to carry out analysis 
using existing baseline emissions in future year scenarios assuming that there 
will be no reduction in emissions.  Whilst the results from this sensitivity modelling 
were higher than those in the original ES, the relative significance of the effect as 
a result of the scheme did not change and remains in the ‘negligible’ band.

9.273 The Council’s consultants concluded that, based on the information within the ES 
and the additional information supplied, there should be no predicted increase in 
pollutant levels at modelled receptors in Stansted Mountfitchet.  The scheme 
would increase pollutant emissions as a result of additional vehicle movements 
within the Bishop’s Stortford Air Quality Management Area where levels of 
pollutants are already above the level where health effects are likely to be 
observed in the most sensitive members of the population.  These health effects 
should be considered against the benefits of the scheme and an appropriate 
balance of mitigation sought.

9.274 Adopted Uttlesford Local Plan Policy ENV13 predates current legislation in 
respect of air quality.  The draft policy in the Regulation 19 Plan has yet to be 
tested for soundness.  However, in this instance the impacts will arise in Bishop’s 
Stortford which is within the administrative district of East Herts District Council.  
The East Herts District Plan has been examined and the soundness of their 
policy in respect of air quality was been found to be sound and has significant 
weight.

9.275 Policy ENV27 of the Regulation 19 East Herts District Plan requires applications 
to be supported by an Air Pollution Assessment in line with the Council’s Air 
Quality Planning Guidance Document.  This sets out a requirement for Major 
Developments to be accompanied by a detailed air quality assessment to 
determine the impact on public health and the local environment.  The 
methodology to be used for the determination of pollutant concentration change 
should meet the requirements of the Defra Technical Guidance Note (TG.16) 
(Defra 2016).  The use of the ADMS-Airports model is an appropriate 
assessment in this instance.

9.276 The Air Quality Planning Guidance Document then requires the calculation of 
pollutant emission costs (known as damage cost) from the development to be 
carried out using the most recent Defra Emissions Factor Toolkit.  This will 
determine the level of mitigation required.  To date, this work has not been 
carried out.

9.277 However, it should be recognised that DEFRA’s “Valuing impacts on air quality: 
Supplementary Green Book guidance” is a supplementary document to DEFRA’s 
Green Book which cost assesses various elements of development proposals as 
a balancing exercise, and not just air quality impacts in isolation.  However, 
paragraphs 1.6 and 2.1 explain that a damage costs approach is a recommended 
approach only.  Therefore, there is no requirement to follow that approach.  The 
NPPF (2018) does not require that approach to be followed for Air Quality and 
instead seeks to limit the need to travel and offer genuine transport solutions and 
mitigate impacts through measures such as traffic and travel management.  
Decisions should take account of AQMAs.  See paragraphs 103 and 181.  

Page 61Page 177



Paragraph 181 explains that new development inside an AQMA needs to be 
consistent with the air quality action plan.  The application is not inside an AQMA 
and has addressed transport measures.

9.278 The application includes measures consistent with the NPPF and reflecting the 
detail of those in the East Herts Air Quality Planning Guidance for developments 
in the EHDC area classified as Major such as local sourcing of staff, products and 
raw materials, development of car sharing initiatives, provision of low emission 
shuttle bus, provision of low emission fuelling infrastructure (electric car charging 
points), provision of new or enhanced public transport services to the site, and 
supporting sustainable travel initiatives. The applicant is already undertaking 
many of these initiatives.  For example, their Staff Travel Plan encourages car 
sharing.  The Transport Forum helps to support sustainable forms of travel by 
funding new public transport services or routes.  The Airport’s Sustainable 
Development Plan also includes “Meet the Buyers” events where local 
companies have the opportunity to promote themselves to secure local business 
contracts.

9.279 The continuation of those mitigation measures in respect of air quality effects, in 
particular in relation to sustainable travel initiatives, would be required if planning 
permission is granted, and this could be secured by way of s106 Legal 
Obligation.

9.280 Turning to impacts on ecological features as a result of air quality, an 
assessment in accordance with the DMRB HA 207/07 and the Environment 
Agency’s H1 Guidance has been carried out in light of paragraph 10.34 of the ES 
stating that deposition of pollutants derived from NOx emissions contributes to 
acidification and/or eutrophication of sensitive habitats leading to a loss of 
biodiversity.  Nitrogen deposition rates and information on sensitive habitats for 
the designated sites were taken from the APIS (Air Pollution Information System) 
website.

9.281 The DMRB guidance recommends the reduction in total nitrogen deposition rates 
of 2% per year based on predicted improvements in vehicle technologies.  
Sensitivity testing using 2016 road traffic emission factors for future assessment 
years was also carried out following discussions between the Council’s 
consultant and the applicant.

9.282 The original conclusions of the ES, paragraphs 10.127-132, were that there 
would be no significant effects on any of the identified ecological receptors within 
the study area.  The conclusion of the sensitivity testing found that exceedances 
of the NO2 air quality standard are predicted at a few more receptor locations 
compared to the ES: at 5 receptors out of the 244 assessed in 2023 rather than 
one; and six receptors in 2028 rather than zero.  The change in concentrations 
due to the proposed development at all of these locations would be very small, 
no greater than 0.1µg/m3.

9.283 Exceedances of the NOx air quality standard are also predicted at the western 
boundary of Elsenham Woods SSSI.  No exceedances are predicted at any of 
the other ecological receptors, including the Hatfield Forest SSSI and NNR.  The 
predicted changes in nitrogen deposition at the Hatfield Forest SSSI and NNR 
and the Elsenham Woods SSSI would be less than 1% of the relevant lower 
critical loads for those site and therefore no significant effects are anticipated.

Page 62Page 178



9.284 The Council’s consultant confirms that they have no concerns with regards to 
ecological receptors.  

9.285 In terms of ecological receptors, the assessment has also been considered by 
Natural England.  They welcome the precautionary approach carried out in the 
sensitivity testing and note the results but raise concerns regarding the use of 
TEMPro as this may not accurately reflect the actual environmental conditions 
over the mid-longer term that ecological receptors needs to function within.

9.286 With regards to impacts on Hatfield Forest SSSI and NNR, Natural England 
welcomes the commitment to continue to monitor impacts on the receptor and 
would wish to ensure that this continues beyond the 35mppa limit.  This could be 
secured by way of s106 Legal Obligation with a requirement to identify and 
implement mitigation measures if required.

9.287 Elsenham Woods SSSI is already subject to nitrogen deposition that significantly 
exceeds the Critical load for its SSSI woodland habitat feature.  In recognition 
that the proposed 35mppa+ development is predicted to increase road traffic and 
nitrogen deposition onto Elsenham Wood SSSI, Natural England advises it would 
be appropriate for Stansted Airport to undertake any necessary measures to 
reduce NOx outputs and nitrogen depositions.  This would be consistent with the 
aims and targets of the Airport Sustainable Development Plan to ‘reduce air 
pollution’ deposition within the woodland habitats of the Airport owned Elsenham 
Woods SSSI.  This could be secured by way of a condition or s106 Legal 
Obligation.

9.288 The Council’s Ecologist has advised that monitoring of Elsenham Woods SSSI 
should become part of any consent should planning permission be granted.  
They have also advised that the Elsenham SSSI Management Plan should be 
updated in accordance with the Airport Sustainable Development Plan.  Whilst 
this is recognised as being beneficial to the Elsenham Woods SSSI there needs 
to be a distinction between the applicants' statutory duty as the owner of 
Elsenham Woods SSSI under legislation outside of the planning system, and the 
requirements as mitigation in respect of any planning permission granted.

9.289 In terms of Quendon Wood SSSI and High Wood Dunmow SSSI, Natural 
England accepts the conclusions of no significant impact.

9.290 With regards to Epping Forest SSSI, this is divided up into units given its scale.  
Units 103 and 201 are close to the M11 between junctions 6 and 7 and SSSI unit 
106 is within 200m of the M25.  This proximity necessitates further assessment in 
accordance with DMRB guidance and consideration within the ES.

9.291 The original additional information submitted made no reference to units 103 and 
201 and as such Natural England assumed that distance measurements have 
been taken from the centre line of the carriageway and that this distance is 
regarded to be greater than 200m thus eligible for screening out in strict 
adherence to DMRB guidelines.

9.292 An additional Technical Note was submitted on 10 August covering the SSSI 
receptors between junctions 6 and 7 of the M11.  The plan attached to the 
Technical Note indicates that unit 201 (for some reason appears to be referred to 
as receptor 13 in the report) is within 200m of the M11, whereas unit 103 is 
beyond the 200m range.  Using modelling of traffic flows between junctions 8 and 
7 of the M11, which is likely to result in a conservative estimate as it ignores 

Page 63Page 179



traffic leaving the motorway at junction 7, predicted traffic flows in 2028 in the DC 
scenario are predicted to be 5,149 AADT (2-way).  This is predicted to increase 
nitrogen deposition by 0.08kgN/ha/yr, which is below 1% of the minimum critical 
load.  Levels of deposition drop off rapidly away from the road.

9.293 Natural England notes that Epping Forest SSSI unit 201 is mainly Oak-Hornbeam 
woodland with additional interest provided by the ponds. For the purposes of this 
assessment, the woodland habitat (including ground flora, veteran trees and 
epiphytes) and wetlands are the main SSSI interest features that need to be 
considered from an air quality perspective. In this context and at this location, the 
minimum Critical load threshold for Nitrogen is correctly identified as 
10kgN/Ha/Year. Natural England note that the deposition rates fall below the 1% 
threshold of significance.  They also note that this area of Epping Forest is 
already subject to Nitrogen deposition that significantly exceeds the Critical load 
for its SSSI woodland and wetland habitat features and this development is likely 
to contribute to prolonging the exceedances of Nitrogen loading. 

9.294 Natural England acknowledges that the strict application of current guidelines 
(eg, DMRB) for SSSI and EIA-linked assessments provide an accepted 
justification for not regarding the impact as ‘significant’ and therefore not requiring 
further assessment or mitigation. Ideally, mindful of sustainability and SSSI 
targets, this section of M11 adjacent to Epping Forest SSSI unit 201 should be 
subject to periodic traffic monitoring and linked AQ modelling to verify the 
predictions to see whether further assessment and remediation is necessary. In 
light of the context, Natural England does not expect this provision, but for the 
record would support a solution that included this provision within any Highways-
linked obligation.  However, given the level of predicted impact it is not 
considered that this level of mitigation can be justified in respect of this 
application.

9.295 Epping Forest is also designated as a Special Area of Conservation (SAC) and 
therefore an assessment under the Conservation of Habitats and Species 
Regulations 2010 (as amended) is required.  On 10 May 2018, Natural England 
provided Advice on the Scope of an Appropriate Assessment that it considered 
was required because critical loads of Nitrogen Oxides and Nitrogen deposition 
are currently exceeded for the SAC and a likely significant effect, alone or in 
combination, from the traffic resulting from the application could not be 
discounted.    Of particular importance is unit 105 which is located within 200m of 
the stretch of the M25 between junctions 25 and 26.

9.296 Natural England notes that the predicted contributions to NOx Critical Levels and 
Nitrogen deposition Critical Loads from the M25 are well below 1%, and so it is 
reasonable to conclude for SSSI unit 105 that the proposed development ‘alone’ 
can avoid a likely significant effect on the SAC features within SSSI unit 105, 
however with reference to the Wealden case there was still a need to consider 
whether there is a likely significant effect ‘in combination’ with other plans and 
projects.

9.297 For SSSI unit 109, also located between junctions 25 and 26 of the M25, Natural 
England notes distance measurements have been taken from the centre line of 
the carriageways and this distance is greater than 200m.  Strict adherence to the 
DMRB guidelines (HA 2007) indicates that it is acceptable to screen out any 
further HRA assessment for SSSI unit 109, either ‘alone’ and/or ‘in combination’.

Page 64Page 180



9.298 Natural England welcomed the detail provided in the Habitats Regulations 
Assessment to enable further consideration of the ‘in combination’ effects and 
advises that if the background concentration/deposition is currently exceeding the 
environmental benchmark and the new development contribution will cause an 
additional small increase then, a decision will have to be made on a case by case 
basis. For this case, the complexities involved with the likely ‘in combination 
effects’ associated with the HMA Local Plans and the highlighted concerns about 
the ecological sensitivity of Epping Forest SAC (and SSSI) features has required 
this proposed development to be considered in more detail.

9.299 The revised Epping Forest District Council traffic assessments and linked Local 
Plan HRA are not yet available for consideration. To enable Natural England to 
meet the consultation timescales for this application the council has provided 
advice based on the information that is available, rather than requesting a further 
extension to the consultation period to allow for this additional third party ‘in 
combination’ information. Natural England notes the reasonable assumption that 
the M25 carries a wide range of longer distance trips and acknowledges that the 
local road B1393, which runs through Epping north to M11 J8 has no direct 
connection for traffic to access the M25 at this assessed location. Natural 
England notes the predicted AADT increase of 12 for the B1393 that can be 
attributed to the Stansted Airport 35+ development, which is very small compared 
with the predicted increases >1000 AADT that have been attributed to the Local 
Plan growth (available HRA figures). Based on assurances from the applicants 
that the assessments have adhered to available standard guidelines it is 
reasonable to conclude that the Stansted Airport development would not 
significantly contribute to traffic levels on the local Epping road network, whereas 
the growth associated with HMA Local Plans will significantly contribute to the 
local roads and potentially other major roads including the M25. With an absence 
of locally validated ‘in combination’ traffic and AQ assessments for the B1393 at 
this stage.  Natural England is minded to accept the use of TEMPro growth for 
assessment purposes and note for future reference the predicted AADT 
contributions that would be required to meet 1% NOx threshold.

9.300 The Epping Forest Survey Note (Appendix 3 of the document Revision to Annex 
1: Information for Epping Forest July 2018) helpfully provides additional detail 
that supports Natural England’s previous advice.  Natural England notes that a 
condition survey undertaken in 2009 confirms that the ‘zone of influence’ within 
the SSSI unit 105 is Nitrogen polluted when considering its Lichen Indicator 
Scores and other notable field signs (eg, signs of stress, elevated insect damage 
and dominance nitrogen-loving field layer where present). This aligns with their 
observations and concerns that ‘Epping Forest SSSI unit 105 (within SAC) has 
been subject to Nitrogen deposition above Critical Loads for a prolonged period 
resulting in Natural England identifying the unit as a ‘SSSI Threat’ and an ‘SAC 
IPENS (Improvement Programme for England’s Natura 2000 sites) issue’ since at 
least 2009.  This is reducing the capacity for sensitive SAC features and their 
supporting habitats to maintain or achieve favourable condition and/or favourable 
conservation status.’

9.301 Natural England note the applicant’s evidence of the lack of clear trend between 
the % lichen cover and the change in the distance from the M25, but also 
recognise the increase from ‘Nitrogen Polluted’ to ‘Very Nitrogen Polluted’ (based 
on Lichen Indicator Score / Nitrogen Air Quality Index) with increasing proximity 
to the M25 (ie, comparing c200m with c50m distances from the M25).  Natural 
England’s considers that the assessment helpfully contributes to their 
understanding of how the features of this specific area of the SSSI, SAC are 

Page 65Page 181



performing at different distances from the M25 and also demonstrates the 
challenges within the short timescales of the planning process to obtain definitive 
proof that elevated NOx and Nitrogen deposition from development will cause a 
significant and quantifiable impact.

9.302 When considering the ‘in combination’ figures generated by TEMPro for the 
Stansted 35+ traffic on the M25, Natural England notes the maximum increase in 
nitrogen deposition into this discrete area of SSSI unit 105 of the SAC is 
predicted to be 0.02kgN/ha/yr. This is well below the 1% level of the Critical Load 
for this woodland area of the SAC and the modelled reductions in Nitrogen 
deposition at increasing distances from the M25 is a reasonable assumption 
based on general studies. Natural England state that it is not yet clear to them 
what the likely increase in Nitrogen deposition will be from the B1393 onto this 
area of the SSSI unit 105 that can be attributed to the increased traffic generated 
by the HMA Local Plans. It is anticipated that the effect of the forthcoming Local 
Plans on the local roads and the adjacent SAC areas (including the B1383 and 
SSSI unit 105) will have to be considered as part of their HRA assessment 
process.

9.303 However, based on available and submitted information, Natural England broadly 
accepts, in its further representation of 31 August 2018, that the application of the 
distance criteria and the 1% significance threshold at this location for this 
development and generally accepts that the Stansted 35+ development can 
avoid an adverse effect on the integrity of Epping Forest SAC, either alone and in 
combination with other relevant plans or projects.

9.304 This does not mean that Natural England could then rule out a likely impact on 
the SSSI features within SSSI unit 105 caused by this scale of development-
linked Nitrogen deposition if it were considered in combination with unexpected 
levels of growth beyond TEMPRo assumptions, but it merely acknowledged that 
the strict application of current guidelines (eg, DMRB) for SSSI and EIA-linked 
assessments provide an accepted justification for not regarding the impact as 
‘significant’ and therefore not requiring further assessment or mitigation. Ideally, 
mindful of sustainability and SSSI targets, this section of M25 adjacent to Epping 
Forest SSSI unit 105 should be subject to periodic traffic monitoring and linked 
AQ modelling to verify the predictions to see whether further assessment and 
remediation is necessary. In light of the context, Natural England advised that it 
does not expect this provision, but for the record would support a solution that 
included this provision within any Highways-linked obligation.

9.305 Notwithstanding the advice of Natural England on 31 August 2018 that it 
“broadly accepts the application of the distance criteria and the 1% significance 
threshold at [location unit 105] for this development and generally accepts that 
the Stansted 35+ can avoid an adverse effect on the integrity of Epping Forest 
SAC, either alone or in combination with other relevant plans or projects”, in 
parallel and to  ensure that the Council complies with Regulation 63 of the 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations (2017), and pursuant to the 
Advice of Natural England in relation to its scope and in light of its 
representations, Place Services was commissioned to carry out an Appropriate 
Assessment 
(https://uttlesford.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s8354/Place%20Services.pdf).  
This Assessment (11 October 2018) concluded in paragraphs 4.5 to 4.32 and 
Table 4.34 that, alone, the 35+ Project “Do Minimum” scenario there is no 
potential for Adverse Effects on Integrity of the Epping Forest SAC due to 
changes in air quality from traffic generation as a result of increased traffic flow 

Page 66Page 182

https://uttlesford.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s8354/Place%20Services.pdf


on the M25 from the 35+ project along under the “Do Something” scenario.  It 
also concluded, at paragraphs 4.37 to 4.59, in particular paragraphs 4.58-4.59, 
that the 35+ development, acting in combination with the plan and projects in 
Table 4.56 “only makes an insignificant contribution to perpetuating the situation 
of the Critical Loads and Levels being exceeded”.  Paragraph 4.58 assessed in 
conclusion such contribution of emissions from the 35+ development as “de 
Minimis”.  The Conclusion summarises the assessment, at paragraph 5.3, along 
or in combination: the Annex I SAC will not be reduced by the Project; there will 
be no direct adverse effects by the Project on Annex II species; there will only be 
“de Minimis” indirect adverse effects on SAC Annex II species; there will be no 
change to habitat composition from the Project; and the Project will not interrupt 
or degrade the processes that support the SAC and species justifying 
designation.  That conclusion was also supported by particular advice 
summarised in paragraphs 5.4-5.6 that included further vegetation surveys.  The 
conclusion at paragraph 5.7 is that the application will have no Adverse Effect on 
the Integrity of the Epping Forest SAC objectives, alone or in combination.  
Therefore, Regulation 63 does not prevent the development, subject to other 
considerations, being granted consent and Uttlesford District Council can 
demonstrate its compliance with the UK Habitats Regulations 2017.  In addition, 
paragraph 177 of the NPPF (2018) does not prevent the development engaging 
the paragraph 11 presumption in favour of sustainable development since an 
appropriate assessment is not required and has now been done.

9.306 The conclusions of Natural England are also noted, but their request for 
monitoring at Epping Forest appears to not have taken account of the 
Appropriate Assessment above and would not satisfy the tests as set out in 
Paragraph 56 of the NPPF due to the fact that the proposals would not result in 
any significant impact on this ecological receptor.

G Socio-Economic Impacts

9.307 In more detail that has been set out above in relation to the economic 
contribution of the application proposals and need, Chapter 11 of the ES 
assesses the socio-economic impacts of the proposal.  This chapter needs to be 
read in conjunction with the accompanying appendices 11.1 and 11.2 (Volume 2 
of the ES).

9.308 The NPPF (2018) sets out the principles of sustainable development and the 
document must be read as a whole.  In respect of economic development, 
paragraph 80 states:

“Planning policies and decisions should help create the conditions in which 
businesses can invest, expand and adapt. Significant weight should be placed on 
the need to support economic growth and productivity, taking into account both 
local business needs and wider opportunities for development. The approach 
taken should allow each area to build on its strengths, counter any weaknesses 
and address the challenges of the future. This is particularly important where 
Britain can be a global leader in driving innovation, and in areas with high levels 
of productivity, which should be able to capitalise on their performance and 
potential.” 

9.309 The ANPS (2018) sets out the importance of aviation to the UK economy in 
Section 2.  This includes employment and economic benefits, including those 
associated with freight and tourism.

 

Page 67Page 183



9.310 Paragraph 2.9 refers to the position in respect of Brexit.  It states:

“The importance of aviation to the UK economy, and in particular the UK’s hub 
status, has only increased following the country’s decision to leave the European 
Union.  As the UK develops its new trading relationships with the rest of the 
world, it will be essential that increased airport capacity is delivered, in particular 
to support development of long haul routes to and from the UK, especially in 
emerging and developing economies.”

9.311 Notwithstanding the benefits of the aviation industry, the government recognises 
that there are constraints due to capacity issues.  Aviation demand is likely to 
increase significantly between now and 2050 and all major airports in the south 
east of England are expected to be full by the mid-2030s, with four out of five full 
by the mid-2020s (paragraph 2.12).

9.312 Paragraph 2.14 states that the consequences of not increasing airport capacity in 
the South East of England would be detrimental to the UK economy and the UK’s 
hub status.  Restrictions on international connectivity would result in airlines 
seeking to maximise profits with routes being prioritised to other locations.  In 
addition, operating at capacity means there would be little resilience to 
unforeseen disruptions, leading to increased delays.

9.313 Paragraph 2.16 sets out the Government’s position with regards to not expanding 
airport capacity.  It states:

“The Government believes that not increasing capacity will impose costs on 
passengers and on the wider economy. The Airports Commission estimated that 
direct negative impacts to passengers, such as fare increases and delays, would 
range from £21 billion to £23 billion over 60 years.  Without expansion, capacity 
constraints would impose increasing costs on the rest of the economy over time, 
lowering economic output by making aviation more expensive and less 
convenient to use, with knock-on effects in lost trade, tourism and foreign direct 
investment.” 

9.314 Chapter 1 of the APF (2013) sets out the aviation industry’s contribution to the 
UK economy, including the fact that it provides better access to markets, 
enhances communications and business interactions, facilitates trade and 
investment and improves business efficiency through time savings, reduced 
costs and improved reliability for business travellers and air freight operations.

9.315 One of the main aviation objectives is to ensure that the UK’s air links continue to 
make it one of the best connected countries in the world.  This includes 
increasing links to emerging markets so that the UK can compete successfully for 
economic growth opportunities.  This will increase in importance following Brexit.

9.316 In addition to national and aviation policy, the importance of economic 
development is set out in a raft of local strategies, policies and guidance 
including:

 The London-Stansted-Cambridge-Corridor (LSCC) Growth Commission
 South East LEP Strategic Economic Plan
 Economic Plan for Essex
 Haven Gateway Partnership A120 Campaign
 Uttlesford District Council Regulation 19 Local Plan

Page 68Page 184



 Uttlesford Economic Development Strategy
 Uttlesford Corporate Plan 2017-21
 Local Plans for surrounding local authorities
 Stansted Airport Sustainable Development Plan

9.317 The methodology for assessing socio-economic impacts is the same used in the 
ES accompanying the Generation 1 application as well as a range of other 
aviation projects and endorsed by the Airports Commission.

9.318 The ES assesses the impacts on the following:

 User benefits
 Wider socio-economic effects
 Employment effects
 Employment study areas
 Airport related employment
 Construction employment

9.319 In terms of user benefits, the ES argues that the increase in access to air 
services will increase business investment, support business growth and tourism.  
It predicts that in the DC scenario there would be an increase of 1.2 million 
business passengers and 6.8 million leisure passengers in comparison with the 
DM scenario.

9.320 Given the capacity constraints within the London airports system, it is contended 
by the applicant that this proposal would enable an extra 8 million passengers to 
access flights whose demand would not otherwise be met.  As such, the 
development case is assessed by the ES as being moderately beneficial.

9.321 The ES predicts that the potential to provide for an additional 1.2 million business 
passengers per annum would increase the attractiveness of the area for 
investment.  In addition, in terms of business efficiency and productivity, this is 
predicted to produce an increase in annual UK GVA of £1.2 billion.  As around 
79% of the passengers will be from the East of England and London the impact 
at that level is estimated to be £0.95 billion.  The wider impacts are predicted to 
be £5.6 billion at UK level and £4.4 billion at the London and East of England 
level.  Therefore, this is seen as being a major beneficial impact.

9.322 In respect of in-bound tourism, the average spend of a visitor arriving by air is 
around £700 per visit, and this rises to £860 per business passenger.  The 
predicted increase of 1.1 million leisure passengers into the UK would result in an 
additional estimated spend of £779 million in 2028.  This additional expenditure is 
estimated to support an additional 13,900 jobs in the tourism industry which 
would create GVA of £336 million (2016 prices) in 2028.  On the basis that these 
passengers would not be able to visit the UK due to capacity constraints without 
this planning permission, the proposed development is assessed as being major 
beneficial.

9.323 In respect of international trade, all UK airports account for 48% of exports and 
46% of imports by value, but less than 1% of the total volume of exports and 
imports which reflects the high value, low weight characteristics of air freight.  In 
2016, goods with a value of £6.3 billion were exported through Stansted to non-
EU destinations, while goods with a value of £6 billion were imported.  Overall, 

Page 69Page 185



Stansted accounted for 5% of all non-EU trade carried through UK airports in 
volume terms but almost 7% in value terms.

9.324 The ES concludes that the proposals would result in an additional 800 tonnes of 
cargo passing through the airport, representing an increase of 0.2% on the Do 
Minimum scenario, thus being a minor beneficial effect.

9.325 It should be noted that the 2008 consent permits 20,500 CATMs and this 
application seeks to limit the number of CATMs to 16,000.  Therefore, it is 
considered that the proposals would be neutral in their impacts in terms of cargo 
as this growth could happen without the benefit of this planning permission being 
granted.  Indeed, it could be argued that the proposals would result in a negative 
impact in respect of cargo due to the reduction in the number of CATMs per 
annum.  However, in reality the moving annual total of CATMs has only 
exceeded 14,000 once in information provided by MAG to UDC under Condition 
ATM5 of the Generation 1 planning permission.

9.326 The employment effects would arise from both the construction and the 
operational phases of the proposals.  The construction period (2021-2) is 
predicted to give rise to almost 200 direct jobs and 100 indirect jobs over the 
period.  This is predicted to give an estimated £16.2m GVA for direct employment 
and £7.2 million GVA for indirect employment.  These benefits are assessed as 
being negligible given the size of the construction industry and the short length of 
the construction period.

9.327 The operational phase of the proposal is estimated to give rise to an additional 
3,000 direct on-airport jobs and 2,400 indirect and induced jobs in comparison to 
the DM scenario.  This is predicted to give a GVA of £198.5 million for direct 
employment and £158.8 million for indirect and induced employment, totalling 
£357.3 million.  The benefits are assessed as being moderately beneficial.

9.328 Representations contend, by contrast, that the socio-economics chapter is not 
balanced, and that economic downsides (for example net tourism deficit and 
impacts on residential property market) are not considered.  The applicant has 
responded that the comparison between the DM and DC scenarios is very small 
and any consequential effects on the net demand for housing in the study area 
can only be very minor.

9.329 Generalised concerns are also raised with regards to the potential impacts of 
Brexit and that the ES does not take this into account.  However, and specifically, 
the economic forecasts that underpin the ICF traffic forecasts were provided by 
Oxford Economics in July 2016, following the Brexit Referendum result.  The 
economic forecasts were predicated on Oxford Economics’ central case.  This is 
where the UK leaves the EU on unfavourable terms, without negotiating a 
significant trade deal and the trade relationship between the UK and the EU 
therefore reverts to WTO rules.  

9.330 Essex County Council’s Economic Growth, Regeneration and Skills Department 
has assessed the application.  They consider that the increase in capacity and 
the development of new airfield infrastructure is important to the growth of the 
Essex economy.  Further Foreign Direct Investment opportunities will arise from 
new access to international markets, such as those airlines recently signed up to 
operate from the airport.

Page 70Page 186



9.331 The proposals would lead to the creation of further direct and indirect 
employment opportunities associated with the airport, providing additional jobs 
for the residents of Essex.  The proposals would also increase supply chain 
opportunities for businesses related to the operation of the airport.  ECC 
welcomes the opportunities to work with the applicant in order to identify 
initiatives and programmes of support to promote both business and employment 
growth in Essex.

9.332 In terms of skills, the applicant’s commitment to STEM (science, technology, 
engineering and maths) engagements and its collaboration with Harlow College 
with the new Stansted Airport College opening in September is welcomed.  In 
addition, their approach to apprenticeships is also recognised, although greater 
understanding of the numbers of Apprenticeships and Associated apprenticeship 
Standards was sought.  This information has not been clarified, but there is a 
commitment from the applicant to continue the STEM opportunities, such as 
working with Harlow College/Stansted Airport College.  The applicant continues 
to operate the Aerozone facility which enables school children to get an 
appreciation of the range of job opportunities available at an airport.

9.333 In respect of tourism, ECC recognises the benefits the proposals would bring to 
the local and regional economy of Essex, including tourism and leisure.  
Measures to promote Essex as a tourism destination are desired and in this 
regarding ECC has requested a yearly sum of £6000.  However, they have failed 
to demonstrate how this request meets the tests set on in paragraph 56 of the 
NPPF.  Notwithstanding this, the applicant has expressed a willingness to 
explore measures to promote Essex but does not agree that this needs to be as 
a result of this application.

9.334 The findings of this chapter of the ES are therefore reasonably considered to be 
sound and would deliver in respect of the economic growth aspirations of national 
and local policy.

H CARBON EMISSIONS

9.335 Chapter 12 of the ES assesses the carbon emissions impacts of the proposal.  

9.336 The NPPF (2018) sets out the principle of moving to a low carbon economy as 
one of the overarching objectives of the environmental strand of sustainability in 
paragraph 8(c), and in paragraphs 153-154 although this is predominantly aimed 
at energy sources and use within development.

9.337 The Government’s objective for aviation, set out in paragraph 2.4 of the APF 
(2013) is “to ensure that the aviation sector makes a significant and cost-effective 
contribution towards reducing global emissions.”

9.338 The Government’s response to its call for evidence on a new Aviation Strategy 
(April 2018) sets out that the government, at a global level, will consider their 
overarching framework for tackling UK aviation’s carbon emissions to 2050 and 
how this can ensure that aviation contributes its fair share to action on climate 
change.

9.339 This states that UK aviation accounted for around 7% of the UK’s total 
greenhouse gas emissions in 2016, an increase from around 5% in 2005 and that 
this is likely to continue to increase in proportion to other sectors, such as energy 
and manufacturing which are easier to decarbonise.  

Page 71Page 187



9.340 Paragraphs 6.12 and 6.13 state:

“In the UK, the Climate Change Act 2008 sets a legally binding target for the UK 
to reduce its greenhouse gas emissions by at least 80% by 2050, compared to 
1990 levels.  This target includes UK domestic aviation (flights which take off and 
land in the UK) but does not include emissions from international aviation.  The 
government will use the Aviation Strategy to re-examine how the aviation sector 
can best contribute its fair share to emissions reductions at both the UK and 
global level.

Globally, international aviation’s carbon emissions currently account for less than 
2% of total emissions, but these could increase by two to four times between now 
and 2050.  Internationally, the UK is committed to taking action to ensure that 
aviation plays its part in contributing to the ‘well below two degrees goal’ 
established by the Paris Agreement in 2015, and to the International Civil 
Aviation Organisation’s (ICAO’s) goal of carbon neutral growth from 2020.  
Significant progress has been made towards this objective.  Most notably, the UK 
played a crucial role in reaching agreement at the ICAO Assembly in October 
2016 on the first ever sector based global climate change deal for aviation, an 
offsetting scheme involving the purchasing of emissions reduction credits from 
other sectors, known as the Carbon Offsetting and Reduction Scheme for 
International Aviation, or CORSIA.  The Aviation Strategy will consider what 
further action the UK wants to encourage across ICAO’s full range of policy 
measures.”

9.341 The carbon emissions section then discusses the EU Emissions Trading Scheme 
(ETS), the future of which is uncertain as far as the UK is concerned.  The 
government says that it will be seeking an approach that is at least as ambitious 
as the existing scheme and provides a smooth transition for the relevant sectors.  
Since 2012, the ETS has had its scope reduced to only cover flights within the 
European Economic Area, which at Stansted is currently about 89-90% of the 
total number of flights.  The government’s position is that international aviation 
emissions are best tackled at an international level.  Stronger action at the UK 
level without an equivalent level of action internationally is likely to impose 
greater costs on airlines flying to and from the UK, thereby putting UK airlines at 
a greater competitive disadvantage compared to foreign airlines and potentially 
increasing fares.  

9.342 The government says that it will consider all cost effective measures to ensure 
that the sector continues to contribute to the UK’s emissions reductions 
obligations.  This could include operational measures such as alternatives to 
engine power when taxiing and the higher uptake of renewable fuels in 
conjunction with carbon pricing.

9.343 The APF (2013) is now showing its age in relation to topics such as carbon 
emissions.  However, this document also sets out the desire that this topic should 
be dealt with at an international level.

9.344 BTH (June 2018) the Government states that it will be using the Aviation Strategy 
to progress wider policy on carbon emissions.  In the same document, the 
Government does recognise that airports making best use of their existing 
runways could lead to increased air traffic and emissions.  Using the Committee 
on Climate Change’s planning assumption of limiting aviation emissions to 
37.5Mt of CO2 in 2050 (the carbon capped scenario), Government modelling 

Page 72Page 188



indicates that emissions in 2050 would total 40.8Mt taking into account “best use” 
and Heathrow Runway 3.   The Government accepts that there is uncertainty 
over future climate change policy and international arrangements to reduce 
CO2and other greenhouse gases, but remains confident that measures such as 
single engine taxiing and higher uptake of renewable fuels will lead to the 37.5Mt 
cap being met in 2050.  Under a carbon traded scenario requiring compensatory 
reductions elsewhere in the global economy, the Government sees nothing to 
prevent the UK meeting its obligations.     

9.345 The ANPS (2018) also sets out that the government has undertaken significant 
work in respect of assessing carbon emissions in considering the future growth of 
aviation.  Paragraph 5.70 states:

“The Government’s key objective on aviation emissions, as outlined in the 
Aviation Policy Framework, is to ensure that the aviation sector makes a 
significant and cost-effective contribution towards reducing global emissions.  
This must be achieved while minimising the risk of putting UK businesses at a 
competitive international disadvantage.  The development of the Heathrow 
Northwest Runway scheme being considered under the Airports NPS does not 
override this objective.”

9.346 The approach taken in Chapter 12 of the ES is aligned with the carbon emissions 
assessment principles as undertaken by the Airport Commission Appraisal 
Framework (ACAF) when it examined the options for meeting the UK’s 
international connectivity needs.  

9.347 The ACAF identified five areas where carbon emissions may change as a result 
of an airport scheme.  These are set out in Table 12.1 of the ES.

ACAF categories Relevance to the proposed 
scheme

Scheme phase

Increased airport capacity 
leading to a net change in 
air travel

Aircraft in the air and on the ground 
(LTO* and CCD**)

Operation

Departure and arrival 
route changes through 
altered flight operations

Not impacted by the proposed 
scheme

Operation

Embodied carbon from construction 
materials

ConstructionConstruction of new 
facilities and surface 
access infrastructure Energy consumption during 

construction
Construction

Power and heat generation on-site OperationAirside ground 
movements and airport 
operations

Consumption of energy generated 
off-site

Operation

Changes in non-aviation 
transport patterns brought 
about by a scheme

Transport associated with staff 
commuting and passenger travel

Operation

*LTO: Aircraft on the ground and in the landing and take-off cycle (below 3000 ft)
**CCD: aircraft in the climb, cruise and descent cycle (above 3000 ft)

9.348 Table 12.10 in the ES sets out the baseline and predicted carbon emissions for 
the DM scenarios for 2023 and 2028.

Page 73Page 189



Unit Base 2016 DM 2023 DM 2028
Passenger number mppa 24.3 35 35
ATM no 180,619 246,568 248,820
Carbon
Flights MtCO2 1560 2304 2274
Landside activities MtCO2e 0.003 0.004 0.004
Airside activities MTCO2e 0.007 0.010 0.010
Surface access transport MTCO2e 0.170 0.211 0.189
Total MtCO2e 1.740 2.529 2.478
Per passenger kgCO2e/

passenger
107 113 110

9.349 In respect of emissions three scenarios were used, pessimistic, central and best 
practice.

Pessimistic:  The pessimistic scenario assumed a small amount of 
improvements in aircraft and engine efficiency to represent a conservative 
projection of future aviation improvements.  The assumed improvement rate in 
this scenario is consistent with the bottom-up approach (where carbon emissions 
have been calculated from operational data provided by STAL) used for 2016-28.
Best practice:  The best practice scenario assumed improvements in all three 
improvements areas (aircraft and engine efficiency, air traffic management and 
operations, sustainable aviation fuels) and reflects the assumptions set out by 
Sustainable Aviation in their Sustainable Aviation Carbon Road-Map report
Central:  The central scenario represents a centred projection of improvement 
between the pessimistic and best practice scenario.

9.350 Using the pessimistic approach, Table 12.11 sets out the carbon emissions for 
the DM and DC scenarios for 2023 and 2028.  The improved carbon intensity 
(reduced emissions per passenger) in the DC scenario compared to the DM one 
is principally due to increased passenger throughput using the same terminal 
infrastructure.

2016-2028
Pessimistic

Unit

Base 
2016

DM 
2023

DC 2023 DM 
2028

DC 
2028

Passenger 
number

mppa 24.3 35 36.4 35 43

ATM no 180,619 246,568 252,607 248,820 273,966
Carbon
Flights MtCO2 1560 2304 2.304 2274 2.504
Landside MtCO2e 0.003 0.004 0.004 0.004 0.006
Airside MTCO2e 0.007 0.010 0.010 0.010 0.011
Transport MTCO2e 0.170 0.211 0.211 0.189 0.232
Total MtCO2e 1.740 2.529 2.529 2.478 2.753
Emissions 
per 
passenger

kgCO2e/
passenger

107 113 110 110 106

9.351 In 2028 the difference between the DM and DC scenario (rounded up) would be 
0.3 MtCO2e.  When expressed as a value per passenger, the development case 
would see an improvement in emissions by 4 kgCO2e.

Page 74Page 190



9.352 The total emissions from flights for 2050 under the three scenarios are 2.031 
MtCO2 (pessimistic), 1.768 MtCO2 (central) and 1.484 MtCO2 (best practice).  
These reductions from 2028 are predicated upon technology improvements, 
operational improvements and use of sustainable aviation fuels.

9.353 The construction phase will contribute an estimated 0.22 MtCO2e including 
emissions from the production of concrete and fuel use by construction plant on 
site.  This represents 0.9% of Stansted’s 2022 total annual emissions in the year 
during which construction is planned to be completed.  This would fall within the 
UK’s third carbon budget (2018-2022) of 2,544 MtCO2e proposed by the CCC.  
This would account for approximately 0.001% of the total allocated budget, and 
for approximately 0.09% of all UK construction in 2022.

9.354 Flight carbon accounts for 89% of carbon emissions at Stansted Airport in 2016 
and would account for 91% in the DC scenario.  The majority can be attributed to 
the emissions taking place in the CCD cycle of aircraft departing from Stansted 
Airport.

9.355 By 2028, between the DM and DC scenarios there would be a 23% increase in 
mppa, a 10% increase in ATMs and a 10% increase in flight carbon emissions.  
As such, the carbon intensity of the DC scenario would improve by around 4% 
(flights only) in 2028 from 105kgCO2/passenger to 100kgCO2/passenger 
compared with the DM scenario.  In the DC scenario, after 2028, passenger 
numbers would remain around 43mppa and the carbon intensity per passenger 
would fall to between 56kgCO2/passenger (best practice) and 
77kgCO2/passenger (pessimistic).

9.356 By 2050, the annual flight emissions from Stansted are projected to reduce to 
between 1.5MtCO2 (best practice scenario) and 2.0MtCO2 (pessimistic scenario).  
This represents between 4% and 5.3% of the 37.5MtCO2 target for UK aviation 
by 2050.

9.357 Transport carbon emissions relating to employee and passenger travel to 
Stansted are the second largest source of emissions after flights, accounting for 
6% of the airport’s total annual emissions in 2016 and 5% of the total annual 
emissions in 2023 and 2028.  It is predicted that the DC scenario would increase 
for the DC scenario between 2023 and 2028 as increases in passenger numbers 
would outweigh the vehicle efficiency improvements.

9.358 Carbon emissions relating to gas consumption accounted for 0.2% of the airport’s 
annual carbon emissions in 2016.  Electricity consumption is reported as zero 
carbon emissions reflecting the airport’s 100% ‘green’ tariff supply contract.

9.359 In respect of landside operations, emissions are predicted to rise from around 
0.003MtCO2e in 2016 to 0.0045 in the DM scenario and to 0.0055 in the DC 
scenario.  Airside operations would see an increase from 0.7MtCO2e in 2016 to 
just under 0.010 in 2028 in the DM scenario and around 0.011MtCO2e  in the DC 
scenario.

9.360 The ES concludes, at paragraphs 12.93 and 12.94, that Stansted Airport’s share 
of UK aviation carbon emissions would rise from 4% in 2016 to between 4% and 
5.3% of the UK’s aviation emissions target in 2050, that this would not be a 
substantial change, and with annual aviation carbon emissions predicted to 
decrease between 2028 and 2050.  It is considered that the DC scenario is 

Page 75Page 191



unlikely to materially impact the UK’s ability to meet its 2050 national aviation 
target of 37.5MtCO2e.

9.361 Concerns have been raised with regards to carbon emissions in the 
representations.  In respect of CORSIA, the applicant confirmed that their 
projections are not presented with CORSIA implemented.

9.362 Concerns have been raised also in respect of the improvement factors used in 
the scenarios produced by Sustainable Aviation.  However, comparisons 
between the three approaches and other studies carried out in respect of 
Heathrow NW runway and by the CCC (UK aviation target) demonstrate that the 
approaches are comparable.  The three scenarios predict improvements in the 
range of 0.9% and 1.94%.  This compares with Heathrow where improvements 
were predicted to be between 0.9% to 1.95%, and CCC where they were 
predicted to be between 0.9% an 1.8%.  As such, this authority has no reason to 
dispute the predictions shown in the ES.  Notwithstanding this, the topic is an 
international and national level issue as advised in the Aviation Strategy.  Indeed, 
paragraph 6.24 of the 2018 Aviation Strategy call for evidence response states:

“The government’s Aviation Strategy presents an opportunity to take stock of the 
considerable progress made in recent years by both industry and government 
and to look ahead at what further action is required between now and 2050.  The 
government will look again at what domestic policies are available to complement 
its international approach and will consider areas of greater scientific uncertainty, 
such as the aviation’s contribution to non-carbon dioxide climate change effects 
and how policy might make provision for their effects.”

9.363 It is reasonable to conclude that the application proposals will not materially 
impact on the ability of the government to meet its national carbon reduction 
target.

I Climate Change

9.364 Chapter 13 sets out the potential impacts with regards to climate change.  This is 
a new requirement as set out in the Town and Country Planning (Environmental 
Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 which requires an assessment of the risk 
of major accidents and/or disasters relevant to the development concerned, 
including those caused by climate change, in accordance with scientific 
knowledge.  This chapter needs to be read in conjunction with Appendices 13.1 
to 13.3 in ES Volume 2.

9.365 Paragraph 8(c) of the NPPF (2018) sets out climate change as an objective of 
the environmental objective of sustainable development.  Section 14 of the NPPF 
(2018) sets out the government’s planning policy in respect of climate change.  In 
paragraph 150 it states that developments should be planned for in ways that 
avoid increased vulnerability to a range of impacts arising from climate change 
and can help to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, such as through its location, 
orientation and design.  The latter part of the policy is not relevant to the 
proposals as no buildings are proposed as part of the development. 

9.366 The APF (2013), Section 2, Climate Change Impacts, provides guidance on 
climate change and, as with carbon emissions, paragraph 2.4 sets out the 
government’s objective similarly, together with a series of measures at different 
levels. 

Page 76Page 192



9.367 The Aviation Policy Framework states that “the Government’s objective is to 
ensure that the aviation sector makes a significant and cost-effective contribution 
towards reducing global emissions.”  This will require action at a global level.  
European and national level actions are also set out in the document.

9.368 Paragraph 2.55 of the APF refers to the Climate Change Act (2008) committing 
the UK to build resilience to the expected impacts of climate change.  A Climate 
Change Risk Assessment is required to be produced every five years.  In 2012 
the CAA, NATS and ten airports published climate change adaptation reports 
under the Climate Change Act Reporting Power and this will be repeated every 
five years.

9.369 The reports identify climate variables that pose risks to the industry, including 
increases in extreme weather affecting operations; increases in temperature 
leading to runway damage; increased rainfall posing flood risk and changes in 
wind patterns affecting air traffic movements.

9.370 The government’s position with regards to climate change is set out in the 2018 
Aviation Strategy call for evidence response in paragraphs 6.12 and 6.13, quoted 
in paragraph 9.340 above.

9.371 The ANPS sets out the government policy in respect of climate change.  It states 
that climate change mitigation is essential to minimise the most dangerous 
impacts of climate change, as previous global greenhouse gas emissions will 
already mean some degree of continued climate change for at least the next 30 
years. Climate change is likely to mean that the UK will experience on average 
hotter, drier summers and warmer, wetter winters. There is potentially an 
increased risk of flooding, drought, heatwaves, intense rainfall events and other 
extreme events such as storms and wildfires, as well as rising sea levels.

9.372 The ANPS states that new development should be planned to avoid increased 
vulnerability to the range of impacts arising from climate change.  These must be 
considered when planning design, build and operation.  Any ES should use the 
latest UK Climate Projections and should cover the estimated lifetime of the new 
infrastructure.  Any adaptation measures should be based on the latest set of 
UK Climate Projections, the most recent UK Climate Change Risk Assessment, 
consultation with statutory consultation bodies, and any other appropriate 
climate projection data.

9.373 The ES chapter reviews the meteorological data for the area, both local and 
regional, for the period 1981-2010.  A review of weather related incidents has 
also been undertaken, including a high level assessment of events for the period 
2014-17.  The assessment uses the Met Office’s UK Climate Projections 2009 
(UKCP09) to assess the potential weather patterns for the 2020’s and 2050’s.

9.374 The data indicates that the frequency of hot days, dry spells and heavy rainfall 
will increase in the future compared to the baseline, whilst the number of cold 
days will decrease.  The change between baseline and 2020’s is not vastly 
different, but there is a significant change when looking forward to the 2050’s.  
The use of de-icing is predicted to decrease, which would be an environmental 
benefit.

9.375 Table 13.8 sets out the operational stage in-combination climate change effects 
by environmental topic.  No in-combination effects were identified for the noise 
topics, nor public health and wellbeing topic.

Page 77Page 193



Environmental 
topic

In-combination climate change effect Existing or embedded 
mitigation

Surface 
access and 
transport

Adverse effect from increased stress 
on existing road and rail network in 
combination with increase in 
frequency of extreme weather events 
negatively impacting surface access 
and transport (eg damage to cabling 
and rails, inundation from flooding)

Existing mitigation is 
outline in the STAL 
Climate Change 
Adaptation Progress 
Report (CCAPR) and 
includes emergency 
contingency plans and 
coordination with road 
and rail operators (see 
risk ID CCA27)

Air quality Adverse effects from increased 
prevalence of hotter and drier 
conditions in combination with 
increase in vehicle and aircraft 
emissions may result in changes in 
concentrations of nitrogen oxides 
(NOx), fine particulate matter (PM10 
and PM2.5) and ozone (O3).  Unclear 
whether the concentrations will 
increase or decrease.

Airlines have new, 
cleaner fleet on order.
In cases where air quality 
targets are not met, an 
action plan to restore 
compliance is put in place 
by local authorities, which 
may include actions with 
which STAL would be 
expected to comply.
Whilst ozone is likely to 
increase there are limited 
mitigation measures 
available to STAL.

Socio-
economic 
effects

Adverse effect from increase in 
frequency of extreme weather events 
in combination with direct and 
indirect job creation during operation 
leading to increased stress on local 
infrastructure.

Existing mitigation is 
outlined in the STAL 
CCAPR and includes 
emergency contingency 
plans and coordination 
with road and rail 
operators (see risk ID 
CCA27).

9.376 Mitigation measures identified (other than the CCAPR) are operational matters 
which would lie outside of the planning system.  These include monitoring of 
resilience plans, weather trends, local data and risks to infrastructure.  Mitigation 
in respect of high temperatures, strong winds and high precipitation impacts and 
risks are:

 To review the demand placed on energy supplies to heat and cool 
buildings with mechanical and ventilation systems (HVAC)

 To review temperature thresholds for cooling systems within the main 
terminal building, satellite piers, and ancillary buildings, to ensure effective 
and efficient provision of cooling given projections for increased passenger 
numbers and higher temperatures in the future;

 To review allowances for maximum aircraft operating temperatures in 
collaboration with the airline operators to determine whether they are within 
tolerance of hot day (>25oC) occurrences which are likely to increase due 
to climate change

 To check weather data and potential impacts on operations

Page 78Page 194



9.377 On the basis of the information submitted in the ES, it is considered that the 
applicant has reasonably met the requirements of the EIA Regulations and no 
significant effects are identified.

9.378 It is acknowledged that representations have raised issues in respect of climate 
change and also carbon emissions.  This was also the case in respect of the 
Generation 1 application where the Inspector stated that the Inquiry into STAL’s 
appeal against the Council’s refusal to grant planning permission was not the 
forum for challenging the merits of current government policy or for debate on the 
direction of future policy.  He stated that they were matters for Parliament and 
outside the scope of the appeal.  Whilst these two issues remain to be dealt with 
at a national level by the government, the Inspector’s comments remain valid in 
respect of the consideration of this application.

J Public Health and Wellbeing

9.379 Chapter 14 of the ES reviews public health and wellbeing and should be read in 
conjunction with the Health Impact Assessment contained in Appendix 14.1 (ES 
Volume 2).  This is a new requirement set out in paragraph 4(2)(a) of the Town 
and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017.  
This stipulates that the ES must identify, describe and assess in an appropriate 
manner in light of each individual case, the direct and indirect significant effects 
of the proposed development on population and public health.

9.380 The NPPF (2018) sets out the government’s principles for sustainable 
development.  In terms of the social strand there is a requirement that 
developments support communities’ health, social and cultural well-being.  

9.381 Paragraph 180 of the NPPF (2018) states:

“Planning policies and decisions should also ensure that new development is 
appropriate for its location taking into account the likely effects (including 
cumulative effects) of pollution on health, living conditions and the natural 
environment, as well as the potential sensitivity of the site or the wider area to 
impacts that could arise from the development. In doing so they should:
a) mitigate and reduce to a minimum potential adverse impacts resulting from 
noise from new development – and avoid noise giving rise to significant adverse 
impacts on health and the quality of life;
b) identify and protect tranquil areas which have remained relatively undisturbed 
by noise and are prized for their recreational and amenity value for this reason; 
and
c) limit the impact of light pollution from artificial light on local amenity, intrinsically 
dark landscapes and nature conservation.”

9.382 The Appraisal of Sustainability which accompanies the ANPS demonstrates that 
airport expansion will attract additional air traffic, which impacts upon quality of 
life and wellbeing, in particular through noise, air quality, housing, community 
facilities, and access to nature and cultural heritage.  Whilst this application does 
not seek to increase ATMs it does seek to alter the composition of the ATMs, 
most notably a reduction in cargo flights and general aviation movements.

9.383 The construction and use of airports infrastructure has the potential to affect 
people’s health, wellbeing and quality of life.  Infrastructure can have direct 
impacts on health because of traffic, noise, vibration, air quality and emissions, 
light pollution, community severance, dust, odour, polluting water, hazardous 

Page 79Page 195



waste and pests.  It can also impact on sites of local or regional interest for 
biodiversity which also play a role in the wellbeing of communities.

9.384 The APF states the Government’s intention that decisions in respect of aviation 
should be in accordance with sustainable development principles.  This means 
making the necessary decisions now to realise its vision of stimulating economic 
growth and tackling the deficit, maximising wellbeing and protecting our 
environment, without negatively impacting on the ability of future generations to 
do the same.

9.385 ‘Health’ is commonly defined as “a state of complete physical, mental and social 
wellbeing and not merely the absence of disease or infirmity” (WHO).

9.386 The basis of the assessment in this application is to apply a broad socio-
economic model of health that encompasses conventional health impacts such 
as disease, accidents and risk, along with wider health determinants vital to 
achieving good health and wellbeing such as employment and local amenity.  It 
considers both physical and mental health, and also addresses equality and 
social impacts where possible.  It considers three broad domains of public health 
practice:

 Health protection (ie environmental pollution and standards set to protect 
health)

 Health promotion (ie healthy lifestyles, socio-economic status and 
equalities); and

 Health care (ie provision, effectiveness and equality of access to 
healthcare services)

9.387 The assessment follows a source-pathway-receptor approach to identify and 
assess health impacts that are plausible and directly attributable to the proposed 
development.  Table 14.1 sets out the potential health pathways summary.

Health pathway Potential for impact Impact type*
Construction
Exposure to air pollution 
including dust, noise, 
ground or water 
contamination
Construction traffic 
(safety, amenity, 
severance)
Construction workforce 
(housing/services 
demand, crime, infectious 
diseases)
Construction employment, 
supply chain spending

The proposed physical infrastructure 
to be constructed is minimal, with no 
potential for significant environmental 
impacts identified in ES Chapter 5 or 
in the relevant ES topic chapters.

Construction-stage health pathways 
are therefore not considered to give 
rise to any likely significant health or 
wellbeing effects and are scoped out 
of the further assessment in this 
chapter.

Temporary.

Direct, indirect 
or secondary

Page 80Page 196



Health pathway Potential for impact Impact type*
Operation

Change in air quality at residential 
and other sensitive locations

DirectAirport/aircraft air 
pollutant emissions

Impact on habitats and resulting 
change in amenity value of green/ 
recreational space

Direct

Change in noise environment at 
residential and other sensitive 
locations

DirectAirport/aircraft noise

Change in amenity value of green/ 
recreational space

Direct

Contribution to air pollution and noise 
exposure

Direct

Change in amenity value of green/ 
recreational space

Direct

Change in road safety Direct
Change in capacity or demand for 
public transport

Direct

Community severance Direct
Impacts on non-motorised users 
(NMUs)

Direct

Surface access road 
traffic generation

Change in congestion, access to 
services

Direct

Governance (airport and 
regulator)

Public participation and 
empowerment concerning 
operational impacts

Direct

Direct employment generation Direct
Education/training opportunities Direct
Supply chain spending – indirect 
employment/wealth generation

Indirect

Increase in airport’s 
economic activity with 
more passengers and 
flights

Additional employees’ impact on 
services, housing capacity, 
community cohesion

Indirect

Increased opportunity for leisure 
travel and social connections

DirectIncrease in flight capacity 
and/or connections

Increased opportunity for business 
travel with economic benefit, with 
resulting employment/wealth benefit

Indirect, 
secondary

Flood risk Risk to life or property; displacement 
from housing; impaired access to 
services

Direct

Water contamination Drinking water contamination Direct
* Impact type is ‘permanent’ (ie persisting for the foreseeable future) unless 
otherwise specified

9.388 Socio-economics:

As discussed earlier in this report, the proposals would give rise to an additional 
3000 direct employment opportunities and 2400 indirect or induced opportunities.  
Direct and indirect/induced employment has the potential to offer important long-
term health and wellbeing benefits affecting up to 5,400 people.

Page 81Page 197



9.389 Indirect quality of life, wellbeing and possibly health benefits would also be 
associated with the predicted £357m of GVA per annum by 2028.  These would 
arise through increase personal wealth and increased public revenue enabling 
spending on public services that affect health.

9.390 It is predicted that around 2.3 million additional leisure trips would be enabled by 
the proposals by 2028.  These trips have social and family benefits, or offer 
cultural, recreational or educational experiences.  This can improve general and 
mental health and thus quality of life.

9.391 The regional level benefits are assessed as having a major beneficial effect, 
supporting actions to address the Essex health objectives for ‘people not in 
education, employment or training’, ‘loneliness and social isolation’ and the 
Hertfordshire objective ‘economic wellbeing’.

9.392 Surface access:

9.393 Additional demands placed on surface access should not result in adverse 
impacts on road safety, active travel or community severance.  There should be 
negligible impacts in terms of road safety in respect of Junction 8 of the M11 and 
its link roads.  Negligible impacts on driver delay on local minor and trunk roads 
and a minor impact on Junction 8 were identified.

9.394 In terms of impacts on health and wellbeing, the proposals should not result in 
adverse impacts in terms of road traffic growth.  There should be no significant 
adverse impact on health and wellbeing due to increased congestion and 
reduced access to services is therefore considered unlikely.

9.395 The surface access chapter indicates that there would be a minor adverse impact 
on some rail, bus and coach travel services from the proposed development due 
to the increased usage.  However, it is also recognised that local bus and coach 
service operators can respond quickly to new demand and that the proposed 
development may provide a catalyst for public transport improvements.  
Therefore, any adverse wellbeing impact is likely to be very minor, if present.

9.396 Overall, the magnitude of impact on health and wellbeing is considered to be 
negligible and would not result in a significant impact in terms of demands on 
surface access.

9.397 Air Quality:

The predicted negligible changes in air quality should have no measurable extra 
adverse health outcomes per annum, with an increase of fewer than one 
emergency hospital admission or an effect on mortality equivalent to fewer than 
one additional death at typical ages predicted.

9.398 Vulnerable individuals, such as those in healthcare facilities or with existing 
respiratory diseases, will in some cases have greater susceptibility to health 
impacts from air pollutant changes.  The ES argues that this cannot be quantified 
from statistical risks applicable to the general population, but given the negligible 
magnitude of air pollutant concentration changes predicted additional risks are 
unlikely to be significant.

Page 82Page 198



9.399 Noise:

The predicted changes in air noise are considered to not result in any measured 
adverse health outcomes for ischemic heart disease (IHD), stroke or dementia, 
with an increase of fewer than one additional annual incident case predicted.

9.400 Approximately four to six additional cases of hypertension prevalent within the 
population are predicted, and additional cases of depression or anxiety 
associated with high annoyance are also possible.  The magnitude of change 
predicted is very small, being less than 1% of the baseline rate.

9.401 An increase of around 339 people who consider themselves highly annoyed by 
aircraft noise is predicted, which is around a 28% increase compared to the do 
minimum scenario.  However, a small reduction in the number of people with high 
sleep disturbance is predicted due to the very limited change in the Lnight contours 
with the proposed development.  The increase in the population predicted to be 
affected by noise should fall within the area designated for the revised SIGS 
mitigation package.

9.402 There would be a 13% increase in the number of daytime noise events above the 
assessment threshold at the most-affected school, Howe Green; the most-
affected church, St Giles in Great Hallingbury; and the most-affected healthcare 
facility, Falcon House residential care home in Little Hallingbury.  There may be 
minor potential for increased disruption to learning, to the care environment at 
Falcon House, or an impact on the quality of life for worshippers at the affected 
churches.

9.403 Overall, the magnitude of impact on health is considered to be minor adverse.  
The magnitude of impact on wellbeing and quality of life, taking into account the 
predicted changes in annoyance and sleep disturbance, is considered to be a 
minor adverse effect.

9.404 Amenity, Green Space and Physical Activity:

Significant reductions to the amenity of green space resulting in significant effects 
on quality of life and wellbeing are unlikely as a result in increases in noise due to 
the negligible increases predicted.

9.405 Some areas of the countryside, including parts of Hatfield Forest, will be affected 
by a greater level of activity exceeding 25 events a day with noise events greater 
than 65dB.  The magnitude of impact would result in a minor adverse effect on 
quality of life and wellbeing due to reduction in the amenity of green space.  The 
impacts would adversely affect actions to address the Hertfordshire objective 
‘Open space provision’ and NPPF objective ‘Open space provision and rights of 
way’.

9.406 Flood Risk and Water Contamination:

No impact on health and wellbeing due to water contamination or flooding is 
predicted.

9.407 Governance:

The application is accompanied by a Statement of Community Involvement 
detailing the consultation and public engagement undertaken by the applicant.

Page 83Page 199



9.408 The applicant engages actively with local stakeholders through the quarterly 
Stansted Airport Consultative Committee, Parish and District Council liaison 
meetings, annual community impact surveys, outreach events, complaints 
monitoring and a noise track keeping system, and reporting of all air quality and 
noise impacts.  Any adverse wellbeing and quality of life impacts due to poor 
governance are minimised and a negligible impact is predicted overall.

9.409 Mitigation measures have been briefly discussed in the relative chapters.  These 
include:

 Travel Plan – joint working with public transport providers
 A new SIGS for dwellings and other noise-sensitive properties
 A Community Fund to support projects for cultural and community 

wellbeing (see attached map for proposed funding areas)
 Stansted Airport College – complements the Airport Employment and Skills 

Academy

9.410 Further mitigation is not required as a result of the findings of the ES, but the 
applicant is seeking to develop a closer working relationship with the Directors of 
public health/local public health teams, potentially via participation in the 
Stansted Airport Consultative Committee.  This approach is supported by ECC.

9.411 Discussions have been ongoing with various parties as to how the Community 
Fund could be refreshed and operated to ensure effective mitigation in terms of 
public health and wellbeing.  This mitigation can be secured by way of s106 
Legal Obligation with appropriate terms of reference to ensure community 
involvement with the relevant stakeholders.  Previously, the fund has operated 
successfully under clauses of the 2003 s106 agreement and the 2008 unilateral 
undertaking.  Although both these time-limited obligations have now expired, the 
applicant has continued to voluntarily top up the fund each year in addition to the 
accumulated noise funds.

J Water Resources and Flood Risk

9.412 Chapter 15 of the ES discusses the potential impacts on water resources and 
flood risk.  This should be read in conjunction with the Flood Risk Assessment 
(FRA) in Appendix 15 (Volume 2) and the response to ECC LLFA consultation 
response set out in Annex 5: Water Technical Note in the Consultation Response 
and Clarifications document.

9.413 Adopted Uttlesford Local Plan Policy GEN3 seeks to direct new development to 
areas of low flood risk and to ensure that new development does not increase 
flood risk to other areas.  This policy is only partly consistent with the NPPF with 
approaches to flooding issues having developed considerably in the time since 
the policy was adopted.  Therefore, the policy has limited weight with full weight 
being given to the NPPF and associated guidance.

9.414 Policy ENV12 seeks to prevent development which would cause contamination of 
groundwater, particularly in protection zones, or result in contamination of surface 
water.  This policy is consistent with the NPPF and carries full weight.

9.415 The NPPF (2018) sets out the government’s approach with regards to flood risk 
and how decisions should be made in respect of development proposals.  In this 
instance, the physical infrastructure works are located within an area designated 

Page 84Page 200



as Flood Zone 1 which has a low probability of flooding (less than 1 in 1,000 
annual probability of river flooding in any year).

9.416 The ANPS (2018) refers to the NPPF for the approach to flood risk.  It identifies 
that there is the potential for airport expansion to result in increased risk from 
climate change effects, particularly to increased surface water runoff rate and 
pressure on potable water supply. There may also be effects on groundwater.

9.417 Sensitive receptors have been identified as:

 Stort River catchment, Pincey Brook and other associated ordinary 
watercourses that are tributaries to the main rivers

 Existing groundwater within the study area (generally the airport boundary)
 Human health and wellbeing, in respect of:

o Flood risk from all sources, including fluvial, pluvial, groundwater, 
sewer or other artificial sources

o Water quality, notably in respect of the risk of contamination from 
the use of glycol as a de-icer on the airport, as well as traces of oils, 
hydrocarbons and aircraft fuels

o Water supply and capacity, notably the potential increased demand 
on potable water supply

 Existing drainage asserts (water utility infrastructure) for the airport which 
traverse the study area

9.418 The new airfield infrastructure being proposed is located within the largest 
drainage catchment at Stansted which feeds into Balancing Pond C, which 
consists of three ponds located between the A120 and the B1256.

9.419 The conclusion of the FRA is that the risk of flooding is low or negligible from all 
sources, but possible in respect of culverts.  The existing infrastructure can be 
adapted to ensure surface water drainage flows are in line with the required 
greenfield run-off rates.  In terms of the construction phase and operational 
phases the impacts are considered to be negligible. 

9.420 The LLFA has not raised an objection to the proposals on the basis of the FRA, 
the Drainage Strategy and run-off rates as set out in the original submissions and 
subsequent update.  

9.421 In terms of potential contamination, the construction phase could potentially alter 
ground conditions resulting in a deterioration of surface water quality or a 
reduction in flows in the water courses.  The sensitivity of underlying groundwater 
is considered high due to the regional importance of groundwater resources but 
the risk of vertical migration of pollutants from the construction works is low.  
Therefore, there could be a short term negligible to minor adverse effect, before 
mitigation.  

9.422 Mitigation for the construction phase is proposed by way of a Construction 
Environmental Management Plan, which is standard mitigation for this type of 
impact.  This would reduce the potential impacts to negligible.

9.423 In terms of operational impacts, potential contaminants are glycol (de-icer) and 
small traces of oil, hydrocarbons and aircraft fuel.  Contaminated water is 
currently managed within Balancing Pond C which has three compartments 
termed ‘clean’, ‘dirty’ and ‘overflow’.  Subsequently, discharged water is pumped 

Page 85Page 201



through the Thames Water (TWUL) sewerage network for treatment at Rye Mead 
Waste Water Treatment Works (WWTW) at the rates agreed with TWUL.

9.424 It is proposed that this arrangement would continue as a result of the proposed 
development.  In respect of this the LLFA raised an objection on the basis that 
the proposed pollution risk had not been fully addressed.  In addition, TWUL 
raised concerns with regards to proposed discharge rates.

9.425 Additional information has been supplied by the applicant in respect of pollution 
controls and these have been assessed by the LLFA who now raises no 
objections.  In respect of flow rates, the applicant, outside of the planning system, 
is addressing this issue with additional information passed to the Asset Planners 
at Thames Water for review.  In terms of impact, the contaminated flow is 
anticipated to increase by around 1.9% as a result of the additional 7.02ha 
increase in hardstanding over the existing 36.8ha.

9.426 The ES concludes that there is likely to be a direct, long term negligible effect 
due to the additional surface water discharges from the site, prior to the 
implementation of additional mitigation.

9.427 In terms of impacts on potable water supplies, the demand will fluctuate 
throughout the construction phase.  Nevertheless, given the context of daily 
water consumption throughout the airport, this is envisaged as being minimal and 
representing a negligible effect on the local water supply network.

9.428 Water efficiency measures across the airport have seen water consumption 
reduce by around 50,000m3 since 2008.  The average consumption per 
passenger has reduced from 30 litres to 28 litres.  In respect of the operational 
phase, a worst case scenario has been used which envisages no further 
improvements to water efficiency across the airport.  On this basis it is predicted 
that the airport would consume 1,172.5 million litres of water in the 2028 DM 
case and 1.474 million litres in the 2028 DC scenario.

9.429 The ES specifies that Anglian Water does not raise concerns with regards to the 
volume of water consumption, but rather the rate of supply.  It has been proposed 
that the rate of supply is reduced but the period over which it is supplied is 
extended.  This would reduce the pressure on the existing AW mains, but should 
allow the airport’s private water supply network to continue to operate in a similar 
manner to existing.  This would be a private arrangement between the applicant 
and AW outside of the planning system.  This is viewed as having a minor 
adverse effect, which would reduce to negligible with the implementation of 
additional water efficiency measures which could reduce consumption by around 
20%.  Anglian Water has not responded to the consultation and therefore case 
law states that assumptions must be made that the statutory consultee has no 
issues to raise.

9.430 Demands on foul water infrastructure in respect of the additional infrastructure 
are not required to be considered as part of the planning process as these now 
fall outside of the planning system.  However, in the winter period when glycol is 
being used then the development is likely to increase the amount of 
contaminated water which would need to be treated at Rye Mead WWTW.  
Thames Water has raised concerns that the potential increase in flows could 
result in upgrades to the WWTW that are either not technically feasible or not 
cost effective.

Page 86Page 202



9.431 The applicant’s response on this matter is that in line with the latest connection 
charges rules introduced on 1 April 2018 under the Water Industry Act 1991 (as 
amended 2014) any offsite reinforcement works to sewers or waste water 
treatment works will now be captured by Thames Water through adjustments to 
the infrastructure charges, not through any planning agreements or conditions. 

9.432 Thames Water has subsequently responded that the new connection charge 
rules are not applicable to Wastewater Treatment.  However, it has confirmed 
that a study is currently being undertaken to investigate the potential options to 
accommodate increased wastewater flows from predicted growth, both in respect 
of this application and additional housing associated with Uttlesford and East 
Herts new Local Plans.  The results of the study are not expected until December 
2018, but a technical option is believed to be feasible.

9.433 Contaminated flows are processed by Water and Sewerage Undertakers as part 
of Trade flows (ie contaminated surface water).  Sewer network capacity and 
treatment capacity is a commercial agreement whereby the applicant will be 
required to fund any upgrades needed to accommodate increase discharge rates 
(if capacity does not currently exist).  This would be outside of the planning 
system.

9.434 The EA has raised issues relating to the Uttlesford District Council Water Cycle 
Study update.  They state that the assumptions in the ES will need to be 
reviewed following the publication of the update.  This would certainly be the 
case if the revised WCS had been published.  However, this is not envisaged to 
be completed until February 2019, with an interim note at the end of October 
2018.  The WCS interim note will include a high level sensitivity test for 43mppa 
at Stansted Airport.

9.435 The EA understands that the foul water from Stansted Airport is treated at 
Bishops Stortford Waste Water Treatment Works (WWTWs).  The consented 
discharge of final effluent from Bishops Stortford WWTWs discharges into the 
Water Framework Directive (WFD) designated water body of Great Hallingbury 
Brook.  The EA advises that this water body currently has a Poor classification, 
with Very Certain confidence, for Phosphate. Source Appointment GIS (SAGIS) 
modelling indicates that 94.2% of the phosphate input into this water body is the 
result of WWTW load. All other Phys-chem determinants are at High, Very 
Certain, status.

9.436 The EA has reviewed data submitted through Operator Self-Monitoring for the 
final effluent of Bishops Stortford WWTWs which indicates that the airport is 
currently operating within the industry standard for phosphorus; concentration 
levels of the final effluent were within 1-2milligrams per litre (mg/l) of phosphorus. 
However, unless the phosphate treatment process is improved, then increased 
total volumes of foul water to Bishops Stortford WWTWs will further add to the 
phosphate load for Great Hallingbury Brook.

9.437 Additionally, the EA has concerns regarding deterioration of the other Phys-chem 
elements, specifically Ammonia and Dissolved Oxygen. Their guidance allows for 
a 10% deterioration of water quality, providing there is no deterioration of the 
WFD Classification status.

9.438 Whilst the EA acknowledges that STAL is correct in their understanding of the 
new charging rules introduced 01 April 2018, as detailed in Section 10.11 (STAL 
Response Column) they state that STAL do need to be aware that it is up to the 

Page 87Page 203



developer to demonstrate that their proposal will have no detrimental impact with 
regards to WFD.

9.439 The EA has therefore recommended a condition be imposed requiring the 
applicant to undertake modelling to ensure that the increased passenger 
numbers and associated increase in total foul water volumes will not result in a 
deterioration of the water body known as Great Hallingbury Brook.

K NON-SIGNIFICANT TOPICS

9.440 Chapter 16 of the ES discusses what is termed as non-significant topics, those 
where significant effects are not envisaged and therefore scoped out of the main 
report.  These are:

 Biodiversity
 Land and soil (including contamination)
 Cultural Heritage (including archaeology and built heritage assets)
 Landscape (including visual impacts)
 Waste
 Major Accidents and/or Disasters

9.441  Biodiversity:

In respect of biodiversity, the issue of air quality impacts on biodiversity, in 
particular local SSSIs and Epping Forest SAC, is discussed in the Air Quality 
section of this report.

9.442 Policy GEN7 seeks to protect wildlife and planning permission will only be 
granted when the need for the development outweighs the harm.  Where 
protected species would be affected then mitigation measures would need to be 
secured by way of a condition or legal obligation.  This policy is only partially 
consistent with the NPPF with the latter document clarifying and strengthening 
the requirements in protecting and enhancing the natural environment.  The 
policy therefore has little weight.

9.443 Paragraph 8(c), environment objective, of the NPPF (2018) considers improving 
biodiversity.  Chapter 15 of the NPPF relates to conserving and enhancing the 
natural environment.  Paragraph 175(a) states that if significant harm to 
biodiversity resulting from a development cannot be avoided (through locating on 
an alternative site with less harmful impacts), adequately mitigated, or, as a last 
resort, compensated for, then planning permission should be refused.

9.444 The Biodiversity and ecological conservation section of the ANPS sets out the 
government’s policies in respect of biodiversity, the main aims of which are to halt 
overall biodiversity loss, support healthy, well-functioning ecosystems, and 
establish coherent ecological networks, with more and better places for nature for 
the benefit of wildlife and people.

9.445 On-site ecology is limited to four areas of airfield grassland and, at one location, 
the potential disturbance/displacement of protected species (common lizard and 
great crested newt).  Surveys reveal that this is likely to be a ‘low’ population of 
common lizards, with a high number of juveniles suggesting that this is a 
breeding population.  Two great crested newts were found during the reptile 
surveys.

Page 88Page 204



9.446 Mitigation in respect of the protected species is to re-survey the land prior to the 
construction works being undertaken and translocation under licence from 
Natural England.  Translocation, if necessary, will be to an off-site receptor site 
(Monk’s Farm, Burton End) which is within the applicant’s ownership and had 
planning permission granted under reference UTT/16/0837/FUL for the creation 
of new aquatic and terrestrial habitats.  This would be in accordance with Policy 
GEN7 and the NPPF.  ECC Ecologist has advised that the site should be 
monitored and that this should be secured by condition or s106 Legal Obligation.  

9.447 Whilst there is a monitoring programme associated with the consent granted 
under UTT/16/0837/FUL, this is only for a period of 5 years.  Therefore, if 
planning permission is granted there is the potential for the translocation works to 
take place towards the end of the current monitoring programme.  As such, it is 
considered reasonable to require a condition relating to the monitoring of the 
translocation site should planning permission be granted.

9.448 With regards to non-statutory wildlife sites, the ES identifies that there are 10 
sites within 2km of the application boundary, six of which fall within the airport 
boundary.  The main focus of the ES is in respect of air quality impacts on the 
SSSIs, which has been discussed previously.

9.449 The potential impacts on special verges have been raised as a concern by a 
consultee.  Adopted Uttlesford Local Plan Policy ENV9 states that development 
likely to harm such environments will not be permitted unless the need for the 
development outweighs the historic significance of the site.  The policy is 
consistent with the NPPF (2018) and the added criteria for the assessment of 
substantial and less than substantial harm for designated assets is also relevant 
in respect of this policy.  The policy therefore carries full weight.

9.450 In this instance, the potential for harm is not direct but rather potential harm from 
increased vehicular movements or fly parking.  Some fly parking may be directly 
related to the application and the Transport Forum has and will continue to work 
with other stakeholders on a measured response.  Therefore, it is not considered 
that the potential harm to special verges would outweigh the benefits of the 
proposal.  The less than substantial harm to special verges would be outweighed 
by the public benefits of the proposals.

9.451 In relation to potential impacts on Hatfield Forest, there is already a requirement 
in the 2008 Legal Obligation for the applicant to carry out air quality monitoring at 
the site.  Planning permission has been granted and consent has been obtained 
from Natural England to install the monitoring equipment.  It is considered 
appropriate to require the continued monitoring of Hatfield Forest if planning 
permission is granted, with the requirement to implement agreed mitigation 
measures if harm related to the development is identified and mitigation is 
required.

9.452 Land and Soil (including ground conditions and contamination)

Approximately 7ha of land is required for the provision of new infrastructure in 
relation to the proposals.  This is land within the airport boundary and 
immediately adjacent to the runway.  It is noted that representations have been 
made in respect of the loss of land for the growing of crops.  However, given its 
airside location and the operational safety issues regarding the use of this land 
for crops this is not a material planning consideration.

Page 89Page 205



9.453 Whilst this proposal would result in the loss of greenfield areas, there are no 
specific planning policies relating to such land, other than those in respect of 
biodiversity and protected habitats.

9.454 Approximately 46,000m3 of spoil would be generated by the excavation works for 
the new taxiways and stands.  This is not expected to be contaminated spoil and 
is therefore proposed to be used for landscaping within the airport boundary.  In 
the event that the spoil cannot be used within the airport boundary then it would 
be stored for use elsewhere.  Details of how the spoil will be utilised should be 
included in a CEMP which can be secured by way of a condition if planning 
permission is granted.

9.455 The proposed development is not envisaged to give rise to increased risk of 
contamination and as such no significant effects on land and soil are predicted. 

9.456 Cultural Heritage

Significant archaeological investigations have previously been carried out within 
the airport boundary.  These have found evidence of a medieval settlement and 
the location of Stansted Park. 

9.457 Adopted Uttlesford Local Plan Policy ENV4 seeks to protect sites of 
archaeological interest and where preservation is not possible or feasible then 
archaeological investigation works will be required.  The policy is consistent with 
the NPPF (2018) and carries full weight.  Chapter 16 of the NPPF (2018) seeks 
to conserve and enhance the historic environment.  A balanced judgement is 
required when considering applications which will affect the significance of a non-
designated heritage asset.  This includes assessing whether the harm arising 
from the proposals is substantial or less than substantial.  The level of harm must 
then be weighed against the public benefits arising from the proposals.

9.458 Adopted Uttlesford Local Plan Policy ENV2 seeks to protect the setting of listed 
buildings.  This policy is consistent with the NPPF (2018) as it is in line with 
statutory duties as set out in the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation 
Areas) Act 1990.  The policy therefore has full weight.  Similarly, paragraphs 193-
6 of the NPPF (2018) set out the planning considerations in respect of assessing 
planning applications affecting listed buildings, including their setting.  Where less 
than substantial harm would arise the harm should be weighed against the public 
benefits of the proposal.  

9.459 The assessment of impacts on archaeology concludes that there would only be a 
negligible impact on archaeology as long as standard mitigation measures were 
followed during the construction works.

9.460 The application has been considered by ECC’s Principal Historic Environment 
Advisor who advises that there would not be any impacts on archaeology and no 
conditions are recommended requiring investigation prior to development.

9.461 With regards to listed buildings, there are two Grade II listed buildings within the 
airport boundary.  These are currently within the setting of the wider airport and 
this would not change as a result of the proposals.  There would not be any harm 
arising from the proposed development in terms of the physical works.  
Therefore, it is not considered that there should be any adverse impacts on listed 
buildings.

Page 90Page 206



9.462 Landscape:

Adopted Uttlesford Local Plan Policy S4 has a presumption in favour of 
development directly related to or associated with Stansted Airport.  Policy GEN2 
relates to development which needs to be compatible with its surroundings and 
should minimise its impacts on neighbours.  Adopted Uttlesford Local Plan Policy 
GEN4 seeks to protect the occupiers of surrounding properties from impacts 
relating to noise, vibrations, smell, dust, light, fumes and other pollutants.  This 
policy has been assessed as being compatible with the NPPF (2018) and carries 
full weight.  Adopted Uttlesford Local Plan Policy GEN5 seeks to prevent 
development resulting in adverse impacts with regards to light pollution.  This 
policy has no compatibility issues with the NPPF (2018) and carries full weight.    
The majority of impacts have already been discussed in detail in previous topic 
chapters.

9.463 The construction works would be compatible with airfield operations and should 
not result in any visual impacts.  Construction lighting would be required, but this 
should be seen in the context of the existing airfield lighting and therefore should 
not give rise to any harm.

9.464 The operational phase would see an intensification of use of the airfield, the 
impacts of which have already been discussed.  Whilst there would be an 
increase in flights from the current level of operations, the ATMs already have the 
benefit of planning permission with the 2008 consent.

9.465 As such, the proposals should not give rise to any adverse impacts and would 
comply with policies S4, GEN2, GEN4 and GEN5.

9.466 Waste:

Construction waste would predominantly be spoil which would be reused within 
the airport boundary.  In addition, it is proposed that there would be a CEMP in 
place during the construction works to ensure best environmental practices are 
undertaken.

9.467 With regards to operational waste, the applicant requires all new development to 
incorporate appropriate waste management and recycling facilities, and resource 
efficiency is considered in procurement decisions.  They are working towards a 
minimum target of 70% operational waste being recycled by 2020 as well as 
sending zero waste to landfill. 

9.468 In 2017 the airport produced approximately 6,909 tonnes of waste (including 
hazardous waste; excluding cabin waste), corresponding to approximately 0.26kg 
waste per passenger.

9.469 The airport has a Waste Strategy 2014-2030 which sets out its monitoring and 
targeting of waste.  It sets out waste reduction measures to be carried out across 
the airport. 

9.470 Given the existing measures in place, plus the proposals within the Waste 
Strategy, it is not considered that the proposals should give rise to any significant 
environmental impacts in terms of waste.

Page 91Page 207



9.471 Major Accidents and/or Disasters:

The airfield is governed by a rigorous safety regime, licensed by the CAA.  The 
risk of a major aviation safety breach, accident or related disaster involving an 
aircraft because of the proposed development is determined to be negligible.

9.472 Construction works will at some points be carried out whilst the runway is 
operational.  There are strict operational controls in place to ensure work place 
safety.  The likelihood of an accident occurring as a result of the construction 
activity is minimal.

9.473 Public Safety Zones are designated on land either end of the runway and there 
are policy objectives which seek to ensure that there is no increase in the number 
of people living, working or congregating in these zones.  These zones are not 
envisaged to be altered as a result of the proposed development.  Public Safety 
Zone policy is administered by the DfT, and the extent of each zone is reviewed 
periodically.

9.474 Bird control measures are in place at the airport to mitigate the potential for 
accidents from bird strike.  These risks are not envisaged to increase as a result 
of the proposed development.

9.475 Airfield lighting is installed in accordance with other legislation outside the control 
of the planning system.  Therefore, there is no potential for increased risk of 
accidents in relation to lighting.

9.476 The airport suffers no exceptional climatic conditions that regularly affect its 
operations (eg extended periods of fog or high winds) and it currently offers an 
excellent level of resilience during adverse weather conditions.  In addition, the 
surrounding area is free of natural or physical obstructions that might impact on 
aircraft range or payload.  The proposed development has no bearing on these 
existing conditions.  As such, the risk of major accidents and/or disasters 
occurring at the airport in the construction and operational phases is negligible.

L Cumulative Effects

9.477 Chapter 17 of the ES considers the cumulative effects of the proposals.  These 
fall within two categories:

9.478 Type 1 – The interactive effects resulting from the associated effects of individual 
components or activities of the proposed development on a sensitive receptor, for 
example noise, airborne dust or traffic effects on a single receptor/group of 
receptors; and

Type 2 – The combined effects of several schemes which may on an individual 
basis be insignificant (negligible or minor), but additively, have a significant 
(moderate or major) effect.

9.479 A list of schemes considered with regards to cumulative effects is set out in the 
ES.  This is a list of consented schemes envisaged to be delivered within the 
foreseeable future which have the benefit of planning permission.  In all cases, 
the addition of these schemes has already been factored into the future 
environmental baseline within any assessments based on traffic data.  

Page 92Page 208



9.480 Developments outside of the administrative boundary of Uttlesford have not been 
included in the cumulative assessment.  Given the location of potential schemes 
in relation to the airport, the cumulative impacts are most likely to arise in respect 
of effects where traffic data would be used.  By using TEMPro for the traffic 
model it ensures that traffic generation from with schemes outside of the district 
are factored into the environmental baseline for future years.

9.481 In addition to committed schemes, proposed works which already has the benefit 
of planning permission, or are proposed to be carried out under permitted 
development, are included.  These include:

 Stansted Transformation Phase 1 – improvements to the terminal
 Stansted Transformation Phase 2 

o Arrivals terminal
o Conversion of existing terminal to departures terminal

 Airfield: Runway Rehabilitation (part of Phase 3) – expected to take place 
in 2022-23

 New car parks
o Two new ‘meet and greet’ surface car parks
o Two short stay multi-storey car parks
o The extension of an existing surface car park
o New staff car park

9.482 Whilst there is the potential for some overlap between the construction phase 
and the cumulative schemes, the ES concludes that there should not be any 
significant environmental effects arising.  CEMPs would be in place in respect of 
each of the projects which would require the monitoring and mitigation of any 
adverse effects that could arise from issues such as noise, HGV movements, 
waste, erosion, sedimentation and pollution.

9.483 Table 17.3 sets out the cumulative impact assessment matrix (see attached at 
end of report).  This concludes that for the majority of topics the residual impacts 
and combined cumulative effects should be negligible.  In respect of socio-
economic impacts, the residual impacts were concluded to be minor-major 
beneficial and the cumulative effects moderately beneficial.  In terms of public 
health and wellbeing, the residual impacts should be negligible – major beneficial 
and the cumulative effects are considered to be the same.  Negligible – minor 
adverse residual impacts and cumulative effects are predicted in relation to water 
resources.  These conclusions are reasonable.

M Other issues

9.484 Education:

ECC Education has requested a financial contribution in respect of the provision 
of Early Years and Child Care facilities.  They consider that an additional 5,500 
employees would generate a requirement for an additional 220 EYCC places.  
However, this calculation has only assessed the total amount of additional 
employment without any analysis of the origin of the additional employees, 
working patterns or the potential for child care facilities being made in locations 
other than the immediate area around the airport.  

9.485 There is a suggestion that a new facility should be provided within the airport.  
However, discussions between officers, the applicant and ECC have revealed 

Page 93Page 209



that such a facility was provided previously but was not successful and 
subsequently closed. 

9.486 Given the flawed analysis by ECC, which has not been reassessed despite 
requests to do so, it is not considered that the proposed request would meet the 
NPPF or CIL Regulations tests.  Therefore, it would not be appropriate to request 
the financial contribution of £3,194,180 for the 220 EYCC places.

9.487 Rapid Transit System

One of the requirements set out in the Regulation 19 Uttlesford Local Plan Policy 
SP11 is “To assist development of new rapid transit options between the airport 
and new and existing communities, land will be safeguarded to allow access at 
the terminal. The council will seek financial contributions from the airport operator 
for the delivery of an appropriate scheme.”

9.488 There is an ambition to develop an RTS connecting proposed new settlements 
across North Essex, including the settlement West of Braintree, proposed Easton
Park and Stansted Airport, and potentially Gilston located in the East Herts 
district. To date the feasibility study work on the Stansted Airport to West of 
Braintree section is on-going and no firm conclusions have been reached about 
mode or proposed route(s).

9.489 ECC has set out a requirement in their response for the applicant, in agreement 
with the local highway authority to identify and reserve land required to 
accommodate any future Rapid Transport System, and form an east-west link 
between the airport and any future growth locations identified in the Local 
Plan(s).

9.490 The ES has not identified a significant increase in demand as to warrant the 
development of an RTS to serve the airport, either in isolation or in combination.  
Furthermore, the stages reached in the preparation of the relevant local plans 
mean that there are still uncertainties as to where new growth will be proposed in 
plans yet to be examined or still being examined and not yet adopted, with the 
potential for main modifications.  Given the uncertainties around future 
development, and the fact that the development does not generate a requirement 
for the RTS, it would be inappropriate to require the applicant to safeguard the 
land as part of this application.

9.491 The potential provision of the RTS will need to be explored by way of the Local 
Plan process.

10 Conclusion

10.1 In paragraph 1.26 of Beyond the Horizon (June 2018), the government expects 
applications to increase existing planning caps by fewer than 10 million 
passengers to be taken forward under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.  
The application was made in February 2018 and proposes to change the existing 
cap by increasing the passenger numbers that can go through Stansted Airport 
by 8mppa, from 35mppa to 43mppa.

10.2 The application is made against a backdrop of national and local policy support 
for, and new particular national policy for, making best use of the existing runway 
infrastructure, as set out in the Aviation Policy Framework (2013), and the most 
recent Policy Statement on best use of existing capacity,  taking careful account 

Page 94Page 210



of relevant considerations, particularly economic and environmental impacts and 
proposed mitigations taking account also of relevant national policies in “Beyond 
the Horizon” (June 2018). 

10.3 The application is for EIA development and Regulation 3 of the Town and 
Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 requires 
that the planning authority not grant planning permission unless an EIA has been 
carried out in respect of that development.  The application is accompanied with 
an ES which demonstrates the applicant’s case that the proposals represent 
sustainable development and would not result in significant adverse impacts.  
This ES has been assessed for its adequacy in accordance with the Town and 
Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 and has 
been considered to be adequate notwithstanding some omissions and 
inadequacies (see section 10 below).

10.4 Regulation 4(5) of the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact 
Assessment) Regulations 2017 requires the local planning authority to ensure 
they have, or have access as necessary to, sufficient expertise to examine the 
environmental statement.  In this regard, the case officer has worked in 
conjunction with officers from Essex County Council (ECC), Hertfordshire County 
Council (HCC), East Herts District Council (EHDC), Place Services (ECC), 
Network Rail, Highways England (HE), Natural England, and UDC’s 
Environmental Health Manager (Protection), Senior Health Improvement Officer 
and the Communities Manager.  Further expertise has been provided to ECC and 
HE by Jacobs and AECOM respectively.  Officers have also been advised by 
consultants from WYG (air quality) and Bickerdike Allen Partners LLP (BAP).  
Consultation advice has been given by Thames Water and the Environment 
Agency (EA).

10.5 Regulation 63 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 
requires the competent authority, before deciding to give any permission for a 
plan which is:

a. Is likely to have a significant effect on a European site or a European 
offshore marine site (either alone or in combination with other plans or 
projects), and

b. Is not directly connected with or necessary to the management of that site,

make an appropriate assessment of the implications of the plan or project for that 
site in view of that site’s conservation objectives.  Natural England is satisfied 
that the application is broadly acceptable, alone and/or in combination with the 
Regulations, in particular, in relation to Epping Forest SAC.  An Appropriate 
Assessment has concluded that only a de Minimis effect from nitrogen deposited 
on vegetation on a particular unit in that SAC, resulting from vehicles related to 
the development passing along the nearby M25, occurs and that as such adverse 
effects will not arise.

Development Plan

10.6 Section 38(6) of the Planning Act 2004 requires that the determination be made 
in accordance with the provisions of the development plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise.

10.7 Paragraphs 9.78 to 9.105 set out the planning balance in respect of the 
Development Plan.

Page 95Page 211



Material Considerations

10.8 The Regulation 19 Uttlesford District Plan is a material consideration but carries 
limited weight at this time.  The Spatial Vision identifies the importance of 
Stansted Airport in the London Stansted Cambridge Corridor and Policy SP11 – 
London Stansted Airport reflects this.  This policy is subject to 20 objections and 
has not yet been tested for soundness.  Notwithstanding this, the emphasis of the 
policy at the present time is to support sustainable growth of the airport.  This 
assessment will be made in respect of adopted policies, the NPPF and other 
material considerations.

10.9 The NPPF (2018), Aviation Policy Framework (2013), the emerging Aviation 
Strategy (April 2018), and Beyond the Horizon, The Future of UK Aviation, 
Making best use of existing runways (June 2018), are material considerations.  In 
summary, the first supports sustainable development and the last provides 
government support for making best use of existing runways, taking careful 
account of all relevant considerations, particularly economic and environmental 
impacts and proposed mitigations.  The NPPF (2018), Beyond the Horizon (April 
and June 2018) carry substantial weight because each have an evidence base, 
are up to date, and were widely consulted on.  The Aviation Policy Framework 
(2013) carries substantial weight insofar as it is the government’s policy in 
respect of aviation.  However, some aspects may be slightly dated in their 
approach and also overtaken by the more recent particular Policy Statement in 
“Beyond the Horizon” (June 2018).

Growth and Need

10.10 The ES sets out the predicted growth of the airport from the baseline of 2016 with 
a DM scenario of the consented 35mppa and a predicted growth to 43mppa, as 
applied for in this application.  The ES then assesses the impacts of the 
additional growth from 35mppa to 43mppa with a DM and DC scenario for 2023, 
the year at which the divergence is predicted to occur, and 2028, the year in 
which the level of growth is predicted to reach the limits applied for.  The 
approach by the ES to growth and need of the particular airport is reasonable.

Surface Access

10.11 The impacts on the strategic and local road networks have been considered in 
conjunction with Highways England, ECC and HCC.  Overall, it is predicted that 
there would be no significant adverse impacts on either the strategic or local road 
networks subject to appropriate mitigation being secured by way of s106 Legal 
Obligation.  The mitigation measures include a scheme for alterations to the M11 
Junction 8 which is considered to be acceptable to Highways England.  Other 
mitigation measures relate to funding for improvements to local roads, including 
the improvements to cycling and walking links, and bus and coach services and 
infrastructure.  The funding mechanisms would be overseen by the SATF and its 
working groups.  Funding would come from the Transport Levy plus sums of ring 
fenced capital funding.

10.12 These funding mechanisms have previously been incorporated into earlier s106 
Legal Obligations (or equivalents) and have been assessed as being the most 
appropriate mechanism for delivering the mitigation measures.  However, the 
terms of reference for SATF working groups, in particular the Bus and Coach 
Group need to be refreshed to enable future flexibility given the changes in 

Page 96Page 212



technology and service delivery that are being explored.  Whilst specific routes 
and services have been identified by consultees it is not considered that this is an 
appropriate way of delivering the mitigation as the services are reliant on third 
party bus and coach companies who will need a business case for delivering a 
new or improved service.  The SATF will also need to be reassured that any 
proposal represents value for money before agreeing to release funding.

Noise:

10.13 Air noise is an area of great complexity given different perceptions to noise 
across the population.  The government recognises that evidence has shown that 
people’s sensitivity to noise has increased in recent years, and there has been 
growing evidence that exposure to high levels of noise can adversely affect 
people’s health.

10.14 There is also recognition that over recent decades there have been reductions in 
aviation noise (air and ground) due to technological and operational 
improvements and that this trend is expected to continue.  The government, 
therefore, wants to strike a fair balance between the negative impacts of noise 
and the positive impacts of flights.  They expect airports looking to make best use 
of their existing runways to share in the economic benefits of expansion with the 
communities by way of reducing noise impacts.

10.15 Impacts from air noise and ground noise from aircraft and associated operations, 
construction operations and vehicles associated with the proposed growth of the 
airport have been considered in the ES.

10.16 The ES demonstrates that there will be an increase in population within the 
LOAEL category in daytime, as set out in the NPSE.  There will be a reduction of 
population affected by night time noise.  However, whilst there will be an increase 
of people affected, the increases in noise levels will be around 0.5 and 0.6dB and 
therefore imperceptible. 

10.17 Noise contours only tell part of the story and relate to average noise levels across 
a specific time period, 16 hours in the day and 8 hours at night.  However, noise 
isn’t perceived on an average basis but rather in terms of the number of events.  
Averaging can hide impacts from increases in numbers of events.  In order to 
enable an assessment of overflight impacts Nx contours were produced, N65 for 
daytime (number of flights exceeding 65dB(A)) and N60 for night time (number of 
flights exceeding 60dB(A)).  These demonstrate that there will be an increase of 
72 movements per day.  The N65 contours at levels of 100 and 200 (the number 
of overflights) closest to the airport enlarge at 2028 in comparison to the 2016 
baseline as these areas will experience the increased number of overflights.

10.18 There are concerns in respect of noise levels at four schools, Howe Green 
School, Spellbrook Primary School, The Leventhorpe School and Mandeville 
Primary School.  Spellbrook Primary School is predicted to experience noise 
levels slightly higher than the recommended 73dB LAmax when B737Max are in 
operation.

10.19 The mitigation measure for properties, including schools, community buildings 
and places of worship, affected by noises is a revised and updated SIGS.  This 
offers financial support for noise insulation measures.  The current scheme 
requires funding from property owners and covers 1088 properties.  The revised 
scheme offers maximum grants and would not require funding from the owner.  

Page 97Page 213



The scheme would be available for over 2000 properties offering different levels 
of grants according to the noise levels experienced at the property.

10.20 An additional mitigation measure in respect of daytime noise is a noise contour 
which currently has a maximum area of 33.9km2.  Operations at the airport are 
not predicted to exceed this contour and the ES predicts that this would reduce 
over time with the introduction of quieter aircraft.  Therefore, it is considered that 
to ensure the operations at the airport share the benefits with the local 
community it is appropriate to impose a noise contour condition which reduces in 
size over time.  If, as a consequence of slower uptake of quieter aircraft for 
example, noise levels do not reduce at the rate set out in the ES then operations 
at the airport would be curtailed by the noise contour.

10.21 Night noise is controlled by measures put in place by the government and is not a 
matter for the local authority to seek to control.  Night movements are predicted 
to increase from 82 movements per night to 104 and 107 in the DM and DC 
scenario under the current restrictions.  These levels would be reached 
irrespective of planning permission being granted for this proposal.

10.22 An additional mitigation measure is the imposition of fines for flights exceeding 
noise levels.  The fines are proposed to be paid into a Community Fund which 
would be given over to community projects to improve health and wellbeing.

10.23 In terms of air noise, the assessment methodology, approach and level of detail 
contained in the ES is satisfactory and the proposed mitigation measures are 
adequate.  As such the proposals should not result in significant adverse impacts 
in respect of air noise.

10.24 Ground noise comes from various sources including the use of power units, plant 
and equipment and also construction.  Comparison of the data sets shows 
increases in noise levels indicate an increase at Molehill Green (the worst 
affected location) of +3dB during the daytime and +2.5dB at night from the 2016 
baseline.  However, the comparison between the DC and DM scenarios indicates 
an imperceptible change.

10.25 Construction is predicted to take place between 2021-2 and the main focus of the 
assessment was the key sensitive night time period.  This showed increases at 
the receptors of between 0.2dB and 10.6dB.  Whilst the increase of 10.6dB (at 
the Ash Public House) is a large increase, the noise level experienced at that 
receptor would still be below the 45dB threshold where annoyance is expected to 
be experienced.

10.26 Some of the mitigation measures associated with air noise would also be 
applicable to receptors affected by ground noise.  The findings of the ES are not 
disputed and the proposed mitigation measures are considered to be acceptable.

10.27 Surface access noise assessments did not include rail on the basis that the new 
rolling stock which would accommodate that additional growth in passenger 
numbers would be coming on-line with or without the proposed development.

10.28 Comparisons between the 2028 DC and DM scenarios indicate that noise levels 
would increase by 0.1dB and 0.7dB with the largest increase being at Thremhall 
Avenue.  In comparison to the 2016 Baseline, increases of 3.8dB would be 
experienced at Round Coppice Road.  The receptors at this point are the Novotel 
Hotel, located more than 150m from the road, and Stansted College which has 

Page 98Page 214



been designed with noise protection measures incorporated into the fabric of the 
building.

10.29 Surface noise impacts are therefore considered to be negligible and no mitigation 
is required.

10.30 Air Quality:

Air quality is an area of concern raised in many of the representations.  There are 
two particular areas to consider, impacts on AQMA, (focussing on human health), 
and impacts on sensitive ecological receptors.  There is an AQMA located in 
Saffron Walden in the Uttlesford district which would not be impacted by the 
proposals.  In addition, there is an AQMA located at Hockerill junction in Bishop’s 
Stortford which would experience an increase in traffic.  

10.31 The local plan policy position in East Herts has recent been clarified with EHDC 
expecting to adopt their new District Plan on 23 October 2018.  The proposed 
policy in the East Herts District Plan refers to a requirement for applications to be 
accompanied by an Air Pollution Assessment in line with the Council’s Air Quality 
Planning Guidance Document.  However, whilst this policy has full weight in East 
Herts it is a material planning consideration in Uttlesford and there is no policy 
basis for any such assessment in national planning policy, for example the NPPF 
(2018) and the National Planning Policy Guidance.

10.32 The impacts at Hockerill are predicted to be negligible, even after sensitivity 
testing.  However, the benefits of the proposal would need to be weighed against 
the potential health impacts resulting from this negligible increase.

10.33 Mitigation measures aimed at improving sustainable links to the airport, such as a 
50% mode share of employees and passengers accessing the airport by public 
transport, and the improvement to bus services, are measures that improve air 
quality.  Bishop’s Stortford is well connected to the airport by both direct rail and 
bus services.  The continuation of air quality measures would be secured by way 
of s106 Legal Obligation if planning permission were to be granted.  On balance, 
the benefits of the mitigation measures outweigh the negligible harm arising from 
air quality impacts.

10.34 In terms of impacts on ecological receptors, there are two principal areas of 
concern, local SSSIs and Epping Forest SAC and SSSI.  In terms of impacts on 
SSSIs, the impacts are predicted to be negligible when comparisons between the 
DM and DC scenario are made.  However, mitigation measures for Hatfield 
Forest and Elsenham Woods by way of monitoring, and the implementation of 
additional mitigation measures if identified as being required as a result of the 
monitoring, would be secured by way of s106 Legal Obligation if planning 
permission were to be granted.

10.35 NE raised concerns about the alone and in-combination impacts on Epping 
Forest SAC.  Additional work was carried out in this respect by the applicant that 
demonstrated that the impacts would be negligible.  To ensure the Council can 
comply with Regulation 63 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species 
Regulations (2017), Place Services was commissioned to carry out an 
Appropriate Assessment (11 October 2018).  This concluded that the project for 
the development will not have an adverse effect on the integrity of Epping Forest 
SC as no failure of the conservation objectives is predicted, either alone or in 
combination.

Page 99Page 215



Socio-economics

10.36 The ES sets out the benefits arising in respect of socio-economics.  Concerns 
were raised in respect of the potential impacts of Brexit and the fact that the 
negative impacts, such as tourism deficit, were not considered.  The ES was 
based on the Oxford Economics scenario whereby the UK leaves the EU on 
unfavourable terms, without negotiating a significant trade deal and the trade 
relationship between the UK and the EU therefore reverts to WTO rules.

10.37 The benefits of the proposals are recognised by a variety of parties, and the ECC 
Economic Growth and Skills Department consider that the increase in capacity is 
important to growth in Essex.  In addition, the proposals increase job and skills 
training opportunities as well as supports local businesses and employment 
growth in Essex.

10.38 The findings of the socio-economics chapter of the ES are considered to be 
sound and would deliver in respect of the economic growth aspirations of national 
and local policy.

10.39 Carbon emissions:

The policy in respect of carbon emissions sets out that this is an issue best dealt 
with at a national level.  The ES used the pessimistic approach for assessing the 
impacts of carbon emissions as a result of the proposals.  This indicates that the 
difference between the DM and DC scenario would be 0.3MtCO2e.  When 
assessed as a value per passenger, the development case would see an 
improvement in emissions by 4 kgCO2e.

10.40 The ES concludes that Stansted Airport’s share of UK aviation carbon emissions 
would rise from 4% in 2016 to between 4% and 5.3% of the UK’s aviation 
emissions target in 2050, with annual aviation carbon emissions predicted to 
decrease between 2028 and 2050.  It is considered that the DC scenario is 
unlikely to materially impact the UK’s ability to meet its 2050 national aviation 
target of 37.5MtCO2e.

10.41 The findings of the ES in this respect are not disputed, and as already stated, this 
is an issue to be addressed at a national level by the government.

10.42 Climate Change:

National policy in respect of aviation and climate change focusses on the 
vulnerability of the asset in extreme weather arising from climate change impacts.  
In addition, the APF seeks to ensure the aviation sector makes a significant and 
cost-effective contribution towards reducing global emissions.  However, this 
aspect requires intervention at a global and national level and is not appropriate 
for discussion at a local level.

10.43 In terms of resilience of the airport in respect of climate change, mitigation 
measures to ensure the continued operation of the airport are identified.  On this 
basis, the applicant has met the requirements of the EIA Regulations and no 
significant effects are identified.

10.44 Public Health and Wellbeing:

Page 100Page 216



Decisions in respect of aviation growth are required to be in accordance with 
sustainable development principles, and this includes maximising wellbeing and 
protecting our environment, without negatively impacting on the ability of future 
generations to do the same.

10.45 The ES follows a source-pathway-receptor approach to identify and assess 
health impacts that are plausible and directly attributable to the proposed 
development.

10.46 Benefits, both direct and indirect, would arise from increased employment, quality 
of life and wellbeing from the predicted £357m GVA per annum by 2028, 
additional leisure trip opportunities and the associated family and social benefits 
arising from these.  

10.47 Impacts on health and wellbeing are not predicted in relation to surface access, 
congestion or potential for reduced access to services.

10.48 Less than one additional emergency hospital admission and less than one 
additional death per annum are predicted as a result of impacts in respect of air 
quality.  A less than 1% increase from the baseline in hypertension, depression 
or anxiety is predicted.

10.49 An increase of around 339 people who consider themselves highly annoyed by 
aircraft noise is predicted, which is around a 28% increase compared to the DM 
scenario.  However, those affected at night is predicted to be very limited due to 
the controls set out in the Night Noise Regulations.

10.50 A predicted 13% increase in daytime noise events above the assessment 
threshold are predicted at Howe Green School, St Giles Church in Great 
Hallingbury, and Falcon House Care Home in Little Hallingbury.  In this respect, 
the impacts are considered to be minor adverse.  Similar impacts are considered 
in respect of the quality of life and wellbeing in association with amenity of green 
space.

10.51 Mitigation in the form of a Community Fund is proposed which it is envisaged 
would cover all the parishes in Uttlesford and the parishes falling within a 10 mile 
radius of the airport (whole parishes included where part of the parish falls 
outside of the radius).  The Community Fund would be available for health and 
wellbeing projects within the parishes.  (see attached map for proposed areas for 
funding)

10.52 Water Resources and Flood Risk:

The airport has significant drainage infrastructure in place, including the 
balancing ponds located between the A120 and B1256.  As a result of the new 
infrastructure an increase in capacity will be required and the proposals have 
been assessed by the LLFA as being acceptable and not increasing the risk of 
flooding.

10.53 Water efficiency measures are proposed to be increased on the airport and 
Anglian Water, as the utility provider, has not commented on the application.

10.54 In terms of demands on foul water infrastructure, Thames Water has identified 
that increased capacity will be required in association with the predicted housing 
growth and as a result of the proposals in this application.  A technical option is 

Page 101Page 217



believed to be feasible and Thames Water does not object to the proposals.  
Likewise, the EA does not object to the proposals, subject to a condition in 
respect of modelling to ensure that the increased passenger numbers and 
associated increase in total foul water volumes will not result in a deterioration of 
the water body known as Great Hallingbury Brook.

10.55 Non-Significant Topics:

Non-significant topics relate to biodiversity, land and soil, cultural heritage, 
landscape, waste and major accidents and/or disasters.  

10.56 Contamination and spoil are not considered to be issues resulting in significant 
impacts.  Likewise, archaeology is not an issue in the location of the proposed 
airfield infrastructure works.  Similarly, the construction works would not be 
harmful to the character of the area and would not result in harm to the 
landscape.

10.57 Waste would be dealt with in accordance with the Airport’s Waste Strategy.  This 
sets out its monitoring and targeting of waste, including reduction measures to be 
implemented across the airport.  Therefore, no significant impacts are predicted.

10.58 Major accidents and/or disasters are not predicted to increase as a result of the 
proposals, not least because of the stringent safety regimes in place outside of 
the planning system.

10.59 In terms of biodiversity, translocation of protected species will be required as a 
result of the infrastructure works.  This would be to a translocation site owned by 
the applicant and monitoring would be required after translocation has taken 
place.  As a result no significant impacts would arise in respect of biodiversity.

Cumulative Effects:

10.60 Cumulative effects of the proposals with committed schemes have been 
assessed.  This includes works proposed under permitted development by the 
applicant within the airport boundary.

10.61 Cumulative effects are assessed as being negligible.  In respect of socio-
economic impacts, the residual impacts were concluded to be minor-major 
beneficial and the cumulative effects moderately beneficial.  In terms of public 
health and wellbeing, the residual impacts should be negligible – major beneficial 
and the cumulative effects are considered to be the same.  Negligible – minor 
adverse residual impacts and cumulative effects are predicted in relation to water 
resources.

Consistency

10.62 Paragraph 213 of the NPPF (2018) states that, “existing policies [in adopted 
Local Plans] should not be considered out-of-date simply because they were 
adopted or made prior to the publication of this Framework.  Due weight should 
be given to them, according to their degree of consistency with this Framework 
(the closer the policies in the plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater 
the weight that may be given).”

10.63 Policies S4 and AIR1-6 relate to proposed development within the airport 
boundary.  S4 relates to the whole airport site and is a strategic policy and 

Page 102Page 218



Policies AIR1-6 are site specific.  These have been assessed as being in 
accordance with the NPPF and can be afforded full weight, subject to their 
compliance with government’s policy in respect of aviation.

10.64 Policy GEN1 relates to highway safety and alternative transport options rather 
than the private car.  The policy is generally consistent, although there is more 
emphasis in the NPPF to sustainable transport modes whilst acknowledging that 
there will be differences in opportunities between rural and urban areas.  
Uttlesford is a rural area where there are challenges in providing public transport 
for a dispersed population, but at the same time airport demand boosts services 
along certain transport corridors.  The NPPF is more positively worded in seeking 
to minimise the need to travel and maximise cyclist and pedestrian and public 
transport opportunities.  This policy should therefore be given moderate weight.

10.65 Policy GEN2 relates to design and as such is only partially relevant to the 
application.  The policy is generally in conformity with the NPPF and the areas 
where it doesn’t strictly comply are areas around sense of place, mix of uses and 
function, which would not be applicable in this instance.  The criteria applicable to 
the application are e) – water and energy consumption; g) – waste; h) 
environmental impacts on neighbours.  Insofar as it is relevant to the application, 
the policy should be given full weight.

10.66 Policy GEN3 relates to flooding and is only partly consistent with the NPPF with 
approaches to flooding issues having developed considerably in the time since 
the policy was adopted.  Therefore, the policy has limited weight with full weight 
being given to the NPPF and associated guidance.

10.67 Policy GEN4 relates to good neighbourliness and seeks to protect existing 
properties and users from harm arising from nuisance.  This can include noise, 
pollution, light pollution and fumes.  The policy has been assessed as being 
consistent with the NPPF and should be given full weight.

10.68 Policy GEN5 seeks to protect against harmful impacts arising from light pollution.  
This policy has no compatibility issues with the NPPF and should be given full 
weight.

10.69 Policy GEN6 relates to securing infrastructure required in association with 
proposed development.  This policy is generally consistent with the NPPF, but 
the latter recognises the need for viability of development to be considered.  In 
addition, there is a requirement to take into account the Community Infrastructure 
Regulations.  The policy should be given moderate weight.

10.70 Policy GEN7 relates to nature conservation, seeking to protect and enhance 
biodiversity.  The policy is only partially consistent with the NPPF with the latter 
document clarifying and strengthening the requirements in protecting and 
enhancing the natural environment.  The policy therefore has little weight.

10.71 Policy ENV2 is consistent with the NPPF as it is in line with statutory duties as set 
out in the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.  The 
NPPF gives additional assessment criteria relating to the assessment of 
substantial and less than substantial harm.  The policy therefore carries full 
weight.

10.72 Policy ENV4 relates to the protection of archaeological remain and scheduled 
protected ancient monuments.  The policy is consistent with the NPPF and 

Page 103Page 219



therefore carries full weight.  The assessment of substantial and less that 
substantial harm for designated assets is also relevant in respect of this policy.

10.73 Policy ENV7 relates to the protection of designated ecological assets.  The policy 
is only partly consistent with the NPPF with the emphasis shifting from the need 
for development to the benefits needing to clearly outweigh the harm.  In 
addition, there are additional requirements under the Habitats and Species 
Regulations (2010) which relate to European designated sites.   Therefore, the 
policy has little weight.

10.74 Policy ENV9 relates to the protection of historic landscapes.  The assessment 
criteria for the assessment of substantial and less than substantial harm for 
designated assets is also relevant in respect of this policy.  It is consistent with 
the NPPF and therefore carries full weight.

10.75 Policy ENV11 seeks to protect existing uses from noise generators.  The policy is 
generally consistent with the NPPF but the NPPF is more specific with regard to 
existing businesses recognising the need to balance the needs of business and 
the protection of existing amenities.  The policy therefore carries moderate 
weight.

10.76 Policy ENV12 relates to the protection of water resources in respect of pollution.  
The policy is consistent with the NPPF and carries full weight.

10.77 Policy ENV13 seeks to prevent development in areas of poor air quality.  This is 
generally consistent with the NPPF, although the latter document sets out a 
requirement that any development in Air Quality Management Areas and Clean 
Air Zones is consistent with the local air quality action plan.  The policy therefore 
carried moderate weight.

The Planning Balance

10.78 S70(2) of The Town and Country Planning Act 1990 requires the local planning 
authority, in dealing with a planning application, to have regard to:

(a)  the provisions of the development plan, so far as material to the 
application,

(aza) a post-examination draft neighbourhood development plan, so far as 
material to the application,

(b) any local finance considerations, so far as material to the application, 
and
(c) any other material considerations.

10.79 S38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that, if 
regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any determination 
to be made under the planning Acts, the determination must be made in 
accordance with the plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

10.80 Policy S4 supports the principle of development directly related to or associated 
with Stansted Airport that Policy S4 covers.  The proposed infrastructure applied 
for in this application is directly related to the airport and therefore comply with 
Policy S4.  Policies AIR1-6 do not directly relate to any of the areas where 
infrastructure is proposed to be constructed and likewise to not specifically relate 
to a proposed uplift in passenger numbers.

Page 104Page 220



10.81 Other policies relevant to the consideration of this application fall within two 
general categories – general policies and environmental policies.

10.82 Policy GEN1, which received moderate weight due to its compatibility with the 
NPPF, states that development will only be permitted if all of the following criteria 
are met:

a) Access to the main road network must be capable of carrying the traffic 
generated by the development safely

b) The traffic generated by the development must be capable of being 
accommodated on the surrounding transport network

c) The design of the site must not compromise road safety and must take 
account of the needs of cyclists, pedestrians, public transport users, horse 
riders and people whose mobility is impaired

d) It must be designed to meet the needs of people with disabilities if it is 
development to which the general public expect to have access

e) The development encourages movement by means other than driving a car.

10.83 The proposal does not propose any new or alterations to access to the main road 
network so criterion a) is not relevant.  Similarly, there are no alterations to the 
layout of the site itself proposed within the application so criteria c) and d) are 
also not relevant.  In terms of traffic generation, the proposals have been 
considered by the highway authorities for Essex and Hertfordshire and Highways 
England who have all concluded that the proposals, subject to appropriate 
mitigation measures would comply with criterion b).  

10.84 In terms of criterion e), the application site is already well served by public 
transport, and there are commitments to use best endeavours to maintain and/or 
increase sustainable transport mode shares.  Furthermore, whilst limited options 
exist for access by walking and/or cycling, the Stansted Area Transport Forum 
and the reporting sub-groups (bus and coach, highways and rail) have the ability 
to authorise funding for sustainable transport improvements, including schemes 
which incentivise walking and/or cycling.  The schemes are funded by two 
means; two fixed capital ring fenced sums, one associated with bus and coach 
improvements and the other related to local roads.  In addition, there is funding 
secured by way of a transport levy, a on every car parking transaction, and a 
fixed annual sum for staff parking.  These mechanisms already exist and have 
performed well and, if planning permission were to be granted are proposed to be 
carried forward in a new s106 Legal Obligation.  As such, the mitigation 
measures proposed result in the proposals complying with Policy GEN1.  
Furthermore, they would comply with the sustainable transport objectives of the 
NPPF.

10.85 Policy GEN2 sets out various design criteria and proposals are required to meet 
all aspects.  However, as these are generally related to physical structures or 
developments freely accessible by members of the public.  In this instance the 
proposed physical works relate to infrastructure within the airfield and therefore 
the majority of the criteria are not relevant to the proposals.  However, criterion e) 
relates to energy and water consumption, g) relates to waste and h) relates to 
environmental impacts.  Insofar as these criteria are relevant to the proposals, 
the statutory consultees have confirmed that they have no objections to the 
proposals and as such they comply with Policy GEN2.

Page 105Page 221



10.86 Policy GEN3 relates to flood protection and is only partially compatible with the 
NPPF and therefore only has limited weight.  In terms of flood protection, the 
proposals have been considered by the LLFA who confirm that they have no 
objections to the proposals.  This would be subject to appropriate mitigation 
measures being secured by condition relating to increased storage capacity for 
surface water runoff.  Insofar as the policy relates to the prevention of increased 
risk of flooding the proposals comply with Policy GEN3 and with the requirements 
set out in the NPPF.

10.87 Policy GEN4 does not permit development where it will give rise to nuisance, 
such as noise, pollution or cause material disturbance or nuisance to occupiers of 
surrounding properties.  In this regard, the proposals do not comply with Policy 
GEN4 due to the impacts arising from noise and air pollution.  Paragraph 180 
requires decisions to mitigate and reduce to a minimum potential adverse 
impacts resulting from noise from new development.  

10.88 Currently the applicant operates a Sound Insulation Grant Scheme (SIGS) which 
covers around 1080 properties.  A new, enhanced scheme is proposed in relation 
to this application which would increase the funding available and around 2000 
properties would be eligible for grants.  

10.89 Other mitigation measures currently in place are a limit on the number of flights, 
capped at 274,000, and a noise contour.  Outside of the planning system there 
are also controls on night flights which are not affected by this application.  The 
Aviation Policy Framework and subsequent documents in relation to the 
development of the aviation strategy recognises the need for airports wishing to 
make better use of their runways to pass on the benefits of quieter aircraft.  
Currently, the 57dB leq noise contour has a maximum area of 33.9sqkm.  The 
airport is operating well inside that limit, and could continue to do so up to and 
including their current cap of 35mppa.  Therefore, if planning permission were to 
be granted, it is appropriate to require the applicant to put forward a scheme to 
reduce the size of the contour in line with the increase of their operations.  This 
can be secured by way of a condition and the Council would seek a reduction to 
28.7sqkm, in line with the predictions in the ES.  These measures would ensure 
that the proposals would comply with the NPPF and the APF.

10.90 Policy GEN5 does not permit lighting schemes unless the level of lighting is the 
minimum necessary and glare and light spillage from the site is minimised.  
Whilst no details of lighting is included in the application, given the location and 
nature of the proposals it is acknowledged by the applicant that additional lighting 
will be required in this location.  Given the operational requirements of the 
applicant, as regulated by bodies and legislation outside of the control of the 
planning system, the lighting will be the minimum necessary.  The location of the 
infrastructure works is within the operational airfield and therefore an area which 
already has significant lighting requirements.  Therefore, in this context the 
proposals comply with Policy GEN5.

10.91 Policy GEN6 states that development will not be permitted unless appropriate 
infrastructure which arises as a result of the proposals is secured.  In this case, 
the proposed development would result in impacts on the strategic highway 
network which would require mitigation works to be carried out.  A mitigation 
scheme has been identified and could be secured by way of a clause in s106 
Legal Obligation, as recommended by HE.  However, given the potential lead-in 
time before the requirement for the mitigation package being required to be 
delivered, there is the potential that the proposed identified mitigation may not be 

Page 106Page 222



the appropriate mechanism.  Therefore, a secondary clause is proposed which 
requires a reassessment of the situation at the time the mitigation is required and 
the implementation of an alternative scheme, or if funding for a strategic 
mitigation measure for the M11 J8 being forthcoming, a financial contribution 
towards that scheme would be required as alternative mitigation.

10.92 Additional mitigation measures associated with surface access will also be 
required.  These would be delivered through the Stansted Area Transport Forum.  
The funding mechanisms will be a mix of fixed capital sums to be spent over a 
period of time and funds raised by the Transport Levy.  By securing the 
mechanisms by way of s106 Legal Obligation the proposal would meet the 
requirements of Policy GEN6.

10.93 Policy GEN7 does not permit development that would have a harmful effect on 
wildlife, protected species or habitats suitable for protected species unless the 
need for development outweighs the importance of the feature for nature 
conservation.  Mitigation and/or compensation measures are acceptable provided 
they can be secured by way of condition and/or s106 Legal Obligation.  The 
proposal will result in direct impacts on protected species and their habitat 
through the development of the new infrastructure.  Mitigation by means of 
translocation to an off-site receptor has been put forward by the applicant.  The 
off-site receptor is within the control of the applicant and the mitigation measures 
proposed would be appropriate.  

10.94 Policy ENV2 seeks to protect, inter alia, the setting of listed buildings.  The 
location of the proposed infrastructure is such that impacts are unlikely to arise.  
Indirect impacts in terms of increased flights would arise from the proposals.  On 
balance, it is considered that the proposals comply with Policy ENV2.

10.95 Policy ENV4 seeks to protect archaeological remains in situ, unless the need for 
development outweighs the importance of the archaeology.  In this instance, 
whilst there are areas within the airport boundary where significant 
archaeological remains have been discovered, it is considered that there is little 
scope for there to be any in the locations of the proposed infrastructure.   On that 
basis, the proposals would comply with Policy ENV4.

10.96 Policy ENV7 does not permit development which would adversely affect 
nationally or locally designated sites unless the need for development outweighs 
the particular importance of the nature conservation value of site or reserve.  Any 
potential impacts on such sites would be indirect as a result of pollution, in 
particular in respect of Hatfield Forest SSSI and East End Wood SSSI.  In this 
instance there would need to be a balance between the potential harm, although 
no significant levels of harm have been identified in the ES, and the need for the 
development.  Both sites are currently experiencing harm due to pollutants and 
mitigation measures in the form of long-term monitoring are proposed to be 
continued, with appropriate mitigation being identified and implemented if 
required.  Given the limited weight that can be applied to this policy due to the 
shift in national policy towards assessing the benefits of the proposal against the 
harm, the proposals can be considered to comply with Policy ENV7.  In terms of 
the NPPF, this states that unless the benefits of development outweigh the harm 
to designated sites then planning permission should be refused.  The APF sets 
out that the social and economic benefits of aviation growth need to be weighed 
against the environmental impacts.  On the basis that no significant impacts have 
been identified and mitigation measures involving monitoring and implementing 

Page 107Page 223



mitigation if harm is arising as a result of the proposals, it is considered that the 
proposals comply with the NPPF and the APF.

10.97 Wider potential impacts were identified by Natural England in respect of Epping 
Forest SSSI and SAC, the latter designation requiring the Council to undertake 
an Appropriate Assessment.  The additional information submitted by the 
applicant, and the Appropriate Assessment, confirm that the proposals would not 
adversely affect the integrity of the Epping Forest SAC either alone or in 
combination.  In addition, there would not be any adverse impacts on Epping 
Forest SSSI.

10.98 Policy ENV9 does not permit proposals likely to harm significant local historic 
landscapes, in this instance protected lanes, unless the need for development 
outweighs the historic significance of the site.  The proposals would not have a 
direct impact on historic landscapes, but there is the potential for indirect impacts 
arising from activities such as fly parking.  The applicant, by way of the Stansted 
Area Transport Forum, operates a mechanism for trying to resolve or at least 
minimise fly parking issues.  As such, any potential impact on historic landscapes 
would be minimal and the proposal can be considered to comply with Policy 
ENV9.

10.99 Policy ENV11 prevents noise generating development particularly where it would 
adversely affect the reasonable occupation of existing or proposed noise 
sensitive development nearby.  The exception is where the need for the 
development outweighs the degree of noise generated.  In respect of aircraft 
noise, the impacts arising affect people in different ways.  Some people can live 
very close to the airport and not consider themselves to be affected by noise, 
whereas people living some distance from the airport, where aircraft are 
overflying at heights in excess of 5,000 ft consider themselves to be adversely 
affected.  In order to assess noise impacts a series of analytical measures are 
used in the form of various noise contours.  Historically noise contours have been 
set at 57dB leq and the current noise contour must not exceed 33.9sqkm.  The 
assessment of the application using a mix of contour types has demonstrated 
that the proposals would not exceed the current conditioned noise contour, and 
will reduce in the future.  On the basis of the assessment the proposals would not 
give rise to increased noise and would result in a reduction of the existing 57dB 
leq noise contour to no more than 28.7sqkm by the end of 2028, which could be 
secured by way of a condition.  On balance, it is considered that the proposals 
comply with Policy ENV11.

10.100 Policy ENV12 does not permit development likely to cause contamination of 
groundwater unless effective safeguards are provided.  An analysis of the 
predicted impacts has indicated that contamination is not likely and as such the 
proposals comply with Policy ENV12.

10.101 Policy ENV13 does not permit development where users would be exposed on 
an extended long-term basis to poor air quality outdoors near ground level.  The 
development itself does not result in a scheme where users would be exposed to 
poor air quality.  However, the vehicular movements associated with surface 
access to the airport, plus the pollution from aircraft, would result in impacts on 
the local area.  On the basis that this policy is specifically directed towards two 
specific areas adjacent to the M11 and the A120, the proposals technically 
comply with the requirements of the policy.

Page 108Page 224



10.102 However, on air quality issues, the NPPF states that decisions should sustain 
and contribute towards compliance with relevant limit values or national 
objectives for pollutants, taking into account the presence of Air Quality 
Management Areas.  Opportunities to improve air quality or mitigate impacts 
should be identified.  

10.103 Uttlesford only has one AQMA this is located in Saffron Walden where impacts 
are unlikely to arise as a result of the development proposals.  However, Bishop’s 
Stortford, falling under the administration of East Hertfordshire District Council, 
has an AQMA based around the Hockerill junction, and a further one located in 
Sawbridgeworth.  The East Herts adopted policy is Policy ENV27 which states, 
inter alia, that development which will significantly increase air pollution will not 
be permitted.  East Herts District Plan Policy EQ4, which has been tested for 
soundness but not yet adopted, states that the effect of development on air 
quality is a material consideration.  The policy refers to that Council’s Air Quality 
Action Plan and Air Quality Planning Guidance.  

10.104 The ES identifies additional traffic would flow through the Hockerill AQMA but this 
increase would result in negligible impacts on the AQMA.  EHDC does not have a 
mitigation plan for the AQMA but seeks to ensure that appropriate alternative 
sustainable transport measures are incorporated into developments affecting the 
AQMA.  As discussed above, the applicant already provides sustainable 
transport initiatives by way of funding for new bus and coach routes, funding 
towards local schemes for improving walking and cycling opportunities.  
Additional funding for schemes could be secured in respect of the current 
proposals and appropriate sustainable transport schemes can be identified and 
financed by way of the SATF and the Working Groups.  On this basis, the 
proposals comply with the requirements of the NPPF.

10.105 Overall, the proposals comply with the relevant local plan policies.  The proposals 
also comply with the material considerations of national policy, the policies as set 
out in the NPPF (2018), the APF (2013) and the BTH (June 2018), and insofar as 
it is relevant ANPS (2018).  The APF sets out the government’s primary objective 
which is to achieve long-term economic growth.  The aviation sector is seen as a 
major contributor to the economy and its growth is supported but within a 
framework which maintains a balance between the benefits of aviation and its 
costs, particularly its contribution to climate change and noise.  Whilst issues 
around climate change and carbon emissions are to be dealt with at a 
government level, it is considered that this application balances the primary 
objective of economic growth with the impacts of aviation.  Appropriate mitigation 
measures are identified and could be secured by way of conditions or s106 Legal 
Obligation.

Overall Conclusion:

10.106 The ES has demonstrated that there would be negligible impacts arising from the 
proposals.  These have been assessed and tested by various consultees and 
issues arising have been addressed and appropriate mitigation measures 
identified.

10.107 Section 38(6) of the Planning Act 2004 requires that the determination be made 
in accordance with the provisions of the development plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise.  The application accords with the development 
plan.

Page 109Page 225



10.108 It is considered that the proposal represents a sustainable form of development 
in line with the NPPF (2018) paragraph 8 and accords with the NPPF.

10.109 The application makes best use of the existing runway infrastructure in accord 
with Beyond the Horizon (June 2018) and the Aviation Framework (2013).

10.110 No other matters sufficiently outweigh these considerations.

10.111 It is therefore recommended that the application be approved subject to s106 
Legal Obligation and conditions, as set out below.

11 Adequacy of the ES

11.1 Uttlesford District Council commissioned ESIA-Consult Ltd to undertake an 
Independent Peer Review of the Environmental Statement submitted with the 
application 
(https://uttlesford.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s8353/ES%20Review.pdf).  The 
evaluation was undertaken by Martin Broderick (principal reviewer) and Dr Bridget 
Durning (secondary reviewer).  The ES was assessed using a grading system A-F 
which are used to establish whether the document overall passes or fails the 
assessment.

11.2 The Assessment Grades are as follows:

A = indicates that the work has generally been well performed with no important 
omissions
B = is generally satisfactory and complete with only minor omissions and 
inadequacies
C = is regarded as just satisfactory despite some omissions or inadequacies
D = indicated that parts are well attempted but, on the whole, just unsatisfactory 
because of omissions or inadequacies
E = Not satisfactory, significant omissions or inadequacies
F = Very unsatisfactory, important task(s) poorly done or not attempted
N/A = Not applicable in the context of the ES or the project

11.3 The results of the assessments are as follows:

Section in 
proforma

Overall 
grade 
for that 
section

Area where more information required

1 Description of 
the development

B/C The description of the development is generally 
satisfactory and complete. However, there are 
some omissions or inadequacies relating to raw 
materials usage, waste arisings and discussions 
of limitations. 

2 Description of 
the environment

B/C The description of the environment is generally 
satisfactory and complete. However, there are 
some omissions or inadequacies relating to 
addressing uncertainty, assessment of 
alternatives and need to provide a policy 
compliance schedule.

3 Scoping, 
consultation and 
effect identification

C There are omissions and inadequacies relating to 
showing where responses to consultation 
comments have been addressed in ES. Also no 

Page 110Page 226

https://uttlesford.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s8353/ES%20Review.pdf


discussion of hazards and potential for accidents.
4 Prediction and 
evaluation of 
effects

B/C The prediction and evaluation of effects is 
generally satisfactory and complete. However, 
there are some omissions or inadequacies 
relating to using more up to date guidance i.e. 
noise and discussions of consequential impacts.

5 Alternatives D This section is unsatisfactory because design and 
size not considered and there is no tabulated 
comparison of these alternatives.

6 Mitigation and 
monitoring

C/D Limitations of mitigation measures not explicitly 
discussed. An overarching EMP needs to be 
produced that links the CEMP, CoCP and CTMP 
to STALs ISO14001 EMS.

7 Non-Technical 
Summary

B/C The NTS is generally satisfactory and complete. 
However, there is one omission relating to 
discussion of the confidence which can be placed 
in the assessment.

8 Organisation 
and Presentation 
of information

C The Table of Contents is not adequate and there 
are no contact details provided in ES.

Overall Grade (A-
F)

C The documentation evaluated is overall 
graded as C i.e. as just satisfactory despite 
some omissions and inadequacies.

11.4 The final grading of the assessment is noted and analysis indicates that the 
overall grading of C/D is dragged down due to “design and size not considered 
and there is no tabulated comparison of these alternatives”.  

  
11.5 Regulation 18(3)(d) of the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact 

Assessment) Regulations 2017 requires an environmental statement to include:

“a description of the reasonable alternatives studied by the developer, which are 
relevant to the proposed development and its specific characteristics, and an 
indication of the main reasons for the option chosen, taking into account the 
effects of the development on the environment”

11.6 The reviewer has marked this section of the ES down due to “design, technology, 
location size, and scale, layout of site, management arrangements” not being 
considered.  

11.7 The proposal is for a throughput of a specific number of passengers and the 
assessment has been made on that basis.  The “Do Minimum”, also known as 
“Do Nothing”, compared to the “Do Something” or “Development Case” scenarios 
are the most appropriate assessments to be undertaken.  This is noted by the 
reviewer at section 5.4, but again this has been graded as D with no explanation 
as to why this grading was reached.  However, in respect of comparing the “no 
action do-nothing” alternative with the proposals at 5.2, this section has been 
graded C/D with the downgrading attributed to the fact that there is no tabulation 
of advantages/disadvantages being provided.

11.8 In terms of physical infrastructure such as the RAT and RET, the way in which 
the runway operates limits the alternative positions and options that can be 
considered.  

Page 111Page 227



11.9 Therefore, it is officer’s view that this criterion should be more realistically be 
graded as C as a minimum.  This would result in the overall grading for the ES 
being B/C – is regarded as generally satisfactory with only some omissions or 
inadequacies.

11.10 The Assessment included a suggested condition that a comprehensive 
Environmental Management Plan be linked to the applicant’s Environmental 
Management System (EMS) which is certified under the international standard 
ISO 4001:2015.  However, the EMS would deal with issues controlled by 
legislation outside of the planning system.  Therefore, it is not considered 
appropriate to impose the recommended condition as this would be duplicating 
requirements, which is not the role of the planning system.

RECOMMENDATION – CONDITIONAL APPROVAL SUBJECT TO S106 LEGAL
OBLIGATION:

(I) The applicant be informed that the Planning Committee would be minded to 
refuse planning permission for the reasons set out in paragraph (III) unless 
the freehold owner enters into a binding obligation to cover the matters set 
out below under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as 
amended by the Planning and Compensation Act 1991, in a form to be 
prepared by the Assistant Director – Legal and Governance, in which case he 
shall be authorised to conclude such an obligation to secure the following:

i) Noise mitigation – new Sound Insulation Grant Scheme to be 
introduced (see map attached)

ii) Transport:
a. Providing capacity and safety improvements OR an equivalent 

funding for a package for the M11 and associated junctions
b. Providing funding for a package of transport related 

improvements for:
i. Local Roads Network Fund

ii. Local Bus Network Development Fund
c. Continue to provide the existing Transport Levy and increase it 

by the addition of a contribution from every transaction from the 
Express Set Down (forecourt) area

d. Rail users discount scheme, with a higher rate of discount and 
revised eligibility criteria

e. Revised targets for public transport mode share and ‘Kiss and 
Fly’ access for passengers and staff access by single 
occupancy private car with penalty clauses for missed targets

f. Update and revise working arrangements for the Transport 
Forum

g. Updated and revised Airport Surface Access Strategy and Travel 
Plan production schedule

h. Commitment to improve bus and coach station
i. Monitor STAL road network and provide mitigation if required as 

a result of adverse impacts arising on the local road network
iii) Skills, education and employment – To provide, support and maintain 

a package of measures to secure local socio-economic benefits:
a. Airport Employment Academy
b. Aerozone
c. Stansted Airport College
d. Local Supply Chain Support

iv) Ecology – protect and enhance environmentally sensitive sites

Page 112Page 228



a. Produce and implement a Management and improvement Plan 
for East End Wood

b. Continue to monitor, and provide mitigation if required as a 
result of adverse impacts arising, Hatfield Forest

c. Monitoring of water quality of the biological interests of local 
brooks 

v) Public Health and Wellbeing – provide funding for a Community Fund 
for public health and wellbeing projects (see draft proposals attached)

vi) Payment of monitoring fee

(II) In the event of such an obligation being made, the Assistant Director Planning 
shall be authorised to grant permission subject to the conditions set out 
below

(III) If the freehold owner shall fail to enter into such an obligation within a 
reasonable period of time, the Assistant Director Planning shall be authorised 
to refuse permission in his discretion anytime thereafter for the non-delivery 
of:

i) Noise mitigation – new Sound Insulation Grant Scheme to be 
introduced

ii) Transport:
a. Providing capacity and safety improvements OR an equivalent 

funding for a package for the M11 and associated junctions
b. Providing funding for a package of transport related 

improvements for:
i. Local Roads Network Fund

ii. Local Bus Network Development Fund
c. Continue to provide the existing Transport Levy and increase it 

by the addition of a contribution from every transaction from the 
Express Set Down (forecourt) area

a. Rail users discount scheme, with a higher rate of discount and 
revised eligibility criteria

b. Revised targets for public transport mode share and ‘Kiss and 
Fly’ access for passengers and staff access by single 
occupancy private car with penalty clauses for missed targets

c. Update and revise working arrangements for the Transport 
Forum

d. Updated and revised Airport Surface Access Strategy and Travel 
Plan production schedule

e. Commitment to improve bus and coach station
iii) Skills, education and employment – To provide, support and maintain 

a package of measures to secure local socio-economic benefits:
a. Airport Employment Academy
b. Aerozone
c. Stansted Airport College
d. Local Supply Chain Support

iv) Ecology – protect and enhance environmentally sensitive sites
a. Produce and implement a Management and improvement Plan 

for East End Wood
b. Continue to monitor, and provide mitigation if required as a 

result of adverse impacts arising, Hatfield Forest
c. Monitoring of water quality of the biological interests of local 

brooks 

Page 113Page 229



v) Public Health and Wellbeing – provide funding for a Community Fund for 
public health and wellbeing projects

Conditions:

STAL is accepting of the conditions, and in particular the pre-commencement 
conditions as per the Town and Country Planning (Pre-commencement Conditions) 
Regulations 2018.

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 3 
years from the date of this decision.

REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. Prior to reaching 35mppa and following consultation with the Environment 
Agency a scheme for the provision and implementation of water resource 
efficiency measures, during the operational phases of the development shall be 
submitted to and agreed, in writing, with the Local Planning Authority. The 
scheme shall include a clear timetable for the implementation of the measures in 
relation to the operation of the development. The scheme shall be implemented 
and the measures provided and made available for use in accordance with such 
timetables as may be agreed..

The scheme shall include the identification of locations for sufficient additional 
water meters to inform and identify specific measures in the strategy. The 
locations shall reflect the passenger, commercial and operational patterns of 
water use across the airport:

REASON:  In order to secure a sustainable form of development, as set out in 
paragraph 150 of the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy GEN2(e) of 
the Uttlesford Local Plan (adopted 2005).

3. Prior to the commencement of construction works, a Construction Environmental 
Management Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority.  The construction works shall subsequently be carried out 
strictly in accordance with the approved CEMP, unless otherwise agreed in 
writing.

The CEMP must incorporate the findings and recommendations of the 
Environmental Statement and must incorporate the following plans and 
programmes:.

(a) External Communications Plan
(i) External communications programme
(ii) External complaints procedure

(b) Pollution Incident Prevention and Control Plan
(i) Identification of potential pollution source, pathway and receptors
(ii) Control measures to prevent pollution release to water, ground and 

air (including details of the surface/ground water management plan)

Page 114Page 230



(iii) Control measures for encountering contaminated land
(iv) Monitoring regime
(v) Emergency environmental incident response plan
(vi) Incident investigation and reporting
(vii) Review/change management and stakeholder consultation

(c) Site Waste Management Plan
(i) Management of excavated materials and other waste arising
(ii) Waste minimisation
(iii) Material re-use

(d) Nuisance Management Plan (Noise, Dust, Air Pollution, Lighting)
(i) Roles and responsibilities
(ii) Specific risk assessment – identification of sensitive receptors and 

predicted impacts
(iii) Standards and codes of practice
(iv) Specific control and mitigation measures
(v) Monitoring regime for noise

(e) Management of Construction Vehicles
(i) parking of vehicles of site operatives
(ii) routes for construction traffic

REASON:  To protect amenity of neighbouring properties and in the interests of 
highway safety, in accordance with Uttlesford Local Plan Policies GEN1, GEN2, 
GEN4, ENV11 (adopted 2005).

4. Prior to commencement of the development, a detailed surface water drainage 
scheme for the airfield works hereby approved based on the calculated required 
attenuation volume of 256m3,must be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
local planning authority. The scheme must be implemented in accordance with 
the approved details as part of the  development, and should include but not be 
limited to:

 Detailed engineering drawings of the new or altered components of the 
drainage scheme.

 A final drainage plan which details exceedance and conveyance routes, 
and location and sizing of any drainage features.

 A written report summarising the scheme as built and highlighting any 
minor changes to the approved strategy.

REASON: To prevent surface water flooding both on- and off-site, in accordance 
with the National Planning Policy Framework. This condition must be ‘pre-
commencement’ to ensure that the development is only carried out in accordance 
with the above details.

5. A Biodiversity Management Strategy (BMS) in respect of the translocation site at 
Monks Farm shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning 
authority prior to the commencement of construction works.

The content of the BMS shall include the following:
 Description and evaluation of features to be managed
 Ecological trends and constraints on site that might influence management
 Aims and objectives of management
 Appropriate management options for achieving aims and objectives
 Prescriptions for management actions

Page 115Page 231



 Preparation of a work schedule (including an annual work plan capable of 
being rolled forward over a five year period)

 Details of the body or organisation responsible for implementation of the 
Strategy

 Ongoing monitoring and remedial measures

The Strategy shall also set out (where the results from monitoring show that 
conservation aims and objectives of the BMS are not being met) how 
contingencies and/or remedial action will be identified, agreed and implemented 
so that the development still delivers the fully functioning biodiversity objectives 
of the originally approved scheme.  The approved Strategy will be implemented 
by the developer in accordance with the approved details.

REASON:  To conserve protected and priority species and allow the Local 
Planning Authority to discharge its duties under the UK Habitats Regulations 
2017, the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 as amended, and Policy GEN7 of 
the Uttlesford Local Plan (adopted 2005) and the NPPF.

6. All ecological mitigation and enhancement measures and/or works shall be 
carried out in accordance with the details contained in the Stansted – Ecology 
Mitigation Strategy (RPS, February 2018) forming part of the ES Appendix 16.2 
to the satisfaction of the local planning authority.

REASON:  To conserve and enhance protected and priority species and allow 
the Local Planning Authority to discharge its duties under the UK Habitats 
Regulations, the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 as amended and s40 of the 
NERC Act 2006 (Priority habitats and species) and s17 Crime and Disorder Act 
1998, and in accordance with Policy GEN7 of the Uttlesford Local Plan (adopted 
2005) and the NPPF.

7. The area enclosed by the 57dB(a) Leq, 16h (0700-2300) contour shall not 
exceed 33.9 sq km for daytime noise. 

By the end of the first calendar year that annual passenger throughput exceeds 
35million, or by 31 December 2024, whichever is the sooner, a strategy shall be 
submitted to, and agreed with, the local planning authority, which defines the 
measures to be taken by STAL or any successor or airport operator to reduce the 
area of the noise contour by the end of 2028 for daytime noise to 28.7sq km for 
the area exposed to 57dB(A) Leq 16h (0700-2300).  Thereafter, from 2029, the 
area enclosed by the 57dB(A) Leq 16hr (0700-2300) contour shall not exceed 
28.7sqkm for daytime noise.

REASON:  In the interests of protecting the amenity of local residents, in 
accordance with Uttlesford Local Plan Policy ENV11, and in accordance with the 
principle of the aviation industry sharing the benefits of improvements to 
technology with local communities, as set out in the Aviation Policy Framework.

For the purposes of condition 7, the noise contour shall be calculated by the 
CAA’s Environmental Research and Consultancy Department (ERCD) Aircraft 
Noise Contour (ANCON) model (current version 2.3). (or as may be updated or 
amended) and using the standardised average mode.

8. The passenger throughput at Stansted Airport shall not exceed 43 million 
passengers in any 12 calendar month period.  From the date of this permission, 
the airport operator shall report the monthly and moving annual total numbers of 

Page 116Page 232



passengers in writing to the local planning authority no later than 28 days after 
the end of the calendar month to which the data relate.

REASON:  To ensure the predicted effects of the development are not exceeded, 
in accordance with policies in the Uttlesford Local Plan and the NPPF.

9. There shall be at Stansted Airport a limit on the number of occasions on which 
aircraft may take-off or land at Stansted Airport of 274,000 Air Transport 
Movements during any 12 calendar month period, of which no more than 16,000 
shall be CATMs (Cargo Air Transport Movements).  From the date of the granting 
of planning permission, the developer shall report the monthly and moving annual 
total numbers of  Aircraft Movements, PATMs (Passenger Air Transport 
Movements) and CATMs in writing to the local planning authority no late than 28 
days after the end of the calendar month to which the data relate.

REASON:  To protect the amenity of residents who live near the airport and who 
are affected by, or may be affected by aircraft noise, in accordance with 
Uttlesford Local Plan Policy ENV11 (adopted 2005) and to ensure the predicted 
effects of the development are not exceeded.

For the purposes of condition 9, the limit shall not apply to aircraft taking off or 
landing in any of the following circumstances:

a) the aircraft is required to land at the airport because of an emergency, a 
divert or any other circumstance beyond control of the operator and 
commander of the aircraft; and 

b) the aircraft is engaged on the Head of State’s flight, or on a flight operated 
primarily for the purposes of the transport of government Ministers or 
visiting Heads of State or dignitaries from abroad. 

10. Within 6 months from the date of this permission a scheme for the installation of 
electric vehicle charging points at the airport shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the local planning authority.  The scheme shall indicate the numbers, 
locations and programme for installation.  Subsequently, the charging points shall 
be installed in accordance with the approved details and retained thereafter.

REASON:  To ensure adequate mitigation measures are in place to address the 
predicted increase in air pollution as a result of the development, in accordance 
with paragraph 181 of the NPPF.

Page 117Page 233



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 234



Subject to Contract 

Draft updated to: Thursday 18 October 2018 

New S106 Agreement Heads of Terms.                                 

To be read alongside the existing S106 Obligations.  
 

Introduction 

The New s106 Agreement will contain a series of triggers for separate obligations which reflects 

the staged nature of the development covered by the planning application.  The relevant 

trigger dates, in chronological order of occurrence, are: 

 “Unchallenged Permission Date” means the date when all steps by way of any Legal 

Challenge to the planning permission have been exhausted; 

 

 “Implementation Date” refers to the carrying out of a s56 TCPA 1990 material operation 

to commence the Airfield Infrastructure Works, subject to some preliminary activities 

falling short of implementation. 

 

The Airfield Infrastructure Works are the formation of the two new taxiway links, the six 

additional remote aircraft stands adjacent to the Yankee Taxiway and the three 

additional remote aircraft stands to extend the Echo Apron.  

  

 “Passenger Level Trigger Date” is the point at which annual passenger throughput 

exceeds 35 mppa over a twelve-month period. 

Topic 
Content Trigger(s) 

1. Noise 

Mitigation. 
A new Sound Insulation Grant Scheme will be 

introduced, which: 

 Covers properties within a combined 

57dB LAeq (16hr), N65 200 (number 

above) and the 90 dBA SEL (single 

event) contour; 55 dB LAeq (16 hour) 

ground noise contour and being within 

600m of the runway. 

 Three rates of grant (not requiring a 

householder contribution); 

 A free home insulation survey and 

report; and 

 A range of noise insulation measures 

suitable for the individual property (i.e. 

not just glazing as per current scheme) 

The area covered by the Scheme and the 

 

The first November in the 

calendar year falling 

after the 

Implementation Date or 

such other date (earlier 

or later) agreed 

between STAL and UDC. 

 

STAL operates its grant 

scheme on a twelve-

month cycle with 

applications being 

registered in November 

for grants to be paid 

over the next following 

year. 

Page 119Page 235



Subject to Contract 

Draft updated to: Thursday 18 October 2018 

New S106 Agreement Heads of Terms.                                 

To be read alongside the existing S106 Obligations.  
 

amount of the available grant (shown by 

colour) are as indicated on the attached 

contour plan. 

2. Transport  a. Provide funding for a package of transport 

related improvements: 

 J8 M11. Provision of an off-airport 

improvement scheme to increase 

efficiency and capacity and maintain 

safety. 

 Local Roads Network Fund & 

Monitoring. A fund of £800,000 

(indexed) for contributions towards 

localised improvements including but 

not limited to, safety improvement, 

combined impacts of future traffic, 

accessibility measures and local 

parking enforcement measures (e.g. to 

tackle unauthorised parking).  A 

monitoring scheme will also be agreed 

and implemented with the highways 

authority 

 Local Bus Network Development Fund: 

Additional funding of £1 million to be 

reserved towards maintaining and 

improving bus and coach services.  

b.  To increase the existing Public Transport Levy 

by the addition of a 10 pence contribution 

from every transaction from the Express Set 

Down (forecourt) area. 

Amended provisions 

c. Rail users discount scheme, with a higher rate 

of discount and revised eligibility criteria.    

d.  Revised targets for mode share: 

 i) a passenger mode share of 50% by public 

STAL to undertake a 

Strategic Highways 

Review in consultation 

with Highways England 

at 35 mppa. 

 

 

Following the 

Implementation Date. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Following the 

Implementation Date. 

 

 

Following the 

Implementation Date. 

 

Following the 

Implementation Date. 

 

Following the 

Implementation Date. 

Page 120Page 236



Subject to Contract 

Draft updated to: Thursday 18 October 2018 

New S106 Agreement Heads of Terms.                                 

To be read alongside the existing S106 Obligations.  
 

transport 

ii) a passenger mode share by ‘kiss and fly’ of 

20% (by 39mppa) and 12% (by 43 mppa) 

iii) a mode share for staff access of 55% by 

single occupancy private car 

e. Update and revised working arrangements 

for the Transport Forum 

f. Updated and revised Airport Surface Access 

Strategy and Travel plan production schedule 

g. Commitment to improve the on-site bus and 

coach station 

 

 

 

 

 

2020 and five yearly 

thereafter, with mid-

point interim reviews. 

Following the 

Implementation Date. 

3. Skills, 

Education and 

Employment  

To provide, support and maintain a package of 

measures to secure local socio-economic 

benefits:  

a. Airport Employment Academy: to 

maintain an appropriate level of funding 

and support for an on-site skills and 

employment centre to enable more 

jobseekers to choose to work at Stansted; 

b. Aerozone: funding and operation of an 

on-site education centre for local 

children to raise standards and 

attainment; 

c. Stansted Airport College: to maintain an 

appropriate level of funding and support 

of an on-site Further Education college to 

ensure a supply of suitably skilled labour; 

and 

d. Local Supply Chain Support: to maintain 

annual ‘Meet the Buyers’ events to 

increase the number of contracts 

awarded to local businesses. 

Following the 

Unchallenged Permission 

Date. 

2003 and 2008 

commitments to be 

expressly carried 

forward. 

4. Community A new Community Trust Fund will be provided to 

support projects which deliver lasting benefits 

Following the 

Page 121Page 237



Subject to Contract 

Draft updated to: Thursday 18 October 2018 

New S106 Agreement Heads of Terms.                                 

To be read alongside the existing S106 Obligations.  
 

 

through protecting or enhancing the social, 

economic, health, well-being and environment 

of communities within the Area of Benefit. The 

Fund will: 

a. Receive funding of £150,000 pa; 

b. Be open to charities, not for profit 

organisations and Parish Councils; 

c. Be operated by 9 Trustees from local 

authorities and the airport 

d. Operate in an expanded area of benefit 

based on the boundaries of Parish 

Councils impacted by operations at 

Stansted.  

Implementation Date. 

 

5. Ecology Protect and enhance environmentally sensitive 

sites.  

a. Establish air quality and ecological 

monitoring at East End Wood. 

b. Produce and implement a Management 

& Improvement plan for East End Wood.  

c. Extend the period for air quality and 

ecological monitoring at Hatfield Forest. 

Following the 

Implementation Date. 

6. Water 

Quality 

Monitoring 

Protect environmentally sensitive water-courses 

a. Maintain the water quality monitoring 

system for local watercourses (as a 

replacement for the monitoring 

approved by the local planning authority 

pursuant to condition ‘WAT2’ of planning 

permission Ref UTT/1000/01/OP). 

 

Following the 

Implementation Date. 

Page 122Page 238



57/N65/SEL57/N65/SEL
COMBINEDCOMBINED

6060

6363

6666

6969

0 2 4 6 8 10km

• GREAT EASTON• GREAT EASTON

• BROXTED• BROXTED

• THAXTED• THAXTED

• TAKELEY• TAKELEY

• HATFIELD BROAD OAK• HATFIELD BROAD OAK

• HATFIELD HEATH• HATFIELD HEATH

• GREAT HALLINGBURY• GREAT HALLINGBURY

ELSENHAM •ELSENHAM •

STANSTED •
MOUNTFITCHET

STANSTED •
MOUNTFITCHET

 BISHOP’S •
STORTFORD
 BISHOP’S •
STORTFORD

5151

5454
57/N65/SEL57/N65/SEL

COMBINEDCOMBINED

6060

6363

6666

6969

0 2 4 6 8 10km

• GREAT EASTON• GREAT EASTON

• BROXTED• BROXTED

• THAXTED• THAXTED

• TAKELEY• TAKELEY

• HATFIELD BROAD OAK• HATFIELD BROAD OAK

• HATFIELD HEATH• HATFIELD HEATH

• GREAT HALLINGBURY• GREAT HALLINGBURY

ELSENHAM •ELSENHAM •

STANSTED •
MOUNTFITCHET

STANSTED •
MOUNTFITCHET

BISHOP’S •
STORTFORD

BISHOP’S •
STORTFORD

those who are most impacted. 

The grant would pay for noise insulation measures such as double glazing, 
mechanical ventilation and loft insulation.

ELIGIBILITY

The current sound insulation grant scheme provides support to those within 
the 63  noise contour (63 dB LAeq,16h). The proposed scheme, which is 
summarised in the table below and the figure opposite would provide 
support to those exposed to much lower  noise levels, offering grants to those 
within the 57 noise contour (57 dB LAeq,16h).

stanstedairport.com

For households subject to the highest levels of noise (69dB 
LAeq,16h noise contour or more), we will also provide 
assistance with the costs of relocating.

NOISE IMPACT NOISE CONTOUR GRANT MAXIMUM

UPPER 69 and 66 dB LAeq,16h £10,000

MIDDLE 63 and 60 dB LAeq,16h £8,000

LOWER 57 dB LAeq,16h/N65 200 / 90 dBA SEL*

600m distance/55 dB LAeq,16h ground noise

£5,000

*90 dB(A) SEL footprint for the noisiest aircraft operating at night (23:00 to 06:00)

35+ PLANNING APPLICATION

PROPOSED SOUND 
INSULATION GRANT SCHEME

NEW SCHEME
We recognise that aircraft noise is a key issue for local communities, particularly for those 
residents living closest to the Airport. 

We have undertaken a review of the current scheme and also those offered 
by other UK and international airports. 

Our proposed new scheme would:

– cover a larger geographic area, meaning more households will be eligible;
– take account of additional noise metrics;
– remove the need for the householder to contribute; we would pay up to 100% of the cost; and 
– be based on a tiered system to provide the highest funding for the noisiest areas to support   

P
age 123

P
age 239

http://stanstedairport.com


T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 240



35+ Planning Application September 2018 

1 

Community Trust – Recommended Terms of Reference  DRAFT FOR UDC DISCUSSION 

Trustees & Governance 

• Chair to be appointed from the Trustees by UDC and STAL for two years with only one re-

appointment permitted which cannot run concurrently.

• Independently administered, with a percentage of the Fund allocated for administration.

• The body of trustees shall consist of 9 persons:

a) Two persons to be nominated by Stansted Airport Limited, only one of whom may

be an employee of the Company;

b) One Elected Member or Officer by Uttlesford District Council;

c) One Elected Member or Officer by Essex County Council;

d) One Elected Member or Officer for each of the main District Councils comprised

in the Area of Benefit to be nominated by such Councils consisting:

▪ East Hertfordshire District Council;

▪ Harlow District; and

▪ Epping Forest District Council.

e) One person to be nominated by the Stansted Airline Operators Committee; and

f) One person to be nominated by Stansted Airport Consultative Committee.

Funding 

• Contribution to the Community Trust Fund of £150,000 every Financial Year to 31 March

2029. Following this date, the amount of funding to be contributed by STAL to the Trust

Fund is to be reviewed.

• The maximum funding per application is £5,000 with discretion of the Trustees to adopt a

higher figure for exceptional applications. Each year a maximum of one application for a

‘flagship’ or major project may be granted, for which funding is capped at £50,000.

• The Fund can offer full funding or funding towards a specific element or item.

• The Fund will also receive additional contributions from any aircraft noise or track keeping

fines arising from aircraft arriving or departing from Stansted Airport.

Eligibility 

• Applications can be made by an established community or other not for profit group,

charity or Parish Council located, or which operates predominantly, within the Area of

Benefit.

• Parish Councils will be eligible to receive up to one grant per year. No more than 50% of

total grants awarded in any year will go to Parish Councils.

• Applications that offer match funding will be favoured.

Page 125Page 241



35+ Planning Application September 2018 

2 

Objectives 

• The Community Trust Fund will support capital projects which deliver lasting benefits

through protecting or enhancing the social, economic, health, and environmental

wellbeing of the community within the defined ‘Area of Benefit’.

• The Community Trust has the discretion to give greater weight to particular objectives in

line with local and community priorities at the time. Any prioritisation will be published for

applicants to view, along with the application process.

Area of Benefit 

• 10-mile radius with extensions to reflect areas directly affected by operations at Stansted

Airport as detailed in Appendix 1. Grants will only be awarded to schemes which are

located within the Area of Benefit or deliver the vast majority of its benefits to the Area of

Benefit.

Applications 

• Successful applicants can re-apply after three years.

• Applications can be submitted on-line or in hard copy using the Community Trust Fund 
Application Form. Applications must provide the following information as a minimum:

o Details of the Organisation;

o Project Details, including itemised descriptions of all/part of the project for which 
the organisation is applying for; and

o Additional supporting information. 

Meetings 

• Quarterly ordinary meetings of the Trustees to review applications.

• Quorum of a least one third of the number of trustees for the time being or three trustees

whichever is the greater are present at a meeting.

• Every matter shall be determined by a majority of votes by the trustees present and voting

on the question.

• A minute of the meeting will be recorded and signed by the Chair.

Reporting and Monitoring 

• An annual report and accounts shall be produced within 3 months of Financial Year end

of the Fund including a list of grants awarded, the amount and the applicant.

• Successful applicants will be required to publicise, in an appropriate way, the support

provided by the Community Trust Fund.

• An appropriate audit system shall be established to ensure that grants are appropriately

spent and that the benefits are delivered.

Page 126Page 242



Contains OS data © Crown Copyright and database right 2018

0 4 82 Miles

East Hertfordshire District

Harlow District

Epping Forest District

Chelmsford District

Uttlesford District

Braintree District

Broxbourne 

Key

2023 Development Case LAeq,16hr 54 - 72dB in 3dB increments
10 mile radius from runway centre point
Local Authority boundaries
Parish Council boundaries

Note: Contours taken from CAA published sources and boundaries are from Ordnance Survey

No
rth

North:

Community Trust Boundary and Noise Contours

Eligible Parish Councils 

Existing Community Trust boundary

Chrishall
Wenden
 Lofts

Elmdon

Littlebury
Saffron Walden

Sewards End Radwinter

Wimbish

Debden

Wendens Ambo

Newport

Wicken 
Bonhunt

Arkesden

Clavering

LangleyNuthampstead

Meesden
Anstey

Hormead

Brent Pelham

Stocking 
Pelham

Furneux Pelham

Braughing

Albury

Westmill

Standon

Thundridge

Wareside

Widford

Hunsdon

Eastwick

Gilston

Much Hadham

Little Hadham
Bishop’s
Stortford

Farnham

Manuden

Berden

Ugley

Stansted 
Mountfitchet

Birchanger

Quendon and
Rickling

Widdington

Hensham

Chickney

Broxted

Thaxted

Great Easton

Little Easton

Takeley

Lindsell

Stebbing

Great Dunmow

Little Canfield

Hatfield Broad Oak

Great Hallingbury

Little Hallingbury

Thorley

High Wych

Sawbridgeworth

Sheering
Hatfield Heath

White Roding

Great Canfield

High Roding

Aythorpe Roding

Leaden Roding

High Easter

Barnston

Little Dunmow

FelstedFlitch
Green

Great Waltham

Pleshey

Mashbury

Chigwell

Good Easter

Roxwell

Margaret
Roding

Abbess Beauchamp &
Berners Roding

WillingaleFyfield

Little Laver

Moreton

High Laver

Matching

Magdalen

Hempstead

Great Sampford

Little Sampford

Little Bardfield

Great 
Bardfield

Bardfield 
Saling

Great Saling

Tilty

Elsenham

Great Chesterford

Hadstock

Ashdon

Strethall

Little Chesterford

Stanstead 
Abbots

Roydon

North Weald Bassett

Appendix 1: Area of Benefit

Page 127Page 243



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 244



GLOSSARY
AADT Average Annual Daily Traffic

ACAF Airport Commission Appraisal Framework

ADMS Advanced Distribution Management Systems

ANCON Aircraft Noise Contour

ANPS Airports National Policy Statement (also referred to as Aviation NPS)

APF Aviation Policy Framework

APIS Air Pollution Information System

APU Auxiliary Power Unit

AQAP Air Quality Action Plan

AQMA Air Quality Management Area

ATC Automated Traffic Counts

ATM Air Transport Movements

BAP Bickerdike Allen Partnership (Council’s consultants)

BTH Beyond The Horizon (June 2018)

CAA Civil Aviation Authority

CATM Cargo Air Transport Movements

CCAPR Climate Change Adaptation Progress Report

CCC Committee on Climate Change

CCD Climb, Cruise and Descent Cycle

CEMP Construction Environmental Management Plan

CIL Community Infrastructure Levy

CO2e Carbon dioxide equivalent

CORSIA Carbon Offsetting and Reduction Scheme

CRTN Calculation of Road Traffic Noise

dB Decibel

DC Development Case

DEFRA Department of Environment, Food and Rural Affairs

Page 129Page 245



DfE Department for Education

DfT Department for Transport

DM Do Minimum

DMRB Design Manual for Roads and Bridges

EA Environment Agency

ECC Essex County Council

EGR Engine Ground Run

EHDC East Hertfordshire District Council

EIA Environmental Impact Assessment

EMS Environmental Management System

ERCD Environmental Research and Consultancy Department (CAA)

ES Environmental Statement 

ETS Emissions Trading Scheme

EYCC Early Years and Child Care

FEGP Fixed Electrical Ground Power

FRA Flood Risk Assessment

GA General Aviation

GDP Gross Domestic Product

GPU Ground Power Unit

GSE Ground Support Equipment

GVA Gross Value Added

HCC Hertfordshire County Council

HE Highways England

HGV Heavy Goods Vehicle

HMA Housing Market Assessment

HRA Habitats Regulations Assessment

HVAC Heating, ventilation and air conditioning systems

ICAO International Civil Aviation Organisation

Page 130Page 246



IPENS Improvement Programme for England’s Natura 2000 sites

Kg Kilogram

LEP Local Enterprise Partnership

LLFA Lead Local Flood Authority

LOAEL Lowest observed adverse effect level

LSCC London Stansted Cambridge Corridor

LTO Landing and Take-off cycle

MAG Manchester Airports Group

MCC Manual Classified Counts

Mppa Million Passengers Per Annum

MtCO2e Million tonnes carbon dioxide equivalent

NAP Noise Action Plan

NATS National Air Traffic Services (now NATS Holdings)

NMU Non-motorised users

NNR National Nature Reserve

NO2 Nitrogen Dioxide

NOEL No observed level of effect

NOx Oxides of Nitrogen

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

NPS National Policy Statement (also referred to as ANPS)

NPSE Noise Policy Statement for England 

NR Network Rail

NTS Non-Technical Summary (Environmental Statement)

Nx Number above

PATM Passenger Air Transport Movements

PCA Pre-Conditioned Air Unit

PM Particulate Matter

RAT Rapid Access Taxiway

Page 131Page 247



RET Rapid Exit Taxiway

RIS Roads Investment Strategy

RTS Rapid Transit System

SAC Special Area of Conservation

SATF Stansted Area Transport Forum

SEL Sound Exposure Level

SIGS Sound Insulation Grant Scheme

SOAEL Significant observed adverse effect level

SoS Secretary of State

SRN Strategic Road Network

SSSI Site of Special Scientific Interest

STAL Stansted Airport Limited

STEM Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics

TEMPro Trip End Model Presentation Programme (highways)

TRIS Technical Regulations Information System (Highways)

TWUL Thames Water Utilities Limited

UAEL Unacceptable adverse effect level

UDC Uttlesford District Council 

UKCP09 UK Climate Projections 2009

WFD Water Framework Directive

WHO World Health Organisation

WWTW Waste Water Treatment Works

WYG White Young Green (Council’s consultants)

Page 132Page 248



CONSULTATIONS
BRAINTREE DISTRICT COUNCIL

The economic benefits of the application to increase the passenger cap by 22.9%, and to 
make further improvements on site, means neighbouring districts including its nearest 
neighbour Braintree District, will benefit economically. These economic impacts will create 
an ongoing series of benefits, which will serve as a founding legacy for future investment 
attraction and infrastructure improvement. These are categorised, although not exclusively 
exhaustive under the following main headings: 

Job Creation – There will be significant job creation on-site, estimated 5,000 on-site, as a 
result of the site improvements and with the extended passenger cap, further employment 
opportunities, which will be available to the local labour force and are supportive of the 
district’s key growth sectors including construction. The Council wishes to work with MAG 
and other companies based at the airport to promote job opportunities to Braintree residents.

Skills Development – There will be opportunity to continue the extensive work with Stansted 
Airport College, local authorities and schools, to strengthen and grow skills development in 
the form of apprenticeships and work experience ensuring a pipeline of future talent for the 
airport and the 200 plus on-site companies. 

Tourism – Tourism in the Braintree district could be positively impacted by these proposals, 
increasing the number of visitors to the area, who will not exclusively access areas and 
points of interest in the Braintree district, but will also be supportive to the service industry 
including transport, hospitality and retail. The Council wishes to work with MAG to promote 
the attractions in Braintree District to airport passengers.

Business and Inward Investment – Improvements and passenger cap extensions would see 
the potential to deliver reduced fares, fewer delays, greater resilience and preferred choice 
of daily destinations, relative to no expansion which will benefit the local business 
community. It will provide easier access to the district and increasing desirability for new and 
existing businesses to start up and grow in the Braintree district. It will also encourage 
business expansion to emerging markets through B2B and exports and supply chain 
management.

The district benefits from good access to an improved airport with more 
destinations/business opportunities. Improvements to M11 and junction 8 would likely have 
knock on benefits for businesses/public and these are strongly supported by the District. 
However it is noted that the A120 and the congestion hotspot of Galleys Corner is not 
assessed as part of this application. A dual A120 which will help better connect Stansted 
Airport to the eastern parts of Essex is being planned but in the meantime the Council would 
wish to work with MAG, Highways England and Essex County Council to ensure that traffic 
impacts are minimised and sustainable transport options are maximised. Whilst Braintree 
town does have bus links to the airport, other parts of the District are less well served and 
the Council would like to work with Essex County Council and MAG to improve those links. 
In the more medium term the Council is working with partners to develop a rapid transit 
system for North Essex which could link to the airport, and support from MAG for this 
scheme would be welcome to ensure maximum integration into the airports infrastructure.

Page 3

Agenda Item 3

Page 249



The removal of the flat rate for flights currently spread evenly over the year would result in a 
greater number of flights at peak times, such as the summer, which would increase over 
flying during those times of the year and associated disturbance. Whilst the intensity of 
disturbance is projected to decrease as aircraft technology improves, the frequency of flights 
would increase resulting in a lower level of impact but that impact would take place more 
frequently at peak times of the year. Conversely this should mean that during off peak times 
of year aircraft impact would be further decreased as fewer flights would be operating during 
those times. As you will be aware aircraft noise can be an issue for some residents. Whilst 
we appreciate that airspace routes are a separate issue to this application Braintree District 
Council would expect to be consulted, if as a result of these proposals it became apparent 
that changes to how the airspace around the airport is managed, and that any changes 
would minimise impacts on residents of the district.

UDC and BDC are working together on a proposal for a new garden community to the West 
of Braintree. The Council wishes to reiterate its desire to work with MAG and UDC on this 
proposal to ensure that positive links between the new community and Stansted Airport are 
maximised and that any negative impacts are mitigated.

CADENT GAS

We do not object to the proposal.

CHELMSFORD CITY COUNCIL 

No objection.

EAST HERTS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Recognises Government’s policy stance in relation to making best use of existing runways in 
south east.  Support, in principle, economic benefits.  Reserve position and defer response 
in respect of environmental impacts until work commissioned by UDC is completed.  
Reserve position and defer response in respect of transport impact issues until such time 
ECC and HCC have concluded their assessment.  If application is granted seek mitigation 
measures identified.

2nd response:

In respect of the above application and the further consultation period to 30th August 2018, 
please be advised that East Herts Council has no additional comments to make at this time 
beyond those raised in the responses submitted on 28th March and 8th May 2018 to the 
initial consultation (see attached). Pending the outstanding resolution of transport 
considerations, which it considers may have potential environmental impact 
inter‐dependencies locally, at this stage the Council therefore, maintains it’s holding position 
in respect of recommendations (C), (D) and (E).

Page 4Page 250



The Council intends that it will provide its final response as soon as practically possible after 
it has had the opportunity to consider the latest transport modelling outputs, when finalised, 
in light of subsequent responses from Highways England, Essex County Council and 
Hertfordshire County Councils, as Highway Authorities, as appropriate.

3rd response:

Environmental Issues

Noise

The Council notes the review of the application’s proposals by independent specialists and 
its subsequent findings in terms of: the assessment of noise impacts and their implications; 
conclusions reached through that work; and, the mitigation measures that are proposed. The 
Council is reassured by the conclusions of the independent specialists that: the assessment 
methodology, approach and level of detail is satisfactory; noise impacts are no greater that 
would be the case under the existing planning permission (to 35mppa); and, subject to 
recommended proposed additions, the approach to mitigation is appropriate.

Given the foregoing, the Council is satisfied that it would be possible to provide suitable 
mitigations to address the impact of development and, on that basis, would not seek to 
restrict the grant of permission on noise grounds, but considers that this should be 
conditional on the S.106 agreement including:

1. Incorporation of appropriate noise mitigation measures identified within the 
independent assessment.

Air Quality

In respect of Air Quality issues, although additional transport modelling was conducted by 
the applicant’s consultants (and verified by ECC’s consultants), which had been expected by 
this Council to help inform the air quality assessment, this did not, despite repeated requests 
from this Council’s Environmental Health Department, extend to full micro-simulation 
coverage of Bishop’s Stortford Town Centre. In particular, the Council had sought for micro-
simulation transport modelling to apply to Hockerill junction, which is a declared Air Quality 
Management Area (AQMA). Likewise, it is considered that there could potentially be some 
impact from the development in terms of the AQMA at Sawbridgeworth, but that this also has 
not been adequately covered through assessment. Therefore, the Council’s Environmental 
Health Department has, of necessity, had to review the air quality issues appertaining to the 
application solely in light of the evidence available.

Following consideration of that evidence, the Council has concluded that the modelled data 
used in the assessment has significant error factors in relation to the monitored data. 
Government guidance LAQM TG(2016) Box 7.41 indicates that the majority of the model 
performance should be above 25% and ideally 10%, and, while this is the case for some 
areas, it is clear that the model is underestimating NO2 concentrations by 3 times in 
Bishop’s Stortford where the air quality issues are located within the AQMA.

In addition, the modellers indicate a model adjustment of a factor of 4 but this still results in a 
factor of 2 underestimate in Bishop’s Stortford, which is highly critical as the model indicates 
concentration levels below the limit value, whereas the monitored data show a level almost 

Page 5Page 251



twice the limit value. It is not best practice to use adjustment factors above 2 but to instead 
rerun the assessment. It is good practice to present an overall indication of the model 
performance by calculating the Root Mean Square Error as per paragraph 7.541 in the 
LAQM TG16. Where this results in an RMSE of >25% of the objective being assessed the 
modeller is advised to revisit the model parameterisation and verification. No RMSE has 
been presented and this should be completed.

When this Council’s Environmental Health Officer carried out a RMSE calculation on 
Bishop’s Stortford data alone, the result was 38.3. In line with the guidance again this 
indicates the assessment has error values higher than is recommended and the modeller 
should have revisited the modelling parameters. The modellers make minor comment on the 
discrepancy of the model in Bishop’s Stortford, indicating uncertainties in traffic data. Given 
that the area is an AQMA, further effort should have been made to investigate this. Where 
uncertain data are available the modellers should seek to obtain better quality data.

In light of the above evidence, East Herts council is therefore not satisfied with the 
conclusions of the air quality assessment, which found that the impact of a further 8 million 
passengers travelling to the airport would have an ‘insignificant’ impact on the air quality of 
Bishop’s Stortford, the closest town to the airport.

However, while not agreeing with the conclusions of this evidence strand, the Council’s 
Environmental Health Officer is of the view that the impact that it is considered would occur 
through development would be capable of being addressed through appropriate mitigation. 
As a result, East Herts recommends that certain mitigation measures (as detailed below) are 
undertaken in order to fully address the impacts of the development on air quality within the 
District, and particularly on the AQMA’s in Bishops Stortford and Sawbridgeworth.

Therefore, the Council recommends that the following mitigation measures be included as 
part of the planning obligations associated with the development:

2. Rapid electric vehicle chargers to be installed in both Bishop’s Stortford and at the 
airport (in locations and numbers to be agreed with the local authorities), to 
encourage usage of EVs, particularly for EV taxis.

3. A demand responsive ULEV bus service to be introduced to include, as a minimum, 
a radius around the airport which encompasses the whole of Bishop’s Stortford and 
Sawbridgeworth areas, which should be fully funded for a period of 5 years.

If such mitigations are included, the Council would have no objections to the application on 
air quality grounds, provided that these measures are fully implemented. The Council would 
expect to be closely involved in any further technical work undertaken and in scheme 
mitigation proposals going forward.

However, in the event that the inclusion of such mitigations cannot be agreed within the 
S.106, East Herts Council would recommend refusal of the application on air quality 
grounds, due to insignificant information being provided to enable the full assessment of the 
impacts on air quality.

Page 6Page 252



Transport – Surface Access

The Council is cognisant of the additional transport modelling work undertaken, and recently 
concluded, by the applicant’s consultants and the responses to this that have been made by 
Essex County Council (ECC) and Hertfordshire County Council (HCC), as highway 
authorities, in respect of transport related matters and mitigations sought. However, at the 
time of writing, it should be noted that no definitive comments from Highways England (HE) 
were available (on Uttlesford District Council’s website) to further inform East Herts Council’s 
views in this regard, and that ECC’s and HCC’s responses are tempered by their being 
subject to HE’s satisfaction that impacts on the strategic highway network have been 
satisfactorily addressed. This Council’s response is likewise conditional on HE’s 
endorsement of the applicant’s proposals and any necessary related mitigations.

East Herts Council is committed to seeking to increase the modal share of travel by 
sustainable means across the district, in order to inhibit the growth in congestion and to 
improve air quality, and is therefore keen to ensure that impacts from the proposed 
development are minimised in this respect. The Council notes that the applicant has, to date, 
achieved a substantial modal share in terms of accessing the airport by sustainable means.

The Stansted Area Transport Forum (SATF) currently operates in this respect and is 
supported by three reporting sub-groups (bus and coach; rail; and, local road), which include 
key stakeholders, including local authority representatives. East Herts Council is represented 
on all of these sub-groups in addition to the Forum itself and is satisfied, subject to minor 
amendments to the Forum’s terms of reference proposed by the applicant, that this 
mechanism is appropriate to guide the allocation of resources to ensure the current market-
leading modal split is maintained going forward.

East Herts Council welcomes the applicant’s confirmation that the current Passenger 
Transport Levy (which is generated as a direct proportion of every car parking cost 
transaction) will continue to be ring fenced for use by STAL as a conduit to support 
recognised Travel Plan style initiatives. This revenue stream has historically supported 
measures such as out-of-hours bus services, employee shuttles, travel card system, cycle 
shelters, and onward travel information and marketing. As the revenue stream is attached to 
car parking, it is likely that relative to growth increases will occur allowing for greater levels of 
funding for sustainable initiatives.

It is considered important by East Herts Council that, in addition to supporting existing 
initiatives, as much should be done as possible to augment these with new opportunities for 
passengers, workers and students (at the newly opened on-site college) to make their 
journeys to the airport by non-car borne means.

In this regard, this Council is keen to see the introduction of greater sustainable east-west 
travel choices. At a strategic level, a central and south-west Hertfordshire to Airport bus 
service has long been identified as a priority in the HCC’s (2011) Bus Strategy and also in 
Stansted Airport’s (2016) Sustainable Development Plan Bus and Coach strategy. More 
recently, HCC’s Local Transport Plan (LTP) 4, published in May 2018, has further identified 
the need to improve east-west surface access across the county to the airport, and for East 
Herts this is particularly applicable in opening up journey choice to and from the towns of 

Page 7Page 253



Hertford and Ware. Thus, the Council supports HCC’s position and seeks provisions in the 
S.106 agreement for:

4. A new east-west express, limited stop, coach service linking St Albans, Hatfield, 
Stevenage, Welwyn Garden City, Hertford, Ware and Stansted Airport. Such 
provision should be a regular service, which should accommodate the varied working 
shift patterns at the airport, especially in respect of early morning/late night 
operations.

Comprehensive marketing of the service, coupled with targeted employee recruitment 
advertising within the towns it serves, should be included as part of its provision.

Furthermore, in respect of supporting east-west linkage, and improving environmental 
conditions and journey reliability, it is considered important that STAL’s previous 
commitment in the pre-existing S.106 (associated with development up to 35mppa) towards 
funding the Little Hadham Bypass should be brought forward, and cost adjusted, to the 
current application’s S.106 provisions. Therefore, and in line with HCC’s recommendations, 
the applicant should:

5. Contribute to the construction of the Little Hadham Bypass.

An Eastern Area Growth and Transport Plan (to be led by HCC) is to be developed in 2019, 
which is intended to cover Bishop’s Stortford within its scope. This will include a series of yet 
to be identified transport measures that will, inter alia, seek to address predicted growth 
across the area. While the output of this Plan is, as yet, undetermined, HCC has identified a 
number of measures for inclusion in the S.106 that it considers would address the longevity 
of airport growth at Stansted and the relationship between this and wider transportation 
issues that are likely to evolve over time. East Herts Council therefore seeks that the 
following issues should be incorporated into any S.106 agreement:

6. Enhanced local road schemes funding to support local road, walking and cycling 
schemes and to address future impact uncertainty (including, inter alia, impacts at 
Hockerill Junction).

7. Enhanced funding for public transport to secure airport related bus and coach 
proposals.

It is also considered important that, although it is recognised that it would not be appropriate 
for all users, opportunities should be increased to allow cyclists and pedestrians (either 
workers or passengers) to more easily access the airport without the need for motorised 
conveyance. A number of projects are currently in varying stages of development and it is 
considered that, while there should be no onus on STAL to fund elements of such schemes 
remote to the airport, where they do relate to increasing sustainable journeys of a realistic 
length to the airport, the applicant should contribute towards them. Therefore, the Council 
would expect, in line with HCC’s stated position, that the applicant should be obliged through 
any S.106 agreement to:

8. Contribute towards cycling and walking schemes including (but not limited to):
a. Parsonage Lane cycle route (PR30);
b. Warwick Road cycle route (PR41);

Page 8Page 254



c. Bishop’s Stortford to Stansted cycleway to add to National Cycle Route 
No.16. (SM10);

d. A1250 Dunmow Road cycle route (SM15);
e. Strategic cycle route from Stansted Airport linking Bishop’s Stortford, 

Sawbridgeworth, Harlow, Gilston, Ware and Hoddesdon to add to National 
Cycle Route No. 11.

The Council also recognises that transportation movements to and from the airport are not 
solely linked to its primary function and that the location also acts as a regional and local 
transport hub, offering interchange facilities between differing sustainable transport modes. It 
is important that this role should continue going forward and that this should be supported 
through the both the application and the SATF. The Council would therefore seek to ensure 
that any grant of permission should contain provisions to:

9. .Ensure the continued operation of the airport as a sustainable transport hub, with 
associated provision of facilities, passenger information systems and marketing, as 
appropriate.

The Council also notes that, as a result of further assessments undertaken by the applicant’s 
consultants, Network Rail does not seek to object to the application, but that longer term rail 
capacity schemes on the West Anglia Main Line are likely to be needed sooner than 
previously forecast due to the airport’s growth. As such, East Herts Council would not 
currently look to seek additional infrastructure to address line capacity, but would expect that 
airport associated initiatives relating to rail be brought forward, as appropriate, through the 
SATF in due course.

ESSEX COUNTY COUNCIL

This Council is supportive of growth of London Stansted Airport, recognising the significant 
role the airport plays in contributing to the wider economy of Essex, through investment and 
job creation.  ECC considers that the growth of Stansted Airport will generate significant 
additional benefits for the local and regional economy, including improving international 
connectivity, boosting trade and encouraging investment.  Furthermore this Council 
recognises Stansted Airport can perform an important role in seeking to be a key 
employment site for future planned growth within Essex, including the potential new Garden 
Communities around Harlow, in Uttlesford and across North Essex.

Strategic context

In September 2013 ECC produced “Flights of Fancy:  Getting Real on Aviation” to articulate 
the council’s position on airport capacity for submission to the Davies Airport Commission.  
The document clarifies ECC supports sensible growth at Stansted in the short to medium 
term by maximising use of its existing runway to its operational capacity of 45 million 
passengers per annum.  It recognises that additional runway capacity may be required at 
Stansted in the longer term, but that a robust business case would be needed and massive 
investments in road and rail infrastructure would be required.

Page 9Page 255



ECC welcomes the investment that MAG have made since acquisition of the airport in 2013, 
and the planned investment in the future, including the approved construction of a dedicated 
arrivals terminal and transformation of the existing terminal into a dedicated departures 
terminal, as well as the principle of the works proposed as part of the current planning 
application.  ECC also supports Stansted Airport as a leader in providing sustainable modes 
of travel to and from its location.  ECC wishes to see this position maintained.

Highways and Transportation

Following the initial review of the Transport Assessment as submitted, the County Council in 
its role as Highways Authority recommends a holding response until further information 
and/or clarification can be provided on the issues identified and sufficient evidence is 
submitted on which to base a sound recommendation.

Minerals and Waste Planning

No objection as mineral planning authority.

No objection as waste planning authority.

Lead Local Flood Authority – Flood and Water Management

Having reviewed the Flood Risk Assessment and the associated documents which 
accompanied the planning application, ECC as Lead Local Flood Authority wishes to issue a 
holding response to the granting of planning permission due to inadequate surface water 
drainage strategy.

Public Health and Wellbeing

Public Health at ECC would like to offer support to our Environmental Health colleagues at 
Uttlesford District Council who are leading on environmental health protection matters 
(including noise and air quality) as they required.  We would also wish to remain engaged 
with UDC on health and wellbeing matters so to ensure that public health and wellbeing is 
being considered for the lifetime of this project.  Our recommendations are:

 To work with Stansted Airport to ensure that the strategy for employment targets, 
including those that are long-term unemployed, are realised

 To be informed of the recommendations on monitoring and mitigation measures 
arising from air noise made by Environmental Health at Uttlesford District Council.  
This would be with particular reference to noise sensitive receptor areas.  This would 
include an understanding of the mitigation measures that are to be put in place and 
clarity, by the applicant and planning authority, as to how any mitigation will be 
enforced and reviewed.

 As part of the above recommendation, if Environmental Health would like support 
from Public Health England, the Director for Public Health for Essex is happy to 
facilitate this.

 To support the proposal from STAL to engage with Directors of Public Health locally 
and that Public Health engage with STAL around the community wellbeing fund to 
ensure that residents impacted upon by this proposal, receive adequate mitigation to 
support their wellbeing.  We would like clarity on the governance processes around 

Page 10Page 256



the community fund and how the fund use will be monitored so we can be made 
aware of any benefits to health and wellbeing that arise from its’ use.

 For STAL to review the terms of reference for the consultative committee to ensure 
that health and wellbeing is represented.

 For STAL to engage with passenger transport teams at the relevant County Councils.  
This would be to ensure that provision is made around route capacity so that 
residents are not negatively impacted on by the anticipated increase in passengers 
using public transport to and from the airport.

Education

Any increase in noise as a result of the proposed development is a concern from a school 
perspective.  It is understood that the change in air fleet mix seeks to reduce flight noise and 
the use of fixed power supplies on stand (turning APU’s off) will reduce ground noise, 
however if the proposed development has the prospect of breaching the noise threshold 
level of 55dB LAeq30, on any school site, then a noise consultant will need to be employed 
to review the planning application against the DfE’s “Building Bulletin 93: Acoustic Design of 
Schools – Performance Standards” and to formulate mitigation measures that can be 
incorporated into a S106 Legal Agreement.

In respect of Early Years and Childcare (EYCC) provision the proposed expansion of 
Stansted Airport has the potential to increase the demand for further childcare facilities to 
support the increased workforce.  The specific requirements depend on a number of factors 
including the location of the living accommodation of the proposed additional workforce, and 
their working patterns.

The Child Care sufficiency data held indicates that there are limited childcare places 
available in the local area closest to Stansted Airport.  Consequently this Council’s 
preference is to see the EYCC requirements (generated as a consequence of the increase in 
employees) addressed in a way that does not adversely impact on existing local EYCC 
facilities.

The information obtained from the planning application form indicates that the additional 
growth at Stansted Airport increase from 35mppa to 43mppa is predicted to support an 
additional 5,500 employees.  On the bases that these are FTE positions, a total of 220 
EYCC places (5,500 x 0.04 [4 places per 100 employees] would be generated, as set out in 
the Essex County Council Developers’ Guide to Infrastructure Contributions (2016).  Using 
the EYCC expansion cost per place (£14,519 at 2016-2017), which is again explained in the 
ECC Developers’ Guide, a contribution of £3,194,180 (£14,519 x 220 places generated) 
would therefore be required.

The ES submitted with the planning application states that of the additional jobs proposed 
approximately 3,000 will be direct on and off airport jobs, with the remainder being indirect 
and induced jobs.  Further detailed information is required in respect of the nature of the 
proposed additional jobs, such as hours/days worked, shift patterns, location of the 
employee’s place of residence, in order to refine the specific infrastructure funding 
contribution required to address the EYCC places generated as a result of this planning 
application.  The finalised contributions will then need to be addressed within an s106 legal 
agreement.

Page 11Page 257



It should be noted that given the potential large number of EYCC places, at least one new 
facility may have to be built, potentially onsite.

Economic Growth, Regeneration and Skills

The increase in capacity and the development of new airfield infrastructure is considered to 
be important to the growth of the Essex economy.  Recent airline additions of Primera Air 
and the soon-to-launch Emirates service to Dubai will, we believe, create further 
opportunities for businesses in Essex to access international markets as well as furthering 
Foreign Direct Investment opportunities particularly those in relation to the MedTech and Life 
Sciences industries.

It is considered that the proposals will lead to the creation of further direct and indirect 
employment opportunities associated with the airport, providing additional jobs for the 
residents of Essex.  The proposals are also considered to increase supply chain 
opportunities for businesses related to the operation of the airport.  The Team welcomes 
further opportunities to work with MAG in order to identify initiatives and programmes of 
support to promote both business and employment growth in Essex.

ECC commend MAG for its commitment to STEM engagements in particular for having over 
7000 young people visiting the Aerozone since its inception.  The new Stansted Airport 
College opening in September will see over 500 students delivering technical skills including; 
engineering, logistics and more.  This is ground breaking and a commendable collaboration 
between ECC, UDC, Harlow College, SELEP and MAG to fund such an initiative.

Stansted’s commitment to Apprenticeships is also commendable; however ECC seeks 
further clarification on the numbers of Apprenticeships, and associated Apprenticeship 
Standards that are expected, as a result of the proposed development.

With specific reference to the potential skills opportunities arising from the construction 
phase of the proposed development, ECC seeks clarification on whether Stansted Airport is 
proposing to adopt the use of an Employment and Skills plan with relevant contributions, and 
adopting national benchmarks such as the HCA Developer-Contractor Guidance or the 
Construction Industry Training Board (CITB) Client/Project Based Approach.

Such an approach would unlock Apprenticeship opportunities and further enhance social 
value activities directly relating to the development phase/construction sector.  Furthermore, 
it is considered that this would enhance MAG’s commitment to developing STEM skills and 
dovetail the exemplar commitment to outreach provided through the Aerozone.

ECC wishes to engage further with Stansted Airport to strengthen the partnership with the 
airport, and to assist in the preparation of the s106 agreement to ensure that the appropriate 
funding and mitigation is provided and delivered.  ECC wishes to issue a holding response in 
respect of skills until the matters outlined above are clarified.

Page 12Page 258



Tourism

The current planning application proposes an increase of 8mppa, which will enable more 
leisure trips to be made through Stansted Airport.  ECC recognises that this brings benefits 
to the local and regional economy of Essex, including tourism and leisure.

Visit Essex – Supporting the local visitor economy, has the remit for promoting and 
developing tourism across the county of Essex.  Given the proposed increase in passenger 
numbers, and subsequent leisure trips, ECC seek to secure funding for Visit Essex to 
actively promote Essex as a tourism destination.

ECC wish to work with the applicant to deliver measures to promote Essex as a tourism 
destination and to ensure that passengers arriving at Stansted Airport are aware that they 
have arrived in Essex.  Such measures can include advertising space for Visit Essex within 
the airport, and a contribution of £6,000 per annum towards membership of Visit Essex.

2nd Response:

ECC’s Position – Regulation 19 Pre-submission Local Plan

In the response to Uttlesford District Council’s (UDC) Draft Local Plan consultation (June – 
August 2018), ECC supported the growth of Stansted Airport as set out in Objective 2c and 
Policy SP11.

Objective 2c seeks to accommodate development at the airport by utilising the permitted 
capacity of the existing runway and provide for the maximum number of connecting journeys 
by air passengers and workers to be made by public transport; and ensuring that appropriate 
surface access infrastructure and service capacity will be provided without impacting on 
capacity to meet the demands of other network users and enabling local residents to access 
its rail, bus and coach services.

Policy SP11 designates London Stansted Airport as a strategic allocation in the Local Plan. 
The allocation serves the strategic role of the airport and associated growth of business, 
industry and education which are important for Uttlesford, the sub-regional and national 
economy.

Highways and Transportation

Following ECC’s holding response dated 30th April 2018 the Highway Authority has carried 
out a number of activities including review of the Transport Assessment Addendum, 
commissioning of consultants Jacobs to carry out modelling work on the strategic network, 
and liaison with other Highway Authorities (Highways England (HE), Hertfordshire County 
Council (HCC), Uttlesford District Council (UDC) and Stansted Airport Limited (STAL).

During this process the impact on the strategic network, the local road network and 
implications for the passenger transport network have been assessed, a number of 
mitigation measures have been explored and the most appropriate ones have been put 
forward as recommendations in this response

For convenience this response is split into the same areas as the initial ECC initial response 
of 30th April 2018.

Page 13Page 259



Overview

The main areas of concern with the initial Transport Assessment (TA) were that no 
assignment modelling had been undertaken of the highway network. Accordingly, further 
sensitivity testing was required to understand the possible impacts on the strategic network 
and to help to address concerns that the TA relied on high sustainable transport modal 
shares, with insufficient information supplied on how these would be achieved.

The highway modelling is discussed in more detail in the highway impact section. To 
address modal split, three targets have been recommended:

1) That 50% of passengers arrive at the airport by passenger transport (bus coach or rail);

2) That no more than 55% of employees travel to work as the only occupant in the car, rising 
to 50% by the time 43mppa is reached

3) To reduce the percentage of passengers using “kiss and ride” to access the airport, 
reducing to 20% by 39mppa and to 12% by 43mppa.

The Stansted Area Transport Forum (SATF) Steering Group will be accountable for 
delivering and monitoring these targets. ECC have made recommendations for penalties that 
should be applied if the targets are not met which would be used to improve sustainable 
access to the airport. Three funds are recommended to directly help deliver these targets 
and mitigate the impact of the proposed development. These are outlined in more detail 
below.

This approach has worked well up to this point with the airport exceeding sustainable 
transport targets set in the previous planning application. The revised Terms of Reference 
for these groups should be clearly set out in the S106 that will accompany this application to 
ensure accountability, rigorous monitoring of the targets, and delivery of schemes and 
initiatives.

Highway Impact

The strategic network is the responsibility of HE and they will make their own 
recommendations concerning that network. However, in response to their review of the TA, it 
was agreed that ECC would commission additional sensitivity testing of the development 
proposals using a Vissim microsimulation model of M11 Junction 8 (J8) which ECC holds. 
As the Uttlesford Local Plan has not been adopted the junction evaluation assessment within 
the TA, which used LINSIG, was undertaken with just committed development and TEMPRO 
background growth.

The reasons for sensitivity testing being undertaken were:

1. To better understand the impact of the airport growth from 35mppa to 43mppa and 
whether the proposed mitigation was appropriate, against a background of proposed growth 
in the Uttlesford Local Plan.

2. To fulfil the requirement to assess how traffic on the strategic road network interacted at 
key junctions and the impact of the airport application on these junction interactions.

Page 14Page 260



3. To undertake modelled sensitivity tests to assess possible implications for J8 and the 
A120 of variations in development assumptions to those presented in the TA, particularly the 
overall increase in application traffic, and traffic distribution variation.

The detailed results of the testing are contained within the Jacobs report. In summary the 
report finds that the network performance is due to deteriorate with or without the airport 
expansion to 43mppa. STAL’s proposed J8 mitigation measures (Interim+) will improve 
network performance at 43mppa compared to the 2033 ‘do minimum’ scenario with 35mppa 
and with ECC’s Interim J8 scheme in place. However, the modelling confirms that the 
network is currently close to capacity, and will be over capacity in 2033. The sensitivity 
testing also indicates that minor adjustments to the modelled assumptions have significant 
impacts, particularly to the west of J8, and to the B1256.

The M11 has been identified within the Draft London Plan as a key transport corridor 
essential for the growth of London and the Wider South East and the emerging Uttlesford 
Local Plan has identified J8 as a potential congestion hotspot. Appropriate improvements or 
other mitigations at J8 may need to be identified if this junction is to effectively support both 
strategic connectivity and local economic growth. Notwithstanding the interim scheme 
improvements identified as part of this application, to mitigate its impact, in future STAL 
should continue to work together with other local partners, including ECC, HE and relevant 
Sub-national Transport Boards, to identify potential longer term solutions at J8 and provide 
appropriate support leading to their timely delivery.

The Jacobs report has been shared with HE who will make their recommendations in 
relation to strategic network and the proposed mitigation works on J8 and the Priory Wood 
Roundabout. The report from Jacobs on this modelling will be submitted as a separate 
document.

Local Network

It is recognised that the majority of the airport impact is on the strategic road network M11, 
and A120 and most passengers who drive to the airport are likely to use those routes. 
However, the local roads will also be impacted on especially by traffic generated by 
employees, and those roads closest to the airport will experience the greatest impact. While 
potential impact on the local network was assessed in the TA, ECC as the highway authority 
requested additional analysis, which was subsequently undertaken, to more clearly 
determine the effect on the wider local road network.

The TA and addendum indicate that the impact on the network of the airport growth from 
35mppa to 43mppa would be limited. The methodology used to estimate the impact on the 
local road network was to identify catchment areas for the local routes to the airport, use 
population data to identify the population in those catchment areas, then identify the 
proportion likely to be travelling to the airport by car using the mode data proportions in the 
TA derived from the CAA surveys and the staff travel plans. The additional work requested, 
although showing higher numbers on the local network attributable to the airport growth from 
35mppa – 43mppa than in the original TA, still only showed limited impact on the local road 
network. A sample of updated data is set out in the table below.

Page 15Page 261



Daily Flows
Scenario Parsonage Road North of 

B1256
Mole Hill Green

Total traffic 2016 5655 1790
All traffic Growth 2016-28 1120 454
25-35mppa airport growth 
(included in all growth)

59 71

35-43mppa airport traffic 
(included in all growth)

53 64

Total traffic projected traffic 
2028

6775 2244

ECC carried out a sense check on the predicted Takeley growth using employment figures 
from the 2015 survey. Takeley was chosen because it has the highest concentration of 
employees close to the airport. We identified that impact could be higher with 114 vehicles 
attributed to the growth from 35-43mppa. Although the number is higher using this 
methodology the numbers are still relatively low throughout the day, with an estimated 
impact of 1.7%. It is considered that the impact is acceptable.

It is recognised that, as growth occurs, travel choices and patterns may change over time, 
with possibly greater pressure on certain areas (network hotspots). To mitigate this pressure 
it is recommended a local road fund of £800,000 is set up secured through the S106 and 
administered by the SATF, so that it can be used to deliver schemes on the network that 
improve safety, increase accessibility to the airport, and address fly parking issues. This 
figure has been derived by looking at average costs of these types of schemes, and would 
be expected to fund approximately 5 minor road improvement schemes. It is envisaged that 
the fund will contribute to local improvement schemes in proportion to the impact of the 
airport traffic and so could contribute to funding a higher number of schemes. In addition, 
monitoring of the airport road network is recommended to ensure that early action is taken if 
congestion on the airport network itself occurs, as this could impact on the strategic or local 
highway network.

Rail

As part of the initial response the Highway Authority liaised closely with Network Rail. The 
Highway Authority asked for a sensitivity test to be undertaken as did Network Rail, and a 
modal share of 35% of passengers was tested. It is understood that Network Rail will 
comment on the sensitivity testing. 

Bus Passenger Transport 

Following the initial response, additional information was supplied by the STAL, mapping 
employee locations, and the 2015 Employee Survey was reviewed. These were compared to 
the existing passenger transport network and areas of future potential growth were identified. 
There are three targets that are key to the application as outlined above; these targets 
represent approximately 11,600 passengers a day. In order to reach and maintain these 
targets key areas should be identified through the production of a Bus and Coach Strategy, 
to be delivered by the STAL using funding secured through the S106 agreement. Sufficient 
funds should be secured to facilitate the enhancement of current services to the airport, to 
provide services from key settlement areas such as Braintree, Colchester and Chelmsford, 
to provide enhanced and direct connections with smaller towns such as Halstead and 

Page 16Page 262



Witham, and allow improvements to operations so that local villages are served in line with 
the operational times of the expanded airport, and support coach services to towns further 
away such as Hatfield, Haverhill and Ipswich. 

To accommodate these services it is recommended the bus station should be expanded and 
improved to provide not only for the increased capacity needed for passenger circulation and 
buses but to provide an excellent passenger experience to encourage use of the services. 

Cycling 

While it is acknowledged that cycling will contribute a small proportion of the modal share, 
there is a potential to increase the number of employees accessing the airport by bike, 
particularly to the south, east and west of the airport. To facilitate this a Walking and Cycling 
Strategy should be produced as part of the Airport Surface Access Strategy (ASAS) which 
should include improving the airport highway network for cyclists and provide funding to 
support the implementation of cycle routes to key villages where there is a concentration of 
employees such as Takeley. 

Travel Planning 

The airport has a successful employee travel plan managed by staff employed by the airport 
which has met and exceeded the targets set in the previous planning application, which were 
to reduce to 76% single car occupancy travel by 2014; in 2015 this had reduced to 65%. It is 
recommended that this approach is continued, including monitoring through the bi-annual 
Staff Travel Survey. The funding of the initiatives in the travel plan, including the car sharing 
scheme, employee bus discount travel scheme, travel information and supporting 
accessibility schemes for sustainable modes of transport, will be supported by the 
Sustainable Transport Levy, which is a charge on airport passenger and employee parking. 

This Levy will also support the ASAS, which has also been successful in exceeding the 
target set in the previous planning application which was to increase public transport mode 
share to 43% by 2014. Currently 50% of passengers use public transport to access the 
airport. This target is to remain. The additional target for this application, to decrease kiss 
and ride, is challenging. Therefore it is recommended that the scope of this levy is widened 
to include the drop off/pick up charge and that the levy is reviewed annually and subject to 
an increase at the rate of inflation. It is currently estimated that this funding will rise to 
approximately £1.6 million per annum by 43mppa. 

Highways and Transportation Conclusion and Recommendation 

Therefore, taking into account the additional information provided, from a highways and 
transportation viewpoint, the impact of the proposal is acceptable to ECC as the 
Highway Authority, subject to the following planning conditions/obligations being 
secured and applied. Insofar as the local highway network is dependent on the conclusions 
reached by Highways England regarding the operation of the strategic highway network, 
ECC as the Highway Authority reserves the right to make appropriate adjustments to this 
recommendation. 

M11 Junction 8 

1. STAL in agreement with the local highway authority and Highways England to identify and 
deliver a scheme of mitigation for the developments impact upon M11 Junction 8 as shown 
indicatively in the STAL proposed J8 mitigation measures (Interim+) arrangements included 
within the planning application. 

Page 17Page 263



Reason: To ensure that the developments impact on the surrounding highway network can 
be appropriately mitigated. 

Targets 

2. To use all reasonable endeavours to maintain a public transport mode share of 50% for 
non-transfer air passengers. If the target is not met, this will trigger a review of the 
Sustainable Transport Levy (including employee car parking charge) to ensure further 
investment in sustainable transport measures is provided. 

Reason: To ensure the modal split applied in the transport assessment is met and the net 
impact of traffic on the highway network is limited. 

3. To use all reasonable endeavours to reduce the number of non-transfer air passengers 
arriving and/or being picked up by a private vehicle or taxi that would travel one way (either 
to or from the airport) with no passengers (kiss and ride) to 20% by 39mppa, and to12% by 
43mppa. If these targets are not met, this will trigger a review of the Sustainable Transport 
Levy (including employee car parking charge) to ensure further investment in sustainable 
transport measures is provided. 

Reason: To ensure the modal split applied in the transport assessment is met and the net 
impact of traffic on the highway network is limited. 

4. To use all reasonable endeavours to maintain the maximum percentage of persons 
employed at the airport driving to and from the airport in vehicles occupied by a single 
person at 55% up to 39mppa and to achieve a reduction to 50% by 43mppa. If these targets 
are not met, this will trigger a review of the Sustainable Transport Levy (including employee 
car parking charge) to ensure further investment in sustainable transport measures is 
provided. 

Reason: To ensure the modal split applied in the transport assessment is met and the net 
impact of traffic on the highway network is limited. 

Strategy and Monitoring 

5. To continue to produce an ASAS and Staff Travel Plan with the purpose of achieving the 
mode share obligations referred to above and for these target requirements to be formalised 
and embedded in the S106 agreement. A new ASAS and Staff Travel Plan shall be 
published no less than every five years, in line with the Sustainable Development Plan 
(SDP) process (the next report is due in 2020) and with an interim mid-point review and 
monitoring report. The ASAS shall include a Bus and Coach Strategy and a Cycling and 
Walking Strategy as separate documents to follow the same timescale as the ASAS. If the 
strategies are not produced within 3 months of the programmed date, the Local Planning 
Authority will commission the report and charge STAL for all costs. Thereafter the strategies 
shall be implemented to agreed time scales. These requirements should be articulated and 
embedded within the S106 agreement 

Reason: To ensure the modal split applied in the transport assessment is met and net 
impact of traffic on the network is limited. 

6. STAL shall undertake a two yearly report of the travel patterns of staff employed by STAL 
and others employed at the Airport from 2019 onwards and for the outcome of the same to 
be reported to the Local Planning Authority and Highway Authority. If the reports are not 
produced within 3 months of the programmed date, the LPA will commission the report and 
charge STAL for all costs. 

Page 18Page 264



Reason: To ensure the modal split applied in the transport assessment is met and net 
impact of traffic on the network is limited. 

7. A comprehensive programme of monitoring of the airport highway network to be agreed 
with Highways England and the Local Highway Authority. If it is identified that the growth on 
the airport network interferes on a regular basis with the operation of the Strategic or Local 
road network, STAL shall identify and agree mitigation measures and a programme for 
implementation of such measures with the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: To ensure growth on the airport road network does not impact on the Strategic and 
Local road network. 

Delivery Mechanisms 

8. The SATF and three working groups (Bus and Coach, Highways and Rail), shall continue 
to operate and be accountable for the delivery and monitoring of the ASAS, the agreed S106 
targets and the S106 funding streams, including the Sustainable Transport Levy. The 
revised terms of reference for these groups shall be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
and contained within the S106 agreement. 

Reason: To ensure an agreed accountable delivery mechanism to deliver the modal share 
and mitigation measures required as part of this development in order to limit the net impact 
on the strategic and local highway. 

9. STAL shall continue to charge a levy on passenger and staff car parking and, in addition, 
to charge a levy on the use of the terminal forecourt. Agreed levies to be reviewed annually 
for inflation and agreed with the Local Planning Authority. The fund arising from the 
collection of such levy to be used to finance initiatives in accordance with the ASAS to 
promote the use by passengers and staff of STAL and others employed at the Airport of 
modes of transport to and from the Airport other than private motor vehicles, hackney 
carriages and private hire vehicles and (in the case of staff of STAL and others employed at 
the Airport) to encourage and promote car-sharing. 

Reason: To ensure the modal split applied in the transport assessment is met and impact of 
traffic on network is limited. 

10. This development will require a Bus and Coach Fund to the value of £8mn to be secured 
through the S106 to further develop public transport links to and from the airport to seek to 
bring about an increase in the number of passengers and airport staff using public transport 
and to meet the agreed targets in ASAS and the SATF. The funding needs to be sufficient to 
facilitate enhancement of current services to provide 20 or 15 minutes services from key 
settlement areas such as Braintree and Chelmsford and Cambridge, to provide enhanced 
and direct connections with smaller towns such as Halstead and Witham, allow 
improvements to services so that local villages are served in line with the operational times 
of the expanded airport and support coach services to Hatfield, Haverhill and Ipswich. The 
Bus and Coach Working Group shall continue to act to bring forward such measures through 
the Bus and Coach Strategy and agree the arrangements as to how such public transport 
measures are prioritised and implemented. 

Reason: To ensure the bus modal split applied in the transport assessment is met and net 
impact of traffic on network is limited. 

11. STAL shall contribute £800,000 (index linked for inflation from the date of this 
recommendation) to a Local Road Fund as a contribution toward schemes on the local road 

Page 19Page 265



network within a five mile radius of the network. Such schemes to include, but not be limited 
to, safety improvement, management of combined effects of future airport and local traffic, 
local parking schemes, and schemes to improve accessibility to the airport. 

Reason: To ensure that a proportionate response can be made to impact on the local 
network. 

Works 

12. STAL to improve and expand the bus station, in its existing location, to accommodate the 
projected increase in passenger and employee numbers. Improvements to include, but not 
be limited to: DDA compliant infrastructure increased capacity, increased passenger 
circulation, covered queuing, waiting room, real time information, electronic information and 
directional signage. Such works to be informed by a technical study of capacity and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to 35mppa being reached and delivered 
before 36mppa is reached. 

Reason: To ensure the bus modal split applied in the transport assessment can be 
accommodated and use of passenger transport is encouraged by an excellent customer 
experience. 

13. STAL in agreement with the local highway authority to identify and reserve land required 
to accommodate any future Rapid Transport System and form an east-west link between the 
airport and any future growth locations identified in the Local Plan(s) 

Reason: To facilitate future sustainable transport links from the airport to residential 
developments. 

14. No development shall take place, including any ground works or demolition, until a 
Construction Management Plan has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local 
planning authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction 
period. The Statement shall provide for: 
a. the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors 
b. loading and unloading of plant and materials 
c. storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development 
d. wheel and underbody washing facilities 

Reason: To ensure that on-street parking of these vehicles in the adjoining streets does not 
occur and to ensure that loose materials and spoil are not brought out onto the highway in 
the interests of highway safety and Policy DM 1 of the Highway Authority’s Development 
Management Policies February 2011.

ECC ARCHAEOLOGY

The Historic Environment Record shows that Stansted Airport development overall has been 
one of the most extensive areas of archaeological discovery in Essex. Important settlements 
from the Bronze Age through to the medieval period. The proposed development within this 
application is limited to the areas of the present runway area and lies within an area which 
has probably suffered extensive disturbance from the original construction of the runway and 
its more recent extensions. Therefore, no archaeological recommendations are being made 
on this application.

Page 20Page 266



ENVIRONMENT AGENCY

We have no objection to the proposal. We are recommending a condition regarding water 
resources and offer advice on: the Water Framework Directive, the water environment, 
pollution prevention, COMAH and air quality.

Water resources:  We welcome the inclusion of water resources in consideration of the 
impacts of the proposed expansion, primarily detailed in Chapter 15 of the Environmental 
Statement.

We welcome the inclusion of additional information regarding the water supply infrastructure 
on site (Sections 15.64 – 15.66; Page 15-18) and recent data regarding potable water 
consumption. We also recognise the provision of information around the airport’s actions to 
reduce water consumption, for example “the installation of water saving technology in many 
of the terminal and office toilets” (Section 15.68; Page 15-18) and the “rolling programme of 
leakage detection and repair” (Section 15.69; Page 15-18).

We recognise the proactive engagement with both Affinity Water Limited and Thames Water 
Utilities Limited. It is noted within Section 15.113 that “[Affinity Water] has greater concerns 
in regard to the rate of supply as opposed to total volume” (Page 15-26). This has heavily 
influenced the assessment of a “minor adverse” impact from the proposed expansion on 
water consumption. This shifts to a “negligible” impact once the “20% improvement in 
efficiency and changes to draw down from the mains” (Section 15.114; Page 15-26) is 
incorporated.

Insufficient evidence has been submitted to demonstrate that the 20% improvement in 
efficiency can be achieved. Additionally, the airport is located in an area of ‘Serious’ water 
stress so the total volume of consumption should be a primary concern. It is anticipated that 
climate change will alter rainfall patterns, resulting in less reliable resources, which, when 
combined with expected population increases, will result in increased strain placed on water 
as a resource.

It is noted within the Impact Assessment that “total water consumption will rise with 
increasing numbers of passengers and employees…in both the Do Minimum and 
Development Case” (Section 15.111; Page 15-26). It is stated however that “this increase 
will not be linear as water consumption per passenger is likely to fall due to continued 
improvements in water efficiency, as detailed in the 2015 Sustainable Development Plan 
(SDP), and that certain operational/non passenger water usage (such as for cleaning) will 
not increase in proportion to passenger growth” (Section 15.111; Page 15-26).

The SDP, references the “comprehensive water efficiency programme” and “the installation 
of water saving technology in a number of terminal and office toilets” and a commitment to 
“low-water technology” as standard in new facilities and “all new buildings achieving a 
BREEAM excellent rating” (Our Approach to Managing Water – Water Consumption; Page 
47). 

However, there is little reference to specific and measurable targets which would result in a 
level of accountability. Therefore, it is unclear how the 20% improvement in efficiency has 
been determined or how it will be achieved.

Page 21Page 267



Whilst it is stated that the increase in potable water demand will be non-linear as the 
increase in passenger numbers will not directly correlate with an increase in operation/non-
passenger water usage, there has been no forecasting of the expected increase in water 
consumption. Without such forecasting, there can be little confidence that a 20% 
improvement in efficiency will ensure that total water consumption does not increase.

The strategy and aspiration within the SDP details that the applicant is “committed to 
improving water efficiency…. without intervention, water consumption will rise with the 
growth in passenger numbers. Therefore, we will continue to look for opportunities to reduce 
our water use and to encourage other on-site companies to do the same” (Water 
Management – Our Strategy; Page 49). The proposed expansion should be the impetuous 
required to further quantify water use and determine realistic and measurable targets for 
water consumption throughout the site’s varied uses.

We would recommend that the airport is divided into zones with additional water meters 
installed to the infrastructure network that could be arranged to enable the separation of 
passenger and non-passenger usage. This will enable a more detailed understanding of 
water consumption across the site to inform a targeted approach to the introduction of further 
water saving technologies and efficiencies. This could also lead to a better comparison of 
water consumption across airports, helping to develop a metric of anticipated water 
consumption by airport passengers.

The SDP states “additional measures and revised targets will be explored and reported on in 
the next revision of the SDP…in advance of the implementation of the proposed 
development” (Section 15.35; Page 15-30). However, targets need to be considered during 
the planning consultation stage not the review of the SDP to ensure the increased 
passenger numbers and plane movements are fully accounted for in advance of 
implementation.

We note the intention that “all new major airport buildings [are] targeting a BREEAM 
Excellent rating” SDP Page 47. BREEAM Excellent ratings can be obtained by implementing 
a range of metrics including, but not limited to water. It is expected that all new buildings will 
obtain an Excellent rating for water. 

The Uttlesford District Council Water Cycle Study is under review and a final version will be 
published soon. This will supersede the 2017 document referenced in the Environmental 
Statement. Assumptions reliant on the 2017 document may need to be reviewed.

Dewatering:  It is noted within Development Programme and Construction Environmental 
Management (Page 5-9) that water pumps will be required “to facilitate the undertaking of 
excavation and construction works” Dewatering that occurs during any development process 
may need to be licensed under the new licensing legislation.  

The water discharge associated with dewatering, dependent on quality, may require an 
Environmental Permit under the Environmental Permitting Regulations 2016, unless an 
exemption applies.

Water Framework Directive (WFD):  The WFD requires the UK to prevent deterioration of the 
status of surface and ground water bodies through the River Basin Management Plan. This 

Page 22Page 268



identifies the actions and measures needed to prevent deterioration and improve the status 
of all water bodies.

Section 15.5, Legislation, Guidance and Planning Policy Context; Page 15-2) acknowledges 
that “any activities of developments that could cause detriment to a nearby watercourse, or 
prevent the future ability of a water resource to reach its potential status must be mitigated in 
order to reduce the potential for harm and allow the aims of the Directive to be realised.”

Please note, the following water bodies are most relevant to the site and have been 
designated under the Water Framework Directive. Their most recent classifications have 
been detailed below:

Water Body 
Name Water Body ID

2016 
Ecological 
Classification

Pincey Brook GB106038033380 Moderate
Great 
Hallingbury 
Brook

GB106038033330 Moderate

Stansted Brook GB106038040090 Bad
Upper Roding 
(to Cripsey 
Brook)

GB106037033500 Poor

We encourage future development to deliver measures that act to improve the status of 
water bodies which are relevant to their site. Of those measures requiring implementation to 
achieve Good Ecological Status or Potential for the above water bodies, there are two which 
could be delivered by STAL and are detailed below:

Action 
ID

Water 
Body 
Name

Water Body ID Title Description

22497 Great 
Hallingbury 
Brook

GB10638033330 Regrade bank 
side habitats 
and create riffle 
pool sequences 
CBC2013

Regrade bank side 
habitats and create 
riffle pool 
sequences – 
applicable 
throughout the 
whole water body

22498 Great 
Hallingbury 
Brook

GB10603803330 Remove 
excessive 
overshading 
vegetation 
CB2013

Remove excessive 
overshading 
vegetation – 
applicable 
throughout the 
whole water body

The water environment:  The site is located on a principal aquifer.  We have reviewed the 
following documents:

1. Stansted Airport Environmental Statement – Volume 1, dated February 2018
2. Stansted Airport Planning Statement, dated February 2018
3. Environmental Statement Non-Technical Summary

Page 23Page 269



The current airport use and the proposed scheme present a risk of pollution from land 
contamination.

Based on the information presented there is sufficient data to demonstrate that the proposed 
development poses a low risk to controlled waters:

1. A Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) will be prepared and 
adopted for the site.  The CEMP will outline the mitigation measures to be 
implemented to minimise the risks to controlled waters during the construction 
phase.

2. The construction of the taxiway and the aircraft stands will require shallow depths 
of excavations not penetrating the London Clay.

3. The surface drainage scheme for the proposed development will be connected to 
the existing airport drainage infrastructure.

Therefore, we are not recommending bespoke conditions for this application.

We recommend that the requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework and 
National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) are still followed. All risks to groundwater and 
surface waters from contamination and appropriate remedial action need to be identified. We 
expect reports and Risk Assessments to be prepared in line with our approach to 
groundwater protection document and CLR11 (Model Procedures for the Management of 
Land Contamination).

In order to protect groundwater quality from further deterioration:

• No infiltration based sustainable drainage systems should be constructed on land 
affected by contamination as contaminants can remobilise and cause groundwater 
pollution.

• Piling or any other foundation designs using penetrative methods should not cause 
preferential pathways for contaminants to migrate to groundwater and cause 
pollution. We will require a piling risk assessment if the proposed construction for the 
development changes and involves penetration of the London Clay.

• The CLAIRE Definition of Waste: Development Industry Code of Practice (version 2) 
provides operators with a framework for determining whether or not excavated 
material arising from site during remediation and/or land development works are 
waste or have ceased to be waste.  Developers should refer to: 

• The Position statement on the Definition of Waste: Development Industry Code of 
Practice, and

• The Environmental Regulations page on GOV.UK

Pollution prevention:  The applicant and site operator are advised to contact our 
Environment Management Land and Water team so that we can work together to ensure the 
highest level of protection to the local environment.

Specific items we would wish to address include:

1. Measures to reduce the impacts of de-icers (glycol) at source: including use and 
overspray on taxiways/runways and stands. Specifics of infrastructure (best 

Page 24Page 270



available techniques) proposed for containing residual glycol at source to lessen 
the loading on the surface water system?

2. The applicant should produce and submit for our approval a De-icer Code of 
Practice document separate to the Environmental Management System (EMS). 

3. A review of existing mechanisms for control and prevention of pollution assessing 
the capabilities of current permitted and site infrastructure referencing the 
increased use of de-icer substances and increased surface run-off. An 
exploration of potential improvements to the control of run-off at source and to the 
attenuation on site?

COMAH:  There does not appear to be any consequences to the COMAH inventory or the 
site.  If any changes to the inventory are proposed or required the Operator should consult 
ourselves and the Health and Safety Executive as the Competent Authority.

Air quality - Legislation, guidance and planning policy context

The application has not referenced the emerging NPS. In practice for AQ it means that the 
plan shouldn’t stop any breach of a limit value being achieved as soon as possible. 

An emerging NPS can carry some weight for decision takers in the development consent 
process. The amount of weight given will depend on how far the process has progressed. In 
the absence of a NPS decisions will be taken in accordance with the National Planning 
Policy Framework and any relevant local plan for the area.”

10.71 - The 2014 NAEI has been used, 2016 is now available.

10.82 - Our old H1 guidance for assessing significance has been used, however, this only 
applies to industrial installations. Elsewhere, the DRMB guidance and the ADMS Airports 
model are referenced which are acceptable.

10.99 - The estimates for rural background are from 2014 which may well not represent true 
background in 2017.  Stansted is directly downwind from Greater London in the UK 
dominant SW wind direction and background concentrations could be expected to be higher 
as London is a principle source of particulates and NOx/NO2. 

Incorporated Mitigation:  Construction should follow the standards and practices in the 
IAQM’s or London Mayor’s guidance for construction/demolition and air quality. Other 
generic principles in STAL’s 2015 SDP, including increasing the use of public transport, are 
a reasonable starting point. The principles should be implemented in detail to deliver air 
quality improvements.  

Impact Assessment Human Receptors:  These are described as ‘negligible’ according to 
IAQM/EPUK criteria. The figures in Appendix 10.5 and many receptors are modelled to have 
very low NO2 concentrations even for rural locations. Nevertheless the assessment quotes 
worst changes in concentrations due to the expansion as being quite low figures ie 0.5 to 1 
mic g/ m3.

2nd response:

Section 10.1 & 10.2

Page 25Page 271



We welcome the acceptance of the condition detailed in the STAL Response column for 
Section 10.1 and the agreement to implement the recommendation detailed in Section 10.2 
related to dividing the airport up into zones with additional water meters. Additionally, we 
welcome further engagement as STAL identify the additional measures which will ensure the 
20% reduction in water consumption is achieved.

Section 10.5

We note the statement in Section 10.5 of the Consultation Response that ‘The CEMP will set 
out how groundwater and surface water will be managed to limit contamination during 
construction’. However, we wish to reiterate to the applicant the importance of dealing with 
on-site contamination in accordance with current guidance and legislation (including CLR11 
and the NPPF). Please note that In line with section 178 of the NPPF the responsibility for 
securing safe development rests with the developer. Section 10.9 – 10.11

It is understood that the Uttlesford Water Cycle Study (WCS) is currently being reviewed and 
updated. This was highlighted within our response referenced AE/2018/122577/01-L01 and 
dated 18 April 2018. It would be appropriate to re-iterate that references made to the 2017 
WCS, and any assumptions, will need to be updated to reflect the current document when it 
is available.

It is understood that the foul water from Stansted Airport is treated at Bishops Stortford 
Waste Water Treatment Works (WwTWs) (Section 10.9, STAL Response Column). The 
consented discharge of final effluent from Bishops Stortford WwTWs discharges into the 
Water Framework Directive (WFD) designated water body of Great Hallingbury Brook (WB 
ID: GB106038033330). This water body currently has a Poor classification, with Very Certain 
confidence, for Phosphate. SAGIS modelling indicates that 94.2% of the phosphate input 
into this water body is the result of WwTW load. All other Phys-chem determinants are at 
High, Very Certain, status.

The data submitted through Operator Self-Monitoring for the final effluent of Bishops 
Stortford WwTWs has been reviewed. This indicates that this site is currently operating 
within the industry standard for phosphorus; concentration levels of the final effluent were 
within 1-2milligrams per litre (mg/l) of phosphorus. Unless the phosphate treatment process 
is improved, then increased total volumes of foul water to Bishops Stortford WwTWs will 
further add to the phosphate load for Great Hallingbury Brook.

Additionally, there is concern regarding deterioration of the other Phys-chem elements, 
specifically Ammonia and Dissolved Oxygen. Our guidance allows for a 10% deterioration of 
water quality, providing there is no deterioration of the WFD Classification status.

Whilst we do acknowledge that STAL is correct in their understanding of the new charging 
rules introduced 01 April 2018, as detailed in Section 10.11 (STAL Response Column). 
STAL do need to be aware that it is up to the developer to demonstrate that their proposal 
will have no detrimental impact with regards to WFD.

As a result, we recommend a condition is included that STAL undertake modelling to ensure 
that the increased passenger numbers and associated increase in total foul water volumes, if 
not accounted for within the WCS which is currently being updated, will not result in 
deterioration in this water body.

Page 26Page 272



Section 10.6 – 10.8

As per our letter referenced AE/2018122577/01-L01 and dated 18 April 2018, the applicant 
and site operator should contact our Environment Management Land and Water team 
regarding water quality.

The following points will need to be addressed in writing and communicated back to us to 
ensure the highest level of protection to the local environment:

1. There are measures to reduce the impacts of de-icers (glycol) at source, including use 
and overspray on taxiways/runways and stands. Furthermore, we would like to see 
specifically designed infrastructure (best available techniques) proposed for containing 
residual glycol at source to lessen the loading on the surface water system.

2. A stand-alone De-icer Code of Practice document is produced separate to the 
Environmental Management System (EMS). This should be submitted to and approved by 
us.

3. There is a review of existing mechanisms for control and prevention of pollution that 
assesses the capabilities of current permitted and site infrastructure, taking into account the 
increased use of de-icer substances and increased surface run-off. We would like to see 
improvements made to control run-off at source and to the attenuation on site.

GARDENS TRUST

We have considered the information provided in support of the application and on the basis 
of this confirm we do not wish to comment on the proposals at this stage. We would however 
emphasise that this does not in any way signify either our approval or disapproval of the 
proposals.

HEALTH AND SAFETY EXECUTIVE

Not within consultation distance of either high pressure gas pipeline or a major hazard site.  
No comments to make on the application.

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

The County Council's position on aviation and London Stansted is set out within its 
Corporate Plan 'Hertfordshire County of Opportunity Corporate Plan 2017-2021' and Local 
Transport Plan, as follows:

Hertfordshire County of Opportunity Corporate Plan 2017-2021 'Opportunity to thrive - 
across Hertfordshire, we want to see:

- Our natural environment and diverse habitats protected from excessive or 
inappropriate growth, including the negative effects of airport expansion.'

Page 27Page 273



Local Transport Plan:  The existing Local Transport Plan (LTP3) states:

'3.2 Airports

The Air Transport White Paper published in December 2003 set out the government's then 
policy for airport development. The intention was that full use would be made of the capacity 
of existing runways and in addition a second wide spaced runway was proposed at Stansted 
and a full-length runway at Luton. The county council's position remains strongly against 
these proposals. A new National Policy Statement on Airports due to be published in 2011 
will set out a different policy to that of the White Paper.'

A county council is opposed to new runway development at Luton and Stansted Airports.

B Should any future development and growth in passenger numbers at either Stansted and 
Luton Airports be promoted, the county council will seek the provision in Hertfordshire of 
adequate supporting surface access infrastructure and services to meet the needs of airport 
users while minimising the impact on local and other travellers. The county council will seek 
assurance that the funding of such improvements will be in place before growth occurs.

C The county council will promote and where possible facilitate a modal shift of both airport 
passengers and employees towards sustainable modes.'

The emerging new Local Transport Plan (LTP4) is scheduled to become County Council 
policy in May this year. With regard to airports, draft LTP4 states the following:

'Policy 11: Airports

The county council, working in partnership with neighbouring local authorities and airport 
operators, will seek improvements to surface access to Luton and Stansted Airports, and 
promote and where possible facilitate a modal shift of both airport passengers and 
employees towards sustainable modes of transport. The county council is opposed to new 
runway development at Luton and Stansted Airports.

Application:  The county council will seek to implement this policy through working closely 
with the airports and the relevant neighbouring local authorities to ensure access to and from 
Hertfordshire for the region's airports, particularly London Luton and London Stansted, is 
improved and focussed primarily on sustainable modes of travel. The council will seek to 
ensure it exerts its influence on the aims, objectives, proposals and targets contained within 
the Luton Surface Access Strategy and the Stansted Sustainable Development Strategy and 
closely link these to the relevant Growth and Transport Plans (see page 91).

The county council will be working with relevant stakeholders to improve rail access to 
Stansted, without causing a detriment to other existing services on the West Anglia Mainline. 
The county council will also lobby train operating companies for improved facilities on these 
trains. It will work in partnership in seeking to tackle traffic congestion on the key radial 
routes to the airport and reduce the amount of vehicle trips, with an emphasis on promoting 
more sustainable modes of travel.

The county council, local authority partners, bus operators and the airport operators will look 
for opportunities to maximise the levels of passenger transport (bus and coach), especially 
from areas without direct rail access to Stansted and Luton Airports.

Page 28Page 274



The county council will also seek to work with the relevant authorities to help minimise any 
environmental impacts, such as noise, arising from aviation (see Environment Policy 21).

Outcomes:  Overall the policy seeks the delivery of sustainable airport growth at both Luton 
and Stansted with negative impacts on the local road network, environment and quality of life 
minimised. According an increase in sustainable mode share by airport passengers and 
employees at both airports should be sought.

Policy 21: Environment

The county council will seek to:

e) Minimise noise issues arising from transport where practical to do so.

Application:  Traffic, air travel and passenger transport can all cause noise disturbances, 
which can impact upon quality of life and tranquillity. The council will seek to minimise the 
impacts of traffic and transport noise in Hertfordshire, both when maintaining the existing 
transport infrastructure and when new infrastructure is installed. This will be achieved by 
working with key partners and stakeholders and through use of appropriate materials. The 
county council will also work with the local airports to seek to reduce disturbances from 
aircraft noise in Hertfordshire.' 

The County Council's response to the consultation on the planning application sits within this 
policy context.

Surface Access:  Since the planning application was submitted the County Council has been 
working closely with Essex County Council (ECC) in relation to the transport impact on local 
roads and with Highways England (HE) in their role as strategic highway authority.  As you 
area aware a series of meetings have taken place between all parties and are programmed 
to continue over the next few weeks. The ongoing dialogue is taking place to resolve/clarify a 
number of issues that have been identified as part of ECC's assessment of the application, 
such as appropriate assessment year, catering for background growth, airport 
passenger/employee modal split, times of assessment, distribution of trips and testing of 
impact.  ECC are continuing to lead on the technical assessment of the Transport 
Assessment, but this work is still incomplete. Further modelling work and sensitivity testing is 
also currently underway by the applicant, but the outputs from this process are similarly not 
available. Until the full technical assessment and outputs from the further technical work are 
available, the County Council is not in a position to accurately assess the impact of the 
application on the Hertfordshire network. The County Council commits to working closely 
with ECC and HE, together with the applicant and UDC, to ensure the surface 
access/highway implications of the application can be quantified robustly and appropriate 
mitigation requirements identified. The County Council will make further submissions to 
reflect the outcome of ongoing work.

Aircraft Noise:  The potential impact of air noise on communities is clearly a critical issue in 
terms of the potential adverse impacts of the proposal. The County Council welcomes the 
findings of the assessment accompanying the application that '6.69 Given that a change of 
3dB is recognised as being necessary in order to be discernible to the human ear, the 
overall change in noise levels (using average noise contours) experienced as a 

Page 29Page 275



consequence of the proposed development would be negligible............................'. New 
mitigation measures are also proposed.

The local planning authority has appointed independent noise consultancy advice 
[Bickerdike Allen and Partners (BAP)] to assess the application in terms of its analysis of 
predicted noise impacts, conclusions and proposed mitigation measures. Whilst BAP 
attended the noise and health workshop held on 26th March, it was clear that at that stage 
its analysis had not progressed substantively. As a consequence, at the time of writing, the 
outcome of the review by BAP and any conclusions it may reach and recommendations it 
may make are not available. The County Council will make further submissions, as 
necessary, to reflect the outcome of the independent assessment and its recommendations.

Air Quality:  The County Council welcomes the findings of the assessment accompanying 
the application that 'as a result of the proposed development, for all NO2, PM10 and PM2.5 
emissions there would be marginal increases at isolated receptors. Importantly, there are no 
exceedances of legal limits, and forecast levels are well below air quality standards for 
human health..........................for all ecological receptors, NOX emissions are predicted to 
remain below the air quality standard and no significant effects are predicted.................in 
respect of local air quality the proposed development will not have any unacceptable impact 
on health, the natural environment or general amenity.....'.

The local planning authority has appointed independent air quality consultancy advice, WYG 
Consulting, to assess the application in terms of its analysis of predicted air quality impacts 
and conclusions. Whilst WYG attended the air quality workshop held on 28th March, it was 
clear that at that stage its analysis had not progressed substantively. As a consequence, at 
the time of writing the outcome of the review by WYG and any conclusions it may reach and 
recommendations it may make are not available. The County Council will make further 
submissions, as necessary, to reflect the outcome of the independent assessment and its 
recommendations (including conclusions in relation to any implications the proposal might 
have on the existing Air Quality Management Area within Bishops Stortford).

Airport Capacity Capability:  The County Council's response to the Request for 
Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) scoping opinion stated the following: 

'Theoretical throughput  - In addition to assessing the implications of the proposed 44.5 
mppa throughput, the EIA should also give consideration to the potential cumulative impact 
of this proposal taken together with other proposals associated with the airport - for example 
the recent terminal consent. The theoretical throughput (if different to the proposed cap) of 
the collective consents and maximised operational model should be considered/assessed, 
not simply the proposed throughput cap.'

As the planning application has been submitted to and is being processed and determined 
by the local planning authority, clarity must exist that the proposal does not fall within the 
scope of development defined as a Nationally Significant Infrastructure Project by virtue of 
section 14(1) of the Planning Act 2008, for which responsibility for determination lies with the 
Secretary of State.   The application does not propose an increase in permitted capacity of 
greater than 10 mppa, but presumably there is clarity that the proposal does not facilitate an 
airport that would be theoretically capable of handling greater an additional 10 mppa.

Page 30Page 276



Environment Impact Assessment - Reasonable Alternatives:  Alternatives to the Proposed 
Development 

At para 3.110 the EIA states that:

'3.110 Schedule 4 of the EIA Regulations states that the following is required within an ES:

'A description of the reasonable alternatives (for example in terms of development design, 
technology, location, size and scale) studied by the developer, which are relevant to the 
proposed project and its specific characteristics, and an indication of the main reasons for 
selecting the chosen option, including a comparison of the environmental effects.'

At para 3.111 the EIA goes on to say:

'3.111 When considering the 'reasonable alternatives' for a change to permitted operations 
and the amending of the existing annual passenger cap and creation of a combined aircraft 
movement limit, STAL has not identified any credible alternatives which would achieve the 
overarching objective of making better and more efficient use of the existing single runway or 
be capable of accommodating the predicted demand of both passengers and airlines in the 
short to medium term (i.e. beyond 2023).'

And in para 3.115 the EIA concludes:

'3.115 In view of the above, it can be concluded that there are only two feasible alternatives 
– the 'Do Minimum' scenario and the 'Development Case', as described in ES Chapter 2 
(EIA Methodology). The comparative environmental effects of these alternatives form the 
basis of the assessment presented in this ES.'

In the months/year prior to submission of the planning application the applicant was moving 
forward with, and undertook a public consultation and sought views upon, proposals to 
increase throughput capacity of the airport to 44.5 mppa. Following that public consultation 
the applicant took the view that it would reduce its growth proposals to 43 mppa. The 
applicant has, therefore, very recently been giving consideration to a proposal (albeit not a 
different development) of a different throughput to that the subject of this planning 
application, and is presumably a reasonable alternative that c/should be assessed.

Much is made in the EIA and application of the aspiration to make best use of the runway. 
The County Council's response to the consultation on the EIA Request for Scoping Opinion 
called for the EIA to assess the theoretical capacity of the airport with the development in 
place (regardless of any planning cap that might be placed upon any planning permission, 
were one to be forthcoming) - see above (is this at or beyond 44.5mppa?) nor what it might 
be with some other form of similar/reasonably proportionate development (e.g. different 
number/form of taxiways, aircraft stands - though it is acknowledged that para 3.111 of the 
EIA states that the applicant considers there are no credible alternatives).

Community and Well-being Fund:  At the Noise and Health Workshop held on the 26th 
March the applicant indicated that it would welcome a discussion about the terms of 
reference for the Fund - to include a review of the kinds of projects and types of 
organisations/groups that should be eligible to bid to it, its geographic scope, and so on. The 
County Council welcomes this offer and would wish to be involved in those discussions over 
the coming months.

Page 31Page 277



2nd response:

Noise

The review of the application by independent specialists in relation to the application’s 
assessment of noise impacts/implications, conclusions reached and mitigation measures 
proposed has now concluded.  The findings of the independent noise specialist that the 
assessment methodology, approach and level of detail is satisfactory, that the Environmental 
Statement is comprehensive, that noise impacts are no greater than would be the case 
under the existing planning permission, that the approach to mitigation is appropriate (with 
additions proposed) to the extent that there are considered to be no grounds to object to the 
proposal, is welcomed.  

The County Council will expect any consent that may be forthcoming to incorporate 
appropriate measures to ensure these findings and mitigations are secured and communities 
protected.

Air Quality

The review of the application by independent specialists in relation to the application’s 
assessment of air quality impacts/implications, conclusions reached and mitigation 
measures proposed has now concluded.  The findings that the air quality assessment work 
informing the planning application is sufficient to enable the effects of the scheme to be 
determined, that the effect of emissions on human receptors will be negligible, that there will 
not be significant effects at surrounding habitats and that matters relating to air quality and 
emissions can be addressed through an appropriately worded condition is welcomed.  

With regard to Bishops Stortford Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) the Environment 
Health response is not clear.  It identifies that the application concludes that the effect of 
emissions from the development would be negligible, but goes on to acknowledge that there 
will be additional health impacts within the AQMA as a consequence of the development 
which ‘……..should be considered against the benefits of the scheme and an appropriate 
balance of mitigation should be sought’.  It is not clear whether the Environmental Health 
response supports the applicant’s ‘negligible’ assessment or whether there are additional 
health impacts that the decision-maker needs to take into account in decision making.  If the 
latter, then these impacts do not appear to be quantified and opinion/advice is not 
presented.  If there are additional health impacts, the County Council will expect these to be 
quantified and potential deliverable mitigation measures identified (secured through any 
consent, if necessary) to fully inform decision-making.  The County Council and East 
Hertfordshire District Council would wish to be closely involved in any further technical work 
that may be required.

Surface Access

As you will be aware, the three highway authorities continue to engage in technical 
work/discussions with the applicant and UDC on surface access matters and this has not yet 
reached a satisfactory conclusion to enable the County Council to make its representations 
within the timeframe of this supplementary consultation.  The County Council will, therefore, 
be making further representations on these matters in due course, the timeframe for which is 
not currently known. 

Page 32Page 278



3rd Response:

Stansted Area Transport Forum/Existing Planning Obligation

The applicant has clarified the role of Stansted Area Transport Forum (SATF) in a 
background information note (July 2018).  The current SATF arrangement has been effective 
in maintaining market leading modal split.  The applicant proposes to maintain the current 
arrangement alongside minor amendments to the SATF’s terms of reference.  SATF 
consists of three reporting sub-groups (bus and coach, local road and rail) upon which the 
County Council is represented and is therefore an established partner in the process

It is understood that if permission is granted it will be accompanied by a new section 106 
(s.106) agreement which will effectively supersede the existing agreement.  The existing 
agreement includes several specific contributions that relate to measures within 
Hertfordshire.  Although the applicant has indicated it is its intention to carry these forward 
into a new agreement, to date this commitment has not been confirmed in writing.  
Furthermore, there is a need to consider the surface access implications of an expanded 
Airport to establish whether it would be appropriate for the commitments to be uplifted and 
incorporated into the new s.106 agreement.  Current potential schemes that would likely to 
feature from such funding arrangements are set out later in this response, but as also set out 
later, it is difficult at this point in time to define what schemes/services should be prioritised in 
the future – as this will be dependent upon issues that arise as the Airport grows, as wider 
non-Airport growth comes forward, wider transportation initiatives and how Airport surface 
access sits within these.

HCC Agreement (Schedule 2)
1 STAL shall contribute a sum of up to £350,000.00 (three hundred and fifty thousand 

pounds) to HCC as a contribution towards local road schemes as shown in the Fourth 
Schedule to this Undertaking (Highways and Traffic Management - Bishop's Stortford) 
within a five-mile radius of the Airport Boundary and which may also include 
measures from the Hertfordshire Local Transport Plan, The Eastern Herts Transport 
Plan, and other highway safety schemes that are identified by STAL with HCC
(Para 1.2: As determined by SATF by Dec 2015 and in compliance with Circular 
05/2005)

2 STAL shall contribute a sum of £250,000.00 (two hundred and fifty thousand pounds) 
to HCC as a contribution towards the costs of the Little Hadham Bypass and such 
sum shall be paid by STAL to HCC within 3 months of the date of Practical 
Completion of the Little Hadham Bypass and in the event that the Construction of the 
Little Hadham Bypass is not commenced by 31st December 2018 then this obligation 
shall cease to have effect. 

[The applicant has confirmed that this contribution will be paid to HCC on request]
3 STAL shall contribute a total sum of one hundred and fifty thousand pounds 

(£150,000.00) from the Passenger Transport Levy which shall be used for public 
transport measures that are brought forward as part of the Bishop’s Stortford's 
Transport Strategy as shown in Schedule 4 (Public Transport) and such measures 
shall meet the objectives of the Passenger Transport Levy and be related to surface 
access impacts of the Development.

Table 1: Existing HCC specific s.106 measures to be superseded with new agreement

It should be noted that alongside specific financial contributions made available to 
SATF/working groups, the applicant has confirmed the current Passenger Transport Levy, 
which is a direct proportion of every car park cost transaction, will continue to be ring fenced 
for use by STAL and recognised Travel Plan style initiatives. Historically this revenue has 
supported out of hours bus services, employee shuttles, travel card system, cycle shelters 

Page 33Page 279



and onward travel information and marketing.  As the revenue stream is attached to car 
parking it is predicted to continue to increase relative to growth.

During the consultation period measures to support the applicant’s Surface Access Plan 
Aims and Targets (Table 2.1 Surface Access Transport Assessment) have been discussed.  
The applicant has proposed a continuation of the SATF process and bearing in mind the 
established structure and relative success in delivering modal split targets the County 
Council has no reason to object to maintaining the current arrangement.  

Road network

The Essex County Council letter dated 21st September 2018 sets out the technical work that 
has been ongoing to address the impacts of the proposal on the highway network.  The 
County Council notes that, subject to a number of planning conditions and obligations being 
secured, the proposal is acceptable to Essex County Council as Highway Authority – subject 
to Highways England being satisfied that impacts upon the strategic highway network have 
been satisfactorily addressed.  The County Council supports the position of Essex County 
Council and the proposed conditions and obligations.  Hertfordshire County Council agrees 
that a comprehensive programme of monitoring of the Airport highway network should be 
agreed with Highways England and the Local Highway Authorities. If it is identified that the 
growth on the Airport network interferes on a regular basis with the operation of the Strategic 
or Local road network, STAL shall identify and agree mitigation measures and a programme 
for implementation of such measures with the Local Planning Authority, in consultation with 
the relevant highways agencies. 

In terms of the Hertfordshire local highways network, the County Council is satisfied that 
technical work demonstrates that the proposal would not have a significant impact upon the 
wider Hertfordshire network.  However, as discussed above, given the uncertainty that 
comes with a proposal such as this that would come forward over a significant period of time 
and the proximity of the Hertfordshire network and particularly Bishop’s Stortford, uncertainty 
remains in relation to future impacts that could be associated with the Airport.  For example, 
it has not been possible to reach agreement on the scale of airport-related road traffic likely 
to use the Hockerill Street junction within Bishop’s Stortford.  The junction lies within an Air 
Quality Management Area, the cause of which is congestion.  Additional Airport-related 
traffic has the potential to exacerbate congestion and therefore potentially air quality issues 
and it is therefore considered appropriate to include the junction as potentially requiring 
future mitigation which might in some way be attributable to the Airport (subject to 
confirmation of this at a future time).  

Due to the nature of the Hockerill Street junction significant increases in capacity will be 
difficult to implement. Several options are included in the Bishop’s Stortford Transport Plan 
and listed in Table 2.  However, the AQMA is monitored by East Herts District Council and it 
is understood that alternative/additional mitigation such as a local demand based ULEV bus 
service that would support local services may be sufficient to help to address air quality 
concerns. 

To provide further local mitigation the District Council also believes regular local taxi services 
will be encouraged to switch to low emission vehicles if EV charging points are provided at 
the Airport drop off/pick up areas to reflect a similar town centre proposal, thereby helping to 
reduce air pollution.

Page 34Page 280



Local Road Schemes
Hockerill Street 
Junction 
improvement

Improvement to the Hockerill Street 
junction to reduce congestion
A. Banned right turns (permanent) – on 
B1383 and A1060 approaches
B. Banned right turn (permanent) – on 
B1383 approach
C. Ban left turns

2-5 years £250k

Demand based 
ULEV bus service

Demand based ULEV bus service to 
cover all of Bishop’s Stortford and the 
Airport

£100k per 
vehicle

Rapid EV charging 
points

Rapid EV charging points to support the 
ULEV accessing the Airport

£50k

Table 2: Local Road Mitigation

Non-car surface access/Sustainable Transport

The County Council’s initial response to the consultation on the application dated 30th April 
2018 set out the contextual Hertfordshire Local Transport Plan policy in relation to airports.  
The overall approach to transport taken within LTP4 is one that seeks a transition from a car-
based approach to one more balanced and catering for all forms of transport – seeking a 
switch from the private car to sustainable transport (e.g. walking, cycling and passenger 
transport) wherever possible.  This approach is specifically mentioned in Policy 11 Airports 
which states the following:

‘Policy 11: Airports

The county council, working in partnership with neighbouring local authorities and 
airport operators, will seek improvements to surface access to Luton and 
Stansted Airports, and promote and where possible facilitate a modal shift of both 
airport passengers and employees towards sustainable modes of transport……..’

The County Council has been liaising with Essex County Council in relation to non-car 
surface access to the Airport and any potential enhancements that might be required to 
support the proposal.  The County Council broadly supports the conclusions on strategic 
non-car access matters set out in the Essex County Council letter dated 21st September 
2018, including the production by STAL of a Bus and Coach Strategy, a Walking and Cycling 
Strategy, travel planning initiatives and widening the scope of the Sustainable Transport 
Levy.  A holistic approach to non-car access to/from the Airport in a manner that meets the 
needs of passengers and employees at all hours of operation will be critical as the airport 
grows.

In terms of the Hertfordshire context for non-car/sustainable transport access to/from a 
growing Airport, the County Council has the following recommendations.  

Walking/Cycling

Hertfordshire County Council’s Local Transport Plan (LTP4) includes a commitment to 
encourage greater use of sustainable transport (Policy 1).  In relation to walking and cycling, 
the applicant has acknowledged that there is potential for significant increases in this 
proportion of employee journeys.  As stated in the Transport Assessment, in the region of 
35% of employees live within 10km of the airport.  However, although the proportion of 
employees cycling (and walking) has increased in recent years, it still remains extremely 
small.  As there is potential for significant increases in proportion of walking and cycling trips 

Page 35Page 281



it is disappointing that the applicant is predicting such small increases to 2020, only an 
additional 0.1%.  A similar lack of ambition is true of the applicant’s Travel Plan targets which 
accompany growth to 2028.

The County Council has submitted a series of cycling schemes to the applicant which will 
help deliver higher proportions of cycling and walking (see table 3).  The County Council is 
also currently developing a strategic cycling route to initially link the Airport to Bishop’s 
Stortford, Sawbridgeworth, Harlow, Gilston, Ware and Hoddesdon.  The scheme may 
supersede previous listed schemes, in some cases it may build on identified routes.  A 
combination of routes will be a valuable asset to a significant proportion of employees and 
help support a more ambitious increase in growth of cycling and walking. In line with the 
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulation tests the County Council would not anticipate the 
applicant funding more distant sections.  There will be sections in the vicinity of Bishops 
Stortford which will be largely designed with the objective to encourage cycling and walking 
Airport access.  In these cases the County Council would expect SATF to prioritise funding.

Bus/Coach

Public transport access to the Airport is well established, in particular from the north, south 
and east.  Unfortunately, local bus penetration from the Airport into Hertfordshire, west 
beyond Bishop’s Stortford is limited.  Support for a central and south-west Hertfordshire to 
Airport bus service has been identified as a priority in the County Council’s (2011) Bus 
Strategy, and Stansted’s (2016) Sustainable Development Plan bus and coach strategy.

The precise routeing and frequency are subject to detailed consideration of demand and 
consultation with stakeholders and passenger groups, but could provide links to/from towns 
such as St Albans, Hatfield, Stevenage, Welwyn Garden City, Hertford and Ware, and 
potentially further afield should demand dictate.  The long distance nature of the service 
means that it should preferably be express, limited-stop and charge premium fares to avoid 
undermining existing commercial services.  Services should be at least two-hourly and 
reflect airport working hours, in line with existing coaches from 
Birmingham/Luton/Stevenage, and a demand-responsive basis should be considered.

Pump prime support should be secured for the County Council from Airport developer 
contributions for a minimum period of five years, in line with standard industry practice, to 
enable demand to be established and grown to a point where commercial viability can be 
achieved.  Financial support for accompanying promotion and marketing, and high 
specification vehicles should also be provided to maximise the attractiveness of the service, 
especially as historic services have not attracted passenger numbers on a consistent basis.  

Contributions from the Development to Surface Access mitigations/improvements

The County Council is content with arrangements proposed and which are understood to be 
incorporated into any consent were one forthcoming, through which the applicant will provide 
funding, subject to normal Community Infrastructure Levy regulation tests, that can be 
accessed (through the SATF) should the need for future surface access mitigations within 
Hertfordshire relating in some way to growth of the airport materialise.  

A Growth and Transport Plan to cover Bishop’s Stortford is programmed to be developed in 
2019 and will contain (as will any successor Plan) a series of transport measures to address 
predicted growth across the area.  At this stage it is not possible to identify what schemes 
might be appropriately linked to SATF and as indicated elsewhere in this response, given the 
longevity of this growth proposal the relationship between it and wider transportation issues 
is likely to evolve over time.  Nevertheless, taking into account the above range of schemes, 

Page 36Page 282



the County Council would recommend that the commitment within the current s106 
agreement to:

• local road schemes is enhanced to the sum of £1.2m to reflect the above schemes 
(local road, walking and cycling) and future impact uncertainty.

• public transport is enhanced to the sum of £800,000 to secure the public transport 
(bus/coach) proposals set out above.

• contribute to the construction of the Little Hadham Bypass is index linked (currently at 
circa £360,000) and rolled forward (in line with existing commitment from STAL to do 
so).

The County Council’s position on the planning application

On the basis of the above and previous representations and subject to the above, the 
County Council welcomes the additional capacity that this proposal will bring forward and the 
economic benefits associated with it.  The application is supported.  

Generally as the airport grows (within the context of any planning permission that may be 
forthcoming)

As the Airport grows the County Council would encourage and welcome ongoing liaison with 
the Airport, local authorities, London Stansted Cambridge Consortium, Local Enterprise 
Partnerships and other key stakeholders on how any economic benefits can be maximised 
and shared across the wider sub-region, including Hertfordshire.  It looks forward to 
participating in processes (including the Stansted Area Transport Forum) with other delivery 
stakeholders designed to address existing and any emerging surface access issues and 
priorities as they arise.  With regard to noise, the County Council welcomes opportunities to 
work with the Airport, Consultative Committee and relevant stakeholders in mechanisms 
(such as Future Airspace Strategy/Airspace Management Strategy implementation, specific 
airspace change proposals, noise action planning, etc,) to minimise and reduce the noise 
implications of the Airport on Hertfordshire.  A balanced and partnership approach to 
increasing aviation capacity and securing economic benefits whilst managing and wherever 
possible reducing environmental impacts will be critical in moving forward.

HIGHWAYS ENGLAND

Recommend that conditions should be attached to any planning permission that may be 
granted.  

Highways England has been appointed by the Secretary of State for Transport as strategic 
highway company under the provisions of the Infrastructure Act 2015 and is the highway 
authority, traffic authority and street authority for the Strategic Road Network (SRN). The 
SRN is a critical national asset and as such we work to ensure that it operates and is 
managed in the public interest, both in respect of current activities and needs as well as in 
providing effective stewardship of its long-term operation and integrity.

This response represents our formal recommendations with regards to UTT/18/0460/FUL 
and has been prepared by David Abbott.

The proposed development comprises infrastructure improvements at Stansted Airport 
located close to the intersection of A120 (T) and M11 at junction 8 in Uttlesford District in 
Essex. The planning application was submitted on 22 February 2018 and the proposals 
include the introduction of new taxiway links, aircraft stands and associated on-site 

Page 37Page 283



infrastructure. The airport is seeking permission to accommodate an increase in passenger 
numbers from the currently permitted limit of 35 million passengers per year up to 43 million.

Prior to submitting the application, the airport had already been engaging with us and other 
key transport partners in relation to their expansion through the Stansted Transport Working 
Group which has been operational for several years.

The key locations on the SRN most likely to experience severe adverse impacts as a result 
of the airport’s proposed expansion are M11 junction 8 interchange and the A120 Priory 
Wood roundabout which is the next junction a short distance east of the M11. The A120 to 
the west of the M11 is a local highway managed by Essex County Council (ECC), and forms 
a bypass of Bishop’s Stortford. Birchanger Motorway Service Area is served directly off the 
M11 J8 gyratory.

ECC are currently preparing to implement a major improvement to a short section of the 
A120 west of M11 J8 to support economic growth. These improvements are likely to be able 
to accommodate some of the traffic growth arising from the airport expansion beyond the 
current 35mppa limit. However, they are not sufficient to cater for 43mppa. Further 
improvements are therefore necessary to address the potentially severe impacts on the SRN 
at M11 J8 and at the A120 Priory Wood roundabout. A mitigation scheme was therefore 
submitted by the applicant which in terms of capacity and safety should be adequate to 
address these impacts.

In parallel with the ECC scheme and the airport’s additional improvements, calls have been 
made for more extensive improvements to the M11 to be included in a future Roads 
Investment Strategy (RIS). The next RIS covering the period 2020 to 2025 is currently being 
prepared on behalf of the Department for Transport (DfT). Study work is still progressing to 
support the development of the next RIS, which is not due to be published by DfT until the 
latter part of 2019, so it is not yet known whether a scheme to upgrade the M11 or its 
junctions could be included. However, the possibility of such a scheme being included has 
had to be acknowledged in the context of this application.

In light of the above, we are minded therefore to recommend conditions to be attached to 
any planning permission (see below). These relate to delivery of the specific set of mitigation 
improvements to the SRN as proposed by the applicants. In proposing these conditions, we 
are, however, mindful of the need to adopt a flexible approach that will enable the sensible 
coordination or adaptation of works for the benefit both of users of the road network and the 
airport, and to respond to factors that are currently unknown.

Such an approach is especially relevant to future RIS programmes and timetables. As such, 
while the conditions relate to specific improvement plans our aim is principally to achieve the 
required outcomes within an appropriate timetable but to allow either: (i) for the proposals to 
be reviewed and, if appropriate, revised to better achieve the outcomes in the light of 
emerging conditions; or (ii) for the possibility of the proposals to be superseded by another 
more extensive scheme or schemes that would achieve the same outcomes. In the event of 
the latter we believe a financial contribution by the applicant equivalent to the cost of their 
proposed mitigation scheme would therefore be appropriate, and this has been 
acknowledged by them.

In practice, with regard to mitigation measures on the SRN, we would anticipate the following 
process being followed, most probably within the context of a section 106 agreement:

a) Upon reaching 35 million passengers per 12-month period, the applicant shall, in 
consultation with Highways England, undertake a review of the mitigation works for 
M11 J8 and A120 Priory Wood shown on Steer Drawings 23003401-SDG-HGN-

Page 38Page 284



100-DR-D-00104 Rev P1 and 2300340-SDG-HGN-100-DR-D-00101 Rev P1 (or 
subsequent versions approved in writing by the local planning authority in 
consultation with Highways England) (“the mitigation scheme”). This review shall 
consider outturn traffic conditions at that time, any other changes in future predicted 
traffic conditions, and also the Roads Investment Strategy (RIS) programme for the 
SRN in respect of J8 M11;

b) Following this review, unless otherwise agreed in writing with Highways England, 
the mitigation scheme shall be completed and open to traffic no later than when 
passenger numbers are forecast to reach 39 million passengers per 12-month 
period;

c) If, following the review, it is agreed in writing by Highways England that, due to the 
inclusion of an alternative major scheme for J8 M11 in a future RIS (“the RIS 
scheme”), the mitigation scheme will no longer be required, a financial sum equal to 
the cost of the mitigation scheme will be paid to Highways England as a contribution 
to the cost of the RIS scheme. The payment shall be made when the airport 
reaches 39 million passengers per 12-month period, unless otherwise agreed in 
writing.

Given the above, we therefore recommend the following conditions be attached to any 
planning permission:

Unless otherwise agreed in writing the works to M11 J8 shown in outline on Steer Drawing 
numbers 23003401-SDG-HGN-100-DR-D-00104 Rev P1 and 2300340-SDG-HGN-100-DR-
D-00101 Rev P1 (or subsequent versions approved in writing by the local planning authority 
in consultation with Highways England) shall be completed and open to traffic before 39 
million passengers per annum is exceeded.

Scheme details shall include drawings and documents showing:
i. How the improvement interfaces with the exiting highway alignment and 

carriageway markings including lane destinations;
ii. Full construction details relating to the highway improvement. This should include 

any modifications to existing structures or proposed structures, with supporting 
analysis;

iii. Full signing and lighting details where applicable;
iv. iv. Confirmation of full compliance with departmental standards (DMRB) and 

policies (or approved relaxations/departures from standards);
v. v. Evidence that the scheme is fully deliverable within land in control of either the 

highways authorities of the applicant;
vi. vi. An independent stage 2 Road Safety Audit (RSA) taking account of any stage 

1 RSA recommendations, carried out in accordance with DMRB and advice notes

Reason: To ensure that the M11 J8 and the A120 Priory Wood junctions will continue to 
operate safely and efficiently as part of the strategic road network.

HISTORIC ENGLAND

We do not wish to offer any comments.  Suggest you seek the views of your specialist 
conservation and archaeological advisers.

Page 39Page 285



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL

For your information, Stansted Airport’s planning application (UTT/18/0460/FUL) was 
discussed at Maldon District Council’s Planning and Licensing Committee yesterday evening 
(17/04/2018) and no comments were raised by Members.

NATS SAFEGUARDING

The proposed development has been examined from a technical safeguarding aspect and 
does not conflict with our safeguarding criteria. Accordingly, NATS (En Route) Public Limited 
Company ("NERL") has no safeguarding objection to the proposal.

NATURAL ENGLAND

Thank you for your re-consultation on the above dated 23 July 2018 which was received by 
Natural England on the same date, following discussions with your authority and the 
applicant at the meeting of 10 July 2018. This letter follows previous emailed consultation 
advice dated 9 July 2018 and 10 May 2018 which sets out outstanding matters relevant to 
the effects on designated sites.

Natural England is a non-departmental public body. Our statutory purpose is to ensure that 
the natural environment is conserved, enhanced, and managed for the benefit of present 
and future generations, thereby contributing to sustainable development.

Case law and guidance has stressed the need for a full set of environmental information to 
be available for consideration prior to a decision being taken on whether or not to grant 
planning permission. Annex A of the letter dated 10 May 2018 provides Natural England’s 
advice on the scope of the Habitats Regulations Assessment including Appropriate 
Assessment for this development.

The Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended)

The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 (as amended)

The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 
2015 requires local planning authorities to consult Natural England on “Development in or 
likely to affect a Site of Special Scientific Interest” (Schedule 4, w). Natural England’s 
comments in relation to this application are provided in the following sections.

Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSIs) and sites of European or international importance 
(Special Areas of Conservation)

The development site is near to the following designated nature conservation sites:

Page 40Page 286



Hatfield Forest SSSI, NNR, Elsenham Woods SSSI, Quendon Wood SSSI, High Wood 
Dunmow SSSI and, acting in combination with other plans or projects, may have a likely 
significantly effect on Epping Forest SAC and an impact on Epping Forest SSSI.

Should the details of this application change, Natural England draws your attention to 
Section 28(I) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended), requiring your authority 
to re-consult Natural England.

1. The Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) - Sites of Special Scientific Interest 
(SSSIs)

1.1 Hatfield Forest SSSI, National Nature Reserve

This application is in close proximity to Hatfield Forest Site of Special Scientific Interest 
(SSSI). Hatfield Forest SSSI is also a National Nature Reserve (NNR) of considerable 
national significance and is an internationally important example of a Medieval Forest with all 
elements surviving (Rackham, O, 1989 and 
https://www.placeservices.co.uk/projects/hatfield-forest-conservation-management-plan/ ).

Further to our previous consultation advice, Natural England advises the following:

i) Based on the 2016 baseline within the ES, Hatfield Forest SSSI, NNR is already subject to 
Nitrogen deposition that exceeds the Critical load for most of the sensitive SSSI habitat 
features and is over twice the Critical Load for the most sensitive habitat features.

ii) The roads local to Hatfield Forest SSSI, NNR include major roads (M11 and A120) that 
have a significant plume of NOx associated with them, which when coupled with smaller 
local roads and airport operations are likely to be significantly contributing to the local 
Nitrogen deposition. Natural England acknowledges that Hatfield Forest is over 360metres 
distance from A120 and over 860 metres from M11, which is greater than the DMRB 
screening criteria of 200m. Whilst, it may be appropriate in some cases to screen in roads 
that are >200m we accept in this case that the B1256 (which is c50m from Hatfield Forest 
SSSI) has been assessed in isolation.

iii) Many of these local roads, including the major roads of (ii), are predicted to be subject to 
significant increases in traffic flows between 2016 baseline and 2028, and for many roads 
including key roads linked to required AQ assessments, this has been largely attributed 
within the ES to the permitted local housing growth (see cumulative developments Chapter 
17) and predicted population growth implicit within the TEMPRo traffic flow models. If this is 
the case, your authority needs to adequately consider this context and the proposed step 
change of this development within the environmental assessments informing the Local Plan.

iv) Natural England welcomes the more precautionary reduction that has been factored into 
the modelling to provide revised model outputs. As expected by Natural England, the ‘Do 
Something’ figures for the revised Table A1 are higher than the previously submitted ES 
figures, and so the proposed 2028 development (Do Something scenario) will be contributing 
Nitrogen deposition to a higher environmental background level which is regarded to be 
significantly exceeding the Critical Load for the sensitive SSSI habitat features Therefore the 
development may be regarded as contributing to prolonging these exceedances of the 
Critical Load. However, when considering the implications of the additional Nitrogen 

Page 41Page 287



deposition at this location, the figures in the revised Table A1 indicate that the scale of 
predicted change is estimated to be unchanged and the % change between DM and DS is 
estimated as not exceeding 0.63%, which is below the 1% significance threshold generally 
applied to these types of assessments.

v) In addition to (iv), Natural England remains concerned that the traffic and AQ modelling 
involves unseen datasets (eg, TEMPRo) and assumptions, that may not accurately reflect 
the actual environmental conditions over the mid-longer term that Hatfield Forest SSSI, NNR 
needs to function within. We note in row 6.8 of the tabulated Consultee Response Schedule 
the statement ‘As part of the on-going and current S106 commitments, STAL produces all 
the data on an annual basis in a publically available report published on the website. This 
commitment will be continued and will include the new monitoring point in Hatfield Forest.’ 
Natural England welcomes this commitment but recognises that this only addresses the 
commitments of the S106 agreement linked to the current planning permission for up to 
35mppa. In recognition that the proposed 35mppa + development (ie, the Do Something 
scenario) is predicted to increase road traffic and Nitrogen deposition onto Hatfield Forest 
SSSI & NNR, Natural England advises it would be appropriate to continue this monitoring, as 
a requirement of any permissions granted, to ensure the modelled environmental conditions 
for 35mppa to 43mppa are subject to effective ‘ground-truth’ to validate model predictions. 
This would be in accordance with the current Stansted Airport Sustainable Development 
Plan 2015 – 20, (see https://live-webadmin-media.s3.amazonaws.com/media/3375/stn-
environment-sdp.pdf) noting the expressed strategic objectives to ‘actively manage and 
contain environmental impacts’ and ‘be active and support partners in the local community’, 
(National Trust and Uttlesford DC could be regarded as such). The SDP also recognises it 
will need to evolve and be kept under review so that it remains relevant and reflects the 
evolution and development of Stansted Airport.

1.2 Elsenham Woods SSSI

Elsenham Woods SSSI is an ancient coppice with standards Oak-Ash woodland with a 
reasonably diverse mixture of canopy tree and understorey species and a species-rich 
ancient woodland ground flora. Whilst additional interest is provided by the ponds, the 
woodland habitat is the relevant SSSI interest feature that needs to be considered from an 
air quality perspective.

For the reasons set out in detail in section 1.2 of our letter dated 10 May 2018 Natural 
England advises the following:

i) Based on the 2016 baseline within the ES, Elsenham Woods SSSI is already subject to 
Nitrogen deposition that significantly exceeds the Critical load for its SSSI woodland habitat 
feature.

ii) Stansted Airport with all its infrastructure (including roads and car parks etc) is local to 
Elsenham Woods SSSI and has a significant plume of NOx associated with it (see Figure 
10.5.1), which when coupled with the Hall Road and accounting for the prevailing wind is 
very likely to be contributing to this local Nitrogen deposition.

iii) Some of these local roads, including the internal roads within the Airport, are predicted to 
be subject to significant increases in traffic flows between 2016 baseline and 2028 that are 
regarded as Airport-related while others such as Hall Road have been largely attributed 

Page 42Page 288



within the ES to the permitted local housing growth (see cumulative developments Chapter 
17) and predicted population growth implicit within the TEMPRo traffic flow models.

iv) Natural England welcomes the more precautionary reduction that has been factored into 
the modelling to provide revised model outputs. As expected by Natural England, the ‘Do 
Something’ figures for the revised Table A1 are higher than the previously submitted ES 
figures, and so the proposed 2028 development (Do Something scenario) will be contributing 
Nitrogen deposition to a higher environmental background level which is regarded to be 
significantly exceeding the Critical Load for the sensitive SSSI habitat features and therefore 
the development may be regarded as contributing to prolonging these exceedances of the 
Critical Load. However, when considering the implications of the additional Nitrogen 
deposition at this location, the figures in the revised Table A1 indicate that the scale of 
predicted change is estimated to be unchanged and the % change between DM and DS is 
estimated as not exceeding 0.53%, which is below the 1% significance threshold generally 
applied to these types of assessments.

v) In addition to (iv), Natural England remains concerned that the traffic and AQ modelling 
involves unseen datasets (eg, TEMPRo) and assumptions, that may not accurately reflect 
the real world environmental condition over the mid-longer term that Elsenham Woods SSSI 
needs to function within. With reference to row 6.8 of the tabulated Consultee Response 
Schedule there does not appear to be any commitment within the submissions to monitor the 
air quality within Elsenham Woods SSSI going forward, and despite reference within the 
SDP to specific consideration of Elsenham Woods SSSI as part of Air Quality modelling it is 
not clear to Natural England whether this SSSI is currently included within its existing air 
quality monitoring programme (see https://www.stanstedairport.com/community/local-
environmental-impacts/air-quality/ ). In recognition that the proposed 35mppa + development 
(ie, the Do Something scenario) is predicted to increase road traffic and Nitrogen deposition 
onto Elsenham Woods SSSI, Natural England advises it would be appropriate for Stansted 
Airport to undertake Air Quality monitoring within Elsenham Woods SSSI as a requirement of 
any permissions granted, to ensure the modelled environmental conditions for 35mppa to 
43mppa are subject to effective ‘ground-truthing’ to validate model predictions. This would 
be in accordance with the current Stansted Airport Sustainable Development Plan 2015 – 
20, (see https://live-webadmin-media.s3.amazonaws.com/media/3375/stn-environment-
sdp.pdf ) noting the expressed strategic objectives to ‘actively manage and contain 
environmental impacts’ and the need for the SDP to evolve and be kept under review so that 
it remains relevant and reflects the evolution and development of Stansted Airport.

vi) Elsenham Woods SSSI is already subject to Nitrogen deposition that significantly 
exceeds the Critical load for its SSSI woodland habitat feature and in recognition that the 
proposed 35mppa + development (ie, the Do Something scenario) is predicted to increase 
road traffic and Nitrogen deposition onto Elsenham Woods SSSI, Natural England advises it 
would be appropriate for Stansted Airport to undertake any necessary measures to reduce 
NOx outputs and Nitrogen depositions. This would be consistent with the aims and targets of 
the SDP to ‘reduce air pollution’ and ‘remain within the appropriate air quality limit values’ 
(eg, the Critical Load for Nitrogen deposition within the woodland habitats of the Airport 
owned Elsenham Woods SSSI). This may be best achieved through a planning condition 
that requires:

Page 43Page 289



The Elsenham Woods SSSI Management Plan and Stansted Airport Sustainable 
Development Plan to be updated by 31 May 2019 to include the objective of achieving the 
agreed Air Quality thresholds for the SSSI woodland habitat by December 2027 and 
production of a Mitigation Strategy (see ii above) with implementation initiated by December 
2020.

1.3 Quendon Wood SSSI

Quendon Wood is an ancient coppice-with-standards woodland, supporting a mosaic of 
Oak-Hornbeam and Oak Ash woodland communities. It supports a diverse ground flora with 
notable species associated with a range of soil types. Whilst additional interest is provided 
by the ponds the woodland habitat including ride flora is the main SSSI interest feature that 
needs to be considered from an air quality perspective.

Natural England welcomes the inclusion of this SSSI within the initial screening process, 
recognising it is situated close to the M11 (north of Junction 8) and adjacent to the B1383.

Quendon Wood SSSI is >400m from the M11 which is greater than the DMRB distance 
criteria of 200m. Thus, the B1383 has been assessed in isolation. The predicted percentage 
change in NOx values between DM and DS for the B1383 is well below the 1% significance 
threshold that is generally applied to these type of assessments and on this basis, Natural 
England accepts the conclusions of no significant impact on this SSSI.

1.4 High Wood Dunmow SSSI

High Wood, Dunmow is an ancient woodland, supporting a mosaic of Oak-Hornbeam and 
Oak Ash woodland communities. It supports a characteristic ground flora associated with a 
range of soil types. Whilst additional interest is provided by the pond the woodland habitat 
including ride flora is the main SSSI interest feature that needs to be considered from an air 
quality perspective.

The predicted percentage change in NOx values between DM and DS for the A120 is well 
below the 1% significance threshold that is generally applied to these type of assessments 
and on this basis, Natural England accepts the conclusions of no significant impact on this 
SSSI.

1.5 Epping Forest SSSI

Epping Forest SSSI is one of only a few remaining large-scale examples of wood pasture in 
lowland Britain and has retained habitats of high nature conservation value including ancient 
woodland, old grassland, heathland and scattered wetlands including bogs. The semi-natural 
woodland is particularly extensive forming one of the largest coherent blocks in the country. 
Most is characterised by groves of veteran and ancient pollards and these exemplify all three 
of the main wood-pasture types found in Britain: Beech-Oak, Hornbeam-Oak and mixed 
Oak. The forest plains are also a major feature and contain a number of unimproved acid 
grasslands and the largest area of heathland mire of any site in Essex. In addition, Epping 
Forest supports a nationally outstanding assemblage of invertebrates, amphibians, breeding 
birds, fungi, bryophytes and includes nationally significant species for all of these taxonomic 
groups and lichens.

Page 44Page 290



At EIA scoping stage and during pre-application consultation, Natural England has advised 
that most of Epping Forest SSSI is also classified as (SAC) Special Area of Conservation 
and this largely incorporates the mosaic of habitats that support the listed SSSI features. On 
this basis, our detailed advice is set out within the Epping Forest SAC section of this letter 
accounting for the provisions of the Habitats Regulations. Additional matters of significance 
for SSSI features are raised in this section 1.5 below.

Natural England has previously advised that the M11 section between junction 6 and 7 is 
close to Epping Forest SSSI units 103 and 201, and SSSI unit 106 is within 200m of the M25 
so requires further assessment in accordance with DMRB guidance and consideration within 
the ES. We note that the submitted Letter dated 10 August 2018 assesses SSSI unit 201 but 
makes no mention of units 103 and 106. We assume that the distance measurements have 
been taken from the centre line of the carriageways and this distance is regarded to be 
greater than 200m thus eligible for screening out in strict adherence to the DMRB guidelines 
(HA 2007).

(a) We note in Table 1 and Table 2 of this letter that the figures provided are not directly 
comparable.

For Table 1 the difference between DS (5.52) and DM (5.43) is 0.09 which should be equal 
to the figure in Table 2 for ‘Change in deposition rate due to 35+’, however it is not. Instead, 
a figure of 0.08 is provided in Table 2. In addition to this, the % figure in Table 2 for ‘Change 
as a percentage of the minimum critical load of the most sensitive receptor’ is 0.84, but 
based on the figures in Table 1 this arguably should be 0.9%. It is possible the figures 
provided show discrepancies due to rounding-down, and if so, due to the figures being close 
to significance thresholds it would be appropriate to revise the Table and associated text 
within the report to show more exact figures with decimal places.

(b) Additionally, to understand how we should consider the modelled outputs please could 
the applicant’s confirm whether the predicted AADT figure of 5,149 is a conservative 
estimate (ie, possibly lower than may be expected because it ignores airport related traffic 
joining/leaving the M11 at Junction 7 – see page 2 Conclusions) or an over-estimate 
(because airport-related traffic would be expected to be highest near to the airport and the 
number of vehicles that leave join the M11 at junction 7 has been ignored – see page 3 
section A1.1).

Without clarification of points (a) and (b) it is difficult for Natural England to provide definitive 
advice but for the sake of expedience, if the AADT figure of 5,149 is regarded as a 
conservative traffic flow estimate and the largest figure of 0.9% change is relevant for 
assessment purposes, Natural England can advise as follows:

Epping Forest SSSI unit 201 is mainly Oak-Hornbeam woodland with additional interest 
provided by the ponds. For the purposes of this assessment, the woodland habitat (including 
ground flora, veteran trees and epiphytes) and wetlands are the main SSSI interest features 
that need to be considered from an air quality perspective. In this context and at this 
location, the minimum Critical load threshold for Nitrogen is correctly identified as 
10kgN/Ha/Year (see page 2 Table 2). With reference to the points made above, we note that 
0.9% is below the 1% threshold of significance but should be regarded as approaching the 
level requiring further assessment. Furthermore, this area of Epping Forest is already 

Page 45Page 291



subject to Nitrogen deposition that significantly exceeds the Critical load for its SSSI 
woodland and wetland habitat features and this development is likely to contribute to 
prolonging the exceedances of Nitrogen loading. With this in mind, please could the 
applicants respond to points (a) and (b) above, and for future reference and validation 
purposes, include as part of the Technical Note the tabulated estimates for the transect 
points to show how Nitrogen deposition levels are predicted to ‘drop off’ with distance from 
the M11. Notwithstanding this, should the percentage change in Nitrogen deposition values 
between DM and DS be predicted to be a maximum of 0.9% and therefore below the 1% 
significance threshold at this location, Natural England is minded to accept the conclusion of 
no significant impact on the interest features of the SSSI. This does not mean that Natural 
England can rule out a likely impact on the SSSI features caused by this scale of 
development-linked Nitrogen deposition, but merely acknowledges that the strict application 
of current guidelines (eg, DMRB) for SSSI and EIA-linked assessments provide an accepted 
justification for not regarding the impact as ‘significant’ and therefore not requiring further 
assessment or mitigation. Ideally, mindful of sustainability and SSSI targets, this section of 
M11 adjacent to Epping Forest SSSI unit 201 should be subject to periodic traffic monitoring 
and linked AQ modelling to verify the predictions to see whether further assessment and 
remediation is necessary. In light of the context, Natural England does not expect this 
provision, but for the record would support a solution that included this provision within any 
Highways-linked obligation.

For completeness, Natural England refers to section 2 below for the assessment of the 
relevant ‘affected’ area within SSSI unit 105.

2. The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 (as amended) – European 
sites

2.1 Epping Forest SAC

The proposed Airport development is not directly connected with, or necessary to, the 
management of a European site.

In addition to this, our view at pre-application stage was that the plan (either alone and/or in 
combination with other plans or projects) will have a likely significant effect on the 
internationally designated features of Epping Forest SAC and therefore will require 
assessment under the Habitats Regulations.

In our letter of 8 November 2017, we advised that the proposed increase in passenger 
numbers (ie, from 35mppa to 43mppa) is likely to result in increased road traffic movement 
to and from Stansted Airport. The Airport links to road and highway networks (eg, M11, M25 
and linked A/B roads) that currently take significant traffic flow adjacent to Epping Forest 
SAC, SSSI. The critical levels and loads of Nitrogen Oxides and Nitrogen deposition for this 
SSSI and SAC are currently being exceeded and it is recognised that additional road traffic 
associated with proposed growth and development may exacerbate this situation. Each new 
application therefore requires detailed assessment to ensure sustainable development 
solutions are achievable.

The Local Planning Authorities around Epping Forest SAC, SSSI are aware of this issue and 
seeking to strategically address it through their Local Plans, principally by ensuring 
compliance with SEA and HRA requirements. The MoUs for the West Essex/Hertfordshire 

Page 46Page 292



Housing Market Area (HMA) and Highways & Transport Infrastructure include Epping Forest 
DC, Harlow DC, East Herts DC, Uttlesford DC as well as Essex County Council Highways, 
Hertfordshire County Council and Highways England.

Likely Effect of Stansted Airport 35+ ‘Alone’ on SAC Features

We note the predicted contributions to NOx Critical Levels and Nitrogen deposition Critical 
Loads from the M25 are well below 1%, so it is reasonable to conclude for SSSI unit 105 that 
the proposed development ‘alone’ can avoid a likely significant effect on the SAC features 
within SSSI unit 105, however with reference to the Wealden case there is still a need to 
consider whether there is a likely significant effect ‘in combination’ with other plans and 
projects.

For SSSI unit 109, noting distance measurements have been taken from the centre line of 
the M25 carriageways and this distance is greater than 200m, we acknowledge that strict 
adherence to the DMRB guidelines (HA 2007) indicates that it is acceptable to screen out 
any further HRA assessment for SSSI unit 109, either ‘alone’ and/or ‘in combination’.

Likely Effect of Stansted Airport 35+ on SAC features ‘in combination’

Natural England welcomes the detail provided in the Habitats Regulations Assessment to 
enable further consideration of the ‘in combination’ effects and advises the following:

Natural England is mindful of the points made in paragraph 3.43 and also advise ‘If the 
background concentration/deposition is currently exceeding the environmental benchmark 
and the new development contribution will cause an additional small increase then, the 
decision will have to be made on a case by case basis and on individual circumstances’. For 
this case, the complexities involved with the likely ‘in combination effects’ associated with the 
HMA Local Plans and the highlighted concerns about the ecological sensitivity of Epping 
Forest SAC (and SSSI) features has required this proposed development to be considered 
in more detail.

Unfortunately, the revised EFDC traffic assessments and linked Local Plan HRA are not yet 
available for our consideration. To enable Natural England to meet the consultation 
timescales for this application we have provided advice based on the information that is 
available, rather than requesting a further extension to the consultation period to allow for 
this additional third party ‘in combination’ information. Natural England notes the reasonable 
assumption that the M25 carries a wide range of longer distance trips and acknowledges 
that the local road B1393 has no direct connection for traffic to access the M25 at this 
assessed location. Natural England notes the predicted AADT increase of 12 for the B1393 
that can be attributed to the Stansted Airport 35+ development, which is very small 
compared with the predicted increases >1000 AADT that have been attributed to the Local 
Plan growth (available HRA figures). Based on assurances from the applicants that the 
assessments have adhered to available standard guidelines it is reasonable for us to 
conclude that the Stansted Airport development will significantly contribute to the M25 traffic 
levels but not the local B1393, whereas the growth associated with HMA Local Plans will 
significantly contribute to the local roads and potentially other major roads including the M25. 
With an absence of locally validated ‘in combination’ traffic and AQ assessments for the 
B1393 at this stage, we are minded to accept the use of TEMPRo growth for assessment 

Page 47Page 293



purposes and note for future reference the predicted AADT contributions that would be 
required to meet 1% NOx threshold.

The Epping Forest Survey Note (Appendix 3 of the document Revision to Annex 1: 
Information for Epping Forest July 2018) helpfully provides additional detail that supports 
Natural England’s advice in our emailed letter of 9 July 2018. For example, the snapshot 
SSSI condition assessment of favourable condition status (referred to in section 3.35 of 
Appendix 3) is dated 2009 and it is likely some of these features (eg, bryophytes) may not 
achieve favourable condition targets if assessed today. Furthermore, this Survey helpfully 
confirms that the ‘zone of influence’ within the SSSI unit 105 is Nitrogen polluted when 
considering its Lichen Indicator Scores and other notable field signs (eg, signs of stress, 
elevated insect damage and dominance nitrogen-loving field layer where present). This 
aligns with our observations and concerns that ‘Epping Forest SSSI unit 105 (within SAC) 
has been subject to Nitrogen deposition above Critical Loads for a prolonged period and this 
has been identified as a ‘SSSI Threat’ and an ‘SAC IPENS issue’ since at least 2009 and 
this is reducing the capacity for sensitive SAC features and their supporting habitats to 
maintain or achieve favourable condition and/or favourable conservation status.’

We note the lack of clear trend between % lichen cover and distance from the M25, but also 
recognise the increase from ‘Nitrogen Polluted’ to ‘Very Nitrogen Polluted’ (based on Lichen 
Indicator Score / Nitrogen Air Quality Index) with increasing proximity to the M25 (ie, 
comparing c200m with c50m distances from the M25). Overall, the assessment helpfully 
contributes to Natural England’s understanding of how the features of this specific area of 
the SSSI, SAC are performing at different distances from the M25 and also demonstrates 
the challenges within the short timescales of the planning process to obtain definitive proof 
that elevated NOx and Nitrogen deposition from development will cause a significant and 
quantifiable impact.

When considering the ‘in combination’ figures generated by TEMPRo for the Stansted 35+ 
traffic on the M25, Natural England notes the maximum increase in nitrogen deposition into 
this discrete area of SSSI unit 105 of the SAC is predicted to be 0.02kgN/ha/yr. This is well 
below the 1% level of the Critical Load for this woodland area of the SAC and the modelled 
reductions in Nitrogen deposition at increasing distances from the M25 is a reasonable 
assumption based on general studies. Despite reasonable endeavours by all parties it has 
not been possible to obtain relevant site-based monitoring of air quality to ground-truth 
modelled predictions. Additionally, it is not yet clear to Natural England what the likely 
increase in Nitrogen deposition will be from the B1393 onto this area of the SSSI unit 105 
that can be attributed to the increased traffic generated by the HMA Local Plans. It is 
anticipated that the effect of the forthcoming Local Plans on the local roads and the adjacent 
SAC areas (including the B1383 and SSSI unit 105) will have to be considered as part of 
their HRA assessment process.

Based on available and submitted information, Natural England broadly accepts the 
application of the distance criteria and the 1% significance threshold at this location for this 
development and generally accepts that the Stansted 35+ can avoid an adverse effect on 
the integrity of Epping Forest SAC, either alone and in combination with other relevant plans 
or projects.

Page 48Page 294



This does not mean that Natural England can rule out a likely impact on the SSSI features 
within SSSI unit 105 caused by this scale of development-linked Nitrogen deposition if it 
were considered in combination with unexpected levels of growth beyond TEMPRo 
assumptions, but it merely acknowledges that the strict application of current guidelines (eg, 
DMRB) for SSSI and EIA-linked assessments provide an accepted justification for not 
regarding the impact as ‘significant’ and therefore not requiring further assessment or 
mitigation. Ideally, mindful of sustainability and SSSI targets, this section of M25 adjacent to 
Epping Forest SSSI unit 105 should be subject to periodic traffic monitoring and linked AQ 
modelling to verify the predictions to see whether further assessment and remediation is 
necessary. In light of the context, Natural England does not expect this provision, but for the 
record would support a solution that included this provision within any Highways-linked 
obligation.

3. Protected species, Local sites, Biodiversity & Landscape enhancements

Natural England refers you to our advice in our letter dated 10 May 2018 (reference DAS 
3592) and any relevant consultation letters about this proposed development with more 
detailed advice where necessary.

NETWORK RAIL

Network Rail has reviewed the Transport Assessment provided as part of the above 
planning application and has been part of the Surface Access mitigation meetings, facilitated 
by your Authority, earlier this year. 

We asked a number of questions about this Transport Assessment. These were in relation to 
the impact of increased passenger numbers on crowding of services in the peak hours 
leaving London, the impact of a higher rail mode share of 35% and how this growth would 
impact on Tottenham Hale station. 

Stansted Airport undertook further assessments through their consultant and provided a 
technical note to Network Rail. 

Network Rail is satisfied with these findings and accepts the consultant’s conclusion that 
higher capacity rolling stock on the London services can accommodate passenger growth 
from the airport in the timescale assessed. We do not object to this application but note that 
increased rail passengers resulting from increased air passengers would mean that longer 
term rail capacity schemes on the West Anglia Main Line are likely to be needed sooner.

NORTH HERTFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Appointing noise experts and response to follow.

PLACE SERVICES

Holding objection due to insufficient ecological information on Epping Forest SAC.  

Page 49Page 295



I have reviewed the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (incorporating information to inform 
HRA) (RPS, Feb 2018) and Stansted Airport Environmental Statement Volume 1 Chapter 10 
Air Quality (RPS, Feb 2018) supplied by the applicant, relating to the likely impacts of 
development on Designated Sites, Protected & Priority habitats and species, and 
identification of proportionate mitigation. 

I am not satisfied that there is sufficient ecological information available for determination of 
this application.  The increased airport passengers (8mppa) travelling to the airport will 
impact on the air quality on the Epping Forest SAC and this needs to be investigated further 
in line with Natural England’s requirements.  The effects, in-combination with other plans and 
projects within scope, need to be assessed with regard to adverse impacts on site integrity 
to inform the Appropriate Assessment being prepared by Uttlesford DC.

This is needed to enable the LPA to demonstrate its compliance with its statutory duties 
including its biodiversity duty under s40 NERC Act 2006.

2nd response:

No objection subject to securing biodiversity mitigation and enhancement measures in 
relation to statutory sites and legally protected species

Summary

I have reviewed the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal, Biodiversity Mitigation Scheme (RPS, 
February 2018) and Environmental Statement supplied by the applicant, relating to the 
potential impacts on statutory sites and likely impacts of development on protected species 
and identification of proportionate mitigation.

I am satisfied that there is sufficient ecological information available for determination. With 
appropriate mitigation measures secured, the development can be made acceptable.

Additional ongoing information and actions are still required from Natural England with 
respect to Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSIs) and Hatfield Forest National Nature 
Reserve (NNR). This is needed to enable the LPA to demonstrate its compliance with its 
statutory duties including NERC Act 2006 and will need to be secured through a S106 
agreement.

A Habitats Regulation Assessment has been supplied to Uttlesford DC by Place Services. 
This has concluded that there will be no adverse effect on integrity of Epping Forest SAC, 
either alone or in combination with other plans and projects. Uttlesford DC can therefore 
demonstrate its compliance with the UK Habitats Regulations 2017.

The mitigation measures identified in the Ecology Mitigation Strategy (RPS, February 2018) 
should be secured and implemented in full, including translocation to an off-site receptor site. 
This is necessary to conserve and enhance Protected and Priority Species particularly Great 
Crested Newts and reptiles.

Impacts will be minimised such that the proposal is acceptable subject to the conditions 
below, based on BS42020:2013.

Page 50Page 296



Submission for approval and implementation of the details below should be a condition of 
any planning consent.

Statutory Wildlife Sites

No statutory wildlife sites are expected to be directly affected by the proposals. However, the 
potential for adverse effects through reduction in air quality has been considered in depth.

European Site: Epping Forest Special Area for Conservation

As you are aware, there is one European site which has been considered for its potential to 
be adversely affected by the proposals and this is Epping Forest Special Area for 
Conservation (SAC). There has been an ongoing dialogue between the applicants and 
Natural England. Information has been supplied by the applicants to formulate a Habitats 
Regulation Assessment, which has been provided by Place Services (24th August 2018) on 
behalf of Uttlesford District Council as the competent authority. This has concluded that this 
project for the proposed expansion of airside infrastructure at Stansted Airport to make the 
best use of the existing runway will have no adverse effect on the integrity of Epping Forest 
SAC, either alone or in combination with other plans and projects. Natural England also 
accepts this conclusion in its most recent advice dated 31 August 2018. In this respect, the 
development can therefore be granted consent and Uttlesford DC can demonstrate its 
compliance with the UK Habitats Regulations 2017.

National sites: Site of Special Scientific Interests and National Nature Reserve

There are a number of SSSIs in the vicinity which have been considered, one of which is 
also a National Nature Reserve (Hatfield Forest). While none of these sites will be directly 
affected by the proposed development, similarly to Epping Forest SAC, there is the potential 
to adversely affect them by reduction in air quality. Information on this issue has been 
provided by the applicant and this has been comprehensively considered by Natural England 
in its responses of 10 May, 9 July and 31 August 2018; we therefore recommend that you 
follow their advice.

In Natural England’s most recent letter of 31 August, it has various concerns remain that still 
need to be addressed, eg unseen datasets and assumptions regarding the mid-longer term 
environment conditions. It also requests the following, which should be tied into any planning 
permission through a long term S106 agreement. There should be regular reviews of the 
Stansted Airport Sustainable Development Plan to ensure it remains relevant as the airport 
evolves. In addition:

Hatfield Forest SSSI and NNR

 Continuation of the monitoring for Hatfield Forest SSSI and NNR which is currently 
part of the planning permission for 35mppa for that permission, and set out within the 
S106. This monitoring should also become part of any new permission relating to the 
current proposals under UTT/18/0460/FUL.

 Elsenham Woods SSSI
 Air Quality modelling for Elsenham Woods SSSI

Page 51Page 297



 Updates to Elsenham SSSI Management Plan to include the agreed Air Quality 
threshold objectives; the Stansted Airport Sustainable Development Plan and the 
Mitigation Strategy.

 Epping Forest SSSI
 The effects on air quality in Epping Forest SSSI units near to the M11 is predicted to 

be only just below the 1% threshold of significance for the SSSI features and Natural 
England therefore require additional information to provide a more accurate 
determination.

 Additional periodic traffic modelling linked to Units 201 and 105 is also 
recommended.

Other SSSIs

Natural England accepts the conclusions of no significant impacts upon Quendon Wood 
SSSI and High Wood Dunmow SSSI. I have no further comments to add.

Protected Species

The mitigation measures identified in the Ecology Mitigation Strategy should be secured and 
implemented in full.

Great crested newts and reptiles have been found to be present in the Echo Stands area 
and sufficient mitigation has been set out within Stansted Airport 35+: Stansted- Ecology 
Mitigation Strategy (RPS, February 2018). There is insufficient space to retain them on site 
and so it is proposed to translocate them off site. A suitable receptor site has been identified 
at Monks Farm, covering an area of approximately 0.9 ha of habitat, which was established 
in relation to another planning application (UTT/16/0837).

Presence/absence surveys for both reptiles and great crested newts will need to be 
undertaken prior to the planned works, to reaffirm the mitigation strategies provided, which 
are based on survey work undertaken in 2017.

Management of the receptor site is set out in the Biodiversity Management Strategy set out 
by RSK as part of UTT/16/0837/FUL but this should be secured for this permission too, by 
condition or S106 agreement. This should include monitoring of the receptor site, as set out 
in the Ecology Mitigation Strategy February 2018.

Nesting bird checks will also need to be undertaken

Please note that I was not able to view the appendices and figures in this Mitigation 
Strategy.

Recommended conditions

1. Prior to commencement: ACTION REQUIRED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ECOLOGY 
MITIGATION STRATEGY RECOMMENDATIONS

“All ecological mitigation & enhancement measures and/or works shall be carried out in 
accordance with the details contained in the Stansted- Ecology Mitigation Strategy (RPS, 
February 2018) as already submitted with the planning application and agreed in principle 
with the local planning authority prior to determination.

Page 52Page 298



Reason: To conserve and enhance Protected and Priority species and allow the LPA to 
discharge its duties under the UK Habitats Regulations, the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 
as amended and s40 of the NERC Act 2006 (Priority habitats & species) and s17 Crime & 
Disorder Act 1998.

2. BIODVIERISTY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY

“A Biodiversity Management Strategy (BMS) shall be submitted to, and be approved in 
writing by, the local planning authority prior to construction.

The content of the BMS shall include the following:

 Description and evaluation of features to be managed.
 Ecological trends and constraints on site that might influence management.
 Aims and objectives of management.
 Appropriate management options for achieving aims and objectives.
 Prescriptions for management actions.
 Preparation of a work schedule (including an annual work plan capable of being 

rolled forward over a five-year period).
 Details of the body or organisation responsible for implementation of the Strategy,
 Ongoing monitoring and remedial measures.

The BMS shall also include details of the legal and funding mechanism(s) by which the long-
term implementation of the plan will be secured by the developer with the management body 
responsible for its delivery. The Strategy shall also set out (where the results from monitoring 
show that conservation aims and objectives of the BMS are not being met) how 
contingencies and/or remedial action will be identified, agreed and implemented so that the 
development still delivers the fully functioning biodiversity objectives of the originally 
approved scheme. The approved Strategy will be implemented in accordance with the 
approved details.”

Reason: To conserve Protected and Priority species and allow the LPA to discharge its 
duties under the UK Habitats Regulations 2017, the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 as 
amended.

Recommended informative

1. NESTING BIRDS

The applicant is reminded that, under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, as amended 
(section 1), it is an offence to remove, damage or destroy the nest of any wild bird while that 
nest is in use or being built. Planning consent for a development does not provide a defence 
against prosecution under this act.

Trees and scrub are likely to contain nesting birds between 1st March and 31st August 
inclusive. Trees and scrub are present on the application site and are to be assumed to 
contain nesting birds between the above dates, unless a recent survey has been undertaken 
by a competent ecologist to assess the nesting bird activity on site during this period and has 
shown it is absolutely certain that nesting birds are not present.

Page 53Page 299



STANSTED AIRPORT CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE

ACCs exist to enable airports to communicate openly and effectively with local communities 
and airport users about operational impacts.

Surface access is a key area for sustainable development of the airport, not only for 
passengers and airport users but also as a major infrastructure facility and a regional 
transport hub.  This must be recognised in any assessment of airport development, both for 
local and regional impacts.

A strategic vision is vital to engender widespread support, especially from local MPs.  It 
should take account of planned economic and population growth for the area over the next 
20 years.  Every incremental development should relate to an overall plan.

The vision should include:
- The airport as a major infrastructure facility
- Transport infrastructure being fundamental to economic growth and expansion
- Access for people with disabilities
- Expansion of the transport study area to regional
- Use of the airport as a key local transport hub
- How to deal with road traffic growth, and provision of adequate day parking
- Details of how to maintain the high level of public transport use
- Catering for rail passenger growth
- Clear vision for the provision of coach / bus / minibus services
- Facilitating cycling

The airport should provide a report on the success or otherwise of its aims and targets in the 
Economy and Surface Access section of its 2015 Sustainable Development Plan.  Any 
revised targets should be explained. 

THAMES WATER

Thames Water have been in discussions with the airport regarding the wastewater 
infrastructure requirements.  Foul water flows from the airport flow to Bishops Stortford 
Sewage Treatment Works where they are treated.  Contaminated surface water runoff 
(containing Glycol from de-icing operations) is pumped to Rye Meads Sewage Treatment 
Works for treatment.  In relation to the contaminated runoff, within Chapter 15 of the ES it is 
stated that it is not proposed to increase the existing pump rate agreed with TWUL and so 
the proposed development will not increase pressure on the local sewer capacity.  It is also 
stated that TWUL has been consulted with regards to the treatment capacity at Rye Meads 
STW and that TWUL are consulting their assets planners.  At this stage we have not 
received details of expected increases in volumes of contaminated flows to Rye Meads STW 
or calculations to confirm that the pump rates will remain the same. This information is 
required to allow assessments to take place into the capacity of the treatment works to 
accommodate the increased flows.

Infrastructure at the wastewater treatment works in this area is unlikely to be able to support 
the demand anticipated from this development. There is potential that the increase in flows 

Page 54Page 300



from anticipated growth in both East Herts and Uttlesford Districts and expansion of capacity 
at the airport could result in upgrades to wastewater treatment works which are either not 
technically feasible or not cost efficient.  At the least it is considered that significant 
infrastructure upgrades are likely to be required to ensure sufficient treatment capacity is 
available to serve this development/wider growth in the area. Thames Water would welcome 
the opportunity to work closely with the Local Planning Authority and the developer to better 
understand and effectively plan for the sewage treatment infrastructure needs required to 
serve this development and wider growth within the area.  It is important not to under 
estimate the time required to deliver necessary infrastructure.  For example: Sewage 
Treatment Works upgrades can take 18 months to 3 years to design and build.  
Implementing new technologies and the construction of a major treatment works extension 
or new treatment works could take up to ten years.

In relation to foul flows, the cumulative impact of the proposals alongside growth proposed in 
East Herts and Uttlesford needs to be considered. Thames Water are currently investigating 
options for how flows in the area can be accommodated at existing STWs.  It is noted that 
Section 15.119 of the ES states “Furthermore, the water efficiency measures set out within 
the 2015 SDP should see an overall reduction of foul flows as low flush toilets/urinals, spray 
taps etc. are retrofitted through the terminal.  If total foul discharge does increase post 
development, the UDC Water Cycle Study confirms there is capacity to serve this.”

As set out above, we have concerns regarding the implications of the development and 
wider growth. While the ES states that the WCS confirms there is capacity to serve 
increased foul discharges it is not clear how this can be assumed with no details provided of 
potential increases in flows.  Furthermore, the previous Uttlesford WCS was undertaken in 
2010/12 by Uttlesford and does not take account of growth areas within the emerging Local 
Plan including Easton Park.  As such this document is out of date and an updated WCS is 
currently being produced taking account proposed growth.  We would welcome any 
additional information on the potential increase in foul flows/biological loads from the airport 
to assist with assessing the impacts on the sewage treatment works serving the area.

There is potential that the increase in flows from anticipated growth and expansion of 
capacity at the airport could result in upgrades to wastewater treatment works which are 
either not technically feasible or not cost efficient.  A study is currently being undertaken to 
assess the implications of growth on the sewage treatment works in the area.  A clearer 
understanding of the requirements for upgrades will be available on completion of this study.

2nd Response:

Thames Water have been actively engaged with the Local Planning Authority and Stanstead 
Airport regarding the current airport planning application, which proposes an increase in 
passenger numbers up to 43 million per annum by 2028. Foul water flows from the airport 
currently drain to Bishops Stortford Sewage Treatment Works where it is treated. 

Contaminated surface water runoff (containing Glycol from de-icing operations) is pumped to 
Rye Meads Sewage Treatment Works for treatment. 

Uttlesford Water Cycle Study 

The Uttlesford Water Cycle Study is currently (September 2018) being enhanced for the 
area that drains to Thames Water. We are working collaboratively with Uttlesford District 

Page 55Page 301



Council and the Environment Agency to ensure that the study outputs are robust for the 
entire quantum of growth proposed in this area. 

Wastewater Treatment Capacity 

In addition to the proposed increase in passenger numbers, there is an anticipated increase 
in housing growth from both East Hertfordshire and Uttlesford Districts. Existing 
infrastructure at the wastewater treatment works in this area will not be able to support the 
demand from the cumulative development. As a result, upgrades to the sewage treatment 
works are expected and we are currently conducting a study to investigate potential options 
to accommodate the increase in flow. The outputs of this study are expected to be available 
in December 2018. A technical option is believed to be feasible. 

It is important not to under estimate the time required to deliver necessary infrastructure. For 
example: Sewage Treatment Works upgrades can take 18 months to five years to design 
and build. Implementing new technologies and the construction of a major treatment works 
extension or new treatment works could take up to ten years. Thames Water would welcome 
the opportunity to continue working with Stanstead Airport to ensure development does not 
outpace the delivery of essential infrastructure. 

Please note that the new connection charge rules are not applicable to Wastewater 
Treatment. This activity is fully funded by Thames Water and has not changed. 

Wastewater Network Capacity 

The applicant has a right to connect new “domestic flows” (i.e. flow from toilets, washbasins 
etc.) into the public sewer. These connections can originate from residential or commercial 
premises. The applicant does not have a right to connect trade flows (i.e. contaminated 
surface water) into the public sewer system. Please note that the new connection charge 
rules only apply to “domestic flows”. 

Contaminated flow to Rye Meads Sewage Treatment Works 

The ability for the public sewer system to accommodate and eventually treat contaminated 
flow is processed by Water and Sewerage Undertakers as part of Trade flows. Sewer 
network capacity and treatment capacity is therefore a commercial agreement whereby the 
applicant will be required to fund any upgrades needed to accommodate increase discharge 
rates (if capacity does not currently exist). The impact of a reduction in water consumption 
cannot be offset by an increase in trade flows as in this location; they do not discharge into 
the same sewer system. Due to the Trade Effluent process, we have to guarantee capacity 
for trade discharges under all conditions and times irrespective of the peak operating 
window. If there is an opportunity to balance out peak flows this will need to be implemented 
by the applicant and consented in the Trade Effluent Permit.

UTTLESFORD ASSOCIATION OF LOCAL COUNCILS

The following submission by the Uttlesford Association of Local Councils takes into 
consideration the regional and the national impact this application will have. The application 

Page 56Page 302



is for a 39.5% increase in current passenger numbers for 2017 and a 30.7% on Total Aircraft 
Movements for 2017.

The main impacts of increased passenger numbers will be in relation to road traffic 
congestion and knock-on effects of air quality. The main adverse impacts of increased 
aircraft movements will be in relation to noise, local air quality and CO2 emissions.

Recent data received shows that only 18% of the airport’s employees are residents of 
Uttlesford. Looking at the range of employment within the airport, this is only a small 
proportion and questions should be raised as to what benefits this application can bring to 
the current employment levels locally.

The CAA passenger survey report details 29% came from the East of England, 60.6% from 
London and the South East with the remainder from the rest of England and Wales. 
Passenger wise, who will benefit from this application? 

The increase in flights will bring an increase in passengers from outside the area, thus 
increasing the local traffic congestion on and around junctions 8 and 8A on the M11 and on 
the A120. Consideration should also be taken on the impact of the two local hospitals: 
Princess Alexander Hospital in Harlow and Addenbrookes Hospital in Cambridge; the 
increase in traffic will undoubtedly have an increase in road traffic accidents within the area.  

The local roads will also see an increase in congestion along with “unauthorised” airport 
parking on residential roads. How will this affect residents and their day-today lives? The 
majority of our local roads are already in a bad state of repair, many of them housing a 
number of potholes. Will the airport contribute towards the improvement and up-keep of 
these roads following this application?

Questions are being asked locally as to why MAG are submitting their application now. 
MAG’s current forecasts show that 35 mppa will not be reached until 2023.Yet, the DfT 
forecasts that 35 mppa will not be reached until 2033. It is also worth noting that UDC’s 
Local Plan to 2033 is unlikely to be settled before early 2019.

We would also like it to be noted that freight flights should not be increased at night. These 
flights should be considered separately as generally the older, louder aircrafts are used, and 
therefore should only be flown during the day so as to cause less disruption to local 
residents.

Taking all these points into consideration, we feel that as this application has such a 
considerable impact both locally and nationally that the application should be considered at a 
national level and called-in so as to be considered by the Secretary of State.

UTTLESFORD DISTRICT COUNCIL ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH – Air Quality 
(Comments prepared by White Young Green Environment Planning Transport Ltd on 
behalf of UDC)

The ES provides an assessment of the effect of additional flights and traffic on levels of 
Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2) and Particulate Matter (PM10 and PM2.5) at sensitive receptors 
which have the potential to be affected.  Construction phase effects have been scoped out.

Page 57Page 303



The ES has reviewed baseline (2016) conditions, 2023 (transitional) and 2028 (fully 
operational).  The study area is a 15 x 15 km grid + the AQMA in Bishop’s Stortford.  An 
assessment of existing sensitive human receptors and ecological receptors in the area has 
been undertaken.

The applicant created a model to allow for the prediction of effects at future years using 
industry standard modelling software. This model requires verifying to the existing monitored 
levels which is achieved through replicating the existing emissions sources in the area and 
including them in the modelled input, then adding them to the background levels which make 
up all other sources not included in the model. The applicant has included sources from 
aircraft and vehicles on the local highway network in their model and obtained the emissions 
for each of these from appropriate sources.

Background pollutant concentrations used for the modelling were taken from the National Air 
Emissions Inventory with the road transport and aviation emissions subtracted from the 
background so as not to double count. The model has been verified to local monitoring to 
ensure that the results from the model are accurately representing the actual monitored 
levels. This verification showed that the modelled concentrations of NO2 were significantly 
underpredicting within Bishop’s Stortford and Stansted Mountfitchet.  Monitoring levels in 
Bishop’s Stortford were a maximum of 69.6µg/m³ while the applicant’s modelled 
concentration at this same location was 21.5µg/m³. As such, the applicant included a 
verification factor of 4.0 to modelled concentrations within town centres which increases the 
proportion of the effects of the emissions from the additional traffic from the scheme but still 
underpredicts the overall levels within Bishop’s Stortford. Sensitivity analysis for multiple 
years was undertaken at the request of UDC which showed that the year of modelling used 
in the ES (2016) was representative.

Emissions will reduce in future years as technology becomes more efficient and more 
sustainable transport measures are encouraged. However, the improvement rate is disputed 
and the DEFRA predictions used for the ES are potentially overly optimistic. To provide a 
sensitivity analysis, UDC requested that existing baseline emissions were used in the future 
year scenarios assuming that there will be no improvement in emissions in future years. This 
was undertaken and, while the results from this modelling scenario were higher than those in 
the original ES, the significance of effect as a result of the scheme did not change and 
remain in the ‘negligible’ band.

The development incorporates mitigation and management measures through continued 
pollutant monitoring at the airport and a commitment to reducing emissions at the site.  Total 
NOX and PM emissions as a result of the development are presented, but there is no 
monetary quantification (as requested by UDC) via a damage cost assessment.

The ES concludes that the effect of emissions as a result of the development on human 
receptors will be ‘negligible’ in both the 2023 and 2028 assessment years with an increase of 
0.1µg/m³ in the Bishop’s Stortford AQMA as a result of the scheme.  With regards to 
ecological receptors, none of the sensitive sites identified are expected to receive an 
increase of more than 1% as a result of the development for the most sensitive species on 
site. Therefore, it is concluded that there will not be a significant effect at surrounding 
habitats.

Page 58Page 304



Overall, the assessment is considered sufficient to be able to determine the effects of the 
scheme.  Emissions will increase as a result of additional vehicle movements including 
within the Bishop’s Stortford AQMA where levels of pollutants are already above the level 
where health effects are likely to be observed in the most sensitive members of the 
population.  As such these health effects should be considered against the benefits of the 
scheme and an appropriate balance of mitigation should be sought.

Recommendation:  No objection.  In general, all concerns and points of clarity have been put 
the STAL’s commissioned air quality consultants, Arup Ltd.  It is considered that matters 
relating to air quality and emissions mitigation can be addressed through an appropriately 
worded condition.

UTTLESFORD DISTRICT COUNCIL ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH – Noise (Comments 
prepared in close association with Bickerdike Allen Partners LLP)

All concerns and points of clarity have been put to STAL’s commissioned noise consultancy 
firm Cole Jarman. They have responded positively to these comments and have 
endeavoured to provide further information in support of their ES as and when required. Key 
matters identified are included in the commentary below.

Fleet mix sensitivity tests have been carried out and the assumptions appear to be 
reasonable. The outcome suggests that changes to the rate of update of new variant aircraft 
of up to 10% will be insignificant. There is no reason to distrust these tests.

Air Noise

Overall there is a universal push to reduce noise from leading aircraft manufacturers. This 
has and continues to produce quieter aircraft. The ES details some of these improvements 
to aircraft that are gradually coming on line. Reductions in noise levels of up to 6.3 dB on 
departure and 2.6dB on arrival are expected from this new fleet of aircraft. 

Subjectively, these aircraft are likely to be quieter on departures, but this is not necessarily 
the case on arrivals. The extent of these reductions will vary depending on the type of 
aircraft, and overall it is likely that the reductions will only be acknowledged by those 
subjected to noise from departure routes. As there will be a noticeable increase in flyovers in 
future years, which is forecast to occur with or without this application, this noise benefit from 
a changing aircraft fleet is likely to be largely offset by increasing numbers of aircraft 
movements. Nevertheless, the gradual and progressive introduction of the emerging more 
modern aircraft, such as the B737Max and A320neo, into the UK aviation fleet will contribute 
to ensuring that noise exposure around Stansted remains no greater, and most likely less 
than, that permitted in 2008. 

At no time will the existing permitted 57dB contour area of 33.9km2 be exceeded. It is 
expected to reach its maximum of 32km2 in 2024, then drop to 28.7km2 in 2028. Overall, 
these changes over the forecast period are very small. Compared to 2016, the noise level 
change will be no greater than around 1dB higher. A change in noise level of this magnitude 
is normally imperceptible.

Page 59Page 305



Based on the predicted data, when comparing noise levels with the DC and DM case there 
will be negligible impact both during the day and at night as any increases over the DM case 
will be less than 1dB.  

In terms of observed effect levels, there will be increases in population during the daytime 
that will be exposed to levels that are considered to be above the LOAEL (Lowest Observed 
Adverse Effect Level) when compared to the DM scenario (11,884 (DM) compared to 15,336 
(DC)). This means that the reported population will be subjected to noise levels between 51-
63 dB LAeq. LOAEL is considered to be the level above which adverse effects on health and 
quality of life can be detected. However, in terms of actual level change, the overall increase 
in noise level remains negligible.

The population of people exposed to SOAEL levels (levels above which significant adverse 
effects on health and quality of life can occur) will also increase from 284 to 334 under the 
same comparison. SOAEL represents noise levels between 63-69dB. However, once again 
the assessment concludes that the noise increase will be negligible. 

When compared to 2016 figures, the number of people subject to LOAEL under the DC 
scenario increases from 12,600 to 15,336 and from 200 to 334 for SOAEL. Interestingly, 
under the 2008 permission, the population expected to be subject to LOAEL would be 
15,480, and 484 subject to SOAEL.

A similar comparative exercise of observed effects at night demonstrates that more people 
are subject to SOAEL for the 2028 DC (2,734) than the DM case (2,084), and 2008, 25+ 
permission (1,384). The baseline 2016 figure is 1050. However, the ES points out that for a 
typical summer night, in 2028 there are expected to be 104 movements in the DM scenario 
compared with the 107 movements for the development case, and that the projected 
increase in noise level is 0.5 - 0.6 dB and therefore imperceptible. 

It is acknowledged that night-time aircraft movements at Stansted are subject to Government 
control via the Night Noise Restrictions. STAL make the point that as a consequence, the 
airport will reach its cap on movements before 2028 whether or not permission is granted to 
increase the passenger throughput beyond 35 mppa. They state that this is the underlying 
reason why the noise study has concluded in the ES that night-time noise level differences 
arising purely as a consequence of the development going ahead are negligible, both in 
respect of ground noise and air noise. Nevertheless, it is important to ensure that people are 
adequately protected now and into the future from the effects of night noise from aircraft.

STAL were asked to check whether the 55 dB Lnight contour for the 2028 Development 
Case operations lies within the extent of the SIGS eligibility thresholds. This is relevant 
because this value represents the World Health Organisation (WHO) interim target for night 
noise under their current Night Noise Guidelines. It (or its approximate equivalent level of 55 
dB LAeq,8h) is also commonly used at other airports as a night noise Sound Insulation Grant 
Scheme (SIGS) eligibility boundary. STAL confirmed in their recent note that the 55 dB 
Lnight contour for the 2028 DC sits fully within the SIGS eligibility boundary.

In respect of the population that it is considered will be highly annoyed, the 2028 case is 
expected to be 7% lower than under the 2008 25+ permission (2028 DC at 1829 and 2008 
permission 1,973). It should be noted that under the DM case the number of people highly 
annoyed would be 1,439.  Whilst the number of people highly annoyed is higher within the 

Page 60Page 306



development case, Cole Jarman point out that in terms of noise level change, this is <1dB 
and is therefore negligible.

When assessing overflight impacts, in the DC there would be 72 additional movements 
during the day (712 between 07:00 and 23:00) compared to the DM condition (640 between 
07:00 and 23:00). Since there is an approximately equal split between departures and 
arrivals this indicates an additional 36 or so of each. Naturally there is a significant difference 
in N65 contours that indicate the numbers of flyovers that exceed 65dB LAmax  

The 2016 contour showed N65 25 & 50 values larger than those of either the 2028 DC or 
2028 DM scenario. Conversely, at values of 100 and 200 the 2028 DC and 2028 DM 
contours do extend to areas greater than the 2016 contour. This emphasises the shift in the 
number of fly overs that will result in noise levels exceeding 65dB LAmax and demonstrates 
the locations where the greatest concentration of overflights will occur.   At night there is 
considered to be little difference between the DM and DC scenarios. 

It should be noted that in 2016 there were 82 night time movements on a peak summer 
night. This is expected to increase to 104 and 107 in 2028 for the DM and DC scenarios. 
Night time movements are subject to government controls via the Night Noise Regulations 
as indicated within para 4.20. 

In conclusion the ES states that there would be negligible difference between the 2023 and 
2028 scenarios and will remain within the restrictions conditioned as part of the 2008 25+ 
permission.

The significance criteria presented in the ES and summarised in Table T18 above are 
considered appropriate in general. An area explored further with STAL however was the 
criterion adopted for the control of maximum noise levels within educational facilities.

While it is accepted that maximum noise levels from aircraft operating at Stansted Airport in 
the future are not expected to increase, and indeed will reduce for some aircraft types as 
more modern aircraft such as the B737Max and A320neo types are introduced, the number 
of events occurring during a typical day is forecast to increase. This has the potential to 
affect schools and other educational facilities in the locality. Of particular relevance is 
whether schools, already forecast to experience higher than desirable noise maxima as a 
result of aircraft flyovers, will experience a further increase in such events as a result of this 
application.

STAL, on the request of the Council, carried out further studies to expand upon the 
information provided in the ES air noise chapter relating to future noise levels and schools. 
This found that at the majority of schools, the LAmax is expected to be below the level which 
would result in an internal level exceeding 60 dB LAmax with open windows (allowing for a 
12 dB reduction from external free field level through an open window), due to the noise 
benefits associated with new generation, quieter aircraft. Four schools were identified as 
potentially affected by an increase in aircraft events producing maximum noise levels greater 
than recommended within internal areas (assuming windows partially open), namely:

•   Howe Green School

•   Spellbrook Primary School

Page 61Page 307



•   The Leventhorpe School

•   Mandeville Primary School

In practice, the primary cause of noise exceedances above the recommended internal level 
of 60 dB LAmax is departures and arrivals by the B737-800. These occur currently and will 
do so in the future, irrespective of this application. The application however will permit some 
additional movements in the future, over and above the DM case in 2028. For the B737-800 
and similar aircraft types, the application would allow around one additional movement per 
hour, over and above what is forecast to occur under the DM case in 2028, assuming a 
worst case 100% operating mode. This is significantly less than forecast in the previous 25+ 
mppa application. The replacement of this aircraft type over time by the B737Max will 
alleviate this effect. For one school however, Spellbrook Primary School, the B737Max on 
arrival is expected to produce maximum noise levels slightly higher than recommended. 

Taking account of the above, and recognising that a small number of schools are located 
within the Sound Insulation Grant Scheme (SIGS) qualification boundaries, Stansted Airport 
(STAL) will engage with the relevant bodies to discuss possible measures to compensate or 
offset the residual effects of aircraft noise where these are shown to exceed criteria for 
maximum internal noise levels, by reference to existing recognised noise guidelines for new 
and refurbished educational buildings. The method and approach and scope of measures 
have yet to be agreed and can be addressed through the use of an appropriate worded 
condition.

Following the publication of the Parliamentary report on the Airports National Policy 
Statement (NPS), which has subsequently been published (in June 2018), STAL were 
requested to advise on the gross number of people who will be newly exposed to significant 
levels of noise annoyance arising from the scheme, taking account of those affected down to 
51 dB LAeq,16h. STAL confirmed that this information is provided in the ES in Tables T30, 
T36, T42, T48, T54 and T61 in ES Technical Appendix 7.3. They are also summarised in the 
note2 prepared in response to this query.

Following a review of the ES this service has sought clarity and further information on the 
ES.  Further information has been made available on the estimated LAmax values at non-
sensitive dwellings. We have also discussed improvements to the proposed Sound 
Insulation Grant Scheme. Satisfactory information has been provided and the upgrade in the 
SIGS scheme (discussed later in this commentary) will assist in offsetting the small 
significant impacts arising from the proposed application, leaving negligible residual air noise 
impacts.

Ground Noise

Main sources of ground noise include:

•   Aircraft taxiing or holding with main engines in operation at any point between the 
parking stand and the point at which an aircraft commences its departure roll (start of 
roll) or exits the runway on arrival. 

•   Aircraft auxiliary power units (APUs) for supplying cabin air and electrical power, 
and other aircraft services mainly when the main engines are not operating; 

Page 62Page 308



•   Mobile ground power units (GPUs) which supply the required electrical power to 
the aircraft and other equipment such as PCA units that supply pre conditioned air 
during turnarounds when fixed electrical ground power (FEGP) is not available; 

•   Aircraft engine ground run (EGR) tests; and 

•   Fixed plant and equipment.

The existing unilateral obligation relating to ground noise should be rolled forward subject to 
minor amendments to ensure that new parking stands are fitted with FEGP.

 The assessment of impacts of ground noise has been considered using the following noise 
metrics: 

•   LAeq,16h: the16-hour daytime LAeq value for the period 07:00 to 23:00 based on 
92-day average summer operations; plotted from 50 to 60 dB in 5 dB increments. 

•   LAeq,8h: the 8-hour night-time LAeq value for the period 23:00 to 07:00 based on 
92-day average summer operations; plotted from 40 to 55 dB in 5 dB increments. 

There is no specific assessment guidance, standard or recommended analysis methodology 
for the calculation and assessment of aircraft ground noise. It is outside the scope of British 
standards and it is unlike noise from road traffic or air traffic. However, the approach adopted 
has been to consider the level over background and a comparative assessment. The 
approach and methodology to determine the impact of the proposal is considered 
reasonable. 

Information is presented within the ES detailing the expectant noise levels at key locations 
compared with existing background locations and the proposed threshold levels of 55dB 
LAeq during the day and 45dB LAeq at night. These thresholds are considered to be 
reasonable. 

It is acknowledged that the change in noise is also relevant, when above a given absolute 
threshold.  The criteria adopted for rating impacts and significance is given in Table 8.1 of 
the Ground Noise chapter.

The table does not provide an adequate description of the impact for greater changes in 
noise level than 3dB. For example, it suggests that if the ground noise level is currently at 
55dB LAeq,16h, and that an increase of 10 dB were to occur, it would only be rated as a 
“Moderate impact”. The impact is considered to be greater than this. In practice however, 
this does not become an issue with this application as the predicted changes in ground noise 
remain below 3dB.

A comparison of data sets show negligible impact in the 2028 DC compared to the 25+ 
permission. The level change when compared to the DM scenario is equally negligible. 
Comparisons with the 2016 base line show some increases + 3dB in the worse location 
(Molehill Green) during the day and +2.5 dB at night. As this is a marginal increase over time 
and that the resultant level when compared to the Do Minimum scenario, there will be little 
impact. 

Page 63Page 309



STAL were asked to undertake further work to check whether the 45 dB LAeq,8h night noise 
contour would extend in the future, under the 2028 With DC, beyond the similar contour 
assessed in the original 25+ application. This work was requested because it is considered 
that it is reasonable to seek to control ground noise at night to within this threshold level.

Work undertaken by STAL and reported in their subsequent note demonstrates that in 
places, the 45 dB LAeq,8h ground noise contour forecast in 2028. With Development this 
does extend outside that assessed in the original 25+ application. They argue however that 
this is not a consequence of their application since it would occur in any event under the 
existing permission and DM case. 

Comparing ground noise contours in Appendix 8.1 Ground Noise (Figure 8.1/GN6) with and 
without the development in place, shows they are virtually indistinguishable throughout the 
surrounding community except where benefits will arise from decommissioning of the 
Northside apron should permission be granted. In those areas ground noise levels are 
expected to reduce.

It remains the case that night-time aircraft movements at Stansted are subject to 
Government control and, as a consequence, the airport will reach its cap on movements 
before 2028 whether or not permission is granted for this application.

The ES concludes that with the exception of Molehill Green there will be no adverse impact 
from ground noise. The noise at Molehill Green can be considered minor adverse impact. 
There are no adverse impacts considered at night.

Surface Access

This chapter assessed the impact of noise from road traffic on public roads by quantifying 
the anticipated change in noise levels in connection with the predicted annual increase in 
passenger numbers. It does not take into account rail noise as the rail company proposes 
additional carriages and not changes to the number of trains each day. 

The assessment is based on the overall change in noise levels expected along key road 
sections and uses the Design Manual for Roads and Bridges (DMRB). This approach is 
commonly applied for such purposes and in particular for assessing changes to highway 
infrastructure and the building of now roads. Calculations are based on the Department for 
Transport calculation of Road Traffic Noise (CRTN). The assessment is based on noise 
levels as defined at 10m from the edge of the carriageway.  The method adopted is 
universally applied and considered to be acceptable.

In carrying out the assessment the 2028 Development Care has been compared with the 
2028 Do Minimum case. A further assessment is made comparing the 2028 Development 
Case to the 2016 Baseline Year. 

The findings of the assessment demonstrate changes that would not be perceptible (i.e. 
<1dBA) when comparing the Development Case to the Do minimum scenario. This impact is 
therefore considered to be negligible. 

Comparisons of 2016 and 2028 DC levels show increases of < 3dB.  Whilst this is 
significantly different to the DM scenario, it still remains negligible as in reality, the changes 
in road traffic noise will be gradual and therefore imperceptible. 

Page 64Page 310



It has been identified that minor impact will arise at Round Coppice Road with a 3.8dB 
increase compared with 2016 baseline levels. The nearest receptor to this road is the 
Novotel Hotels, more than 150M from the road. The ES findings confirm that this will be the 
case regardless of the DC under the expected uplift of the baseline level under the 2028 
(35mppa) DM scenario. 

It is noted that the Stansted Airport College building that is currently under construction will 
be located closer to Round Coppice Road. However, Cole Jarman state that enhanced 
façade mitigation measures have been incorporated within the design of the building to 
address noise from aircraft noise. It is not anticipated that the increase in road traffic noise 
will adversely impact on teaching spaces.

Mitigation

Additional information has been provided by Cole Jarman addressing issues that have been 
raised in recent months. Particular attention has been given to assessing the impacts of 
LAmax values Howe Green School and Spellbrook Primary School. It was noted that the 
information did not affect the conclusions and outcomes of the ES but provided a degree of 
clarity on the potential LAmax values that may be experienced. It is not considered that the 
LAmax levels will increase due to the aircraft fly overs, however the information did confirm 
that the number of flyovers is forecast to increase by 50% compared to 2016 figures. This 
increase would occur whether or not the application is permitted

In recognising the small number of schools that are located within the Sound Insulation 
Grant Scheme (SIGS) qualification boundaries STAL have agreed to engage with the 
schools to discuss what, if any measures can be adopted to mitigate the impacts of the 
proposed increase.

Under the existing SIGS scheme, STAL offer the following:

•   Relocation assistance- to those households subject to noise levels of 69dB LAeq 
16hr or above

•   Insulation grants- Offer to pay for 50% of the total cost of acoustic insulation to 
residences exposed to noise levels in excess of 

•   63dB LAeq 16hr

•   57dB LAeq 8hr (night time)

•   90dB SEL footprint for the nosiest aircraft (QC/2) operating at night 

The same offer is extended to properties within 600m from the airport & to other noise 
sensitive properties such as schools & hospitals

The application seeks to enhance the SIGS going above the level of assistance that is 
recommended by Government.

Under the new proposals the householder would no longer contribute financially to the cost 
of insulation works. Qualifying properties could receive a grant, up to a maximum award, that 
would cover up to 100% of the cost of the works depending on the level of aircraft noise 
exposure experienced. 

Page 65Page 311



The scheme is clearly an improvement on the existing scheme. In practice, if a property is 
eligible, a home survey would be offered and completed to ensure the householder receives 
professional advice and can choose the most appropriate insulation works. 

Costs of works up to £10,000 will be awarded to those eligible properties experiencing the 
highest noise levels of 69 and 66 dB LAeq. The scheme is scaled down according to noise 
exposure. In total it is expected that 1050 residential properties will be eligible for the 
proposed scheme

There are other proposed enhanced mitigation measures presented within the ES that are 
considered to be acceptable.

Conclusions and Recommendations

STAL are able to demonstrate through the ES that the proposed noise impacts would be no 
greater than under the DM scenario (i.e. the projected impacts based on current forecasts 
under the 2008 permission) and for this reason, there are no grounds to object to the 
proposed applications on noise impact grounds. 

The assessment methodology, approach level of detail provided by Cole Jarman is 
satisfactory. The ES is comprehensive and we have no doubts over its integrity.

This service is looking to work with STAL to improve the SIGs scheme and encourage 
greater uptake. It is recommended that the SIGS scheme is subject to a condition requiring a 
detailed scheme to be submitted and approved by the Local Planning Authority within 6 
months from permission being granted.

To ensure that STAL strive for reductions in noise throughout the permission, it is 
recommended that a noise envelope condition be proposed to reduce the daytime 57 dB 
LAeq, 16hr contour over time, as predicted within the ES. This will provide some certainty 
and apply the necessary pressure on STAL to ensure that levels do not exceed those 
forecast within the ES

It is also recommended that a similar condition is imposed to match the permitted night-time 
predicted Do Minimum 54 dB LAeq,8h contour.  This will ensure that the overall population 
exposed to the SOAEL at night does not increase over what could occur if the application did 
not proceed.

UTTLESFORD DISTRICT COUNCIL – SPECIAL VERGES

Special verges considered are UTT13 Burton End Verges, Belmer Road, Stansted; Burton 
End North; Burton End South.  These verges support species rich chalk grassland. This 
habitat is now very rare in the UK.  97% of this grassland had been destroyed in England 
and Wales by 1984 and losses have continued since that time.  The Special Roadside 
Verges scheme for Essex seeks to safeguard the last verge sites in the county where rare 
plants still grow.

There may be indirect effects from an increase in the number of passengers travelling to the 
airport and from the increase in air traffic movements. These are outlined below:

Page 66Page 312



1. Increase in Traffic and Parking Problems
Belmer Road is very narrow. There is the potential for erosion of the grass verges 
because of an increase in construction vehicles during the airfield works and in 
passenger traffic if passenger numbers are increased beyond the current limit.  
Construction traffic must take clearly defined routes to the airport via major roads, 
rather than travelling through narrow roads in the surrounding countryside.  Adequate 
parking for an increased number of passengers must be provided at the airport if the 
application is granted. This includes Emergency Parking areas. The recent 
emergency, when a bus caught fire outside the main terminal, resulted in passengers 
abandoning their cars on roads in the countryside surrounding the airport. This must 
be prevented in future.

2. Air pollution
An increase in ground vehicle traffic and air traffic movements may increase air 
pollution which can affect vegetation in the surrounding area. Nutrient enrichment of 
the special verges, though increased nitrogen oxide and nitrogen dioxide levels, 
leads to increased growth of vigorous plant species, such as nettles, which out 
compete the chalk grassland flowers and lead to a decline in quality of the special 
verges.

Page 67Page 313



TOWN / PARISH COUNCIL COMMENTS
Arkesden Parish Council

Object.  Unacceptable strain on transport infrastructure, particularly Junction 8 of M11 and 
rail network.  This is in addition to the proposals contained in the draft Local Plan for more 
housing in the surrounding area, which is certain to impact on the transport network.  
Increase in noise levels, particularly at night, is of great concern to local residents and the 
clause buried deep in the application that proposes to remove the restriction on lobbying for 
more night flights is an indication of MAG’s disregard for the concerns of local people. 
Despite any assurances that MAG might offer, this application will lead to more noise, more 
pollution, more congestion on the road and rail network and a decrease in air quality.

The Parish Council recognises that the airport brings economic benefits to the area and that 
controlled expansion is necessary. The current agreed limits allow for a 35% increase in 
passenger numbers and a 23% increase in flight movements over and above current levels. 
These increases alone will present serious challenges to the district in providing sufficient 
infrastructure, but these new proposals can only have a negative impact on LOCAL people 
and Arkesden Parish Council asks that you refuse this application.  If this application is 
eventually decided at national level, as called for by many objectors, then UDC must 
represent the views of the vast majority of its residents (and practically every parish council 
that has responded) in robustly objecting to this application.

Birchanger Parish Council

Birchanger Parish Council objects for the following reasons.

1. We resent the cynical use made of the planning regulations by MAG – concerns 
about short timescales for responses and the PPA.  Also the fact that Cllr Terry 
Farthing supports application and the fact that there is a request to remove an 
existing prohibition on MAG lobbying to amend night noise regulations.  

2. We consider it unacceptable that permission for further expansion has been sought 
before MAG has compensated those affected by previous expansion - MAG should 
not have any increase in permitted flights or associated infrastructure permitted until 
it has fully compensated those adversely affected by the 25 mppa expansion.

3. We object to any increase in noise, pollution and surface traffic - We reject the 
complacency of the Environmental Statements as they don’t reflect the real-world 
increase in passenger numbers being sought.  

Noise:  We are aware that aircraft are getting quieter and quieter, and the effects are 
noticeable in Birchanger. However the disruption caused by aircraft movements at Stansted 
is still significant, especially at the southeast end of the village.

The environment statement talks of dBA leq levels, but this is meaningless to the residents 
of Birchanger.

• In a rural location it’s noise events, not an average over time, that affects people
• As previously stated the only meaningful comparison for us is between the current 

situation, with 26 mppa, and the proposal. Comparisons with an estimate for 35 
mppa mean nothing

Page 68Page 314



We reject ANY increase in movements caused by an increase in passengers, and any trend 
towards heavier, larger aircraft (e.g. for long haul or freight).  We consider that ANY night 
flights are too many.  MAG must be made to agree not to lobby for any relaxation of night 
noise regulations.

Air Quality:  If you are handling 66% more passengers than today (and more freight) then 
you will be using far more energy. With that number of people it’s safe to assume that the 
entire airport and its system (aircraft, terminals, office space, maintenance, staff and 
passenger transport to/from airport and so on) will also increase by about 66%. It’s true that 
energy efficiency is improving in all areas, but an increase in airport capability on that scale 
will lead to significantly higher energy consumption.

Much of that energy will be obtained by burning fossil fuels. Combustion by-products from 
aircraft and airport-related road transport will inevitably increase. This gives us concerns 
about air quality. Every day seems to bring new reports on the adverse health impacts of 
particulates and NOx. We fail to see why our health should be threatened so that people can 
go to Ibiza.  And, of course, the implications for CO2 emissions leading to climate change 
are considerable.  It is wrong to put plans in place to further reduce the air quality of local 
residents.

Surface Access:  We have difficulty in understanding how anyone could contemplate 
increasing traffic on the M11 and specifically Junction 8 of that road. We understand that it is 
already 20% over its design capacity, with several thousand houses due to be built over the 
next few years close to the junction.

We note that MAG claims that its use of the local road network (and therefore vehicular 
pollution) is small in comparison with the traffic already using the network, but reject it as 
another attempt to portray the airport’s impact as a small slice of a large cake.

43 000 000 passengers, an additional 500 employees, increased air freight and everything 
required to support the enlarged airport will generate a very large number of additional 
vehicle journeys. The roads will not be able to take it. We know this to be true because 
they’re at capacity now for periods every weekday morning, afternoon and summer public 
holidays. Once the passenger numbers grow at the airport during the day, when it’s currently 
relatively quiet, the M11 north and south and the A120 at Braintree will become blocked.

We, too, have journeys to make, and the traffic added by this application will make life 
difficult for many of our residents.

We note the aspirations of MAG to maintain current levels of rail use. We also note that 
increased capacity on the Stansted route is in the pipeline. But we also note that MAG 
derives a large part of its income from car parking, so are sceptical about these claims.

2nd response:

Introduction

These are the objections of Birchanger Parish Council to the Manchester Airports Group 
(MAG) application to expand Stansted Airport to 43 million passengers per annum (mppa).

Page 69Page 315



This document follows the release by MAG of the additional information added to the 
application document set on 19th July 2018 and is an updated version of our response on 
30th April 2018.

About Birchanger

Birchanger is a small village in north-west Essex, in the district of Uttlesford, with a 
population of about 1500. We are very close to Stansted Airport, with parts of the village only 
1.5km from the threshold of runway 05. Residents, especially those living in the south and 
east of the village, suffer from disturbance caused by aircraft noise at all hours of the day 
and night. Residents in all parts of the village are affected by helicopter traffic, most of which 
is associated with Stansted Airport, by road congestion and by air pollution.

Democratic Mandate

Each year at our annual village meeting we hold a vote that confirms that residents of 
Birchanger are overwhelmingly opposed to expansion of Stansted Airport. The last such 
vote, which was passed with no objections, was on 21st March 2018.

Our Grounds for Objection

Birchanger Parish Council objects for the following reasons.

1. We resent the cynical use made of the planning regulations by MAG

2. We consider it unacceptable that permission for further expansion has been sought 
before MAG has compensated those affected by previous expansion

3. We object to any increase in noise, pollution and surface traffic

The Cynicism of the Application

MAG originally announced that it was going to apply for an expansion from 35 mppa (million 
passengers per annum) to 44.5 mppa, an increase of 9.5 mppa. They did this knowing that 
an application to expand the airport by 10 mppa would lead to the application being 
considered a Nationally Significant Infrastructure Project. As such it would be considered by 
the Planning Inspectorate.

MAG must have known that this ruse would be immediately seen through, and, of course, it 
was. When the application was made the number of passengers to be handled had been 
reduced to 43 mppa. However, nothing else had changed: they still wish to build additional 
infrastructure identical to that proposed for 44.5 mppa.

Clearly they wish this application to be treated as a local matter, and we wondered why. But 
then we heard about the deal between Uttlesford District Council (UDC) and MAG in which 
the latter accepted money from the former in exchange for expediting the application. We 
understand this to be legal (but we don’t understand why Uttlesford were so reluctant to 
disclose the details) but it’s undemocratic. It simply makes it impossible for other parties to 
read, analyse and respond to the application. MAG has had a team of employees and 
consultants working for several months on this application, but inexpert individuals and 
councils at all levels are expected to be able to respond in a few weeks. This is 
undemocratic.

Page 70Page 316



In view of the payments made we have no confidence in UDC’s ability to treat this 
application fairly. This view was compounded when one of our ward’s district councillors, 
Terry Farthing, wrote a long letter to the local newspaper in support of the application, failing 
to mention that he was an Uttlesford councillor or that he owned a large lettings agency 
based at the airport.

Our anger at the original short timescales was made worse when we heard from Stop 
Stansted Expansion that the application sought to remove an existing prohibition on MAG 
lobbying to amend night noise regulations. It took the relatively well resourced and highly 
professional SSE some weeks to note the clause about this buried in the application 
documents, and it would have been missed had the deadline not been extended.

Further evidence of the cynical approach taken by the applicant was provided in July, when 
further information was provided as ‘Consultation Response and Clarifications’. The first part 
of that document, the Consultee Response Schedule, was useful information, but comprised 
19 pages. It was followed by some sort of data dump: some 900 pages of further information 
in the form of several detailed reports commissioned by MAG. These are no doubt highly 
useful to the applicant, and quite interesting to others. The problem is the sheer scale. MAG 
cannot have expected the contents of these documents to have been fully read, let alone 
analysed, in the very short timescales provided over the holiday season. 

This application must be called in by Government. It is, and always was, nationally 
significant infrastructure, and we have no confidence that UDC will give due weight to 
arguments against the application.

Compensation

There are residents in this area, some of them in Birchanger, who are still waiting for 
compensation due to them after the expansion to 25 mppa. MAG has again shown quite 
remarkable cynicism and a lack of good faith in the way it has treated these people.

For years it refused to allow claims on the grounds that all work associated with the 
expansion was incomplete. Once that excuse could no longer be used it then tried to throw 
out claims because too much time had elapsed since the expansion started. It would be 
funny if it wasn’t real peoples’ lives being affected.

This, again, shows the kind of organisation we’re dealing with and reinforces our call for the 
application to be considered by someone equal to MAG; that is by HMG.

In any case MAG should not have any increase in permitted flights or associated 
infrastructure permitted until it has fully compensated those adversely affected by the 25 
mppa expansion. 

Adverse Effects on Birchanger

We have tried to understand the Environmental Statement but, of course, do not have the 
resources or the time. We do have some comments.

We reject as misleading the methodology used in the ES, which compares the 
environmental impact of 43 mppa against a baseline of 35 mppa, the current limit. This 

Page 71Page 317



represents the passenger growth as being only 22.8% and therefore the ES concludes that 
the impact will be slight.

But that’s just an academic exercise. The airport is not operating at anything like 35 mppa so 
the figures are all theoretical. Impacts can always be made to appear small if treated as a 
series of lesser increases, losing any compounding effects.

Birchanger is concerned about the real world, the one that we live in. Currently there are 
about 26 mppa using the airport and the application is for 43. That’s a real-life increase of 
66%.

We reject the complacency of the Environmental Statements as they don’t reflect the real-
world increase in passenger numbers being sought.

Noise

We are aware that aircraft are getting quieter and quieter, and the effects are noticeable in 
Birchanger. However the disruption caused by aircraft movements at Stansted is still 
significant, especially at the southeast end of the village.

The environment statement talks of dBAleq levels, but this is meaningless to the residents of 
Birchanger.

• In a rural location it’s noise events, not an average over time, that affects people

• As previously stated the only meaningful comparison for us is between the current 
situation, with 26 mppa, and the proposal. Comparisons with an estimate for 35 mppa mean 
nothing

We reject ANY increase in movements caused by an increase in passengers, and any trend 
towards heavier, larger aircraft (e.g. for long haul or freight)

We consider that ANY night flights are too many. 

MAG must be made to agree not to lobby for any relaxation of night noise regulations.

Air Quality

If you are handling 66% more passengers than today (and more freight) then you will be 
using far more energy. With that number of people it’s reasonable to assume that the entire 
airport and its system (aircraft, terminals, office space, maintenance, staff and passenger 
transport to/from airport and so on) will also increase by something close to 66%. It’s true 
that energy efficiency is improving in all areas, but an increase in airport capability on that 
scale must lead to significantly higher energy consumption.

Much of that energy will be obtained by burning fossil fuels. Combustion by-products from 
aircraft and airport-related road transport will inevitably increase. This gives us concerns 
about air quality. Every day seems to bring new reports on the adverse health impacts of 
particulates and NOx. We fail to see why our health should be threatened so that people can 
go to Ibiza.

Page 72Page 318



And. of course, the implications for CO2 emissions leading to climate change are 
considerable.

It is wrong to put plans in place to further reduce the air quality of local residents.

Surface Access

We have difficulty in understanding how anyone could contemplate increasing traffic on the 
M11 and specifically Junction 8 of that road. We understand that it is already 20% over its 
design capacity, with several thousand houses due to be built over the next few years close 
to the junction.

We note that MAG claims that its use of the local road network (and therefore vehicular 
pollution) is small in comparison with the traffic already using the network, but reject it as 
another attempt to portray the airport’s impact as a small slice of a large cake.

43 000 000 passengers, an additional 500 employees, increased air freight and everything 
required to support the enlarged airport will generate a very large number of additional 
vehicle journeys. The roads will not be able to take it. We know this to be true because 
they’re at capacity now for periods every weekday morning, afternoon and summer public 
holidays. Once the passenger numbers grow at the airport during the day, when it’s currently 
relatively quiet, the M11 north and south and the A120 at Braintree will become blocked. 

We, too, have journeys to make, and the traffic added by this application will make life 
difficult for many of our residents.

We note the aspirations of MAG to maintain current levels of rail use. We also note that 
increased capacity on the Stansted route is in the pipeline. But we also note that MAG 
derives a large part of its income from car parking, so are sceptical about these claims.

Conclusion

This application is bad for residents in many ways, and the way in which the application has 
been handled by MAG and by Uttlesford gives us no confidence that the application will 
receive rigorous scrutiny.

We insist that the application be referred to central Government, and that the Planning 
Inspectorate pay due regard to the adverse effects that will result if the application is 
approved.

Bishops Stortford Town Council

The Committee were concerned that, by increasing the number of passengers to pass 
through Stansted Airport, this would lead to increasing parking issues within Bishop’s 
Stortford.  The Committee requested Members to write to both Members of Parliament for 
this area to urge them to request that MAG who own and operate Stansted Airport, help to 
alleviate parking in Bishop’s Stortford and assist with improving training links between 
Dunmow and Stansted Airport.

Page 73Page 319



Borley Parish Meeting

Borley is a small village to the east of Stansted, close to Sudbury, and is on the direct flight 
path in to Stansted. Consequently we the villagers (70 in number) have to endure 
unacceptable noise levels beginning in the early hours of the morning to late at night. In 
addition we are affected by all the environmental issues particularly pollution.

Any increase in these factors would be wholly unacceptable particularly if these increases 
are carried out in the summer months. This is a time when residents are outside in the 
daytime and have windows open at night and are most affected by aircraft noise. This is a 
tranquil area with little background noise, so noise from aircraft is very intrusive.  Residents 
are already concerned about the amount of aircraft traffic over this area and do not want this 
to increase further.

Consequently the Borley Parish Meeting strongly OBJECTS to this planning application 
which should be refused - the vote was unanimous.

Braughing Parish Council

1. This application should be decided at national level not local. This is a major 
infrastructure application and should be decided by Central Government.

2. There is an anticipated increase in aircraft pollution from the larger planes.
3. There is an anticipated increase in aircraft noise relating to the larger planes. There 

is also concern that older freight aircraft will continue which cause significant noise 
pollution at a time when the majority of the population should be sleeping. Such sleep 
disturbance creates physical and mental health issues.

4. There will be an increase in car parking congestion affecting the surrounding area 
due the pickup and set down charges at the airport. There are many reports of 
vehicles being left in the nearby villages and towns for weeks at a time, and even 
being left on or blocking private driveways. This is completely unacceptable and 
needs swift resolution.

5. There is an anticipated increase in CO2 and NOX pollution from the above.
6. The road network around the airport is already at capacity with no appreciable 

measures to prevent gridlock. On several occasions the M11 has been blocked due 
to accidents on it and feeder routes. The surrounding and wider local roads have 
been inundated with heavy traffic, causing mayhem and damage because there is no 
viable alternative.

7. There is insufficient public transport available to manage the number of passengers 
proposed. The Stansted Express is already at capacity. There are no viable public 
transport alternatives to the private car to access Stansted Airport. This is supposed 
to be a local airport to serve local people. It was never intended to be the third 
London Airport. This application is pushing passenger numbers upward to take it 
towards third airport capability.

8. The previous passenger numbers granted permission has not been reached. If one 
takes the actual passenger numbers at Stansted, it is significantly lower than that 
granted. The difference between actual passenger numbers and the proposed 44.5m 
is some 20m. It is therefore difficult to understand why such a large number of 
passengers would suddenly start to use Stansted as granted permission capacity has 

Page 74Page 320



not been reached. It is thus considered premature to submit an application for a 
further increase in passenger numbers.

9. Should permission be granted, it is quite likely that there would be a change in flight 
paths which would then severely impact the communities surrounding the airport 
which is unacceptable. 

10. This is considered to be a speculative application. Central Government has not 
identified Stansted for expansion. This application is therefore not needed at this 
time. Braughing Parish Council objected to the previous application for very similar 
reasons but that application was granted. Braughing Parish Council is looking to 
Uttlesford District Council to ensure that this application is refused should it not be 
called in for Central Government decision. 

11. There is a question over how the passenger numbers have been calculated, and it is 
believed that there this has been an over-exaggeration of the number of people 
anticipated. As the uplifted passenger numbers have not been reached, this 
application is considered premature with the proposed passenger numbers more of a 
‘wish’ than fact.

12. Unless or until the current passenger number quota is reached, there is no reason for 
this application to be granted.

13. It would appear that the applicant and the District Council are in a rush to push this 
application through. No application of such magnitude should be rushed. Whilst all 
applications need to be properly considered, such major applications must surely 
warrant serious and detailed consideration.

14. Central Government has a duty to reduce climate change pollution. Applications such 
as this increase the levels of climate change pollution with no real mitigation in place.

Broxted Parish Council

Broxted Parish Council wishes to object to this application for the following reasons.

The ‘civil engineering’ works proposed are relatively minor and do not warrant an application 
running to more than 2,000 pages. This is a clear attempt to confuse and frustrate any 
reasonable person. Who knows what horrors are hidden within this mass of paperwork? For 
example, the deletion of a previous s.106 agreement not to lobby the relevant authorities for 
an increase in night flights. What is of real concern to my Council is the proposal to combine 
the number of aircraft movements into one total figure of 274,000 and to increase the 
number of permitted passengers to 43 mppa.

My Council firmly believes that this is a proposal of National Significance and as such should 
be dealt with by the Secretary of State. It is not, as some have said, a local issue which 
should be considered by local people.

The effects of the airport, such as pollution, noise, sleep disturbance, traffic congestion and 
health issues are not limited to the residents of Uttlesford but affect people in surrounding 
Districts and Counties, for whom the Planning Committee of UDC have no responsibility, and 
to whom they are not answerable.  

My Council also believes that the application is premature. The airport presently has 
permission for 35 mppa and by its own calculations will not reach this figure until 2023. The 
DfT’s prediction is for 2033, so why now, and why such a hurry to secure this permission? 

Page 75Page 321



The only possible explanation is that MAG wants to avoid the proper scrutiny that would be 
afforded to an increase of 10 mppa and pressurise UDC into a speedy decision whilst its 
officers and members ought to be concentrating on its emerging Local Plan.

My Council is also concerned that each ‘Cap’ is merely treated as a stepping stone to a 
further increase each time the cap is neared. For MAG to say that there would be no 
significant adverse impacts by increasing the throughput to 43 mppa is nonsense and an 
insult to the intelligence of local people. Every increase in passengers or aircraft movements 
would have an unacceptable impact by way of additional noise and disruption, and increased 
traffic and parking nuisances. To say that ‘the new generation of aircraft are 50% quieter 
than the existing’ is just not true. They may be slightly less noisy, but the difference is only 
3dB and that is indiscernible to the human ear. MAG has had years to get used to the idea 
that 35 mppa is the absolute, final and irrevocable limit and design its business model 
accordingly.

Although not strictly a planning issue, the question of the overdue payment of compensation 
rightfully and legally due to those residents affected by previous developments cannot be 
ignored. That the airport is showing such bad faith by denying and delaying these payments 
is scandalous and my Council is disappointed that UDC has not done more to bring pressure 
on the airport, with which it appears to have a very cosy relationship, into meeting its legal 
responsibilities promptly. This, rather than poorly advertised ‘consultations’, would do much 
more to gain the support of local people and remove some of the suspicion and distrust with 
which the airport is viewed.

My Council feels that it has been given insufficient time to properly prepare its objections and 
reserves the right to make further comments, should it feel that necessary.

2nd response:

Broxted Parish Council is implacably opposed to this application and to this expansion of the 
airport. It considers this application to be both cynical and premature. By its own admission 
the application is of both regional and national significance and, as such, should be 
examined and determined by the relevant Secretary of State and not by the District Council.

This objection is an interim one. It may be followed by more detailed comments when my 
Council has had the opportunity to complete its study of the voluminous application details.

Chrishall Parish Council

1 This application should be decided at national level not local. This is a major infrastructure 
application and should be decided by Central Government.

2 Night Flights: it is understood that Uttlesford District Council does not have the authority to 
negotiate on night flights. This is a major area of concern for local residents and must be 
addressed as a priority. This application must be ‘called in’ for Central Government decision 
so that night flights can be properly controlled.

3. The deadline for response is unrealistic and unachievable. It is this Parish Council’s 
opinion that the deadline has been set as a result of pressure from the applicant. Due 
process must be carried out, and a realistic timescale employed.

Page 76Page 322



4 There is an anticipated increase in aircraft pollution from the larger planes.

5 There is an anticipated increase in aircraft noise relating to the larger planes. There is also 
concern that older freight aircraft will continue which cause significant noise pollution at a 
time when the majority of the population should be sleeping. Such sleep disturbance creates 
physical and mental health issues.

6 There will be an increase in car parking congestion affecting the surrounding area due the 
pickup and set down charges at the airport. There are many reports of vehicles being left in 
the nearby villages and towns for weeks at a time, and even being left on or blocking private 
driveways. This is completely unacceptable and needs swift resolution.

7 There is an anticipated increase in CO2 and NOX pollution from the above.

8 The road network around the airport is already at capacity with no appreciable measures 
to prevent gridlock. On several occasions the M11 has been blocked due to accidents on it 
and feeder routes. The surrounding and wider local roads have been inundated with heavy 
traffic, causing mayhem and damage because there is no viable alternative. 

9 There is insufficient public transport available to manage the number of passengers 
proposed. The Stansted Express is already at capacity. There are no viable public transport 
alternatives to the private car to access Stansted Airport. This is supposed to be a local 
airport to serve local people. It was never intended to be the third London Airport. This 
application is pushing passenger numbers upward to take it towards third airport capability.

10 The previous passenger numbers granted permission has not been reached. If one takes 
the actual passenger numbers at Stansted, it is significantly lower than that granted. The 
difference between actual passenger numbers and the proposed 44.5m is some 20m. It is 
therefore difficult to understand why such a large number of passengers would suddenly 
start to use Stansted as granted permission capacity has not been reached. It is thus 
considered premature to submit an application for a further increase in passenger numbers.

11 Should permission be granted, it is quite likely that there would be a change in flight paths 
which would then severely impact the communities surrounding the airport which is 
unacceptable. Chrishall was very badly affected by both night and day flights some 5 years 
ago and would not want to be subjected to such disruption again.

12. This is considered to be a speculative application. Central Government has not identified 
Stansted for expansion. This application is therefore not needed at this time. Chrishall Parish 
Council objected to the previous application for very similar reasons but that application was 
granted. Chrishall Parish Council is looking to Uttlesford District Council to ensure that this 
application is refused should it not be called in for Central Government decision. 

13. There is a question over how the passenger numbers have been calculated, and it is 
believed that there this has been an over-exaggeration of the number of people anticipated. 
As the uplifted passenger numbers have not been reached, this application is considered 
premature with the proposed passenger numbers more of a ‘wish’ than fact.

14. Unless or until the current passenger number quota is reached, there is no reason for 
this application to be granted.

Page 77Page 323



15. It would appear that the applicant and the District Council are in a rush to push this 
application through. No application of such magnitude should be rushed. Whilst all 
applications need to be properly considered, such major applications must surely warrant 
serious and detailed consideration.

16. Central Government has a duty to reduce climate change pollution. Applications such as 
this increase the levels of climate change pollution with no real mitigation in place.

17. There is great concern that Uttlesford District Council through the Local Plan is 
supporting and encouraging growth at Stansted Airport. The wording in the Local Plan is 
such that it is made clear that this area would benefit greatly from an expanded airport. 
However, many local people are not happy with expanding and uncontrolled airport growth 
which appears to be fully supported by the District Council through this guiding document. 
Chrishall Parish Council supports the strong control of the previous Local Plan rather than 
the watered-down SP11 in the developing Local Plan, and would strongly press for the 
guidance provided in the previous Local Plan to manage Stansted Airport.

Clavering Parish Council

Object.  No need to further increase capacity.  Given upcoming government review seems 
inappropriate to grant permission at this time.

Cressing Parish Council

Cressing Parish Council discussed this application at their meeting on 14 March 2018.

Our letter of 9 January 2015, which is appended to the end of this letter, also applies as this 
explains the background to our concerns. In 2014, it was decided that flights should be 
switched from the Dover route to the Clacton route. The village of Cressing lies directly 
under the Clacton route so residents are much more troubled by aircraft noise than 
previously and the Parish Council has received complaints from residents about aircraft 
noise. In particular, there are complaints relating to early morning flights, including at 
weekends.

This planning application seeks permission for an annual throughput of 43 million 
passengers and 274,000 flights, which compares to 25.9 million passengers and 189,900 
flights last year. We presume that such an increase in the number of passengers will mean a 
lot more noise, a lot more pollution and a lot more traffic on our already congested local 
roads. Apparently, the chief executive claims that this application is not seeking to uplift the 
flight numbers currently approved.

However, we understand that Manchester Airport Group's (MAG's) own figures show that 
with a 35mppa cap, the maximum number of flights at Stansted would be 246,568, whereas 
with a 43mppa cap, the figure would be 273,966. We would appreciate clarification on this 
point.

We understand that a level of financial contribution has been agreed between Uttlesford 
District Council and MAG, and that this money is conditional upon UDC meeting target dates 
to speed up the progress of MAG's planning application. In the interests of impartiality, we 
would like this planning application to be determined nationally by the Secretary of State 
rather than locally by UDC.

Page 78Page 324



Elmdon and Wenden Lofts Parish Council

Should not be allowed due to increased noise, increased pollution, inadequate transport 
systems of both road and rail.  The proposed derestriction of control on number of night 
flights is of most concern and we strongly object.  Application should be determined at 
national level by Secretary of State.

Elsenham Parish Council

Should be determined at national level.  Applicant has paid for the application to be fast 
tracked, potentially for a favourable decision.  Note that there are s106 contributions relevant 
to transport which cease to have effect after 31 December 2018.  It would appear prima facie 
that the impending deadline of 31 December 2018 would provide an impetus for UDC to 
hasten the decision on the application.  Gross abuse of system with the swamping of 
website with near identical emails in support.  No public consultation in Elsenham.  

Strategic study area (Chapter 6, Figure 6.1) excludes area around Elsenham station.  
Underlying assumption that expansion is good but the case needs to be made.  

Schemes for M11 Junction 8 are merely tinkering and unlikely to provide long term 
sustainable solution to problems.  The Airport should acknowledge the extent to which traffic 
through the junction is airport-related. It should commit major investment to a visionary, 
robust long-term solution to the present acute problems.

Assumptions in relation to additional employees and access by car show a 10% decrease for 
period 2016 to 2028.  Assumption lacks adequate justification.   Likewise assumptions for 
employees as passengers.

ES refers to enhancements to walking and cycling links.  Elsenham Parish Council is not 
aware of the enhancements and would like to receive full details.

Airport needs to fund rigorous enforcement action in respect of offsite parking.  Likewise, 
should acknowledge the litter problem associated with the airport.

Elsenham Parish Council has noted Stop Stansted Expansion’s revelation of the proposal to 
exclude the present restriction on lobbying for any relaxation of the restrictions on night 
flights, which is to be found well concealed in Appendix D of the Planning Statement, with no 
publicity elsewhere. The Parish Council takes the view that the restriction should remain and 
that MAG owes an explanation to the local community. Furthermore, the contention that 
inadequate time has been allowed for consideration of these lengthy and complex proposals 
has been amply justified.

2nd response:

General

The Parish Council wishes to express disappointment that with two exceptions there does 
not appear to have been an effort to address directly the points made in the original 
response. That response is therefore repeated below.

The two exceptions are dealt with in the following two sections (community involvement and 
employee access by private car, drivers).

Page 79Page 325



Elsewhere, as far as can be determined, responses to the Parish Council’s concerns are 
made obliquely at best, and for the most part are lacking completely.

Community involvement

The point is addressed in Consultee Response Schedule, 1.4. The response to this item is 
not regarded as satisfactory by the Parish Council.

Employee access by private car, drivers

The Parish Council’s point that it is impossible for the trend towards a reduction in car driver 
trips to be continued indefinitely is addressed in Consultee Response Schedule, 3.10.

It is stated in the Response concerning the projected 10% reduction in car driver trips 
between 2017 and 2028 that ‘All these trips have been allocated to public transport modes’. 
It is unclear, therefore, why the next paragraph in the Response refers to the ‘Liftshare’ 
scheme, and to walking and cycling strategies and improvements. There is evident 
confusion as to where the supposed reduction is to be allocated, and the Parish Council 
continues to regard the projection as unjustifiably optimistic.

M11 Junction 8

The additional information has been studied carefully. The Parish Council maintains the view 
expressed previously that the proposals do no more than tinker with the problem, and that 
the Airport should commit major investment to a visionary, robust long-term solution.

Cumulative developments

Annex 3B: ‘Noise Technical Note’ includes ‘Schedule A7.3/SCH2: List of proposed 
cumulative developments’. Item 11 relates to UTT/13/1790/OP, 165 homes on land south of 
Stansted Road, Elsenham, with the Status ‘Application not submitted’. The status is 
incorrect: construction at the site is nearing completion, with over 120 dwellings occupied at 
the time of writing. The Schedule is included twice within Annex 3B.

The schedule does not included UTT/15/3090, 20 dwellings north of Leigh Drive, Elsenham, 
construction of which is under way at the time of writing. There are also several small 
schemes in the village.

Non-residential Sensitive Receptors

It is noted that in Annex 3B: ‘Noise Technical Note’, Schedule A7/SCH1 does not include 
locations in Elsenham under any of the headings Schools, Healthcare, Places of Worship or 
Community Facilities.

Farnham Parish Council

Farnham Parish Council has not submitted a formal response to UDC.  However, we have 
been sent a copy of a letter they have sent to Andrew Cowan at London Stansted Airport 
relating to noise issues from both incoming and departing aircraft over Farnham Green.

Page 80Page 326



Felsted Parish Council

We understand that it is Uttlesford District Council’s (UDC) intent to consider this application 
at District level only. We are writing to express our concern and surprise at this decision and 
to call for UDC to seek a central government review of this application, and a national 
determination, through referral to the Secretary of State for the Department for Communities 
and Local Government (DCLG).

We are not against the principle of efficient use of runway capacity at Stansted, but we do 
want to ensure that the impact is managed and the interests and concerns of communities 
listened to, respected and acted upon. With Stansted’s noise complaints showing a 20 fold 
increase, and no action taken, there is little sign of this approach at present.

Call for UDC to seek a central government review and national determination.  Should 
receive appropriate scrutiny against national planning policy and targets for community 
impact, capacity planning and focus, in relation to the third runway at Heathrow, and 
consideration of nationally set targets for air pollution.  At current rate of expansion current 
cap will not be reached for many years.  Not against principle of efficient use of runway 
capacity at Stansted but want to ensure impact is managed and the interests and concerns 
of communities listened to, respected and acted upon.

Felsted Parish Council objects to this application and the way in which it is being handled by 
Uttlesford District Council (UDC).

We understand that it is UDC's intent to consider this application at District level only. We 
are writing to express our concern and surprise at this decision and to call for UDC to seek a 
central government review of this major infrastructure application, and so a national 
determination, through referral to the Secretary of State for the Department for Communities 
and Local Government (DCLG).

Our objections include:

1. UDC has a significant prejudicial pecuniary interest in this application and an ongoing 
prejudicial relationship with Stansted Airport and MAG. UDC must therefore absent 
itself from any role in the decision making process.

2. UDC has neither the experience nor expertise to handle such an application. The 
initial consultation period for this application was set at 6 weeks, including over a 
holiday period. This is little more time than would be given to consideration of a 
single loft extension.  The last public meeting being held by the airport was set for 
28th March. A deadline of 3rd April was set for comments, with Easter holiday in 
between. This gave one working day, leading up to a public holiday weekend, from 
the public event to closure of comments.  In addition, at the last minute, we were 
advised about a Parish Briefing session on 26th March.  Again, given the holiday 
weekend, where Councillors will be taking extended holidays, this would give just 3 
working days to take the content of the briefing back to Council, consider it against 
the thousands of pages of the application, compile our response, have it agreed at 
council level, and submit it.  Then, with less than 1 working day to closure of 
comments, UDC announced an extension to the deadline.  This is akin to being given 
4 minutes to run a mile and then, a few feet from the tape, someone stands in front of 
you and says that you have another 4 minutes. But you haven't, because you have 

Page 81Page 327



already done all the work to achieve the first deadline. Standing in front of the tape 
for another 4 minutes does nothing to help 'run the race'. UDC may now be able to 
claim a longer consultation, but the reality is a demonstration of process 
mismanagement, which only adds weight to the argument that UDC has neither the 
experience nor expertise to handle such a major application.

3. This application must receive appropriate scrutiny against national airspace planning 
policy, by those setting and balancing the policy with respect to other airports and 
reviewing targets for community noise impact, air pollution and UK capacity planning. 
This can only happen if it is considered at a national level.

4. A decision to approve the application would also have a significant impact on people 
outside of Uttlesford, supporting the need to have it considered at a national, rather 
than local, level.

5. There are hidden aspects to this application which are only now beginning to 
emerge. The most serious so far is that Stansted Airport Limited (STAL) are seeking 
to remove the restriction on their ability to lobby for more night flights. STAL are 
demonstrating that they cannot be trusted to submit a clear, honest, planning 
application. Only central government, with their knowledge of such major projects, 
and their setting of night flight quotas for all airports, has the expertise to review this 
application to the level of detail required.

6. When considering current passenger numbers of c.25million, the current approved 
passenger level of 35million, and the current expansion rate at Stansted, the 35 
million level will not be reached for many years. There is therefore no reason for this 
application to receive a 'fast track' local approval status, other than to prevent it 
receiving appropriate levels of national scrutiny.  Also, given the parlous state of the 
UDC Local Plan, it is surely wrong to place so much accelerated focus on this 
application when council and officer time could surely be better utilised.

7. The application itself is cynical in its desire to avoid national scrutiny. In 
foreshortening the forecast passenger total by a year the airport has ducked under 
the conditions at which national scrutiny would be mandatory. It is not enough for 
Stansted and UDC to simply state that national policy has been considered. This is 
against the spirit, if not the letter, of policy and is within UDC's gift to reject.

Felsted PC is not against the principle of efficient use of runway capacity at Stansted, but we 
do want to ensure that the resulting community impact is managed and that the interests and 
concerns of communities are listened to, respected and acted upon wherever possible. With 
Stansted's noise impact already increasing at a rate beyond that of all other airports, and no 
action taken, there is no sign of this approach at present.

In addition to our specific objections, there are additional aspects of the application which we 
call for review:

Noise impact:

Stansted is receiving a rapidly increasing number of noise complaints from residents 
impacted by changes made to flightpaths in 2016, which moved departing flights from the 
southbound Detling route onto the Clacton 04 and 22 routes.

- For example, complaints registered on the Stop Stansted Expansion (SSE) website 
for Clacton 04 are recorded as: 2011- 10, 2012- 8, 2013- 12, 2014- 16, 2015- 2, 

Page 82Page 328



2016- 375, 2017- 400). These numbers do not include complaints directly recorded 
with Stansted Airport and so are a significant understatement of complaints made, 
but they are indicative of the clear upwards trend since the 2016 flightpath changes. 
We are also aware of residents who have given up complaining, despite continued 
noise disturbance, particularly at night. Having received standard 'flight was within 
allowable parameters' responses and seeing no action taken, they see no point in 
complaining further. This does not mean that the noise disturbance has reduced, it 
has just been dismissed by the airport.

- Stansted airport has proved itself unwilling to work with the communities its activities 
impact.  They have done absolutely nothing to work with communities to alleviate the 
concerns following the Clacton flightpath changes, or to address the noise complaints 
received.

- This application then seeks to dismiss the importance of noise complaints received 
by the airport (ref Environmental Statement Volume 1 7-30 Complaints Collection 
7.118 ES Appendix 7.5 Complaints Analysis: Noise). In summary, it states:

"Complaints are a poor indicator of the degree of noise exposure experienced by 
people."

The application references a new Noise Action Plan, due in January 2019 but again 
does nothing to suggest its draft content or whether it will address the community 
impact from the 2016 flightpath changes.

- Emerging Government guidance (specifically CAP1498 and CAP1521) recognises 
that there is a significant noise impact up to 7000 ft. The application should therefore 
include noise analysis and areas of community impact at up to 7000ft. This new 
guidance has been issued since the increase to 35m passengers was approved. It 
should therefore generate a review of noise impact plans for the expansion of 
passenger numbers from the current ~26m total.

Road Congestion:

There needs to be a more robust review of traffic congestion, both as a result of increased 
passenger numbers and additional airport employees. This needs to be reviewed alongside 
the emerging local plans for nearby areas, including the proposals for the new house 
building proposals along the A120 and the combined impact of traffic from the 'West of 
Braintree' new town.

As a part of these plans for expansion the airport should be contributing significant amounts 
to the M11 and A120 improvements to reflect the congestion their expansion plans will bring 
to the area.

Airport manipulation of responses:

The way in which the airport are 'encouraging' its employees and those in its supply chain to 
flood the system with automatically generated template emails of support is indicative of a 
manipulative approach, designed to drown out the genuine concerns of communities. This 
must be addressed beyond a simple 'we know they are doing it' response.

In summary, this application, in its current form should be rejected:

Page 83Page 329



- The press release shouted loud and clear that there will be "no significant adverse 
environmental effects" from this application. This reflects the disregard the airport 
has for the concerns and worries of surrounding communities.

- It has been pushed thought with the timing of a loft conversion and with, at worst, a 
single working day between community events and the deadline for comments. The 
late extension did nothing other than demonstrate why this application must receive 
national consideration.

- It has been cynically modified to scrape below the level at which it would require 
national determination.

- It has buried clauses (e.g. opening the ability to lobby for more night flights) which 
would have a huge impact way beyond the increase in passenger numbers.

- STAL must work with communities to demonstrate their willingness and ability to deal 
with the noise impacts from the 2016 flightpath changes before they consider further 
expansion, which will undoubtedly result in more noise.

- UDC do not have the knowledge, expertise, nor the moral right to sufficiently analyse 
or determine this application. It must go to central government for national 
determination against the emerging nation plan for aviation and its associated 
environmental impact assessments and targets.

It is wrong, unconstitutional and irresponsible for this application to be considered in the 
proposed manner.  We call on UDC to carefully read the compelling case for Secretary of 
State call-in made in the letter from Stop Stansted Expansion of 19th March and to consider 
the arguments carefully. If UDC decline to refer this application on then we call for the 
Secretary of State for the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) to 
step in and 'call in' the application for national determination.

2nd response:

Having gone through the first stage of the application, where a 6 week timescale was set 
and then extended hours before the deadline, we would have expected officers to realise 
that setting a 4 week period to review a further 900 page document would be insufficient.

August is a peak holiday period, and harvest time in this rural area. Availability of Councillors 
throughout August is thus severely limited. We have also had the Uttlesford Local Plan 
regulation 19 documents to review. We will not therefore be able to give the Stansted 
application documents the time they need for due consideration before the deadline.

We also call on UDC to appoint its own experts to analyse the noise pollution impact data for 
this planning application.

The admission that the statement regarding 'quiet aircraft' replacing over 80% of the current 
fleet was wrong, and should actually be 50%, leads to the important question as to what 
other assumptions are wrong and what the implications might be on the subsequent noise 
and pollution analysis. The conflict of interest, real or perceived, in allowing experts paid, 
and regularly retained, by the airport to effectively offer expert opinion to UDC is clear and 
must be removed from the process. UDC must appoint its own independent experts to 
review the data and the, frankly ludicrous, conclusion that, in the words of the airport, there 
will be "no significant adverse environmental effects" from an increase to 43 million 
passengers.

Page 84Page 330



An independent review also needs to be held into the airports attempts to subvert and drown 
out any genuine public debate. In providing a one click email link to all employees, whereby 
they could send an automatically generated response in support of the application, the 
airport has clearly attempted to unduly influence the planning consultation process.

The fact that fewer than 5% of employees actually clicked on the link demonstrates a lack of 
support for expansion from within the airport. Despite this, the airport has issued press 
releases claiming that this 5% employee support amounts to overwhelming public approval 
for their expansion plans. This is wrong and sinister in its attempts to manipulate public 
perception and force UDC's decision making.

UDC must stand up for the communities it represents and recognise the cynical approach 
being made by the airport and Manchester Airport Group in their approach to this expansion 
and their total lack of genuine interest in the impact the airport has on local communities.

This is illustrated perfectly by the airport's lack of any engagement with local communities 
impacted by the flightpath changes made in 2016, which doubled the flights on Clacton 
routes. 

They have not made a single suggestion or proposal for noise mitigation for the communities 
suffering from increased noise levels. They should not be allowed to further expand with 
such issues still unresolved.

Please therefore confirm that UDC will be appointing independent experts to assess the raw 
noise data and the resulting assumptions and conclusions made in the application, and that 
UDC will undertake a review of the attempt by the airport to manipulate the public 
consultation process.

When this is complete a more reasonable timescale needs to be set for public consultation 
of the full application and associated independent analysis.

Great Bardfield Parish Council

The Airport is not up to its currently permitted capacity, so we see no reason for it to be 
applying, at this point in time, to an increase. We also feel it is entirely inappropriate that a 
local district Council be responsible for determining this application, when aircraft numbers 
and capacity should be determined at central government level, and in line with agreed 
aircraft transport policies. We are concerned that such a major increase in airport capacity 
may be determined without sufficient consideration and due diligence, particularly as the 
timescale for consultation has been curtailed. This limits the capability of local groups and 
councils to discuss the wide implications of the plans and to make informed comments.

The proposed expansion will create a significant increase in transport movements. Currently 
the access to the airport is congested, with queues trying to enter the airport at peak times. 
The junction to the M11 is not able to cope well with the current level of road transport 
usage. Stansted Airport claim that 53% of airport users utilise public transport but as a local 
community to the north-east of the Airport, there is no access to the Airport by public 
transport, meaning passengers and employees of the Airport can only arrive by car or 
increasingly expensive taxis. We feel that Stansted Airport should take more responsibility 

Page 85Page 331



for enabling all users to access the Airport by public transport by subsidising and increasing 
local bus services.

An increase in airport movements will inevitably mean an increase in overflying of 
communities in proximity to the airport. We expect Stansted Airport to provide assurances 
that they will protect village environments from overflying. 

Pollution levels for air and water quality, and noise will be adversely impacted by an increase 
in flight and ground transport movements. There seem to be no proposals to mitigate or 
prevent the wider impact of increasing aircraft and passenger movements.

We also object to Stansted Airport's seeking to overturn legal conditions preventing it from 
lobbying Central Government for more night flights.

Great Canfield Parish Council

Great Canfield Parish Council objects to the application to increase passenger numbers at 
Stansted Airport for the following reasons:

IMPACT ON HIGHWAY NETWORK:  in particular M11 Junction 8 and A120.  

Various evidence from independent highway consultants has been submitted to Uttlesford 
District Council by Parish Councils in response to the Local Plan and recent planning 
applications. These have highlighted the issues with congestion on the A120 and M11 J8. Of 
note are the reports from, 

a. Walker Engineering in response to the Little Easton proposals 
b. Railton Consultants who carried out a study of the local road network on behalf of 

Takeley Parish Council in 2016 as part of Uttlesford Strategic land assessment. 
c. Railton Consultants report of behalf of Takeley and Great Canfield Parish Councils in 

response to application UTT/18/0318/OP.

Evidence from local Parish Councils and residents confirm that M11 Junction 8 is already 
stretched to capacity and often gridlocked at peak times. Given half of Stansted’s 
passengers currently use cars to access the airport any proposal to increase passenger 
numbers (66% increase based on 2017 passenger numbers) will see an increase in vehicle 
traffic that could not be accommodated without significant highway improvements. 
Consideration must also be given to the Draft Uttlesford Local Plan and other Local Plans 
from neighbouring councils, all of whom are required to provide thousands of new homes 
whose occupants will have an impact on the same highway and rail networks as this 
Stansted application.

Whilst it is noted some highway improvements are proposed in the Transport Assessment, 
there is no cohesive plan that considers the overall impact of the Local Plan proposals and 
the proposed expansion at Stansted Airport. Great Canfield Parish Council whose narrow 
protected village lanes are used as rat runs and cut troughs to avoid current congestion on 
the A120 and M11 ask that a full assessment of the combined (Stansted and Local Plans) 
highway infrastructure plan is provided before a decision is made on this application.

AIRPORT WAITING:  Whilst currently Great Canfield has no ‘estates’ where airport users 
can leave their cars to avoid high parking charges, the laybys in the village and on the 

Page 86Page 332



approaches to the airport are used by waiting cars, resulting in inconsiderate drivers leaving 
their litter for others to clear up. This Parish Council asks that consideration is given to 
providing appropriate waiting facilities and affordable parking schemes at the airport to 
ensure airport users do not abuse the goodwill of local residents.

NATIONAL DECISION:  Great Canfield Parish Council asks that this application is decided 
at national level rather than by Uttlesford District Council. Airport infrastructure as well as 
motorway and rail networks are national concerns for which Uttlesford has no authority. 
Planning applications for such matters must be discussed at a national level by those with 
the appropriate expertise and wider national oversight. There is little confidence in the local 
community that Uttlesford has the expertise to determine such applications whose 
implications go way beyond its area of authority and that it will be impartial and give fair 
consideration to the views of its residents.

Great Chesterford Parish Council

Great Chesterford Parish Council strongly objects to this application due to the inadequate 
transport infrastructure and additional noise and air pollution that would be generated by this 
proposal.

Great Dunmow Town Council

We consider that the scale of this application, with potentially significant impacts on our 
community and our infrastructure is of national importance we ask that the application is 
immediately referred to the Secretary of State, for national determination.

Should the application be determined locally, the deadline of 3rd April allows insufficient time 
for the local councils and the community to give a meaningful response on the impacts 
contained in the Environmental Statement. We request an extension to the consultation 
period to 31st May 2018.

The Town Council has employed specialist consultants to help us understand the impact of a 
new town of 10,000 homes on the edge of our town, as outlined in UDC’s Draft Local Plan. 
The new settlement would be situated on the edge of the airport Countryside Protection 
Zone and would have access onto the A120 trunk road between Great Dunmow and 
Stansted Airport. There is also an option for a direct road access to be created between the 
new settlement (Easton Park) and the airport.

We have asked our transport consultant at Walker Engineering, if it is possible to assess the 
impact on the M11 J8, A120 and our local road network from the airport expansion plans and 
on the cumulative transport impact of housing development at Easton Park. He has advised 
us that the transport information provided in the Environmental Statement is too simplistic in 
how it deals with the projected growth in background traffic for this major planning 
application. He says that it should have been based on a proper traffic model and this should 
have been commissioned by MAG. We have asked our consultant to detail his reasons in a 
letter and we will send this to you in due course.

As the application is seen to be deficient in traffic terms, we request that an appropriate 
transport model is provided so that we can understand the true impact on the local road 
network. Without this evidence, we cannot know the extent of required road improvements 
and that the costs will be met by MAG, nor can UDC clearly identify works required to J8, 

Page 87Page 333



A120 and the local road network in order to set out planning conditions for the costs to be 
fully met.

Great Easton & Tilty Parish Council

Current cap not expected to be reached until 2023.  Government currently consulting on new 
aviation strategy for UK so application premature.  Fail to understand how MAG can 
substantiate the claim of “no adverse environmental effects”.

Great Hallingbury Parish Council

Should be determined at national level.  Increase in passengers and flights will make it 
impossible to live in many properties within the village as there would be no respite from 
noise, vibration and air pollution.  Existing issues relating to traffic congestion, rat runs roads 
in poor state of repair, fly parking, litter, poor public transport and poor air quality, need to be 
addressed first.  Noise, vibration and night flights have major impacts.  Despite assurances 
that QC/2 aircraft would be phased out it is noted that Ukrainian operators have opened their 
base for the Antonov An-225 Mriya, the largest plane in the world reportedly.  Absurd to 
claim “no significant adverse environmental effects”.  Concern night flight period will be 
abused – how is it monitored?  Needs to be transparency for compensation measures 
moving forward.  Freight should not be increased at night.

Great Munden Parish Council

We most strongly object to this proposal on the following grounds:

• The proposal is extremely premature bearing in mind that the desired capacity 
increase will not be required for decades to come and the current capacity limit will 
not be reached for some years

• In the event that increased capacity should be required there will be sufficient time to 
apply within the normal application consideration time frame and achieve the 
necessary construction.

• We cannot see why this application has to be submitted now, prior to publication of 
the Government's aviation strategy proposals which may affect the requirements.

• The statement from the District Council recognises the detrimental effect of this 
proposal on the local environment in its statement of the reason for advertising.

• The transport infrastructure from the west of the airport will not support the increased 
traffic caused by the increase in capacity proposed.

• At the very least the A120 bypass from the A10 to Bishops Stortford needs to be in 
place.

• We are concerned that the rationale behind this application is to attempt to ease the 
acceptance of a second runway proposal in the future on the grounds that the 
internal infrastructure is already in place.

• The fact that the Council has accepted a payment from MAG to process the proposal 
and that this is the subject of an agreement not publicly disclosed is a matter of 
concern and will do nothing for the public perception of the integrity of the planning 
process as a whole.

Further undermining the latter is the apparent restriction of the consultation period below the 
norm for applications of this magnitude.

Page 88Page 334



We would ask you to reconsider the length of the consultation period and take steps to re-
assure those that will be affected by this proposal that the Council will be entirely 
independent of undue influence from the applicants.

The Council must be aware that residents in the locality and further afield are almost without 
exception opposed to this proposal, the only support emanating from commercial interests.

2nd response:

The current proposed expansion is not justified to support the existing target for passenger 
numbers.  Further, road and rail infrastructure as it stands will not support such an increase, 
let alone a further expansion.

What is even more concerning is the suggested modification to SP11, the airports policy to 
allow virtually uncontrolled future development.  We regard this as a derogation of the duty 
of the council to protect the environment within which their residents and surrounding 
populations live.

Full and proper planning procedures must be completed in every instance.  The reputation 
and trust of your council and local government in general will be severely impacted if MAG 
are given licence to develop in the absence of proper scrutiny at every stage, particularly in 
the light of SSE's disclosure concerning behind closed doors meetings and agreed 
payments.

Great Saling Parish Council

Totally inappropriate to consider application at District level.  Should be referred to SoS.  No 
reason why this application should be rushed through review.  Seen an enormous increase 
in aircraft noise over last year or so.  Should not be subjected to even more noise and 
disturbance without national public debate.

Great Waltham Parish Council

This item was discussed on Monday night by Great Waltham Parish Council and we would 
like to make the following comments:

Deplore the manipulation of the planning process by

• Applying for 43 million passengers – just below the threshold which would trigger the 
calling in of the application by the government

• Paying £117,000 to UDC to facilitate a speedy consideration of this application.
• Application being submitted before the government publish their long awaited 

strategy
• The application is unnecessary -  Stansted has a cap of 35 mil.  Stansted has a 

through put of 23 mil at the moment
• The through put will not reach its capacity for 5-15 years depending on whose figures 

you believe.
• Environmental Concerns:  Already the surrounding Parishes are suffering from noise 

pollution. This is being highlighted on an ad hoc basis to the airport authority.
• The proposed increase in passengers will cause significant pollution and congestion. 

Page 89Page 335



Hatfield Broad Oak Parish Council

Hatfield Broad Oak Parish Council strongly opposes the above application for the further 
expansion of Stansted Airport for the following reasons: -

• The proposed increase in number of passengers is to a level which is not warranted 
at the present time 

• The proposal of a unified cap to aircraft movements will allow 10,000 extra cargo 
aircraft movements

• The accompanying increase to night flights and use of heavier aircraft will lead to 
more noise adversely affecting residents of overflown areas

• The concomitant increase in CO2 emissions and impact on air quality
• The decision to fast track the application by UDC having received payment by MAG.
• The detrimental impact on local communities including Hatfield Broad Oak parish
• The present inadequate road and rail infrastructure to support the increase in 

passenger and HGV traffic.
• The removal of the present restriction preventing Stansted Airport lobbying the 

Government for more night flights which are the most detrimental to local 
communities

Stansted Airport Limited (STAL) is asking for an increase in annual passenger numbers to 
43mppa as against the present cap of 35 million passengers per annum (mppa), and the 
2017 actual baseline figure of 25.9 mppa - an increase of 66%. STAL do not expect to reach 
the present cap until 2023 (DfT forecast is for 2033). The application should be considered 
against the current 2017 figure of 25.9 mppa which should be the baseline and it is then 
obvious that STAL is seeking an increase of at least +16mppa rather than the 8mppa that 
takes the application under the threshold for national scrutiny as a Nationally Significant 
Infrastructure Project (NSIP).

At present there is an aircraft movements cap of 274,000 per annum (ATMpa) divided 
between passenger air transport movements and cargo air transport movements. A unified 
cap would have the effect of allowing 10,000 extra cargo aircraft movements per annum and 
the further development of Stansted as a major air cargo facility with consequent increase in 
the numbers of night flights and the use of heavier aircraft. These night flights impact heavily 
on residents of the Hatfield Broad Oak area; noise levels and frequency of flights have 
already been increased by the NATS move of the Dover route onto the Clacton Route 
resulting in more people being intensively overflown than removed from the previous flight 
paths and a nine-fold increase in the number of complaints. The recommended height of 
aircraft remains at 4000 feet over Hatfield Broad Oak in the Noise Protection Swathe, not 
7000 feet. Whilst we are told that aircraft are and will be quieter there is no perceivable effect 
at ground level especially in rural areas with lower ambient noise levels. This has not been 
assessed.  STAL would have us believe that “no significant adverse environmental effects 
are predicted” but a 44 percent increase in the number of flights and a 66 percent increase in 
the number of passengers must mean an increase in air and noise pollution and traffic 
congestion.  Presumably why there is no significant interest shown in mitigating measures.  
This application has not only wide-ranging damaging local and regional effects but also 
major national implications in terms of national aviation policy including targets on CO2 
emissions, aircraft noise levels, night flights, increased long haul flights and adverse impact 
of local communities. The National Airports Policy Framework is due in 2019 and will include 

Page 90Page 336



a shift in emphasis onto better protection of local communities and their quality of life and 
health which has been ignored by STAL.

STAL has avoided the necessity for national scrutiny as a Nationally Significant 
Infrastructure Project by trimming the proposed annual passenger transport figures and 
foreshortening the forecast by a year with no reference to DfT forecasts.

Whilst we appreciate the increase in consultation time, UDC does not have the level of 
expertise necessary to decide on an application of this magnitude especially with such a 
self-imposed short deadline. There is no detail in the application of the effects on the local 
and regional areas of the increase in long haul flights, the expansion of cargo handling, 
increase in night flights (which have the most disturbing effects on residents and are the 
subject of the most complaints), the effect of additional traffic on the transport infrastructure, 
with resulting deterioration in air quality and noise pollution.  The Regulation 18 Local Plan 
will not be finalised until 2019 but as it stands it does not address any of the local 
infrastructure issues raised such as education, housing, economy, medical and emergency 
services, and especially traffic congestion and public transport.

HBO PC is particularly concerned by present traffic congestion in and around the village. 
The B183 Harlow/Hatfield Heath/ HBO/ Takeley is used as a cut through to Stansted Airport 
by local and commuter traffic, airport taxis and HGV vehicles in order to avoid the M11 
Junction 8 and A120.  Although a PR2 route, it is narrow, winding and totally unsuited to 
large volumes of traffic. On an average weekday upwards of 6000 vehicle journeys (2% 
HGVs) have been recorded entering and exiting the B183 at the Takeley traffic lights. This 
volume of traffic through the village on a medieval street plan narrowed by pavement and 
street parking is rapidly becoming intolerable and at school times there can be gridlock, 
resulting in diesel fumes, short tempers and real danger to pedestrians. The B183 and 
country lanes joining it cannot take any extra traffic especially taxis, buses and HGVs which 
the proposed increase in passenger numbers and freight aircraft movements must entail. 

HBO PC is disappointed to see a ‘hidden’ proposal within the 2,930 page application tucked 
away in Appendix D of the Planning Statement page 111 - ‘Air Noise’ to increase night 
flights. Whilst there is nothing in the application specifically seeking an increase in numbers 
of night flights, the removal of the ban on MAG lobbying the Government for any relaxation 
of night flight restrictions opens the way for an increase in the permitted number night flights. 
Night flights cause the most sleep disturbance and adverse impact on the quality of life and 
well-being of residents overflown.

The increase will include greater numbers of long haul and cargo aircraft which are larger 
and noisier than most aircraft using Stansted Airport at the moment - a recipe for noise 
nightmare to the residents in the areas overflown.  At present the hours for night flights at 
Stansted is 11.30pm to 6.00am this should be shortened to 11.00pm to 7.00am - ‘night’ as 
defined by the World Health Organisation (WHO)'s Guidelines on Community Noise.  
Stansted Airport already has twice as many night flights as Heathrow and we note that night 
flights at Heathrow are to be banned completely within the next 10 years as a condition of 
expansion.  These effects will be felt over a much larger area than that covered by UDC - 
affecting the East and South Eastern Regions and involving issues of national aviation 
policy. This application should properly be decided at national level by the Secretary of State 
for Housing, Communities and Local Government as a NSIP.

Page 91Page 337



Hatfield Heath Parish Council

Hatfield Heath Parish Council strongly oppose this application for the further expansion of 
Stansted Airport.  We are already severely affected by aircraft noise and this was heightened 
by the move of the Dover Route onto the Clacton Route. The supposed measures to be 
taken to lessen aircraft noise over our village have failed. Planes flying on the route RNP1 
still generate noise over the village, still fly over the village at heights sometimes below 3000 
feet and there remains the problem of night flights including planes on the Detling Route 
coming right over the village.

There is already permission for the growth of Stansted Airport, which was given on the basis 
of BAA's G1 application forecast until 2030. If this application is for an increase in these 
figures then it must be made clear why the increase is needed and be based on current 
passenger numbers and total aircraft movements. We cannot understand why this 
application is being rushed through and believe there has been a lack of transparency.

There are many issues that relate to Central Government and so it would appear that this 
application is trying to avoid any Government decisions on CO2 emissions, air quality, 
airport policy in the South East, aircraft noise at night, the policy for night flights in the South 
East with the possible banning of night flights from Heathrow airport, aircraft noise levels and 
heights.

Measures to mitigate noise impacts are to be included in the National Airports Policy 
Review. The revised Aviation Policy framework is due in 2019 and it is very interesting that it 
will recommend tighter controls to better protect communities and their quality of life. If the 
height of planes over our village was 7000 feet rather than the 4000 feet recommended at 
present this would have a tremendous benefit to us. The shift of emphasis onto the 
protection of local communities is in contrast to this application and the actions of UDC.

Residents affected by this application have not been directly informed. Our village has not 
been notified officially. Responses to the application are under a strict timetable and 
whereas UDC has employed consultants to deal with the application, residents must 
consider the 2930 pages on-line or purchase the documents for a considerable sum. If the 
response form on the planning department web site is used then it is time limited, has no 
save and return facility and the site can crash thus losing all of a response.

The UDC's Local Plan is still not finalized and does not consider the impact of this 
application in terms of extra housing, air pollution, traffic movements, schooling and medical 
services. There is full employment in this area so the creation of 5000 extra jobs will 
necessitate further house building.

We as Parish Council are very strongly opposed to this application. While we appreciate the 
time extension now agreed we do wonder how residents are to be informed of the additional 
time for response.

We fail to see how all the effects of additional traffic, both road and rail, has been assessed 
as to its' impact on local communities; that statements saying planes will be quieter are 
believed when there will be no effect on sound intensity on the ground. The impact of long 
haul flights being developed at this airport and expanded with this application has not been 

Page 92Page 338



detailed nor has the potential to increase the number of night flights. The whole issue of air 
quality and the quality of life in local communities should have been a high priority.

Helions Bumpstead Parish Council

Helions Bumpstead Parish Council Objects to the proposed increase in passenger numbers 
at Stansted airport because of the increase in the number of stacking aircraft it would entail 
in the Abbott stack over Helions Bumpstead. This would result in worsening of the chemical, 
particulate, microwave and noise pollution which degrades the local environment 
engendering anxiety, a threat to health and loss of amenity for the residents. Our detailed 
and referenced explanation of this objection is contained in the attached file. 

We also object to the increase in the terrestrial traffic due to the additional Stansted staff 
commuting from housing in inexpensive areas such as Haverhill through minor rural lanes to 
Stansted. These are direct routes, though inadequate for fast through traffic and are already 
used excessively by Stansted staff. An increase in staff numbers would exacerbate the 
danger and disruption, as would an increase in passenger numbers using the same routes.

My Council objects furthermore to the accelerated timetable for the public consultation of this 
proposal which gives insufficient time for proper public consideration of the substantial 
documentation. The proposal would degrade the wellbeing and lifestyle of hundreds of 
thousands of people and affect millions – including those additional millions who are 
projected to use the airport. The timescale proposed by Uttlesford District Council for public 
consultation is wholly inadequate equitably to assess the plan and weigh its repercussions 
on the various public interests.

2nd response:

An increase in passenger numbers through Stansted airport would increase aircraft 
movements at the busier, more popular times rather than in slack periods, resulting in a 
disproportionate increase in aircraft stacking while they wait for a landing slot. The need to 
stack aircraft defines an airport operating beyond its capacity and Stansted already stacks a 
large number of aircraft despite not yet having reached its current passenger limit. Like an 
oversubscribed car park, when you see circulating cars looking for spaces, then you know it 
is full. Circular aircraft stacking and linear stacking cause extensive air pollution of a type 
linked to the two most common causes of death, it is an unnecessary contributor to global 
warming, causes noise nuisance to householders over a wide area, and should be reduced 
and eventually, entirely eliminated. For these reasons, any increase in permitted passenger 
numbers at Stansted would be highly detrimental and the application should be refused.

Peak Stacking Disruption

The number of aircraft movements per hour at Stansted is not uniform; they are 
concentrated around the times that the majority of airlines wish to leave or return to the 
airport. These peaks in activity occur predominantly in the summer months early in the 
morning, around midday, in the evening and on into the night, especially for short haul 
flights. For example, a flight to El Prat – Barcelona from Stansted takes 2 hours 16 minutes, 
so an early morning flight is back at lunchtime for a similar destination in the afternoon.

Page 93Page 339



This maximises the use of aeroplanes which are expensive capital assets, but the 
concentration of movements at these specific times causes congestion on the runway so 
that aircraft stack in the air while they wait for a landing slot amongst other arrivals and 
departing flights. The school holidays represent the apogee of stacking, particularly near 
week ends and unfortunately that is when many home owners are at home hoping to enjoy 
the peace and quiet of their own homes and when they would like to be outside or at least to 
have windows open.

Stacking is Universally Unpopular

Pilots and airlines dislike stacking as it prolongs their flight time and the low altitude 
increases fuel consumption and increases the probability of collision with birds, errant 
drones or other stacking aircraft and their wake turbulence. Passengers dislike the wasted 
time – a flight from Stansted to Edinburgh takes 30% longer than it used to and nervous 
passengers become apprehensive at the frequent changes in direction and attitude. The 
general public is slowly poisoned by the pointless emission of particulate and chemical 
pollutants and environmentalists abhor the needless release of carbon dioxide which causes 
climate change. Those living in Helions Bumpstead, under the turning point of the stacking 
pattern, are subjected to noise and pollution from stacking aircraft - continuously on many 
summer days. Even the airport owner dislikes stacking despite the extra revenue that it 
enables, as it is a major source of complaints from all of these groups.

Stacking Causes Dangerous Pollution

Pollutants and particulate matter from terrestrial, diesel vehicles are largely contained within 
the busy streets where they are generated. Much of the chemical pollution is absorbed by 
the accompanying micro-particulates and these are in turn captured electrostatically by the 
ground, buildings, trees, hedges and the cars themselves. This is the cause of the oily black 
dirt on the back of old diesel cars. Pollution levels, consequently, reduce sharply away from 
the roadway.

Aircraft release similar pollutants to old diesel cars because they are burning a similar fossil 
fuel, but there are no inanimate objects to adsorb them and no possibility of filters to remove 
them. The downdraft (Appendix 1) caused by each aircraft flying at low altitude over the 
same route ensures that these pollutants are mixed with surface air and are breathed in 
directly by the humans beneath without any of the attenuating factors that apply to vehicle 
pollution.

Aircraft engines produce larger quantities of nitrogen oxides and PM2.5 particulates than 
diesel engines due to their higher combustion temperature and stacking consequently 
provides a pervasive source of these pollutants. Nitrogen oxides and PM2.5 particles are 
absorbed into the bloodstream via the lungs and recent epidemiological studies1 have 
shown that they cause cumulative damage to the heart on a dose and time related basis. 
Heart disease is the second biggest killer in Britain and there may be no safe pollution level.

Dementia has recently overtaken heart disease as the largest killer in Britain and very recent 
work2 has shown that heated metallic surfaces such as those in engines, release magnetite 
Nano spheres which enter the brain via the olfactory bulb and destroy brain cells by 
oxidative catalysis, causing dementia. Again, no lower limit to the danger from this 
particulate toxin has yet been defined.

Page 94Page 340



Conclusion

Helions Bumpstead is 15 miles from Stansted and there is no justification for aircraft to stray 
so far from the airport. The final straight line approach can be made from within 5 miles of 
the runway and indeed, departing flights set a course for their destination within that 
distance. Any deviation from a direct route to a point 5 miles from the arrival runway is 
stacking and should be eliminated.

As I type, the lightest zephyr through the open windows attenuates the heat and the stacking 
aeroplane which woke me at 3.20 am on August 7th turns back towards Stansted and 
descends followed by another slightly quieter plane, the flash of its wing tip lights reflecting 
palely from the darkened bedroom walls.

We have exemplified some of the more recently revealed dangers to the general public of 
pollution associated with aircraft and diesel smoke, but all of the well-known dangers of this 
pollution to children, the elderly, asthmatics and those with pulmonary disease apply, 
together with secondary effects such as the catalytic generation of dangerous ozone 
concentrations by nitrogen oxides and sunlight and loss of sleep.

Delaying aircraft landings either for convenience or through operational inefficiency belongs 
to a past era in aviation. The civil aviation industry should not employ its political power to 
obscure its responsibility towards climate change, pollution and its terrestrial neighbours and 
no increase in passenger numbers at Stansted should be allowed until stacking has been 
eliminated.

(Appendix 1:  The power of an aircraft’s downdraft or wake turbulence and its ability to mix 
air masses at different altitudes can be visualised by the following report:

7 January 2017 – a private Bombardier Challenger 604 rolled three times in mid-air and 
dropped 10,000 feet after encountering wake turbulence when it passed 1,000 feet under an 
Airbus A380 over the Arabian Sea. Several passengers were injured, one seriously. Due to 
the G-forces experienced, the plane was damaged beyond repair and was consequently 
written off. https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Wake_turbulence

Wake turbulence is enhanced by the denser air at low altitude and by flying at low speed 
when the aircraft has a higher angle of attack. Stacking, consequently, maximises wake 
turbulence and the mixing of low altitude air with surface air and this effect is further 
enhanced by multiple aircraft flying over the same route.)

Hempstead Parish Council

This application will clearly result in an increase in the number of aircraft using STN and 
also, if the intentions of airport management are achieved, an increase in the average size of 
aircraft using the airport. This will result in significantly more noise for those living on the 
departure and approach paths. Also, more generally, this will increase local and regional 
road congestion, and, if the employment projections by MAG are achieved, increased 
pressure in housing supply, with consequent pressure on natural resources including water 
supplies. No mitigation of these pressures has been proposed. The planning authority 
should require mitigation measures if the application is approved.

Page 95Page 341



In relation to aircraft noise, while there are established departure routes and profiles to seek 
to minimise the impact of aircraft noise, there are no such arrival routes/procedures. As a 
condition of allowing this application the planning authority should require the airport to work 
with NATS to implement, prior to completion of the works under the application, standard 
approach procedures to ensure that aircraft are established on final approach at a minimum 
height of 4000 ft AMSL.  This will serve to minimise the impact of the increase in noise which 
arises when aircraft apply power when turning on final approach from base leg. A similar 
measure is in place at London Heathrow to minimise noise disturbance over London.

Henham Parish Council

Application premature.  Not expected to meet current cap until 2023, government forecast 
suggests 2033.  Should be considered as an NSIP by the government.  Difficult to believe 
that Planning Committee has expertise to deal with application of this complexity.  A 44% 
increase in flights and 66% increase in passengers would mean more noise, pollution and 
traffic on already congested roads.

High Easter Parish Council

High Easter Parish Council OBJECTS to the application to enable combined airfield 
operations of 274,000 aircraft movements and a throughput of 43 million terminal 
passengers, in a 12-month calendar period. Its reasons for objection to planning application 
UTT/18/0460/FUL are as follows:

EFFECTIVE CONSULTATION:  This Parish Council is not against carefully considered 
economic development in the region which takes appropriate account of the impact on the 
local communities affected by such development; it is however strongly opposed to any such 
decisions which are made without due consideration and regard for the opinions of local 
residents.  In recent years High Easter Parish Council and its residents feel severely let 
down by the decision makers following changes to departure routes at Stansted introduced 
in February 2016 and the introduction of Performance Based Navigation. Both have had 
adverse impacts on the once tranquil village of High Easter. Despite representations from 
this Parish Council, its residents and others asking for its views to be considered, nothing 
has been done by Stansted Airport or the local and national authorities to effectively engage 
with the community to try and alleviate or mitigate the impact, and the community continues 
to feel severely let down by all parties involved especially those whose only interest appears 
to be commercial gain.

SIGNIFICANCE OF THE APPLICATION AND NEED FOR THE DECISION AT NATIONAL 
LEVEL:  The decision should be made at National Level by the Secretary of State for 
Communities and Local Government and not by the Planning Committee of Uttlesford 
District Council.

1. This application’s wider significance is evidenced by the hundreds of comments, in 
some cases identical, submitted in response to this application from individuals who 
live far beyond the Uttlesford borders and other local authorities, public and 
commercial bodies with national interests. It is clearly not a local issue.

2. Increasing passenger numbers at Stansted and the associated infrastructure to allow 
additional aircraft in national airspace is a key part of the future of airspace growth in 
the UK. As such, the application must be ‘fitted’ into the wider UK strategy and not be 

Page 96Page 342



determined in isolation at District Council level in the year the Government is due to 
issue its new aviation strategy for UK airspace; communities are sceptical that this is 
a fast track application designed to allow Stansted to avoid national scrutiny. If it is 
not, and given the government targets for reaching current passenger numbers at 
Stansted is 2033, then there should be no issue with the application being 
determined in a timely manner at national level and the public being satisfied with the 
process.

3. A consultation on the Post Implementation Review (PIR) on changes to the departure 
routes at Stansted Airport took place in the first half of 2017 and comments were 
invited from the local communities. The results of the Post Implementation Review 
were initially due in September 2017; this was then delayed once, twice, and now 
three times with results not expected before June 2018, over a year after the 
consultation closed. The reason cited for the delay is ‘the CAA has discovered a 
technical issue which requires further investigation with the relevant change sponsor.’ 
Whilst the impact on local communities following changes to departure routes was 
significant, it was a straightforward change moving aircraft from one approved route 
to another and yet the CAA requires months to properly consider the technical detail. 
What confidence can local residents have in the knowledge and technical ability of 
Uttlesford District Council (UDC) to determine such a complex 2,930-page 
application quickly? National expertise is essential in ensuring the decision and 
conditions are in the best interests of all parties.

4. As a result of the delay in the publication of the PIR referred to in point 3 above, there 
are no conclusions to the changes in Stansted departure routes introduced in 2016. 
The impact of the changes was significant to residents of High Easter and this 
application seeks to send more traffic down these same routes. This latest 
application is premature and should not be decided until the results of the PIR are 
known in order that any recommendations and outcomes can be reflected in the 
application.

5. This Parish Council is of the opinion UDC has both a prejudicial pecuniary interest in 
this application as well as an ongoing prejudicial relationship with Stansted Airport. 
How can it be appropriate for UDC to be the decision maker for this application?

6. This application seeks not only an increase in passenger numbers but also 
development of the airport site to provide additional infrastructure, i.e. taxiways and 
stands to enable 274,000 flight movements for which it already has approval. This 
Parish Council is of the view the infrastructure work could be approved to increase 
the efficiency of the airport without the approval of the increase in passenger 
numbers. The later could then be considered in a more time appropriate manner 
given targets are not expected to reach capacity for many years.

NOISE

1. Recent Government guidance has sought to provide a definition of ‘overflight’ to 
ensure consistency between all parties. Its emerging guidance CAP1498 defines 
‘overflight’ as ‘An aircraft in flight passing an observer at an elevation angle that is 
greater than an agreed threshold and at an altitude below 7,000 ft’.  Aircraft 
overflying High Easter are generally at c.5,000ft and with very low ambient 
background noise the disturbance is significant. This Parish Council is of the view it is 
unacceptable for Stansted to ignore Government guidance and not adequately 

Page 97Page 343



consider noise impacts between 4,000ft and 7,000ft and requests that this 
information is provided.

2. ES Volume 4 Non-Technical Summary Part 1, confirms the impact of noise has been 
compared to ‘Do Minimum’ scenario. The ‘Do Minimum’ scenario was approved in 
2008 when overflying aircraft were not an issue in High Easter. Since 2008 a number 
of consultations have resulted in changes significantly increasing overflying aircraft, 
e.g. changes to departure routes. High Easter Parish Council requests that 
comparisons are made to pre and post 2016 changes to allow residents to 
understand the true impact of these changes for their own communities and not a 
general total overview.

3. This proposal does not take in account emerging government guidance in CAP1498 
which seeks to represent the views of the often smaller communities whose lives are 
blighted by aircraft noise beyond the historic standard contours.

Also through listening to stakeholders, we know that local communities situated 
outside the standard noise contours used for assessing airspace changes as well as 
the contour which marks the approximate onset of significant community annoyance, 
as given in paragraph 3.17 of the Aviation Policy Framework (APF)4, can also be 
adversely affected by passing aircraft. To represent people/communities affected in 
this way, we wish to propose a metric to quantify overflight both inside and outside of 
the standard noise contours. (CAP 1498, item 1.4).  The Parish Council requests that 
Stansted provides metrics to quantify the impact on High Easter which is outside the 
standard noise contours.

4. Since the changes in departure routes in 2016 noise complaints from High Easter via 
Stop Stansted website have increased, 2016 – 388, 2015 – 1, 2014 -2, 2013 – 0, 
2012 – 1, 2011 - 2. In its application Stansted chooses to state that ‘Complaints are a 
poor indicator of the degree of noise exposure experienced by people.’ (ES Volume 
1, 7.118). Whilst the Parish Council agrees that they are a poor indication as the 
majority of people do not complain via the official routes, had Stansted made any 
attempt to hold a public meeting in the village or held a community outreach session 
in High Easter, it would have collected plenty of data from residents who would have 
shared with them how the changes implemented and the resultant increase in aircraft 
noise has affected their lives. If complaints are deemed ‘a poor indicator’ Stansted 
must provide data to capture the views of the communities who are affected by its 
actions before a decision to increase the impact further is decided.

5. High Easter is a rural area with low ambient noise and the impact of any aircraft 
noise is magnified. This Parish Council does not support Leq contours alone as an 
adequate method of measuring aircraft noise. Such measures are based on 
averages and do not take account of the rural villages with low ambient background 
noise that surround Stansted Airport, or the regularity of overflying aircraft which 
provides no respite.

6. The Parish Council is concerned that Stansted yet again ignores its neighbours. Stop 
Stansted Expansion has highlighted to local communities the statement in Appendix 
D of the Planning Statement that sets out proposed conditions accompanying any 
approval. The Parish Council is alarmed to read that Stansted proposes to remove 
the present restriction which prevents Stansted Airport lobbying Government for 
more night flights; this is a blatant disregard of its neighbours. Night flights between 

Page 98Page 344



23.00hrs and 07.00hrs are a serious disturbance to this community, the early 
morning ‘rush hour’ over High Easter starts at 06.15am and aircraft fly overhead 
constantly every 2 minutes. If it was road traffic through the village action would be 
taken to prevent this or penalise road users, the same should apply to traffic in our 
skies. This Parish Council urges that should the decision be made to approve the 
application that this condition is NOT included within the approval.

7. The noise impact views in the application use a number of assumptions including, 
‘noise levels are expected to fall from the 2023 levels due to the higher percentage of 
operations by new generation, low noise aircraft.’ (ES Volume 1 chapter 7 point 
7.163). The Parish Council asks how Stansted will influence the use of quieter 
aircraft and what conditions can be put in place to ensure passenger numbers do not 
increase without this and other assumptions being complied with.

UTTLESFORD LOCAL PLAN

1. The emerging Uttlesford Local Plan Regulation 18 documents policy SP11 in relation 
to Stansted Airport. This application does not meet the criteria of SP11 and this is 
demonstrated in the arguments listed below. To approve this application would be to 
go against draft policy SP11 in particular that any development must include 
‘proposals which will over time result in a significant diminution and betterment of the 
effects of aircraft operations on the amenity of local residents’.

a. The recent change in flight routes (2016), and the results of a noise 
monitoring exercise by the airport at High Easter in the summer 2016 showed 
that the current noise levels (2016) were on the borderline of exceeding WHO 
allowable levels, although the consultant’s analysis argued that birdsong was 
a significant contributing factor to aircraft noise impact! How can more and 
larger aircraft demonstrate a ‘significant diminution’ for residents of High 
Easter.

b. The application appears not to request a change to the current number of 
flights, 274,000 permitted at Stansted, however does seek to change the 
current allocation between, passenger, cargo and general, (GA). The ES 
volume 1, table 8.8 confirms the intention is to reduce GA flights to 5,000 and 
increase passenger flights. (The 2016 baseline for GA is 14,500 increasing to 
20,000 in 2023 before the significant drop to 5,000; to note there is no 
information on how this will be achieved). GA aircraft are small in size and the 
ES volume 1 point 8.117 states that the reduction forecast in GA will affect the 
‘Northside noise levels’. Its statement in ES Volume 1 chapter 7 point 7.3 
confirms that this will result in a ’larger balance of passenger aircraft 
movements than currently permitted’. The Parish Council asks that a clear 
analysis of the increase in additional aircraft that will overfly High Easter is 
provided in this application.

c. Stansted’s press release when the application was launched and in multiple 
places in this application, e.g. in the Conclusion of the Planning Statement 
dated Feb 2018, Clause 9.3, Stansted state, ‘No significant adverse 
environmental effects from this application.’ This Parish Council strongly 
disagrees with this statement. Irrespective of the complex technical statistics 
and arguments, there is disbelief in the community that an Airport can 

Page 99Page 345



increase its airport capacity, silently! This shows its disregard for the 
communities that live under its flight paths and who are constantly disturbed 
by overflying aircraft.

d. This Parish Council insisted in its comments on the Scoping Report (Points 
2.10 to 2.14 of the Scoping Report response), regarding sensitivities, that the 
impact of maximum capacity of the single runway (in mppa and ATMs) be 
included, and the range of environmental impacts reported accordingly. What 
happens beyond 2028? This has not been included and therefore the 
maximum potential technical environmental impact (specifically on noise) is 
not defined.

e. Uttlesford are currently working on the Local Plan and to date no reports to 
confirm the impact on highways as a result of this have been provided to the 
local communities. It is inappropriate to make decisions to increase passenger 
numbers without a combined understanding of the highway impact from the 
Local Plan and Stansted expansion especially given the already congested 
main routes which result in traffic using narrow village lanes to navigate 
around congestion, further adding to the environmental impact for 
communities surrounding the airport.

MITIGATION:  In the regretful event that a decision is taken to approve this application, High 
Easter Parish Council insists that the approval comes with relevant conditions to alleviate the 
unacceptable noise levels over High Easter village. These must include alterations to the 
Performance Based Navigation flight path; respite; elimination of night flights and the use of 
quieter aircraft at a minimum. It would furthermore ask that these mitigations are not time 
limited as those from the 2008 application were and which have time expired before 
becoming applicable.

CONCLUSION:  High Easter Parish Council has not provided a ‘template’ to its residents to 
respond to this application as has clearly happened by Stansted. This approach has resulted 
in hundreds of identical email submissions in support of the application which have drowned 
out the true voices of those whose lives will be impacted by this decision. High Easter Parish 
Council re-states its objection to this application and its view that this application should not 
be decided by the District Council, however if it chooses to ignore this request, High Easter 
Parish Council urges its District Council and its elected members to listen to and consider 
appropriately the views of its residents in objecting to this application.

Ickleton Parish Council

Ickleton Parish Council objects to the application to increase permitted throughput at 
Stansted Airport (SA) to 43m passengers per annum (mppa) compared with the current 
35mppa annual limit. Last year SA achieved 25.9mppa.

1. The application appears to be premature since the owners of SA estimate they will 
not reach the present cap until 2023. The Government’s forecast, presumably more 
objective, is that that figure will be reached by 2033.

2. For such a complex application comprising 3000 pages of documents, the period 
allowed for consultation and comment is unreasonably short. The application details 
also appear to have been manipulated so that this is not a mandatory submission to 
central government, where it would receive proper scrutiny.

Page 100Page 346



3. Uttlesford District Council (UDC) seems determined to fast-track this application and 
indeed has entered into an agreement with the owners of SA to do this in exchange 
for a considerable sum of money in circumstances that have not been made fully 
public.

4. The issue of London airport capacity is currently under consideration by the 
Government, which also happens to be consulting on a new aviation strategy for the 
UK (hoping for publication by the end of the year). In such a situation, it seems 
proper for this application to be decided by the Secretary of State under the 
procedure for national significant infrastructure projects rather than by a local 
authority, particularly by one proceeding in the manner adopted by UDC. It is unlikely 
that UDC has the level of expertise required properly to handle an application of this 
complexity.

5. Ickleton Parish Council is very concerned about the statement in the application that 
there would be “no significant adverse environmental effects” if the application is 
approved. A 44% increase in flights, and a 66% increase in passengers, would 
clearly mean more noise, more pollution and a great deal more traffic on roads and 
other infrastructure such as rail that are struggling to cope with current levels. This is 
a large infrastructure project that will have a massive impact on communities in the 
locality of the airport, and a large impact over a much wider area.

Lindsell Parish Council

The parishioners at the meeting were almost unanimously against the application which they 
feel has been rushed through. They feel that the forecasts given by MAG have been 
exaggerated and that little real consideration has been given to the effects of noise and 
pollution on the surrounding area. Lindsell is a small village near the airport and already 
there is noise disturbance and severe problems with the A120 and M11 junction. All this will 
be made worse if the application is passed and if the proposals for more houses in the area 
are passed.

The meeting felt strongly that the application should be being considered by the Secretary of 
State not Uttlesford who obviously have a financial link with MAG.

Little Bardfield Parish Council

The Little Bardfield Parish Council wishes to place on record its objection to the proposed 
relaxation of UDC policy for the expansion of Stansted Airport. It supports SSE's position 
that the proposed changes to Policy SP11 in the latest (Regulation 19) version of the Draft 
Local Plan should be rejected.

Little Canfield Parish Council

Little Canfield Parish Council have no objections to the proposed developments set out in 
the current Planning Application. This is on the basis that all necessary infrastructure 
improvements and developments needed to service the increased number of passengers 
are implemented to an agreed timetable encapsulated in the Planning Approval. 
Infrastructure improvements would include for example, Northbound direct access between 
A120 and M11 and southbound access from M11 direct to A120, by-passing Junction 8, 
Parking Management in surrounding Villages and Traffic Management on local roads to 
improve quality of life for local residents.

Page 101Page 347



Little Easton Parish Council

Little Easton Parish Council wish to lodge a formal objection to the planning application by 
Stansted Airport Limited and urge Uttlesford District Council to refuse the application.

LEPC do not accept that there is any urgent need to grant permission at this point in time 
and that the current proposed timetable is rushing a decision through. The airport already 
has an existing permission to grow passenger numbers to 35 million per annum which was 
granted after a five month public enquiry in 2007. Manchester Airport Group’s own growth 
forecasts state that this limit will not be reached until 2023 and the Dft forecasts state that 
the limit will not be reached until 2033.

In addition to this, Uttlesford District Council is currently in the process of putting forward 
local plan housing proposals which will not be decided upon until 2019. There is also a new 
Airports National Policy Statement (ANPS) due in the summer of this year which will 
influence policy and planning for Stansted airport.

LEPC feel that any proposals to further expand passenger numbers and flights are 
premature and that there is therefore no need to rush through such a major planning 
decision which will have such a significant negative impact on the local area. UDC have a 
responsibility to wait until the details of any changes to government policy are published and 
the impacts understood before undertaking any decisions.

The proposals will have a significant detrimental impact upon the local area in general and 
specifically upon residents in Little Easton. How Manchester Airports Group can claim “… no 
significant adverse environmental effects are predicted as a consequence of the proposed 
development” is a cynical attempt to underplay the impacts of their plans and bypass the 
need for an open, transparent assessment of the impacts on the local community.

Community already significantly affected by noise from airport.  Further increases in flight 
numbers will compound this misery for local residents.  Will also significantly increase CO2 
emissions.  There is to be a government update by the end of this year which is due to make 
further recommendations on tackling CO2 emissions. It makes no sense to give permission 
for such an increase in flight numbers before any potential new policies are in place.

Local road and rail infrastructure already stretched and cannot cope with the increase.  
Airport application cannot be considered in isolation in terms of local infrastructure.  Needs 
to be considered alongside the three new Garden Community developments being put 
forward by UDC.

Should be considered as a Nationally Significant Infrastructure Project.

Little Hallingbury Parish Council

Little Hallingbury Parish Council think this application is a nationally significant infrastructure 
project under the Planning Act 2008 and should therefore be decided by the Secretary of 
State. It should not be left to a small group of planning officers of limited resources to come 
up against the might of a large corporation such as Manchester Airports Group (MAG) with 
rather large purses.

Page 102Page 348



MAG hasn’t proven any urgent need for the proposed increase to 43 mppa. Even by their 
own rather optimistic forecast they will not reach the present cap until 2023 (as against the 
DfT forecast 2033). There seems to be an unhealthy urgency to push this through before the 
Government Aviation Policy at the end of the year. What is not being widely publicised is that 
it’s not just a 10mppa increase, it’s almost double. The number of passengers currently (25.9 
million) using the airport.  Subsequently twice the number of airport related travellers on the 
roads and rail networks, both of which are stretched to the limit. Assuming that the same 
percentage of travellers use the car parks as currently do. That’s double the car parks and 
less green fields. More passengers – larger aircraft – more noise and pollution. The noise 
levels in the Hallingburys and we’re sure other local villages are already highly intrusive 
especially at night and is detrimental to our health and our quality of life.

MAG states that new aircraft will be up to 60% quieter but that equates to only approximately 
3 decibels, a difference not really detectable by the human ear.

2nd response:

Little Hallingbury Parish Council had no additional comments to this planning application.

Moreton, Bobbingworth & the Lavers Parish Council

Despite MAGs claim, the increase in throughput to 43million passengers per annum will 
undoubtedly bring an increase in the number of aircraft movements increasing both aircraft 
noise and traffic congestion along both local routes and major roads, including the M11 and 
A120. This will have a detrimental effect of the wellbeing of local residents.

• The Parish is already used as a rat run for passengers when the M11 and A120 are 
blocked. The granting of this application will exacerbate an already prevalent 
problem. This is identified by MAG within paragraph 6.114 of its Planning Statement 
that supports this application.

• The Parish Council has concerns over the increased flights, and the affect this will 
have on air quality for local residents. These concerns are also flagged by the 
suggestion that a new S106 agreement will be reached which seeks to amalgamate 
the two previous S106 agreements, however EXCLUDES the following:

 Consultation with the Primary Care Trust on the appropriateness of 
undertaking a study on effects on public health. 

 Take reasonable and proportionate steps to mitigate in accordance with 
Government guidance regarding noise and air quality any proven adverse 
effects upon public health being a direct result of the Development as 
identified by studies carried out.

• The ‘revised’ S106 agreement also proposes to EXCLUDE the restriction on lobbying 
for any relaxation of night flight restrictions. This implies that MAG is looking to 
increase night flights which would simply be unacceptable and have a severe 
detrimental effect of the night time amenity (i.e. the ability to sleep in peace) of local 
residents. The Parish Council would SUPPORT a reduction in the number of night 
flights permitted.

• Our Parish is rural, the only issues affecting this being traffic using local roads and 
the noise from aircraft, both of which would be exacerbated by this application thus 
affecting the rural character and setting of our community.

Page 103Page 349



• MAG forecasts that 35mppa will not be reached until 2023, whereas the Department 
for Transport forecasts that 35mppa will not be reached until 2033. Clearly somebody 
is forecasting incorrectly.

The Parish Council requests that Uttlesford District Council refuses this application.

Newport Parish Council

The increase in the number of flights (from 189,000 – 274,000) and passenger numbers 
(from 25.9 million to 43 million) would have a significant impact on our local community and 
the surrounding area.  The proposed expansion will lead to much greater congestion on the 
roads and railways and put additional pressure on hospitals, schools and doctors surgeries 
who are already finding it difficult to deal with current levels.  The impact on air quality 
caused by increased pollution would be detrimental to the whole area.  UDC should 
therefore reject this application.

Quendon and Rickling Parish Council

The Parish Council objects to this application on the grounds that by granting permission for 
additional taxiways and remote aircraft stands this would permit increased passenger 
throughput which has not been agreed and is opposed.

Roydon Parish Council

Whilst some residents have indicated their interest in possible new routes that the Airport 
could provide (which should be possible within the airport's current passenger and aircraft 
movement limits in any event), the Parish Council

- has concerns about the ability of the district council to determine this complicated 
and technical application. This is an application affecting national infrastructure and 
should be determined at national level.

- would like to understand better the rationale for this application as it seems 
premature (the airport is not due to meet its current capacity maximum for some 
years) and designed to pre-empt the Government's Aviation Policy due at the end of 
the year.

- would like to ensure that the application would not result in additional night flights - 
Roydon Parish is directly affected by these being under the arrivals flight path. 

- Suggestions that there should be a relaxation on the night flight limit should be 
strongly resisted.

- would like the Airport to make more determined efforts not to over-fly populated 
areas.

- would like Uttlesford DC to accept that comments from those not directly affected by 
this application should not be given the same weight as other representations.

Saffron Walden Town Council

Saffron Walden Town Council;

i. considers that the application is large enough to merit scrutiny and review at a 
National rather than District Council level, and notes that Stop Stansted 
Expansion has written to the Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and 

Page 104Page 350



Local Government, the Rt Hon Sajid Javid MP, to notify him that unless he 
takes responsibility for the latest Stansted Airport planning application out of 
the hands of Uttlesford District Council (UDC), SSE will seek a High Court 
judicial review,

ii. notes and seconds the position of East Herts Council’s response dated 28th 
March 2018, which is to reserve its position and defer its response:

b. “…in respect of environmental impact issues until such time as work being 
commissioned by Uttlesford District Council to assess the evidence submitted by 
STAL in this respect has been completed and suitable time for this District’s 
consideration of the full environmental evidence base being allowed”;

c. And considers that the increase in airport capacity may not comply with the 
requirements of the Climate Change Act.

i. notes and seconds the position of East Herts Council’s response dated 28th 
March 2018, which is to reserve its position and defer its response:

d. “until such time as Essex and Hertfordshire County Councils, as Transport 
Authorities, have concluded their assessment of the evidence submitted by STAL in 
this respect and any further supporting evidence commissioned by the Transport 
Authorities has been completed, with suitable time for this District’s consideration of 
such being allowed”;

e. And expresses concern that the existing road and rail network would be 
compromised by the additional traffic created by the additional demand from 
passengers (the application being so as to increase passenger numbers from 
35mmpa to 43 mppa), and by the additional demand from additional staff (MAG 
forecasts the creation of 5,000 new jobs). The rail network has limited capacity on the 
line between London and Cambridge, and the capacity available to general travellers 
would be reduced by additional trains being used to serve the extra passengers and 
staff of airport.

i. expresses grave concern that whilst the presence of the airport in the near 
area does bring some pecuniary reward to the region in terms of employment, 
nonetheless it also brings the negative impact of additional pressures on the 
region’s road and rail transport networks with associated increases in 
pollution, and increased noise pollution. Thus, in the event that the permission 
for the planning application should be granted, Saffron Walden Town Council 
would seek the inclusion of significant levels of mitigation within any 
associated S.106 agreement.

Sampfords Parish Council

Currently on “rat run” to Haverhill for passengers and airport workers.  Based on planned 
increase of 8 million passengers per year and 5,000 new employees this translates to an 
increase of around 6000 extra vehicles using local road network.  We believe this is 
unsustainable and object until a detailed sustainable plan and agreement for local roads can 
be put in place to protect the safety and wellbeing of our residents.

Shalford Parish Council

I am writing to you on behalf of Shalford Parish Council with regard to Stansted Airport’s 
planning application, reference number UTT/18/0460/FUL.

Page 105Page 351



Firstly, we are concerned that an application of this magnitude is being considered by 
Uttlesford District Council. We believe that the proposed increase in flight/passenger 
numbers over that currently seen, make this a National Infrastructure project and should be 
referred to the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government.

Secondly, we are concerned that UDC are “Fast Tracking” this application. It is a very 
complex and technical application which will take time for those affected to fully evaluate and 
respond to. Furthermore, Stansted still has significant permitted capacity and we therefore 
see no reason to “Fast Track” this application unless it is to avoid the implications of the 
Government’s new Aviation Strategy which is due to be published within the next year.

Thirdly, we are concerned that the rhetoric is around the increase in flight/passenger 
numbers over that currently permitted rather than over the number that is currently occurring. 
We in Shalford have experienced significant increase in aircraft noise over recent times and 
therefore must judge any permitted increase against what is experienced now, which we 
consider on the limit of acceptability already. Any increase would be unacceptable.

Fourthly, we are concerned by Stansted Airports growth predictions which appear to be 
significantly out of step with other predictions

Finally, we are concerned about the impact that increased flight numbers will have on the 
roads in our area. The A120 is already highly congested at peak times at both the Braintree 
and Bishop Stortford ends. There is also the impact of both Braintree and Uttlesford District 
Council Draft Local Plan proposal to build new communities at “West of Braintree” and 
“Easton Park”. However, there are no concrete plans at this point in time to upgrade this part 
of the A120 or its intersection with the M11.

We therefore call on Uttlesford District Council to refuse this planning application.

Stansted Parish Council

NSIP

Has regional and national significance.  The impacts will be far beyond Uttlesford.  Just 18% 
of the airport’s employees are resident in Uttlesford.  Analysis of airport noise complaints 
shows a wide geographical spread covering all parts of Essex, North and East Hertfordshire, 
South Cambridgeshire and Suffolk.  CAA passenger survey report shows that 29% of 
customers came from the E of England, 60.6% from London and SE.

Infrastructure changes are based on 80-90% of its theoretical capacity, enabling 281 – 316k 
movements (excluding night flights).  The reduction from 44.5–43mppa and 285-274k ATMs 
was secured merely by adjusting down the period covered by a year.

If the 10k special flights become regular passenger or cargo flights, the planes would be 
bigger and noisier.  If they are not available to businesses they could move elsewhere with 
loss of some employment.

The 1985 Phase 1 infrastructure works to handle 8mppa and 120k ATMs were in reality in 
excess of what was needed.  Similarly for Phase 2 expansion to 15mppa and subsequently 
to 25mppa, and which to this day remain to be completed.  For 35mppa, no additional 
infrastructure works were required.  If STAL can now get planning permission to build 

Page 106Page 352



additional taxiways and stands before they are needed, it makes the inevitable next planning 
application beyond 43mppa much more difficult to refuse.

Prematurity

Premature in advance of:
- Airports National Policy Statement final version
- New Aviation White Paper
- New draft local plan for Uttlesford

No operational reason for a swift decision – 35mppa will not be reached until 2023 (STAL) or 
2033 (DfT).  No lengthy construction works are proposed.  For the 35mppa application there 
was a week of public speaking.

Methodology

It is difficult to see how preparation of the ES (following receipt of UDC’s scoping opinion) 
could have been completed in 2 months.   No one is taken in for a moment by the pretence 
that STAL has listened to the concerns of local residents about an increase in aircraft 
movements for any reason other than it perceived a difficulty obtaining permission for such 
an increase at the present time.  Bringing forward the principal assessment year to 2028 so 
that the number of aircraft movements can remain within the existing cap is simply a ruse.

Doubts STAL is adhering to ES best practice standards.  The environmental impacts of the 
“Do Minimum” scenario were assessed 12 years ago and will not be felt in full for another 5 
years.  It must be unusual to bring forward a planning application when the existing 
permission can still accommodate 5 years growth.

Assessment must take into account both the future impacts from already approved 
developments and the forecast impacts of the proposed development.  Only when these 2 
sets of impacts are aggregated can the overall effect be assessed.  The EIA methodology 
does not allow this.

Roads and Transport

There is increasing pressure on local roads in Bishop’s Stortford, Elsenham and Stansted 
Mountfitchet.  The anticipated growth in passenger numbers and employees is substantial.  

Increases in rail capacity and coach services may increase the percentage of passengers 
and possibly employees arriving by public transport.  A high percentage of those arriving by 
road will use the M11 and A120, but question the anticipated low impacts on the M11 J8 
northern and southern approached predicted for 43mppa.  Passenger traffic arriving and 
leaving the airport by road appears likely to increase by over 60%.  Some of this increase 
must impact on local roads.

Do not accept as credible the projected 2-3% increase in traffic on local roads predicted for 
35-43mppa when for up to 35mppa increases were up to 30% (Church Road) and 18% 
(Lower Street and Cambridge Road).  Do not accept that all, or almost all, of increases in 
traffic on local roads is housing related.  Increases to 35mppa fail to take into account the 
effect on the Grove Hill / Elsenham connection.  Off-airport parking is a problem – STAL can 

Page 107Page 353



help by reducing parking charges, by funding enforcement restrictions and by bus service 
subsidy.

Stansted Express must continue to serve Stansted Mountfitchet.  UDC must insist on STAL 
funding a full perimeter road, or other measures, to take traffic away from local communities.

It would be more consistent and balanced to use a correlation based on passenger number 
increases.

Air Noise

The “Future of UK Aviation” shows that the Government is committed to looking for a new 
approach to how sustainable growth should be defined in terms of noise and how best to 
monitor and report aviation noise.  The approach used in this application is based on a 30 
year old methodology which is deeply flawed and out of date.

LAeqT is an average – it is calculated, not measured.  It is absolutely not a measure of what 
people actually hear, and the Government recognises that the value of LAeqT does not 
necessarily reflect all aspects of perception of noise.  The Courts attach much more weight 
to the subjective impressions of people whose properties are affected by noise.

CAP 1506 only advises that it is appropriate to use LAeqT, but does not suggest that 
evidence based decisions should rely exclusively on it.  The Lands Tribunal sets far more 
store on subjective impressions than on the calculations of acoustic experts when dealing 
with Part 1 claims under the Land Compensation Act 1973.

The second pillar of the ICAO’s “Balanced Approach” also mentions compensation, but this 
has been omitted by STAL no doubt because of its well documented track record of wrongly 
rejecting compensation claims arising from permissions dating back to 1999.

The “Future of UK Aviation” says:
“Even as aircraft are getting quieter, recent evidence suggests people are becoming more 
sensitive to noise at lower levels and that the number of flights overhead can be a more 
significant factor than the average noise level.  There remains a challenge when 
technological improvements in noise reduction do not appear to be sufficient to deal with the 
negative impacts on some communities’ quality of life”

The planning application contravenes Local Plan Policy SP11, contains no proposals to 
achieve any noise reductions and there is no mention of compensation.  There are no 
proposals to reduce the adverse effects of aircraft operations on the amenity of local 
residents.

The argument that more flights will result in less noise is rejected for the following reasons:
- It defies common sense
- Averaging metrics bear no relation to the noise that people experience
- It is based on self-interested claims of aircraft manufacturers
- It is based on airline fleet modernisation assumptions which could change

The Planning Statement conclusions are deliberately misleading.  A change of 3dB 
calculated using averaging methodology could represent a doubling of aircraft movements.

Page 108Page 354



Air Quality and Public Health

UDC’s Air Quality Annual Status Report confirms that a number of locations within Stansted 
Mountfitchet either exceed or are approaching WHO limits.  Poor air quality contributes to 
the onset of heart disease, cancer and respiratory diseases.  Air pollution affects the most 
vulnerable – children and older people and those with heart and lung conditions.  There is 
ever increasing pressure on the NHS.  Expansion of Stansted will increase air pollution and 
will result in increased numbers of road vehicles entering and leaving the airport.  Use of car 
parking bays has not been evaluated.

Housing

Compared to 2015, 43mppa would result in 5,200 extra on-airport employees, 4,200 extra 
indirect and induced jobs.  An extra 2,000 employees would live in Uttlesford if existing 
trends continue.  The Northern Ancillary Area would result in 2,900 employees.  With the 
large number of houses allocated to Uttlesford, these numbers may perhaps be comfortably 
accommodated, but this needs to be demonstrated.  

Socio-Economic Impacts

If this development is allowed to proceed, over two thirds of the extra 6.8m leisure travellers 
will be outbound, increasing Stansted’s contribution to the net tourism deficit.  According to 
the ES, the main destination for inbound tourists will be London, making the economic 
benefits for Uttlesford appear somewhat scant by comparison.

Re inward investment and productivity, the ES relies heavily on two pieces of research 
published by economic forecasting bodies in 2006 and 2009, before the full effects of the 
financial crisis were understood and before Brexit.

It is noted from the ES that most of the other relatively modest perceived benefits from this 
proposed development accrue to areas beyond Uttlesford, particularly North London.  There 
are no good reasons to approve further growth of one of the most environmentally polluting 
industries in this largely rural location.  UDC will not maintain a diverse economic base if it 
becomes more dependent on, and in hock to, a single major employer.

Land Compensation

This topic is incorrectly ignored although it is a material planning consideration.  It should be 
covered because it is an important tool in the management of air noise in ICAO’s “Balanced 
Approach”.  Should planning permission be granted which includes qualifying infrastructure 
works under the 1973 Act, an appropriate S106 agreement should be a prior condition to 
prevent any future avoidance by the compensating authority of its legal obligations under the 
Act.

2nd response:

Additional information received at the request of Natural England. Noted that Stop Stansted 
Expansion is in the final stages of preparing to apply for Judicial Review.  Unacceptable 
timing for further public consultation and contravenes UDC's own policy on Community 
Involvement. Agreed that this does not mitigate any of the comments made in the Council's 
submission. Further consideration must be given to the local highway network, particularly 

Page 109Page 355



with regard to the proposed re- development of the Airport north side. Dist Cllr Dean 
commented that the M11 J9 should also be reviewed.

3rd response:  

In the letter to Uttlesford District Council dated 5 July 2018 Stansted Airport Ltd ("STAL") 
relies heavily on the government's policy statement "Making Best Use of Existing Runways" 
published in June 2018 to justify its planning application. However, it is far from clear that the 
latest policy statement from the government does in fact provide support for this planning 
application as claimed by STAL.

The application is for an increase in the passenger cap from 35 million passengers per 
annum (mppa) to 43 mppa, but importantly it also seeks permission for new infrastructure in 
the form of taxiways and aircraft stands. The effect of this infrastructure, if approved, would 
be to increase the capacity of the existing runway to handle additional flights in the future.

The June policy statement says that "the government is supportive of airports beyond 
Heathrow making best use of their existing runways". It absolutely DOES NOT say that the 
government supports additions to infrastructure to increase the capacity of existing runways. 
In fact, it says precisely the opposite. The policy statement explicitly refers to airports making 
more intensive use of their existing infrastructure. There is an important distinction to be 
made here between "making best use of existing runways" and "increasing the capacity of 
existing runways".

There is no justification whatsoever for STAL seeking to extend government policy to cover 
additional infrastructure in this way. In paragraph 1.26 of the policy statement the 
government makes it clear what it means by making best use of existing runways by 
referring only to increases in "either the passenger or air traffic movement caps". There is no 
mention anywhere of additional infrastructure.

Furthermore, if, as STAL claims in its planning application, the proposed increase in the 
passenger cap can be achieved without any increase in the existing air traffic movement 
cap, then there should be no requirement for any additional infrastructure. The current air 
traffic movement cap of 264,000 per annum was approved by the government in 2008 on the 
basis that it did not need any additional infrastructure. It follows therefore that, as the 
requested increase in the passenger cap requires neither an increase in the air traffic 
movement cap nor any additional infrastructure, the only possible explanation for the extra 
taxiways and aircraft stands is to provide a basis for further expansion beyond 43 mppa and 
264.000 air traffic movements. STAL should be asked to publish details of what the real 
capacity of the airport would be in terms of passenger numbers and air traffic movements if 
the additional infrastructure were to be approved.

It is evident from this analysis that STAL's planning application as it stands falls outside the 
scope of current government policy and is therefore beyond the competence of the local 
planning authority to determine it. It is accordingly the judgement of Stansted Mountfitchet 
Parish Council that this planning application should immediately be referred to national 
government for determination.

Page 110Page 356



4th Response:

We refer to our previous comments in respect of the above planning application (attached for 
easy reference) and note that Uttlesford District Council (UDC) has set a date for 
determining it on Wednesday 17 October.  It is unclear how the process of considering and 
determining this application can be safely concluded when the purpose of the proposed 
development cannot be as stated by the applicant.  UDC’s own description of the application 
on its website is misleading when it says “Airfield works …… to enable combined airfield 
operations of 274,000 aircraft movements ……” – the airport already has permission for this 
number of aircraft movements.

In evidence to the 2007 Public Inquiry into the Stansted Generation 1 Planning Appeal the 
advocate for Stansted Airport Limited (STAL) emphasised in his closing submissions that no 
additional physical development was required for the proposed limit of 264,000 ATM’s pa.  
An extract taken from those closing submissions is attached.  It is the duty of an advocate 
not to mislead the Inquiry as made clear in the attached extract of a note published by 
Landmark Chambers.  It is reasonable to assume therefore that STAL’s advocate did not 
mislead the 2007 Public Inquiry.

The statement in the current planning application that the proposed additional airfield 
infrastructure is required to enable an unchanged limit of total ATM’s to be handled is 
incompatible with the evidence given to the 2007 Public Inquiry.  The only possible 
conclusion to be drawn from this discrepancy is that the purpose of the proposed physical 
development cannot be as stated.  In other words, if STAL’s advocate did not mislead 
the 2007 Public Inquiry, then STAL must be misleading UDC now.

It is difficult to see how UDC can proceed to determine this application without first obtaining 
a satisfactory explanation regarding the real purpose for the proposed additional airfield 
infrastructure.  When this additional information is received it should be made available for 
further public consultation prior to any determination of the application.

Stebbing Parish Council

We wish to confirm Stebbing Parish Council’s support of the Stop Stansted Expansion (SSE) 
submission in opposing this application by MAG for an uplift in the passenger cap from 
35million passengers per annum (mppa) to 43mppa.

We especially wish to emphasise those areas of this application which would have the most 
damaging impact on our rural community, totally contradicting Uttlesford DC’s claim:

"By 2033, Uttlesford will continue to be one of the most desirable places to live and work in 
the UK. Uttlesford will be a place where residents choose to live, where communities thrive, 
are healthy and safe, jobs and services are well connected, places have character and 
communities create and feel a ‘pride of place’. 'Spatial Vision' in the Uttlesford proposed 
Local Plan 2018

 Traffic problems: The UDC Local Plan has a strategy for growth comprising three 
Garden Towns, two of which will be located along the A120 corridor, east of M11/J8. 
West of Braintree Garden town will be adjacent to Stebbing and the application 
recommends the new town population to access Stansted Airport for employment 
and travel. All movements would be along an already overcrowded A120, resulting in 
chaos. Even now, we experience drivers frantically seeking alternative routes along 

Page 111Page 357



country lanes and our village street whenever a hold‐up occurs on the A120. This is 
not only disturbing but dangerous to our many walkers and cyclists.

 Noise problems: Since the routing of aircraft via Clacton, aircraft noise complaints 
from Stebbing have increased by 400%. We are constantly bombarded by flights at 
barely two‐minute intervals from before 6.00am until well after midnight. Increased 
passenger numbers and flights on top of our current misery are impossible to 
imagine.

 Pollution: Approval of this planning application would result in significant increases in 
aircraft movements and airport‐related road traffic, both would result in increased 
local air pollution. The adverse health impacts of aircraft pollution, including noise 
pollution, are wide ranging and can lead to serious respiratory and cardiovascular 
diseases. The effects of stress and anxiety are equally prominent among adverse 
health impacts. We agree with SSE there is a statutory requirement for an 
assessment of risks to health to be carried out in in respect of this planning 
application. It is clearly nonsense for MAG to state there would be ‘no significant 
adverse environmental effects’ with an increase to 43mppa.

Takeley Parish Council

Object.

Application Process:  Takeley Parish Council would like to highlight the fact that airports are 
a national concern, as are railways and motorways and that UDC does not have the required 
resources to determine both the National infrastructure requirements around the Stansted 
Airport Ltd (STAL) proposals at the same time as it is completing its own Local District Plan.  

The application is seen as premature as permission is already in place for 35 million 
passengers per annum (mppa) and the Government statistics say that the throughput of 35 
million passengers will not be reached until 2033.    

It would appear that this application is being rushed through to avoid any conflict with the 
Government’s Select Committee Draft Report Statement which is due on 24 July 2018 and 
which will outline lower noise thresholds for rural areas and greater consideration with regard 
to quality of life & health impacts. 

Takeley Parish Council agrees with the statement in the existing local plan that the Airport 
must be acknowledged as an “Airport in the Countryside

SURFACE ACCESS:  National Concerns with J8 and the M11

Particular attention needs to be taken of the report sent to Gordon Glendale at UDC from 
Walker Engineering, consultants in highways, bridges and underwater engineering, dated 
13th December 2017, which although written in response to the Little Easton proposals also 
highlights the parallel issues with the Airport re: concerns to the local road network and the 
A120.

Walker Engineering have more recently stated that the planning application for Stansted is 
too simplistic in how it deals with the projected growth in background traffic for what is a 
major application.  Proposals need to be based on a proper traffic model which should have 
been commissioned by STAL. 

Page 112Page 358



The application is deficient in terms of supporting traffic evidence and a proper model should 
be provided to tell us what will happen.   STAL needs to provide this data.   This STAL 
submission will also need to be assessed against the expected housing in the new Local 
Plan traffic modelling as a sensitivity test and/or adequacy that capacity can be contained.

Highways England have also indicated concerns about Junction 8 that there was not an 
obvious solution to solve further increased traffic movement.  Concern has also been 
expressed that outdated travel data is being used to forecast future traffic movements, due 
to the timescale that has been presented.

In support of the above Railton road transport consultants were commissioned to carry out a 
study of the local road network on behalf of Takeley Parish Council in 2016 as part of 
Uttlesford Strategic land assessment.

The report concluded the following points under reference 13.19:-

• Junction 8 of the M11 is currently congested and proposed development would 
significantly increase queues and delays on the B1256 approach to this junction.  
The current proposals to improve the performance of Junction 8 of the M11 provide 
little additional capacity on other junctions including the B1256 arm. 

• Observations of traffic growth on the A120 through Junction 8 of the M11 suggests 
that previous modelling of the junction has significantly underestimated traffic growth.  
This again reflects what the other travel expert has highlighted.

Takeley Parish Council noted a more general point that the A120 Airport access point from 
the J8 roundabout flows through on a curvature that does not make the existing access 
particularly resilient to tail back on the current junction 8 roundabout if problems arise on the 
M11.  The access from J8 and the volumes of extra traffic at J8 will need proper assessment 
on all formal access arms.  The health and safety impacts of the extra proposed traffic that 
will be generated to the airport have not been considered, nor either sustainability or 
capacity. (Planning Policy GEN1).

Links to the Airport  - Stansted Express Trains

MAG’s general assumption is that the rail and road network will economically accommodate 
the proposals of STAL.  Capacity will be limited to the one available train link at any one time 
with trains running every 15 minutes.  With only one train link into Stansted airport it is 
difficult to note how the frequency of this service can naturally be expanded.  The existing 
Stansted to London railway is already overloaded.

Local concerns Re: Airport Traffic with regard to congestion and Inadequate Road 
Infrastructure.  Takeley Parish Council highlights infrastructure concerns re the effect of 
increased passenger visits to the airport on the B1256 which will correlate into additional 
traffic. The B1256 route though a 30mph residential area does have a direct link to the 
Airport and will be severely impacted if the A120 cannot sustain traffic.  The B1256 is the 
main access route from the M11 to Takeley and surrounding villages. Coopers End 
roundabout, the smallest and last roundabout that accesses the Airport, is also the access to 
the Airport from Molehill Green, Thaxted, Elsenham, etc so there are over-riding concerns 
about congestion and a general lack of detail in the planning application about how the extra 

Page 113Page 359



traffic will impact on traffic flow.  The B1256 is currently used as a rat-run at peak times to 
avoid congestion on the A120.

Sustainability and capacity of the local road networks does not appear to be a key feature of 
STAL proposals.  Concerns are already being expressed that residents are being disturbed 
by associated noise, fumes and vibrations connected with the increasing volume of airport 
coaches and other traffic on the B1256.  STAL’s application has not addressed how it will 
mitigate containment to the main A120 route and how other proposals being considered in 
the local plan will fit around STAL’s proposals. 

Policy Gen 1 states that traffic generated by development must be capable of being 
accommodated on the surrounding transport network. Compensation packages to local 
residents have never been a primary concern of STAL who for a number of years have 
refused their obligation to compensate residents under the Land Compensation Act. It was 
only after a legal challenge judgment that STAL started the process.

NOISE POLLUTION & CONCERNS ABOUT FURTHER NIGHT FLIGHTS:  Takeley Parish 
Council strongly opposes further night time flights.  The impacts are always worse in the 
summer months when windows are open and there is concern that sleep disturbance will 
cause further loss of amenity.  Under no circumstances should the S106 agreement be 
utilised to allow removal of the condition that prevents STAL asking for more night flights 
(Appendix D of the planning statement).  This is another reason why the planning application 
should be called in.  Takeley Parish Council feels a redefined smaller noise envelope 
superseding the present one. This is due to the Government recognising that the onset of 
significant annoyance is lower than that used for the 35 mppa permission. 

MAG’s own figures show that since they became the owners of STAL there has been a 
continued increase of complaints about noise rising from 930 complaints in 2013 to 4,170 in 
2016.

There are three schools in Takeley – studies have shown that education is impaired in areas 
of increased noise.  Takeley Parish Council would prefer noise assessments to be based on 
the Government’s latest regulations which will be formalized in July 2018.

The Parish Council is aware that in addition to traffic noise the sound of aircraft taking off 
has been described as deafening by residents.  Most complaints are received in the summer 
months when windows and doors need to be opened.  In summary it is impossible now to 
have a telephone conversation in the garden with the constant stream of roaring engines 
muffling out conversation.   Takeley already suffers from ground noise which will be further 
exacerbated by the new taxi-ways and stands. 

This is an ongoing amenity issue and the effects should not be underestimated with regard 
to health and wellbeing.  The relentless noise is constant and as one complainant stated 
mirrors established torture techniques, as inadvertent as that may be.   

The Government’s revised Aviation Policy Framework (APF) is due by the end of the year.  
The revised APF will also tackle CO2 emissions and introduce health and Quality of Life 
impacts together with lower thresholds for the onset of aircraft noise annoyance and 
recognize that increased numbers of aircraft movements at Stansted (44% higher than 

Page 114Page 360



today’s level) is a more significant factor than average noise levels with the low background 
noise levels of the rural surroundings around Stansted Airport. 

Poor Air Quality:  The District Local Plan 2005 noted that Uttlesford’s air quality management 
strategy identified that, based on traffic forecasts at that time, poor air quality was anticipated 
alongside the M11 and the new A120.  Increased passenger vehicles travelling to the airport 
along both routes would mean the quality of the air will be further depleted.   Takeley Parish 
Council is concerned about Hatfield Forest, an SSSI close to the B1256, and how 
concentrated air pollution over time will affect natural habitats and bio-diversity.  It should be 
taken into consideration that the Government is changing the guidance on air quality.

Policy ENV13 – Exposure to Poor Air Quality:  The policy states that “Development that 
would involve users being exposed on an extended long-term basis to poor air quality 
outdoors near ground level will not be permitted”.  A zone 100 metres on either side of the 
central reservation of the M11 and a zone 35 metres either side of the centre of the new 
A120 have been identified on the proposals map as particular areas to which this policy 
applies. 

Takeley Parish Council note that the air pollution of cars at ground level will provide a 
greater intensity or protraction of fumes as the visitor numbers to the airport increases.   

COMMUNITY ISSUES:  

AIRPORT RELATED PARKING AND BREACHES IN MAG’S CURRENT PLANNING 
POLICY:  In addition to the points above, the airport has not complied with its current 
planning permission to contain all airport related parking on site (Policy T3) and objection to 
expansion is also based on this failure.

The Local Plan states scale and management of car parking needs to be carefully controlled 
in order to maximise the percentage of air passengers using public transport to get to or from 
the airport.  This would not be practicable if the provision of car parking became fragmented 
and included off airport sites.  It would undermine the airport surface access strategy agreed 
by the multi-agency airport area transport forum.  

Takeley Parish Council has consistently notified Uttlesford Enforcement Department of 
ongoing problems with airport related parking as the Airport has experienced growth in its 
passenger numbers.   However, the Airport has not been proactive in helping to stop the 
problem or in ensuring it is meeting its minimum statutory requirements that exist both under 
its current planning application and also under the general terms of the National Planning 
Policy Framework.

Significantly many of the illegal airport related parking operators continue to set up in the 
Countryside Protection Zone consequently leaving UDC/or the taxpayer to pay the brunt of 
resulting legal costs in order to ensure the preservation of the surrounding area.

Footpath provision in to the Stansted Airport site has always been regarded as illegal for 
security reasons, yet it breaches national security policies by allowing vehicles to park on 
peripheral boundaries.  How does STAL explain this to the public against the backdrop of 
decreasing amenity and congestion?

Page 115Page 361



Problems arise from the unofficial car parking offered being significantly cheaper than that 
contained on the airport site, which for consumers becomes a preferable option.   The airport 
is culpable of driving market conditions for these illegal operators – ultimately without the 
airport, the problem would not exist.   

Omission on the S106 Agreement:  Takeley Parish Council is unhappy that STAL appears to 
be dictating the terms of the S106 agreement and would like the Planning Authority to 
consider in depth those matters which STAL are asking to be excluded.

Overall the application lacks feasibility studies on the national and local road network 
problems, unestablished alternative travel links and awareness that residents are 
experiencing ongoing amenity issues that are not resolved. Takeley Parish Council is 
concerned that expansion of the airport will put more pressure on the already overloaded 
health facilities that exist in this area. Policy Gen 6 – ‘infrastructure provision to support 
development’ - can no longer be overlooked. 

For all the reasons stated above Takeley Parish Council objects to this Planning application 
and supports SSE’s view, along with others, that the application should be determined by the 
Secretary of State, allowing UDC to focus on the priority of finalising the Local District Plan 
approved.

2nd response:

Please note that Takeley Parish Council require further extension to the above application to 
review this 900 page document against the original document of 2930 pages.   Extension to 
12th September extension is not adequate in light of the volume of documentation.

Please note this month Takeley have been requested to review the Local Plan, The 
Bonningtons application i.e. 275 units and the Gladmans application i.e. 135 units amongst 
the various other village planning applications.  Many of the councillors have been away as 
August is a traditional holiday period.   

Takeley Parish Council are extremely concerned that Uttlesford are even attempting to 
review this application and that the timeframe for public consultation of 4 weeks is far too 
narrow.  Takeley Parish Council believe this application should be reviewed in alignment 
with the Government aviation policy which is due to be published at the end of the year.   On 
this basis alone Takeley Parish Council see a material consideration to defer making a 
decision, as any decision may not wholly be met by the requirements or policy from Central 
Government on matters such as Co2 emissions, air quality, noise etc. 

Ultimately this could lead to Uttlesford making a decision that could in the future be deemed 
illegal and result in an unnecessary cost to the local tax payer.  Takeley do not feel that the 
statutory requirements for consultation are currently being met under this application due to 
the current timeframes set by Uttlesford.   

In particular Takeley would prefer any decision to be made following publication of 
Government policy.    In the meantime, the Council will consider the pending 12th 
September deadline and any initial observations that may be conveyed.     However, 
highlight again the inadequate consultation period in terms of this proposal being considered 
comprehensively.

Page 116Page 362



Thaxted Parish Council

Thaxted Parish Council wish to support Cllr Martin Foley comments which in summary are:

There are concern from residents and some councillors that the application to expand 
Stansted Airport is being rushed through.

Stansted Airport/Manchester Airports Group, are seeking to build extra taxiways and aircraft 
stands and to increase the passenger throughput at Stansted to 43 million passengers per 
annum (mppa). By comparison, Stansted handled 25.9 mppa last year. They have already 
authority to go to 35million.

If the application were approved, it would mean a 66% increase in passengers and bigger 
planes - more noise, more pollution for Thaxted.

There is call that the Stansted Airport Expansion plans should be determined nationally 
rather than locally.

Main adverse impacts of increased aircraft movement will be in relation to noise, local air 
quality and CO2 emissions

Main impacts of increased passengers will be in relation to road traffic congestion and 
knock-on effects on air quality Proposed development is clearly a Nationally Significant 
Infrastructure Project under s.23(5) of Planning Act, 2008.

Implications of development extend well beyond Uttlesford noise, traffic, CO2 emissions, 
economic, employment etc.

Concerns about UDC resources/competence to determine this application the largest since 
G1 in such a rush.  Concerns about lack of transparency, prematurity, lack of engagement, 
limited opportunity for proper scrutiny.  Concern that the application is viewed as a done 
deal.

SSEs evidence for the above is set out letter to Secretary of State available in full on SSE 
website

Theydon Bois Parish Council

Theydon Bois is already subject to levels of air pollution from the present flight paths and the 
Parish Council, therefore, objects to any attendant increase in both noise and air pollution 
levels resulting from the increase in air traffic movements.  Additional numbers of 
passengers travelling by car to the airport may also place pressure on congestion levels on 
the M11, which could further increase the amount of road traffic between Loughton and 
Epping, through the junction of Coppice Row and Piercing Hill in Theydon Bois, when this 
route is used as an alternative to the motorway.  We are, therefore, of the view that the level 
of proposed expansion could prove unsustainable in terms of the increased levels of air 
pollution and car traffic movements, even at the relative distance between our village and 
Stansted Airport, to the possible detriment of both the local environment and the adjacent 
SSSI of Epping Forest.

Page 117Page 363



Thorley Parish Council

Should be referred to SoS and should not be fast tracked.  There is a particular problem in 
Thorley with aircraft noise.   Monitors in the Parish have shown this to be an increasing 
problem.  Whilst more flights will mean more noise, night flights in particular cause the most 
disturbance.  In the circumstances we object strongly to Manchester Airports Group seeking 
to be allowed to lobby for more night time flights.  Increased night flights would, in our view, 
lead to an intolerable level of noise in Thorley and its rural surrounds.  Any increase in 
airport related traffic would place an increased burden on local roads, which already suffer 
from periods of heavy congestion.  Proposed local housing development together with an 
increase in airport traffic could cause transport gridlock. A careful review of local transport 
infrastructure in and around the airport and nearby villages and townships is long overdue.  
The Rail network beyond Uttlesford especially needs to be considered carefully.   

2nd response:

We consider the fast tracking of planning application UTT/18/0460/FUL is wrong.  In our 
view the timescale does not allow for proper scrutiny and the current ceiling will be adequate 
for some years.  

We have problems with aircraft noise, particularly night flights.  Any increase in airport 
related traffic would place an increased burden on local roads, which already suffer from 
periods of heavy congestion.  Proposed local housing development together with an 
increase in airport traffic could cause transport gridlock. A careful review of local transport 
infrastructure in and around the airport and nearby villages and townships is long overdue.   

Ware Town Council

Increase in traffic to surrounding areas and associated emissions.

Wendens Ambo Parish Council

Wendens Ambo Parish Council objects to application UTT/18/0460/FUL - Stansted Airport 
Limited on the following grounds;

i. Insufficient infrastructure -particularly the road and rail network.
ii. This application is premature, current permission permits sufficient room for 

expansion.
iii. The Parish Council believes that this application should be considered by the 

Secretary of State not the local District Council.

2nd response:

Wendens Ambo Parish Council believes that this application is premature and any planning 
is based on projections which do not stand up to investigation. It is suggested that this 
Planning Application should be referred back to the Secretary of State in order that a 
decision based on facts can be reached.

Our main concerns are -

There are more than 2000 Documents on file as at this date relating to this planning 
application.  Interestingly there are many identical letters of support generated from people 

Page 118Page 364



who might be employees at Stansted Airport and who may have been encouraged to write in 
support of this Proposal by their employers. This is as clear an example of "vote rigging" as 
one would see. 

It is suggested that Uttlesford District Council have neither the experience nor the expertise 
in dealing with Large Proposals involving complex Airport Operations such as this.

Figures which describe numbers of Flights and Passenger Volumes are speculative at best. 
What verifiable evidence is there to confirm these figures?

The impact of Brexit is not considered. What happens if Brexit means that there are 
significantly less flights than now?

It is obvious from very recent problems when the M11 motorway was closed that there is 
only one route to Stansted Airport from the South and one route from the North. This 
highlights that there is not an adequate infrastructure in place to support the Airport. The 
significant improvement of the infrastructure is one of the major elements of a believable 
plan.

The Rail Company Great Anglia Abellio have confirmed that they will not increase the 
number of trains running from London to Stansted Airport. This adds yet another strain on 
the travel network Train links to and from Stansted Airport.

Widdington Parish Council

Should be determined nationally and not locally.  Insufficient infrastructure to support 
development.  Premature as will not reach cap until 2023, or 2033 using government’s 
figures.

2nd response:  

Widdington Parish Council objects to this application. The application is premature.

According to MAG's own calculations Stansted will not reach the present cap of 35mppa 
until 2023 and according to the Government's latest forecasts, published as recently as 
October 2017, Stansted will not reach 35mppa until 2033, so an increase to 43mppa is not 
currently warranted.

The council notes that the Government is currently consulting on a new aviation strategy for 
the UK and expects to publish this by the end of this year and it would appear that MAG is 
trying to rush the application through to avoid any government decisions on CO2 emissions, 
air quality, airport policy in the South East, aircraft noise at night, night flight policy in the 
South east with the possible banning of night flights from Heathrow Airport, aircraft noise and 
height levels.

The council believes that it is inappropriate for a local district council to be determining such 
an application, decisions such as these should be determined at central government level, in 
line with agreed airport transport policies. It is unrealistic to consider that the 2930 pages of 
the initial document, alongside the additional 900 pages added on 23rd July are 
processable, and to include a deadline of 30th August, during the month that traditionally 

Page 119Page 365



town and parish councils do not meet is unreasonable, as is the £300 cost to obtain a paper 
copy of the application.

The proposed expansion is unsupported by infrastructure, the road access to the airport is 
regularly congested and the increase in transport movements would be catastrophic for local 
residents and those accessing the airport. Quality of life for local communities would be 
negatively impacted in many ways due to an increase in noise, pollution, road congestion 
and pressure on natural resources.

The council also objects to Stansted Airport seeking to overturn legal conditions which 
currently prevent it from lobbying for more night flights.

Page 120Page 366



PRESSURE GROUPS
Stop Stansted Expansion

(150-160 page report dated 30.04.18, incorporating corrections 18.05.18)

Procedure for Determination
The application meets the criteria for an NSIP under Sections 14 and 23(5) of the Planning 
Act 2008.  It is airport related development with the capability of increasing the number of 
passengers by at least 10mppa or the number of cargo movements by an extra 
10,000/annum.  Section 35 of the Act (SoS direction) is engaged by seeing MAG’s project in 
its wider context – the “post-2028 proposed project”, emerging Government aviation policy 
and associated DfT forecasts to 2050.

Further grounds for call-in exist under Sections 76A and 77 of the 1990 Town and Country 
Planning Act, as even the applicant states that the proposal is of both national and regional 
importance, including having significant effects across a wider area than a single local 
authority.

Inadequacies of the Environmental Statement
The ES should cover, as a minimum, the period to 2030 to be consistent with the airport’s 
Sustainable Development Plan (SDP) which MAG now accepts is a masterplan.  The TA 
requires assessment to at least 2033 to accord with the end of the relevant local plan period.  
The Government’s planning horizon for airport development has typically been 15-30 years.

The ES needs to provide an assessment of impacts through to 2033 so that the effects of 
43mppa can be considered alongside the impacts associated with the implementation of the 
Uttlesford Local Plan and other local plans in the surrounding area.

TA and ES generally assess specific housing impacts only in respect of those houses in 
Uttlesford for which planning permission has been granted or resolved to be granted.  
Otherwise, future predictions are based on TEMPro.  If road impacts are understated, then 
so will be air quality and other knock-on effects.

The short planning horizon and the cursory examination of cumulative impacts will have 
resulted in a significant underestimation of the environmental effects to the extent that the 
ES, as it presently stands, is not fit for purpose.

Prematurity
Two of the main pillars for determining the application – the local plan and Government 
policy – are currently subject to significant uncertainty.  MAG may be seeking to pre-empt an 
outcome of the Government’s aviation strategy that seeks to protect the business case for 
the 3rd runway at Heathrow.  MAG has misinterpreted the Regulation 18 Local Plan 
Objective 2c which only supports development to the permitted throughput of 35mppa.  
There is no clear Government policy on the extent and timing of further Stansted expansion.

It is highly unusual for the Government to publish a “minded to be supportive” statement in 
its call for evidence of July 2017 at the start of its consultation on the new aviation strategy.  
This is directly contrary to existing Government policy in the APF which requires a thorough 

Page 121Page 367



understanding of impacts pre-decision.  The most recent consultation paper does not repeat 
this statement.

35mppa will not be reached until 2023 (MAG) or 2033 (DfT).  No lengthy construction works 
are involved, and why are any needed with no ATM increase?  May again be a “golden rivet” 
to delay payments under the 1973 Land Compensation Act.

Failure to discharge the unilateral undertaking obligation to carry out the impact studies 
required to be commissioned by 31.12.14.  Postponement would allow time for the obligation 
to be discharged and for local and national policy to become clearer.  It would also allow for 
a better assessment of post-Brexit implications for the aviation sector.

Concerns about UDC Competence and Impartiality
The Council faces two major challenges at the same time, these are the current airport 
application and the local plan.  

Prejudgement in favour of securing S106 benefits is suspected, especially funding M11J8 
improvements to secure local housing delivery in the local plan.

The Council has a close association with, and co-sponsors the LSCC.

The PPA has been used to curtail the opportunity for public engagement and fair and 
transparent consultation.  This is to be contrasted with the Generation 1 determination 
process.  Public comments have been wrongly categorised. 

There are concerns about favourable treatment towards the applicant.  It is easier for 
supporters to make representations than it is for objectors.  There is no UDC enthusiasm for 
submitting Part 1 claims under the Land Compensation Act 1973 for diminution in the value 
of Council-owned houses.

The Council is turning a blind eye to breaches of the G1 unilateral undertaking.

There are concerns at the lobbying activities of an Uttlesford councillor who owns an airport-
related business.

Planning Statement
(This chapter contains a digest of the national and local aviation and planning policies that 
SSE considers are relevant.  The chapter sets out SSE’s overarching planning policy 
objections).

There must be strong doubts as to whether further development at Stansted meets 
Government policy at this time.  The draft ANPS is strongly focussed on Heathrow runway 3 
with other proposals seemingly put on hold.  The draft does say that other proposals must 
demonstrate need that is additional to, and cannot be met by runway 3.  

Adopted Local Plan Policy ENV11 states that noise generators will only be approved where 
need has been demonstrated.  There is no convincing demonstration of need, only an 
assertion that expansion would benefit the economy.  The application is also clearly contrary 
to Objective 2c, paragraph 3.76 and Policy SP11of the emerging local plan.  Substantial 
growth at Stansted will not achieve mitigation and adaptation to climate change as required 
under Objective 3b.  

Page 122Page 368



There is a direct link between airport growth and UDC’s wider ambitions in the emerging 
local plan, which cannot be achieved without resolving the problem of M11 J8.  UDC may be 
trying to secure “pump priming” by permitting growth at Stansted in advance of the local plan 
examination.

If planning permission is granted the decision would almost certainly be challenged – on 
multiple grounds including abuse of process.  Planning permission should be refused for the 
following reasons:

(1) The proposals are contrary to Government airport policy as expressed in:

• The Draft ANPS (Oct 2017) – because no ‘additional or different’ need for the extra 
capacity at this time has been demonstrated, having regard inter alia to the most 
recent DfT Aviation Forecasts (Oct 2017); and

• The Airports Commission Final Report 2015: no case has been made for rejecting 
the Commission's view “that there may be a case for reviewing the Stansted planning 
cap if and when the airport moves closer to full capacity. Its forecasts indicate that 
this would not occur until at least the 2030s”.

(2) The proposals are contrary to the NPPF’s objectives for sustainable development – the 
economic case has not been adequately made; and environmental impact, including the 
adverse impact on climate changes, is an unavoidable consequence of increased aircraft 
travel.

(3) The proposals are contrary to the ELP Objective 2c and Policy SP11

• which limit the capacity of the airport to its 2008 permitted level

• the effective increase in ATMs above those required for the passenger limit of 
35mppa is a ‘significant’ and unacceptable increase

• the substantial increase in car trips without any increase in the modal share 
percentage target will not ‘minimise use of the private car'.

Historical Background
(This chapter sets out the history of Stansted Airport from its use as a WW2 American 
airbase up to the current day).

Aviation Forecasts
Forecasts only extend to 2028, which is not adequate as the emerging local plan extends to 
2033.

MAG’s forecasts are wildly at variance with those of the DfT and Airports Commission.  Very 
little evidence is submitted to substantiate MAG’s forecasts and MAG has a history of 
producing forecasts which are typically underachieved by 30-40%.  This includes forecasting 
in 1997 for the second runway planning permission at Manchester Airport and its 2007 
masterplan.  Assuming that Heathrow runway 3 will not open until 2030 inflates MAG’s own 
forecasts.  The CEO of Heathrow Airport said in evidence to the House of Commons 
Transport Committee in February 2018 that a 2026 opening is completely achievable.

Page 123Page 369



Dismissal of the competitive potential of Luton and Birmingham Airports and assumption that 
Heathrow and Gatwick have no further scope to increase passenger throughput on their 
existing runways in the next ten years.

MAG ignores the dominance of Ryanair and the fact that all other airlines at Stansted carry 
24% fewer passengers in 2016 than in 2011.  MAG does not want to highlight the 
vulnerability of its business to a single customer over which it has no control.

Wholesale replacement of the Stansted fleet by 2028 with new, cleaner and quieter aircraft 
is absurdly optimistic.  The ES assessments of noise, air quality, health impacts and carbon 
emissions are all based on these assumptions.   By 2028, Ryanair will have a fleet of 650 
aircraft, less than a third of which will be the new  MAX variant.  No allowance has been 
made for the modelling of long haul PATMs, and the forecasting assumes the use of the 
most modern variants of each CATM type.

Noise
Introduction
Stansted is located in rural surroundings where low background noise levels are a major part 
of quality of life.  A 52% increase in aircraft movements and a 77% increase in passengers 
are proposed compared to the 2016 baseline.  

Government policy
Government policy since 2013 has been undergoing significant change, 

- The introduction of improved noise metrics and appraisal guidance
- Lower threshold levels for the onset of community annoyance
- Number of flights to be taken into account, not just average noise levels
- Noise reduction now a priority up to 7,000ft
- Health impacts and quality of life factors are now included

Impact Assessment
The DfT-commissioned Survey of Noise Attitudes (SoNA 2014) says that significant 
community annoyance is now observed from 54dB LAeq, with the Lowest Observed Adverse 
Effect Level (LOAEL) for aviation is now likely in the range of 50-54dB LAeq, well below the 
current 57 dB LAeq benchmark.  For night noise, the WHO recommends an Lnight of 40dB.  

Using 54dB LAeq 16-hour contour figures and 45dB Lnight contours there is a considerable 
rise in the areas and populations affected compared to the 2016 baseline.  The current 
Condition AN1 contour is based on 57dB LAeq and is now clearly outdated.

Air Noise
MAG’s claim that new aircraft are 50% quieter refers to a 50% reduction in pressure level 
which is 3dB, the minimum perceptible by the human ear.  The quoted reductions in 
departure and arrival noise of the Boeing MAX variant would be effectively imperceptible.  
Modern high ratio bypass turbofan engines are characterised by a tonal (whine) feature 
which increases the likelihood of annoyance.

No account has been taken of the cumulative effects of forthcoming changes to routes for 
traffic operating from other airports in the SE.

Page 124Page 370



100% single mode LAeq contours are not provided.  These contours slightly better represent 
the real-world situation where aircraft can only use one runway direction depending on wind 
direction.  

The assessment study area of 25km x 30km is insufficient having regard to the area of noise 
complaints and the effect of PBN on the Clacton departure routes.  The area should cover 
30km x 40km, corresponding to the 2016 daytime complaints map in ES Appendix 7.5 
Figure F2.

Re background noise levels, the difference between the maximum noise level and the 
background level gives a much better indication of what people actually hear.  From 
measurements at all 16 locations in ES Appendix 7.4 there is a significant difference in noise 
levels between the LAmax and LA90 measurements, particularly at night.  Each aircraft 
noise event was clearly audible and Stansted is already allowed 13,700 night flights, more 
than the 5,800 allowed at Heathrow.

The reason why so many complaints about noise originate from some distance away from 
the airport is simply because these people are clearly annoyed or suffer sleep disturbance.  
These locations are generally overflown between 4,000 –7,000ft, exacerbated by the 
increased number of flights.  Since 2013, the number of complaints has risen from 907 to 
8,411 in 2017.

Ground Noise
Similar concerns exist as for air noise.  The ES does not take into account atmospheric 
conditions such as inverse temperature gradient and wind speed / direction other than a 
vague and unspecified adjustment for downwind conditions.  Even limited comparison of 
daytime and night time average LAeq values for the 2016 baseline compared to 43mppa at 
nine receptor locations show that the noise environment would generally worsen.

Surface Access Noise
All 38 link road locations currently exceed WHO guideline values of 55dB for serious 
annoyance and all would have increased levels at 43mppa.  There is no cumulative 
assessment with ground noise.

Helicopters
This has not been assessed despite UDC advice to do so and despite recognition by DfT 
that helicopters can be perceived as up to 15dB or nearly three times louder than fixed wing 
aircraft.  Most of the impact at Stansted is concentrated upon specific communities to the 
west of the airport, who are mostly not significantly affected by fixed wing aircraft noise.

Surface Access – Road
Introduction and Context
The TA is flawed, misleading and contradictory; it fails to provide clear and adequate 
justification and support for assumptions and fails to adhere to appropriate guidance.

The NPPF requires that impact is assessed in the context of cumulative impact that includes 
the increase from the existing level of use to the existing permitted level of use.  Cumulative 
increase in relation to airport traffic is from 24.3mppa to 43mppa (77%).

Page 125Page 371



Staff and Passenger Movements
The terms “car” and “car passenger” need clarifying.  Query the sampling method used in 
the CAA passenger survey – data likely to be unreliable unless a single response from each 
travelling group has been ensured.  There are unreliable and unjustifiable assumptions 
about vehicle occupancy which have caused SSE to commission its own survey from CAA.

Peak demand period extends from May/June to October, longer than the school holiday 
period.  TA assumptions produce a marked trough from 07:00 – 08:00, which is used as the 
assessment period for highways impact.  Whilst landside passenger movements are shown 
to increase by 142% in that period, the level of movement still remains the lowest of all 
daytime hours.  This is not consistent with the TA statement that there will be a levelling of 
demand throughout the day.  The number arriving and departing in the 17:00 – 18:00 period 
is predicted to decrease, which is unlikely.

Data on car park movements show almost double the number during 07:00 – 08:00 
compared to the following hour.

No information is provided to show how passenger numbers vary between weekdays.  
Material variations between weekdays may have significant implications for highways 
impact.

There are inconsistencies between passenger movement by car data shown in Tables 4.7, 
6.6-6.8 and Appendices G1, 3, 4, 5, 6 and 8.  There is no explanation to justify alterations in 
passenger behaviour such as reduction in the use of drop-off, which would increase parking 
demand.  No information is provided on existing passenger demand for car parking spaces.  
It is not possible to understand the existing balance of car parking supply and demand, or to 
assess how this would change.

Car parking is not part of the planning application.  There is no constraint on increasing 
supply for which there is financial pressure.

Inconsistent use of staffing numbers and STAL has a long history of overestimating 
employment growth.  Query the daily staff attendance and staff car occupancy figures in the 
TA.  Query the predicted reduction in staff car movements in the assessment hours when 
staff levels will increase by 14%.  Question the assumption behind the target for reducing the 
staff car driver mode share by 10%.  A supply of 5,000 staff car parking spaces represents 
overprovision, undermining efforts to reduce staff car driver mode share.

Parking Capacity
SSE calculates that 70,661 car parking spaces will be needed, 40,000 more that at present.  
These (and their construction impacts) have not been considered in the planning application 
or the ES.  100ha would be required to provide these spaces at ground level – multi-storey 
provision (anticipated in the 2015 SDP) will have additional visual impacts and costs. 

Traffic Growth
Background traffic growth has been applied to non-airport traffic and the prediction of 
increases in airport related movement have been applied to airport flows.  Use of TEMPro 
“all rural” growth factors appears incorrect given that key impacts will be on the M11 and 
A120.  No assessment of changes in turning movements has been made.

Page 126Page 372



Impact on Highway Network
No passenger car trips are assigned to the Cooper’s End roundabout, Church Road or Bury 
Lodge Lane.   Parsonage Road is very convenient for passengers east of the airport and for 
some coming for the south.  It is also attractive to staff since the majority of airport 
employment is located near to Cooper’s End roundabout.  TA severely underestimates the 
impact on Parsonage Road and the Four Ashes junction.  TA conclusions of negligible 
impacts on local roads cannot be considered robust.

The impact on M11 J8 will be greater than anticipated for the following reasons:

• All assessments are based on average passenger numbers. Highways impact will 
be greater than this level during a significant proportion of the year, including periods 
that do not coincide with school holidays;

• The predicted ‘trough’ in passenger vehicle movement during the 07:00-08:00 
period is contradicted by the fact that passenger movement will be ‘evened out’ as 
the runway operates at higher levels of capacity;

• The predicted ‘trough’ in passenger vehicle movements during the 07:00-08:00 
period is contradicted by existing evidence of patterns of car arrivals and departures 
at the airport car parks;

• It is predicted that in the 17:00-18:00 peak hour the number of passenger car 
movements will reduce by 5% with a 44% increase in passenger numbers (to 
35mppa). This result is not credible. Passenger vehicle movements will increase 
during this period and the overall increase with 44mppa is likely to be higher;

• Staff vehicle movements are based on an unjustified assumption that only 50% of 
staff are present on any one day. It is likely that more than 50% will work on any one 
day;

• Considerable uncertainty surrounds forecasts for staff numbers. For example, the 
predicted level of staff increase adopted for the purposes of impact assessment is 
less than that originally predicted in the scoping report and as set out on the planning 
application form. No justification is given for the reduced assumed level of staffing;

• It has been calculated that staff vehicle movements will decrease in the 07:00-08:00 
and 17:00-18:00 periods with a 14% increase in staffing levels in the 35mppa 
situation despite these periods currently having some of the highest hourly staff 
arrivals and departures. This is not credible, particularly given that an increase is 
predicted as passenger numbers increase to 43mppa;

• The assumed 10% decrease in staff car driver mode share is contrary to current 
airport policy (that provides no incentive to reduce staff car driver mode share to 
anything lower than the current level) and is contradicted by the proposal to 
significantly increase staff parking;

• The level of background traffic growth has been under-estimated since it is based 
on ‘all rural’ roads rather than ‘rural trunk’ roads;

Page 127Page 373



• No allowance has been made for the possible increased local impact of proposed 
development on the A120/M11 interchange resulting from the likely distribution of 
Local Plan development.

STAL’s “Further Improvement Scheme” has a number of design concerns that may reduce 
its effectiveness as a mitigation strategy.  UDC’s local plan transport study prepared by 
WYG identified severe capacity constraints associated with the A120 and M11 in the vicinity 
of the airport within the local plan period.  Despite this work, the impact on these strategic 
links has been ignored.

Environmental Statement
The TA makes no attempt to identify sensitive receptors, which is a fundamental principle of 
environmental assessment.  Should have focussed on those local roads and communities 
around the airport where sensitive receptors are located such as Takeley, Stansted 
Mountfitchet, Burton End and Tye Green.  SSE highlights impacts on Parsonage Road, Bury 
Lodge Lane and from construction traffic.

Surface Access – Rail
Recent rail mode share growth has been at the expense of bus and coach and has not 
reduced the use of the car.

The TA uses 65% “crush loading” as its reference point for assessing standing capacity, 
which is inappropriate as Class 317 and 379 trains are not metro style with few seats.  This 
level of standing may be unachievable.  The DfT standard of no more than 35% standing for 
no more than 20 minutes would not be met between Tottenham Hale and Bishop’s Stortford.  
Baseline loadings between Tottenham Hale and Harlow indicate that extra capacity will soon 
be needed.  The assumed standing capacity of the new trains is not stated, but appears to 
be 45%.

WAML is quadruple-tracked only as far as Bethnal Green and the STEX clock face timetable 
limits capacity in the airport tunnel.  There are no spare train paths into or out of Liverpool 
Street in the peaks.  There is no possibility of extra tracks or line speed improvements 
between Liverpool Street and Tottenham Hale.  Aspiration for a 40-minute journey time 
would be extremely challenging.  4-tracking between Tottenham Hale and Broxbourne is 15 
years away at the earliest and is Crossrail 2 contingent.

Longer trains are likely to lead to slower boarding times.  It would be wholly unacceptable to 
local residents to cut out intermediate stops in order to accommodate airport growth.  There 
is concern that this might be the only way of reducing journey times in the short and medium 
terms.

The impact on peak demand for rail services has not been adequately assessed.

Sensitivity tests of a rail mode share of 30% and 35% should be undertaken.  The APF 
policy test of increasing the use of public transport by passengers to access the airport is not 
met.  Similarly, the proposal would not satisfy Criterion h of Policy SP11 of the emerging 
local plan which requires minimising the use of the private car and maximising the use of 
sustainable transport modes.

Page 128Page 374



The applicant should be required to commit to, and help finance, an eastward extension of 
the rail line to Braintree.  This would improve rail connectivity, provide greater reliability and 
resilience, provide a greater opportunity for all-night services and make better use of 
capacity into and out of Liverpool Street.

Air Quality
There are uncertainties over cumulative impacts when new airport-related road traffic is 
added to new housing-related road traffic.  A main concern is NO2 levels at Hockerill 
junction in Bishop’s Stortford, and a 2016 exceedance of NO2 annual mean concentration at 
Burton End, the latter being close to the airport perimeter and the M11.The Four Ashes at 
Takeley is close to the limit, as is Chapel Hill in Stansted Mountfitchet.  No information has 
been provided about impacts within the airport perimeter.

Increased emissions will undoubtedly affect both Hatfield Forest and East End Wood SSSIs 
where aircraft will be below 3,000ft, particularly when landing.  No proper assessment can 
be carried out into the impact on Hatfield Forest until the numerous uncertainties relating to 
road traffic and aircraft emissions have been resolved.

Aircraft fleet mix assumptions are absurdly optimistic, and modelling has only considered 
emissions in the LTO cycle up to 1,500ft rather than the ICAO recommended threshold of 
3,000ft.  The proposal cannot be supported under emerging local plan Policy EN16.  

Socio-economic Impacts
Few benefits are quantified, and there is overstatement and inaccuracy.  The many 
significant disbenefits are ignored.

Inexplicable that MAG anticipates no productivity improvements at 43mppa rather than 
35mppa.  This is not in accordance with the Government’s vision in its aviation strategy call 
for evidence.

There is a very significant difference between the type of jobs on offer at the airport and the 
type of jobs available to local residents.  Average earnings of airport employees are very 
substantially lower than local average earnings.  More jobs at the airport would only add to 
economic growth if they replace less productive jobs elsewhere, but many airport jobs are 
relatively unskilled.  Airport wages will not go very far in the local housing market.

The local area effectively has full employment.  The airport has, in effect, outgrown the local 
jobs market.  Just 18.3% of airport employees are Uttlesford residents (2015) down from 
23.8% (Generation 1).  The Uttlesford number of jobs has declined despite an overall 
increase in airport jobs of 2,000 over the same period.

MAG should provide a sensitivity analysis for the contingency of Ryanair withdrawing from 
the airport, and also for an unfavourable Brexit outcome.

There is no estimation of user benefits, nor any proper assessment of the impact on the UK 
economy.  Business travel accounts for just 14% of Stansted passengers compared to a 
London average of 21%.  

International UK Leisure is the dominant sector at Stansted, resulting in a “tourism deficit”.  
Earlier Government support in the 2003 ATWP was based on projections for inward and 

Page 129Page 375



outward visitors, but current Government aviation policy lacks clarity.  Effect on the UK trade 
balance must therefore be a material planning consideration.

MAG gives limited consideration to social and environmental factors beyond travel and 
employment opportunities.  MAG does not acknowledge the cost to the wider community 
from expansion, such as the predicted increase in cargo flights from 10,126 in 2017 to 
16,000 in 2028, many of which will be larger, elderly aircraft.  Economic benefits would not 
accrue to those forced to endure the societal and environmental disbenefits.

There is misrepresentation of policy support for expansion, and claims of support from other 
bodies even when they are grounded in vested interest. There is currently considerable 
uncertainty over Government aviation policy.

Carbon Emissions and Climate Change
SSE disagrees with the assertion that the additional carbon emissions arising at 43mppa are 
insignificant and therefore acceptable.  Emissions estimates should be extended to 2050 to 
cover both the UK statutory framework and the Government’s policy framework. 

Whilst the APF set out an aviation sector emissions reduction objective, there was little 
further clarity because the Government was still relying on an effective EU emissions trading 
scheme.  There is still a lack of clarity, but aviation CO2 emissions need to be brought under 
control if the statutory target of cutting the UK’s carbon emissions by 80% by 2050 is to be 
met (Climate Change Act 2008).  To ensure UK aviation total carbon emissions are no 
higher in 2050 than in 2005, the Committee on Climate Change (CCC) recommended a cap 
of 37.5mtCO2.  This cap is unlikely to be relaxed, and may need to be reduced in view of the 
Paris Agreement.

The EU ETS has proved almost entirely ineffective as far as aviation emissions are 
concerned, and it cannot yet be said whether CORSIA will be another false dawn.  It will use 
2020 as a baseline for emission levels and will only apply to 80% of emissions growth above 
that baseline.  It is unlikely to have a short term impact as it isn’t mandatory until 2027.  

Little weight should be placed on roadmaps produced by Sustainable Aviation (an industry-
sponsored organisation) because of its track record of wild optimism.  The Government’s 
working assumption of a carbon price of £221 / tonne in 2050 has potentially serious 
repercussions for the aviation industry, particularly the low fares carriers.

MAG has understated base and development case emissions because of: i) over-optimism 
on the rate of replacement of current aircraft types, ii) full account not being taken of the 
anticipated large increase in long-haul traffic, and iii) full account not being taken of the 
projected 58% increase in CATMs.  SSE suggests an underestimation by 15-20%.  These 
are significantly above what the DfT has allowed for in its forecasts, assuming Stansted is 
capped at 35mppa.

If planning permission is granted, the increase in carbon emissions compared to the base 
case would be 6mt until 2050.  This is not far short of the emissions that would have been 
generated over the lifespan of the proposed open-cast mining operation at Highthorn 
(Northumberland) which the Secretary of State refused in March 2018.  His main reason was 
that the effects of carbon in the atmosphere would have a cumulative effect in the long term.  
The revised draft ANPS states:

Page 130Page 376



“Any increase in carbon emissions alone is not a reason to refuse development consent, 
unless the increase in carbon emissions resulting from the project is so significant that it 
would have a material impact on the ability of the Government to meet its carbon reduction 
targets, including carbon budgets”.

No account has been taken of the Radiative Forcing effect of aviation emissions.

Health and Wellbeing
The HIA was carried out without any degree of independence or expert advice from any 
eminent health professionals (unlike in the case of the G1 planning application), and its 
credibility must therefore be questioned.

It is common ground that the proposed increased number of flights and associated increase 
in road traffic would result in increased noise impacts and poorer local air quality. 
Government policy – for health reasons – is to improve air quality for local people, not 
reduce it; and the Government's policy – again, for health reasons – is for fewer people to 
suffer the impacts of aircraft noise, not more people.

The adverse health impacts of aircraft pollution, including noise pollution, are wide ranging 
and often very serious respiratory and cardiovascular diseases, and the effects of stress and 
anxiety being amongst the most prominent of these adverse health impacts. 

No net positive health benefits can be identified from the proposed expansion for the 
residents of Uttlesford or surrounding districts, where there has long been full employment 
and well above average earnings. Uttlesford is repeatedly ranked one of the best places to 
live in England, in terms of quality of life. However, amongst the few disadvantages of the 
local area are increasing road traffic and rail congestion and pressures in the housing 
market. The proposed development would have a negative impact on all these areas.

There is no proper assessment of the cumulative effects which means including other 
developments taking place locally at this time, and of the combined adverse effect of the 
additional noise, emissions, road traffic, light pollution and other impacts upon particular 
receptors (local residents) who would bear the brunt of the impacts. In addition, some 
impacts have been disregarded altogether, for example light pollution.

The term 'wellbeing' is used subjectively and it is of no surprise that the HIA should conclude 
by asserting, without any valid evidence, that community wellbeing would be enhanced by 
the proposed development. The volume of individual objection letters already submitted to 
UDC regarding this application by members of the public confirms the local concerns which 
exist about any exacerbation of airport-related activity.

In the case of the G1 application, an extensive 'Quality of Life' survey, including a 
questionnaire provided to local residents, was carried out on behalf of STAL to assess the 
impact that expansion would have on community wellbeing. The results of that survey 
showed general opposition to the airport expansion proposal, much of this based on 
concerns about health and reduced quality of life. These results may or may not be the 
reason why no similar such survey was carried out on this occasion. The assertion that 
community health and wellbeing would be enhanced by the proposed development is totally 
rejected.

Page 131Page 377



Concluding Points
In the limited time available we have not been able to review all of the topics in the ES and 
so we have had to prioritise. This is not to say that we have no concerns about the topics we 
have not managed to examine. In fact, we do have significant concerns in a number of these 
areas, for example:

• The visual impact of the proposed development, particularly at night when we 
expect that the new taxiways and aircraft stands will require some form of illumination 
which will add to the already hideous 'night glow' that emanates from the airport and 
intrudes upon the clarity of the rural night sky

• The impact of the proposed development on available water resources when 
considered cumulatively alongside the additional demand for water that will arise 
from the significant new housing that is planned for the relevant local area over the 
period to 2033.

• Ecology and biodiversity impacts, both on-airport – where existing grass-lands 
would need to be ploughed up to make way for the new aircraft stands and taxiways 
– and off-airport, with particular regard to potential impacts upon Hatfield Forest and 
East End Wood SSSIs.

• Construction impacts – which we have only looked at briefly on the basis that these 
would at least be only temporary. However, there would appear to be a need for 
further construction to increase parking capacity, yet this has not been mentioned in 
the application.

By focusing on impacts in just six core areas – Noise, Surface access, Air quality, Socio-
economic factors, Climate change and Health – we have been able to scrutinise the ES and 
TA in some detail, probing MAG's assumptions and assertions, and checking the evidence 
and analysis. We have not been impressed with what we have found.

 MAG appears to have submitted this planning application, together with the ES and TA, in 
the confident expectation that it would be approved at local level with little fuss, delay or 
scrutiny. That cannot possibly now be the case. As will be evident from the main body of this 
submission, we have uncovered not just multiple errors and omissions in the ES and the TA 
but also fundamental flaws and outright misrepresentations.

On the one hand this gives us confidence that if UDC were to proceed to determine this 
application – properly exercising its quasi-judicial role in relation to planning decisions – the 
application would unquestionably be refused.

On the other hand, we continue to have profound concerns about local determination and so 
we adhere to the view that proper consideration of this application requires a holistic view 
across a wide range of issues, not least, the London airports market. It also requires a level 
of scrutiny, expertise and objectivity that can only be provided by national determination. 
That would also allow time for more thorough analysis.

We stand ready to discuss this submission with UDC Planning Officers at any time.

2nd Response

Page 132Page 378



Reiterate view that the proposal should be NSIP.  SSE submitted a Judicial Review to seek 
to overturn the SoS decision not to deal with application

Reiterate concerns about inadequacies in the ES and Planning Statement, prematurity, 
UDC’s competence and impartiality

SSE has also submitted their comments on the Consultee Response Schedule.  This largely 
reaffirms their views on the various points that the applicant has addressed which were in 
relation to concerns raised by SSE in their first response to the application.

Page 133Page 379



REPRESENTATIONS
Neighbours were notified of the application by letter, and notices were displayed near the 
site and in the local press. Consultation period expired on 30 August 2018.

The following concerns have been raised in the submitted representations (854 letters):

Process and background information

• Should be considered at national level as a National Significant Infrastructure Project 
(NSIP)

• Airport forecasts inaccurate
• Doesn't stand up to scrutiny
• Premature until Airport Policy published
• Proposals to expand Heathrow, Gatwick, Luton, London City and Southend Airports 

renders MAG's planning application unnecessary and inappropriate
• "Making Best Use of Existing Runways" does not support construction of additional 

infrastructure to extend capacity of existing runways
• Previous applications made it clear additional infrastructure was not needed.
• Concern about PPA
• Details of revised PPA need to be publicised

Surface Access and Transport

• Increase in traffic and overcrowding on trains
• Increased road congestion and impacts on railways
• Transport infrastructure having difficulties coping
• Improvements to road network needed
• A120 cannot cope with extra traffic
• Increased accident risks
• Impacts on M11
• Been a 23% increase in road traffic accidents on the Essex section of M11 in last 

year
• Large proportion of car parking fees should be put towards public transport
• STAL should pay to upgrade rail infrastructure
• Need new rail infrastructure, bus routes and cycle routes
• Longer trains will result in longer delays and traffic congestion at level crossings
• Needs supporting rail links from Midlands and the North
• Proposed Easton Park Garden Town and current committed housing will push local 

roads to limits
• Lack of detail relating to vehicle movements to and from car parks
• Congestion impacting on local tourism
• An airport and a new town in same area is just too much

Noise 

• More people being overflown
• Noise pollution and blight to villages

Page 134Page 380



• Should be conditional on unambiguous noise reduction targets being met and 
introduction of mitigation measures and noise limits in communities living under 
Performance Based Navigation flight paths

• Overflown since 2014 and lives destroyed
• If permitted to increase number of flights situation will become unbearable
• Removal of respite periods of calm
• Detrimental effects on communities, infrastructure and quality of life and environment
• Breach of our human rights for fresh air, peace and quiet and sufficient sleep
• More clarification on changes to noise restrictions
• Noise complaints are ignored
• Requested flights be directed away from Howe Green School and our homes
• Noise insulation grant ineffective in listed buildings close to airport
• High Easter noise monitor study carried out with noise monitor in our garden.  

Analysis showed noise level was borderline unacceptable.  Not mentioned in ES
• Runway 04 does not have CDA therefore planes fly at 2000ft above Harlow.  No 

noise surveys conducted in Harlow to measure impacts
• CAA statistics reveal population in noise contours has increased, as have noise 

complaints
• 11 fold increase in noise complaints since the Detling/Dover NPR switch
• Section 7.55 of the ES states "Noise level changes of less than 3dB are generally not 

perceptible and therefore give rise to effects that are negligible."  Table 7.6 shown 
new generation aircraft being only 3dB less noisy.  Therefore, by STAL's own 
assessment the introduction of new aircraft will have no impact on noise reduction.

• Continuous noise from aircraft in Lavenham
• Noise bad in Hatfield Heath especially from transport jets at night
• Noise level measured in our house has exceeded 100 decibels for some aircraft 

taking off
• Need compensation for those affected
• Impacts on people in Sudbury
• Noise impacts in Chelmsford
• Changes to flight paths over High Easter has changed quality of life
• Aircraft noise already impacts Newport
• Villages under flight paths of both Luton and Stansted
• Planes fly low over Westland Green creating disturbance, increase air pollution and 

noise
• Theydon Bois affected by noise and air pollution
• Ashdon badly affected by noise from landing aircraft as they turn and slow
• Increase in traffic with noise pollution, litter and fly parking
• Increase in noise, fumes, litter and traffic
• Residents of Bishop's Stortford suffer adverse impacts from noise pollution, traffic 

congestion, fly parking and pressure on housing, medical and other social 
infrastructure

• Bishop's Stortford Golf Club facilities are seriously affected by aircraft movements 
due to noise

• Noise is health and safety risk
• Endangers continuance of Great Hallingbury Local History Society due to aircraft 

noise at venue
• Noise levels for vectored flights on Clacton route not done

Page 135Page 381



• Can an airport legally be allowed to expand over land earmarked by UDC and 
Braintree DC for a new city?  

• National policy says flightpaths cannot overfly heavily populated areas, and the 
planned West of Braintree new city with 13,500 houses, in in an area that is 
overflown both by outgoing and incoming planes

• Increased impacts on residents of Rayne
• Will have impacts on air traffic distribution over Suffolk, Norfolk and Cambridgeshire

Air Quality

• Air pollution from planes and vehicles
• Increase in air pollution and air ground noise impacting on health and schoolchildren
• Increased pollution at Hockerill traffic lights
• Several areas in Stansted at or nearing poor air quality levels
• Impacts on Epping Forest area from noise, pollution and traffic congestion
• Pollution including oily film on ponds, impacts on environment, children's health, local 

wildlife
• Impacts on local amenities (Hatfield Forest, Flitch Way) not been quantified
• Planes already breach EU limits for nitrogen dioxide pollution

Socio-economic 

• Questionable economic benefits outweighed by negative impacts of increased noise, 
pollution and pressure on local infrastructure

• Benefits to Uttlesford questionable.  
• No social or economic justification for expansion
• Exacerbating the UK tourism and trade deficit
• Airport is vulnerable to actions of main customer who make up 80% of business
• Heathrow expansion will affect other airports
• Brexit could have unknown impacts on airline operators
• Will impact on Northern Powerhouse aspirations
• Local people discriminated against in applying for jobs
• Extra housing.  Hospital, doctors' surgeries and schools do not have capacity for 

additional housing
• Given rapid developments in communications technology highly likely that business 

related air travel will diminish, or at least not increase at anything like MAG's forecast 
levels

Carbon emissions

• Will breach carbon emissions targets
• Increase use of fossil fuels
• Increase in carbon emissions
• Expansion of Stansted and Heathrow will absorb the limits in carbon emissions 

impacting ability of northern airports to expand

Climate change

• Contrary to public benefit of Essex and contingent areas and fight against global 
warming and to conserve natural environment

Page 136Page 382



Public health and wellbeing

• Should reject due to negative impact on health and wellbeing of thousands of people
• Health deteriorated due to aircraft noise
• Health will suffer from noisy aircraft and poorer air quality
• May limit potential for upkeeping community facility (Great Hallingbury Village Hall)
• Need a new hospital closer to airport
• Flights passing over Harlow Hospital causing disturbance to patients.  Unsafe and 

detrimental to health and welfare of patients
• Will ruin quality of life of residents of Bishop's Stortford  
• Medically unsafe to live in Bishop's Stortford - too few GPs and only one hospital in 

Harlow

Water resources and flood risk

• Inadequate water supply.

Ecology

• Concern about impacts on deer
• Since change in flight path there has been a decrease in insect, bee and bug 

population which has caused the reduction in swift, swallow and the night flight of 
bats, all killed off by pollutants from aircraft.  Flight path should be over agricultural 
land or the road network

Night flights

• All night flights should be phased out leading to complete ban by 2030.
• Freight should not be increased at night
• Object to changes to night flights
• Night flights should be banned

Other issues 

• 44% increase in flights and 66% increase in passengers, based on last year's 
statistics

• Support views of SSE

• Infrastructure struggling to cope with current numbers

• Cargo flights not considered in impacts
• Object to merging of aircraft quotas

• Loss of land for infrastructure
• Loss of agricultural land
• Will impact on CPZ
• Damage to listed buildings due to increased traffic

• Need to provide more car parking to stop fly parking and remove charges for drop-
off/pick up

Page 137Page 383



• Needs to be measures to prevent off-airport development

• Insufficient community involvement 
• Policy SP11 needs more robust wording
• Limited airspace will be exacerbated by projected increases in capacity elsewhere

Second runway

• Object to extension of the runway as would ruin many beautiful buildings
• Object to second runway.  Increase occupation of airspace around London could run 

the risk of accidents
• Roundabout way to get second runway
• Concerned about likelihood of another runway being proposed

Non-planning issues and issues with airport generally

• Airport is too small
• Bad security arrangements at airport
• Stansted Airport needs to get the operation working seamlessly before being allowed 

to expand further
• Airport is like a cattle market
• Often cited as worst airport in the country, or even world on a range of issues 

including disability access and passenger experience

• Not paid Part 1 Land Compensation Act compensation

• No compensation or infrastructure provided for town by airport or airlines
• Bishop's Stortford has never received any infrastructure improvements from airport
• No grants from EU for Bishop's Stortford

• Greedy companies and businesses use the airport as an excuse to destroy our 
Herts/Essex beautiful green fields and valleys

• Airport's existence been an excuse for the housing-greedy anti-democratic East 
Herts Council to build thousands of houses

• A new airport should be located in the Thames Estuary not in the middle of the Essex 
countryside

The following comments have been made SUPPORTING the proposal (99 letters):

Noise

• Noise is minimal in Takeley, Hatfield Heath, Harlow and Bishop's Stortford
• People choosing to live near airport don't have right to complain about noise

Page 138Page 384



Socio-economic

• Air HUB receives mail from and despatches mail to 44 mail centres in the Anglia, 
South East and London area.  Also has 14 scanning machines to x-ray all mail for 
despatching to Scotland and Northern Ireland by air.  Around 120 staff employed, 
plus drivers.  No objections providing scheme doesn't cause disruption to our 
operations.

• Important to our business and businesses we support trading internationally
• Beneficial to businesses and consumers within the East of England
• Imperative UK and London-Cambridge economic corridor is permitted to grow
• Strong, growing airport symbiotic with strong, growing regional and national economy
• Businesses would be well supported by proposed increase in passenger numbers
• Important to our members and wider Suffolk business community
• Impact of Stansted Airport as largest single-site employer in East of England cannot 

be underestimated
• Supports economic activity throughout Essex, the region and further afield
• Importance as source of sustainable employment at Harlow College is substantial
• Will continue to attract high value service industries
• Vital to local economy and will increase access to opportunity in careers in aviation, 

engineering, business services, warehousing, retail and visitor economy
• Tremendous interest in new Harlow College campus at Stansted Airport
• Will create a further 5000 new on-site jobs at airport
• Opportunity for investment, expansion and growth
• INVEST Essex believe that this connectivity will further enhance the county's offer to 

international investors
• Successful in attracting new scheduled cargo services
• Very much an asset for the growth of Essex economy and surrounding areas of East 

of England and UK as a whole
• Opportunity with Brexit
• London Stansted needs flexibility in capacity to respond quickly to capitalise on future 

opportunities for both passenger and cargo routes
• Opportunity to provide capacity in London area while Heathrow's third runway is 

constructed
• INVEST Essex supports and engine of growth within Essex economy
• Keen to promote opportunities at new Stansted Business Park
• Will provide a major positive impact to local, regional and UK's economy.
• Believe it is essential to local and national economy that Stansted receives 

appropriate investment and expansion required to accommodate our growing 
economy

• Provides livelihood for thousands of local residents
• Airport supports young people with educational facilities including new college 

providing much needed technical skills
• Long been concerned with capacity constraints facing London and South East airport
• Need to be using what we have to fullest extent for benefit of our economy
• Passenger and freight flows important part of regional economy
• Will benefit local and regional economies in terms of jobs and skills growth
• Revenue generated is a key component of income to the airport which drives 

improved infrastructure and connectivity, and a positive passenger experience

Page 139Page 385



• Increase in passenger numbers would expect to increase our staffing levels
• As a global company we are very aware of the importance of meeting the demand for 

air travel and connectivity at UK airports and welcome London Stansted's approach 
to sustainable growth

• Meet the Buyer events successful
• Benefitted professionally and personally from mentoring programme at Forest Hall 

School.  Income spent locally helping economy
• Visitor numbers expected to grow by 12%
• Over 246,000 people in the region are currently dependent on a thriving travel and 

tourism sector for their livelihoods
• Around a third of travel and tourism jobs are held by young people (aged 16-24), 

compared to just 12% of all jobs in the wider economy, and the visitor economy is a 
sector with potential to grow employment and value quickly

• Stansted vital as International Gateway
• Encouraged by new routes
• Cambridge's success due in part to its international connections
• Lifting cap sends positive message regarding growth and mobility
• Children benefitting from further education opportunities
• Stansted is important to success of Harlow Enterprise Zone and local economy
• Work with airport to provide apprenticeships
• Expanding the UK’s air freight capacity is crucial to encouraging trade and 

investment in the South East of England and will benefit UK business exporters who 
need to send or receive their shipments as quickly as possible

• This will be even more essential in a post-Brexit environment
• London Stansted Airport, lies at the heart of the UK’s Innovation Corridor which links 

London and Cambridge
• The Corridor is home to over two million people and is the location of four million 

jobs: this is the leading region in the UK for ideas, innovation and entrepreneurship
• The Corridor has consistently outperformed the rest of the UK on a number of key 

measures: jobs growth; business growth; population growth; and workforce growth 
(20.2%/9.0%)

• This Corridor is a £226bn economy that has a productivity rate 16% higher than the 
UK average

• The continued growth of the airport and its improved connections to Europe and the 
rest of the World are very important for the future growth of the UK’s Innovation 
Corridor to achieve the joint ambition of the LSCC: to become one of the top five 
Global knowledge regions by 2036

• In the opinion of the LSCC it is important that the airport has headroom to be able to 
grow its passenger throughput beyond the current limit of 35 million passengers per 
annum to best use of the single runway at 43 million ppa.

• Connectivity for leisure purposes important

EIA Approach

• Imperative that the social and economic benefits associated with growth need to be 
balanced against any potential adverse environmental consequences

• The Consortium is aware that the Environmental Impact Assessment accompanying 
the planning application finds that there are no significant environmental effects and 

Page 140Page 386



that the health and wellbeing of communities can be secured.  Whilst this is to be 
very much welcomed, LSCC will expect these findings to be confirmed or otherwise 
by rigorous examination.  Of particular concern of course are issues relating to 
aircraft noise and air quality impacts, both of which are of considerable concern to 
communities.

• Application made in responsible way
• This best use of capacity comes with minimised impacts on people living near airport 

or under its flightpaths
• Taking a responsible approach with benefits for all and minimises environmental 

impacts

General comments

• More appropriate than Heathrow
• Heathrow shouldn't be the only main UK hub
• Need to make full and efficient use of our airports
• In need of additional runway capacity
• New management worked hard to attract new routes

938 responses have been received covering the following:  

I support the planning application (UTT/18/0460/FUL) to allow sustainable growth at 
Stansted.

In particular, I support proposals that will:

• Attract new airlines and flights to more global destinations
• Create 5000 more jobs and double the airport’s economic contribution
• Provide confidence the future growth can be delivered in a responsible way

Page 141Page 387



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 388



CONSULTATIONS - SUPPLEMENTARY PACK

Extraordinary Planning Committee

Date: Wednesday, 14th November, 2018
Time: 10.00 am
Venue: Council Chamber - Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, 

CB11 4ER

Chairman: Councillor A Mills
Members: Councillors R Chambers, P Fairhurst, R Freeman, E Hicks, 

M Lemon, J Lodge, J Loughlin (Vice-Chair), H Ryles and L Wells

ITEMS WITH SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
PART 1

Open to Public and Press

3 UTT/18/0460/FUL - Stansted Airport 3 - 142

To consider application UTT/18/0460/FUL.
 Consultations

Public Document Pack

Page 389



For information about this meeting please refer to the main agenda pack, or 
contact Democratic Services

Telephone: 01799 510369 or 510548 
Email: Committee@uttlesford.gov.uk

General Enquiries
Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, CB11 4ER

Telephone: 01799 510510
Fax: 01799 510550

Email: uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk
Website: www.uttlesford.gov.uk

Page 390

mailto:Committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
mailto:uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk
http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/


CONSULTATIONS
BRAINTREE DISTRICT COUNCIL

The economic benefits of the application to increase the passenger cap by 22.9%, and to 
make further improvements on site, means neighbouring districts including its nearest 
neighbour Braintree District, will benefit economically. These economic impacts will create 
an ongoing series of benefits, which will serve as a founding legacy for future investment 
attraction and infrastructure improvement. These are categorised, although not exclusively 
exhaustive under the following main headings: 

Job Creation – There will be significant job creation on-site, estimated 5,000 on-site, as a 
result of the site improvements and with the extended passenger cap, further employment 
opportunities, which will be available to the local labour force and are supportive of the 
district’s key growth sectors including construction. The Council wishes to work with MAG 
and other companies based at the airport to promote job opportunities to Braintree residents.

Skills Development – There will be opportunity to continue the extensive work with Stansted 
Airport College, local authorities and schools, to strengthen and grow skills development in 
the form of apprenticeships and work experience ensuring a pipeline of future talent for the 
airport and the 200 plus on-site companies. 

Tourism – Tourism in the Braintree district could be positively impacted by these proposals, 
increasing the number of visitors to the area, who will not exclusively access areas and 
points of interest in the Braintree district, but will also be supportive to the service industry 
including transport, hospitality and retail. The Council wishes to work with MAG to promote 
the attractions in Braintree District to airport passengers.

Business and Inward Investment – Improvements and passenger cap extensions would see 
the potential to deliver reduced fares, fewer delays, greater resilience and preferred choice 
of daily destinations, relative to no expansion which will benefit the local business 
community. It will provide easier access to the district and increasing desirability for new and 
existing businesses to start up and grow in the Braintree district. It will also encourage 
business expansion to emerging markets through B2B and exports and supply chain 
management.

The district benefits from good access to an improved airport with more 
destinations/business opportunities. Improvements to M11 and junction 8 would likely have 
knock on benefits for businesses/public and these are strongly supported by the District. 
However it is noted that the A120 and the congestion hotspot of Galleys Corner is not 
assessed as part of this application. A dual A120 which will help better connect Stansted 
Airport to the eastern parts of Essex is being planned but in the meantime the Council would 
wish to work with MAG, Highways England and Essex County Council to ensure that traffic 
impacts are minimised and sustainable transport options are maximised. Whilst Braintree 
town does have bus links to the airport, other parts of the District are less well served and 
the Council would like to work with Essex County Council and MAG to improve those links. 
In the more medium term the Council is working with partners to develop a rapid transit 
system for North Essex which could link to the airport, and support from MAG for this 
scheme would be welcome to ensure maximum integration into the airports infrastructure.

Page 3

Agenda Item 3

Page 391



The removal of the flat rate for flights currently spread evenly over the year would result in a 
greater number of flights at peak times, such as the summer, which would increase over 
flying during those times of the year and associated disturbance. Whilst the intensity of 
disturbance is projected to decrease as aircraft technology improves, the frequency of flights 
would increase resulting in a lower level of impact but that impact would take place more 
frequently at peak times of the year. Conversely this should mean that during off peak times 
of year aircraft impact would be further decreased as fewer flights would be operating during 
those times. As you will be aware aircraft noise can be an issue for some residents. Whilst 
we appreciate that airspace routes are a separate issue to this application Braintree District 
Council would expect to be consulted, if as a result of these proposals it became apparent 
that changes to how the airspace around the airport is managed, and that any changes 
would minimise impacts on residents of the district.

UDC and BDC are working together on a proposal for a new garden community to the West 
of Braintree. The Council wishes to reiterate its desire to work with MAG and UDC on this 
proposal to ensure that positive links between the new community and Stansted Airport are 
maximised and that any negative impacts are mitigated.

CADENT GAS

We do not object to the proposal.

CHELMSFORD CITY COUNCIL 

No objection.

EAST HERTS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Recognises Government’s policy stance in relation to making best use of existing runways in 
south east.  Support, in principle, economic benefits.  Reserve position and defer response 
in respect of environmental impacts until work commissioned by UDC is completed.  
Reserve position and defer response in respect of transport impact issues until such time 
ECC and HCC have concluded their assessment.  If application is granted seek mitigation 
measures identified.

2nd response:

In respect of the above application and the further consultation period to 30th August 2018, 
please be advised that East Herts Council has no additional comments to make at this time 
beyond those raised in the responses submitted on 28th March and 8th May 2018 to the 
initial consultation (see attached). Pending the outstanding resolution of transport 
considerations, which it considers may have potential environmental impact 
inter‐dependencies locally, at this stage the Council therefore, maintains it’s holding position 
in respect of recommendations (C), (D) and (E).

Page 4Page 392



The Council intends that it will provide its final response as soon as practically possible after 
it has had the opportunity to consider the latest transport modelling outputs, when finalised, 
in light of subsequent responses from Highways England, Essex County Council and 
Hertfordshire County Councils, as Highway Authorities, as appropriate.

3rd response:

Environmental Issues

Noise

The Council notes the review of the application’s proposals by independent specialists and 
its subsequent findings in terms of: the assessment of noise impacts and their implications; 
conclusions reached through that work; and, the mitigation measures that are proposed. The 
Council is reassured by the conclusions of the independent specialists that: the assessment 
methodology, approach and level of detail is satisfactory; noise impacts are no greater that 
would be the case under the existing planning permission (to 35mppa); and, subject to 
recommended proposed additions, the approach to mitigation is appropriate.

Given the foregoing, the Council is satisfied that it would be possible to provide suitable 
mitigations to address the impact of development and, on that basis, would not seek to 
restrict the grant of permission on noise grounds, but considers that this should be 
conditional on the S.106 agreement including:

1. Incorporation of appropriate noise mitigation measures identified within the 
independent assessment.

Air Quality

In respect of Air Quality issues, although additional transport modelling was conducted by 
the applicant’s consultants (and verified by ECC’s consultants), which had been expected by 
this Council to help inform the air quality assessment, this did not, despite repeated requests 
from this Council’s Environmental Health Department, extend to full micro-simulation 
coverage of Bishop’s Stortford Town Centre. In particular, the Council had sought for micro-
simulation transport modelling to apply to Hockerill junction, which is a declared Air Quality 
Management Area (AQMA). Likewise, it is considered that there could potentially be some 
impact from the development in terms of the AQMA at Sawbridgeworth, but that this also has 
not been adequately covered through assessment. Therefore, the Council’s Environmental 
Health Department has, of necessity, had to review the air quality issues appertaining to the 
application solely in light of the evidence available.

Following consideration of that evidence, the Council has concluded that the modelled data 
used in the assessment has significant error factors in relation to the monitored data. 
Government guidance LAQM TG(2016) Box 7.41 indicates that the majority of the model 
performance should be above 25% and ideally 10%, and, while this is the case for some 
areas, it is clear that the model is underestimating NO2 concentrations by 3 times in 
Bishop’s Stortford where the air quality issues are located within the AQMA.

In addition, the modellers indicate a model adjustment of a factor of 4 but this still results in a 
factor of 2 underestimate in Bishop’s Stortford, which is highly critical as the model indicates 
concentration levels below the limit value, whereas the monitored data show a level almost 

Page 5Page 393



twice the limit value. It is not best practice to use adjustment factors above 2 but to instead 
rerun the assessment. It is good practice to present an overall indication of the model 
performance by calculating the Root Mean Square Error as per paragraph 7.541 in the 
LAQM TG16. Where this results in an RMSE of >25% of the objective being assessed the 
modeller is advised to revisit the model parameterisation and verification. No RMSE has 
been presented and this should be completed.

When this Council’s Environmental Health Officer carried out a RMSE calculation on 
Bishop’s Stortford data alone, the result was 38.3. In line with the guidance again this 
indicates the assessment has error values higher than is recommended and the modeller 
should have revisited the modelling parameters. The modellers make minor comment on the 
discrepancy of the model in Bishop’s Stortford, indicating uncertainties in traffic data. Given 
that the area is an AQMA, further effort should have been made to investigate this. Where 
uncertain data are available the modellers should seek to obtain better quality data.

In light of the above evidence, East Herts council is therefore not satisfied with the 
conclusions of the air quality assessment, which found that the impact of a further 8 million 
passengers travelling to the airport would have an ‘insignificant’ impact on the air quality of 
Bishop’s Stortford, the closest town to the airport.

However, while not agreeing with the conclusions of this evidence strand, the Council’s 
Environmental Health Officer is of the view that the impact that it is considered would occur 
through development would be capable of being addressed through appropriate mitigation. 
As a result, East Herts recommends that certain mitigation measures (as detailed below) are 
undertaken in order to fully address the impacts of the development on air quality within the 
District, and particularly on the AQMA’s in Bishops Stortford and Sawbridgeworth.

Therefore, the Council recommends that the following mitigation measures be included as 
part of the planning obligations associated with the development:

2. Rapid electric vehicle chargers to be installed in both Bishop’s Stortford and at the 
airport (in locations and numbers to be agreed with the local authorities), to 
encourage usage of EVs, particularly for EV taxis.

3. A demand responsive ULEV bus service to be introduced to include, as a minimum, 
a radius around the airport which encompasses the whole of Bishop’s Stortford and 
Sawbridgeworth areas, which should be fully funded for a period of 5 years.

If such mitigations are included, the Council would have no objections to the application on 
air quality grounds, provided that these measures are fully implemented. The Council would 
expect to be closely involved in any further technical work undertaken and in scheme 
mitigation proposals going forward.

However, in the event that the inclusion of such mitigations cannot be agreed within the 
S.106, East Herts Council would recommend refusal of the application on air quality 
grounds, due to insignificant information being provided to enable the full assessment of the 
impacts on air quality.

Page 6Page 394



Transport – Surface Access

The Council is cognisant of the additional transport modelling work undertaken, and recently 
concluded, by the applicant’s consultants and the responses to this that have been made by 
Essex County Council (ECC) and Hertfordshire County Council (HCC), as highway 
authorities, in respect of transport related matters and mitigations sought. However, at the 
time of writing, it should be noted that no definitive comments from Highways England (HE) 
were available (on Uttlesford District Council’s website) to further inform East Herts Council’s 
views in this regard, and that ECC’s and HCC’s responses are tempered by their being 
subject to HE’s satisfaction that impacts on the strategic highway network have been 
satisfactorily addressed. This Council’s response is likewise conditional on HE’s 
endorsement of the applicant’s proposals and any necessary related mitigations.

East Herts Council is committed to seeking to increase the modal share of travel by 
sustainable means across the district, in order to inhibit the growth in congestion and to 
improve air quality, and is therefore keen to ensure that impacts from the proposed 
development are minimised in this respect. The Council notes that the applicant has, to date, 
achieved a substantial modal share in terms of accessing the airport by sustainable means.

The Stansted Area Transport Forum (SATF) currently operates in this respect and is 
supported by three reporting sub-groups (bus and coach; rail; and, local road), which include 
key stakeholders, including local authority representatives. East Herts Council is represented 
on all of these sub-groups in addition to the Forum itself and is satisfied, subject to minor 
amendments to the Forum’s terms of reference proposed by the applicant, that this 
mechanism is appropriate to guide the allocation of resources to ensure the current market-
leading modal split is maintained going forward.

East Herts Council welcomes the applicant’s confirmation that the current Passenger 
Transport Levy (which is generated as a direct proportion of every car parking cost 
transaction) will continue to be ring fenced for use by STAL as a conduit to support 
recognised Travel Plan style initiatives. This revenue stream has historically supported 
measures such as out-of-hours bus services, employee shuttles, travel card system, cycle 
shelters, and onward travel information and marketing. As the revenue stream is attached to 
car parking, it is likely that relative to growth increases will occur allowing for greater levels of 
funding for sustainable initiatives.

It is considered important by East Herts Council that, in addition to supporting existing 
initiatives, as much should be done as possible to augment these with new opportunities for 
passengers, workers and students (at the newly opened on-site college) to make their 
journeys to the airport by non-car borne means.

In this regard, this Council is keen to see the introduction of greater sustainable east-west 
travel choices. At a strategic level, a central and south-west Hertfordshire to Airport bus 
service has long been identified as a priority in the HCC’s (2011) Bus Strategy and also in 
Stansted Airport’s (2016) Sustainable Development Plan Bus and Coach strategy. More 
recently, HCC’s Local Transport Plan (LTP) 4, published in May 2018, has further identified 
the need to improve east-west surface access across the county to the airport, and for East 
Herts this is particularly applicable in opening up journey choice to and from the towns of 

Page 7Page 395



Hertford and Ware. Thus, the Council supports HCC’s position and seeks provisions in the 
S.106 agreement for:

4. A new east-west express, limited stop, coach service linking St Albans, Hatfield, 
Stevenage, Welwyn Garden City, Hertford, Ware and Stansted Airport. Such 
provision should be a regular service, which should accommodate the varied working 
shift patterns at the airport, especially in respect of early morning/late night 
operations.

Comprehensive marketing of the service, coupled with targeted employee recruitment 
advertising within the towns it serves, should be included as part of its provision.

Furthermore, in respect of supporting east-west linkage, and improving environmental 
conditions and journey reliability, it is considered important that STAL’s previous 
commitment in the pre-existing S.106 (associated with development up to 35mppa) towards 
funding the Little Hadham Bypass should be brought forward, and cost adjusted, to the 
current application’s S.106 provisions. Therefore, and in line with HCC’s recommendations, 
the applicant should:

5. Contribute to the construction of the Little Hadham Bypass.

An Eastern Area Growth and Transport Plan (to be led by HCC) is to be developed in 2019, 
which is intended to cover Bishop’s Stortford within its scope. This will include a series of yet 
to be identified transport measures that will, inter alia, seek to address predicted growth 
across the area. While the output of this Plan is, as yet, undetermined, HCC has identified a 
number of measures for inclusion in the S.106 that it considers would address the longevity 
of airport growth at Stansted and the relationship between this and wider transportation 
issues that are likely to evolve over time. East Herts Council therefore seeks that the 
following issues should be incorporated into any S.106 agreement:

6. Enhanced local road schemes funding to support local road, walking and cycling 
schemes and to address future impact uncertainty (including, inter alia, impacts at 
Hockerill Junction).

7. Enhanced funding for public transport to secure airport related bus and coach 
proposals.

It is also considered important that, although it is recognised that it would not be appropriate 
for all users, opportunities should be increased to allow cyclists and pedestrians (either 
workers or passengers) to more easily access the airport without the need for motorised 
conveyance. A number of projects are currently in varying stages of development and it is 
considered that, while there should be no onus on STAL to fund elements of such schemes 
remote to the airport, where they do relate to increasing sustainable journeys of a realistic 
length to the airport, the applicant should contribute towards them. Therefore, the Council 
would expect, in line with HCC’s stated position, that the applicant should be obliged through 
any S.106 agreement to:

8. Contribute towards cycling and walking schemes including (but not limited to):
a. Parsonage Lane cycle route (PR30);
b. Warwick Road cycle route (PR41);

Page 8Page 396



c. Bishop’s Stortford to Stansted cycleway to add to National Cycle Route 
No.16. (SM10);

d. A1250 Dunmow Road cycle route (SM15);
e. Strategic cycle route from Stansted Airport linking Bishop’s Stortford, 

Sawbridgeworth, Harlow, Gilston, Ware and Hoddesdon to add to National 
Cycle Route No. 11.

The Council also recognises that transportation movements to and from the airport are not 
solely linked to its primary function and that the location also acts as a regional and local 
transport hub, offering interchange facilities between differing sustainable transport modes. It 
is important that this role should continue going forward and that this should be supported 
through the both the application and the SATF. The Council would therefore seek to ensure 
that any grant of permission should contain provisions to:

9. .Ensure the continued operation of the airport as a sustainable transport hub, with 
associated provision of facilities, passenger information systems and marketing, as 
appropriate.

The Council also notes that, as a result of further assessments undertaken by the applicant’s 
consultants, Network Rail does not seek to object to the application, but that longer term rail 
capacity schemes on the West Anglia Main Line are likely to be needed sooner than 
previously forecast due to the airport’s growth. As such, East Herts Council would not 
currently look to seek additional infrastructure to address line capacity, but would expect that 
airport associated initiatives relating to rail be brought forward, as appropriate, through the 
SATF in due course.

ESSEX COUNTY COUNCIL

This Council is supportive of growth of London Stansted Airport, recognising the significant 
role the airport plays in contributing to the wider economy of Essex, through investment and 
job creation.  ECC considers that the growth of Stansted Airport will generate significant 
additional benefits for the local and regional economy, including improving international 
connectivity, boosting trade and encouraging investment.  Furthermore this Council 
recognises Stansted Airport can perform an important role in seeking to be a key 
employment site for future planned growth within Essex, including the potential new Garden 
Communities around Harlow, in Uttlesford and across North Essex.

Strategic context

In September 2013 ECC produced “Flights of Fancy:  Getting Real on Aviation” to articulate 
the council’s position on airport capacity for submission to the Davies Airport Commission.  
The document clarifies ECC supports sensible growth at Stansted in the short to medium 
term by maximising use of its existing runway to its operational capacity of 45 million 
passengers per annum.  It recognises that additional runway capacity may be required at 
Stansted in the longer term, but that a robust business case would be needed and massive 
investments in road and rail infrastructure would be required.

Page 9Page 397



ECC welcomes the investment that MAG have made since acquisition of the airport in 2013, 
and the planned investment in the future, including the approved construction of a dedicated 
arrivals terminal and transformation of the existing terminal into a dedicated departures 
terminal, as well as the principle of the works proposed as part of the current planning 
application.  ECC also supports Stansted Airport as a leader in providing sustainable modes 
of travel to and from its location.  ECC wishes to see this position maintained.

Highways and Transportation

Following the initial review of the Transport Assessment as submitted, the County Council in 
its role as Highways Authority recommends a holding response until further information 
and/or clarification can be provided on the issues identified and sufficient evidence is 
submitted on which to base a sound recommendation.

Minerals and Waste Planning

No objection as mineral planning authority.

No objection as waste planning authority.

Lead Local Flood Authority – Flood and Water Management

Having reviewed the Flood Risk Assessment and the associated documents which 
accompanied the planning application, ECC as Lead Local Flood Authority wishes to issue a 
holding response to the granting of planning permission due to inadequate surface water 
drainage strategy.

Public Health and Wellbeing

Public Health at ECC would like to offer support to our Environmental Health colleagues at 
Uttlesford District Council who are leading on environmental health protection matters 
(including noise and air quality) as they required.  We would also wish to remain engaged 
with UDC on health and wellbeing matters so to ensure that public health and wellbeing is 
being considered for the lifetime of this project.  Our recommendations are:

 To work with Stansted Airport to ensure that the strategy for employment targets, 
including those that are long-term unemployed, are realised

 To be informed of the recommendations on monitoring and mitigation measures 
arising from air noise made by Environmental Health at Uttlesford District Council.  
This would be with particular reference to noise sensitive receptor areas.  This would 
include an understanding of the mitigation measures that are to be put in place and 
clarity, by the applicant and planning authority, as to how any mitigation will be 
enforced and reviewed.

 As part of the above recommendation, if Environmental Health would like support 
from Public Health England, the Director for Public Health for Essex is happy to 
facilitate this.

 To support the proposal from STAL to engage with Directors of Public Health locally 
and that Public Health engage with STAL around the community wellbeing fund to 
ensure that residents impacted upon by this proposal, receive adequate mitigation to 
support their wellbeing.  We would like clarity on the governance processes around 

Page 10Page 398



the community fund and how the fund use will be monitored so we can be made 
aware of any benefits to health and wellbeing that arise from its’ use.

 For STAL to review the terms of reference for the consultative committee to ensure 
that health and wellbeing is represented.

 For STAL to engage with passenger transport teams at the relevant County Councils.  
This would be to ensure that provision is made around route capacity so that 
residents are not negatively impacted on by the anticipated increase in passengers 
using public transport to and from the airport.

Education

Any increase in noise as a result of the proposed development is a concern from a school 
perspective.  It is understood that the change in air fleet mix seeks to reduce flight noise and 
the use of fixed power supplies on stand (turning APU’s off) will reduce ground noise, 
however if the proposed development has the prospect of breaching the noise threshold 
level of 55dB LAeq30, on any school site, then a noise consultant will need to be employed 
to review the planning application against the DfE’s “Building Bulletin 93: Acoustic Design of 
Schools – Performance Standards” and to formulate mitigation measures that can be 
incorporated into a S106 Legal Agreement.

In respect of Early Years and Childcare (EYCC) provision the proposed expansion of 
Stansted Airport has the potential to increase the demand for further childcare facilities to 
support the increased workforce.  The specific requirements depend on a number of factors 
including the location of the living accommodation of the proposed additional workforce, and 
their working patterns.

The Child Care sufficiency data held indicates that there are limited childcare places 
available in the local area closest to Stansted Airport.  Consequently this Council’s 
preference is to see the EYCC requirements (generated as a consequence of the increase in 
employees) addressed in a way that does not adversely impact on existing local EYCC 
facilities.

The information obtained from the planning application form indicates that the additional 
growth at Stansted Airport increase from 35mppa to 43mppa is predicted to support an 
additional 5,500 employees.  On the bases that these are FTE positions, a total of 220 
EYCC places (5,500 x 0.04 [4 places per 100 employees] would be generated, as set out in 
the Essex County Council Developers’ Guide to Infrastructure Contributions (2016).  Using 
the EYCC expansion cost per place (£14,519 at 2016-2017), which is again explained in the 
ECC Developers’ Guide, a contribution of £3,194,180 (£14,519 x 220 places generated) 
would therefore be required.

The ES submitted with the planning application states that of the additional jobs proposed 
approximately 3,000 will be direct on and off airport jobs, with the remainder being indirect 
and induced jobs.  Further detailed information is required in respect of the nature of the 
proposed additional jobs, such as hours/days worked, shift patterns, location of the 
employee’s place of residence, in order to refine the specific infrastructure funding 
contribution required to address the EYCC places generated as a result of this planning 
application.  The finalised contributions will then need to be addressed within an s106 legal 
agreement.

Page 11Page 399



It should be noted that given the potential large number of EYCC places, at least one new 
facility may have to be built, potentially onsite.

Economic Growth, Regeneration and Skills

The increase in capacity and the development of new airfield infrastructure is considered to 
be important to the growth of the Essex economy.  Recent airline additions of Primera Air 
and the soon-to-launch Emirates service to Dubai will, we believe, create further 
opportunities for businesses in Essex to access international markets as well as furthering 
Foreign Direct Investment opportunities particularly those in relation to the MedTech and Life 
Sciences industries.

It is considered that the proposals will lead to the creation of further direct and indirect 
employment opportunities associated with the airport, providing additional jobs for the 
residents of Essex.  The proposals are also considered to increase supply chain 
opportunities for businesses related to the operation of the airport.  The Team welcomes 
further opportunities to work with MAG in order to identify initiatives and programmes of 
support to promote both business and employment growth in Essex.

ECC commend MAG for its commitment to STEM engagements in particular for having over 
7000 young people visiting the Aerozone since its inception.  The new Stansted Airport 
College opening in September will see over 500 students delivering technical skills including; 
engineering, logistics and more.  This is ground breaking and a commendable collaboration 
between ECC, UDC, Harlow College, SELEP and MAG to fund such an initiative.

Stansted’s commitment to Apprenticeships is also commendable; however ECC seeks 
further clarification on the numbers of Apprenticeships, and associated Apprenticeship 
Standards that are expected, as a result of the proposed development.

With specific reference to the potential skills opportunities arising from the construction 
phase of the proposed development, ECC seeks clarification on whether Stansted Airport is 
proposing to adopt the use of an Employment and Skills plan with relevant contributions, and 
adopting national benchmarks such as the HCA Developer-Contractor Guidance or the 
Construction Industry Training Board (CITB) Client/Project Based Approach.

Such an approach would unlock Apprenticeship opportunities and further enhance social 
value activities directly relating to the development phase/construction sector.  Furthermore, 
it is considered that this would enhance MAG’s commitment to developing STEM skills and 
dovetail the exemplar commitment to outreach provided through the Aerozone.

ECC wishes to engage further with Stansted Airport to strengthen the partnership with the 
airport, and to assist in the preparation of the s106 agreement to ensure that the appropriate 
funding and mitigation is provided and delivered.  ECC wishes to issue a holding response in 
respect of skills until the matters outlined above are clarified.

Page 12Page 400



Tourism

The current planning application proposes an increase of 8mppa, which will enable more 
leisure trips to be made through Stansted Airport.  ECC recognises that this brings benefits 
to the local and regional economy of Essex, including tourism and leisure.

Visit Essex – Supporting the local visitor economy, has the remit for promoting and 
developing tourism across the county of Essex.  Given the proposed increase in passenger 
numbers, and subsequent leisure trips, ECC seek to secure funding for Visit Essex to 
actively promote Essex as a tourism destination.

ECC wish to work with the applicant to deliver measures to promote Essex as a tourism 
destination and to ensure that passengers arriving at Stansted Airport are aware that they 
have arrived in Essex.  Such measures can include advertising space for Visit Essex within 
the airport, and a contribution of £6,000 per annum towards membership of Visit Essex.

2nd Response:

ECC’s Position – Regulation 19 Pre-submission Local Plan

In the response to Uttlesford District Council’s (UDC) Draft Local Plan consultation (June – 
August 2018), ECC supported the growth of Stansted Airport as set out in Objective 2c and 
Policy SP11.

Objective 2c seeks to accommodate development at the airport by utilising the permitted 
capacity of the existing runway and provide for the maximum number of connecting journeys 
by air passengers and workers to be made by public transport; and ensuring that appropriate 
surface access infrastructure and service capacity will be provided without impacting on 
capacity to meet the demands of other network users and enabling local residents to access 
its rail, bus and coach services.

Policy SP11 designates London Stansted Airport as a strategic allocation in the Local Plan. 
The allocation serves the strategic role of the airport and associated growth of business, 
industry and education which are important for Uttlesford, the sub-regional and national 
economy.

Highways and Transportation

Following ECC’s holding response dated 30th April 2018 the Highway Authority has carried 
out a number of activities including review of the Transport Assessment Addendum, 
commissioning of consultants Jacobs to carry out modelling work on the strategic network, 
and liaison with other Highway Authorities (Highways England (HE), Hertfordshire County 
Council (HCC), Uttlesford District Council (UDC) and Stansted Airport Limited (STAL).

During this process the impact on the strategic network, the local road network and 
implications for the passenger transport network have been assessed, a number of 
mitigation measures have been explored and the most appropriate ones have been put 
forward as recommendations in this response

For convenience this response is split into the same areas as the initial ECC initial response 
of 30th April 2018.

Page 13Page 401



Overview

The main areas of concern with the initial Transport Assessment (TA) were that no 
assignment modelling had been undertaken of the highway network. Accordingly, further 
sensitivity testing was required to understand the possible impacts on the strategic network 
and to help to address concerns that the TA relied on high sustainable transport modal 
shares, with insufficient information supplied on how these would be achieved.

The highway modelling is discussed in more detail in the highway impact section. To 
address modal split, three targets have been recommended:

1) That 50% of passengers arrive at the airport by passenger transport (bus coach or rail);

2) That no more than 55% of employees travel to work as the only occupant in the car, rising 
to 50% by the time 43mppa is reached

3) To reduce the percentage of passengers using “kiss and ride” to access the airport, 
reducing to 20% by 39mppa and to 12% by 43mppa.

The Stansted Area Transport Forum (SATF) Steering Group will be accountable for 
delivering and monitoring these targets. ECC have made recommendations for penalties that 
should be applied if the targets are not met which would be used to improve sustainable 
access to the airport. Three funds are recommended to directly help deliver these targets 
and mitigate the impact of the proposed development. These are outlined in more detail 
below.

This approach has worked well up to this point with the airport exceeding sustainable 
transport targets set in the previous planning application. The revised Terms of Reference 
for these groups should be clearly set out in the S106 that will accompany this application to 
ensure accountability, rigorous monitoring of the targets, and delivery of schemes and 
initiatives.

Highway Impact

The strategic network is the responsibility of HE and they will make their own 
recommendations concerning that network. However, in response to their review of the TA, it 
was agreed that ECC would commission additional sensitivity testing of the development 
proposals using a Vissim microsimulation model of M11 Junction 8 (J8) which ECC holds. 
As the Uttlesford Local Plan has not been adopted the junction evaluation assessment within 
the TA, which used LINSIG, was undertaken with just committed development and TEMPRO 
background growth.

The reasons for sensitivity testing being undertaken were:

1. To better understand the impact of the airport growth from 35mppa to 43mppa and 
whether the proposed mitigation was appropriate, against a background of proposed growth 
in the Uttlesford Local Plan.

2. To fulfil the requirement to assess how traffic on the strategic road network interacted at 
key junctions and the impact of the airport application on these junction interactions.

Page 14Page 402



3. To undertake modelled sensitivity tests to assess possible implications for J8 and the 
A120 of variations in development assumptions to those presented in the TA, particularly the 
overall increase in application traffic, and traffic distribution variation.

The detailed results of the testing are contained within the Jacobs report. In summary the 
report finds that the network performance is due to deteriorate with or without the airport 
expansion to 43mppa. STAL’s proposed J8 mitigation measures (Interim+) will improve 
network performance at 43mppa compared to the 2033 ‘do minimum’ scenario with 35mppa 
and with ECC’s Interim J8 scheme in place. However, the modelling confirms that the 
network is currently close to capacity, and will be over capacity in 2033. The sensitivity 
testing also indicates that minor adjustments to the modelled assumptions have significant 
impacts, particularly to the west of J8, and to the B1256.

The M11 has been identified within the Draft London Plan as a key transport corridor 
essential for the growth of London and the Wider South East and the emerging Uttlesford 
Local Plan has identified J8 as a potential congestion hotspot. Appropriate improvements or 
other mitigations at J8 may need to be identified if this junction is to effectively support both 
strategic connectivity and local economic growth. Notwithstanding the interim scheme 
improvements identified as part of this application, to mitigate its impact, in future STAL 
should continue to work together with other local partners, including ECC, HE and relevant 
Sub-national Transport Boards, to identify potential longer term solutions at J8 and provide 
appropriate support leading to their timely delivery.

The Jacobs report has been shared with HE who will make their recommendations in 
relation to strategic network and the proposed mitigation works on J8 and the Priory Wood 
Roundabout. The report from Jacobs on this modelling will be submitted as a separate 
document.

Local Network

It is recognised that the majority of the airport impact is on the strategic road network M11, 
and A120 and most passengers who drive to the airport are likely to use those routes. 
However, the local roads will also be impacted on especially by traffic generated by 
employees, and those roads closest to the airport will experience the greatest impact. While 
potential impact on the local network was assessed in the TA, ECC as the highway authority 
requested additional analysis, which was subsequently undertaken, to more clearly 
determine the effect on the wider local road network.

The TA and addendum indicate that the impact on the network of the airport growth from 
35mppa to 43mppa would be limited. The methodology used to estimate the impact on the 
local road network was to identify catchment areas for the local routes to the airport, use 
population data to identify the population in those catchment areas, then identify the 
proportion likely to be travelling to the airport by car using the mode data proportions in the 
TA derived from the CAA surveys and the staff travel plans. The additional work requested, 
although showing higher numbers on the local network attributable to the airport growth from 
35mppa – 43mppa than in the original TA, still only showed limited impact on the local road 
network. A sample of updated data is set out in the table below.

Page 15Page 403



Daily Flows
Scenario Parsonage Road North of 

B1256
Mole Hill Green

Total traffic 2016 5655 1790
All traffic Growth 2016-28 1120 454
25-35mppa airport growth 
(included in all growth)

59 71

35-43mppa airport traffic 
(included in all growth)

53 64

Total traffic projected traffic 
2028

6775 2244

ECC carried out a sense check on the predicted Takeley growth using employment figures 
from the 2015 survey. Takeley was chosen because it has the highest concentration of 
employees close to the airport. We identified that impact could be higher with 114 vehicles 
attributed to the growth from 35-43mppa. Although the number is higher using this 
methodology the numbers are still relatively low throughout the day, with an estimated 
impact of 1.7%. It is considered that the impact is acceptable.

It is recognised that, as growth occurs, travel choices and patterns may change over time, 
with possibly greater pressure on certain areas (network hotspots). To mitigate this pressure 
it is recommended a local road fund of £800,000 is set up secured through the S106 and 
administered by the SATF, so that it can be used to deliver schemes on the network that 
improve safety, increase accessibility to the airport, and address fly parking issues. This 
figure has been derived by looking at average costs of these types of schemes, and would 
be expected to fund approximately 5 minor road improvement schemes. It is envisaged that 
the fund will contribute to local improvement schemes in proportion to the impact of the 
airport traffic and so could contribute to funding a higher number of schemes. In addition, 
monitoring of the airport road network is recommended to ensure that early action is taken if 
congestion on the airport network itself occurs, as this could impact on the strategic or local 
highway network.

Rail

As part of the initial response the Highway Authority liaised closely with Network Rail. The 
Highway Authority asked for a sensitivity test to be undertaken as did Network Rail, and a 
modal share of 35% of passengers was tested. It is understood that Network Rail will 
comment on the sensitivity testing. 

Bus Passenger Transport 

Following the initial response, additional information was supplied by the STAL, mapping 
employee locations, and the 2015 Employee Survey was reviewed. These were compared to 
the existing passenger transport network and areas of future potential growth were identified. 
There are three targets that are key to the application as outlined above; these targets 
represent approximately 11,600 passengers a day. In order to reach and maintain these 
targets key areas should be identified through the production of a Bus and Coach Strategy, 
to be delivered by the STAL using funding secured through the S106 agreement. Sufficient 
funds should be secured to facilitate the enhancement of current services to the airport, to 
provide services from key settlement areas such as Braintree, Colchester and Chelmsford, 
to provide enhanced and direct connections with smaller towns such as Halstead and 

Page 16Page 404



Witham, and allow improvements to operations so that local villages are served in line with 
the operational times of the expanded airport, and support coach services to towns further 
away such as Hatfield, Haverhill and Ipswich. 

To accommodate these services it is recommended the bus station should be expanded and 
improved to provide not only for the increased capacity needed for passenger circulation and 
buses but to provide an excellent passenger experience to encourage use of the services. 

Cycling 

While it is acknowledged that cycling will contribute a small proportion of the modal share, 
there is a potential to increase the number of employees accessing the airport by bike, 
particularly to the south, east and west of the airport. To facilitate this a Walking and Cycling 
Strategy should be produced as part of the Airport Surface Access Strategy (ASAS) which 
should include improving the airport highway network for cyclists and provide funding to 
support the implementation of cycle routes to key villages where there is a concentration of 
employees such as Takeley. 

Travel Planning 

The airport has a successful employee travel plan managed by staff employed by the airport 
which has met and exceeded the targets set in the previous planning application, which were 
to reduce to 76% single car occupancy travel by 2014; in 2015 this had reduced to 65%. It is 
recommended that this approach is continued, including monitoring through the bi-annual 
Staff Travel Survey. The funding of the initiatives in the travel plan, including the car sharing 
scheme, employee bus discount travel scheme, travel information and supporting 
accessibility schemes for sustainable modes of transport, will be supported by the 
Sustainable Transport Levy, which is a charge on airport passenger and employee parking. 

This Levy will also support the ASAS, which has also been successful in exceeding the 
target set in the previous planning application which was to increase public transport mode 
share to 43% by 2014. Currently 50% of passengers use public transport to access the 
airport. This target is to remain. The additional target for this application, to decrease kiss 
and ride, is challenging. Therefore it is recommended that the scope of this levy is widened 
to include the drop off/pick up charge and that the levy is reviewed annually and subject to 
an increase at the rate of inflation. It is currently estimated that this funding will rise to 
approximately £1.6 million per annum by 43mppa. 

Highways and Transportation Conclusion and Recommendation 

Therefore, taking into account the additional information provided, from a highways and 
transportation viewpoint, the impact of the proposal is acceptable to ECC as the 
Highway Authority, subject to the following planning conditions/obligations being 
secured and applied. Insofar as the local highway network is dependent on the conclusions 
reached by Highways England regarding the operation of the strategic highway network, 
ECC as the Highway Authority reserves the right to make appropriate adjustments to this 
recommendation. 

M11 Junction 8 

1. STAL in agreement with the local highway authority and Highways England to identify and 
deliver a scheme of mitigation for the developments impact upon M11 Junction 8 as shown 
indicatively in the STAL proposed J8 mitigation measures (Interim+) arrangements included 
within the planning application. 

Page 17Page 405



Reason: To ensure that the developments impact on the surrounding highway network can 
be appropriately mitigated. 

Targets 

2. To use all reasonable endeavours to maintain a public transport mode share of 50% for 
non-transfer air passengers. If the target is not met, this will trigger a review of the 
Sustainable Transport Levy (including employee car parking charge) to ensure further 
investment in sustainable transport measures is provided. 

Reason: To ensure the modal split applied in the transport assessment is met and the net 
impact of traffic on the highway network is limited. 

3. To use all reasonable endeavours to reduce the number of non-transfer air passengers 
arriving and/or being picked up by a private vehicle or taxi that would travel one way (either 
to or from the airport) with no passengers (kiss and ride) to 20% by 39mppa, and to12% by 
43mppa. If these targets are not met, this will trigger a review of the Sustainable Transport 
Levy (including employee car parking charge) to ensure further investment in sustainable 
transport measures is provided. 

Reason: To ensure the modal split applied in the transport assessment is met and the net 
impact of traffic on the highway network is limited. 

4. To use all reasonable endeavours to maintain the maximum percentage of persons 
employed at the airport driving to and from the airport in vehicles occupied by a single 
person at 55% up to 39mppa and to achieve a reduction to 50% by 43mppa. If these targets 
are not met, this will trigger a review of the Sustainable Transport Levy (including employee 
car parking charge) to ensure further investment in sustainable transport measures is 
provided. 

Reason: To ensure the modal split applied in the transport assessment is met and the net 
impact of traffic on the highway network is limited. 

Strategy and Monitoring 

5. To continue to produce an ASAS and Staff Travel Plan with the purpose of achieving the 
mode share obligations referred to above and for these target requirements to be formalised 
and embedded in the S106 agreement. A new ASAS and Staff Travel Plan shall be 
published no less than every five years, in line with the Sustainable Development Plan 
(SDP) process (the next report is due in 2020) and with an interim mid-point review and 
monitoring report. The ASAS shall include a Bus and Coach Strategy and a Cycling and 
Walking Strategy as separate documents to follow the same timescale as the ASAS. If the 
strategies are not produced within 3 months of the programmed date, the Local Planning 
Authority will commission the report and charge STAL for all costs. Thereafter the strategies 
shall be implemented to agreed time scales. These requirements should be articulated and 
embedded within the S106 agreement 

Reason: To ensure the modal split applied in the transport assessment is met and net 
impact of traffic on the network is limited. 

6. STAL shall undertake a two yearly report of the travel patterns of staff employed by STAL 
and others employed at the Airport from 2019 onwards and for the outcome of the same to 
be reported to the Local Planning Authority and Highway Authority. If the reports are not 
produced within 3 months of the programmed date, the LPA will commission the report and 
charge STAL for all costs. 

Page 18Page 406



Reason: To ensure the modal split applied in the transport assessment is met and net 
impact of traffic on the network is limited. 

7. A comprehensive programme of monitoring of the airport highway network to be agreed 
with Highways England and the Local Highway Authority. If it is identified that the growth on 
the airport network interferes on a regular basis with the operation of the Strategic or Local 
road network, STAL shall identify and agree mitigation measures and a programme for 
implementation of such measures with the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: To ensure growth on the airport road network does not impact on the Strategic and 
Local road network. 

Delivery Mechanisms 

8. The SATF and three working groups (Bus and Coach, Highways and Rail), shall continue 
to operate and be accountable for the delivery and monitoring of the ASAS, the agreed S106 
targets and the S106 funding streams, including the Sustainable Transport Levy. The 
revised terms of reference for these groups shall be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
and contained within the S106 agreement. 

Reason: To ensure an agreed accountable delivery mechanism to deliver the modal share 
and mitigation measures required as part of this development in order to limit the net impact 
on the strategic and local highway. 

9. STAL shall continue to charge a levy on passenger and staff car parking and, in addition, 
to charge a levy on the use of the terminal forecourt. Agreed levies to be reviewed annually 
for inflation and agreed with the Local Planning Authority. The fund arising from the 
collection of such levy to be used to finance initiatives in accordance with the ASAS to 
promote the use by passengers and staff of STAL and others employed at the Airport of 
modes of transport to and from the Airport other than private motor vehicles, hackney 
carriages and private hire vehicles and (in the case of staff of STAL and others employed at 
the Airport) to encourage and promote car-sharing. 

Reason: To ensure the modal split applied in the transport assessment is met and impact of 
traffic on network is limited. 

10. This development will require a Bus and Coach Fund to the value of £8mn to be secured 
through the S106 to further develop public transport links to and from the airport to seek to 
bring about an increase in the number of passengers and airport staff using public transport 
and to meet the agreed targets in ASAS and the SATF. The funding needs to be sufficient to 
facilitate enhancement of current services to provide 20 or 15 minutes services from key 
settlement areas such as Braintree and Chelmsford and Cambridge, to provide enhanced 
and direct connections with smaller towns such as Halstead and Witham, allow 
improvements to services so that local villages are served in line with the operational times 
of the expanded airport and support coach services to Hatfield, Haverhill and Ipswich. The 
Bus and Coach Working Group shall continue to act to bring forward such measures through 
the Bus and Coach Strategy and agree the arrangements as to how such public transport 
measures are prioritised and implemented. 

Reason: To ensure the bus modal split applied in the transport assessment is met and net 
impact of traffic on network is limited. 

11. STAL shall contribute £800,000 (index linked for inflation from the date of this 
recommendation) to a Local Road Fund as a contribution toward schemes on the local road 

Page 19Page 407



network within a five mile radius of the network. Such schemes to include, but not be limited 
to, safety improvement, management of combined effects of future airport and local traffic, 
local parking schemes, and schemes to improve accessibility to the airport. 

Reason: To ensure that a proportionate response can be made to impact on the local 
network. 

Works 

12. STAL to improve and expand the bus station, in its existing location, to accommodate the 
projected increase in passenger and employee numbers. Improvements to include, but not 
be limited to: DDA compliant infrastructure increased capacity, increased passenger 
circulation, covered queuing, waiting room, real time information, electronic information and 
directional signage. Such works to be informed by a technical study of capacity and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to 35mppa being reached and delivered 
before 36mppa is reached. 

Reason: To ensure the bus modal split applied in the transport assessment can be 
accommodated and use of passenger transport is encouraged by an excellent customer 
experience. 

13. STAL in agreement with the local highway authority to identify and reserve land required 
to accommodate any future Rapid Transport System and form an east-west link between the 
airport and any future growth locations identified in the Local Plan(s) 

Reason: To facilitate future sustainable transport links from the airport to residential 
developments. 

14. No development shall take place, including any ground works or demolition, until a 
Construction Management Plan has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local 
planning authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction 
period. The Statement shall provide for: 
a. the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors 
b. loading and unloading of plant and materials 
c. storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development 
d. wheel and underbody washing facilities 

Reason: To ensure that on-street parking of these vehicles in the adjoining streets does not 
occur and to ensure that loose materials and spoil are not brought out onto the highway in 
the interests of highway safety and Policy DM 1 of the Highway Authority’s Development 
Management Policies February 2011.

ECC ARCHAEOLOGY

The Historic Environment Record shows that Stansted Airport development overall has been 
one of the most extensive areas of archaeological discovery in Essex. Important settlements 
from the Bronze Age through to the medieval period. The proposed development within this 
application is limited to the areas of the present runway area and lies within an area which 
has probably suffered extensive disturbance from the original construction of the runway and 
its more recent extensions. Therefore, no archaeological recommendations are being made 
on this application.

Page 20Page 408



ENVIRONMENT AGENCY

We have no objection to the proposal. We are recommending a condition regarding water 
resources and offer advice on: the Water Framework Directive, the water environment, 
pollution prevention, COMAH and air quality.

Water resources:  We welcome the inclusion of water resources in consideration of the 
impacts of the proposed expansion, primarily detailed in Chapter 15 of the Environmental 
Statement.

We welcome the inclusion of additional information regarding the water supply infrastructure 
on site (Sections 15.64 – 15.66; Page 15-18) and recent data regarding potable water 
consumption. We also recognise the provision of information around the airport’s actions to 
reduce water consumption, for example “the installation of water saving technology in many 
of the terminal and office toilets” (Section 15.68; Page 15-18) and the “rolling programme of 
leakage detection and repair” (Section 15.69; Page 15-18).

We recognise the proactive engagement with both Affinity Water Limited and Thames Water 
Utilities Limited. It is noted within Section 15.113 that “[Affinity Water] has greater concerns 
in regard to the rate of supply as opposed to total volume” (Page 15-26). This has heavily 
influenced the assessment of a “minor adverse” impact from the proposed expansion on 
water consumption. This shifts to a “negligible” impact once the “20% improvement in 
efficiency and changes to draw down from the mains” (Section 15.114; Page 15-26) is 
incorporated.

Insufficient evidence has been submitted to demonstrate that the 20% improvement in 
efficiency can be achieved. Additionally, the airport is located in an area of ‘Serious’ water 
stress so the total volume of consumption should be a primary concern. It is anticipated that 
climate change will alter rainfall patterns, resulting in less reliable resources, which, when 
combined with expected population increases, will result in increased strain placed on water 
as a resource.

It is noted within the Impact Assessment that “total water consumption will rise with 
increasing numbers of passengers and employees…in both the Do Minimum and 
Development Case” (Section 15.111; Page 15-26). It is stated however that “this increase 
will not be linear as water consumption per passenger is likely to fall due to continued 
improvements in water efficiency, as detailed in the 2015 Sustainable Development Plan 
(SDP), and that certain operational/non passenger water usage (such as for cleaning) will 
not increase in proportion to passenger growth” (Section 15.111; Page 15-26).

The SDP, references the “comprehensive water efficiency programme” and “the installation 
of water saving technology in a number of terminal and office toilets” and a commitment to 
“low-water technology” as standard in new facilities and “all new buildings achieving a 
BREEAM excellent rating” (Our Approach to Managing Water – Water Consumption; Page 
47). 

However, there is little reference to specific and measurable targets which would result in a 
level of accountability. Therefore, it is unclear how the 20% improvement in efficiency has 
been determined or how it will be achieved.

Page 21Page 409



Whilst it is stated that the increase in potable water demand will be non-linear as the 
increase in passenger numbers will not directly correlate with an increase in operation/non-
passenger water usage, there has been no forecasting of the expected increase in water 
consumption. Without such forecasting, there can be little confidence that a 20% 
improvement in efficiency will ensure that total water consumption does not increase.

The strategy and aspiration within the SDP details that the applicant is “committed to 
improving water efficiency…. without intervention, water consumption will rise with the 
growth in passenger numbers. Therefore, we will continue to look for opportunities to reduce 
our water use and to encourage other on-site companies to do the same” (Water 
Management – Our Strategy; Page 49). The proposed expansion should be the impetuous 
required to further quantify water use and determine realistic and measurable targets for 
water consumption throughout the site’s varied uses.

We would recommend that the airport is divided into zones with additional water meters 
installed to the infrastructure network that could be arranged to enable the separation of 
passenger and non-passenger usage. This will enable a more detailed understanding of 
water consumption across the site to inform a targeted approach to the introduction of further 
water saving technologies and efficiencies. This could also lead to a better comparison of 
water consumption across airports, helping to develop a metric of anticipated water 
consumption by airport passengers.

The SDP states “additional measures and revised targets will be explored and reported on in 
the next revision of the SDP…in advance of the implementation of the proposed 
development” (Section 15.35; Page 15-30). However, targets need to be considered during 
the planning consultation stage not the review of the SDP to ensure the increased 
passenger numbers and plane movements are fully accounted for in advance of 
implementation.

We note the intention that “all new major airport buildings [are] targeting a BREEAM 
Excellent rating” SDP Page 47. BREEAM Excellent ratings can be obtained by implementing 
a range of metrics including, but not limited to water. It is expected that all new buildings will 
obtain an Excellent rating for water. 

The Uttlesford District Council Water Cycle Study is under review and a final version will be 
published soon. This will supersede the 2017 document referenced in the Environmental 
Statement. Assumptions reliant on the 2017 document may need to be reviewed.

Dewatering:  It is noted within Development Programme and Construction Environmental 
Management (Page 5-9) that water pumps will be required “to facilitate the undertaking of 
excavation and construction works” Dewatering that occurs during any development process 
may need to be licensed under the new licensing legislation.  

The water discharge associated with dewatering, dependent on quality, may require an 
Environmental Permit under the Environmental Permitting Regulations 2016, unless an 
exemption applies.

Water Framework Directive (WFD):  The WFD requires the UK to prevent deterioration of the 
status of surface and ground water bodies through the River Basin Management Plan. This 

Page 22Page 410



identifies the actions and measures needed to prevent deterioration and improve the status 
of all water bodies.

Section 15.5, Legislation, Guidance and Planning Policy Context; Page 15-2) acknowledges 
that “any activities of developments that could cause detriment to a nearby watercourse, or 
prevent the future ability of a water resource to reach its potential status must be mitigated in 
order to reduce the potential for harm and allow the aims of the Directive to be realised.”

Please note, the following water bodies are most relevant to the site and have been 
designated under the Water Framework Directive. Their most recent classifications have 
been detailed below:

Water Body 
Name Water Body ID

2016 
Ecological 
Classification

Pincey Brook GB106038033380 Moderate
Great 
Hallingbury 
Brook

GB106038033330 Moderate

Stansted Brook GB106038040090 Bad
Upper Roding 
(to Cripsey 
Brook)

GB106037033500 Poor

We encourage future development to deliver measures that act to improve the status of 
water bodies which are relevant to their site. Of those measures requiring implementation to 
achieve Good Ecological Status or Potential for the above water bodies, there are two which 
could be delivered by STAL and are detailed below:

Action 
ID

Water 
Body 
Name

Water Body ID Title Description

22497 Great 
Hallingbury 
Brook

GB10638033330 Regrade bank 
side habitats 
and create riffle 
pool sequences 
CBC2013

Regrade bank side 
habitats and create 
riffle pool 
sequences – 
applicable 
throughout the 
whole water body

22498 Great 
Hallingbury 
Brook

GB10603803330 Remove 
excessive 
overshading 
vegetation 
CB2013

Remove excessive 
overshading 
vegetation – 
applicable 
throughout the 
whole water body

The water environment:  The site is located on a principal aquifer.  We have reviewed the 
following documents:

1. Stansted Airport Environmental Statement – Volume 1, dated February 2018
2. Stansted Airport Planning Statement, dated February 2018
3. Environmental Statement Non-Technical Summary

Page 23Page 411



The current airport use and the proposed scheme present a risk of pollution from land 
contamination.

Based on the information presented there is sufficient data to demonstrate that the proposed 
development poses a low risk to controlled waters:

1. A Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) will be prepared and 
adopted for the site.  The CEMP will outline the mitigation measures to be 
implemented to minimise the risks to controlled waters during the construction 
phase.

2. The construction of the taxiway and the aircraft stands will require shallow depths 
of excavations not penetrating the London Clay.

3. The surface drainage scheme for the proposed development will be connected to 
the existing airport drainage infrastructure.

Therefore, we are not recommending bespoke conditions for this application.

We recommend that the requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework and 
National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) are still followed. All risks to groundwater and 
surface waters from contamination and appropriate remedial action need to be identified. We 
expect reports and Risk Assessments to be prepared in line with our approach to 
groundwater protection document and CLR11 (Model Procedures for the Management of 
Land Contamination).

In order to protect groundwater quality from further deterioration:

• No infiltration based sustainable drainage systems should be constructed on land 
affected by contamination as contaminants can remobilise and cause groundwater 
pollution.

• Piling or any other foundation designs using penetrative methods should not cause 
preferential pathways for contaminants to migrate to groundwater and cause 
pollution. We will require a piling risk assessment if the proposed construction for the 
development changes and involves penetration of the London Clay.

• The CLAIRE Definition of Waste: Development Industry Code of Practice (version 2) 
provides operators with a framework for determining whether or not excavated 
material arising from site during remediation and/or land development works are 
waste or have ceased to be waste.  Developers should refer to: 

• The Position statement on the Definition of Waste: Development Industry Code of 
Practice, and

• The Environmental Regulations page on GOV.UK

Pollution prevention:  The applicant and site operator are advised to contact our 
Environment Management Land and Water team so that we can work together to ensure the 
highest level of protection to the local environment.

Specific items we would wish to address include:

1. Measures to reduce the impacts of de-icers (glycol) at source: including use and 
overspray on taxiways/runways and stands. Specifics of infrastructure (best 

Page 24Page 412



available techniques) proposed for containing residual glycol at source to lessen 
the loading on the surface water system?

2. The applicant should produce and submit for our approval a De-icer Code of 
Practice document separate to the Environmental Management System (EMS). 

3. A review of existing mechanisms for control and prevention of pollution assessing 
the capabilities of current permitted and site infrastructure referencing the 
increased use of de-icer substances and increased surface run-off. An 
exploration of potential improvements to the control of run-off at source and to the 
attenuation on site?

COMAH:  There does not appear to be any consequences to the COMAH inventory or the 
site.  If any changes to the inventory are proposed or required the Operator should consult 
ourselves and the Health and Safety Executive as the Competent Authority.

Air quality - Legislation, guidance and planning policy context

The application has not referenced the emerging NPS. In practice for AQ it means that the 
plan shouldn’t stop any breach of a limit value being achieved as soon as possible. 

An emerging NPS can carry some weight for decision takers in the development consent 
process. The amount of weight given will depend on how far the process has progressed. In 
the absence of a NPS decisions will be taken in accordance with the National Planning 
Policy Framework and any relevant local plan for the area.”

10.71 - The 2014 NAEI has been used, 2016 is now available.

10.82 - Our old H1 guidance for assessing significance has been used, however, this only 
applies to industrial installations. Elsewhere, the DRMB guidance and the ADMS Airports 
model are referenced which are acceptable.

10.99 - The estimates for rural background are from 2014 which may well not represent true 
background in 2017.  Stansted is directly downwind from Greater London in the UK 
dominant SW wind direction and background concentrations could be expected to be higher 
as London is a principle source of particulates and NOx/NO2. 

Incorporated Mitigation:  Construction should follow the standards and practices in the 
IAQM’s or London Mayor’s guidance for construction/demolition and air quality. Other 
generic principles in STAL’s 2015 SDP, including increasing the use of public transport, are 
a reasonable starting point. The principles should be implemented in detail to deliver air 
quality improvements.  

Impact Assessment Human Receptors:  These are described as ‘negligible’ according to 
IAQM/EPUK criteria. The figures in Appendix 10.5 and many receptors are modelled to have 
very low NO2 concentrations even for rural locations. Nevertheless the assessment quotes 
worst changes in concentrations due to the expansion as being quite low figures ie 0.5 to 1 
mic g/ m3.

2nd response:

Section 10.1 & 10.2

Page 25Page 413



We welcome the acceptance of the condition detailed in the STAL Response column for 
Section 10.1 and the agreement to implement the recommendation detailed in Section 10.2 
related to dividing the airport up into zones with additional water meters. Additionally, we 
welcome further engagement as STAL identify the additional measures which will ensure the 
20% reduction in water consumption is achieved.

Section 10.5

We note the statement in Section 10.5 of the Consultation Response that ‘The CEMP will set 
out how groundwater and surface water will be managed to limit contamination during 
construction’. However, we wish to reiterate to the applicant the importance of dealing with 
on-site contamination in accordance with current guidance and legislation (including CLR11 
and the NPPF). Please note that In line with section 178 of the NPPF the responsibility for 
securing safe development rests with the developer. Section 10.9 – 10.11

It is understood that the Uttlesford Water Cycle Study (WCS) is currently being reviewed and 
updated. This was highlighted within our response referenced AE/2018/122577/01-L01 and 
dated 18 April 2018. It would be appropriate to re-iterate that references made to the 2017 
WCS, and any assumptions, will need to be updated to reflect the current document when it 
is available.

It is understood that the foul water from Stansted Airport is treated at Bishops Stortford 
Waste Water Treatment Works (WwTWs) (Section 10.9, STAL Response Column). The 
consented discharge of final effluent from Bishops Stortford WwTWs discharges into the 
Water Framework Directive (WFD) designated water body of Great Hallingbury Brook (WB 
ID: GB106038033330). This water body currently has a Poor classification, with Very Certain 
confidence, for Phosphate. SAGIS modelling indicates that 94.2% of the phosphate input 
into this water body is the result of WwTW load. All other Phys-chem determinants are at 
High, Very Certain, status.

The data submitted through Operator Self-Monitoring for the final effluent of Bishops 
Stortford WwTWs has been reviewed. This indicates that this site is currently operating 
within the industry standard for phosphorus; concentration levels of the final effluent were 
within 1-2milligrams per litre (mg/l) of phosphorus. Unless the phosphate treatment process 
is improved, then increased total volumes of foul water to Bishops Stortford WwTWs will 
further add to the phosphate load for Great Hallingbury Brook.

Additionally, there is concern regarding deterioration of the other Phys-chem elements, 
specifically Ammonia and Dissolved Oxygen. Our guidance allows for a 10% deterioration of 
water quality, providing there is no deterioration of the WFD Classification status.

Whilst we do acknowledge that STAL is correct in their understanding of the new charging 
rules introduced 01 April 2018, as detailed in Section 10.11 (STAL Response Column). 
STAL do need to be aware that it is up to the developer to demonstrate that their proposal 
will have no detrimental impact with regards to WFD.

As a result, we recommend a condition is included that STAL undertake modelling to ensure 
that the increased passenger numbers and associated increase in total foul water volumes, if 
not accounted for within the WCS which is currently being updated, will not result in 
deterioration in this water body.

Page 26Page 414



Section 10.6 – 10.8

As per our letter referenced AE/2018122577/01-L01 and dated 18 April 2018, the applicant 
and site operator should contact our Environment Management Land and Water team 
regarding water quality.

The following points will need to be addressed in writing and communicated back to us to 
ensure the highest level of protection to the local environment:

1. There are measures to reduce the impacts of de-icers (glycol) at source, including use 
and overspray on taxiways/runways and stands. Furthermore, we would like to see 
specifically designed infrastructure (best available techniques) proposed for containing 
residual glycol at source to lessen the loading on the surface water system.

2. A stand-alone De-icer Code of Practice document is produced separate to the 
Environmental Management System (EMS). This should be submitted to and approved by 
us.

3. There is a review of existing mechanisms for control and prevention of pollution that 
assesses the capabilities of current permitted and site infrastructure, taking into account the 
increased use of de-icer substances and increased surface run-off. We would like to see 
improvements made to control run-off at source and to the attenuation on site.

GARDENS TRUST

We have considered the information provided in support of the application and on the basis 
of this confirm we do not wish to comment on the proposals at this stage. We would however 
emphasise that this does not in any way signify either our approval or disapproval of the 
proposals.

HEALTH AND SAFETY EXECUTIVE

Not within consultation distance of either high pressure gas pipeline or a major hazard site.  
No comments to make on the application.

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

The County Council's position on aviation and London Stansted is set out within its 
Corporate Plan 'Hertfordshire County of Opportunity Corporate Plan 2017-2021' and Local 
Transport Plan, as follows:

Hertfordshire County of Opportunity Corporate Plan 2017-2021 'Opportunity to thrive - 
across Hertfordshire, we want to see:

- Our natural environment and diverse habitats protected from excessive or 
inappropriate growth, including the negative effects of airport expansion.'

Page 27Page 415



Local Transport Plan:  The existing Local Transport Plan (LTP3) states:

'3.2 Airports

The Air Transport White Paper published in December 2003 set out the government's then 
policy for airport development. The intention was that full use would be made of the capacity 
of existing runways and in addition a second wide spaced runway was proposed at Stansted 
and a full-length runway at Luton. The county council's position remains strongly against 
these proposals. A new National Policy Statement on Airports due to be published in 2011 
will set out a different policy to that of the White Paper.'

A county council is opposed to new runway development at Luton and Stansted Airports.

B Should any future development and growth in passenger numbers at either Stansted and 
Luton Airports be promoted, the county council will seek the provision in Hertfordshire of 
adequate supporting surface access infrastructure and services to meet the needs of airport 
users while minimising the impact on local and other travellers. The county council will seek 
assurance that the funding of such improvements will be in place before growth occurs.

C The county council will promote and where possible facilitate a modal shift of both airport 
passengers and employees towards sustainable modes.'

The emerging new Local Transport Plan (LTP4) is scheduled to become County Council 
policy in May this year. With regard to airports, draft LTP4 states the following:

'Policy 11: Airports

The county council, working in partnership with neighbouring local authorities and airport 
operators, will seek improvements to surface access to Luton and Stansted Airports, and 
promote and where possible facilitate a modal shift of both airport passengers and 
employees towards sustainable modes of transport. The county council is opposed to new 
runway development at Luton and Stansted Airports.

Application:  The county council will seek to implement this policy through working closely 
with the airports and the relevant neighbouring local authorities to ensure access to and from 
Hertfordshire for the region's airports, particularly London Luton and London Stansted, is 
improved and focussed primarily on sustainable modes of travel. The council will seek to 
ensure it exerts its influence on the aims, objectives, proposals and targets contained within 
the Luton Surface Access Strategy and the Stansted Sustainable Development Strategy and 
closely link these to the relevant Growth and Transport Plans (see page 91).

The county council will be working with relevant stakeholders to improve rail access to 
Stansted, without causing a detriment to other existing services on the West Anglia Mainline. 
The county council will also lobby train operating companies for improved facilities on these 
trains. It will work in partnership in seeking to tackle traffic congestion on the key radial 
routes to the airport and reduce the amount of vehicle trips, with an emphasis on promoting 
more sustainable modes of travel.

The county council, local authority partners, bus operators and the airport operators will look 
for opportunities to maximise the levels of passenger transport (bus and coach), especially 
from areas without direct rail access to Stansted and Luton Airports.

Page 28Page 416



The county council will also seek to work with the relevant authorities to help minimise any 
environmental impacts, such as noise, arising from aviation (see Environment Policy 21).

Outcomes:  Overall the policy seeks the delivery of sustainable airport growth at both Luton 
and Stansted with negative impacts on the local road network, environment and quality of life 
minimised. According an increase in sustainable mode share by airport passengers and 
employees at both airports should be sought.

Policy 21: Environment

The county council will seek to:

e) Minimise noise issues arising from transport where practical to do so.

Application:  Traffic, air travel and passenger transport can all cause noise disturbances, 
which can impact upon quality of life and tranquillity. The council will seek to minimise the 
impacts of traffic and transport noise in Hertfordshire, both when maintaining the existing 
transport infrastructure and when new infrastructure is installed. This will be achieved by 
working with key partners and stakeholders and through use of appropriate materials. The 
county council will also work with the local airports to seek to reduce disturbances from 
aircraft noise in Hertfordshire.' 

The County Council's response to the consultation on the planning application sits within this 
policy context.

Surface Access:  Since the planning application was submitted the County Council has been 
working closely with Essex County Council (ECC) in relation to the transport impact on local 
roads and with Highways England (HE) in their role as strategic highway authority.  As you 
area aware a series of meetings have taken place between all parties and are programmed 
to continue over the next few weeks. The ongoing dialogue is taking place to resolve/clarify a 
number of issues that have been identified as part of ECC's assessment of the application, 
such as appropriate assessment year, catering for background growth, airport 
passenger/employee modal split, times of assessment, distribution of trips and testing of 
impact.  ECC are continuing to lead on the technical assessment of the Transport 
Assessment, but this work is still incomplete. Further modelling work and sensitivity testing is 
also currently underway by the applicant, but the outputs from this process are similarly not 
available. Until the full technical assessment and outputs from the further technical work are 
available, the County Council is not in a position to accurately assess the impact of the 
application on the Hertfordshire network. The County Council commits to working closely 
with ECC and HE, together with the applicant and UDC, to ensure the surface 
access/highway implications of the application can be quantified robustly and appropriate 
mitigation requirements identified. The County Council will make further submissions to 
reflect the outcome of ongoing work.

Aircraft Noise:  The potential impact of air noise on communities is clearly a critical issue in 
terms of the potential adverse impacts of the proposal. The County Council welcomes the 
findings of the assessment accompanying the application that '6.69 Given that a change of 
3dB is recognised as being necessary in order to be discernible to the human ear, the 
overall change in noise levels (using average noise contours) experienced as a 

Page 29Page 417



consequence of the proposed development would be negligible............................'. New 
mitigation measures are also proposed.

The local planning authority has appointed independent noise consultancy advice 
[Bickerdike Allen and Partners (BAP)] to assess the application in terms of its analysis of 
predicted noise impacts, conclusions and proposed mitigation measures. Whilst BAP 
attended the noise and health workshop held on 26th March, it was clear that at that stage 
its analysis had not progressed substantively. As a consequence, at the time of writing, the 
outcome of the review by BAP and any conclusions it may reach and recommendations it 
may make are not available. The County Council will make further submissions, as 
necessary, to reflect the outcome of the independent assessment and its recommendations.

Air Quality:  The County Council welcomes the findings of the assessment accompanying 
the application that 'as a result of the proposed development, for all NO2, PM10 and PM2.5 
emissions there would be marginal increases at isolated receptors. Importantly, there are no 
exceedances of legal limits, and forecast levels are well below air quality standards for 
human health..........................for all ecological receptors, NOX emissions are predicted to 
remain below the air quality standard and no significant effects are predicted.................in 
respect of local air quality the proposed development will not have any unacceptable impact 
on health, the natural environment or general amenity.....'.

The local planning authority has appointed independent air quality consultancy advice, WYG 
Consulting, to assess the application in terms of its analysis of predicted air quality impacts 
and conclusions. Whilst WYG attended the air quality workshop held on 28th March, it was 
clear that at that stage its analysis had not progressed substantively. As a consequence, at 
the time of writing the outcome of the review by WYG and any conclusions it may reach and 
recommendations it may make are not available. The County Council will make further 
submissions, as necessary, to reflect the outcome of the independent assessment and its 
recommendations (including conclusions in relation to any implications the proposal might 
have on the existing Air Quality Management Area within Bishops Stortford).

Airport Capacity Capability:  The County Council's response to the Request for 
Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) scoping opinion stated the following: 

'Theoretical throughput  - In addition to assessing the implications of the proposed 44.5 
mppa throughput, the EIA should also give consideration to the potential cumulative impact 
of this proposal taken together with other proposals associated with the airport - for example 
the recent terminal consent. The theoretical throughput (if different to the proposed cap) of 
the collective consents and maximised operational model should be considered/assessed, 
not simply the proposed throughput cap.'

As the planning application has been submitted to and is being processed and determined 
by the local planning authority, clarity must exist that the proposal does not fall within the 
scope of development defined as a Nationally Significant Infrastructure Project by virtue of 
section 14(1) of the Planning Act 2008, for which responsibility for determination lies with the 
Secretary of State.   The application does not propose an increase in permitted capacity of 
greater than 10 mppa, but presumably there is clarity that the proposal does not facilitate an 
airport that would be theoretically capable of handling greater an additional 10 mppa.

Page 30Page 418



Environment Impact Assessment - Reasonable Alternatives:  Alternatives to the Proposed 
Development 

At para 3.110 the EIA states that:

'3.110 Schedule 4 of the EIA Regulations states that the following is required within an ES:

'A description of the reasonable alternatives (for example in terms of development design, 
technology, location, size and scale) studied by the developer, which are relevant to the 
proposed project and its specific characteristics, and an indication of the main reasons for 
selecting the chosen option, including a comparison of the environmental effects.'

At para 3.111 the EIA goes on to say:

'3.111 When considering the 'reasonable alternatives' for a change to permitted operations 
and the amending of the existing annual passenger cap and creation of a combined aircraft 
movement limit, STAL has not identified any credible alternatives which would achieve the 
overarching objective of making better and more efficient use of the existing single runway or 
be capable of accommodating the predicted demand of both passengers and airlines in the 
short to medium term (i.e. beyond 2023).'

And in para 3.115 the EIA concludes:

'3.115 In view of the above, it can be concluded that there are only two feasible alternatives 
– the 'Do Minimum' scenario and the 'Development Case', as described in ES Chapter 2 
(EIA Methodology). The comparative environmental effects of these alternatives form the 
basis of the assessment presented in this ES.'

In the months/year prior to submission of the planning application the applicant was moving 
forward with, and undertook a public consultation and sought views upon, proposals to 
increase throughput capacity of the airport to 44.5 mppa. Following that public consultation 
the applicant took the view that it would reduce its growth proposals to 43 mppa. The 
applicant has, therefore, very recently been giving consideration to a proposal (albeit not a 
different development) of a different throughput to that the subject of this planning 
application, and is presumably a reasonable alternative that c/should be assessed.

Much is made in the EIA and application of the aspiration to make best use of the runway. 
The County Council's response to the consultation on the EIA Request for Scoping Opinion 
called for the EIA to assess the theoretical capacity of the airport with the development in 
place (regardless of any planning cap that might be placed upon any planning permission, 
were one to be forthcoming) - see above (is this at or beyond 44.5mppa?) nor what it might 
be with some other form of similar/reasonably proportionate development (e.g. different 
number/form of taxiways, aircraft stands - though it is acknowledged that para 3.111 of the 
EIA states that the applicant considers there are no credible alternatives).

Community and Well-being Fund:  At the Noise and Health Workshop held on the 26th 
March the applicant indicated that it would welcome a discussion about the terms of 
reference for the Fund - to include a review of the kinds of projects and types of 
organisations/groups that should be eligible to bid to it, its geographic scope, and so on. The 
County Council welcomes this offer and would wish to be involved in those discussions over 
the coming months.

Page 31Page 419



2nd response:

Noise

The review of the application by independent specialists in relation to the application’s 
assessment of noise impacts/implications, conclusions reached and mitigation measures 
proposed has now concluded.  The findings of the independent noise specialist that the 
assessment methodology, approach and level of detail is satisfactory, that the Environmental 
Statement is comprehensive, that noise impacts are no greater than would be the case 
under the existing planning permission, that the approach to mitigation is appropriate (with 
additions proposed) to the extent that there are considered to be no grounds to object to the 
proposal, is welcomed.  

The County Council will expect any consent that may be forthcoming to incorporate 
appropriate measures to ensure these findings and mitigations are secured and communities 
protected.

Air Quality

The review of the application by independent specialists in relation to the application’s 
assessment of air quality impacts/implications, conclusions reached and mitigation 
measures proposed has now concluded.  The findings that the air quality assessment work 
informing the planning application is sufficient to enable the effects of the scheme to be 
determined, that the effect of emissions on human receptors will be negligible, that there will 
not be significant effects at surrounding habitats and that matters relating to air quality and 
emissions can be addressed through an appropriately worded condition is welcomed.  

With regard to Bishops Stortford Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) the Environment 
Health response is not clear.  It identifies that the application concludes that the effect of 
emissions from the development would be negligible, but goes on to acknowledge that there 
will be additional health impacts within the AQMA as a consequence of the development 
which ‘……..should be considered against the benefits of the scheme and an appropriate 
balance of mitigation should be sought’.  It is not clear whether the Environmental Health 
response supports the applicant’s ‘negligible’ assessment or whether there are additional 
health impacts that the decision-maker needs to take into account in decision making.  If the 
latter, then these impacts do not appear to be quantified and opinion/advice is not 
presented.  If there are additional health impacts, the County Council will expect these to be 
quantified and potential deliverable mitigation measures identified (secured through any 
consent, if necessary) to fully inform decision-making.  The County Council and East 
Hertfordshire District Council would wish to be closely involved in any further technical work 
that may be required.

Surface Access

As you will be aware, the three highway authorities continue to engage in technical 
work/discussions with the applicant and UDC on surface access matters and this has not yet 
reached a satisfactory conclusion to enable the County Council to make its representations 
within the timeframe of this supplementary consultation.  The County Council will, therefore, 
be making further representations on these matters in due course, the timeframe for which is 
not currently known. 

Page 32Page 420



3rd Response:

Stansted Area Transport Forum/Existing Planning Obligation

The applicant has clarified the role of Stansted Area Transport Forum (SATF) in a 
background information note (July 2018).  The current SATF arrangement has been effective 
in maintaining market leading modal split.  The applicant proposes to maintain the current 
arrangement alongside minor amendments to the SATF’s terms of reference.  SATF 
consists of three reporting sub-groups (bus and coach, local road and rail) upon which the 
County Council is represented and is therefore an established partner in the process

It is understood that if permission is granted it will be accompanied by a new section 106 
(s.106) agreement which will effectively supersede the existing agreement.  The existing 
agreement includes several specific contributions that relate to measures within 
Hertfordshire.  Although the applicant has indicated it is its intention to carry these forward 
into a new agreement, to date this commitment has not been confirmed in writing.  
Furthermore, there is a need to consider the surface access implications of an expanded 
Airport to establish whether it would be appropriate for the commitments to be uplifted and 
incorporated into the new s.106 agreement.  Current potential schemes that would likely to 
feature from such funding arrangements are set out later in this response, but as also set out 
later, it is difficult at this point in time to define what schemes/services should be prioritised in 
the future – as this will be dependent upon issues that arise as the Airport grows, as wider 
non-Airport growth comes forward, wider transportation initiatives and how Airport surface 
access sits within these.

HCC Agreement (Schedule 2)
1 STAL shall contribute a sum of up to £350,000.00 (three hundred and fifty thousand 

pounds) to HCC as a contribution towards local road schemes as shown in the Fourth 
Schedule to this Undertaking (Highways and Traffic Management - Bishop's Stortford) 
within a five-mile radius of the Airport Boundary and which may also include 
measures from the Hertfordshire Local Transport Plan, The Eastern Herts Transport 
Plan, and other highway safety schemes that are identified by STAL with HCC
(Para 1.2: As determined by SATF by Dec 2015 and in compliance with Circular 
05/2005)

2 STAL shall contribute a sum of £250,000.00 (two hundred and fifty thousand pounds) 
to HCC as a contribution towards the costs of the Little Hadham Bypass and such 
sum shall be paid by STAL to HCC within 3 months of the date of Practical 
Completion of the Little Hadham Bypass and in the event that the Construction of the 
Little Hadham Bypass is not commenced by 31st December 2018 then this obligation 
shall cease to have effect. 

[The applicant has confirmed that this contribution will be paid to HCC on request]
3 STAL shall contribute a total sum of one hundred and fifty thousand pounds 

(£150,000.00) from the Passenger Transport Levy which shall be used for public 
transport measures that are brought forward as part of the Bishop’s Stortford's 
Transport Strategy as shown in Schedule 4 (Public Transport) and such measures 
shall meet the objectives of the Passenger Transport Levy and be related to surface 
access impacts of the Development.

Table 1: Existing HCC specific s.106 measures to be superseded with new agreement

It should be noted that alongside specific financial contributions made available to 
SATF/working groups, the applicant has confirmed the current Passenger Transport Levy, 
which is a direct proportion of every car park cost transaction, will continue to be ring fenced 
for use by STAL and recognised Travel Plan style initiatives. Historically this revenue has 
supported out of hours bus services, employee shuttles, travel card system, cycle shelters 

Page 33Page 421



and onward travel information and marketing.  As the revenue stream is attached to car 
parking it is predicted to continue to increase relative to growth.

During the consultation period measures to support the applicant’s Surface Access Plan 
Aims and Targets (Table 2.1 Surface Access Transport Assessment) have been discussed.  
The applicant has proposed a continuation of the SATF process and bearing in mind the 
established structure and relative success in delivering modal split targets the County 
Council has no reason to object to maintaining the current arrangement.  

Road network

The Essex County Council letter dated 21st September 2018 sets out the technical work that 
has been ongoing to address the impacts of the proposal on the highway network.  The 
County Council notes that, subject to a number of planning conditions and obligations being 
secured, the proposal is acceptable to Essex County Council as Highway Authority – subject 
to Highways England being satisfied that impacts upon the strategic highway network have 
been satisfactorily addressed.  The County Council supports the position of Essex County 
Council and the proposed conditions and obligations.  Hertfordshire County Council agrees 
that a comprehensive programme of monitoring of the Airport highway network should be 
agreed with Highways England and the Local Highway Authorities. If it is identified that the 
growth on the Airport network interferes on a regular basis with the operation of the Strategic 
or Local road network, STAL shall identify and agree mitigation measures and a programme 
for implementation of such measures with the Local Planning Authority, in consultation with 
the relevant highways agencies. 

In terms of the Hertfordshire local highways network, the County Council is satisfied that 
technical work demonstrates that the proposal would not have a significant impact upon the 
wider Hertfordshire network.  However, as discussed above, given the uncertainty that 
comes with a proposal such as this that would come forward over a significant period of time 
and the proximity of the Hertfordshire network and particularly Bishop’s Stortford, uncertainty 
remains in relation to future impacts that could be associated with the Airport.  For example, 
it has not been possible to reach agreement on the scale of airport-related road traffic likely 
to use the Hockerill Street junction within Bishop’s Stortford.  The junction lies within an Air 
Quality Management Area, the cause of which is congestion.  Additional Airport-related 
traffic has the potential to exacerbate congestion and therefore potentially air quality issues 
and it is therefore considered appropriate to include the junction as potentially requiring 
future mitigation which might in some way be attributable to the Airport (subject to 
confirmation of this at a future time).  

Due to the nature of the Hockerill Street junction significant increases in capacity will be 
difficult to implement. Several options are included in the Bishop’s Stortford Transport Plan 
and listed in Table 2.  However, the AQMA is monitored by East Herts District Council and it 
is understood that alternative/additional mitigation such as a local demand based ULEV bus 
service that would support local services may be sufficient to help to address air quality 
concerns. 

To provide further local mitigation the District Council also believes regular local taxi services 
will be encouraged to switch to low emission vehicles if EV charging points are provided at 
the Airport drop off/pick up areas to reflect a similar town centre proposal, thereby helping to 
reduce air pollution.

Page 34Page 422



Local Road Schemes
Hockerill Street 
Junction 
improvement

Improvement to the Hockerill Street 
junction to reduce congestion
A. Banned right turns (permanent) – on 
B1383 and A1060 approaches
B. Banned right turn (permanent) – on 
B1383 approach
C. Ban left turns

2-5 years £250k

Demand based 
ULEV bus service

Demand based ULEV bus service to 
cover all of Bishop’s Stortford and the 
Airport

£100k per 
vehicle

Rapid EV charging 
points

Rapid EV charging points to support the 
ULEV accessing the Airport

£50k

Table 2: Local Road Mitigation

Non-car surface access/Sustainable Transport

The County Council’s initial response to the consultation on the application dated 30th April 
2018 set out the contextual Hertfordshire Local Transport Plan policy in relation to airports.  
The overall approach to transport taken within LTP4 is one that seeks a transition from a car-
based approach to one more balanced and catering for all forms of transport – seeking a 
switch from the private car to sustainable transport (e.g. walking, cycling and passenger 
transport) wherever possible.  This approach is specifically mentioned in Policy 11 Airports 
which states the following:

‘Policy 11: Airports

The county council, working in partnership with neighbouring local authorities and 
airport operators, will seek improvements to surface access to Luton and 
Stansted Airports, and promote and where possible facilitate a modal shift of both 
airport passengers and employees towards sustainable modes of transport……..’

The County Council has been liaising with Essex County Council in relation to non-car 
surface access to the Airport and any potential enhancements that might be required to 
support the proposal.  The County Council broadly supports the conclusions on strategic 
non-car access matters set out in the Essex County Council letter dated 21st September 
2018, including the production by STAL of a Bus and Coach Strategy, a Walking and Cycling 
Strategy, travel planning initiatives and widening the scope of the Sustainable Transport 
Levy.  A holistic approach to non-car access to/from the Airport in a manner that meets the 
needs of passengers and employees at all hours of operation will be critical as the airport 
grows.

In terms of the Hertfordshire context for non-car/sustainable transport access to/from a 
growing Airport, the County Council has the following recommendations.  

Walking/Cycling

Hertfordshire County Council’s Local Transport Plan (LTP4) includes a commitment to 
encourage greater use of sustainable transport (Policy 1).  In relation to walking and cycling, 
the applicant has acknowledged that there is potential for significant increases in this 
proportion of employee journeys.  As stated in the Transport Assessment, in the region of 
35% of employees live within 10km of the airport.  However, although the proportion of 
employees cycling (and walking) has increased in recent years, it still remains extremely 
small.  As there is potential for significant increases in proportion of walking and cycling trips 

Page 35Page 423



it is disappointing that the applicant is predicting such small increases to 2020, only an 
additional 0.1%.  A similar lack of ambition is true of the applicant’s Travel Plan targets which 
accompany growth to 2028.

The County Council has submitted a series of cycling schemes to the applicant which will 
help deliver higher proportions of cycling and walking (see table 3).  The County Council is 
also currently developing a strategic cycling route to initially link the Airport to Bishop’s 
Stortford, Sawbridgeworth, Harlow, Gilston, Ware and Hoddesdon.  The scheme may 
supersede previous listed schemes, in some cases it may build on identified routes.  A 
combination of routes will be a valuable asset to a significant proportion of employees and 
help support a more ambitious increase in growth of cycling and walking. In line with the 
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulation tests the County Council would not anticipate the 
applicant funding more distant sections.  There will be sections in the vicinity of Bishops 
Stortford which will be largely designed with the objective to encourage cycling and walking 
Airport access.  In these cases the County Council would expect SATF to prioritise funding.

Bus/Coach

Public transport access to the Airport is well established, in particular from the north, south 
and east.  Unfortunately, local bus penetration from the Airport into Hertfordshire, west 
beyond Bishop’s Stortford is limited.  Support for a central and south-west Hertfordshire to 
Airport bus service has been identified as a priority in the County Council’s (2011) Bus 
Strategy, and Stansted’s (2016) Sustainable Development Plan bus and coach strategy.

The precise routeing and frequency are subject to detailed consideration of demand and 
consultation with stakeholders and passenger groups, but could provide links to/from towns 
such as St Albans, Hatfield, Stevenage, Welwyn Garden City, Hertford and Ware, and 
potentially further afield should demand dictate.  The long distance nature of the service 
means that it should preferably be express, limited-stop and charge premium fares to avoid 
undermining existing commercial services.  Services should be at least two-hourly and 
reflect airport working hours, in line with existing coaches from 
Birmingham/Luton/Stevenage, and a demand-responsive basis should be considered.

Pump prime support should be secured for the County Council from Airport developer 
contributions for a minimum period of five years, in line with standard industry practice, to 
enable demand to be established and grown to a point where commercial viability can be 
achieved.  Financial support for accompanying promotion and marketing, and high 
specification vehicles should also be provided to maximise the attractiveness of the service, 
especially as historic services have not attracted passenger numbers on a consistent basis.  

Contributions from the Development to Surface Access mitigations/improvements

The County Council is content with arrangements proposed and which are understood to be 
incorporated into any consent were one forthcoming, through which the applicant will provide 
funding, subject to normal Community Infrastructure Levy regulation tests, that can be 
accessed (through the SATF) should the need for future surface access mitigations within 
Hertfordshire relating in some way to growth of the airport materialise.  

A Growth and Transport Plan to cover Bishop’s Stortford is programmed to be developed in 
2019 and will contain (as will any successor Plan) a series of transport measures to address 
predicted growth across the area.  At this stage it is not possible to identify what schemes 
might be appropriately linked to SATF and as indicated elsewhere in this response, given the 
longevity of this growth proposal the relationship between it and wider transportation issues 
is likely to evolve over time.  Nevertheless, taking into account the above range of schemes, 

Page 36Page 424



the County Council would recommend that the commitment within the current s106 
agreement to:

• local road schemes is enhanced to the sum of £1.2m to reflect the above schemes 
(local road, walking and cycling) and future impact uncertainty.

• public transport is enhanced to the sum of £800,000 to secure the public transport 
(bus/coach) proposals set out above.

• contribute to the construction of the Little Hadham Bypass is index linked (currently at 
circa £360,000) and rolled forward (in line with existing commitment from STAL to do 
so).

The County Council’s position on the planning application

On the basis of the above and previous representations and subject to the above, the 
County Council welcomes the additional capacity that this proposal will bring forward and the 
economic benefits associated with it.  The application is supported.  

Generally as the airport grows (within the context of any planning permission that may be 
forthcoming)

As the Airport grows the County Council would encourage and welcome ongoing liaison with 
the Airport, local authorities, London Stansted Cambridge Consortium, Local Enterprise 
Partnerships and other key stakeholders on how any economic benefits can be maximised 
and shared across the wider sub-region, including Hertfordshire.  It looks forward to 
participating in processes (including the Stansted Area Transport Forum) with other delivery 
stakeholders designed to address existing and any emerging surface access issues and 
priorities as they arise.  With regard to noise, the County Council welcomes opportunities to 
work with the Airport, Consultative Committee and relevant stakeholders in mechanisms 
(such as Future Airspace Strategy/Airspace Management Strategy implementation, specific 
airspace change proposals, noise action planning, etc,) to minimise and reduce the noise 
implications of the Airport on Hertfordshire.  A balanced and partnership approach to 
increasing aviation capacity and securing economic benefits whilst managing and wherever 
possible reducing environmental impacts will be critical in moving forward.

HIGHWAYS ENGLAND

Recommend that conditions should be attached to any planning permission that may be 
granted.  

Highways England has been appointed by the Secretary of State for Transport as strategic 
highway company under the provisions of the Infrastructure Act 2015 and is the highway 
authority, traffic authority and street authority for the Strategic Road Network (SRN). The 
SRN is a critical national asset and as such we work to ensure that it operates and is 
managed in the public interest, both in respect of current activities and needs as well as in 
providing effective stewardship of its long-term operation and integrity.

This response represents our formal recommendations with regards to UTT/18/0460/FUL 
and has been prepared by David Abbott.

The proposed development comprises infrastructure improvements at Stansted Airport 
located close to the intersection of A120 (T) and M11 at junction 8 in Uttlesford District in 
Essex. The planning application was submitted on 22 February 2018 and the proposals 
include the introduction of new taxiway links, aircraft stands and associated on-site 

Page 37Page 425



infrastructure. The airport is seeking permission to accommodate an increase in passenger 
numbers from the currently permitted limit of 35 million passengers per year up to 43 million.

Prior to submitting the application, the airport had already been engaging with us and other 
key transport partners in relation to their expansion through the Stansted Transport Working 
Group which has been operational for several years.

The key locations on the SRN most likely to experience severe adverse impacts as a result 
of the airport’s proposed expansion are M11 junction 8 interchange and the A120 Priory 
Wood roundabout which is the next junction a short distance east of the M11. The A120 to 
the west of the M11 is a local highway managed by Essex County Council (ECC), and forms 
a bypass of Bishop’s Stortford. Birchanger Motorway Service Area is served directly off the 
M11 J8 gyratory.

ECC are currently preparing to implement a major improvement to a short section of the 
A120 west of M11 J8 to support economic growth. These improvements are likely to be able 
to accommodate some of the traffic growth arising from the airport expansion beyond the 
current 35mppa limit. However, they are not sufficient to cater for 43mppa. Further 
improvements are therefore necessary to address the potentially severe impacts on the SRN 
at M11 J8 and at the A120 Priory Wood roundabout. A mitigation scheme was therefore 
submitted by the applicant which in terms of capacity and safety should be adequate to 
address these impacts.

In parallel with the ECC scheme and the airport’s additional improvements, calls have been 
made for more extensive improvements to the M11 to be included in a future Roads 
Investment Strategy (RIS). The next RIS covering the period 2020 to 2025 is currently being 
prepared on behalf of the Department for Transport (DfT). Study work is still progressing to 
support the development of the next RIS, which is not due to be published by DfT until the 
latter part of 2019, so it is not yet known whether a scheme to upgrade the M11 or its 
junctions could be included. However, the possibility of such a scheme being included has 
had to be acknowledged in the context of this application.

In light of the above, we are minded therefore to recommend conditions to be attached to 
any planning permission (see below). These relate to delivery of the specific set of mitigation 
improvements to the SRN as proposed by the applicants. In proposing these conditions, we 
are, however, mindful of the need to adopt a flexible approach that will enable the sensible 
coordination or adaptation of works for the benefit both of users of the road network and the 
airport, and to respond to factors that are currently unknown.

Such an approach is especially relevant to future RIS programmes and timetables. As such, 
while the conditions relate to specific improvement plans our aim is principally to achieve the 
required outcomes within an appropriate timetable but to allow either: (i) for the proposals to 
be reviewed and, if appropriate, revised to better achieve the outcomes in the light of 
emerging conditions; or (ii) for the possibility of the proposals to be superseded by another 
more extensive scheme or schemes that would achieve the same outcomes. In the event of 
the latter we believe a financial contribution by the applicant equivalent to the cost of their 
proposed mitigation scheme would therefore be appropriate, and this has been 
acknowledged by them.

In practice, with regard to mitigation measures on the SRN, we would anticipate the following 
process being followed, most probably within the context of a section 106 agreement:

a) Upon reaching 35 million passengers per 12-month period, the applicant shall, in 
consultation with Highways England, undertake a review of the mitigation works for 
M11 J8 and A120 Priory Wood shown on Steer Drawings 23003401-SDG-HGN-

Page 38Page 426



100-DR-D-00104 Rev P1 and 2300340-SDG-HGN-100-DR-D-00101 Rev P1 (or 
subsequent versions approved in writing by the local planning authority in 
consultation with Highways England) (“the mitigation scheme”). This review shall 
consider outturn traffic conditions at that time, any other changes in future predicted 
traffic conditions, and also the Roads Investment Strategy (RIS) programme for the 
SRN in respect of J8 M11;

b) Following this review, unless otherwise agreed in writing with Highways England, 
the mitigation scheme shall be completed and open to traffic no later than when 
passenger numbers are forecast to reach 39 million passengers per 12-month 
period;

c) If, following the review, it is agreed in writing by Highways England that, due to the 
inclusion of an alternative major scheme for J8 M11 in a future RIS (“the RIS 
scheme”), the mitigation scheme will no longer be required, a financial sum equal to 
the cost of the mitigation scheme will be paid to Highways England as a contribution 
to the cost of the RIS scheme. The payment shall be made when the airport 
reaches 39 million passengers per 12-month period, unless otherwise agreed in 
writing.

Given the above, we therefore recommend the following conditions be attached to any 
planning permission:

Unless otherwise agreed in writing the works to M11 J8 shown in outline on Steer Drawing 
numbers 23003401-SDG-HGN-100-DR-D-00104 Rev P1 and 2300340-SDG-HGN-100-DR-
D-00101 Rev P1 (or subsequent versions approved in writing by the local planning authority 
in consultation with Highways England) shall be completed and open to traffic before 39 
million passengers per annum is exceeded.

Scheme details shall include drawings and documents showing:
i. How the improvement interfaces with the exiting highway alignment and 

carriageway markings including lane destinations;
ii. Full construction details relating to the highway improvement. This should include 

any modifications to existing structures or proposed structures, with supporting 
analysis;

iii. Full signing and lighting details where applicable;
iv. iv. Confirmation of full compliance with departmental standards (DMRB) and 

policies (or approved relaxations/departures from standards);
v. v. Evidence that the scheme is fully deliverable within land in control of either the 

highways authorities of the applicant;
vi. vi. An independent stage 2 Road Safety Audit (RSA) taking account of any stage 

1 RSA recommendations, carried out in accordance with DMRB and advice notes

Reason: To ensure that the M11 J8 and the A120 Priory Wood junctions will continue to 
operate safely and efficiently as part of the strategic road network.

HISTORIC ENGLAND

We do not wish to offer any comments.  Suggest you seek the views of your specialist 
conservation and archaeological advisers.

Page 39Page 427



MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL

For your information, Stansted Airport’s planning application (UTT/18/0460/FUL) was 
discussed at Maldon District Council’s Planning and Licensing Committee yesterday evening 
(17/04/2018) and no comments were raised by Members.

NATS SAFEGUARDING

The proposed development has been examined from a technical safeguarding aspect and 
does not conflict with our safeguarding criteria. Accordingly, NATS (En Route) Public Limited 
Company ("NERL") has no safeguarding objection to the proposal.

NATURAL ENGLAND

Thank you for your re-consultation on the above dated 23 July 2018 which was received by 
Natural England on the same date, following discussions with your authority and the 
applicant at the meeting of 10 July 2018. This letter follows previous emailed consultation 
advice dated 9 July 2018 and 10 May 2018 which sets out outstanding matters relevant to 
the effects on designated sites.

Natural England is a non-departmental public body. Our statutory purpose is to ensure that 
the natural environment is conserved, enhanced, and managed for the benefit of present 
and future generations, thereby contributing to sustainable development.

Case law and guidance has stressed the need for a full set of environmental information to 
be available for consideration prior to a decision being taken on whether or not to grant 
planning permission. Annex A of the letter dated 10 May 2018 provides Natural England’s 
advice on the scope of the Habitats Regulations Assessment including Appropriate 
Assessment for this development.

The Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended)

The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 (as amended)

The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 
2015 requires local planning authorities to consult Natural England on “Development in or 
likely to affect a Site of Special Scientific Interest” (Schedule 4, w). Natural England’s 
comments in relation to this application are provided in the following sections.

Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSIs) and sites of European or international importance 
(Special Areas of Conservation)

The development site is near to the following designated nature conservation sites:

Page 40Page 428



Hatfield Forest SSSI, NNR, Elsenham Woods SSSI, Quendon Wood SSSI, High Wood 
Dunmow SSSI and, acting in combination with other plans or projects, may have a likely 
significantly effect on Epping Forest SAC and an impact on Epping Forest SSSI.

Should the details of this application change, Natural England draws your attention to 
Section 28(I) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended), requiring your authority 
to re-consult Natural England.

1. The Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) - Sites of Special Scientific Interest 
(SSSIs)

1.1 Hatfield Forest SSSI, National Nature Reserve

This application is in close proximity to Hatfield Forest Site of Special Scientific Interest 
(SSSI). Hatfield Forest SSSI is also a National Nature Reserve (NNR) of considerable 
national significance and is an internationally important example of a Medieval Forest with all 
elements surviving (Rackham, O, 1989 and 
https://www.placeservices.co.uk/projects/hatfield-forest-conservation-management-plan/ ).

Further to our previous consultation advice, Natural England advises the following:

i) Based on the 2016 baseline within the ES, Hatfield Forest SSSI, NNR is already subject to 
Nitrogen deposition that exceeds the Critical load for most of the sensitive SSSI habitat 
features and is over twice the Critical Load for the most sensitive habitat features.

ii) The roads local to Hatfield Forest SSSI, NNR include major roads (M11 and A120) that 
have a significant plume of NOx associated with them, which when coupled with smaller 
local roads and airport operations are likely to be significantly contributing to the local 
Nitrogen deposition. Natural England acknowledges that Hatfield Forest is over 360metres 
distance from A120 and over 860 metres from M11, which is greater than the DMRB 
screening criteria of 200m. Whilst, it may be appropriate in some cases to screen in roads 
that are >200m we accept in this case that the B1256 (which is c50m from Hatfield Forest 
SSSI) has been assessed in isolation.

iii) Many of these local roads, including the major roads of (ii), are predicted to be subject to 
significant increases in traffic flows between 2016 baseline and 2028, and for many roads 
including key roads linked to required AQ assessments, this has been largely attributed 
within the ES to the permitted local housing growth (see cumulative developments Chapter 
17) and predicted population growth implicit within the TEMPRo traffic flow models. If this is 
the case, your authority needs to adequately consider this context and the proposed step 
change of this development within the environmental assessments informing the Local Plan.

iv) Natural England welcomes the more precautionary reduction that has been factored into 
the modelling to provide revised model outputs. As expected by Natural England, the ‘Do 
Something’ figures for the revised Table A1 are higher than the previously submitted ES 
figures, and so the proposed 2028 development (Do Something scenario) will be contributing 
Nitrogen deposition to a higher environmental background level which is regarded to be 
significantly exceeding the Critical Load for the sensitive SSSI habitat features Therefore the 
development may be regarded as contributing to prolonging these exceedances of the 
Critical Load. However, when considering the implications of the additional Nitrogen 

Page 41Page 429



deposition at this location, the figures in the revised Table A1 indicate that the scale of 
predicted change is estimated to be unchanged and the % change between DM and DS is 
estimated as not exceeding 0.63%, which is below the 1% significance threshold generally 
applied to these types of assessments.

v) In addition to (iv), Natural England remains concerned that the traffic and AQ modelling 
involves unseen datasets (eg, TEMPRo) and assumptions, that may not accurately reflect 
the actual environmental conditions over the mid-longer term that Hatfield Forest SSSI, NNR 
needs to function within. We note in row 6.8 of the tabulated Consultee Response Schedule 
the statement ‘As part of the on-going and current S106 commitments, STAL produces all 
the data on an annual basis in a publically available report published on the website. This 
commitment will be continued and will include the new monitoring point in Hatfield Forest.’ 
Natural England welcomes this commitment but recognises that this only addresses the 
commitments of the S106 agreement linked to the current planning permission for up to 
35mppa. In recognition that the proposed 35mppa + development (ie, the Do Something 
scenario) is predicted to increase road traffic and Nitrogen deposition onto Hatfield Forest 
SSSI & NNR, Natural England advises it would be appropriate to continue this monitoring, as 
a requirement of any permissions granted, to ensure the modelled environmental conditions 
for 35mppa to 43mppa are subject to effective ‘ground-truth’ to validate model predictions. 
This would be in accordance with the current Stansted Airport Sustainable Development 
Plan 2015 – 20, (see https://live-webadmin-media.s3.amazonaws.com/media/3375/stn-
environment-sdp.pdf) noting the expressed strategic objectives to ‘actively manage and 
contain environmental impacts’ and ‘be active and support partners in the local community’, 
(National Trust and Uttlesford DC could be regarded as such). The SDP also recognises it 
will need to evolve and be kept under review so that it remains relevant and reflects the 
evolution and development of Stansted Airport.

1.2 Elsenham Woods SSSI

Elsenham Woods SSSI is an ancient coppice with standards Oak-Ash woodland with a 
reasonably diverse mixture of canopy tree and understorey species and a species-rich 
ancient woodland ground flora. Whilst additional interest is provided by the ponds, the 
woodland habitat is the relevant SSSI interest feature that needs to be considered from an 
air quality perspective.

For the reasons set out in detail in section 1.2 of our letter dated 10 May 2018 Natural 
England advises the following:

i) Based on the 2016 baseline within the ES, Elsenham Woods SSSI is already subject to 
Nitrogen deposition that significantly exceeds the Critical load for its SSSI woodland habitat 
feature.

ii) Stansted Airport with all its infrastructure (including roads and car parks etc) is local to 
Elsenham Woods SSSI and has a significant plume of NOx associated with it (see Figure 
10.5.1), which when coupled with the Hall Road and accounting for the prevailing wind is 
very likely to be contributing to this local Nitrogen deposition.

iii) Some of these local roads, including the internal roads within the Airport, are predicted to 
be subject to significant increases in traffic flows between 2016 baseline and 2028 that are 
regarded as Airport-related while others such as Hall Road have been largely attributed 

Page 42Page 430



within the ES to the permitted local housing growth (see cumulative developments Chapter 
17) and predicted population growth implicit within the TEMPRo traffic flow models.

iv) Natural England welcomes the more precautionary reduction that has been factored into 
the modelling to provide revised model outputs. As expected by Natural England, the ‘Do 
Something’ figures for the revised Table A1 are higher than the previously submitted ES 
figures, and so the proposed 2028 development (Do Something scenario) will be contributing 
Nitrogen deposition to a higher environmental background level which is regarded to be 
significantly exceeding the Critical Load for the sensitive SSSI habitat features and therefore 
the development may be regarded as contributing to prolonging these exceedances of the 
Critical Load. However, when considering the implications of the additional Nitrogen 
deposition at this location, the figures in the revised Table A1 indicate that the scale of 
predicted change is estimated to be unchanged and the % change between DM and DS is 
estimated as not exceeding 0.53%, which is below the 1% significance threshold generally 
applied to these types of assessments.

v) In addition to (iv), Natural England remains concerned that the traffic and AQ modelling 
involves unseen datasets (eg, TEMPRo) and assumptions, that may not accurately reflect 
the real world environmental condition over the mid-longer term that Elsenham Woods SSSI 
needs to function within. With reference to row 6.8 of the tabulated Consultee Response 
Schedule there does not appear to be any commitment within the submissions to monitor the 
air quality within Elsenham Woods SSSI going forward, and despite reference within the 
SDP to specific consideration of Elsenham Woods SSSI as part of Air Quality modelling it is 
not clear to Natural England whether this SSSI is currently included within its existing air 
quality monitoring programme (see https://www.stanstedairport.com/community/local-
environmental-impacts/air-quality/ ). In recognition that the proposed 35mppa + development 
(ie, the Do Something scenario) is predicted to increase road traffic and Nitrogen deposition 
onto Elsenham Woods SSSI, Natural England advises it would be appropriate for Stansted 
Airport to undertake Air Quality monitoring within Elsenham Woods SSSI as a requirement of 
any permissions granted, to ensure the modelled environmental conditions for 35mppa to 
43mppa are subject to effective ‘ground-truthing’ to validate model predictions. This would 
be in accordance with the current Stansted Airport Sustainable Development Plan 2015 – 
20, (see https://live-webadmin-media.s3.amazonaws.com/media/3375/stn-environment-
sdp.pdf ) noting the expressed strategic objectives to ‘actively manage and contain 
environmental impacts’ and the need for the SDP to evolve and be kept under review so that 
it remains relevant and reflects the evolution and development of Stansted Airport.

vi) Elsenham Woods SSSI is already subject to Nitrogen deposition that significantly 
exceeds the Critical load for its SSSI woodland habitat feature and in recognition that the 
proposed 35mppa + development (ie, the Do Something scenario) is predicted to increase 
road traffic and Nitrogen deposition onto Elsenham Woods SSSI, Natural England advises it 
would be appropriate for Stansted Airport to undertake any necessary measures to reduce 
NOx outputs and Nitrogen depositions. This would be consistent with the aims and targets of 
the SDP to ‘reduce air pollution’ and ‘remain within the appropriate air quality limit values’ 
(eg, the Critical Load for Nitrogen deposition within the woodland habitats of the Airport 
owned Elsenham Woods SSSI). This may be best achieved through a planning condition 
that requires:

Page 43Page 431



The Elsenham Woods SSSI Management Plan and Stansted Airport Sustainable 
Development Plan to be updated by 31 May 2019 to include the objective of achieving the 
agreed Air Quality thresholds for the SSSI woodland habitat by December 2027 and 
production of a Mitigation Strategy (see ii above) with implementation initiated by December 
2020.

1.3 Quendon Wood SSSI

Quendon Wood is an ancient coppice-with-standards woodland, supporting a mosaic of 
Oak-Hornbeam and Oak Ash woodland communities. It supports a diverse ground flora with 
notable species associated with a range of soil types. Whilst additional interest is provided 
by the ponds the woodland habitat including ride flora is the main SSSI interest feature that 
needs to be considered from an air quality perspective.

Natural England welcomes the inclusion of this SSSI within the initial screening process, 
recognising it is situated close to the M11 (north of Junction 8) and adjacent to the B1383.

Quendon Wood SSSI is >400m from the M11 which is greater than the DMRB distance 
criteria of 200m. Thus, the B1383 has been assessed in isolation. The predicted percentage 
change in NOx values between DM and DS for the B1383 is well below the 1% significance 
threshold that is generally applied to these type of assessments and on this basis, Natural 
England accepts the conclusions of no significant impact on this SSSI.

1.4 High Wood Dunmow SSSI

High Wood, Dunmow is an ancient woodland, supporting a mosaic of Oak-Hornbeam and 
Oak Ash woodland communities. It supports a characteristic ground flora associated with a 
range of soil types. Whilst additional interest is provided by the pond the woodland habitat 
including ride flora is the main SSSI interest feature that needs to be considered from an air 
quality perspective.

The predicted percentage change in NOx values between DM and DS for the A120 is well 
below the 1% significance threshold that is generally applied to these type of assessments 
and on this basis, Natural England accepts the conclusions of no significant impact on this 
SSSI.

1.5 Epping Forest SSSI

Epping Forest SSSI is one of only a few remaining large-scale examples of wood pasture in 
lowland Britain and has retained habitats of high nature conservation value including ancient 
woodland, old grassland, heathland and scattered wetlands including bogs. The semi-natural 
woodland is particularly extensive forming one of the largest coherent blocks in the country. 
Most is characterised by groves of veteran and ancient pollards and these exemplify all three 
of the main wood-pasture types found in Britain: Beech-Oak, Hornbeam-Oak and mixed 
Oak. The forest plains are also a major feature and contain a number of unimproved acid 
grasslands and the largest area of heathland mire of any site in Essex. In addition, Epping 
Forest supports a nationally outstanding assemblage of invertebrates, amphibians, breeding 
birds, fungi, bryophytes and includes nationally significant species for all of these taxonomic 
groups and lichens.

Page 44Page 432



At EIA scoping stage and during pre-application consultation, Natural England has advised 
that most of Epping Forest SSSI is also classified as (SAC) Special Area of Conservation 
and this largely incorporates the mosaic of habitats that support the listed SSSI features. On 
this basis, our detailed advice is set out within the Epping Forest SAC section of this letter 
accounting for the provisions of the Habitats Regulations. Additional matters of significance 
for SSSI features are raised in this section 1.5 below.

Natural England has previously advised that the M11 section between junction 6 and 7 is 
close to Epping Forest SSSI units 103 and 201, and SSSI unit 106 is within 200m of the M25 
so requires further assessment in accordance with DMRB guidance and consideration within 
the ES. We note that the submitted Letter dated 10 August 2018 assesses SSSI unit 201 but 
makes no mention of units 103 and 106. We assume that the distance measurements have 
been taken from the centre line of the carriageways and this distance is regarded to be 
greater than 200m thus eligible for screening out in strict adherence to the DMRB guidelines 
(HA 2007).

(a) We note in Table 1 and Table 2 of this letter that the figures provided are not directly 
comparable.

For Table 1 the difference between DS (5.52) and DM (5.43) is 0.09 which should be equal 
to the figure in Table 2 for ‘Change in deposition rate due to 35+’, however it is not. Instead, 
a figure of 0.08 is provided in Table 2. In addition to this, the % figure in Table 2 for ‘Change 
as a percentage of the minimum critical load of the most sensitive receptor’ is 0.84, but 
based on the figures in Table 1 this arguably should be 0.9%. It is possible the figures 
provided show discrepancies due to rounding-down, and if so, due to the figures being close 
to significance thresholds it would be appropriate to revise the Table and associated text 
within the report to show more exact figures with decimal places.

(b) Additionally, to understand how we should consider the modelled outputs please could 
the applicant’s confirm whether the predicted AADT figure of 5,149 is a conservative 
estimate (ie, possibly lower than may be expected because it ignores airport related traffic 
joining/leaving the M11 at Junction 7 – see page 2 Conclusions) or an over-estimate 
(because airport-related traffic would be expected to be highest near to the airport and the 
number of vehicles that leave join the M11 at junction 7 has been ignored – see page 3 
section A1.1).

Without clarification of points (a) and (b) it is difficult for Natural England to provide definitive 
advice but for the sake of expedience, if the AADT figure of 5,149 is regarded as a 
conservative traffic flow estimate and the largest figure of 0.9% change is relevant for 
assessment purposes, Natural England can advise as follows:

Epping Forest SSSI unit 201 is mainly Oak-Hornbeam woodland with additional interest 
provided by the ponds. For the purposes of this assessment, the woodland habitat (including 
ground flora, veteran trees and epiphytes) and wetlands are the main SSSI interest features 
that need to be considered from an air quality perspective. In this context and at this 
location, the minimum Critical load threshold for Nitrogen is correctly identified as 
10kgN/Ha/Year (see page 2 Table 2). With reference to the points made above, we note that 
0.9% is below the 1% threshold of significance but should be regarded as approaching the 
level requiring further assessment. Furthermore, this area of Epping Forest is already 

Page 45Page 433



subject to Nitrogen deposition that significantly exceeds the Critical load for its SSSI 
woodland and wetland habitat features and this development is likely to contribute to 
prolonging the exceedances of Nitrogen loading. With this in mind, please could the 
applicants respond to points (a) and (b) above, and for future reference and validation 
purposes, include as part of the Technical Note the tabulated estimates for the transect 
points to show how Nitrogen deposition levels are predicted to ‘drop off’ with distance from 
the M11. Notwithstanding this, should the percentage change in Nitrogen deposition values 
between DM and DS be predicted to be a maximum of 0.9% and therefore below the 1% 
significance threshold at this location, Natural England is minded to accept the conclusion of 
no significant impact on the interest features of the SSSI. This does not mean that Natural 
England can rule out a likely impact on the SSSI features caused by this scale of 
development-linked Nitrogen deposition, but merely acknowledges that the strict application 
of current guidelines (eg, DMRB) for SSSI and EIA-linked assessments provide an accepted 
justification for not regarding the impact as ‘significant’ and therefore not requiring further 
assessment or mitigation. Ideally, mindful of sustainability and SSSI targets, this section of 
M11 adjacent to Epping Forest SSSI unit 201 should be subject to periodic traffic monitoring 
and linked AQ modelling to verify the predictions to see whether further assessment and 
remediation is necessary. In light of the context, Natural England does not expect this 
provision, but for the record would support a solution that included this provision within any 
Highways-linked obligation.

For completeness, Natural England refers to section 2 below for the assessment of the 
relevant ‘affected’ area within SSSI unit 105.

2. The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 (as amended) – European 
sites

2.1 Epping Forest SAC

The proposed Airport development is not directly connected with, or necessary to, the 
management of a European site.

In addition to this, our view at pre-application stage was that the plan (either alone and/or in 
combination with other plans or projects) will have a likely significant effect on the 
internationally designated features of Epping Forest SAC and therefore will require 
assessment under the Habitats Regulations.

In our letter of 8 November 2017, we advised that the proposed increase in passenger 
numbers (ie, from 35mppa to 43mppa) is likely to result in increased road traffic movement 
to and from Stansted Airport. The Airport links to road and highway networks (eg, M11, M25 
and linked A/B roads) that currently take significant traffic flow adjacent to Epping Forest 
SAC, SSSI. The critical levels and loads of Nitrogen Oxides and Nitrogen deposition for this 
SSSI and SAC are currently being exceeded and it is recognised that additional road traffic 
associated with proposed growth and development may exacerbate this situation. Each new 
application therefore requires detailed assessment to ensure sustainable development 
solutions are achievable.

The Local Planning Authorities around Epping Forest SAC, SSSI are aware of this issue and 
seeking to strategically address it through their Local Plans, principally by ensuring 
compliance with SEA and HRA requirements. The MoUs for the West Essex/Hertfordshire 

Page 46Page 434



Housing Market Area (HMA) and Highways & Transport Infrastructure include Epping Forest 
DC, Harlow DC, East Herts DC, Uttlesford DC as well as Essex County Council Highways, 
Hertfordshire County Council and Highways England.

Likely Effect of Stansted Airport 35+ ‘Alone’ on SAC Features

We note the predicted contributions to NOx Critical Levels and Nitrogen deposition Critical 
Loads from the M25 are well below 1%, so it is reasonable to conclude for SSSI unit 105 that 
the proposed development ‘alone’ can avoid a likely significant effect on the SAC features 
within SSSI unit 105, however with reference to the Wealden case there is still a need to 
consider whether there is a likely significant effect ‘in combination’ with other plans and 
projects.

For SSSI unit 109, noting distance measurements have been taken from the centre line of 
the M25 carriageways and this distance is greater than 200m, we acknowledge that strict 
adherence to the DMRB guidelines (HA 2007) indicates that it is acceptable to screen out 
any further HRA assessment for SSSI unit 109, either ‘alone’ and/or ‘in combination’.

Likely Effect of Stansted Airport 35+ on SAC features ‘in combination’

Natural England welcomes the detail provided in the Habitats Regulations Assessment to 
enable further consideration of the ‘in combination’ effects and advises the following:

Natural England is mindful of the points made in paragraph 3.43 and also advise ‘If the 
background concentration/deposition is currently exceeding the environmental benchmark 
and the new development contribution will cause an additional small increase then, the 
decision will have to be made on a case by case basis and on individual circumstances’. For 
this case, the complexities involved with the likely ‘in combination effects’ associated with the 
HMA Local Plans and the highlighted concerns about the ecological sensitivity of Epping 
Forest SAC (and SSSI) features has required this proposed development to be considered 
in more detail.

Unfortunately, the revised EFDC traffic assessments and linked Local Plan HRA are not yet 
available for our consideration. To enable Natural England to meet the consultation 
timescales for this application we have provided advice based on the information that is 
available, rather than requesting a further extension to the consultation period to allow for 
this additional third party ‘in combination’ information. Natural England notes the reasonable 
assumption that the M25 carries a wide range of longer distance trips and acknowledges 
that the local road B1393 has no direct connection for traffic to access the M25 at this 
assessed location. Natural England notes the predicted AADT increase of 12 for the B1393 
that can be attributed to the Stansted Airport 35+ development, which is very small 
compared with the predicted increases >1000 AADT that have been attributed to the Local 
Plan growth (available HRA figures). Based on assurances from the applicants that the 
assessments have adhered to available standard guidelines it is reasonable for us to 
conclude that the Stansted Airport development will significantly contribute to the M25 traffic 
levels but not the local B1393, whereas the growth associated with HMA Local Plans will 
significantly contribute to the local roads and potentially other major roads including the M25. 
With an absence of locally validated ‘in combination’ traffic and AQ assessments for the 
B1393 at this stage, we are minded to accept the use of TEMPRo growth for assessment 

Page 47Page 435



purposes and note for future reference the predicted AADT contributions that would be 
required to meet 1% NOx threshold.

The Epping Forest Survey Note (Appendix 3 of the document Revision to Annex 1: 
Information for Epping Forest July 2018) helpfully provides additional detail that supports 
Natural England’s advice in our emailed letter of 9 July 2018. For example, the snapshot 
SSSI condition assessment of favourable condition status (referred to in section 3.35 of 
Appendix 3) is dated 2009 and it is likely some of these features (eg, bryophytes) may not 
achieve favourable condition targets if assessed today. Furthermore, this Survey helpfully 
confirms that the ‘zone of influence’ within the SSSI unit 105 is Nitrogen polluted when 
considering its Lichen Indicator Scores and other notable field signs (eg, signs of stress, 
elevated insect damage and dominance nitrogen-loving field layer where present). This 
aligns with our observations and concerns that ‘Epping Forest SSSI unit 105 (within SAC) 
has been subject to Nitrogen deposition above Critical Loads for a prolonged period and this 
has been identified as a ‘SSSI Threat’ and an ‘SAC IPENS issue’ since at least 2009 and 
this is reducing the capacity for sensitive SAC features and their supporting habitats to 
maintain or achieve favourable condition and/or favourable conservation status.’

We note the lack of clear trend between % lichen cover and distance from the M25, but also 
recognise the increase from ‘Nitrogen Polluted’ to ‘Very Nitrogen Polluted’ (based on Lichen 
Indicator Score / Nitrogen Air Quality Index) with increasing proximity to the M25 (ie, 
comparing c200m with c50m distances from the M25). Overall, the assessment helpfully 
contributes to Natural England’s understanding of how the features of this specific area of 
the SSSI, SAC are performing at different distances from the M25 and also demonstrates 
the challenges within the short timescales of the planning process to obtain definitive proof 
that elevated NOx and Nitrogen deposition from development will cause a significant and 
quantifiable impact.

When considering the ‘in combination’ figures generated by TEMPRo for the Stansted 35+ 
traffic on the M25, Natural England notes the maximum increase in nitrogen deposition into 
this discrete area of SSSI unit 105 of the SAC is predicted to be 0.02kgN/ha/yr. This is well 
below the 1% level of the Critical Load for this woodland area of the SAC and the modelled 
reductions in Nitrogen deposition at increasing distances from the M25 is a reasonable 
assumption based on general studies. Despite reasonable endeavours by all parties it has 
not been possible to obtain relevant site-based monitoring of air quality to ground-truth 
modelled predictions. Additionally, it is not yet clear to Natural England what the likely 
increase in Nitrogen deposition will be from the B1393 onto this area of the SSSI unit 105 
that can be attributed to the increased traffic generated by the HMA Local Plans. It is 
anticipated that the effect of the forthcoming Local Plans on the local roads and the adjacent 
SAC areas (including the B1383 and SSSI unit 105) will have to be considered as part of 
their HRA assessment process.

Based on available and submitted information, Natural England broadly accepts the 
application of the distance criteria and the 1% significance threshold at this location for this 
development and generally accepts that the Stansted 35+ can avoid an adverse effect on 
the integrity of Epping Forest SAC, either alone and in combination with other relevant plans 
or projects.

Page 48Page 436



This does not mean that Natural England can rule out a likely impact on the SSSI features 
within SSSI unit 105 caused by this scale of development-linked Nitrogen deposition if it 
were considered in combination with unexpected levels of growth beyond TEMPRo 
assumptions, but it merely acknowledges that the strict application of current guidelines (eg, 
DMRB) for SSSI and EIA-linked assessments provide an accepted justification for not 
regarding the impact as ‘significant’ and therefore not requiring further assessment or 
mitigation. Ideally, mindful of sustainability and SSSI targets, this section of M25 adjacent to 
Epping Forest SSSI unit 105 should be subject to periodic traffic monitoring and linked AQ 
modelling to verify the predictions to see whether further assessment and remediation is 
necessary. In light of the context, Natural England does not expect this provision, but for the 
record would support a solution that included this provision within any Highways-linked 
obligation.

3. Protected species, Local sites, Biodiversity & Landscape enhancements

Natural England refers you to our advice in our letter dated 10 May 2018 (reference DAS 
3592) and any relevant consultation letters about this proposed development with more 
detailed advice where necessary.

NETWORK RAIL

Network Rail has reviewed the Transport Assessment provided as part of the above 
planning application and has been part of the Surface Access mitigation meetings, facilitated 
by your Authority, earlier this year. 

We asked a number of questions about this Transport Assessment. These were in relation to 
the impact of increased passenger numbers on crowding of services in the peak hours 
leaving London, the impact of a higher rail mode share of 35% and how this growth would 
impact on Tottenham Hale station. 

Stansted Airport undertook further assessments through their consultant and provided a 
technical note to Network Rail. 

Network Rail is satisfied with these findings and accepts the consultant’s conclusion that 
higher capacity rolling stock on the London services can accommodate passenger growth 
from the airport in the timescale assessed. We do not object to this application but note that 
increased rail passengers resulting from increased air passengers would mean that longer 
term rail capacity schemes on the West Anglia Main Line are likely to be needed sooner.

NORTH HERTFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Appointing noise experts and response to follow.

PLACE SERVICES

Holding objection due to insufficient ecological information on Epping Forest SAC.  

Page 49Page 437



I have reviewed the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (incorporating information to inform 
HRA) (RPS, Feb 2018) and Stansted Airport Environmental Statement Volume 1 Chapter 10 
Air Quality (RPS, Feb 2018) supplied by the applicant, relating to the likely impacts of 
development on Designated Sites, Protected & Priority habitats and species, and 
identification of proportionate mitigation. 

I am not satisfied that there is sufficient ecological information available for determination of 
this application.  The increased airport passengers (8mppa) travelling to the airport will 
impact on the air quality on the Epping Forest SAC and this needs to be investigated further 
in line with Natural England’s requirements.  The effects, in-combination with other plans and 
projects within scope, need to be assessed with regard to adverse impacts on site integrity 
to inform the Appropriate Assessment being prepared by Uttlesford DC.

This is needed to enable the LPA to demonstrate its compliance with its statutory duties 
including its biodiversity duty under s40 NERC Act 2006.

2nd response:

No objection subject to securing biodiversity mitigation and enhancement measures in 
relation to statutory sites and legally protected species

Summary

I have reviewed the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal, Biodiversity Mitigation Scheme (RPS, 
February 2018) and Environmental Statement supplied by the applicant, relating to the 
potential impacts on statutory sites and likely impacts of development on protected species 
and identification of proportionate mitigation.

I am satisfied that there is sufficient ecological information available for determination. With 
appropriate mitigation measures secured, the development can be made acceptable.

Additional ongoing information and actions are still required from Natural England with 
respect to Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSIs) and Hatfield Forest National Nature 
Reserve (NNR). This is needed to enable the LPA to demonstrate its compliance with its 
statutory duties including NERC Act 2006 and will need to be secured through a S106 
agreement.

A Habitats Regulation Assessment has been supplied to Uttlesford DC by Place Services. 
This has concluded that there will be no adverse effect on integrity of Epping Forest SAC, 
either alone or in combination with other plans and projects. Uttlesford DC can therefore 
demonstrate its compliance with the UK Habitats Regulations 2017.

The mitigation measures identified in the Ecology Mitigation Strategy (RPS, February 2018) 
should be secured and implemented in full, including translocation to an off-site receptor site. 
This is necessary to conserve and enhance Protected and Priority Species particularly Great 
Crested Newts and reptiles.

Impacts will be minimised such that the proposal is acceptable subject to the conditions 
below, based on BS42020:2013.

Page 50Page 438



Submission for approval and implementation of the details below should be a condition of 
any planning consent.

Statutory Wildlife Sites

No statutory wildlife sites are expected to be directly affected by the proposals. However, the 
potential for adverse effects through reduction in air quality has been considered in depth.

European Site: Epping Forest Special Area for Conservation

As you are aware, there is one European site which has been considered for its potential to 
be adversely affected by the proposals and this is Epping Forest Special Area for 
Conservation (SAC). There has been an ongoing dialogue between the applicants and 
Natural England. Information has been supplied by the applicants to formulate a Habitats 
Regulation Assessment, which has been provided by Place Services (24th August 2018) on 
behalf of Uttlesford District Council as the competent authority. This has concluded that this 
project for the proposed expansion of airside infrastructure at Stansted Airport to make the 
best use of the existing runway will have no adverse effect on the integrity of Epping Forest 
SAC, either alone or in combination with other plans and projects. Natural England also 
accepts this conclusion in its most recent advice dated 31 August 2018. In this respect, the 
development can therefore be granted consent and Uttlesford DC can demonstrate its 
compliance with the UK Habitats Regulations 2017.

National sites: Site of Special Scientific Interests and National Nature Reserve

There are a number of SSSIs in the vicinity which have been considered, one of which is 
also a National Nature Reserve (Hatfield Forest). While none of these sites will be directly 
affected by the proposed development, similarly to Epping Forest SAC, there is the potential 
to adversely affect them by reduction in air quality. Information on this issue has been 
provided by the applicant and this has been comprehensively considered by Natural England 
in its responses of 10 May, 9 July and 31 August 2018; we therefore recommend that you 
follow their advice.

In Natural England’s most recent letter of 31 August, it has various concerns remain that still 
need to be addressed, eg unseen datasets and assumptions regarding the mid-longer term 
environment conditions. It also requests the following, which should be tied into any planning 
permission through a long term S106 agreement. There should be regular reviews of the 
Stansted Airport Sustainable Development Plan to ensure it remains relevant as the airport 
evolves. In addition:

Hatfield Forest SSSI and NNR

 Continuation of the monitoring for Hatfield Forest SSSI and NNR which is currently 
part of the planning permission for 35mppa for that permission, and set out within the 
S106. This monitoring should also become part of any new permission relating to the 
current proposals under UTT/18/0460/FUL.

 Elsenham Woods SSSI
 Air Quality modelling for Elsenham Woods SSSI

Page 51Page 439



 Updates to Elsenham SSSI Management Plan to include the agreed Air Quality 
threshold objectives; the Stansted Airport Sustainable Development Plan and the 
Mitigation Strategy.

 Epping Forest SSSI
 The effects on air quality in Epping Forest SSSI units near to the M11 is predicted to 

be only just below the 1% threshold of significance for the SSSI features and Natural 
England therefore require additional information to provide a more accurate 
determination.

 Additional periodic traffic modelling linked to Units 201 and 105 is also 
recommended.

Other SSSIs

Natural England accepts the conclusions of no significant impacts upon Quendon Wood 
SSSI and High Wood Dunmow SSSI. I have no further comments to add.

Protected Species

The mitigation measures identified in the Ecology Mitigation Strategy should be secured and 
implemented in full.

Great crested newts and reptiles have been found to be present in the Echo Stands area 
and sufficient mitigation has been set out within Stansted Airport 35+: Stansted- Ecology 
Mitigation Strategy (RPS, February 2018). There is insufficient space to retain them on site 
and so it is proposed to translocate them off site. A suitable receptor site has been identified 
at Monks Farm, covering an area of approximately 0.9 ha of habitat, which was established 
in relation to another planning application (UTT/16/0837).

Presence/absence surveys for both reptiles and great crested newts will need to be 
undertaken prior to the planned works, to reaffirm the mitigation strategies provided, which 
are based on survey work undertaken in 2017.

Management of the receptor site is set out in the Biodiversity Management Strategy set out 
by RSK as part of UTT/16/0837/FUL but this should be secured for this permission too, by 
condition or S106 agreement. This should include monitoring of the receptor site, as set out 
in the Ecology Mitigation Strategy February 2018.

Nesting bird checks will also need to be undertaken

Please note that I was not able to view the appendices and figures in this Mitigation 
Strategy.

Recommended conditions

1. Prior to commencement: ACTION REQUIRED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ECOLOGY 
MITIGATION STRATEGY RECOMMENDATIONS

“All ecological mitigation & enhancement measures and/or works shall be carried out in 
accordance with the details contained in the Stansted- Ecology Mitigation Strategy (RPS, 
February 2018) as already submitted with the planning application and agreed in principle 
with the local planning authority prior to determination.

Page 52Page 440



Reason: To conserve and enhance Protected and Priority species and allow the LPA to 
discharge its duties under the UK Habitats Regulations, the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 
as amended and s40 of the NERC Act 2006 (Priority habitats & species) and s17 Crime & 
Disorder Act 1998.

2. BIODVIERISTY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY

“A Biodiversity Management Strategy (BMS) shall be submitted to, and be approved in 
writing by, the local planning authority prior to construction.

The content of the BMS shall include the following:

 Description and evaluation of features to be managed.
 Ecological trends and constraints on site that might influence management.
 Aims and objectives of management.
 Appropriate management options for achieving aims and objectives.
 Prescriptions for management actions.
 Preparation of a work schedule (including an annual work plan capable of being 

rolled forward over a five-year period).
 Details of the body or organisation responsible for implementation of the Strategy,
 Ongoing monitoring and remedial measures.

The BMS shall also include details of the legal and funding mechanism(s) by which the long-
term implementation of the plan will be secured by the developer with the management body 
responsible for its delivery. The Strategy shall also set out (where the results from monitoring 
show that conservation aims and objectives of the BMS are not being met) how 
contingencies and/or remedial action will be identified, agreed and implemented so that the 
development still delivers the fully functioning biodiversity objectives of the originally 
approved scheme. The approved Strategy will be implemented in accordance with the 
approved details.”

Reason: To conserve Protected and Priority species and allow the LPA to discharge its 
duties under the UK Habitats Regulations 2017, the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 as 
amended.

Recommended informative

1. NESTING BIRDS

The applicant is reminded that, under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, as amended 
(section 1), it is an offence to remove, damage or destroy the nest of any wild bird while that 
nest is in use or being built. Planning consent for a development does not provide a defence 
against prosecution under this act.

Trees and scrub are likely to contain nesting birds between 1st March and 31st August 
inclusive. Trees and scrub are present on the application site and are to be assumed to 
contain nesting birds between the above dates, unless a recent survey has been undertaken 
by a competent ecologist to assess the nesting bird activity on site during this period and has 
shown it is absolutely certain that nesting birds are not present.

Page 53Page 441



STANSTED AIRPORT CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE

ACCs exist to enable airports to communicate openly and effectively with local communities 
and airport users about operational impacts.

Surface access is a key area for sustainable development of the airport, not only for 
passengers and airport users but also as a major infrastructure facility and a regional 
transport hub.  This must be recognised in any assessment of airport development, both for 
local and regional impacts.

A strategic vision is vital to engender widespread support, especially from local MPs.  It 
should take account of planned economic and population growth for the area over the next 
20 years.  Every incremental development should relate to an overall plan.

The vision should include:
- The airport as a major infrastructure facility
- Transport infrastructure being fundamental to economic growth and expansion
- Access for people with disabilities
- Expansion of the transport study area to regional
- Use of the airport as a key local transport hub
- How to deal with road traffic growth, and provision of adequate day parking
- Details of how to maintain the high level of public transport use
- Catering for rail passenger growth
- Clear vision for the provision of coach / bus / minibus services
- Facilitating cycling

The airport should provide a report on the success or otherwise of its aims and targets in the 
Economy and Surface Access section of its 2015 Sustainable Development Plan.  Any 
revised targets should be explained. 

THAMES WATER

Thames Water have been in discussions with the airport regarding the wastewater 
infrastructure requirements.  Foul water flows from the airport flow to Bishops Stortford 
Sewage Treatment Works where they are treated.  Contaminated surface water runoff 
(containing Glycol from de-icing operations) is pumped to Rye Meads Sewage Treatment 
Works for treatment.  In relation to the contaminated runoff, within Chapter 15 of the ES it is 
stated that it is not proposed to increase the existing pump rate agreed with TWUL and so 
the proposed development will not increase pressure on the local sewer capacity.  It is also 
stated that TWUL has been consulted with regards to the treatment capacity at Rye Meads 
STW and that TWUL are consulting their assets planners.  At this stage we have not 
received details of expected increases in volumes of contaminated flows to Rye Meads STW 
or calculations to confirm that the pump rates will remain the same. This information is 
required to allow assessments to take place into the capacity of the treatment works to 
accommodate the increased flows.

Infrastructure at the wastewater treatment works in this area is unlikely to be able to support 
the demand anticipated from this development. There is potential that the increase in flows 

Page 54Page 442



from anticipated growth in both East Herts and Uttlesford Districts and expansion of capacity 
at the airport could result in upgrades to wastewater treatment works which are either not 
technically feasible or not cost efficient.  At the least it is considered that significant 
infrastructure upgrades are likely to be required to ensure sufficient treatment capacity is 
available to serve this development/wider growth in the area. Thames Water would welcome 
the opportunity to work closely with the Local Planning Authority and the developer to better 
understand and effectively plan for the sewage treatment infrastructure needs required to 
serve this development and wider growth within the area.  It is important not to under 
estimate the time required to deliver necessary infrastructure.  For example: Sewage 
Treatment Works upgrades can take 18 months to 3 years to design and build.  
Implementing new technologies and the construction of a major treatment works extension 
or new treatment works could take up to ten years.

In relation to foul flows, the cumulative impact of the proposals alongside growth proposed in 
East Herts and Uttlesford needs to be considered. Thames Water are currently investigating 
options for how flows in the area can be accommodated at existing STWs.  It is noted that 
Section 15.119 of the ES states “Furthermore, the water efficiency measures set out within 
the 2015 SDP should see an overall reduction of foul flows as low flush toilets/urinals, spray 
taps etc. are retrofitted through the terminal.  If total foul discharge does increase post 
development, the UDC Water Cycle Study confirms there is capacity to serve this.”

As set out above, we have concerns regarding the implications of the development and 
wider growth. While the ES states that the WCS confirms there is capacity to serve 
increased foul discharges it is not clear how this can be assumed with no details provided of 
potential increases in flows.  Furthermore, the previous Uttlesford WCS was undertaken in 
2010/12 by Uttlesford and does not take account of growth areas within the emerging Local 
Plan including Easton Park.  As such this document is out of date and an updated WCS is 
currently being produced taking account proposed growth.  We would welcome any 
additional information on the potential increase in foul flows/biological loads from the airport 
to assist with assessing the impacts on the sewage treatment works serving the area.

There is potential that the increase in flows from anticipated growth and expansion of 
capacity at the airport could result in upgrades to wastewater treatment works which are 
either not technically feasible or not cost efficient.  A study is currently being undertaken to 
assess the implications of growth on the sewage treatment works in the area.  A clearer 
understanding of the requirements for upgrades will be available on completion of this study.

2nd Response:

Thames Water have been actively engaged with the Local Planning Authority and Stanstead 
Airport regarding the current airport planning application, which proposes an increase in 
passenger numbers up to 43 million per annum by 2028. Foul water flows from the airport 
currently drain to Bishops Stortford Sewage Treatment Works where it is treated. 

Contaminated surface water runoff (containing Glycol from de-icing operations) is pumped to 
Rye Meads Sewage Treatment Works for treatment. 

Uttlesford Water Cycle Study 

The Uttlesford Water Cycle Study is currently (September 2018) being enhanced for the 
area that drains to Thames Water. We are working collaboratively with Uttlesford District 

Page 55Page 443



Council and the Environment Agency to ensure that the study outputs are robust for the 
entire quantum of growth proposed in this area. 

Wastewater Treatment Capacity 

In addition to the proposed increase in passenger numbers, there is an anticipated increase 
in housing growth from both East Hertfordshire and Uttlesford Districts. Existing 
infrastructure at the wastewater treatment works in this area will not be able to support the 
demand from the cumulative development. As a result, upgrades to the sewage treatment 
works are expected and we are currently conducting a study to investigate potential options 
to accommodate the increase in flow. The outputs of this study are expected to be available 
in December 2018. A technical option is believed to be feasible. 

It is important not to under estimate the time required to deliver necessary infrastructure. For 
example: Sewage Treatment Works upgrades can take 18 months to five years to design 
and build. Implementing new technologies and the construction of a major treatment works 
extension or new treatment works could take up to ten years. Thames Water would welcome 
the opportunity to continue working with Stanstead Airport to ensure development does not 
outpace the delivery of essential infrastructure. 

Please note that the new connection charge rules are not applicable to Wastewater 
Treatment. This activity is fully funded by Thames Water and has not changed. 

Wastewater Network Capacity 

The applicant has a right to connect new “domestic flows” (i.e. flow from toilets, washbasins 
etc.) into the public sewer. These connections can originate from residential or commercial 
premises. The applicant does not have a right to connect trade flows (i.e. contaminated 
surface water) into the public sewer system. Please note that the new connection charge 
rules only apply to “domestic flows”. 

Contaminated flow to Rye Meads Sewage Treatment Works 

The ability for the public sewer system to accommodate and eventually treat contaminated 
flow is processed by Water and Sewerage Undertakers as part of Trade flows. Sewer 
network capacity and treatment capacity is therefore a commercial agreement whereby the 
applicant will be required to fund any upgrades needed to accommodate increase discharge 
rates (if capacity does not currently exist). The impact of a reduction in water consumption 
cannot be offset by an increase in trade flows as in this location; they do not discharge into 
the same sewer system. Due to the Trade Effluent process, we have to guarantee capacity 
for trade discharges under all conditions and times irrespective of the peak operating 
window. If there is an opportunity to balance out peak flows this will need to be implemented 
by the applicant and consented in the Trade Effluent Permit.

UTTLESFORD ASSOCIATION OF LOCAL COUNCILS

The following submission by the Uttlesford Association of Local Councils takes into 
consideration the regional and the national impact this application will have. The application 

Page 56Page 444



is for a 39.5% increase in current passenger numbers for 2017 and a 30.7% on Total Aircraft 
Movements for 2017.

The main impacts of increased passenger numbers will be in relation to road traffic 
congestion and knock-on effects of air quality. The main adverse impacts of increased 
aircraft movements will be in relation to noise, local air quality and CO2 emissions.

Recent data received shows that only 18% of the airport’s employees are residents of 
Uttlesford. Looking at the range of employment within the airport, this is only a small 
proportion and questions should be raised as to what benefits this application can bring to 
the current employment levels locally.

The CAA passenger survey report details 29% came from the East of England, 60.6% from 
London and the South East with the remainder from the rest of England and Wales. 
Passenger wise, who will benefit from this application? 

The increase in flights will bring an increase in passengers from outside the area, thus 
increasing the local traffic congestion on and around junctions 8 and 8A on the M11 and on 
the A120. Consideration should also be taken on the impact of the two local hospitals: 
Princess Alexander Hospital in Harlow and Addenbrookes Hospital in Cambridge; the 
increase in traffic will undoubtedly have an increase in road traffic accidents within the area.  

The local roads will also see an increase in congestion along with “unauthorised” airport 
parking on residential roads. How will this affect residents and their day-today lives? The 
majority of our local roads are already in a bad state of repair, many of them housing a 
number of potholes. Will the airport contribute towards the improvement and up-keep of 
these roads following this application?

Questions are being asked locally as to why MAG are submitting their application now. 
MAG’s current forecasts show that 35 mppa will not be reached until 2023.Yet, the DfT 
forecasts that 35 mppa will not be reached until 2033. It is also worth noting that UDC’s 
Local Plan to 2033 is unlikely to be settled before early 2019.

We would also like it to be noted that freight flights should not be increased at night. These 
flights should be considered separately as generally the older, louder aircrafts are used, and 
therefore should only be flown during the day so as to cause less disruption to local 
residents.

Taking all these points into consideration, we feel that as this application has such a 
considerable impact both locally and nationally that the application should be considered at a 
national level and called-in so as to be considered by the Secretary of State.

UTTLESFORD DISTRICT COUNCIL ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH – Air Quality 
(Comments prepared by White Young Green Environment Planning Transport Ltd on 
behalf of UDC)

The ES provides an assessment of the effect of additional flights and traffic on levels of 
Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2) and Particulate Matter (PM10 and PM2.5) at sensitive receptors 
which have the potential to be affected.  Construction phase effects have been scoped out.

Page 57Page 445



The ES has reviewed baseline (2016) conditions, 2023 (transitional) and 2028 (fully 
operational).  The study area is a 15 x 15 km grid + the AQMA in Bishop’s Stortford.  An 
assessment of existing sensitive human receptors and ecological receptors in the area has 
been undertaken.

The applicant created a model to allow for the prediction of effects at future years using 
industry standard modelling software. This model requires verifying to the existing monitored 
levels which is achieved through replicating the existing emissions sources in the area and 
including them in the modelled input, then adding them to the background levels which make 
up all other sources not included in the model. The applicant has included sources from 
aircraft and vehicles on the local highway network in their model and obtained the emissions 
for each of these from appropriate sources.

Background pollutant concentrations used for the modelling were taken from the National Air 
Emissions Inventory with the road transport and aviation emissions subtracted from the 
background so as not to double count. The model has been verified to local monitoring to 
ensure that the results from the model are accurately representing the actual monitored 
levels. This verification showed that the modelled concentrations of NO2 were significantly 
underpredicting within Bishop’s Stortford and Stansted Mountfitchet.  Monitoring levels in 
Bishop’s Stortford were a maximum of 69.6µg/m³ while the applicant’s modelled 
concentration at this same location was 21.5µg/m³. As such, the applicant included a 
verification factor of 4.0 to modelled concentrations within town centres which increases the 
proportion of the effects of the emissions from the additional traffic from the scheme but still 
underpredicts the overall levels within Bishop’s Stortford. Sensitivity analysis for multiple 
years was undertaken at the request of UDC which showed that the year of modelling used 
in the ES (2016) was representative.

Emissions will reduce in future years as technology becomes more efficient and more 
sustainable transport measures are encouraged. However, the improvement rate is disputed 
and the DEFRA predictions used for the ES are potentially overly optimistic. To provide a 
sensitivity analysis, UDC requested that existing baseline emissions were used in the future 
year scenarios assuming that there will be no improvement in emissions in future years. This 
was undertaken and, while the results from this modelling scenario were higher than those in 
the original ES, the significance of effect as a result of the scheme did not change and 
remain in the ‘negligible’ band.

The development incorporates mitigation and management measures through continued 
pollutant monitoring at the airport and a commitment to reducing emissions at the site.  Total 
NOX and PM emissions as a result of the development are presented, but there is no 
monetary quantification (as requested by UDC) via a damage cost assessment.

The ES concludes that the effect of emissions as a result of the development on human 
receptors will be ‘negligible’ in both the 2023 and 2028 assessment years with an increase of 
0.1µg/m³ in the Bishop’s Stortford AQMA as a result of the scheme.  With regards to 
ecological receptors, none of the sensitive sites identified are expected to receive an 
increase of more than 1% as a result of the development for the most sensitive species on 
site. Therefore, it is concluded that there will not be a significant effect at surrounding 
habitats.

Page 58Page 446



Overall, the assessment is considered sufficient to be able to determine the effects of the 
scheme.  Emissions will increase as a result of additional vehicle movements including 
within the Bishop’s Stortford AQMA where levels of pollutants are already above the level 
where health effects are likely to be observed in the most sensitive members of the 
population.  As such these health effects should be considered against the benefits of the 
scheme and an appropriate balance of mitigation should be sought.

Recommendation:  No objection.  In general, all concerns and points of clarity have been put 
the STAL’s commissioned air quality consultants, Arup Ltd.  It is considered that matters 
relating to air quality and emissions mitigation can be addressed through an appropriately 
worded condition.

UTTLESFORD DISTRICT COUNCIL ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH – Noise (Comments 
prepared in close association with Bickerdike Allen Partners LLP)

All concerns and points of clarity have been put to STAL’s commissioned noise consultancy 
firm Cole Jarman. They have responded positively to these comments and have 
endeavoured to provide further information in support of their ES as and when required. Key 
matters identified are included in the commentary below.

Fleet mix sensitivity tests have been carried out and the assumptions appear to be 
reasonable. The outcome suggests that changes to the rate of update of new variant aircraft 
of up to 10% will be insignificant. There is no reason to distrust these tests.

Air Noise

Overall there is a universal push to reduce noise from leading aircraft manufacturers. This 
has and continues to produce quieter aircraft. The ES details some of these improvements 
to aircraft that are gradually coming on line. Reductions in noise levels of up to 6.3 dB on 
departure and 2.6dB on arrival are expected from this new fleet of aircraft. 

Subjectively, these aircraft are likely to be quieter on departures, but this is not necessarily 
the case on arrivals. The extent of these reductions will vary depending on the type of 
aircraft, and overall it is likely that the reductions will only be acknowledged by those 
subjected to noise from departure routes. As there will be a noticeable increase in flyovers in 
future years, which is forecast to occur with or without this application, this noise benefit from 
a changing aircraft fleet is likely to be largely offset by increasing numbers of aircraft 
movements. Nevertheless, the gradual and progressive introduction of the emerging more 
modern aircraft, such as the B737Max and A320neo, into the UK aviation fleet will contribute 
to ensuring that noise exposure around Stansted remains no greater, and most likely less 
than, that permitted in 2008. 

At no time will the existing permitted 57dB contour area of 33.9km2 be exceeded. It is 
expected to reach its maximum of 32km2 in 2024, then drop to 28.7km2 in 2028. Overall, 
these changes over the forecast period are very small. Compared to 2016, the noise level 
change will be no greater than around 1dB higher. A change in noise level of this magnitude 
is normally imperceptible.

Page 59Page 447



Based on the predicted data, when comparing noise levels with the DC and DM case there 
will be negligible impact both during the day and at night as any increases over the DM case 
will be less than 1dB.  

In terms of observed effect levels, there will be increases in population during the daytime 
that will be exposed to levels that are considered to be above the LOAEL (Lowest Observed 
Adverse Effect Level) when compared to the DM scenario (11,884 (DM) compared to 15,336 
(DC)). This means that the reported population will be subjected to noise levels between 51-
63 dB LAeq. LOAEL is considered to be the level above which adverse effects on health and 
quality of life can be detected. However, in terms of actual level change, the overall increase 
in noise level remains negligible.

The population of people exposed to SOAEL levels (levels above which significant adverse 
effects on health and quality of life can occur) will also increase from 284 to 334 under the 
same comparison. SOAEL represents noise levels between 63-69dB. However, once again 
the assessment concludes that the noise increase will be negligible. 

When compared to 2016 figures, the number of people subject to LOAEL under the DC 
scenario increases from 12,600 to 15,336 and from 200 to 334 for SOAEL. Interestingly, 
under the 2008 permission, the population expected to be subject to LOAEL would be 
15,480, and 484 subject to SOAEL.

A similar comparative exercise of observed effects at night demonstrates that more people 
are subject to SOAEL for the 2028 DC (2,734) than the DM case (2,084), and 2008, 25+ 
permission (1,384). The baseline 2016 figure is 1050. However, the ES points out that for a 
typical summer night, in 2028 there are expected to be 104 movements in the DM scenario 
compared with the 107 movements for the development case, and that the projected 
increase in noise level is 0.5 - 0.6 dB and therefore imperceptible. 

It is acknowledged that night-time aircraft movements at Stansted are subject to Government 
control via the Night Noise Restrictions. STAL make the point that as a consequence, the 
airport will reach its cap on movements before 2028 whether or not permission is granted to 
increase the passenger throughput beyond 35 mppa. They state that this is the underlying 
reason why the noise study has concluded in the ES that night-time noise level differences 
arising purely as a consequence of the development going ahead are negligible, both in 
respect of ground noise and air noise. Nevertheless, it is important to ensure that people are 
adequately protected now and into the future from the effects of night noise from aircraft.

STAL were asked to check whether the 55 dB Lnight contour for the 2028 Development 
Case operations lies within the extent of the SIGS eligibility thresholds. This is relevant 
because this value represents the World Health Organisation (WHO) interim target for night 
noise under their current Night Noise Guidelines. It (or its approximate equivalent level of 55 
dB LAeq,8h) is also commonly used at other airports as a night noise Sound Insulation Grant 
Scheme (SIGS) eligibility boundary. STAL confirmed in their recent note that the 55 dB 
Lnight contour for the 2028 DC sits fully within the SIGS eligibility boundary.

In respect of the population that it is considered will be highly annoyed, the 2028 case is 
expected to be 7% lower than under the 2008 25+ permission (2028 DC at 1829 and 2008 
permission 1,973). It should be noted that under the DM case the number of people highly 
annoyed would be 1,439.  Whilst the number of people highly annoyed is higher within the 

Page 60Page 448



development case, Cole Jarman point out that in terms of noise level change, this is <1dB 
and is therefore negligible.

When assessing overflight impacts, in the DC there would be 72 additional movements 
during the day (712 between 07:00 and 23:00) compared to the DM condition (640 between 
07:00 and 23:00). Since there is an approximately equal split between departures and 
arrivals this indicates an additional 36 or so of each. Naturally there is a significant difference 
in N65 contours that indicate the numbers of flyovers that exceed 65dB LAmax  

The 2016 contour showed N65 25 & 50 values larger than those of either the 2028 DC or 
2028 DM scenario. Conversely, at values of 100 and 200 the 2028 DC and 2028 DM 
contours do extend to areas greater than the 2016 contour. This emphasises the shift in the 
number of fly overs that will result in noise levels exceeding 65dB LAmax and demonstrates 
the locations where the greatest concentration of overflights will occur.   At night there is 
considered to be little difference between the DM and DC scenarios. 

It should be noted that in 2016 there were 82 night time movements on a peak summer 
night. This is expected to increase to 104 and 107 in 2028 for the DM and DC scenarios. 
Night time movements are subject to government controls via the Night Noise Regulations 
as indicated within para 4.20. 

In conclusion the ES states that there would be negligible difference between the 2023 and 
2028 scenarios and will remain within the restrictions conditioned as part of the 2008 25+ 
permission.

The significance criteria presented in the ES and summarised in Table T18 above are 
considered appropriate in general. An area explored further with STAL however was the 
criterion adopted for the control of maximum noise levels within educational facilities.

While it is accepted that maximum noise levels from aircraft operating at Stansted Airport in 
the future are not expected to increase, and indeed will reduce for some aircraft types as 
more modern aircraft such as the B737Max and A320neo types are introduced, the number 
of events occurring during a typical day is forecast to increase. This has the potential to 
affect schools and other educational facilities in the locality. Of particular relevance is 
whether schools, already forecast to experience higher than desirable noise maxima as a 
result of aircraft flyovers, will experience a further increase in such events as a result of this 
application.

STAL, on the request of the Council, carried out further studies to expand upon the 
information provided in the ES air noise chapter relating to future noise levels and schools. 
This found that at the majority of schools, the LAmax is expected to be below the level which 
would result in an internal level exceeding 60 dB LAmax with open windows (allowing for a 
12 dB reduction from external free field level through an open window), due to the noise 
benefits associated with new generation, quieter aircraft. Four schools were identified as 
potentially affected by an increase in aircraft events producing maximum noise levels greater 
than recommended within internal areas (assuming windows partially open), namely:

•   Howe Green School

•   Spellbrook Primary School

Page 61Page 449



•   The Leventhorpe School

•   Mandeville Primary School

In practice, the primary cause of noise exceedances above the recommended internal level 
of 60 dB LAmax is departures and arrivals by the B737-800. These occur currently and will 
do so in the future, irrespective of this application. The application however will permit some 
additional movements in the future, over and above the DM case in 2028. For the B737-800 
and similar aircraft types, the application would allow around one additional movement per 
hour, over and above what is forecast to occur under the DM case in 2028, assuming a 
worst case 100% operating mode. This is significantly less than forecast in the previous 25+ 
mppa application. The replacement of this aircraft type over time by the B737Max will 
alleviate this effect. For one school however, Spellbrook Primary School, the B737Max on 
arrival is expected to produce maximum noise levels slightly higher than recommended. 

Taking account of the above, and recognising that a small number of schools are located 
within the Sound Insulation Grant Scheme (SIGS) qualification boundaries, Stansted Airport 
(STAL) will engage with the relevant bodies to discuss possible measures to compensate or 
offset the residual effects of aircraft noise where these are shown to exceed criteria for 
maximum internal noise levels, by reference to existing recognised noise guidelines for new 
and refurbished educational buildings. The method and approach and scope of measures 
have yet to be agreed and can be addressed through the use of an appropriate worded 
condition.

Following the publication of the Parliamentary report on the Airports National Policy 
Statement (NPS), which has subsequently been published (in June 2018), STAL were 
requested to advise on the gross number of people who will be newly exposed to significant 
levels of noise annoyance arising from the scheme, taking account of those affected down to 
51 dB LAeq,16h. STAL confirmed that this information is provided in the ES in Tables T30, 
T36, T42, T48, T54 and T61 in ES Technical Appendix 7.3. They are also summarised in the 
note2 prepared in response to this query.

Following a review of the ES this service has sought clarity and further information on the 
ES.  Further information has been made available on the estimated LAmax values at non-
sensitive dwellings. We have also discussed improvements to the proposed Sound 
Insulation Grant Scheme. Satisfactory information has been provided and the upgrade in the 
SIGS scheme (discussed later in this commentary) will assist in offsetting the small 
significant impacts arising from the proposed application, leaving negligible residual air noise 
impacts.

Ground Noise

Main sources of ground noise include:

•   Aircraft taxiing or holding with main engines in operation at any point between the 
parking stand and the point at which an aircraft commences its departure roll (start of 
roll) or exits the runway on arrival. 

•   Aircraft auxiliary power units (APUs) for supplying cabin air and electrical power, 
and other aircraft services mainly when the main engines are not operating; 

Page 62Page 450



•   Mobile ground power units (GPUs) which supply the required electrical power to 
the aircraft and other equipment such as PCA units that supply pre conditioned air 
during turnarounds when fixed electrical ground power (FEGP) is not available; 

•   Aircraft engine ground run (EGR) tests; and 

•   Fixed plant and equipment.

The existing unilateral obligation relating to ground noise should be rolled forward subject to 
minor amendments to ensure that new parking stands are fitted with FEGP.

 The assessment of impacts of ground noise has been considered using the following noise 
metrics: 

•   LAeq,16h: the16-hour daytime LAeq value for the period 07:00 to 23:00 based on 
92-day average summer operations; plotted from 50 to 60 dB in 5 dB increments. 

•   LAeq,8h: the 8-hour night-time LAeq value for the period 23:00 to 07:00 based on 
92-day average summer operations; plotted from 40 to 55 dB in 5 dB increments. 

There is no specific assessment guidance, standard or recommended analysis methodology 
for the calculation and assessment of aircraft ground noise. It is outside the scope of British 
standards and it is unlike noise from road traffic or air traffic. However, the approach adopted 
has been to consider the level over background and a comparative assessment. The 
approach and methodology to determine the impact of the proposal is considered 
reasonable. 

Information is presented within the ES detailing the expectant noise levels at key locations 
compared with existing background locations and the proposed threshold levels of 55dB 
LAeq during the day and 45dB LAeq at night. These thresholds are considered to be 
reasonable. 

It is acknowledged that the change in noise is also relevant, when above a given absolute 
threshold.  The criteria adopted for rating impacts and significance is given in Table 8.1 of 
the Ground Noise chapter.

The table does not provide an adequate description of the impact for greater changes in 
noise level than 3dB. For example, it suggests that if the ground noise level is currently at 
55dB LAeq,16h, and that an increase of 10 dB were to occur, it would only be rated as a 
“Moderate impact”. The impact is considered to be greater than this. In practice however, 
this does not become an issue with this application as the predicted changes in ground noise 
remain below 3dB.

A comparison of data sets show negligible impact in the 2028 DC compared to the 25+ 
permission. The level change when compared to the DM scenario is equally negligible. 
Comparisons with the 2016 base line show some increases + 3dB in the worse location 
(Molehill Green) during the day and +2.5 dB at night. As this is a marginal increase over time 
and that the resultant level when compared to the Do Minimum scenario, there will be little 
impact. 

Page 63Page 451



STAL were asked to undertake further work to check whether the 45 dB LAeq,8h night noise 
contour would extend in the future, under the 2028 With DC, beyond the similar contour 
assessed in the original 25+ application. This work was requested because it is considered 
that it is reasonable to seek to control ground noise at night to within this threshold level.

Work undertaken by STAL and reported in their subsequent note demonstrates that in 
places, the 45 dB LAeq,8h ground noise contour forecast in 2028. With Development this 
does extend outside that assessed in the original 25+ application. They argue however that 
this is not a consequence of their application since it would occur in any event under the 
existing permission and DM case. 

Comparing ground noise contours in Appendix 8.1 Ground Noise (Figure 8.1/GN6) with and 
without the development in place, shows they are virtually indistinguishable throughout the 
surrounding community except where benefits will arise from decommissioning of the 
Northside apron should permission be granted. In those areas ground noise levels are 
expected to reduce.

It remains the case that night-time aircraft movements at Stansted are subject to 
Government control and, as a consequence, the airport will reach its cap on movements 
before 2028 whether or not permission is granted for this application.

The ES concludes that with the exception of Molehill Green there will be no adverse impact 
from ground noise. The noise at Molehill Green can be considered minor adverse impact. 
There are no adverse impacts considered at night.

Surface Access

This chapter assessed the impact of noise from road traffic on public roads by quantifying 
the anticipated change in noise levels in connection with the predicted annual increase in 
passenger numbers. It does not take into account rail noise as the rail company proposes 
additional carriages and not changes to the number of trains each day. 

The assessment is based on the overall change in noise levels expected along key road 
sections and uses the Design Manual for Roads and Bridges (DMRB). This approach is 
commonly applied for such purposes and in particular for assessing changes to highway 
infrastructure and the building of now roads. Calculations are based on the Department for 
Transport calculation of Road Traffic Noise (CRTN). The assessment is based on noise 
levels as defined at 10m from the edge of the carriageway.  The method adopted is 
universally applied and considered to be acceptable.

In carrying out the assessment the 2028 Development Care has been compared with the 
2028 Do Minimum case. A further assessment is made comparing the 2028 Development 
Case to the 2016 Baseline Year. 

The findings of the assessment demonstrate changes that would not be perceptible (i.e. 
<1dBA) when comparing the Development Case to the Do minimum scenario. This impact is 
therefore considered to be negligible. 

Comparisons of 2016 and 2028 DC levels show increases of < 3dB.  Whilst this is 
significantly different to the DM scenario, it still remains negligible as in reality, the changes 
in road traffic noise will be gradual and therefore imperceptible. 

Page 64Page 452



It has been identified that minor impact will arise at Round Coppice Road with a 3.8dB 
increase compared with 2016 baseline levels. The nearest receptor to this road is the 
Novotel Hotels, more than 150M from the road. The ES findings confirm that this will be the 
case regardless of the DC under the expected uplift of the baseline level under the 2028 
(35mppa) DM scenario. 

It is noted that the Stansted Airport College building that is currently under construction will 
be located closer to Round Coppice Road. However, Cole Jarman state that enhanced 
façade mitigation measures have been incorporated within the design of the building to 
address noise from aircraft noise. It is not anticipated that the increase in road traffic noise 
will adversely impact on teaching spaces.

Mitigation

Additional information has been provided by Cole Jarman addressing issues that have been 
raised in recent months. Particular attention has been given to assessing the impacts of 
LAmax values Howe Green School and Spellbrook Primary School. It was noted that the 
information did not affect the conclusions and outcomes of the ES but provided a degree of 
clarity on the potential LAmax values that may be experienced. It is not considered that the 
LAmax levels will increase due to the aircraft fly overs, however the information did confirm 
that the number of flyovers is forecast to increase by 50% compared to 2016 figures. This 
increase would occur whether or not the application is permitted

In recognising the small number of schools that are located within the Sound Insulation 
Grant Scheme (SIGS) qualification boundaries STAL have agreed to engage with the 
schools to discuss what, if any measures can be adopted to mitigate the impacts of the 
proposed increase.

Under the existing SIGS scheme, STAL offer the following:

•   Relocation assistance- to those households subject to noise levels of 69dB LAeq 
16hr or above

•   Insulation grants- Offer to pay for 50% of the total cost of acoustic insulation to 
residences exposed to noise levels in excess of 

•   63dB LAeq 16hr

•   57dB LAeq 8hr (night time)

•   90dB SEL footprint for the nosiest aircraft (QC/2) operating at night 

The same offer is extended to properties within 600m from the airport & to other noise 
sensitive properties such as schools & hospitals

The application seeks to enhance the SIGS going above the level of assistance that is 
recommended by Government.

Under the new proposals the householder would no longer contribute financially to the cost 
of insulation works. Qualifying properties could receive a grant, up to a maximum award, that 
would cover up to 100% of the cost of the works depending on the level of aircraft noise 
exposure experienced. 

Page 65Page 453



The scheme is clearly an improvement on the existing scheme. In practice, if a property is 
eligible, a home survey would be offered and completed to ensure the householder receives 
professional advice and can choose the most appropriate insulation works. 

Costs of works up to £10,000 will be awarded to those eligible properties experiencing the 
highest noise levels of 69 and 66 dB LAeq. The scheme is scaled down according to noise 
exposure. In total it is expected that 1050 residential properties will be eligible for the 
proposed scheme

There are other proposed enhanced mitigation measures presented within the ES that are 
considered to be acceptable.

Conclusions and Recommendations

STAL are able to demonstrate through the ES that the proposed noise impacts would be no 
greater than under the DM scenario (i.e. the projected impacts based on current forecasts 
under the 2008 permission) and for this reason, there are no grounds to object to the 
proposed applications on noise impact grounds. 

The assessment methodology, approach level of detail provided by Cole Jarman is 
satisfactory. The ES is comprehensive and we have no doubts over its integrity.

This service is looking to work with STAL to improve the SIGs scheme and encourage 
greater uptake. It is recommended that the SIGS scheme is subject to a condition requiring a 
detailed scheme to be submitted and approved by the Local Planning Authority within 6 
months from permission being granted.

To ensure that STAL strive for reductions in noise throughout the permission, it is 
recommended that a noise envelope condition be proposed to reduce the daytime 57 dB 
LAeq, 16hr contour over time, as predicted within the ES. This will provide some certainty 
and apply the necessary pressure on STAL to ensure that levels do not exceed those 
forecast within the ES

It is also recommended that a similar condition is imposed to match the permitted night-time 
predicted Do Minimum 54 dB LAeq,8h contour.  This will ensure that the overall population 
exposed to the SOAEL at night does not increase over what could occur if the application did 
not proceed.

UTTLESFORD DISTRICT COUNCIL – SPECIAL VERGES

Special verges considered are UTT13 Burton End Verges, Belmer Road, Stansted; Burton 
End North; Burton End South.  These verges support species rich chalk grassland. This 
habitat is now very rare in the UK.  97% of this grassland had been destroyed in England 
and Wales by 1984 and losses have continued since that time.  The Special Roadside 
Verges scheme for Essex seeks to safeguard the last verge sites in the county where rare 
plants still grow.

There may be indirect effects from an increase in the number of passengers travelling to the 
airport and from the increase in air traffic movements. These are outlined below:

Page 66Page 454



1. Increase in Traffic and Parking Problems
Belmer Road is very narrow. There is the potential for erosion of the grass verges 
because of an increase in construction vehicles during the airfield works and in 
passenger traffic if passenger numbers are increased beyond the current limit.  
Construction traffic must take clearly defined routes to the airport via major roads, 
rather than travelling through narrow roads in the surrounding countryside.  Adequate 
parking for an increased number of passengers must be provided at the airport if the 
application is granted. This includes Emergency Parking areas. The recent 
emergency, when a bus caught fire outside the main terminal, resulted in passengers 
abandoning their cars on roads in the countryside surrounding the airport. This must 
be prevented in future.

2. Air pollution
An increase in ground vehicle traffic and air traffic movements may increase air 
pollution which can affect vegetation in the surrounding area. Nutrient enrichment of 
the special verges, though increased nitrogen oxide and nitrogen dioxide levels, 
leads to increased growth of vigorous plant species, such as nettles, which out 
compete the chalk grassland flowers and lead to a decline in quality of the special 
verges.

Page 67Page 455



TOWN / PARISH COUNCIL COMMENTS
Arkesden Parish Council

Object.  Unacceptable strain on transport infrastructure, particularly Junction 8 of M11 and 
rail network.  This is in addition to the proposals contained in the draft Local Plan for more 
housing in the surrounding area, which is certain to impact on the transport network.  
Increase in noise levels, particularly at night, is of great concern to local residents and the 
clause buried deep in the application that proposes to remove the restriction on lobbying for 
more night flights is an indication of MAG’s disregard for the concerns of local people. 
Despite any assurances that MAG might offer, this application will lead to more noise, more 
pollution, more congestion on the road and rail network and a decrease in air quality.

The Parish Council recognises that the airport brings economic benefits to the area and that 
controlled expansion is necessary. The current agreed limits allow for a 35% increase in 
passenger numbers and a 23% increase in flight movements over and above current levels. 
These increases alone will present serious challenges to the district in providing sufficient 
infrastructure, but these new proposals can only have a negative impact on LOCAL people 
and Arkesden Parish Council asks that you refuse this application.  If this application is 
eventually decided at national level, as called for by many objectors, then UDC must 
represent the views of the vast majority of its residents (and practically every parish council 
that has responded) in robustly objecting to this application.

Birchanger Parish Council

Birchanger Parish Council objects for the following reasons.

1. We resent the cynical use made of the planning regulations by MAG – concerns 
about short timescales for responses and the PPA.  Also the fact that Cllr Terry 
Farthing supports application and the fact that there is a request to remove an 
existing prohibition on MAG lobbying to amend night noise regulations.  

2. We consider it unacceptable that permission for further expansion has been sought 
before MAG has compensated those affected by previous expansion - MAG should 
not have any increase in permitted flights or associated infrastructure permitted until 
it has fully compensated those adversely affected by the 25 mppa expansion.

3. We object to any increase in noise, pollution and surface traffic - We reject the 
complacency of the Environmental Statements as they don’t reflect the real-world 
increase in passenger numbers being sought.  

Noise:  We are aware that aircraft are getting quieter and quieter, and the effects are 
noticeable in Birchanger. However the disruption caused by aircraft movements at Stansted 
is still significant, especially at the southeast end of the village.

The environment statement talks of dBA leq levels, but this is meaningless to the residents 
of Birchanger.

• In a rural location it’s noise events, not an average over time, that affects people
• As previously stated the only meaningful comparison for us is between the current 

situation, with 26 mppa, and the proposal. Comparisons with an estimate for 35 
mppa mean nothing

Page 68Page 456



We reject ANY increase in movements caused by an increase in passengers, and any trend 
towards heavier, larger aircraft (e.g. for long haul or freight).  We consider that ANY night 
flights are too many.  MAG must be made to agree not to lobby for any relaxation of night 
noise regulations.

Air Quality:  If you are handling 66% more passengers than today (and more freight) then 
you will be using far more energy. With that number of people it’s safe to assume that the 
entire airport and its system (aircraft, terminals, office space, maintenance, staff and 
passenger transport to/from airport and so on) will also increase by about 66%. It’s true that 
energy efficiency is improving in all areas, but an increase in airport capability on that scale 
will lead to significantly higher energy consumption.

Much of that energy will be obtained by burning fossil fuels. Combustion by-products from 
aircraft and airport-related road transport will inevitably increase. This gives us concerns 
about air quality. Every day seems to bring new reports on the adverse health impacts of 
particulates and NOx. We fail to see why our health should be threatened so that people can 
go to Ibiza.  And, of course, the implications for CO2 emissions leading to climate change 
are considerable.  It is wrong to put plans in place to further reduce the air quality of local 
residents.

Surface Access:  We have difficulty in understanding how anyone could contemplate 
increasing traffic on the M11 and specifically Junction 8 of that road. We understand that it is 
already 20% over its design capacity, with several thousand houses due to be built over the 
next few years close to the junction.

We note that MAG claims that its use of the local road network (and therefore vehicular 
pollution) is small in comparison with the traffic already using the network, but reject it as 
another attempt to portray the airport’s impact as a small slice of a large cake.

43 000 000 passengers, an additional 500 employees, increased air freight and everything 
required to support the enlarged airport will generate a very large number of additional 
vehicle journeys. The roads will not be able to take it. We know this to be true because 
they’re at capacity now for periods every weekday morning, afternoon and summer public 
holidays. Once the passenger numbers grow at the airport during the day, when it’s currently 
relatively quiet, the M11 north and south and the A120 at Braintree will become blocked.

We, too, have journeys to make, and the traffic added by this application will make life 
difficult for many of our residents.

We note the aspirations of MAG to maintain current levels of rail use. We also note that 
increased capacity on the Stansted route is in the pipeline. But we also note that MAG 
derives a large part of its income from car parking, so are sceptical about these claims.

2nd response:

Introduction

These are the objections of Birchanger Parish Council to the Manchester Airports Group 
(MAG) application to expand Stansted Airport to 43 million passengers per annum (mppa).

Page 69Page 457



This document follows the release by MAG of the additional information added to the 
application document set on 19th July 2018 and is an updated version of our response on 
30th April 2018.

About Birchanger

Birchanger is a small village in north-west Essex, in the district of Uttlesford, with a 
population of about 1500. We are very close to Stansted Airport, with parts of the village only 
1.5km from the threshold of runway 05. Residents, especially those living in the south and 
east of the village, suffer from disturbance caused by aircraft noise at all hours of the day 
and night. Residents in all parts of the village are affected by helicopter traffic, most of which 
is associated with Stansted Airport, by road congestion and by air pollution.

Democratic Mandate

Each year at our annual village meeting we hold a vote that confirms that residents of 
Birchanger are overwhelmingly opposed to expansion of Stansted Airport. The last such 
vote, which was passed with no objections, was on 21st March 2018.

Our Grounds for Objection

Birchanger Parish Council objects for the following reasons.

1. We resent the cynical use made of the planning regulations by MAG

2. We consider it unacceptable that permission for further expansion has been sought 
before MAG has compensated those affected by previous expansion

3. We object to any increase in noise, pollution and surface traffic

The Cynicism of the Application

MAG originally announced that it was going to apply for an expansion from 35 mppa (million 
passengers per annum) to 44.5 mppa, an increase of 9.5 mppa. They did this knowing that 
an application to expand the airport by 10 mppa would lead to the application being 
considered a Nationally Significant Infrastructure Project. As such it would be considered by 
the Planning Inspectorate.

MAG must have known that this ruse would be immediately seen through, and, of course, it 
was. When the application was made the number of passengers to be handled had been 
reduced to 43 mppa. However, nothing else had changed: they still wish to build additional 
infrastructure identical to that proposed for 44.5 mppa.

Clearly they wish this application to be treated as a local matter, and we wondered why. But 
then we heard about the deal between Uttlesford District Council (UDC) and MAG in which 
the latter accepted money from the former in exchange for expediting the application. We 
understand this to be legal (but we don’t understand why Uttlesford were so reluctant to 
disclose the details) but it’s undemocratic. It simply makes it impossible for other parties to 
read, analyse and respond to the application. MAG has had a team of employees and 
consultants working for several months on this application, but inexpert individuals and 
councils at all levels are expected to be able to respond in a few weeks. This is 
undemocratic.

Page 70Page 458



In view of the payments made we have no confidence in UDC’s ability to treat this 
application fairly. This view was compounded when one of our ward’s district councillors, 
Terry Farthing, wrote a long letter to the local newspaper in support of the application, failing 
to mention that he was an Uttlesford councillor or that he owned a large lettings agency 
based at the airport.

Our anger at the original short timescales was made worse when we heard from Stop 
Stansted Expansion that the application sought to remove an existing prohibition on MAG 
lobbying to amend night noise regulations. It took the relatively well resourced and highly 
professional SSE some weeks to note the clause about this buried in the application 
documents, and it would have been missed had the deadline not been extended.

Further evidence of the cynical approach taken by the applicant was provided in July, when 
further information was provided as ‘Consultation Response and Clarifications’. The first part 
of that document, the Consultee Response Schedule, was useful information, but comprised 
19 pages. It was followed by some sort of data dump: some 900 pages of further information 
in the form of several detailed reports commissioned by MAG. These are no doubt highly 
useful to the applicant, and quite interesting to others. The problem is the sheer scale. MAG 
cannot have expected the contents of these documents to have been fully read, let alone 
analysed, in the very short timescales provided over the holiday season. 

This application must be called in by Government. It is, and always was, nationally 
significant infrastructure, and we have no confidence that UDC will give due weight to 
arguments against the application.

Compensation

There are residents in this area, some of them in Birchanger, who are still waiting for 
compensation due to them after the expansion to 25 mppa. MAG has again shown quite 
remarkable cynicism and a lack of good faith in the way it has treated these people.

For years it refused to allow claims on the grounds that all work associated with the 
expansion was incomplete. Once that excuse could no longer be used it then tried to throw 
out claims because too much time had elapsed since the expansion started. It would be 
funny if it wasn’t real peoples’ lives being affected.

This, again, shows the kind of organisation we’re dealing with and reinforces our call for the 
application to be considered by someone equal to MAG; that is by HMG.

In any case MAG should not have any increase in permitted flights or associated 
infrastructure permitted until it has fully compensated those adversely affected by the 25 
mppa expansion. 

Adverse Effects on Birchanger

We have tried to understand the Environmental Statement but, of course, do not have the 
resources or the time. We do have some comments.

We reject as misleading the methodology used in the ES, which compares the 
environmental impact of 43 mppa against a baseline of 35 mppa, the current limit. This 

Page 71Page 459



represents the passenger growth as being only 22.8% and therefore the ES concludes that 
the impact will be slight.

But that’s just an academic exercise. The airport is not operating at anything like 35 mppa so 
the figures are all theoretical. Impacts can always be made to appear small if treated as a 
series of lesser increases, losing any compounding effects.

Birchanger is concerned about the real world, the one that we live in. Currently there are 
about 26 mppa using the airport and the application is for 43. That’s a real-life increase of 
66%.

We reject the complacency of the Environmental Statements as they don’t reflect the real-
world increase in passenger numbers being sought.

Noise

We are aware that aircraft are getting quieter and quieter, and the effects are noticeable in 
Birchanger. However the disruption caused by aircraft movements at Stansted is still 
significant, especially at the southeast end of the village.

The environment statement talks of dBAleq levels, but this is meaningless to the residents of 
Birchanger.

• In a rural location it’s noise events, not an average over time, that affects people

• As previously stated the only meaningful comparison for us is between the current 
situation, with 26 mppa, and the proposal. Comparisons with an estimate for 35 mppa mean 
nothing

We reject ANY increase in movements caused by an increase in passengers, and any trend 
towards heavier, larger aircraft (e.g. for long haul or freight)

We consider that ANY night flights are too many. 

MAG must be made to agree not to lobby for any relaxation of night noise regulations.

Air Quality

If you are handling 66% more passengers than today (and more freight) then you will be 
using far more energy. With that number of people it’s reasonable to assume that the entire 
airport and its system (aircraft, terminals, office space, maintenance, staff and passenger 
transport to/from airport and so on) will also increase by something close to 66%. It’s true 
that energy efficiency is improving in all areas, but an increase in airport capability on that 
scale must lead to significantly higher energy consumption.

Much of that energy will be obtained by burning fossil fuels. Combustion by-products from 
aircraft and airport-related road transport will inevitably increase. This gives us concerns 
about air quality. Every day seems to bring new reports on the adverse health impacts of 
particulates and NOx. We fail to see why our health should be threatened so that people can 
go to Ibiza.

Page 72Page 460



And. of course, the implications for CO2 emissions leading to climate change are 
considerable.

It is wrong to put plans in place to further reduce the air quality of local residents.

Surface Access

We have difficulty in understanding how anyone could contemplate increasing traffic on the 
M11 and specifically Junction 8 of that road. We understand that it is already 20% over its 
design capacity, with several thousand houses due to be built over the next few years close 
to the junction.

We note that MAG claims that its use of the local road network (and therefore vehicular 
pollution) is small in comparison with the traffic already using the network, but reject it as 
another attempt to portray the airport’s impact as a small slice of a large cake.

43 000 000 passengers, an additional 500 employees, increased air freight and everything 
required to support the enlarged airport will generate a very large number of additional 
vehicle journeys. The roads will not be able to take it. We know this to be true because 
they’re at capacity now for periods every weekday morning, afternoon and summer public 
holidays. Once the passenger numbers grow at the airport during the day, when it’s currently 
relatively quiet, the M11 north and south and the A120 at Braintree will become blocked. 

We, too, have journeys to make, and the traffic added by this application will make life 
difficult for many of our residents.

We note the aspirations of MAG to maintain current levels of rail use. We also note that 
increased capacity on the Stansted route is in the pipeline. But we also note that MAG 
derives a large part of its income from car parking, so are sceptical about these claims.

Conclusion

This application is bad for residents in many ways, and the way in which the application has 
been handled by MAG and by Uttlesford gives us no confidence that the application will 
receive rigorous scrutiny.

We insist that the application be referred to central Government, and that the Planning 
Inspectorate pay due regard to the adverse effects that will result if the application is 
approved.

Bishops Stortford Town Council

The Committee were concerned that, by increasing the number of passengers to pass 
through Stansted Airport, this would lead to increasing parking issues within Bishop’s 
Stortford.  The Committee requested Members to write to both Members of Parliament for 
this area to urge them to request that MAG who own and operate Stansted Airport, help to 
alleviate parking in Bishop’s Stortford and assist with improving training links between 
Dunmow and Stansted Airport.

Page 73Page 461



Borley Parish Meeting

Borley is a small village to the east of Stansted, close to Sudbury, and is on the direct flight 
path in to Stansted. Consequently we the villagers (70 in number) have to endure 
unacceptable noise levels beginning in the early hours of the morning to late at night. In 
addition we are affected by all the environmental issues particularly pollution.

Any increase in these factors would be wholly unacceptable particularly if these increases 
are carried out in the summer months. This is a time when residents are outside in the 
daytime and have windows open at night and are most affected by aircraft noise. This is a 
tranquil area with little background noise, so noise from aircraft is very intrusive.  Residents 
are already concerned about the amount of aircraft traffic over this area and do not want this 
to increase further.

Consequently the Borley Parish Meeting strongly OBJECTS to this planning application 
which should be refused - the vote was unanimous.

Braughing Parish Council

1. This application should be decided at national level not local. This is a major 
infrastructure application and should be decided by Central Government.

2. There is an anticipated increase in aircraft pollution from the larger planes.
3. There is an anticipated increase in aircraft noise relating to the larger planes. There 

is also concern that older freight aircraft will continue which cause significant noise 
pollution at a time when the majority of the population should be sleeping. Such sleep 
disturbance creates physical and mental health issues.

4. There will be an increase in car parking congestion affecting the surrounding area 
due the pickup and set down charges at the airport. There are many reports of 
vehicles being left in the nearby villages and towns for weeks at a time, and even 
being left on or blocking private driveways. This is completely unacceptable and 
needs swift resolution.

5. There is an anticipated increase in CO2 and NOX pollution from the above.
6. The road network around the airport is already at capacity with no appreciable 

measures to prevent gridlock. On several occasions the M11 has been blocked due 
to accidents on it and feeder routes. The surrounding and wider local roads have 
been inundated with heavy traffic, causing mayhem and damage because there is no 
viable alternative.

7. There is insufficient public transport available to manage the number of passengers 
proposed. The Stansted Express is already at capacity. There are no viable public 
transport alternatives to the private car to access Stansted Airport. This is supposed 
to be a local airport to serve local people. It was never intended to be the third 
London Airport. This application is pushing passenger numbers upward to take it 
towards third airport capability.

8. The previous passenger numbers granted permission has not been reached. If one 
takes the actual passenger numbers at Stansted, it is significantly lower than that 
granted. The difference between actual passenger numbers and the proposed 44.5m 
is some 20m. It is therefore difficult to understand why such a large number of 
passengers would suddenly start to use Stansted as granted permission capacity has 

Page 74Page 462



not been reached. It is thus considered premature to submit an application for a 
further increase in passenger numbers.

9. Should permission be granted, it is quite likely that there would be a change in flight 
paths which would then severely impact the communities surrounding the airport 
which is unacceptable. 

10. This is considered to be a speculative application. Central Government has not 
identified Stansted for expansion. This application is therefore not needed at this 
time. Braughing Parish Council objected to the previous application for very similar 
reasons but that application was granted. Braughing Parish Council is looking to 
Uttlesford District Council to ensure that this application is refused should it not be 
called in for Central Government decision. 

11. There is a question over how the passenger numbers have been calculated, and it is 
believed that there this has been an over-exaggeration of the number of people 
anticipated. As the uplifted passenger numbers have not been reached, this 
application is considered premature with the proposed passenger numbers more of a 
‘wish’ than fact.

12. Unless or until the current passenger number quota is reached, there is no reason for 
this application to be granted.

13. It would appear that the applicant and the District Council are in a rush to push this 
application through. No application of such magnitude should be rushed. Whilst all 
applications need to be properly considered, such major applications must surely 
warrant serious and detailed consideration.

14. Central Government has a duty to reduce climate change pollution. Applications such 
as this increase the levels of climate change pollution with no real mitigation in place.

Broxted Parish Council

Broxted Parish Council wishes to object to this application for the following reasons.

The ‘civil engineering’ works proposed are relatively minor and do not warrant an application 
running to more than 2,000 pages. This is a clear attempt to confuse and frustrate any 
reasonable person. Who knows what horrors are hidden within this mass of paperwork? For 
example, the deletion of a previous s.106 agreement not to lobby the relevant authorities for 
an increase in night flights. What is of real concern to my Council is the proposal to combine 
the number of aircraft movements into one total figure of 274,000 and to increase the 
number of permitted passengers to 43 mppa.

My Council firmly believes that this is a proposal of National Significance and as such should 
be dealt with by the Secretary of State. It is not, as some have said, a local issue which 
should be considered by local people.

The effects of the airport, such as pollution, noise, sleep disturbance, traffic congestion and 
health issues are not limited to the residents of Uttlesford but affect people in surrounding 
Districts and Counties, for whom the Planning Committee of UDC have no responsibility, and 
to whom they are not answerable.  

My Council also believes that the application is premature. The airport presently has 
permission for 35 mppa and by its own calculations will not reach this figure until 2023. The 
DfT’s prediction is for 2033, so why now, and why such a hurry to secure this permission? 

Page 75Page 463



The only possible explanation is that MAG wants to avoid the proper scrutiny that would be 
afforded to an increase of 10 mppa and pressurise UDC into a speedy decision whilst its 
officers and members ought to be concentrating on its emerging Local Plan.

My Council is also concerned that each ‘Cap’ is merely treated as a stepping stone to a 
further increase each time the cap is neared. For MAG to say that there would be no 
significant adverse impacts by increasing the throughput to 43 mppa is nonsense and an 
insult to the intelligence of local people. Every increase in passengers or aircraft movements 
would have an unacceptable impact by way of additional noise and disruption, and increased 
traffic and parking nuisances. To say that ‘the new generation of aircraft are 50% quieter 
than the existing’ is just not true. They may be slightly less noisy, but the difference is only 
3dB and that is indiscernible to the human ear. MAG has had years to get used to the idea 
that 35 mppa is the absolute, final and irrevocable limit and design its business model 
accordingly.

Although not strictly a planning issue, the question of the overdue payment of compensation 
rightfully and legally due to those residents affected by previous developments cannot be 
ignored. That the airport is showing such bad faith by denying and delaying these payments 
is scandalous and my Council is disappointed that UDC has not done more to bring pressure 
on the airport, with which it appears to have a very cosy relationship, into meeting its legal 
responsibilities promptly. This, rather than poorly advertised ‘consultations’, would do much 
more to gain the support of local people and remove some of the suspicion and distrust with 
which the airport is viewed.

My Council feels that it has been given insufficient time to properly prepare its objections and 
reserves the right to make further comments, should it feel that necessary.

2nd response:

Broxted Parish Council is implacably opposed to this application and to this expansion of the 
airport. It considers this application to be both cynical and premature. By its own admission 
the application is of both regional and national significance and, as such, should be 
examined and determined by the relevant Secretary of State and not by the District Council.

This objection is an interim one. It may be followed by more detailed comments when my 
Council has had the opportunity to complete its study of the voluminous application details.

Chrishall Parish Council

1 This application should be decided at national level not local. This is a major infrastructure 
application and should be decided by Central Government.

2 Night Flights: it is understood that Uttlesford District Council does not have the authority to 
negotiate on night flights. This is a major area of concern for local residents and must be 
addressed as a priority. This application must be ‘called in’ for Central Government decision 
so that night flights can be properly controlled.

3. The deadline for response is unrealistic and unachievable. It is this Parish Council’s 
opinion that the deadline has been set as a result of pressure from the applicant. Due 
process must be carried out, and a realistic timescale employed.

Page 76Page 464



4 There is an anticipated increase in aircraft pollution from the larger planes.

5 There is an anticipated increase in aircraft noise relating to the larger planes. There is also 
concern that older freight aircraft will continue which cause significant noise pollution at a 
time when the majority of the population should be sleeping. Such sleep disturbance creates 
physical and mental health issues.

6 There will be an increase in car parking congestion affecting the surrounding area due the 
pickup and set down charges at the airport. There are many reports of vehicles being left in 
the nearby villages and towns for weeks at a time, and even being left on or blocking private 
driveways. This is completely unacceptable and needs swift resolution.

7 There is an anticipated increase in CO2 and NOX pollution from the above.

8 The road network around the airport is already at capacity with no appreciable measures 
to prevent gridlock. On several occasions the M11 has been blocked due to accidents on it 
and feeder routes. The surrounding and wider local roads have been inundated with heavy 
traffic, causing mayhem and damage because there is no viable alternative. 

9 There is insufficient public transport available to manage the number of passengers 
proposed. The Stansted Express is already at capacity. There are no viable public transport 
alternatives to the private car to access Stansted Airport. This is supposed to be a local 
airport to serve local people. It was never intended to be the third London Airport. This 
application is pushing passenger numbers upward to take it towards third airport capability.

10 The previous passenger numbers granted permission has not been reached. If one takes 
the actual passenger numbers at Stansted, it is significantly lower than that granted. The 
difference between actual passenger numbers and the proposed 44.5m is some 20m. It is 
therefore difficult to understand why such a large number of passengers would suddenly 
start to use Stansted as granted permission capacity has not been reached. It is thus 
considered premature to submit an application for a further increase in passenger numbers.

11 Should permission be granted, it is quite likely that there would be a change in flight paths 
which would then severely impact the communities surrounding the airport which is 
unacceptable. Chrishall was very badly affected by both night and day flights some 5 years 
ago and would not want to be subjected to such disruption again.

12. This is considered to be a speculative application. Central Government has not identified 
Stansted for expansion. This application is therefore not needed at this time. Chrishall Parish 
Council objected to the previous application for very similar reasons but that application was 
granted. Chrishall Parish Council is looking to Uttlesford District Council to ensure that this 
application is refused should it not be called in for Central Government decision. 

13. There is a question over how the passenger numbers have been calculated, and it is 
believed that there this has been an over-exaggeration of the number of people anticipated. 
As the uplifted passenger numbers have not been reached, this application is considered 
premature with the proposed passenger numbers more of a ‘wish’ than fact.

14. Unless or until the current passenger number quota is reached, there is no reason for 
this application to be granted.

Page 77Page 465



15. It would appear that the applicant and the District Council are in a rush to push this 
application through. No application of such magnitude should be rushed. Whilst all 
applications need to be properly considered, such major applications must surely warrant 
serious and detailed consideration.

16. Central Government has a duty to reduce climate change pollution. Applications such as 
this increase the levels of climate change pollution with no real mitigation in place.

17. There is great concern that Uttlesford District Council through the Local Plan is 
supporting and encouraging growth at Stansted Airport. The wording in the Local Plan is 
such that it is made clear that this area would benefit greatly from an expanded airport. 
However, many local people are not happy with expanding and uncontrolled airport growth 
which appears to be fully supported by the District Council through this guiding document. 
Chrishall Parish Council supports the strong control of the previous Local Plan rather than 
the watered-down SP11 in the developing Local Plan, and would strongly press for the 
guidance provided in the previous Local Plan to manage Stansted Airport.

Clavering Parish Council

Object.  No need to further increase capacity.  Given upcoming government review seems 
inappropriate to grant permission at this time.

Cressing Parish Council

Cressing Parish Council discussed this application at their meeting on 14 March 2018.

Our letter of 9 January 2015, which is appended to the end of this letter, also applies as this 
explains the background to our concerns. In 2014, it was decided that flights should be 
switched from the Dover route to the Clacton route. The village of Cressing lies directly 
under the Clacton route so residents are much more troubled by aircraft noise than 
previously and the Parish Council has received complaints from residents about aircraft 
noise. In particular, there are complaints relating to early morning flights, including at 
weekends.

This planning application seeks permission for an annual throughput of 43 million 
passengers and 274,000 flights, which compares to 25.9 million passengers and 189,900 
flights last year. We presume that such an increase in the number of passengers will mean a 
lot more noise, a lot more pollution and a lot more traffic on our already congested local 
roads. Apparently, the chief executive claims that this application is not seeking to uplift the 
flight numbers currently approved.

However, we understand that Manchester Airport Group's (MAG's) own figures show that 
with a 35mppa cap, the maximum number of flights at Stansted would be 246,568, whereas 
with a 43mppa cap, the figure would be 273,966. We would appreciate clarification on this 
point.

We understand that a level of financial contribution has been agreed between Uttlesford 
District Council and MAG, and that this money is conditional upon UDC meeting target dates 
to speed up the progress of MAG's planning application. In the interests of impartiality, we 
would like this planning application to be determined nationally by the Secretary of State 
rather than locally by UDC.

Page 78Page 466



Elmdon and Wenden Lofts Parish Council

Should not be allowed due to increased noise, increased pollution, inadequate transport 
systems of both road and rail.  The proposed derestriction of control on number of night 
flights is of most concern and we strongly object.  Application should be determined at 
national level by Secretary of State.

Elsenham Parish Council

Should be determined at national level.  Applicant has paid for the application to be fast 
tracked, potentially for a favourable decision.  Note that there are s106 contributions relevant 
to transport which cease to have effect after 31 December 2018.  It would appear prima facie 
that the impending deadline of 31 December 2018 would provide an impetus for UDC to 
hasten the decision on the application.  Gross abuse of system with the swamping of 
website with near identical emails in support.  No public consultation in Elsenham.  

Strategic study area (Chapter 6, Figure 6.1) excludes area around Elsenham station.  
Underlying assumption that expansion is good but the case needs to be made.  

Schemes for M11 Junction 8 are merely tinkering and unlikely to provide long term 
sustainable solution to problems.  The Airport should acknowledge the extent to which traffic 
through the junction is airport-related. It should commit major investment to a visionary, 
robust long-term solution to the present acute problems.

Assumptions in relation to additional employees and access by car show a 10% decrease for 
period 2016 to 2028.  Assumption lacks adequate justification.   Likewise assumptions for 
employees as passengers.

ES refers to enhancements to walking and cycling links.  Elsenham Parish Council is not 
aware of the enhancements and would like to receive full details.

Airport needs to fund rigorous enforcement action in respect of offsite parking.  Likewise, 
should acknowledge the litter problem associated with the airport.

Elsenham Parish Council has noted Stop Stansted Expansion’s revelation of the proposal to 
exclude the present restriction on lobbying for any relaxation of the restrictions on night 
flights, which is to be found well concealed in Appendix D of the Planning Statement, with no 
publicity elsewhere. The Parish Council takes the view that the restriction should remain and 
that MAG owes an explanation to the local community. Furthermore, the contention that 
inadequate time has been allowed for consideration of these lengthy and complex proposals 
has been amply justified.

2nd response:

General

The Parish Council wishes to express disappointment that with two exceptions there does 
not appear to have been an effort to address directly the points made in the original 
response. That response is therefore repeated below.

The two exceptions are dealt with in the following two sections (community involvement and 
employee access by private car, drivers).

Page 79Page 467



Elsewhere, as far as can be determined, responses to the Parish Council’s concerns are 
made obliquely at best, and for the most part are lacking completely.

Community involvement

The point is addressed in Consultee Response Schedule, 1.4. The response to this item is 
not regarded as satisfactory by the Parish Council.

Employee access by private car, drivers

The Parish Council’s point that it is impossible for the trend towards a reduction in car driver 
trips to be continued indefinitely is addressed in Consultee Response Schedule, 3.10.

It is stated in the Response concerning the projected 10% reduction in car driver trips 
between 2017 and 2028 that ‘All these trips have been allocated to public transport modes’. 
It is unclear, therefore, why the next paragraph in the Response refers to the ‘Liftshare’ 
scheme, and to walking and cycling strategies and improvements. There is evident 
confusion as to where the supposed reduction is to be allocated, and the Parish Council 
continues to regard the projection as unjustifiably optimistic.

M11 Junction 8

The additional information has been studied carefully. The Parish Council maintains the view 
expressed previously that the proposals do no more than tinker with the problem, and that 
the Airport should commit major investment to a visionary, robust long-term solution.

Cumulative developments

Annex 3B: ‘Noise Technical Note’ includes ‘Schedule A7.3/SCH2: List of proposed 
cumulative developments’. Item 11 relates to UTT/13/1790/OP, 165 homes on land south of 
Stansted Road, Elsenham, with the Status ‘Application not submitted’. The status is 
incorrect: construction at the site is nearing completion, with over 120 dwellings occupied at 
the time of writing. The Schedule is included twice within Annex 3B.

The schedule does not included UTT/15/3090, 20 dwellings north of Leigh Drive, Elsenham, 
construction of which is under way at the time of writing. There are also several small 
schemes in the village.

Non-residential Sensitive Receptors

It is noted that in Annex 3B: ‘Noise Technical Note’, Schedule A7/SCH1 does not include 
locations in Elsenham under any of the headings Schools, Healthcare, Places of Worship or 
Community Facilities.

Farnham Parish Council

Farnham Parish Council has not submitted a formal response to UDC.  However, we have 
been sent a copy of a letter they have sent to Andrew Cowan at London Stansted Airport 
relating to noise issues from both incoming and departing aircraft over Farnham Green.

Page 80Page 468



Felsted Parish Council

We understand that it is Uttlesford District Council’s (UDC) intent to consider this application 
at District level only. We are writing to express our concern and surprise at this decision and 
to call for UDC to seek a central government review of this application, and a national 
determination, through referral to the Secretary of State for the Department for Communities 
and Local Government (DCLG).

We are not against the principle of efficient use of runway capacity at Stansted, but we do 
want to ensure that the impact is managed and the interests and concerns of communities 
listened to, respected and acted upon. With Stansted’s noise complaints showing a 20 fold 
increase, and no action taken, there is little sign of this approach at present.

Call for UDC to seek a central government review and national determination.  Should 
receive appropriate scrutiny against national planning policy and targets for community 
impact, capacity planning and focus, in relation to the third runway at Heathrow, and 
consideration of nationally set targets for air pollution.  At current rate of expansion current 
cap will not be reached for many years.  Not against principle of efficient use of runway 
capacity at Stansted but want to ensure impact is managed and the interests and concerns 
of communities listened to, respected and acted upon.

Felsted Parish Council objects to this application and the way in which it is being handled by 
Uttlesford District Council (UDC).

We understand that it is UDC's intent to consider this application at District level only. We 
are writing to express our concern and surprise at this decision and to call for UDC to seek a 
central government review of this major infrastructure application, and so a national 
determination, through referral to the Secretary of State for the Department for Communities 
and Local Government (DCLG).

Our objections include:

1. UDC has a significant prejudicial pecuniary interest in this application and an ongoing 
prejudicial relationship with Stansted Airport and MAG. UDC must therefore absent 
itself from any role in the decision making process.

2. UDC has neither the experience nor expertise to handle such an application. The 
initial consultation period for this application was set at 6 weeks, including over a 
holiday period. This is little more time than would be given to consideration of a 
single loft extension.  The last public meeting being held by the airport was set for 
28th March. A deadline of 3rd April was set for comments, with Easter holiday in 
between. This gave one working day, leading up to a public holiday weekend, from 
the public event to closure of comments.  In addition, at the last minute, we were 
advised about a Parish Briefing session on 26th March.  Again, given the holiday 
weekend, where Councillors will be taking extended holidays, this would give just 3 
working days to take the content of the briefing back to Council, consider it against 
the thousands of pages of the application, compile our response, have it agreed at 
council level, and submit it.  Then, with less than 1 working day to closure of 
comments, UDC announced an extension to the deadline.  This is akin to being given 
4 minutes to run a mile and then, a few feet from the tape, someone stands in front of 
you and says that you have another 4 minutes. But you haven't, because you have 

Page 81Page 469



already done all the work to achieve the first deadline. Standing in front of the tape 
for another 4 minutes does nothing to help 'run the race'. UDC may now be able to 
claim a longer consultation, but the reality is a demonstration of process 
mismanagement, which only adds weight to the argument that UDC has neither the 
experience nor expertise to handle such a major application.

3. This application must receive appropriate scrutiny against national airspace planning 
policy, by those setting and balancing the policy with respect to other airports and 
reviewing targets for community noise impact, air pollution and UK capacity planning. 
This can only happen if it is considered at a national level.

4. A decision to approve the application would also have a significant impact on people 
outside of Uttlesford, supporting the need to have it considered at a national, rather 
than local, level.

5. There are hidden aspects to this application which are only now beginning to 
emerge. The most serious so far is that Stansted Airport Limited (STAL) are seeking 
to remove the restriction on their ability to lobby for more night flights. STAL are 
demonstrating that they cannot be trusted to submit a clear, honest, planning 
application. Only central government, with their knowledge of such major projects, 
and their setting of night flight quotas for all airports, has the expertise to review this 
application to the level of detail required.

6. When considering current passenger numbers of c.25million, the current approved 
passenger level of 35million, and the current expansion rate at Stansted, the 35 
million level will not be reached for many years. There is therefore no reason for this 
application to receive a 'fast track' local approval status, other than to prevent it 
receiving appropriate levels of national scrutiny.  Also, given the parlous state of the 
UDC Local Plan, it is surely wrong to place so much accelerated focus on this 
application when council and officer time could surely be better utilised.

7. The application itself is cynical in its desire to avoid national scrutiny. In 
foreshortening the forecast passenger total by a year the airport has ducked under 
the conditions at which national scrutiny would be mandatory. It is not enough for 
Stansted and UDC to simply state that national policy has been considered. This is 
against the spirit, if not the letter, of policy and is within UDC's gift to reject.

Felsted PC is not against the principle of efficient use of runway capacity at Stansted, but we 
do want to ensure that the resulting community impact is managed and that the interests and 
concerns of communities are listened to, respected and acted upon wherever possible. With 
Stansted's noise impact already increasing at a rate beyond that of all other airports, and no 
action taken, there is no sign of this approach at present.

In addition to our specific objections, there are additional aspects of the application which we 
call for review:

Noise impact:

Stansted is receiving a rapidly increasing number of noise complaints from residents 
impacted by changes made to flightpaths in 2016, which moved departing flights from the 
southbound Detling route onto the Clacton 04 and 22 routes.

- For example, complaints registered on the Stop Stansted Expansion (SSE) website 
for Clacton 04 are recorded as: 2011- 10, 2012- 8, 2013- 12, 2014- 16, 2015- 2, 

Page 82Page 470



2016- 375, 2017- 400). These numbers do not include complaints directly recorded 
with Stansted Airport and so are a significant understatement of complaints made, 
but they are indicative of the clear upwards trend since the 2016 flightpath changes. 
We are also aware of residents who have given up complaining, despite continued 
noise disturbance, particularly at night. Having received standard 'flight was within 
allowable parameters' responses and seeing no action taken, they see no point in 
complaining further. This does not mean that the noise disturbance has reduced, it 
has just been dismissed by the airport.

- Stansted airport has proved itself unwilling to work with the communities its activities 
impact.  They have done absolutely nothing to work with communities to alleviate the 
concerns following the Clacton flightpath changes, or to address the noise complaints 
received.

- This application then seeks to dismiss the importance of noise complaints received 
by the airport (ref Environmental Statement Volume 1 7-30 Complaints Collection 
7.118 ES Appendix 7.5 Complaints Analysis: Noise). In summary, it states:

"Complaints are a poor indicator of the degree of noise exposure experienced by 
people."

The application references a new Noise Action Plan, due in January 2019 but again 
does nothing to suggest its draft content or whether it will address the community 
impact from the 2016 flightpath changes.

- Emerging Government guidance (specifically CAP1498 and CAP1521) recognises 
that there is a significant noise impact up to 7000 ft. The application should therefore 
include noise analysis and areas of community impact at up to 7000ft. This new 
guidance has been issued since the increase to 35m passengers was approved. It 
should therefore generate a review of noise impact plans for the expansion of 
passenger numbers from the current ~26m total.

Road Congestion:

There needs to be a more robust review of traffic congestion, both as a result of increased 
passenger numbers and additional airport employees. This needs to be reviewed alongside 
the emerging local plans for nearby areas, including the proposals for the new house 
building proposals along the A120 and the combined impact of traffic from the 'West of 
Braintree' new town.

As a part of these plans for expansion the airport should be contributing significant amounts 
to the M11 and A120 improvements to reflect the congestion their expansion plans will bring 
to the area.

Airport manipulation of responses:

The way in which the airport are 'encouraging' its employees and those in its supply chain to 
flood the system with automatically generated template emails of support is indicative of a 
manipulative approach, designed to drown out the genuine concerns of communities. This 
must be addressed beyond a simple 'we know they are doing it' response.

In summary, this application, in its current form should be rejected:

Page 83Page 471



- The press release shouted loud and clear that there will be "no significant adverse 
environmental effects" from this application. This reflects the disregard the airport 
has for the concerns and worries of surrounding communities.

- It has been pushed thought with the timing of a loft conversion and with, at worst, a 
single working day between community events and the deadline for comments. The 
late extension did nothing other than demonstrate why this application must receive 
national consideration.

- It has been cynically modified to scrape below the level at which it would require 
national determination.

- It has buried clauses (e.g. opening the ability to lobby for more night flights) which 
would have a huge impact way beyond the increase in passenger numbers.

- STAL must work with communities to demonstrate their willingness and ability to deal 
with the noise impacts from the 2016 flightpath changes before they consider further 
expansion, which will undoubtedly result in more noise.

- UDC do not have the knowledge, expertise, nor the moral right to sufficiently analyse 
or determine this application. It must go to central government for national 
determination against the emerging nation plan for aviation and its associated 
environmental impact assessments and targets.

It is wrong, unconstitutional and irresponsible for this application to be considered in the 
proposed manner.  We call on UDC to carefully read the compelling case for Secretary of 
State call-in made in the letter from Stop Stansted Expansion of 19th March and to consider 
the arguments carefully. If UDC decline to refer this application on then we call for the 
Secretary of State for the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) to 
step in and 'call in' the application for national determination.

2nd response:

Having gone through the first stage of the application, where a 6 week timescale was set 
and then extended hours before the deadline, we would have expected officers to realise 
that setting a 4 week period to review a further 900 page document would be insufficient.

August is a peak holiday period, and harvest time in this rural area. Availability of Councillors 
throughout August is thus severely limited. We have also had the Uttlesford Local Plan 
regulation 19 documents to review. We will not therefore be able to give the Stansted 
application documents the time they need for due consideration before the deadline.

We also call on UDC to appoint its own experts to analyse the noise pollution impact data for 
this planning application.

The admission that the statement regarding 'quiet aircraft' replacing over 80% of the current 
fleet was wrong, and should actually be 50%, leads to the important question as to what 
other assumptions are wrong and what the implications might be on the subsequent noise 
and pollution analysis. The conflict of interest, real or perceived, in allowing experts paid, 
and regularly retained, by the airport to effectively offer expert opinion to UDC is clear and 
must be removed from the process. UDC must appoint its own independent experts to 
review the data and the, frankly ludicrous, conclusion that, in the words of the airport, there 
will be "no significant adverse environmental effects" from an increase to 43 million 
passengers.

Page 84Page 472



An independent review also needs to be held into the airports attempts to subvert and drown 
out any genuine public debate. In providing a one click email link to all employees, whereby 
they could send an automatically generated response in support of the application, the 
airport has clearly attempted to unduly influence the planning consultation process.

The fact that fewer than 5% of employees actually clicked on the link demonstrates a lack of 
support for expansion from within the airport. Despite this, the airport has issued press 
releases claiming that this 5% employee support amounts to overwhelming public approval 
for their expansion plans. This is wrong and sinister in its attempts to manipulate public 
perception and force UDC's decision making.

UDC must stand up for the communities it represents and recognise the cynical approach 
being made by the airport and Manchester Airport Group in their approach to this expansion 
and their total lack of genuine interest in the impact the airport has on local communities.

This is illustrated perfectly by the airport's lack of any engagement with local communities 
impacted by the flightpath changes made in 2016, which doubled the flights on Clacton 
routes. 

They have not made a single suggestion or proposal for noise mitigation for the communities 
suffering from increased noise levels. They should not be allowed to further expand with 
such issues still unresolved.

Please therefore confirm that UDC will be appointing independent experts to assess the raw 
noise data and the resulting assumptions and conclusions made in the application, and that 
UDC will undertake a review of the attempt by the airport to manipulate the public 
consultation process.

When this is complete a more reasonable timescale needs to be set for public consultation 
of the full application and associated independent analysis.

Great Bardfield Parish Council

The Airport is not up to its currently permitted capacity, so we see no reason for it to be 
applying, at this point in time, to an increase. We also feel it is entirely inappropriate that a 
local district Council be responsible for determining this application, when aircraft numbers 
and capacity should be determined at central government level, and in line with agreed 
aircraft transport policies. We are concerned that such a major increase in airport capacity 
may be determined without sufficient consideration and due diligence, particularly as the 
timescale for consultation has been curtailed. This limits the capability of local groups and 
councils to discuss the wide implications of the plans and to make informed comments.

The proposed expansion will create a significant increase in transport movements. Currently 
the access to the airport is congested, with queues trying to enter the airport at peak times. 
The junction to the M11 is not able to cope well with the current level of road transport 
usage. Stansted Airport claim that 53% of airport users utilise public transport but as a local 
community to the north-east of the Airport, there is no access to the Airport by public 
transport, meaning passengers and employees of the Airport can only arrive by car or 
increasingly expensive taxis. We feel that Stansted Airport should take more responsibility 

Page 85Page 473



for enabling all users to access the Airport by public transport by subsidising and increasing 
local bus services.

An increase in airport movements will inevitably mean an increase in overflying of 
communities in proximity to the airport. We expect Stansted Airport to provide assurances 
that they will protect village environments from overflying. 

Pollution levels for air and water quality, and noise will be adversely impacted by an increase 
in flight and ground transport movements. There seem to be no proposals to mitigate or 
prevent the wider impact of increasing aircraft and passenger movements.

We also object to Stansted Airport's seeking to overturn legal conditions preventing it from 
lobbying Central Government for more night flights.

Great Canfield Parish Council

Great Canfield Parish Council objects to the application to increase passenger numbers at 
Stansted Airport for the following reasons:

IMPACT ON HIGHWAY NETWORK:  in particular M11 Junction 8 and A120.  

Various evidence from independent highway consultants has been submitted to Uttlesford 
District Council by Parish Councils in response to the Local Plan and recent planning 
applications. These have highlighted the issues with congestion on the A120 and M11 J8. Of 
note are the reports from, 

a. Walker Engineering in response to the Little Easton proposals 
b. Railton Consultants who carried out a study of the local road network on behalf of 

Takeley Parish Council in 2016 as part of Uttlesford Strategic land assessment. 
c. Railton Consultants report of behalf of Takeley and Great Canfield Parish Councils in 

response to application UTT/18/0318/OP.

Evidence from local Parish Councils and residents confirm that M11 Junction 8 is already 
stretched to capacity and often gridlocked at peak times. Given half of Stansted’s 
passengers currently use cars to access the airport any proposal to increase passenger 
numbers (66% increase based on 2017 passenger numbers) will see an increase in vehicle 
traffic that could not be accommodated without significant highway improvements. 
Consideration must also be given to the Draft Uttlesford Local Plan and other Local Plans 
from neighbouring councils, all of whom are required to provide thousands of new homes 
whose occupants will have an impact on the same highway and rail networks as this 
Stansted application.

Whilst it is noted some highway improvements are proposed in the Transport Assessment, 
there is no cohesive plan that considers the overall impact of the Local Plan proposals and 
the proposed expansion at Stansted Airport. Great Canfield Parish Council whose narrow 
protected village lanes are used as rat runs and cut troughs to avoid current congestion on 
the A120 and M11 ask that a full assessment of the combined (Stansted and Local Plans) 
highway infrastructure plan is provided before a decision is made on this application.

AIRPORT WAITING:  Whilst currently Great Canfield has no ‘estates’ where airport users 
can leave their cars to avoid high parking charges, the laybys in the village and on the 

Page 86Page 474



approaches to the airport are used by waiting cars, resulting in inconsiderate drivers leaving 
their litter for others to clear up. This Parish Council asks that consideration is given to 
providing appropriate waiting facilities and affordable parking schemes at the airport to 
ensure airport users do not abuse the goodwill of local residents.

NATIONAL DECISION:  Great Canfield Parish Council asks that this application is decided 
at national level rather than by Uttlesford District Council. Airport infrastructure as well as 
motorway and rail networks are national concerns for which Uttlesford has no authority. 
Planning applications for such matters must be discussed at a national level by those with 
the appropriate expertise and wider national oversight. There is little confidence in the local 
community that Uttlesford has the expertise to determine such applications whose 
implications go way beyond its area of authority and that it will be impartial and give fair 
consideration to the views of its residents.

Great Chesterford Parish Council

Great Chesterford Parish Council strongly objects to this application due to the inadequate 
transport infrastructure and additional noise and air pollution that would be generated by this 
proposal.

Great Dunmow Town Council

We consider that the scale of this application, with potentially significant impacts on our 
community and our infrastructure is of national importance we ask that the application is 
immediately referred to the Secretary of State, for national determination.

Should the application be determined locally, the deadline of 3rd April allows insufficient time 
for the local councils and the community to give a meaningful response on the impacts 
contained in the Environmental Statement. We request an extension to the consultation 
period to 31st May 2018.

The Town Council has employed specialist consultants to help us understand the impact of a 
new town of 10,000 homes on the edge of our town, as outlined in UDC’s Draft Local Plan. 
The new settlement would be situated on the edge of the airport Countryside Protection 
Zone and would have access onto the A120 trunk road between Great Dunmow and 
Stansted Airport. There is also an option for a direct road access to be created between the 
new settlement (Easton Park) and the airport.

We have asked our transport consultant at Walker Engineering, if it is possible to assess the 
impact on the M11 J8, A120 and our local road network from the airport expansion plans and 
on the cumulative transport impact of housing development at Easton Park. He has advised 
us that the transport information provided in the Environmental Statement is too simplistic in 
how it deals with the projected growth in background traffic for this major planning 
application. He says that it should have been based on a proper traffic model and this should 
have been commissioned by MAG. We have asked our consultant to detail his reasons in a 
letter and we will send this to you in due course.

As the application is seen to be deficient in traffic terms, we request that an appropriate 
transport model is provided so that we can understand the true impact on the local road 
network. Without this evidence, we cannot know the extent of required road improvements 
and that the costs will be met by MAG, nor can UDC clearly identify works required to J8, 

Page 87Page 475



A120 and the local road network in order to set out planning conditions for the costs to be 
fully met.

Great Easton & Tilty Parish Council

Current cap not expected to be reached until 2023.  Government currently consulting on new 
aviation strategy for UK so application premature.  Fail to understand how MAG can 
substantiate the claim of “no adverse environmental effects”.

Great Hallingbury Parish Council

Should be determined at national level.  Increase in passengers and flights will make it 
impossible to live in many properties within the village as there would be no respite from 
noise, vibration and air pollution.  Existing issues relating to traffic congestion, rat runs roads 
in poor state of repair, fly parking, litter, poor public transport and poor air quality, need to be 
addressed first.  Noise, vibration and night flights have major impacts.  Despite assurances 
that QC/2 aircraft would be phased out it is noted that Ukrainian operators have opened their 
base for the Antonov An-225 Mriya, the largest plane in the world reportedly.  Absurd to 
claim “no significant adverse environmental effects”.  Concern night flight period will be 
abused – how is it monitored?  Needs to be transparency for compensation measures 
moving forward.  Freight should not be increased at night.

Great Munden Parish Council

We most strongly object to this proposal on the following grounds:

• The proposal is extremely premature bearing in mind that the desired capacity 
increase will not be required for decades to come and the current capacity limit will 
not be reached for some years

• In the event that increased capacity should be required there will be sufficient time to 
apply within the normal application consideration time frame and achieve the 
necessary construction.

• We cannot see why this application has to be submitted now, prior to publication of 
the Government's aviation strategy proposals which may affect the requirements.

• The statement from the District Council recognises the detrimental effect of this 
proposal on the local environment in its statement of the reason for advertising.

• The transport infrastructure from the west of the airport will not support the increased 
traffic caused by the increase in capacity proposed.

• At the very least the A120 bypass from the A10 to Bishops Stortford needs to be in 
place.

• We are concerned that the rationale behind this application is to attempt to ease the 
acceptance of a second runway proposal in the future on the grounds that the 
internal infrastructure is already in place.

• The fact that the Council has accepted a payment from MAG to process the proposal 
and that this is the subject of an agreement not publicly disclosed is a matter of 
concern and will do nothing for the public perception of the integrity of the planning 
process as a whole.

Further undermining the latter is the apparent restriction of the consultation period below the 
norm for applications of this magnitude.

Page 88Page 476



We would ask you to reconsider the length of the consultation period and take steps to re-
assure those that will be affected by this proposal that the Council will be entirely 
independent of undue influence from the applicants.

The Council must be aware that residents in the locality and further afield are almost without 
exception opposed to this proposal, the only support emanating from commercial interests.

2nd response:

The current proposed expansion is not justified to support the existing target for passenger 
numbers.  Further, road and rail infrastructure as it stands will not support such an increase, 
let alone a further expansion.

What is even more concerning is the suggested modification to SP11, the airports policy to 
allow virtually uncontrolled future development.  We regard this as a derogation of the duty 
of the council to protect the environment within which their residents and surrounding 
populations live.

Full and proper planning procedures must be completed in every instance.  The reputation 
and trust of your council and local government in general will be severely impacted if MAG 
are given licence to develop in the absence of proper scrutiny at every stage, particularly in 
the light of SSE's disclosure concerning behind closed doors meetings and agreed 
payments.

Great Saling Parish Council

Totally inappropriate to consider application at District level.  Should be referred to SoS.  No 
reason why this application should be rushed through review.  Seen an enormous increase 
in aircraft noise over last year or so.  Should not be subjected to even more noise and 
disturbance without national public debate.

Great Waltham Parish Council

This item was discussed on Monday night by Great Waltham Parish Council and we would 
like to make the following comments:

Deplore the manipulation of the planning process by

• Applying for 43 million passengers – just below the threshold which would trigger the 
calling in of the application by the government

• Paying £117,000 to UDC to facilitate a speedy consideration of this application.
• Application being submitted before the government publish their long awaited 

strategy
• The application is unnecessary -  Stansted has a cap of 35 mil.  Stansted has a 

through put of 23 mil at the moment
• The through put will not reach its capacity for 5-15 years depending on whose figures 

you believe.
• Environmental Concerns:  Already the surrounding Parishes are suffering from noise 

pollution. This is being highlighted on an ad hoc basis to the airport authority.
• The proposed increase in passengers will cause significant pollution and congestion. 

Page 89Page 477



Hatfield Broad Oak Parish Council

Hatfield Broad Oak Parish Council strongly opposes the above application for the further 
expansion of Stansted Airport for the following reasons: -

• The proposed increase in number of passengers is to a level which is not warranted 
at the present time 

• The proposal of a unified cap to aircraft movements will allow 10,000 extra cargo 
aircraft movements

• The accompanying increase to night flights and use of heavier aircraft will lead to 
more noise adversely affecting residents of overflown areas

• The concomitant increase in CO2 emissions and impact on air quality
• The decision to fast track the application by UDC having received payment by MAG.
• The detrimental impact on local communities including Hatfield Broad Oak parish
• The present inadequate road and rail infrastructure to support the increase in 

passenger and HGV traffic.
• The removal of the present restriction preventing Stansted Airport lobbying the 

Government for more night flights which are the most detrimental to local 
communities

Stansted Airport Limited (STAL) is asking for an increase in annual passenger numbers to 
43mppa as against the present cap of 35 million passengers per annum (mppa), and the 
2017 actual baseline figure of 25.9 mppa - an increase of 66%. STAL do not expect to reach 
the present cap until 2023 (DfT forecast is for 2033). The application should be considered 
against the current 2017 figure of 25.9 mppa which should be the baseline and it is then 
obvious that STAL is seeking an increase of at least +16mppa rather than the 8mppa that 
takes the application under the threshold for national scrutiny as a Nationally Significant 
Infrastructure Project (NSIP).

At present there is an aircraft movements cap of 274,000 per annum (ATMpa) divided 
between passenger air transport movements and cargo air transport movements. A unified 
cap would have the effect of allowing 10,000 extra cargo aircraft movements per annum and 
the further development of Stansted as a major air cargo facility with consequent increase in 
the numbers of night flights and the use of heavier aircraft. These night flights impact heavily 
on residents of the Hatfield Broad Oak area; noise levels and frequency of flights have 
already been increased by the NATS move of the Dover route onto the Clacton Route 
resulting in more people being intensively overflown than removed from the previous flight 
paths and a nine-fold increase in the number of complaints. The recommended height of 
aircraft remains at 4000 feet over Hatfield Broad Oak in the Noise Protection Swathe, not 
7000 feet. Whilst we are told that aircraft are and will be quieter there is no perceivable effect 
at ground level especially in rural areas with lower ambient noise levels. This has not been 
assessed.  STAL would have us believe that “no significant adverse environmental effects 
are predicted” but a 44 percent increase in the number of flights and a 66 percent increase in 
the number of passengers must mean an increase in air and noise pollution and traffic 
congestion.  Presumably why there is no significant interest shown in mitigating measures.  
This application has not only wide-ranging damaging local and regional effects but also 
major national implications in terms of national aviation policy including targets on CO2 
emissions, aircraft noise levels, night flights, increased long haul flights and adverse impact 
of local communities. The National Airports Policy Framework is due in 2019 and will include 

Page 90Page 478



a shift in emphasis onto better protection of local communities and their quality of life and 
health which has been ignored by STAL.

STAL has avoided the necessity for national scrutiny as a Nationally Significant 
Infrastructure Project by trimming the proposed annual passenger transport figures and 
foreshortening the forecast by a year with no reference to DfT forecasts.

Whilst we appreciate the increase in consultation time, UDC does not have the level of 
expertise necessary to decide on an application of this magnitude especially with such a 
self-imposed short deadline. There is no detail in the application of the effects on the local 
and regional areas of the increase in long haul flights, the expansion of cargo handling, 
increase in night flights (which have the most disturbing effects on residents and are the 
subject of the most complaints), the effect of additional traffic on the transport infrastructure, 
with resulting deterioration in air quality and noise pollution.  The Regulation 18 Local Plan 
will not be finalised until 2019 but as it stands it does not address any of the local 
infrastructure issues raised such as education, housing, economy, medical and emergency 
services, and especially traffic congestion and public transport.

HBO PC is particularly concerned by present traffic congestion in and around the village. 
The B183 Harlow/Hatfield Heath/ HBO/ Takeley is used as a cut through to Stansted Airport 
by local and commuter traffic, airport taxis and HGV vehicles in order to avoid the M11 
Junction 8 and A120.  Although a PR2 route, it is narrow, winding and totally unsuited to 
large volumes of traffic. On an average weekday upwards of 6000 vehicle journeys (2% 
HGVs) have been recorded entering and exiting the B183 at the Takeley traffic lights. This 
volume of traffic through the village on a medieval street plan narrowed by pavement and 
street parking is rapidly becoming intolerable and at school times there can be gridlock, 
resulting in diesel fumes, short tempers and real danger to pedestrians. The B183 and 
country lanes joining it cannot take any extra traffic especially taxis, buses and HGVs which 
the proposed increase in passenger numbers and freight aircraft movements must entail. 

HBO PC is disappointed to see a ‘hidden’ proposal within the 2,930 page application tucked 
away in Appendix D of the Planning Statement page 111 - ‘Air Noise’ to increase night 
flights. Whilst there is nothing in the application specifically seeking an increase in numbers 
of night flights, the removal of the ban on MAG lobbying the Government for any relaxation 
of night flight restrictions opens the way for an increase in the permitted number night flights. 
Night flights cause the most sleep disturbance and adverse impact on the quality of life and 
well-being of residents overflown.

The increase will include greater numbers of long haul and cargo aircraft which are larger 
and noisier than most aircraft using Stansted Airport at the moment - a recipe for noise 
nightmare to the residents in the areas overflown.  At present the hours for night flights at 
Stansted is 11.30pm to 6.00am this should be shortened to 11.00pm to 7.00am - ‘night’ as 
defined by the World Health Organisation (WHO)'s Guidelines on Community Noise.  
Stansted Airport already has twice as many night flights as Heathrow and we note that night 
flights at Heathrow are to be banned completely within the next 10 years as a condition of 
expansion.  These effects will be felt over a much larger area than that covered by UDC - 
affecting the East and South Eastern Regions and involving issues of national aviation 
policy. This application should properly be decided at national level by the Secretary of State 
for Housing, Communities and Local Government as a NSIP.

Page 91Page 479



Hatfield Heath Parish Council

Hatfield Heath Parish Council strongly oppose this application for the further expansion of 
Stansted Airport.  We are already severely affected by aircraft noise and this was heightened 
by the move of the Dover Route onto the Clacton Route. The supposed measures to be 
taken to lessen aircraft noise over our village have failed. Planes flying on the route RNP1 
still generate noise over the village, still fly over the village at heights sometimes below 3000 
feet and there remains the problem of night flights including planes on the Detling Route 
coming right over the village.

There is already permission for the growth of Stansted Airport, which was given on the basis 
of BAA's G1 application forecast until 2030. If this application is for an increase in these 
figures then it must be made clear why the increase is needed and be based on current 
passenger numbers and total aircraft movements. We cannot understand why this 
application is being rushed through and believe there has been a lack of transparency.

There are many issues that relate to Central Government and so it would appear that this 
application is trying to avoid any Government decisions on CO2 emissions, air quality, 
airport policy in the South East, aircraft noise at night, the policy for night flights in the South 
East with the possible banning of night flights from Heathrow airport, aircraft noise levels and 
heights.

Measures to mitigate noise impacts are to be included in the National Airports Policy 
Review. The revised Aviation Policy framework is due in 2019 and it is very interesting that it 
will recommend tighter controls to better protect communities and their quality of life. If the 
height of planes over our village was 7000 feet rather than the 4000 feet recommended at 
present this would have a tremendous benefit to us. The shift of emphasis onto the 
protection of local communities is in contrast to this application and the actions of UDC.

Residents affected by this application have not been directly informed. Our village has not 
been notified officially. Responses to the application are under a strict timetable and 
whereas UDC has employed consultants to deal with the application, residents must 
consider the 2930 pages on-line or purchase the documents for a considerable sum. If the 
response form on the planning department web site is used then it is time limited, has no 
save and return facility and the site can crash thus losing all of a response.

The UDC's Local Plan is still not finalized and does not consider the impact of this 
application in terms of extra housing, air pollution, traffic movements, schooling and medical 
services. There is full employment in this area so the creation of 5000 extra jobs will 
necessitate further house building.

We as Parish Council are very strongly opposed to this application. While we appreciate the 
time extension now agreed we do wonder how residents are to be informed of the additional 
time for response.

We fail to see how all the effects of additional traffic, both road and rail, has been assessed 
as to its' impact on local communities; that statements saying planes will be quieter are 
believed when there will be no effect on sound intensity on the ground. The impact of long 
haul flights being developed at this airport and expanded with this application has not been 

Page 92Page 480



detailed nor has the potential to increase the number of night flights. The whole issue of air 
quality and the quality of life in local communities should have been a high priority.

Helions Bumpstead Parish Council

Helions Bumpstead Parish Council Objects to the proposed increase in passenger numbers 
at Stansted airport because of the increase in the number of stacking aircraft it would entail 
in the Abbott stack over Helions Bumpstead. This would result in worsening of the chemical, 
particulate, microwave and noise pollution which degrades the local environment 
engendering anxiety, a threat to health and loss of amenity for the residents. Our detailed 
and referenced explanation of this objection is contained in the attached file. 

We also object to the increase in the terrestrial traffic due to the additional Stansted staff 
commuting from housing in inexpensive areas such as Haverhill through minor rural lanes to 
Stansted. These are direct routes, though inadequate for fast through traffic and are already 
used excessively by Stansted staff. An increase in staff numbers would exacerbate the 
danger and disruption, as would an increase in passenger numbers using the same routes.

My Council objects furthermore to the accelerated timetable for the public consultation of this 
proposal which gives insufficient time for proper public consideration of the substantial 
documentation. The proposal would degrade the wellbeing and lifestyle of hundreds of 
thousands of people and affect millions – including those additional millions who are 
projected to use the airport. The timescale proposed by Uttlesford District Council for public 
consultation is wholly inadequate equitably to assess the plan and weigh its repercussions 
on the various public interests.

2nd response:

An increase in passenger numbers through Stansted airport would increase aircraft 
movements at the busier, more popular times rather than in slack periods, resulting in a 
disproportionate increase in aircraft stacking while they wait for a landing slot. The need to 
stack aircraft defines an airport operating beyond its capacity and Stansted already stacks a 
large number of aircraft despite not yet having reached its current passenger limit. Like an 
oversubscribed car park, when you see circulating cars looking for spaces, then you know it 
is full. Circular aircraft stacking and linear stacking cause extensive air pollution of a type 
linked to the two most common causes of death, it is an unnecessary contributor to global 
warming, causes noise nuisance to householders over a wide area, and should be reduced 
and eventually, entirely eliminated. For these reasons, any increase in permitted passenger 
numbers at Stansted would be highly detrimental and the application should be refused.

Peak Stacking Disruption

The number of aircraft movements per hour at Stansted is not uniform; they are 
concentrated around the times that the majority of airlines wish to leave or return to the 
airport. These peaks in activity occur predominantly in the summer months early in the 
morning, around midday, in the evening and on into the night, especially for short haul 
flights. For example, a flight to El Prat – Barcelona from Stansted takes 2 hours 16 minutes, 
so an early morning flight is back at lunchtime for a similar destination in the afternoon.

Page 93Page 481



This maximises the use of aeroplanes which are expensive capital assets, but the 
concentration of movements at these specific times causes congestion on the runway so 
that aircraft stack in the air while they wait for a landing slot amongst other arrivals and 
departing flights. The school holidays represent the apogee of stacking, particularly near 
week ends and unfortunately that is when many home owners are at home hoping to enjoy 
the peace and quiet of their own homes and when they would like to be outside or at least to 
have windows open.

Stacking is Universally Unpopular

Pilots and airlines dislike stacking as it prolongs their flight time and the low altitude 
increases fuel consumption and increases the probability of collision with birds, errant 
drones or other stacking aircraft and their wake turbulence. Passengers dislike the wasted 
time – a flight from Stansted to Edinburgh takes 30% longer than it used to and nervous 
passengers become apprehensive at the frequent changes in direction and attitude. The 
general public is slowly poisoned by the pointless emission of particulate and chemical 
pollutants and environmentalists abhor the needless release of carbon dioxide which causes 
climate change. Those living in Helions Bumpstead, under the turning point of the stacking 
pattern, are subjected to noise and pollution from stacking aircraft - continuously on many 
summer days. Even the airport owner dislikes stacking despite the extra revenue that it 
enables, as it is a major source of complaints from all of these groups.

Stacking Causes Dangerous Pollution

Pollutants and particulate matter from terrestrial, diesel vehicles are largely contained within 
the busy streets where they are generated. Much of the chemical pollution is absorbed by 
the accompanying micro-particulates and these are in turn captured electrostatically by the 
ground, buildings, trees, hedges and the cars themselves. This is the cause of the oily black 
dirt on the back of old diesel cars. Pollution levels, consequently, reduce sharply away from 
the roadway.

Aircraft release similar pollutants to old diesel cars because they are burning a similar fossil 
fuel, but there are no inanimate objects to adsorb them and no possibility of filters to remove 
them. The downdraft (Appendix 1) caused by each aircraft flying at low altitude over the 
same route ensures that these pollutants are mixed with surface air and are breathed in 
directly by the humans beneath without any of the attenuating factors that apply to vehicle 
pollution.

Aircraft engines produce larger quantities of nitrogen oxides and PM2.5 particulates than 
diesel engines due to their higher combustion temperature and stacking consequently 
provides a pervasive source of these pollutants. Nitrogen oxides and PM2.5 particles are 
absorbed into the bloodstream via the lungs and recent epidemiological studies1 have 
shown that they cause cumulative damage to the heart on a dose and time related basis. 
Heart disease is the second biggest killer in Britain and there may be no safe pollution level.

Dementia has recently overtaken heart disease as the largest killer in Britain and very recent 
work2 has shown that heated metallic surfaces such as those in engines, release magnetite 
Nano spheres which enter the brain via the olfactory bulb and destroy brain cells by 
oxidative catalysis, causing dementia. Again, no lower limit to the danger from this 
particulate toxin has yet been defined.

Page 94Page 482



Conclusion

Helions Bumpstead is 15 miles from Stansted and there is no justification for aircraft to stray 
so far from the airport. The final straight line approach can be made from within 5 miles of 
the runway and indeed, departing flights set a course for their destination within that 
distance. Any deviation from a direct route to a point 5 miles from the arrival runway is 
stacking and should be eliminated.

As I type, the lightest zephyr through the open windows attenuates the heat and the stacking 
aeroplane which woke me at 3.20 am on August 7th turns back towards Stansted and 
descends followed by another slightly quieter plane, the flash of its wing tip lights reflecting 
palely from the darkened bedroom walls.

We have exemplified some of the more recently revealed dangers to the general public of 
pollution associated with aircraft and diesel smoke, but all of the well-known dangers of this 
pollution to children, the elderly, asthmatics and those with pulmonary disease apply, 
together with secondary effects such as the catalytic generation of dangerous ozone 
concentrations by nitrogen oxides and sunlight and loss of sleep.

Delaying aircraft landings either for convenience or through operational inefficiency belongs 
to a past era in aviation. The civil aviation industry should not employ its political power to 
obscure its responsibility towards climate change, pollution and its terrestrial neighbours and 
no increase in passenger numbers at Stansted should be allowed until stacking has been 
eliminated.

(Appendix 1:  The power of an aircraft’s downdraft or wake turbulence and its ability to mix 
air masses at different altitudes can be visualised by the following report:

7 January 2017 – a private Bombardier Challenger 604 rolled three times in mid-air and 
dropped 10,000 feet after encountering wake turbulence when it passed 1,000 feet under an 
Airbus A380 over the Arabian Sea. Several passengers were injured, one seriously. Due to 
the G-forces experienced, the plane was damaged beyond repair and was consequently 
written off. https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Wake_turbulence

Wake turbulence is enhanced by the denser air at low altitude and by flying at low speed 
when the aircraft has a higher angle of attack. Stacking, consequently, maximises wake 
turbulence and the mixing of low altitude air with surface air and this effect is further 
enhanced by multiple aircraft flying over the same route.)

Hempstead Parish Council

This application will clearly result in an increase in the number of aircraft using STN and 
also, if the intentions of airport management are achieved, an increase in the average size of 
aircraft using the airport. This will result in significantly more noise for those living on the 
departure and approach paths. Also, more generally, this will increase local and regional 
road congestion, and, if the employment projections by MAG are achieved, increased 
pressure in housing supply, with consequent pressure on natural resources including water 
supplies. No mitigation of these pressures has been proposed. The planning authority 
should require mitigation measures if the application is approved.

Page 95Page 483



In relation to aircraft noise, while there are established departure routes and profiles to seek 
to minimise the impact of aircraft noise, there are no such arrival routes/procedures. As a 
condition of allowing this application the planning authority should require the airport to work 
with NATS to implement, prior to completion of the works under the application, standard 
approach procedures to ensure that aircraft are established on final approach at a minimum 
height of 4000 ft AMSL.  This will serve to minimise the impact of the increase in noise which 
arises when aircraft apply power when turning on final approach from base leg. A similar 
measure is in place at London Heathrow to minimise noise disturbance over London.

Henham Parish Council

Application premature.  Not expected to meet current cap until 2023, government forecast 
suggests 2033.  Should be considered as an NSIP by the government.  Difficult to believe 
that Planning Committee has expertise to deal with application of this complexity.  A 44% 
increase in flights and 66% increase in passengers would mean more noise, pollution and 
traffic on already congested roads.

High Easter Parish Council

High Easter Parish Council OBJECTS to the application to enable combined airfield 
operations of 274,000 aircraft movements and a throughput of 43 million terminal 
passengers, in a 12-month calendar period. Its reasons for objection to planning application 
UTT/18/0460/FUL are as follows:

EFFECTIVE CONSULTATION:  This Parish Council is not against carefully considered 
economic development in the region which takes appropriate account of the impact on the 
local communities affected by such development; it is however strongly opposed to any such 
decisions which are made without due consideration and regard for the opinions of local 
residents.  In recent years High Easter Parish Council and its residents feel severely let 
down by the decision makers following changes to departure routes at Stansted introduced 
in February 2016 and the introduction of Performance Based Navigation. Both have had 
adverse impacts on the once tranquil village of High Easter. Despite representations from 
this Parish Council, its residents and others asking for its views to be considered, nothing 
has been done by Stansted Airport or the local and national authorities to effectively engage 
with the community to try and alleviate or mitigate the impact, and the community continues 
to feel severely let down by all parties involved especially those whose only interest appears 
to be commercial gain.

SIGNIFICANCE OF THE APPLICATION AND NEED FOR THE DECISION AT NATIONAL 
LEVEL:  The decision should be made at National Level by the Secretary of State for 
Communities and Local Government and not by the Planning Committee of Uttlesford 
District Council.

1. This application’s wider significance is evidenced by the hundreds of comments, in 
some cases identical, submitted in response to this application from individuals who 
live far beyond the Uttlesford borders and other local authorities, public and 
commercial bodies with national interests. It is clearly not a local issue.

2. Increasing passenger numbers at Stansted and the associated infrastructure to allow 
additional aircraft in national airspace is a key part of the future of airspace growth in 
the UK. As such, the application must be ‘fitted’ into the wider UK strategy and not be 

Page 96Page 484



determined in isolation at District Council level in the year the Government is due to 
issue its new aviation strategy for UK airspace; communities are sceptical that this is 
a fast track application designed to allow Stansted to avoid national scrutiny. If it is 
not, and given the government targets for reaching current passenger numbers at 
Stansted is 2033, then there should be no issue with the application being 
determined in a timely manner at national level and the public being satisfied with the 
process.

3. A consultation on the Post Implementation Review (PIR) on changes to the departure 
routes at Stansted Airport took place in the first half of 2017 and comments were 
invited from the local communities. The results of the Post Implementation Review 
were initially due in September 2017; this was then delayed once, twice, and now 
three times with results not expected before June 2018, over a year after the 
consultation closed. The reason cited for the delay is ‘the CAA has discovered a 
technical issue which requires further investigation with the relevant change sponsor.’ 
Whilst the impact on local communities following changes to departure routes was 
significant, it was a straightforward change moving aircraft from one approved route 
to another and yet the CAA requires months to properly consider the technical detail. 
What confidence can local residents have in the knowledge and technical ability of 
Uttlesford District Council (UDC) to determine such a complex 2,930-page 
application quickly? National expertise is essential in ensuring the decision and 
conditions are in the best interests of all parties.

4. As a result of the delay in the publication of the PIR referred to in point 3 above, there 
are no conclusions to the changes in Stansted departure routes introduced in 2016. 
The impact of the changes was significant to residents of High Easter and this 
application seeks to send more traffic down these same routes. This latest 
application is premature and should not be decided until the results of the PIR are 
known in order that any recommendations and outcomes can be reflected in the 
application.

5. This Parish Council is of the opinion UDC has both a prejudicial pecuniary interest in 
this application as well as an ongoing prejudicial relationship with Stansted Airport. 
How can it be appropriate for UDC to be the decision maker for this application?

6. This application seeks not only an increase in passenger numbers but also 
development of the airport site to provide additional infrastructure, i.e. taxiways and 
stands to enable 274,000 flight movements for which it already has approval. This 
Parish Council is of the view the infrastructure work could be approved to increase 
the efficiency of the airport without the approval of the increase in passenger 
numbers. The later could then be considered in a more time appropriate manner 
given targets are not expected to reach capacity for many years.

NOISE

1. Recent Government guidance has sought to provide a definition of ‘overflight’ to 
ensure consistency between all parties. Its emerging guidance CAP1498 defines 
‘overflight’ as ‘An aircraft in flight passing an observer at an elevation angle that is 
greater than an agreed threshold and at an altitude below 7,000 ft’.  Aircraft 
overflying High Easter are generally at c.5,000ft and with very low ambient 
background noise the disturbance is significant. This Parish Council is of the view it is 
unacceptable for Stansted to ignore Government guidance and not adequately 

Page 97Page 485



consider noise impacts between 4,000ft and 7,000ft and requests that this 
information is provided.

2. ES Volume 4 Non-Technical Summary Part 1, confirms the impact of noise has been 
compared to ‘Do Minimum’ scenario. The ‘Do Minimum’ scenario was approved in 
2008 when overflying aircraft were not an issue in High Easter. Since 2008 a number 
of consultations have resulted in changes significantly increasing overflying aircraft, 
e.g. changes to departure routes. High Easter Parish Council requests that 
comparisons are made to pre and post 2016 changes to allow residents to 
understand the true impact of these changes for their own communities and not a 
general total overview.

3. This proposal does not take in account emerging government guidance in CAP1498 
which seeks to represent the views of the often smaller communities whose lives are 
blighted by aircraft noise beyond the historic standard contours.

Also through listening to stakeholders, we know that local communities situated 
outside the standard noise contours used for assessing airspace changes as well as 
the contour which marks the approximate onset of significant community annoyance, 
as given in paragraph 3.17 of the Aviation Policy Framework (APF)4, can also be 
adversely affected by passing aircraft. To represent people/communities affected in 
this way, we wish to propose a metric to quantify overflight both inside and outside of 
the standard noise contours. (CAP 1498, item 1.4).  The Parish Council requests that 
Stansted provides metrics to quantify the impact on High Easter which is outside the 
standard noise contours.

4. Since the changes in departure routes in 2016 noise complaints from High Easter via 
Stop Stansted website have increased, 2016 – 388, 2015 – 1, 2014 -2, 2013 – 0, 
2012 – 1, 2011 - 2. In its application Stansted chooses to state that ‘Complaints are a 
poor indicator of the degree of noise exposure experienced by people.’ (ES Volume 
1, 7.118). Whilst the Parish Council agrees that they are a poor indication as the 
majority of people do not complain via the official routes, had Stansted made any 
attempt to hold a public meeting in the village or held a community outreach session 
in High Easter, it would have collected plenty of data from residents who would have 
shared with them how the changes implemented and the resultant increase in aircraft 
noise has affected their lives. If complaints are deemed ‘a poor indicator’ Stansted 
must provide data to capture the views of the communities who are affected by its 
actions before a decision to increase the impact further is decided.

5. High Easter is a rural area with low ambient noise and the impact of any aircraft 
noise is magnified. This Parish Council does not support Leq contours alone as an 
adequate method of measuring aircraft noise. Such measures are based on 
averages and do not take account of the rural villages with low ambient background 
noise that surround Stansted Airport, or the regularity of overflying aircraft which 
provides no respite.

6. The Parish Council is concerned that Stansted yet again ignores its neighbours. Stop 
Stansted Expansion has highlighted to local communities the statement in Appendix 
D of the Planning Statement that sets out proposed conditions accompanying any 
approval. The Parish Council is alarmed to read that Stansted proposes to remove 
the present restriction which prevents Stansted Airport lobbying Government for 
more night flights; this is a blatant disregard of its neighbours. Night flights between 

Page 98Page 486



23.00hrs and 07.00hrs are a serious disturbance to this community, the early 
morning ‘rush hour’ over High Easter starts at 06.15am and aircraft fly overhead 
constantly every 2 minutes. If it was road traffic through the village action would be 
taken to prevent this or penalise road users, the same should apply to traffic in our 
skies. This Parish Council urges that should the decision be made to approve the 
application that this condition is NOT included within the approval.

7. The noise impact views in the application use a number of assumptions including, 
‘noise levels are expected to fall from the 2023 levels due to the higher percentage of 
operations by new generation, low noise aircraft.’ (ES Volume 1 chapter 7 point 
7.163). The Parish Council asks how Stansted will influence the use of quieter 
aircraft and what conditions can be put in place to ensure passenger numbers do not 
increase without this and other assumptions being complied with.

UTTLESFORD LOCAL PLAN

1. The emerging Uttlesford Local Plan Regulation 18 documents policy SP11 in relation 
to Stansted Airport. This application does not meet the criteria of SP11 and this is 
demonstrated in the arguments listed below. To approve this application would be to 
go against draft policy SP11 in particular that any development must include 
‘proposals which will over time result in a significant diminution and betterment of the 
effects of aircraft operations on the amenity of local residents’.

a. The recent change in flight routes (2016), and the results of a noise 
monitoring exercise by the airport at High Easter in the summer 2016 showed 
that the current noise levels (2016) were on the borderline of exceeding WHO 
allowable levels, although the consultant’s analysis argued that birdsong was 
a significant contributing factor to aircraft noise impact! How can more and 
larger aircraft demonstrate a ‘significant diminution’ for residents of High 
Easter.

b. The application appears not to request a change to the current number of 
flights, 274,000 permitted at Stansted, however does seek to change the 
current allocation between, passenger, cargo and general, (GA). The ES 
volume 1, table 8.8 confirms the intention is to reduce GA flights to 5,000 and 
increase passenger flights. (The 2016 baseline for GA is 14,500 increasing to 
20,000 in 2023 before the significant drop to 5,000; to note there is no 
information on how this will be achieved). GA aircraft are small in size and the 
ES volume 1 point 8.117 states that the reduction forecast in GA will affect the 
‘Northside noise levels’. Its statement in ES Volume 1 chapter 7 point 7.3 
confirms that this will result in a ’larger balance of passenger aircraft 
movements than currently permitted’. The Parish Council asks that a clear 
analysis of the increase in additional aircraft that will overfly High Easter is 
provided in this application.

c. Stansted’s press release when the application was launched and in multiple 
places in this application, e.g. in the Conclusion of the Planning Statement 
dated Feb 2018, Clause 9.3, Stansted state, ‘No significant adverse 
environmental effects from this application.’ This Parish Council strongly 
disagrees with this statement. Irrespective of the complex technical statistics 
and arguments, there is disbelief in the community that an Airport can 

Page 99Page 487



increase its airport capacity, silently! This shows its disregard for the 
communities that live under its flight paths and who are constantly disturbed 
by overflying aircraft.

d. This Parish Council insisted in its comments on the Scoping Report (Points 
2.10 to 2.14 of the Scoping Report response), regarding sensitivities, that the 
impact of maximum capacity of the single runway (in mppa and ATMs) be 
included, and the range of environmental impacts reported accordingly. What 
happens beyond 2028? This has not been included and therefore the 
maximum potential technical environmental impact (specifically on noise) is 
not defined.

e. Uttlesford are currently working on the Local Plan and to date no reports to 
confirm the impact on highways as a result of this have been provided to the 
local communities. It is inappropriate to make decisions to increase passenger 
numbers without a combined understanding of the highway impact from the 
Local Plan and Stansted expansion especially given the already congested 
main routes which result in traffic using narrow village lanes to navigate 
around congestion, further adding to the environmental impact for 
communities surrounding the airport.

MITIGATION:  In the regretful event that a decision is taken to approve this application, High 
Easter Parish Council insists that the approval comes with relevant conditions to alleviate the 
unacceptable noise levels over High Easter village. These must include alterations to the 
Performance Based Navigation flight path; respite; elimination of night flights and the use of 
quieter aircraft at a minimum. It would furthermore ask that these mitigations are not time 
limited as those from the 2008 application were and which have time expired before 
becoming applicable.

CONCLUSION:  High Easter Parish Council has not provided a ‘template’ to its residents to 
respond to this application as has clearly happened by Stansted. This approach has resulted 
in hundreds of identical email submissions in support of the application which have drowned 
out the true voices of those whose lives will be impacted by this decision. High Easter Parish 
Council re-states its objection to this application and its view that this application should not 
be decided by the District Council, however if it chooses to ignore this request, High Easter 
Parish Council urges its District Council and its elected members to listen to and consider 
appropriately the views of its residents in objecting to this application.

Ickleton Parish Council

Ickleton Parish Council objects to the application to increase permitted throughput at 
Stansted Airport (SA) to 43m passengers per annum (mppa) compared with the current 
35mppa annual limit. Last year SA achieved 25.9mppa.

1. The application appears to be premature since the owners of SA estimate they will 
not reach the present cap until 2023. The Government’s forecast, presumably more 
objective, is that that figure will be reached by 2033.

2. For such a complex application comprising 3000 pages of documents, the period 
allowed for consultation and comment is unreasonably short. The application details 
also appear to have been manipulated so that this is not a mandatory submission to 
central government, where it would receive proper scrutiny.

Page 100Page 488



3. Uttlesford District Council (UDC) seems determined to fast-track this application and 
indeed has entered into an agreement with the owners of SA to do this in exchange 
for a considerable sum of money in circumstances that have not been made fully 
public.

4. The issue of London airport capacity is currently under consideration by the 
Government, which also happens to be consulting on a new aviation strategy for the 
UK (hoping for publication by the end of the year). In such a situation, it seems 
proper for this application to be decided by the Secretary of State under the 
procedure for national significant infrastructure projects rather than by a local 
authority, particularly by one proceeding in the manner adopted by UDC. It is unlikely 
that UDC has the level of expertise required properly to handle an application of this 
complexity.

5. Ickleton Parish Council is very concerned about the statement in the application that 
there would be “no significant adverse environmental effects” if the application is 
approved. A 44% increase in flights, and a 66% increase in passengers, would 
clearly mean more noise, more pollution and a great deal more traffic on roads and 
other infrastructure such as rail that are struggling to cope with current levels. This is 
a large infrastructure project that will have a massive impact on communities in the 
locality of the airport, and a large impact over a much wider area.

Lindsell Parish Council

The parishioners at the meeting were almost unanimously against the application which they 
feel has been rushed through. They feel that the forecasts given by MAG have been 
exaggerated and that little real consideration has been given to the effects of noise and 
pollution on the surrounding area. Lindsell is a small village near the airport and already 
there is noise disturbance and severe problems with the A120 and M11 junction. All this will 
be made worse if the application is passed and if the proposals for more houses in the area 
are passed.

The meeting felt strongly that the application should be being considered by the Secretary of 
State not Uttlesford who obviously have a financial link with MAG.

Little Bardfield Parish Council

The Little Bardfield Parish Council wishes to place on record its objection to the proposed 
relaxation of UDC policy for the expansion of Stansted Airport. It supports SSE's position 
that the proposed changes to Policy SP11 in the latest (Regulation 19) version of the Draft 
Local Plan should be rejected.

Little Canfield Parish Council

Little Canfield Parish Council have no objections to the proposed developments set out in 
the current Planning Application. This is on the basis that all necessary infrastructure 
improvements and developments needed to service the increased number of passengers 
are implemented to an agreed timetable encapsulated in the Planning Approval. 
Infrastructure improvements would include for example, Northbound direct access between 
A120 and M11 and southbound access from M11 direct to A120, by-passing Junction 8, 
Parking Management in surrounding Villages and Traffic Management on local roads to 
improve quality of life for local residents.

Page 101Page 489



Little Easton Parish Council

Little Easton Parish Council wish to lodge a formal objection to the planning application by 
Stansted Airport Limited and urge Uttlesford District Council to refuse the application.

LEPC do not accept that there is any urgent need to grant permission at this point in time 
and that the current proposed timetable is rushing a decision through. The airport already 
has an existing permission to grow passenger numbers to 35 million per annum which was 
granted after a five month public enquiry in 2007. Manchester Airport Group’s own growth 
forecasts state that this limit will not be reached until 2023 and the Dft forecasts state that 
the limit will not be reached until 2033.

In addition to this, Uttlesford District Council is currently in the process of putting forward 
local plan housing proposals which will not be decided upon until 2019. There is also a new 
Airports National Policy Statement (ANPS) due in the summer of this year which will 
influence policy and planning for Stansted airport.

LEPC feel that any proposals to further expand passenger numbers and flights are 
premature and that there is therefore no need to rush through such a major planning 
decision which will have such a significant negative impact on the local area. UDC have a 
responsibility to wait until the details of any changes to government policy are published and 
the impacts understood before undertaking any decisions.

The proposals will have a significant detrimental impact upon the local area in general and 
specifically upon residents in Little Easton. How Manchester Airports Group can claim “… no 
significant adverse environmental effects are predicted as a consequence of the proposed 
development” is a cynical attempt to underplay the impacts of their plans and bypass the 
need for an open, transparent assessment of the impacts on the local community.

Community already significantly affected by noise from airport.  Further increases in flight 
numbers will compound this misery for local residents.  Will also significantly increase CO2 
emissions.  There is to be a government update by the end of this year which is due to make 
further recommendations on tackling CO2 emissions. It makes no sense to give permission 
for such an increase in flight numbers before any potential new policies are in place.

Local road and rail infrastructure already stretched and cannot cope with the increase.  
Airport application cannot be considered in isolation in terms of local infrastructure.  Needs 
to be considered alongside the three new Garden Community developments being put 
forward by UDC.

Should be considered as a Nationally Significant Infrastructure Project.

Little Hallingbury Parish Council

Little Hallingbury Parish Council think this application is a nationally significant infrastructure 
project under the Planning Act 2008 and should therefore be decided by the Secretary of 
State. It should not be left to a small group of planning officers of limited resources to come 
up against the might of a large corporation such as Manchester Airports Group (MAG) with 
rather large purses.

Page 102Page 490



MAG hasn’t proven any urgent need for the proposed increase to 43 mppa. Even by their 
own rather optimistic forecast they will not reach the present cap until 2023 (as against the 
DfT forecast 2033). There seems to be an unhealthy urgency to push this through before the 
Government Aviation Policy at the end of the year. What is not being widely publicised is that 
it’s not just a 10mppa increase, it’s almost double. The number of passengers currently (25.9 
million) using the airport.  Subsequently twice the number of airport related travellers on the 
roads and rail networks, both of which are stretched to the limit. Assuming that the same 
percentage of travellers use the car parks as currently do. That’s double the car parks and 
less green fields. More passengers – larger aircraft – more noise and pollution. The noise 
levels in the Hallingburys and we’re sure other local villages are already highly intrusive 
especially at night and is detrimental to our health and our quality of life.

MAG states that new aircraft will be up to 60% quieter but that equates to only approximately 
3 decibels, a difference not really detectable by the human ear.

2nd response:

Little Hallingbury Parish Council had no additional comments to this planning application.

Moreton, Bobbingworth & the Lavers Parish Council

Despite MAGs claim, the increase in throughput to 43million passengers per annum will 
undoubtedly bring an increase in the number of aircraft movements increasing both aircraft 
noise and traffic congestion along both local routes and major roads, including the M11 and 
A120. This will have a detrimental effect of the wellbeing of local residents.

• The Parish is already used as a rat run for passengers when the M11 and A120 are 
blocked. The granting of this application will exacerbate an already prevalent 
problem. This is identified by MAG within paragraph 6.114 of its Planning Statement 
that supports this application.

• The Parish Council has concerns over the increased flights, and the affect this will 
have on air quality for local residents. These concerns are also flagged by the 
suggestion that a new S106 agreement will be reached which seeks to amalgamate 
the two previous S106 agreements, however EXCLUDES the following:

 Consultation with the Primary Care Trust on the appropriateness of 
undertaking a study on effects on public health. 

 Take reasonable and proportionate steps to mitigate in accordance with 
Government guidance regarding noise and air quality any proven adverse 
effects upon public health being a direct result of the Development as 
identified by studies carried out.

• The ‘revised’ S106 agreement also proposes to EXCLUDE the restriction on lobbying 
for any relaxation of night flight restrictions. This implies that MAG is looking to 
increase night flights which would simply be unacceptable and have a severe 
detrimental effect of the night time amenity (i.e. the ability to sleep in peace) of local 
residents. The Parish Council would SUPPORT a reduction in the number of night 
flights permitted.

• Our Parish is rural, the only issues affecting this being traffic using local roads and 
the noise from aircraft, both of which would be exacerbated by this application thus 
affecting the rural character and setting of our community.

Page 103Page 491



• MAG forecasts that 35mppa will not be reached until 2023, whereas the Department 
for Transport forecasts that 35mppa will not be reached until 2033. Clearly somebody 
is forecasting incorrectly.

The Parish Council requests that Uttlesford District Council refuses this application.

Newport Parish Council

The increase in the number of flights (from 189,000 – 274,000) and passenger numbers 
(from 25.9 million to 43 million) would have a significant impact on our local community and 
the surrounding area.  The proposed expansion will lead to much greater congestion on the 
roads and railways and put additional pressure on hospitals, schools and doctors surgeries 
who are already finding it difficult to deal with current levels.  The impact on air quality 
caused by increased pollution would be detrimental to the whole area.  UDC should 
therefore reject this application.

Quendon and Rickling Parish Council

The Parish Council objects to this application on the grounds that by granting permission for 
additional taxiways and remote aircraft stands this would permit increased passenger 
throughput which has not been agreed and is opposed.

Roydon Parish Council

Whilst some residents have indicated their interest in possible new routes that the Airport 
could provide (which should be possible within the airport's current passenger and aircraft 
movement limits in any event), the Parish Council

- has concerns about the ability of the district council to determine this complicated 
and technical application. This is an application affecting national infrastructure and 
should be determined at national level.

- would like to understand better the rationale for this application as it seems 
premature (the airport is not due to meet its current capacity maximum for some 
years) and designed to pre-empt the Government's Aviation Policy due at the end of 
the year.

- would like to ensure that the application would not result in additional night flights - 
Roydon Parish is directly affected by these being under the arrivals flight path. 

- Suggestions that there should be a relaxation on the night flight limit should be 
strongly resisted.

- would like the Airport to make more determined efforts not to over-fly populated 
areas.

- would like Uttlesford DC to accept that comments from those not directly affected by 
this application should not be given the same weight as other representations.

Saffron Walden Town Council

Saffron Walden Town Council;

i. considers that the application is large enough to merit scrutiny and review at a 
National rather than District Council level, and notes that Stop Stansted 
Expansion has written to the Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and 

Page 104Page 492



Local Government, the Rt Hon Sajid Javid MP, to notify him that unless he 
takes responsibility for the latest Stansted Airport planning application out of 
the hands of Uttlesford District Council (UDC), SSE will seek a High Court 
judicial review,

ii. notes and seconds the position of East Herts Council’s response dated 28th 
March 2018, which is to reserve its position and defer its response:

b. “…in respect of environmental impact issues until such time as work being 
commissioned by Uttlesford District Council to assess the evidence submitted by 
STAL in this respect has been completed and suitable time for this District’s 
consideration of the full environmental evidence base being allowed”;

c. And considers that the increase in airport capacity may not comply with the 
requirements of the Climate Change Act.

i. notes and seconds the position of East Herts Council’s response dated 28th 
March 2018, which is to reserve its position and defer its response:

d. “until such time as Essex and Hertfordshire County Councils, as Transport 
Authorities, have concluded their assessment of the evidence submitted by STAL in 
this respect and any further supporting evidence commissioned by the Transport 
Authorities has been completed, with suitable time for this District’s consideration of 
such being allowed”;

e. And expresses concern that the existing road and rail network would be 
compromised by the additional traffic created by the additional demand from 
passengers (the application being so as to increase passenger numbers from 
35mmpa to 43 mppa), and by the additional demand from additional staff (MAG 
forecasts the creation of 5,000 new jobs). The rail network has limited capacity on the 
line between London and Cambridge, and the capacity available to general travellers 
would be reduced by additional trains being used to serve the extra passengers and 
staff of airport.

i. expresses grave concern that whilst the presence of the airport in the near 
area does bring some pecuniary reward to the region in terms of employment, 
nonetheless it also brings the negative impact of additional pressures on the 
region’s road and rail transport networks with associated increases in 
pollution, and increased noise pollution. Thus, in the event that the permission 
for the planning application should be granted, Saffron Walden Town Council 
would seek the inclusion of significant levels of mitigation within any 
associated S.106 agreement.

Sampfords Parish Council

Currently on “rat run” to Haverhill for passengers and airport workers.  Based on planned 
increase of 8 million passengers per year and 5,000 new employees this translates to an 
increase of around 6000 extra vehicles using local road network.  We believe this is 
unsustainable and object until a detailed sustainable plan and agreement for local roads can 
be put in place to protect the safety and wellbeing of our residents.

Shalford Parish Council

I am writing to you on behalf of Shalford Parish Council with regard to Stansted Airport’s 
planning application, reference number UTT/18/0460/FUL.

Page 105Page 493



Firstly, we are concerned that an application of this magnitude is being considered by 
Uttlesford District Council. We believe that the proposed increase in flight/passenger 
numbers over that currently seen, make this a National Infrastructure project and should be 
referred to the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government.

Secondly, we are concerned that UDC are “Fast Tracking” this application. It is a very 
complex and technical application which will take time for those affected to fully evaluate and 
respond to. Furthermore, Stansted still has significant permitted capacity and we therefore 
see no reason to “Fast Track” this application unless it is to avoid the implications of the 
Government’s new Aviation Strategy which is due to be published within the next year.

Thirdly, we are concerned that the rhetoric is around the increase in flight/passenger 
numbers over that currently permitted rather than over the number that is currently occurring. 
We in Shalford have experienced significant increase in aircraft noise over recent times and 
therefore must judge any permitted increase against what is experienced now, which we 
consider on the limit of acceptability already. Any increase would be unacceptable.

Fourthly, we are concerned by Stansted Airports growth predictions which appear to be 
significantly out of step with other predictions

Finally, we are concerned about the impact that increased flight numbers will have on the 
roads in our area. The A120 is already highly congested at peak times at both the Braintree 
and Bishop Stortford ends. There is also the impact of both Braintree and Uttlesford District 
Council Draft Local Plan proposal to build new communities at “West of Braintree” and 
“Easton Park”. However, there are no concrete plans at this point in time to upgrade this part 
of the A120 or its intersection with the M11.

We therefore call on Uttlesford District Council to refuse this planning application.

Stansted Parish Council

NSIP

Has regional and national significance.  The impacts will be far beyond Uttlesford.  Just 18% 
of the airport’s employees are resident in Uttlesford.  Analysis of airport noise complaints 
shows a wide geographical spread covering all parts of Essex, North and East Hertfordshire, 
South Cambridgeshire and Suffolk.  CAA passenger survey report shows that 29% of 
customers came from the E of England, 60.6% from London and SE.

Infrastructure changes are based on 80-90% of its theoretical capacity, enabling 281 – 316k 
movements (excluding night flights).  The reduction from 44.5–43mppa and 285-274k ATMs 
was secured merely by adjusting down the period covered by a year.

If the 10k special flights become regular passenger or cargo flights, the planes would be 
bigger and noisier.  If they are not available to businesses they could move elsewhere with 
loss of some employment.

The 1985 Phase 1 infrastructure works to handle 8mppa and 120k ATMs were in reality in 
excess of what was needed.  Similarly for Phase 2 expansion to 15mppa and subsequently 
to 25mppa, and which to this day remain to be completed.  For 35mppa, no additional 
infrastructure works were required.  If STAL can now get planning permission to build 

Page 106Page 494



additional taxiways and stands before they are needed, it makes the inevitable next planning 
application beyond 43mppa much more difficult to refuse.

Prematurity

Premature in advance of:
- Airports National Policy Statement final version
- New Aviation White Paper
- New draft local plan for Uttlesford

No operational reason for a swift decision – 35mppa will not be reached until 2023 (STAL) or 
2033 (DfT).  No lengthy construction works are proposed.  For the 35mppa application there 
was a week of public speaking.

Methodology

It is difficult to see how preparation of the ES (following receipt of UDC’s scoping opinion) 
could have been completed in 2 months.   No one is taken in for a moment by the pretence 
that STAL has listened to the concerns of local residents about an increase in aircraft 
movements for any reason other than it perceived a difficulty obtaining permission for such 
an increase at the present time.  Bringing forward the principal assessment year to 2028 so 
that the number of aircraft movements can remain within the existing cap is simply a ruse.

Doubts STAL is adhering to ES best practice standards.  The environmental impacts of the 
“Do Minimum” scenario were assessed 12 years ago and will not be felt in full for another 5 
years.  It must be unusual to bring forward a planning application when the existing 
permission can still accommodate 5 years growth.

Assessment must take into account both the future impacts from already approved 
developments and the forecast impacts of the proposed development.  Only when these 2 
sets of impacts are aggregated can the overall effect be assessed.  The EIA methodology 
does not allow this.

Roads and Transport

There is increasing pressure on local roads in Bishop’s Stortford, Elsenham and Stansted 
Mountfitchet.  The anticipated growth in passenger numbers and employees is substantial.  

Increases in rail capacity and coach services may increase the percentage of passengers 
and possibly employees arriving by public transport.  A high percentage of those arriving by 
road will use the M11 and A120, but question the anticipated low impacts on the M11 J8 
northern and southern approached predicted for 43mppa.  Passenger traffic arriving and 
leaving the airport by road appears likely to increase by over 60%.  Some of this increase 
must impact on local roads.

Do not accept as credible the projected 2-3% increase in traffic on local roads predicted for 
35-43mppa when for up to 35mppa increases were up to 30% (Church Road) and 18% 
(Lower Street and Cambridge Road).  Do not accept that all, or almost all, of increases in 
traffic on local roads is housing related.  Increases to 35mppa fail to take into account the 
effect on the Grove Hill / Elsenham connection.  Off-airport parking is a problem – STAL can 

Page 107Page 495



help by reducing parking charges, by funding enforcement restrictions and by bus service 
subsidy.

Stansted Express must continue to serve Stansted Mountfitchet.  UDC must insist on STAL 
funding a full perimeter road, or other measures, to take traffic away from local communities.

It would be more consistent and balanced to use a correlation based on passenger number 
increases.

Air Noise

The “Future of UK Aviation” shows that the Government is committed to looking for a new 
approach to how sustainable growth should be defined in terms of noise and how best to 
monitor and report aviation noise.  The approach used in this application is based on a 30 
year old methodology which is deeply flawed and out of date.

LAeqT is an average – it is calculated, not measured.  It is absolutely not a measure of what 
people actually hear, and the Government recognises that the value of LAeqT does not 
necessarily reflect all aspects of perception of noise.  The Courts attach much more weight 
to the subjective impressions of people whose properties are affected by noise.

CAP 1506 only advises that it is appropriate to use LAeqT, but does not suggest that 
evidence based decisions should rely exclusively on it.  The Lands Tribunal sets far more 
store on subjective impressions than on the calculations of acoustic experts when dealing 
with Part 1 claims under the Land Compensation Act 1973.

The second pillar of the ICAO’s “Balanced Approach” also mentions compensation, but this 
has been omitted by STAL no doubt because of its well documented track record of wrongly 
rejecting compensation claims arising from permissions dating back to 1999.

The “Future of UK Aviation” says:
“Even as aircraft are getting quieter, recent evidence suggests people are becoming more 
sensitive to noise at lower levels and that the number of flights overhead can be a more 
significant factor than the average noise level.  There remains a challenge when 
technological improvements in noise reduction do not appear to be sufficient to deal with the 
negative impacts on some communities’ quality of life”

The planning application contravenes Local Plan Policy SP11, contains no proposals to 
achieve any noise reductions and there is no mention of compensation.  There are no 
proposals to reduce the adverse effects of aircraft operations on the amenity of local 
residents.

The argument that more flights will result in less noise is rejected for the following reasons:
- It defies common sense
- Averaging metrics bear no relation to the noise that people experience
- It is based on self-interested claims of aircraft manufacturers
- It is based on airline fleet modernisation assumptions which could change

The Planning Statement conclusions are deliberately misleading.  A change of 3dB 
calculated using averaging methodology could represent a doubling of aircraft movements.

Page 108Page 496



Air Quality and Public Health

UDC’s Air Quality Annual Status Report confirms that a number of locations within Stansted 
Mountfitchet either exceed or are approaching WHO limits.  Poor air quality contributes to 
the onset of heart disease, cancer and respiratory diseases.  Air pollution affects the most 
vulnerable – children and older people and those with heart and lung conditions.  There is 
ever increasing pressure on the NHS.  Expansion of Stansted will increase air pollution and 
will result in increased numbers of road vehicles entering and leaving the airport.  Use of car 
parking bays has not been evaluated.

Housing

Compared to 2015, 43mppa would result in 5,200 extra on-airport employees, 4,200 extra 
indirect and induced jobs.  An extra 2,000 employees would live in Uttlesford if existing 
trends continue.  The Northern Ancillary Area would result in 2,900 employees.  With the 
large number of houses allocated to Uttlesford, these numbers may perhaps be comfortably 
accommodated, but this needs to be demonstrated.  

Socio-Economic Impacts

If this development is allowed to proceed, over two thirds of the extra 6.8m leisure travellers 
will be outbound, increasing Stansted’s contribution to the net tourism deficit.  According to 
the ES, the main destination for inbound tourists will be London, making the economic 
benefits for Uttlesford appear somewhat scant by comparison.

Re inward investment and productivity, the ES relies heavily on two pieces of research 
published by economic forecasting bodies in 2006 and 2009, before the full effects of the 
financial crisis were understood and before Brexit.

It is noted from the ES that most of the other relatively modest perceived benefits from this 
proposed development accrue to areas beyond Uttlesford, particularly North London.  There 
are no good reasons to approve further growth of one of the most environmentally polluting 
industries in this largely rural location.  UDC will not maintain a diverse economic base if it 
becomes more dependent on, and in hock to, a single major employer.

Land Compensation

This topic is incorrectly ignored although it is a material planning consideration.  It should be 
covered because it is an important tool in the management of air noise in ICAO’s “Balanced 
Approach”.  Should planning permission be granted which includes qualifying infrastructure 
works under the 1973 Act, an appropriate S106 agreement should be a prior condition to 
prevent any future avoidance by the compensating authority of its legal obligations under the 
Act.

2nd response:

Additional information received at the request of Natural England. Noted that Stop Stansted 
Expansion is in the final stages of preparing to apply for Judicial Review.  Unacceptable 
timing for further public consultation and contravenes UDC's own policy on Community 
Involvement. Agreed that this does not mitigate any of the comments made in the Council's 
submission. Further consideration must be given to the local highway network, particularly 

Page 109Page 497



with regard to the proposed re- development of the Airport north side. Dist Cllr Dean 
commented that the M11 J9 should also be reviewed.

3rd response:  

In the letter to Uttlesford District Council dated 5 July 2018 Stansted Airport Ltd ("STAL") 
relies heavily on the government's policy statement "Making Best Use of Existing Runways" 
published in June 2018 to justify its planning application. However, it is far from clear that the 
latest policy statement from the government does in fact provide support for this planning 
application as claimed by STAL.

The application is for an increase in the passenger cap from 35 million passengers per 
annum (mppa) to 43 mppa, but importantly it also seeks permission for new infrastructure in 
the form of taxiways and aircraft stands. The effect of this infrastructure, if approved, would 
be to increase the capacity of the existing runway to handle additional flights in the future.

The June policy statement says that "the government is supportive of airports beyond 
Heathrow making best use of their existing runways". It absolutely DOES NOT say that the 
government supports additions to infrastructure to increase the capacity of existing runways. 
In fact, it says precisely the opposite. The policy statement explicitly refers to airports making 
more intensive use of their existing infrastructure. There is an important distinction to be 
made here between "making best use of existing runways" and "increasing the capacity of 
existing runways".

There is no justification whatsoever for STAL seeking to extend government policy to cover 
additional infrastructure in this way. In paragraph 1.26 of the policy statement the 
government makes it clear what it means by making best use of existing runways by 
referring only to increases in "either the passenger or air traffic movement caps". There is no 
mention anywhere of additional infrastructure.

Furthermore, if, as STAL claims in its planning application, the proposed increase in the 
passenger cap can be achieved without any increase in the existing air traffic movement 
cap, then there should be no requirement for any additional infrastructure. The current air 
traffic movement cap of 264,000 per annum was approved by the government in 2008 on the 
basis that it did not need any additional infrastructure. It follows therefore that, as the 
requested increase in the passenger cap requires neither an increase in the air traffic 
movement cap nor any additional infrastructure, the only possible explanation for the extra 
taxiways and aircraft stands is to provide a basis for further expansion beyond 43 mppa and 
264.000 air traffic movements. STAL should be asked to publish details of what the real 
capacity of the airport would be in terms of passenger numbers and air traffic movements if 
the additional infrastructure were to be approved.

It is evident from this analysis that STAL's planning application as it stands falls outside the 
scope of current government policy and is therefore beyond the competence of the local 
planning authority to determine it. It is accordingly the judgement of Stansted Mountfitchet 
Parish Council that this planning application should immediately be referred to national 
government for determination.

Page 110Page 498



4th Response:

We refer to our previous comments in respect of the above planning application (attached for 
easy reference) and note that Uttlesford District Council (UDC) has set a date for 
determining it on Wednesday 17 October.  It is unclear how the process of considering and 
determining this application can be safely concluded when the purpose of the proposed 
development cannot be as stated by the applicant.  UDC’s own description of the application 
on its website is misleading when it says “Airfield works …… to enable combined airfield 
operations of 274,000 aircraft movements ……” – the airport already has permission for this 
number of aircraft movements.

In evidence to the 2007 Public Inquiry into the Stansted Generation 1 Planning Appeal the 
advocate for Stansted Airport Limited (STAL) emphasised in his closing submissions that no 
additional physical development was required for the proposed limit of 264,000 ATM’s pa.  
An extract taken from those closing submissions is attached.  It is the duty of an advocate 
not to mislead the Inquiry as made clear in the attached extract of a note published by 
Landmark Chambers.  It is reasonable to assume therefore that STAL’s advocate did not 
mislead the 2007 Public Inquiry.

The statement in the current planning application that the proposed additional airfield 
infrastructure is required to enable an unchanged limit of total ATM’s to be handled is 
incompatible with the evidence given to the 2007 Public Inquiry.  The only possible 
conclusion to be drawn from this discrepancy is that the purpose of the proposed physical 
development cannot be as stated.  In other words, if STAL’s advocate did not mislead 
the 2007 Public Inquiry, then STAL must be misleading UDC now.

It is difficult to see how UDC can proceed to determine this application without first obtaining 
a satisfactory explanation regarding the real purpose for the proposed additional airfield 
infrastructure.  When this additional information is received it should be made available for 
further public consultation prior to any determination of the application.

Stebbing Parish Council

We wish to confirm Stebbing Parish Council’s support of the Stop Stansted Expansion (SSE) 
submission in opposing this application by MAG for an uplift in the passenger cap from 
35million passengers per annum (mppa) to 43mppa.

We especially wish to emphasise those areas of this application which would have the most 
damaging impact on our rural community, totally contradicting Uttlesford DC’s claim:

"By 2033, Uttlesford will continue to be one of the most desirable places to live and work in 
the UK. Uttlesford will be a place where residents choose to live, where communities thrive, 
are healthy and safe, jobs and services are well connected, places have character and 
communities create and feel a ‘pride of place’. 'Spatial Vision' in the Uttlesford proposed 
Local Plan 2018

 Traffic problems: The UDC Local Plan has a strategy for growth comprising three 
Garden Towns, two of which will be located along the A120 corridor, east of M11/J8. 
West of Braintree Garden town will be adjacent to Stebbing and the application 
recommends the new town population to access Stansted Airport for employment 
and travel. All movements would be along an already overcrowded A120, resulting in 
chaos. Even now, we experience drivers frantically seeking alternative routes along 

Page 111Page 499



country lanes and our village street whenever a hold‐up occurs on the A120. This is 
not only disturbing but dangerous to our many walkers and cyclists.

 Noise problems: Since the routing of aircraft via Clacton, aircraft noise complaints 
from Stebbing have increased by 400%. We are constantly bombarded by flights at 
barely two‐minute intervals from before 6.00am until well after midnight. Increased 
passenger numbers and flights on top of our current misery are impossible to 
imagine.

 Pollution: Approval of this planning application would result in significant increases in 
aircraft movements and airport‐related road traffic, both would result in increased 
local air pollution. The adverse health impacts of aircraft pollution, including noise 
pollution, are wide ranging and can lead to serious respiratory and cardiovascular 
diseases. The effects of stress and anxiety are equally prominent among adverse 
health impacts. We agree with SSE there is a statutory requirement for an 
assessment of risks to health to be carried out in in respect of this planning 
application. It is clearly nonsense for MAG to state there would be ‘no significant 
adverse environmental effects’ with an increase to 43mppa.

Takeley Parish Council

Object.

Application Process:  Takeley Parish Council would like to highlight the fact that airports are 
a national concern, as are railways and motorways and that UDC does not have the required 
resources to determine both the National infrastructure requirements around the Stansted 
Airport Ltd (STAL) proposals at the same time as it is completing its own Local District Plan.  

The application is seen as premature as permission is already in place for 35 million 
passengers per annum (mppa) and the Government statistics say that the throughput of 35 
million passengers will not be reached until 2033.    

It would appear that this application is being rushed through to avoid any conflict with the 
Government’s Select Committee Draft Report Statement which is due on 24 July 2018 and 
which will outline lower noise thresholds for rural areas and greater consideration with regard 
to quality of life & health impacts. 

Takeley Parish Council agrees with the statement in the existing local plan that the Airport 
must be acknowledged as an “Airport in the Countryside

SURFACE ACCESS:  National Concerns with J8 and the M11

Particular attention needs to be taken of the report sent to Gordon Glendale at UDC from 
Walker Engineering, consultants in highways, bridges and underwater engineering, dated 
13th December 2017, which although written in response to the Little Easton proposals also 
highlights the parallel issues with the Airport re: concerns to the local road network and the 
A120.

Walker Engineering have more recently stated that the planning application for Stansted is 
too simplistic in how it deals with the projected growth in background traffic for what is a 
major application.  Proposals need to be based on a proper traffic model which should have 
been commissioned by STAL. 

Page 112Page 500



The application is deficient in terms of supporting traffic evidence and a proper model should 
be provided to tell us what will happen.   STAL needs to provide this data.   This STAL 
submission will also need to be assessed against the expected housing in the new Local 
Plan traffic modelling as a sensitivity test and/or adequacy that capacity can be contained.

Highways England have also indicated concerns about Junction 8 that there was not an 
obvious solution to solve further increased traffic movement.  Concern has also been 
expressed that outdated travel data is being used to forecast future traffic movements, due 
to the timescale that has been presented.

In support of the above Railton road transport consultants were commissioned to carry out a 
study of the local road network on behalf of Takeley Parish Council in 2016 as part of 
Uttlesford Strategic land assessment.

The report concluded the following points under reference 13.19:-

• Junction 8 of the M11 is currently congested and proposed development would 
significantly increase queues and delays on the B1256 approach to this junction.  
The current proposals to improve the performance of Junction 8 of the M11 provide 
little additional capacity on other junctions including the B1256 arm. 

• Observations of traffic growth on the A120 through Junction 8 of the M11 suggests 
that previous modelling of the junction has significantly underestimated traffic growth.  
This again reflects what the other travel expert has highlighted.

Takeley Parish Council noted a more general point that the A120 Airport access point from 
the J8 roundabout flows through on a curvature that does not make the existing access 
particularly resilient to tail back on the current junction 8 roundabout if problems arise on the 
M11.  The access from J8 and the volumes of extra traffic at J8 will need proper assessment 
on all formal access arms.  The health and safety impacts of the extra proposed traffic that 
will be generated to the airport have not been considered, nor either sustainability or 
capacity. (Planning Policy GEN1).

Links to the Airport  - Stansted Express Trains

MAG’s general assumption is that the rail and road network will economically accommodate 
the proposals of STAL.  Capacity will be limited to the one available train link at any one time 
with trains running every 15 minutes.  With only one train link into Stansted airport it is 
difficult to note how the frequency of this service can naturally be expanded.  The existing 
Stansted to London railway is already overloaded.

Local concerns Re: Airport Traffic with regard to congestion and Inadequate Road 
Infrastructure.  Takeley Parish Council highlights infrastructure concerns re the effect of 
increased passenger visits to the airport on the B1256 which will correlate into additional 
traffic. The B1256 route though a 30mph residential area does have a direct link to the 
Airport and will be severely impacted if the A120 cannot sustain traffic.  The B1256 is the 
main access route from the M11 to Takeley and surrounding villages. Coopers End 
roundabout, the smallest and last roundabout that accesses the Airport, is also the access to 
the Airport from Molehill Green, Thaxted, Elsenham, etc so there are over-riding concerns 
about congestion and a general lack of detail in the planning application about how the extra 

Page 113Page 501



traffic will impact on traffic flow.  The B1256 is currently used as a rat-run at peak times to 
avoid congestion on the A120.

Sustainability and capacity of the local road networks does not appear to be a key feature of 
STAL proposals.  Concerns are already being expressed that residents are being disturbed 
by associated noise, fumes and vibrations connected with the increasing volume of airport 
coaches and other traffic on the B1256.  STAL’s application has not addressed how it will 
mitigate containment to the main A120 route and how other proposals being considered in 
the local plan will fit around STAL’s proposals. 

Policy Gen 1 states that traffic generated by development must be capable of being 
accommodated on the surrounding transport network. Compensation packages to local 
residents have never been a primary concern of STAL who for a number of years have 
refused their obligation to compensate residents under the Land Compensation Act. It was 
only after a legal challenge judgment that STAL started the process.

NOISE POLLUTION & CONCERNS ABOUT FURTHER NIGHT FLIGHTS:  Takeley Parish 
Council strongly opposes further night time flights.  The impacts are always worse in the 
summer months when windows are open and there is concern that sleep disturbance will 
cause further loss of amenity.  Under no circumstances should the S106 agreement be 
utilised to allow removal of the condition that prevents STAL asking for more night flights 
(Appendix D of the planning statement).  This is another reason why the planning application 
should be called in.  Takeley Parish Council feels a redefined smaller noise envelope 
superseding the present one. This is due to the Government recognising that the onset of 
significant annoyance is lower than that used for the 35 mppa permission. 

MAG’s own figures show that since they became the owners of STAL there has been a 
continued increase of complaints about noise rising from 930 complaints in 2013 to 4,170 in 
2016.

There are three schools in Takeley – studies have shown that education is impaired in areas 
of increased noise.  Takeley Parish Council would prefer noise assessments to be based on 
the Government’s latest regulations which will be formalized in July 2018.

The Parish Council is aware that in addition to traffic noise the sound of aircraft taking off 
has been described as deafening by residents.  Most complaints are received in the summer 
months when windows and doors need to be opened.  In summary it is impossible now to 
have a telephone conversation in the garden with the constant stream of roaring engines 
muffling out conversation.   Takeley already suffers from ground noise which will be further 
exacerbated by the new taxi-ways and stands. 

This is an ongoing amenity issue and the effects should not be underestimated with regard 
to health and wellbeing.  The relentless noise is constant and as one complainant stated 
mirrors established torture techniques, as inadvertent as that may be.   

The Government’s revised Aviation Policy Framework (APF) is due by the end of the year.  
The revised APF will also tackle CO2 emissions and introduce health and Quality of Life 
impacts together with lower thresholds for the onset of aircraft noise annoyance and 
recognize that increased numbers of aircraft movements at Stansted (44% higher than 

Page 114Page 502



today’s level) is a more significant factor than average noise levels with the low background 
noise levels of the rural surroundings around Stansted Airport. 

Poor Air Quality:  The District Local Plan 2005 noted that Uttlesford’s air quality management 
strategy identified that, based on traffic forecasts at that time, poor air quality was anticipated 
alongside the M11 and the new A120.  Increased passenger vehicles travelling to the airport 
along both routes would mean the quality of the air will be further depleted.   Takeley Parish 
Council is concerned about Hatfield Forest, an SSSI close to the B1256, and how 
concentrated air pollution over time will affect natural habitats and bio-diversity.  It should be 
taken into consideration that the Government is changing the guidance on air quality.

Policy ENV13 – Exposure to Poor Air Quality:  The policy states that “Development that 
would involve users being exposed on an extended long-term basis to poor air quality 
outdoors near ground level will not be permitted”.  A zone 100 metres on either side of the 
central reservation of the M11 and a zone 35 metres either side of the centre of the new 
A120 have been identified on the proposals map as particular areas to which this policy 
applies. 

Takeley Parish Council note that the air pollution of cars at ground level will provide a 
greater intensity or protraction of fumes as the visitor numbers to the airport increases.   

COMMUNITY ISSUES:  

AIRPORT RELATED PARKING AND BREACHES IN MAG’S CURRENT PLANNING 
POLICY:  In addition to the points above, the airport has not complied with its current 
planning permission to contain all airport related parking on site (Policy T3) and objection to 
expansion is also based on this failure.

The Local Plan states scale and management of car parking needs to be carefully controlled 
in order to maximise the percentage of air passengers using public transport to get to or from 
the airport.  This would not be practicable if the provision of car parking became fragmented 
and included off airport sites.  It would undermine the airport surface access strategy agreed 
by the multi-agency airport area transport forum.  

Takeley Parish Council has consistently notified Uttlesford Enforcement Department of 
ongoing problems with airport related parking as the Airport has experienced growth in its 
passenger numbers.   However, the Airport has not been proactive in helping to stop the 
problem or in ensuring it is meeting its minimum statutory requirements that exist both under 
its current planning application and also under the general terms of the National Planning 
Policy Framework.

Significantly many of the illegal airport related parking operators continue to set up in the 
Countryside Protection Zone consequently leaving UDC/or the taxpayer to pay the brunt of 
resulting legal costs in order to ensure the preservation of the surrounding area.

Footpath provision in to the Stansted Airport site has always been regarded as illegal for 
security reasons, yet it breaches national security policies by allowing vehicles to park on 
peripheral boundaries.  How does STAL explain this to the public against the backdrop of 
decreasing amenity and congestion?

Page 115Page 503



Problems arise from the unofficial car parking offered being significantly cheaper than that 
contained on the airport site, which for consumers becomes a preferable option.   The airport 
is culpable of driving market conditions for these illegal operators – ultimately without the 
airport, the problem would not exist.   

Omission on the S106 Agreement:  Takeley Parish Council is unhappy that STAL appears to 
be dictating the terms of the S106 agreement and would like the Planning Authority to 
consider in depth those matters which STAL are asking to be excluded.

Overall the application lacks feasibility studies on the national and local road network 
problems, unestablished alternative travel links and awareness that residents are 
experiencing ongoing amenity issues that are not resolved. Takeley Parish Council is 
concerned that expansion of the airport will put more pressure on the already overloaded 
health facilities that exist in this area. Policy Gen 6 – ‘infrastructure provision to support 
development’ - can no longer be overlooked. 

For all the reasons stated above Takeley Parish Council objects to this Planning application 
and supports SSE’s view, along with others, that the application should be determined by the 
Secretary of State, allowing UDC to focus on the priority of finalising the Local District Plan 
approved.

2nd response:

Please note that Takeley Parish Council require further extension to the above application to 
review this 900 page document against the original document of 2930 pages.   Extension to 
12th September extension is not adequate in light of the volume of documentation.

Please note this month Takeley have been requested to review the Local Plan, The 
Bonningtons application i.e. 275 units and the Gladmans application i.e. 135 units amongst 
the various other village planning applications.  Many of the councillors have been away as 
August is a traditional holiday period.   

Takeley Parish Council are extremely concerned that Uttlesford are even attempting to 
review this application and that the timeframe for public consultation of 4 weeks is far too 
narrow.  Takeley Parish Council believe this application should be reviewed in alignment 
with the Government aviation policy which is due to be published at the end of the year.   On 
this basis alone Takeley Parish Council see a material consideration to defer making a 
decision, as any decision may not wholly be met by the requirements or policy from Central 
Government on matters such as Co2 emissions, air quality, noise etc. 

Ultimately this could lead to Uttlesford making a decision that could in the future be deemed 
illegal and result in an unnecessary cost to the local tax payer.  Takeley do not feel that the 
statutory requirements for consultation are currently being met under this application due to 
the current timeframes set by Uttlesford.   

In particular Takeley would prefer any decision to be made following publication of 
Government policy.    In the meantime, the Council will consider the pending 12th 
September deadline and any initial observations that may be conveyed.     However, 
highlight again the inadequate consultation period in terms of this proposal being considered 
comprehensively.

Page 116Page 504



Thaxted Parish Council

Thaxted Parish Council wish to support Cllr Martin Foley comments which in summary are:

There are concern from residents and some councillors that the application to expand 
Stansted Airport is being rushed through.

Stansted Airport/Manchester Airports Group, are seeking to build extra taxiways and aircraft 
stands and to increase the passenger throughput at Stansted to 43 million passengers per 
annum (mppa). By comparison, Stansted handled 25.9 mppa last year. They have already 
authority to go to 35million.

If the application were approved, it would mean a 66% increase in passengers and bigger 
planes - more noise, more pollution for Thaxted.

There is call that the Stansted Airport Expansion plans should be determined nationally 
rather than locally.

Main adverse impacts of increased aircraft movement will be in relation to noise, local air 
quality and CO2 emissions

Main impacts of increased passengers will be in relation to road traffic congestion and 
knock-on effects on air quality Proposed development is clearly a Nationally Significant 
Infrastructure Project under s.23(5) of Planning Act, 2008.

Implications of development extend well beyond Uttlesford noise, traffic, CO2 emissions, 
economic, employment etc.

Concerns about UDC resources/competence to determine this application the largest since 
G1 in such a rush.  Concerns about lack of transparency, prematurity, lack of engagement, 
limited opportunity for proper scrutiny.  Concern that the application is viewed as a done 
deal.

SSEs evidence for the above is set out letter to Secretary of State available in full on SSE 
website

Theydon Bois Parish Council

Theydon Bois is already subject to levels of air pollution from the present flight paths and the 
Parish Council, therefore, objects to any attendant increase in both noise and air pollution 
levels resulting from the increase in air traffic movements.  Additional numbers of 
passengers travelling by car to the airport may also place pressure on congestion levels on 
the M11, which could further increase the amount of road traffic between Loughton and 
Epping, through the junction of Coppice Row and Piercing Hill in Theydon Bois, when this 
route is used as an alternative to the motorway.  We are, therefore, of the view that the level 
of proposed expansion could prove unsustainable in terms of the increased levels of air 
pollution and car traffic movements, even at the relative distance between our village and 
Stansted Airport, to the possible detriment of both the local environment and the adjacent 
SSSI of Epping Forest.

Page 117Page 505



Thorley Parish Council

Should be referred to SoS and should not be fast tracked.  There is a particular problem in 
Thorley with aircraft noise.   Monitors in the Parish have shown this to be an increasing 
problem.  Whilst more flights will mean more noise, night flights in particular cause the most 
disturbance.  In the circumstances we object strongly to Manchester Airports Group seeking 
to be allowed to lobby for more night time flights.  Increased night flights would, in our view, 
lead to an intolerable level of noise in Thorley and its rural surrounds.  Any increase in 
airport related traffic would place an increased burden on local roads, which already suffer 
from periods of heavy congestion.  Proposed local housing development together with an 
increase in airport traffic could cause transport gridlock. A careful review of local transport 
infrastructure in and around the airport and nearby villages and townships is long overdue.  
The Rail network beyond Uttlesford especially needs to be considered carefully.   

2nd response:

We consider the fast tracking of planning application UTT/18/0460/FUL is wrong.  In our 
view the timescale does not allow for proper scrutiny and the current ceiling will be adequate 
for some years.  

We have problems with aircraft noise, particularly night flights.  Any increase in airport 
related traffic would place an increased burden on local roads, which already suffer from 
periods of heavy congestion.  Proposed local housing development together with an 
increase in airport traffic could cause transport gridlock. A careful review of local transport 
infrastructure in and around the airport and nearby villages and townships is long overdue.   

Ware Town Council

Increase in traffic to surrounding areas and associated emissions.

Wendens Ambo Parish Council

Wendens Ambo Parish Council objects to application UTT/18/0460/FUL - Stansted Airport 
Limited on the following grounds;

i. Insufficient infrastructure -particularly the road and rail network.
ii. This application is premature, current permission permits sufficient room for 

expansion.
iii. The Parish Council believes that this application should be considered by the 

Secretary of State not the local District Council.

2nd response:

Wendens Ambo Parish Council believes that this application is premature and any planning 
is based on projections which do not stand up to investigation. It is suggested that this 
Planning Application should be referred back to the Secretary of State in order that a 
decision based on facts can be reached.

Our main concerns are -

There are more than 2000 Documents on file as at this date relating to this planning 
application.  Interestingly there are many identical letters of support generated from people 

Page 118Page 506



who might be employees at Stansted Airport and who may have been encouraged to write in 
support of this Proposal by their employers. This is as clear an example of "vote rigging" as 
one would see. 

It is suggested that Uttlesford District Council have neither the experience nor the expertise 
in dealing with Large Proposals involving complex Airport Operations such as this.

Figures which describe numbers of Flights and Passenger Volumes are speculative at best. 
What verifiable evidence is there to confirm these figures?

The impact of Brexit is not considered. What happens if Brexit means that there are 
significantly less flights than now?

It is obvious from very recent problems when the M11 motorway was closed that there is 
only one route to Stansted Airport from the South and one route from the North. This 
highlights that there is not an adequate infrastructure in place to support the Airport. The 
significant improvement of the infrastructure is one of the major elements of a believable 
plan.

The Rail Company Great Anglia Abellio have confirmed that they will not increase the 
number of trains running from London to Stansted Airport. This adds yet another strain on 
the travel network Train links to and from Stansted Airport.

Widdington Parish Council

Should be determined nationally and not locally.  Insufficient infrastructure to support 
development.  Premature as will not reach cap until 2023, or 2033 using government’s 
figures.

2nd response:  

Widdington Parish Council objects to this application. The application is premature.

According to MAG's own calculations Stansted will not reach the present cap of 35mppa 
until 2023 and according to the Government's latest forecasts, published as recently as 
October 2017, Stansted will not reach 35mppa until 2033, so an increase to 43mppa is not 
currently warranted.

The council notes that the Government is currently consulting on a new aviation strategy for 
the UK and expects to publish this by the end of this year and it would appear that MAG is 
trying to rush the application through to avoid any government decisions on CO2 emissions, 
air quality, airport policy in the South East, aircraft noise at night, night flight policy in the 
South east with the possible banning of night flights from Heathrow Airport, aircraft noise and 
height levels.

The council believes that it is inappropriate for a local district council to be determining such 
an application, decisions such as these should be determined at central government level, in 
line with agreed airport transport policies. It is unrealistic to consider that the 2930 pages of 
the initial document, alongside the additional 900 pages added on 23rd July are 
processable, and to include a deadline of 30th August, during the month that traditionally 

Page 119Page 507



town and parish councils do not meet is unreasonable, as is the £300 cost to obtain a paper 
copy of the application.

The proposed expansion is unsupported by infrastructure, the road access to the airport is 
regularly congested and the increase in transport movements would be catastrophic for local 
residents and those accessing the airport. Quality of life for local communities would be 
negatively impacted in many ways due to an increase in noise, pollution, road congestion 
and pressure on natural resources.

The council also objects to Stansted Airport seeking to overturn legal conditions which 
currently prevent it from lobbying for more night flights.

Page 120Page 508



PRESSURE GROUPS
Stop Stansted Expansion

(150-160 page report dated 30.04.18, incorporating corrections 18.05.18)

Procedure for Determination
The application meets the criteria for an NSIP under Sections 14 and 23(5) of the Planning 
Act 2008.  It is airport related development with the capability of increasing the number of 
passengers by at least 10mppa or the number of cargo movements by an extra 
10,000/annum.  Section 35 of the Act (SoS direction) is engaged by seeing MAG’s project in 
its wider context – the “post-2028 proposed project”, emerging Government aviation policy 
and associated DfT forecasts to 2050.

Further grounds for call-in exist under Sections 76A and 77 of the 1990 Town and Country 
Planning Act, as even the applicant states that the proposal is of both national and regional 
importance, including having significant effects across a wider area than a single local 
authority.

Inadequacies of the Environmental Statement
The ES should cover, as a minimum, the period to 2030 to be consistent with the airport’s 
Sustainable Development Plan (SDP) which MAG now accepts is a masterplan.  The TA 
requires assessment to at least 2033 to accord with the end of the relevant local plan period.  
The Government’s planning horizon for airport development has typically been 15-30 years.

The ES needs to provide an assessment of impacts through to 2033 so that the effects of 
43mppa can be considered alongside the impacts associated with the implementation of the 
Uttlesford Local Plan and other local plans in the surrounding area.

TA and ES generally assess specific housing impacts only in respect of those houses in 
Uttlesford for which planning permission has been granted or resolved to be granted.  
Otherwise, future predictions are based on TEMPro.  If road impacts are understated, then 
so will be air quality and other knock-on effects.

The short planning horizon and the cursory examination of cumulative impacts will have 
resulted in a significant underestimation of the environmental effects to the extent that the 
ES, as it presently stands, is not fit for purpose.

Prematurity
Two of the main pillars for determining the application – the local plan and Government 
policy – are currently subject to significant uncertainty.  MAG may be seeking to pre-empt an 
outcome of the Government’s aviation strategy that seeks to protect the business case for 
the 3rd runway at Heathrow.  MAG has misinterpreted the Regulation 18 Local Plan 
Objective 2c which only supports development to the permitted throughput of 35mppa.  
There is no clear Government policy on the extent and timing of further Stansted expansion.

It is highly unusual for the Government to publish a “minded to be supportive” statement in 
its call for evidence of July 2017 at the start of its consultation on the new aviation strategy.  
This is directly contrary to existing Government policy in the APF which requires a thorough 

Page 121Page 509



understanding of impacts pre-decision.  The most recent consultation paper does not repeat 
this statement.

35mppa will not be reached until 2023 (MAG) or 2033 (DfT).  No lengthy construction works 
are involved, and why are any needed with no ATM increase?  May again be a “golden rivet” 
to delay payments under the 1973 Land Compensation Act.

Failure to discharge the unilateral undertaking obligation to carry out the impact studies 
required to be commissioned by 31.12.14.  Postponement would allow time for the obligation 
to be discharged and for local and national policy to become clearer.  It would also allow for 
a better assessment of post-Brexit implications for the aviation sector.

Concerns about UDC Competence and Impartiality
The Council faces two major challenges at the same time, these are the current airport 
application and the local plan.  

Prejudgement in favour of securing S106 benefits is suspected, especially funding M11J8 
improvements to secure local housing delivery in the local plan.

The Council has a close association with, and co-sponsors the LSCC.

The PPA has been used to curtail the opportunity for public engagement and fair and 
transparent consultation.  This is to be contrasted with the Generation 1 determination 
process.  Public comments have been wrongly categorised. 

There are concerns about favourable treatment towards the applicant.  It is easier for 
supporters to make representations than it is for objectors.  There is no UDC enthusiasm for 
submitting Part 1 claims under the Land Compensation Act 1973 for diminution in the value 
of Council-owned houses.

The Council is turning a blind eye to breaches of the G1 unilateral undertaking.

There are concerns at the lobbying activities of an Uttlesford councillor who owns an airport-
related business.

Planning Statement
(This chapter contains a digest of the national and local aviation and planning policies that 
SSE considers are relevant.  The chapter sets out SSE’s overarching planning policy 
objections).

There must be strong doubts as to whether further development at Stansted meets 
Government policy at this time.  The draft ANPS is strongly focussed on Heathrow runway 3 
with other proposals seemingly put on hold.  The draft does say that other proposals must 
demonstrate need that is additional to, and cannot be met by runway 3.  

Adopted Local Plan Policy ENV11 states that noise generators will only be approved where 
need has been demonstrated.  There is no convincing demonstration of need, only an 
assertion that expansion would benefit the economy.  The application is also clearly contrary 
to Objective 2c, paragraph 3.76 and Policy SP11of the emerging local plan.  Substantial 
growth at Stansted will not achieve mitigation and adaptation to climate change as required 
under Objective 3b.  

Page 122Page 510



There is a direct link between airport growth and UDC’s wider ambitions in the emerging 
local plan, which cannot be achieved without resolving the problem of M11 J8.  UDC may be 
trying to secure “pump priming” by permitting growth at Stansted in advance of the local plan 
examination.

If planning permission is granted the decision would almost certainly be challenged – on 
multiple grounds including abuse of process.  Planning permission should be refused for the 
following reasons:

(1) The proposals are contrary to Government airport policy as expressed in:

• The Draft ANPS (Oct 2017) – because no ‘additional or different’ need for the extra 
capacity at this time has been demonstrated, having regard inter alia to the most 
recent DfT Aviation Forecasts (Oct 2017); and

• The Airports Commission Final Report 2015: no case has been made for rejecting 
the Commission's view “that there may be a case for reviewing the Stansted planning 
cap if and when the airport moves closer to full capacity. Its forecasts indicate that 
this would not occur until at least the 2030s”.

(2) The proposals are contrary to the NPPF’s objectives for sustainable development – the 
economic case has not been adequately made; and environmental impact, including the 
adverse impact on climate changes, is an unavoidable consequence of increased aircraft 
travel.

(3) The proposals are contrary to the ELP Objective 2c and Policy SP11

• which limit the capacity of the airport to its 2008 permitted level

• the effective increase in ATMs above those required for the passenger limit of 
35mppa is a ‘significant’ and unacceptable increase

• the substantial increase in car trips without any increase in the modal share 
percentage target will not ‘minimise use of the private car'.

Historical Background
(This chapter sets out the history of Stansted Airport from its use as a WW2 American 
airbase up to the current day).

Aviation Forecasts
Forecasts only extend to 2028, which is not adequate as the emerging local plan extends to 
2033.

MAG’s forecasts are wildly at variance with those of the DfT and Airports Commission.  Very 
little evidence is submitted to substantiate MAG’s forecasts and MAG has a history of 
producing forecasts which are typically underachieved by 30-40%.  This includes forecasting 
in 1997 for the second runway planning permission at Manchester Airport and its 2007 
masterplan.  Assuming that Heathrow runway 3 will not open until 2030 inflates MAG’s own 
forecasts.  The CEO of Heathrow Airport said in evidence to the House of Commons 
Transport Committee in February 2018 that a 2026 opening is completely achievable.

Page 123Page 511



Dismissal of the competitive potential of Luton and Birmingham Airports and assumption that 
Heathrow and Gatwick have no further scope to increase passenger throughput on their 
existing runways in the next ten years.

MAG ignores the dominance of Ryanair and the fact that all other airlines at Stansted carry 
24% fewer passengers in 2016 than in 2011.  MAG does not want to highlight the 
vulnerability of its business to a single customer over which it has no control.

Wholesale replacement of the Stansted fleet by 2028 with new, cleaner and quieter aircraft 
is absurdly optimistic.  The ES assessments of noise, air quality, health impacts and carbon 
emissions are all based on these assumptions.   By 2028, Ryanair will have a fleet of 650 
aircraft, less than a third of which will be the new  MAX variant.  No allowance has been 
made for the modelling of long haul PATMs, and the forecasting assumes the use of the 
most modern variants of each CATM type.

Noise
Introduction
Stansted is located in rural surroundings where low background noise levels are a major part 
of quality of life.  A 52% increase in aircraft movements and a 77% increase in passengers 
are proposed compared to the 2016 baseline.  

Government policy
Government policy since 2013 has been undergoing significant change, 

- The introduction of improved noise metrics and appraisal guidance
- Lower threshold levels for the onset of community annoyance
- Number of flights to be taken into account, not just average noise levels
- Noise reduction now a priority up to 7,000ft
- Health impacts and quality of life factors are now included

Impact Assessment
The DfT-commissioned Survey of Noise Attitudes (SoNA 2014) says that significant 
community annoyance is now observed from 54dB LAeq, with the Lowest Observed Adverse 
Effect Level (LOAEL) for aviation is now likely in the range of 50-54dB LAeq, well below the 
current 57 dB LAeq benchmark.  For night noise, the WHO recommends an Lnight of 40dB.  

Using 54dB LAeq 16-hour contour figures and 45dB Lnight contours there is a considerable 
rise in the areas and populations affected compared to the 2016 baseline.  The current 
Condition AN1 contour is based on 57dB LAeq and is now clearly outdated.

Air Noise
MAG’s claim that new aircraft are 50% quieter refers to a 50% reduction in pressure level 
which is 3dB, the minimum perceptible by the human ear.  The quoted reductions in 
departure and arrival noise of the Boeing MAX variant would be effectively imperceptible.  
Modern high ratio bypass turbofan engines are characterised by a tonal (whine) feature 
which increases the likelihood of annoyance.

No account has been taken of the cumulative effects of forthcoming changes to routes for 
traffic operating from other airports in the SE.

Page 124Page 512



100% single mode LAeq contours are not provided.  These contours slightly better represent 
the real-world situation where aircraft can only use one runway direction depending on wind 
direction.  

The assessment study area of 25km x 30km is insufficient having regard to the area of noise 
complaints and the effect of PBN on the Clacton departure routes.  The area should cover 
30km x 40km, corresponding to the 2016 daytime complaints map in ES Appendix 7.5 
Figure F2.

Re background noise levels, the difference between the maximum noise level and the 
background level gives a much better indication of what people actually hear.  From 
measurements at all 16 locations in ES Appendix 7.4 there is a significant difference in noise 
levels between the LAmax and LA90 measurements, particularly at night.  Each aircraft 
noise event was clearly audible and Stansted is already allowed 13,700 night flights, more 
than the 5,800 allowed at Heathrow.

The reason why so many complaints about noise originate from some distance away from 
the airport is simply because these people are clearly annoyed or suffer sleep disturbance.  
These locations are generally overflown between 4,000 –7,000ft, exacerbated by the 
increased number of flights.  Since 2013, the number of complaints has risen from 907 to 
8,411 in 2017.

Ground Noise
Similar concerns exist as for air noise.  The ES does not take into account atmospheric 
conditions such as inverse temperature gradient and wind speed / direction other than a 
vague and unspecified adjustment for downwind conditions.  Even limited comparison of 
daytime and night time average LAeq values for the 2016 baseline compared to 43mppa at 
nine receptor locations show that the noise environment would generally worsen.

Surface Access Noise
All 38 link road locations currently exceed WHO guideline values of 55dB for serious 
annoyance and all would have increased levels at 43mppa.  There is no cumulative 
assessment with ground noise.

Helicopters
This has not been assessed despite UDC advice to do so and despite recognition by DfT 
that helicopters can be perceived as up to 15dB or nearly three times louder than fixed wing 
aircraft.  Most of the impact at Stansted is concentrated upon specific communities to the 
west of the airport, who are mostly not significantly affected by fixed wing aircraft noise.

Surface Access – Road
Introduction and Context
The TA is flawed, misleading and contradictory; it fails to provide clear and adequate 
justification and support for assumptions and fails to adhere to appropriate guidance.

The NPPF requires that impact is assessed in the context of cumulative impact that includes 
the increase from the existing level of use to the existing permitted level of use.  Cumulative 
increase in relation to airport traffic is from 24.3mppa to 43mppa (77%).

Page 125Page 513



Staff and Passenger Movements
The terms “car” and “car passenger” need clarifying.  Query the sampling method used in 
the CAA passenger survey – data likely to be unreliable unless a single response from each 
travelling group has been ensured.  There are unreliable and unjustifiable assumptions 
about vehicle occupancy which have caused SSE to commission its own survey from CAA.

Peak demand period extends from May/June to October, longer than the school holiday 
period.  TA assumptions produce a marked trough from 07:00 – 08:00, which is used as the 
assessment period for highways impact.  Whilst landside passenger movements are shown 
to increase by 142% in that period, the level of movement still remains the lowest of all 
daytime hours.  This is not consistent with the TA statement that there will be a levelling of 
demand throughout the day.  The number arriving and departing in the 17:00 – 18:00 period 
is predicted to decrease, which is unlikely.

Data on car park movements show almost double the number during 07:00 – 08:00 
compared to the following hour.

No information is provided to show how passenger numbers vary between weekdays.  
Material variations between weekdays may have significant implications for highways 
impact.

There are inconsistencies between passenger movement by car data shown in Tables 4.7, 
6.6-6.8 and Appendices G1, 3, 4, 5, 6 and 8.  There is no explanation to justify alterations in 
passenger behaviour such as reduction in the use of drop-off, which would increase parking 
demand.  No information is provided on existing passenger demand for car parking spaces.  
It is not possible to understand the existing balance of car parking supply and demand, or to 
assess how this would change.

Car parking is not part of the planning application.  There is no constraint on increasing 
supply for which there is financial pressure.

Inconsistent use of staffing numbers and STAL has a long history of overestimating 
employment growth.  Query the daily staff attendance and staff car occupancy figures in the 
TA.  Query the predicted reduction in staff car movements in the assessment hours when 
staff levels will increase by 14%.  Question the assumption behind the target for reducing the 
staff car driver mode share by 10%.  A supply of 5,000 staff car parking spaces represents 
overprovision, undermining efforts to reduce staff car driver mode share.

Parking Capacity
SSE calculates that 70,661 car parking spaces will be needed, 40,000 more that at present.  
These (and their construction impacts) have not been considered in the planning application 
or the ES.  100ha would be required to provide these spaces at ground level – multi-storey 
provision (anticipated in the 2015 SDP) will have additional visual impacts and costs. 

Traffic Growth
Background traffic growth has been applied to non-airport traffic and the prediction of 
increases in airport related movement have been applied to airport flows.  Use of TEMPro 
“all rural” growth factors appears incorrect given that key impacts will be on the M11 and 
A120.  No assessment of changes in turning movements has been made.

Page 126Page 514



Impact on Highway Network
No passenger car trips are assigned to the Cooper’s End roundabout, Church Road or Bury 
Lodge Lane.   Parsonage Road is very convenient for passengers east of the airport and for 
some coming for the south.  It is also attractive to staff since the majority of airport 
employment is located near to Cooper’s End roundabout.  TA severely underestimates the 
impact on Parsonage Road and the Four Ashes junction.  TA conclusions of negligible 
impacts on local roads cannot be considered robust.

The impact on M11 J8 will be greater than anticipated for the following reasons:

• All assessments are based on average passenger numbers. Highways impact will 
be greater than this level during a significant proportion of the year, including periods 
that do not coincide with school holidays;

• The predicted ‘trough’ in passenger vehicle movement during the 07:00-08:00 
period is contradicted by the fact that passenger movement will be ‘evened out’ as 
the runway operates at higher levels of capacity;

• The predicted ‘trough’ in passenger vehicle movements during the 07:00-08:00 
period is contradicted by existing evidence of patterns of car arrivals and departures 
at the airport car parks;

• It is predicted that in the 17:00-18:00 peak hour the number of passenger car 
movements will reduce by 5% with a 44% increase in passenger numbers (to 
35mppa). This result is not credible. Passenger vehicle movements will increase 
during this period and the overall increase with 44mppa is likely to be higher;

• Staff vehicle movements are based on an unjustified assumption that only 50% of 
staff are present on any one day. It is likely that more than 50% will work on any one 
day;

• Considerable uncertainty surrounds forecasts for staff numbers. For example, the 
predicted level of staff increase adopted for the purposes of impact assessment is 
less than that originally predicted in the scoping report and as set out on the planning 
application form. No justification is given for the reduced assumed level of staffing;

• It has been calculated that staff vehicle movements will decrease in the 07:00-08:00 
and 17:00-18:00 periods with a 14% increase in staffing levels in the 35mppa 
situation despite these periods currently having some of the highest hourly staff 
arrivals and departures. This is not credible, particularly given that an increase is 
predicted as passenger numbers increase to 43mppa;

• The assumed 10% decrease in staff car driver mode share is contrary to current 
airport policy (that provides no incentive to reduce staff car driver mode share to 
anything lower than the current level) and is contradicted by the proposal to 
significantly increase staff parking;

• The level of background traffic growth has been under-estimated since it is based 
on ‘all rural’ roads rather than ‘rural trunk’ roads;

Page 127Page 515



• No allowance has been made for the possible increased local impact of proposed 
development on the A120/M11 interchange resulting from the likely distribution of 
Local Plan development.

STAL’s “Further Improvement Scheme” has a number of design concerns that may reduce 
its effectiveness as a mitigation strategy.  UDC’s local plan transport study prepared by 
WYG identified severe capacity constraints associated with the A120 and M11 in the vicinity 
of the airport within the local plan period.  Despite this work, the impact on these strategic 
links has been ignored.

Environmental Statement
The TA makes no attempt to identify sensitive receptors, which is a fundamental principle of 
environmental assessment.  Should have focussed on those local roads and communities 
around the airport where sensitive receptors are located such as Takeley, Stansted 
Mountfitchet, Burton End and Tye Green.  SSE highlights impacts on Parsonage Road, Bury 
Lodge Lane and from construction traffic.

Surface Access – Rail
Recent rail mode share growth has been at the expense of bus and coach and has not 
reduced the use of the car.

The TA uses 65% “crush loading” as its reference point for assessing standing capacity, 
which is inappropriate as Class 317 and 379 trains are not metro style with few seats.  This 
level of standing may be unachievable.  The DfT standard of no more than 35% standing for 
no more than 20 minutes would not be met between Tottenham Hale and Bishop’s Stortford.  
Baseline loadings between Tottenham Hale and Harlow indicate that extra capacity will soon 
be needed.  The assumed standing capacity of the new trains is not stated, but appears to 
be 45%.

WAML is quadruple-tracked only as far as Bethnal Green and the STEX clock face timetable 
limits capacity in the airport tunnel.  There are no spare train paths into or out of Liverpool 
Street in the peaks.  There is no possibility of extra tracks or line speed improvements 
between Liverpool Street and Tottenham Hale.  Aspiration for a 40-minute journey time 
would be extremely challenging.  4-tracking between Tottenham Hale and Broxbourne is 15 
years away at the earliest and is Crossrail 2 contingent.

Longer trains are likely to lead to slower boarding times.  It would be wholly unacceptable to 
local residents to cut out intermediate stops in order to accommodate airport growth.  There 
is concern that this might be the only way of reducing journey times in the short and medium 
terms.

The impact on peak demand for rail services has not been adequately assessed.

Sensitivity tests of a rail mode share of 30% and 35% should be undertaken.  The APF 
policy test of increasing the use of public transport by passengers to access the airport is not 
met.  Similarly, the proposal would not satisfy Criterion h of Policy SP11 of the emerging 
local plan which requires minimising the use of the private car and maximising the use of 
sustainable transport modes.

Page 128Page 516



The applicant should be required to commit to, and help finance, an eastward extension of 
the rail line to Braintree.  This would improve rail connectivity, provide greater reliability and 
resilience, provide a greater opportunity for all-night services and make better use of 
capacity into and out of Liverpool Street.

Air Quality
There are uncertainties over cumulative impacts when new airport-related road traffic is 
added to new housing-related road traffic.  A main concern is NO2 levels at Hockerill 
junction in Bishop’s Stortford, and a 2016 exceedance of NO2 annual mean concentration at 
Burton End, the latter being close to the airport perimeter and the M11.The Four Ashes at 
Takeley is close to the limit, as is Chapel Hill in Stansted Mountfitchet.  No information has 
been provided about impacts within the airport perimeter.

Increased emissions will undoubtedly affect both Hatfield Forest and East End Wood SSSIs 
where aircraft will be below 3,000ft, particularly when landing.  No proper assessment can 
be carried out into the impact on Hatfield Forest until the numerous uncertainties relating to 
road traffic and aircraft emissions have been resolved.

Aircraft fleet mix assumptions are absurdly optimistic, and modelling has only considered 
emissions in the LTO cycle up to 1,500ft rather than the ICAO recommended threshold of 
3,000ft.  The proposal cannot be supported under emerging local plan Policy EN16.  

Socio-economic Impacts
Few benefits are quantified, and there is overstatement and inaccuracy.  The many 
significant disbenefits are ignored.

Inexplicable that MAG anticipates no productivity improvements at 43mppa rather than 
35mppa.  This is not in accordance with the Government’s vision in its aviation strategy call 
for evidence.

There is a very significant difference between the type of jobs on offer at the airport and the 
type of jobs available to local residents.  Average earnings of airport employees are very 
substantially lower than local average earnings.  More jobs at the airport would only add to 
economic growth if they replace less productive jobs elsewhere, but many airport jobs are 
relatively unskilled.  Airport wages will not go very far in the local housing market.

The local area effectively has full employment.  The airport has, in effect, outgrown the local 
jobs market.  Just 18.3% of airport employees are Uttlesford residents (2015) down from 
23.8% (Generation 1).  The Uttlesford number of jobs has declined despite an overall 
increase in airport jobs of 2,000 over the same period.

MAG should provide a sensitivity analysis for the contingency of Ryanair withdrawing from 
the airport, and also for an unfavourable Brexit outcome.

There is no estimation of user benefits, nor any proper assessment of the impact on the UK 
economy.  Business travel accounts for just 14% of Stansted passengers compared to a 
London average of 21%.  

International UK Leisure is the dominant sector at Stansted, resulting in a “tourism deficit”.  
Earlier Government support in the 2003 ATWP was based on projections for inward and 

Page 129Page 517



outward visitors, but current Government aviation policy lacks clarity.  Effect on the UK trade 
balance must therefore be a material planning consideration.

MAG gives limited consideration to social and environmental factors beyond travel and 
employment opportunities.  MAG does not acknowledge the cost to the wider community 
from expansion, such as the predicted increase in cargo flights from 10,126 in 2017 to 
16,000 in 2028, many of which will be larger, elderly aircraft.  Economic benefits would not 
accrue to those forced to endure the societal and environmental disbenefits.

There is misrepresentation of policy support for expansion, and claims of support from other 
bodies even when they are grounded in vested interest. There is currently considerable 
uncertainty over Government aviation policy.

Carbon Emissions and Climate Change
SSE disagrees with the assertion that the additional carbon emissions arising at 43mppa are 
insignificant and therefore acceptable.  Emissions estimates should be extended to 2050 to 
cover both the UK statutory framework and the Government’s policy framework. 

Whilst the APF set out an aviation sector emissions reduction objective, there was little 
further clarity because the Government was still relying on an effective EU emissions trading 
scheme.  There is still a lack of clarity, but aviation CO2 emissions need to be brought under 
control if the statutory target of cutting the UK’s carbon emissions by 80% by 2050 is to be 
met (Climate Change Act 2008).  To ensure UK aviation total carbon emissions are no 
higher in 2050 than in 2005, the Committee on Climate Change (CCC) recommended a cap 
of 37.5mtCO2.  This cap is unlikely to be relaxed, and may need to be reduced in view of the 
Paris Agreement.

The EU ETS has proved almost entirely ineffective as far as aviation emissions are 
concerned, and it cannot yet be said whether CORSIA will be another false dawn.  It will use 
2020 as a baseline for emission levels and will only apply to 80% of emissions growth above 
that baseline.  It is unlikely to have a short term impact as it isn’t mandatory until 2027.  

Little weight should be placed on roadmaps produced by Sustainable Aviation (an industry-
sponsored organisation) because of its track record of wild optimism.  The Government’s 
working assumption of a carbon price of £221 / tonne in 2050 has potentially serious 
repercussions for the aviation industry, particularly the low fares carriers.

MAG has understated base and development case emissions because of: i) over-optimism 
on the rate of replacement of current aircraft types, ii) full account not being taken of the 
anticipated large increase in long-haul traffic, and iii) full account not being taken of the 
projected 58% increase in CATMs.  SSE suggests an underestimation by 15-20%.  These 
are significantly above what the DfT has allowed for in its forecasts, assuming Stansted is 
capped at 35mppa.

If planning permission is granted, the increase in carbon emissions compared to the base 
case would be 6mt until 2050.  This is not far short of the emissions that would have been 
generated over the lifespan of the proposed open-cast mining operation at Highthorn 
(Northumberland) which the Secretary of State refused in March 2018.  His main reason was 
that the effects of carbon in the atmosphere would have a cumulative effect in the long term.  
The revised draft ANPS states:

Page 130Page 518



“Any increase in carbon emissions alone is not a reason to refuse development consent, 
unless the increase in carbon emissions resulting from the project is so significant that it 
would have a material impact on the ability of the Government to meet its carbon reduction 
targets, including carbon budgets”.

No account has been taken of the Radiative Forcing effect of aviation emissions.

Health and Wellbeing
The HIA was carried out without any degree of independence or expert advice from any 
eminent health professionals (unlike in the case of the G1 planning application), and its 
credibility must therefore be questioned.

It is common ground that the proposed increased number of flights and associated increase 
in road traffic would result in increased noise impacts and poorer local air quality. 
Government policy – for health reasons – is to improve air quality for local people, not 
reduce it; and the Government's policy – again, for health reasons – is for fewer people to 
suffer the impacts of aircraft noise, not more people.

The adverse health impacts of aircraft pollution, including noise pollution, are wide ranging 
and often very serious respiratory and cardiovascular diseases, and the effects of stress and 
anxiety being amongst the most prominent of these adverse health impacts. 

No net positive health benefits can be identified from the proposed expansion for the 
residents of Uttlesford or surrounding districts, where there has long been full employment 
and well above average earnings. Uttlesford is repeatedly ranked one of the best places to 
live in England, in terms of quality of life. However, amongst the few disadvantages of the 
local area are increasing road traffic and rail congestion and pressures in the housing 
market. The proposed development would have a negative impact on all these areas.

There is no proper assessment of the cumulative effects which means including other 
developments taking place locally at this time, and of the combined adverse effect of the 
additional noise, emissions, road traffic, light pollution and other impacts upon particular 
receptors (local residents) who would bear the brunt of the impacts. In addition, some 
impacts have been disregarded altogether, for example light pollution.

The term 'wellbeing' is used subjectively and it is of no surprise that the HIA should conclude 
by asserting, without any valid evidence, that community wellbeing would be enhanced by 
the proposed development. The volume of individual objection letters already submitted to 
UDC regarding this application by members of the public confirms the local concerns which 
exist about any exacerbation of airport-related activity.

In the case of the G1 application, an extensive 'Quality of Life' survey, including a 
questionnaire provided to local residents, was carried out on behalf of STAL to assess the 
impact that expansion would have on community wellbeing. The results of that survey 
showed general opposition to the airport expansion proposal, much of this based on 
concerns about health and reduced quality of life. These results may or may not be the 
reason why no similar such survey was carried out on this occasion. The assertion that 
community health and wellbeing would be enhanced by the proposed development is totally 
rejected.

Page 131Page 519



Concluding Points
In the limited time available we have not been able to review all of the topics in the ES and 
so we have had to prioritise. This is not to say that we have no concerns about the topics we 
have not managed to examine. In fact, we do have significant concerns in a number of these 
areas, for example:

• The visual impact of the proposed development, particularly at night when we 
expect that the new taxiways and aircraft stands will require some form of illumination 
which will add to the already hideous 'night glow' that emanates from the airport and 
intrudes upon the clarity of the rural night sky

• The impact of the proposed development on available water resources when 
considered cumulatively alongside the additional demand for water that will arise 
from the significant new housing that is planned for the relevant local area over the 
period to 2033.

• Ecology and biodiversity impacts, both on-airport – where existing grass-lands 
would need to be ploughed up to make way for the new aircraft stands and taxiways 
– and off-airport, with particular regard to potential impacts upon Hatfield Forest and 
East End Wood SSSIs.

• Construction impacts – which we have only looked at briefly on the basis that these 
would at least be only temporary. However, there would appear to be a need for 
further construction to increase parking capacity, yet this has not been mentioned in 
the application.

By focusing on impacts in just six core areas – Noise, Surface access, Air quality, Socio-
economic factors, Climate change and Health – we have been able to scrutinise the ES and 
TA in some detail, probing MAG's assumptions and assertions, and checking the evidence 
and analysis. We have not been impressed with what we have found.

 MAG appears to have submitted this planning application, together with the ES and TA, in 
the confident expectation that it would be approved at local level with little fuss, delay or 
scrutiny. That cannot possibly now be the case. As will be evident from the main body of this 
submission, we have uncovered not just multiple errors and omissions in the ES and the TA 
but also fundamental flaws and outright misrepresentations.

On the one hand this gives us confidence that if UDC were to proceed to determine this 
application – properly exercising its quasi-judicial role in relation to planning decisions – the 
application would unquestionably be refused.

On the other hand, we continue to have profound concerns about local determination and so 
we adhere to the view that proper consideration of this application requires a holistic view 
across a wide range of issues, not least, the London airports market. It also requires a level 
of scrutiny, expertise and objectivity that can only be provided by national determination. 
That would also allow time for more thorough analysis.

We stand ready to discuss this submission with UDC Planning Officers at any time.

2nd Response

Page 132Page 520



Reiterate view that the proposal should be NSIP.  SSE submitted a Judicial Review to seek 
to overturn the SoS decision not to deal with application

Reiterate concerns about inadequacies in the ES and Planning Statement, prematurity, 
UDC’s competence and impartiality

SSE has also submitted their comments on the Consultee Response Schedule.  This largely 
reaffirms their views on the various points that the applicant has addressed which were in 
relation to concerns raised by SSE in their first response to the application.

Page 133Page 521



REPRESENTATIONS
Neighbours were notified of the application by letter, and notices were displayed near the 
site and in the local press. Consultation period expired on 30 August 2018.

The following concerns have been raised in the submitted representations (854 letters):

Process and background information

• Should be considered at national level as a National Significant Infrastructure Project 
(NSIP)

• Airport forecasts inaccurate
• Doesn't stand up to scrutiny
• Premature until Airport Policy published
• Proposals to expand Heathrow, Gatwick, Luton, London City and Southend Airports 

renders MAG's planning application unnecessary and inappropriate
• "Making Best Use of Existing Runways" does not support construction of additional 

infrastructure to extend capacity of existing runways
• Previous applications made it clear additional infrastructure was not needed.
• Concern about PPA
• Details of revised PPA need to be publicised

Surface Access and Transport

• Increase in traffic and overcrowding on trains
• Increased road congestion and impacts on railways
• Transport infrastructure having difficulties coping
• Improvements to road network needed
• A120 cannot cope with extra traffic
• Increased accident risks
• Impacts on M11
• Been a 23% increase in road traffic accidents on the Essex section of M11 in last 

year
• Large proportion of car parking fees should be put towards public transport
• STAL should pay to upgrade rail infrastructure
• Need new rail infrastructure, bus routes and cycle routes
• Longer trains will result in longer delays and traffic congestion at level crossings
• Needs supporting rail links from Midlands and the North
• Proposed Easton Park Garden Town and current committed housing will push local 

roads to limits
• Lack of detail relating to vehicle movements to and from car parks
• Congestion impacting on local tourism
• An airport and a new town in same area is just too much

Noise 

• More people being overflown
• Noise pollution and blight to villages

Page 134Page 522



• Should be conditional on unambiguous noise reduction targets being met and 
introduction of mitigation measures and noise limits in communities living under 
Performance Based Navigation flight paths

• Overflown since 2014 and lives destroyed
• If permitted to increase number of flights situation will become unbearable
• Removal of respite periods of calm
• Detrimental effects on communities, infrastructure and quality of life and environment
• Breach of our human rights for fresh air, peace and quiet and sufficient sleep
• More clarification on changes to noise restrictions
• Noise complaints are ignored
• Requested flights be directed away from Howe Green School and our homes
• Noise insulation grant ineffective in listed buildings close to airport
• High Easter noise monitor study carried out with noise monitor in our garden.  

Analysis showed noise level was borderline unacceptable.  Not mentioned in ES
• Runway 04 does not have CDA therefore planes fly at 2000ft above Harlow.  No 

noise surveys conducted in Harlow to measure impacts
• CAA statistics reveal population in noise contours has increased, as have noise 

complaints
• 11 fold increase in noise complaints since the Detling/Dover NPR switch
• Section 7.55 of the ES states "Noise level changes of less than 3dB are generally not 

perceptible and therefore give rise to effects that are negligible."  Table 7.6 shown 
new generation aircraft being only 3dB less noisy.  Therefore, by STAL's own 
assessment the introduction of new aircraft will have no impact on noise reduction.

• Continuous noise from aircraft in Lavenham
• Noise bad in Hatfield Heath especially from transport jets at night
• Noise level measured in our house has exceeded 100 decibels for some aircraft 

taking off
• Need compensation for those affected
• Impacts on people in Sudbury
• Noise impacts in Chelmsford
• Changes to flight paths over High Easter has changed quality of life
• Aircraft noise already impacts Newport
• Villages under flight paths of both Luton and Stansted
• Planes fly low over Westland Green creating disturbance, increase air pollution and 

noise
• Theydon Bois affected by noise and air pollution
• Ashdon badly affected by noise from landing aircraft as they turn and slow
• Increase in traffic with noise pollution, litter and fly parking
• Increase in noise, fumes, litter and traffic
• Residents of Bishop's Stortford suffer adverse impacts from noise pollution, traffic 

congestion, fly parking and pressure on housing, medical and other social 
infrastructure

• Bishop's Stortford Golf Club facilities are seriously affected by aircraft movements 
due to noise

• Noise is health and safety risk
• Endangers continuance of Great Hallingbury Local History Society due to aircraft 

noise at venue
• Noise levels for vectored flights on Clacton route not done

Page 135Page 523



• Can an airport legally be allowed to expand over land earmarked by UDC and 
Braintree DC for a new city?  

• National policy says flightpaths cannot overfly heavily populated areas, and the 
planned West of Braintree new city with 13,500 houses, in in an area that is 
overflown both by outgoing and incoming planes

• Increased impacts on residents of Rayne
• Will have impacts on air traffic distribution over Suffolk, Norfolk and Cambridgeshire

Air Quality

• Air pollution from planes and vehicles
• Increase in air pollution and air ground noise impacting on health and schoolchildren
• Increased pollution at Hockerill traffic lights
• Several areas in Stansted at or nearing poor air quality levels
• Impacts on Epping Forest area from noise, pollution and traffic congestion
• Pollution including oily film on ponds, impacts on environment, children's health, local 

wildlife
• Impacts on local amenities (Hatfield Forest, Flitch Way) not been quantified
• Planes already breach EU limits for nitrogen dioxide pollution

Socio-economic 

• Questionable economic benefits outweighed by negative impacts of increased noise, 
pollution and pressure on local infrastructure

• Benefits to Uttlesford questionable.  
• No social or economic justification for expansion
• Exacerbating the UK tourism and trade deficit
• Airport is vulnerable to actions of main customer who make up 80% of business
• Heathrow expansion will affect other airports
• Brexit could have unknown impacts on airline operators
• Will impact on Northern Powerhouse aspirations
• Local people discriminated against in applying for jobs
• Extra housing.  Hospital, doctors' surgeries and schools do not have capacity for 

additional housing
• Given rapid developments in communications technology highly likely that business 

related air travel will diminish, or at least not increase at anything like MAG's forecast 
levels

Carbon emissions

• Will breach carbon emissions targets
• Increase use of fossil fuels
• Increase in carbon emissions
• Expansion of Stansted and Heathrow will absorb the limits in carbon emissions 

impacting ability of northern airports to expand

Climate change

• Contrary to public benefit of Essex and contingent areas and fight against global 
warming and to conserve natural environment

Page 136Page 524



Public health and wellbeing

• Should reject due to negative impact on health and wellbeing of thousands of people
• Health deteriorated due to aircraft noise
• Health will suffer from noisy aircraft and poorer air quality
• May limit potential for upkeeping community facility (Great Hallingbury Village Hall)
• Need a new hospital closer to airport
• Flights passing over Harlow Hospital causing disturbance to patients.  Unsafe and 

detrimental to health and welfare of patients
• Will ruin quality of life of residents of Bishop's Stortford  
• Medically unsafe to live in Bishop's Stortford - too few GPs and only one hospital in 

Harlow

Water resources and flood risk

• Inadequate water supply.

Ecology

• Concern about impacts on deer
• Since change in flight path there has been a decrease in insect, bee and bug 

population which has caused the reduction in swift, swallow and the night flight of 
bats, all killed off by pollutants from aircraft.  Flight path should be over agricultural 
land or the road network

Night flights

• All night flights should be phased out leading to complete ban by 2030.
• Freight should not be increased at night
• Object to changes to night flights
• Night flights should be banned

Other issues 

• 44% increase in flights and 66% increase in passengers, based on last year's 
statistics

• Support views of SSE

• Infrastructure struggling to cope with current numbers

• Cargo flights not considered in impacts
• Object to merging of aircraft quotas

• Loss of land for infrastructure
• Loss of agricultural land
• Will impact on CPZ
• Damage to listed buildings due to increased traffic

• Need to provide more car parking to stop fly parking and remove charges for drop-
off/pick up

Page 137Page 525



• Needs to be measures to prevent off-airport development

• Insufficient community involvement 
• Policy SP11 needs more robust wording
• Limited airspace will be exacerbated by projected increases in capacity elsewhere

Second runway

• Object to extension of the runway as would ruin many beautiful buildings
• Object to second runway.  Increase occupation of airspace around London could run 

the risk of accidents
• Roundabout way to get second runway
• Concerned about likelihood of another runway being proposed

Non-planning issues and issues with airport generally

• Airport is too small
• Bad security arrangements at airport
• Stansted Airport needs to get the operation working seamlessly before being allowed 

to expand further
• Airport is like a cattle market
• Often cited as worst airport in the country, or even world on a range of issues 

including disability access and passenger experience

• Not paid Part 1 Land Compensation Act compensation

• No compensation or infrastructure provided for town by airport or airlines
• Bishop's Stortford has never received any infrastructure improvements from airport
• No grants from EU for Bishop's Stortford

• Greedy companies and businesses use the airport as an excuse to destroy our 
Herts/Essex beautiful green fields and valleys

• Airport's existence been an excuse for the housing-greedy anti-democratic East 
Herts Council to build thousands of houses

• A new airport should be located in the Thames Estuary not in the middle of the Essex 
countryside

The following comments have been made SUPPORTING the proposal (99 letters):

Noise

• Noise is minimal in Takeley, Hatfield Heath, Harlow and Bishop's Stortford
• People choosing to live near airport don't have right to complain about noise

Page 138Page 526



Socio-economic

• Air HUB receives mail from and despatches mail to 44 mail centres in the Anglia, 
South East and London area.  Also has 14 scanning machines to x-ray all mail for 
despatching to Scotland and Northern Ireland by air.  Around 120 staff employed, 
plus drivers.  No objections providing scheme doesn't cause disruption to our 
operations.

• Important to our business and businesses we support trading internationally
• Beneficial to businesses and consumers within the East of England
• Imperative UK and London-Cambridge economic corridor is permitted to grow
• Strong, growing airport symbiotic with strong, growing regional and national economy
• Businesses would be well supported by proposed increase in passenger numbers
• Important to our members and wider Suffolk business community
• Impact of Stansted Airport as largest single-site employer in East of England cannot 

be underestimated
• Supports economic activity throughout Essex, the region and further afield
• Importance as source of sustainable employment at Harlow College is substantial
• Will continue to attract high value service industries
• Vital to local economy and will increase access to opportunity in careers in aviation, 

engineering, business services, warehousing, retail and visitor economy
• Tremendous interest in new Harlow College campus at Stansted Airport
• Will create a further 5000 new on-site jobs at airport
• Opportunity for investment, expansion and growth
• INVEST Essex believe that this connectivity will further enhance the county's offer to 

international investors
• Successful in attracting new scheduled cargo services
• Very much an asset for the growth of Essex economy and surrounding areas of East 

of England and UK as a whole
• Opportunity with Brexit
• London Stansted needs flexibility in capacity to respond quickly to capitalise on future 

opportunities for both passenger and cargo routes
• Opportunity to provide capacity in London area while Heathrow's third runway is 

constructed
• INVEST Essex supports and engine of growth within Essex economy
• Keen to promote opportunities at new Stansted Business Park
• Will provide a major positive impact to local, regional and UK's economy.
• Believe it is essential to local and national economy that Stansted receives 

appropriate investment and expansion required to accommodate our growing 
economy

• Provides livelihood for thousands of local residents
• Airport supports young people with educational facilities including new college 

providing much needed technical skills
• Long been concerned with capacity constraints facing London and South East airport
• Need to be using what we have to fullest extent for benefit of our economy
• Passenger and freight flows important part of regional economy
• Will benefit local and regional economies in terms of jobs and skills growth
• Revenue generated is a key component of income to the airport which drives 

improved infrastructure and connectivity, and a positive passenger experience

Page 139Page 527



• Increase in passenger numbers would expect to increase our staffing levels
• As a global company we are very aware of the importance of meeting the demand for 

air travel and connectivity at UK airports and welcome London Stansted's approach 
to sustainable growth

• Meet the Buyer events successful
• Benefitted professionally and personally from mentoring programme at Forest Hall 

School.  Income spent locally helping economy
• Visitor numbers expected to grow by 12%
• Over 246,000 people in the region are currently dependent on a thriving travel and 

tourism sector for their livelihoods
• Around a third of travel and tourism jobs are held by young people (aged 16-24), 

compared to just 12% of all jobs in the wider economy, and the visitor economy is a 
sector with potential to grow employment and value quickly

• Stansted vital as International Gateway
• Encouraged by new routes
• Cambridge's success due in part to its international connections
• Lifting cap sends positive message regarding growth and mobility
• Children benefitting from further education opportunities
• Stansted is important to success of Harlow Enterprise Zone and local economy
• Work with airport to provide apprenticeships
• Expanding the UK’s air freight capacity is crucial to encouraging trade and 

investment in the South East of England and will benefit UK business exporters who 
need to send or receive their shipments as quickly as possible

• This will be even more essential in a post-Brexit environment
• London Stansted Airport, lies at the heart of the UK’s Innovation Corridor which links 

London and Cambridge
• The Corridor is home to over two million people and is the location of four million 

jobs: this is the leading region in the UK for ideas, innovation and entrepreneurship
• The Corridor has consistently outperformed the rest of the UK on a number of key 

measures: jobs growth; business growth; population growth; and workforce growth 
(20.2%/9.0%)

• This Corridor is a £226bn economy that has a productivity rate 16% higher than the 
UK average

• The continued growth of the airport and its improved connections to Europe and the 
rest of the World are very important for the future growth of the UK’s Innovation 
Corridor to achieve the joint ambition of the LSCC: to become one of the top five 
Global knowledge regions by 2036

• In the opinion of the LSCC it is important that the airport has headroom to be able to 
grow its passenger throughput beyond the current limit of 35 million passengers per 
annum to best use of the single runway at 43 million ppa.

• Connectivity for leisure purposes important

EIA Approach

• Imperative that the social and economic benefits associated with growth need to be 
balanced against any potential adverse environmental consequences

• The Consortium is aware that the Environmental Impact Assessment accompanying 
the planning application finds that there are no significant environmental effects and 

Page 140Page 528



that the health and wellbeing of communities can be secured.  Whilst this is to be 
very much welcomed, LSCC will expect these findings to be confirmed or otherwise 
by rigorous examination.  Of particular concern of course are issues relating to 
aircraft noise and air quality impacts, both of which are of considerable concern to 
communities.

• Application made in responsible way
• This best use of capacity comes with minimised impacts on people living near airport 

or under its flightpaths
• Taking a responsible approach with benefits for all and minimises environmental 

impacts

General comments

• More appropriate than Heathrow
• Heathrow shouldn't be the only main UK hub
• Need to make full and efficient use of our airports
• In need of additional runway capacity
• New management worked hard to attract new routes

938 responses have been received covering the following:  

I support the planning application (UTT/18/0460/FUL) to allow sustainable growth at 
Stansted.

In particular, I support proposals that will:

• Attract new airlines and flights to more global destinations
• Create 5000 more jobs and double the airport’s economic contribution
• Provide confidence the future growth can be delivered in a responsible way

Page 141Page 529



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 530



SUPPLEMENTARY LIST OF REPRESENTATIONS 

Extraordinary Planning Committee

Date: Wednesday, 14th November, 2018
Time: 10.00 am
Venue: Council Chamber - Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, 

CB11 4ER

Chairman: Councillor A Mills
Members: Councillors R Chambers, P Fairhurst, R Freeman, A Gerard, 

E Hicks, M Lemon, J Loughlin (Vice-Chair), H Ryles and L Wells

ITEMS WITH SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
PART 1

Open to Public and Press

2 Public Speaking Sessions - Representations 3 - 196

To consider the representations received during the public speaking 
sessions on 6 and 7 November 2018. 

Page 531



For information about this meeting please contact Democratic Services
Telephone: 01799 510369 or 510548 
Email: Committee@uttlesford.gov.uk

General Enquiries
Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, CB11 4ER

Telephone: 01799 510510
Fax: 01799 510550

Email: uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk
Website: www.uttlesford.gov.uk

Page 532

mailto:Committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
mailto:uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk
http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/


Page 3

Agenda Item 2

Page 533



Page 4Page 534



Page 5Page 535



Page 6Page 536



Page 7Page 537



Page 8Page 538



Page 9Page 539



Page 10Page 540



Page 11Page 541



Page 12Page 542



Page 13Page 543



Page 14Page 544



Page 15Page 545



Page 16Page 546



Page 17Page 547



Page 18Page 548



Page 19Page 549



Page 20Page 550



Page 21Page 551



Page 22Page 552



Page 23Page 553



Page 24Page 554



Page 25Page 555



Page 26Page 556



Page 27Page 557



Page 28Page 558



Page 29Page 559



Page 30Page 560



Page 31Page 561



Page 32Page 562



Page 33Page 563



Page 34Page 564



Page 35Page 565



Page 36Page 566



Page 37Page 567



Page 38Page 568



Page 39Page 569



Page 40Page 570



Page 41Page 571



Page 42Page 572



Page 43Page 573



Page 44Page 574



Page 45Page 575



Page 46Page 576



Page 47Page 577



Page 48Page 578



Page 49Page 579



Page 50Page 580



Page 51Page 581



Page 52Page 582



Page 53Page 583



Page 54Page 584



Page 55Page 585



Page 56Page 586



Page 57Page 587



Page 58Page 588



Page 59Page 589



Page 60Page 590



Page 61Page 591



Page 62Page 592



Page 63Page 593



Page 64Page 594



Page 65Page 595



Page 66Page 596



Page 67Page 597



Page 68Page 598



Page 69Page 599



Page 70Page 600



Page 71Page 601



Page 72Page 602



Page 73Page 603



Page 74Page 604



Page 75Page 605



Page 76Page 606



Page 77Page 607



Page 78Page 608



Page 79Page 609



Page 80Page 610



Page 81Page 611



Page 82Page 612



Page 83Page 613



Page 84Page 614



Page 85Page 615



Page 86Page 616



Page 87Page 617



Page 88Page 618



Page 89Page 619



Page 90Page 620



Page 91Page 621



Page 92Page 622



Page 93Page 623



Page 94Page 624



Page 95Page 625



Page 96Page 626



Page 97Page 627



Page 98Page 628



Page 99Page 629



Page 100Page 630



Page 101Page 631



Page 102Page 632



Page 103Page 633



Page 104Page 634



Page 105Page 635



Page 106Page 636



Page 107Page 637



Page 108Page 638



Page 109Page 639



Page 110Page 640



Page 102Page 641



Page 103Page 642



Page 104Page 643



Page 105Page 644



Page 106Page 645



Page 107Page 646



Page 108Page 647



Page 109Page 648



Page 110Page 649



Page 111Page 650



Page 112Page 651



Page 113Page 652



Page 114Page 653



Page 115Page 654



Page 102Page 655



Page 103Page 656



Page 104Page 657



Page 105Page 658



Page 106Page 659



Page 107Page 660



Page 108Page 661



Page 109Page 662



Page 110Page 663



Page 111Page 664



Page 112Page 665



Page 113Page 666



Page 114Page 667



Page 115Page 668



Page 116Page 669



Page 117Page 670



Page 118Page 671



Page 119Page 672



Page 120Page 673



Page 121Page 674



Page 122Page 675



Page 123Page 676



Page 124Page 677



Page 125Page 678



Page 126Page 679



Page 127Page 680



Page 128Page 681



Page 129Page 682



Page 130Page 683



Page 131Page 684



Page 132Page 685



Page 133Page 686



Page 134Page 687



Page 135Page 688



Page 136Page 689



Page 137Page 690



Page 127Page 691



Page 128Page 692



Page 129Page 693



Page 130Page 694



Page 131Page 695



Page 132Page 696



Page 133Page 697



Page 134Page 698



Page 135Page 699



Page 136Page 700



Page 137Page 701



Page 138Page 702



Page 139Page 703



Page 140Page 704



Page 141Page 705



Page 142Page 706



Page 143Page 707



Page 144Page 708



Page 145Page 709



Page 146Page 710



Page 147Page 711



Page 148Page 712



Page 149Page 713



Page 150Page 714



Page 151Page 715



Page 152Page 716



Page 153Page 717



Page 154Page 718



Page 155Page 719



Page 156Page 720



Page 157Page 721



Page 158Page 722



Page 159Page 723



Page 160Page 724



Page 161Page 725



Page 162Page 726


	Agenda
	2 UTT/18/0460/FUL - Stansted Airport
	Deed of Amended Planning Obligations
	Letter from the Applicant
	STN 35+ Clarifications for Planning Committee (final).pdf
	16-0366 M26-0 19.10.11 Equipment Calibration.pdf
	2020 Draft S106 Value Table.pdf

	UTT180460FUL - Stansted Airport - 14 November 2018
	3 UTT/18/0460/FUL - Stansted Airport

	S106 Agreement Heads of Terms - 14 November 2018
	3 UTT/18/0460/FUL - Stansted Airport
	New S106 Agreement Heads of Terms


	SIGS Map - 14 November 2018
	3 UTT/18/0460/FUL - Stansted Airport
	SIGS Map


	Community Trust Terms - 14 November 2018
	3 UTT/18/0460/FUL - Stansted Airport
	Community Trust Terms


	Glossary - 14 November 2018
	3 UTT/18/0460/FUL - Stansted Airport
	Glossary


	Consultations - 14 November 2018
	3 UTT/18/0460/FUL - Stansted Airport

	Supplement- Consultations - 14 November 2018
	Agenda
	3 UTT/18/0460/FUL - Stansted Airport

	Supplement - Representations - 14 November 2018
	Agenda
	2 Public Speaking Sessions - Representations
	SUPREPS part 2
	SUPREPS part 3
	SUPREPS part 4
	SUPREPS part 5
	SUPREPS part 6
	SUPREPS part 7
	SUPREPS part 8
	SUPREPS part 9
	SUPREPS part 10
	SUPREPS part 11
	SUPREPS part 12
	SUPREPS part 13
	SUPREPS part 14
	SUPREPS part 15
	SUPREPS part 16
	SUPREPS part 17
	SUPREPS part 18
	SUPREPS part 19
	SUPREPS part 20
	SUPREPS part 21
	SUPREPS part 22






